
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Title: Economic Development & Culture 
Committee 

Date: 18 June 2015 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Conference Room 2, Jubilee Library, Jubilee 
Street, Brighton 

Members: Councillors: 
Morgan (Chair), Robins (Deputy Chair), 
Peltzer Dunn (Opposition Spokesperson), Druitt 
(Group Spokesperson), Greenbaum, Morris, 
Nemeth, O'Quinn, C Theobald and Yates 

Contact: Penny Jennings 
Democratic Services Officer 
29-1065 
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Democratic Services: Economic Development & Culture Committee  
                  

Public Seating 

Press 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Morgan 

Chair 

Executive Director of 
Environment, 

Development & 
Housing 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 

Legal 
Officer 

Public 
Speaker 

Councillor 
Robins 

Deputy Chair 

Councillor 

Morris 

Councillor 

O’Quinn 

Councillor 

Nemeth 

Councillor 
Peltzer Dunn 

Opposition Spokes 

Councillor 

C. Theobald 

Councillor 
Druitt 

Group Spokes 

Councillor 

Greenbaum 
Officer 

Speaking 

Councillor 

Yates 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART ONE Page 
 

1 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest:  
 

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests  
(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local 

code; 
(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the 

matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a 
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in 
the ward/s affected by the decision. 

 
In each case, you need to declare  
(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to; 
(ii) the nature of the interest; and 
(iii) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other 

interest. 
 

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer 
or administrator preferably before the meeting. 

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part Two of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

2 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

1 - 6 

 Report of the Head of Legal & Democratic Services (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Ross Keatley Tel: 29-1064  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 

 
 

3 MINUTES 7 - 18 

 Minutes of the meeting of the Economic Development & Culture 
Committee Meeting held on 12 March 2015 (copy attached) 

 

 

4 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

5 CALL OVER  

 (a) Items (8 - 12) will be read out at the meeting and Members invited 
to reserve the items for consideration. 

 
(b) Those items not reserved will be taken as having been received 

and the reports’ recommendations agreed. 

 

 

6 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 19 - 24 

 To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: 
 
(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented by members of the public 
to full Council or at the meeting itself; 
 

(a) The Hippodrome 
(b) Traffic assessment Saltdean and surrounds 
(c) King Alfred Indoor Bowling 
(d)  Save Preston Park Cycle Track 
(e)  Protection of Land Between Longhill Close, Ovingdean 

and Elvin Crescent Rottingdean 
(f)  Protect Longhill Close Woodland 

 
(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the due 
date of 12 noon on 11 June 2015; 
 

(a) Caroline Lynch – Article 4 
 
(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due date of 
12 noon on 11 June 2015. 

 

 

7 MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 25 - 26 

 To consider the following matters raised by councillors: 
 
(c) Letters: to consider any letters; 

 
Councillors Mary Mears - Woodland area at the rear of 
Longhill Close Ovingdean 

 

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 

 
 

8 NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING - DELEGATION OF DECISIONS 27 - 32 

 Report of the Executive Director for Environment, Development & 
Housing (copy attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Rebecca Fry Tel: 29-3773  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

9 DESIGNATION OF BUSINESS/NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA AND 
NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM - BRIGHTON MARINA 

33 - 76 

 Report of the Executive Director for Environment, Development & 
Housing (copy attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Rebecca Fry Tel: 29-3773  
 Ward Affected: Rottingdean Coastal   
 

10 LOCAL LIST OF HERITAGE ASSETS - ADOPTION 77 - 188 

 Report of the Executive Director for Environment, Development & 
Housing (copy attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Sanne Roberts Tel: 29-2261  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

11 BRIGHTON & HOVE TRIATHLON 2016 189 - 
194 

 Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (copy attached).  

 Contact Officer: Ian Shurrock Tel: 01273 292084  
 Ward Affected: All Wards   
 

12 MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE 195 - 
208 

 (Presentation attached).  
 

13 ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL  

 To consider items to be submitted to the 16 July 2015 Council 

meeting for information. 

 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine 
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition, 
any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the 
Chief Executive no later than 6 July 2015 10am on the eighth working day 
before the Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the 
Committee meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the 
conclusion of the Committee meeting 

 

 
 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 

 
 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings, (29-
1065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email 
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk  
 
 

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 10 June 2015 
 

 
     
     

     
    

 
 

     
    

 
 

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 2 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Constitutional Matters – Economic Development & 
Culture Committee 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2015 

Report of: Head of Legal & Democratic Services 

Contact Officer: Name: Ross Keatley Tel: 29-1064 

 Email: ross.keatley@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 To provide information on the Economic Development & Culture Committee's 

terms of reference and related matters including the appointment of its Urgency 
Sub-Committee. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee’s terms of reference, as set out in Appendix A to this report, 

be noted; and 
 
2.2 That the establishment of an Urgency Sub-Committee the membership of such 

Urgency Sub-Committee shall consist of the Chair of the Committee, and two 
other Members nominated by the Group Leader or Leaders as appropriate to 
meet the requirements for the allocation of seats between political groups., to 
exercise its powers in relation to matters of urgency, on which it is necessary to 
make a decision before the next ordinary meeting of the Committee be approved.   

 
 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Article 6 of the constitution incorporates a schedule of all the Committees and 

Sub-committees of the Council established in the constitution, together with a 
summary of their respective functions.   

 
The Economic Development & Culture Committee – Terms of Reference 

 
3.2 A copy of the terms of reference for the Committee is attached in Appendix A.  

These should be read in the context of the 'Introduction and General Delegations' 
included in the Scheme of Delegations to Committees and Sub-Committees at 
part 4 of the constitution. 

 

1



Membership 
 
3.3 The membership of the Committee is set at 10 Members of the Council. 
 
3.4 The arrangements governing attendance of substitute Members at meetings of 

Committees and Sub-Committees are set out in Council Procedure Rules 18 to 
24.  

 
 Programme Meetings 
 
3.5 Ordinary meetings of the Economic Development & Culture Committee are 

scheduled to take place on the following dates during 2015/16: 
 
 Thursday 18 June 2015 
 Thursday 17 September 2015 
 Thursday 12 November  
 Thursday 15 January 2016 
 Thursday 10 March 2016 
 
3.8 Meetings of the Committee will normally be held at Hove Town Hall and will start 

at 4.00 p.m. For the 2015/16 municipal year, meetings will be held in the Jubilee 
Library at 4.00pm due to renovation work at Hove Town Hall. 

 
 Urgency Sub-Committee 
 
3.9 The constitution states that each Committee of the Council except the Audit & 

Standards Committee may appoint an Urgency Sub-Committee to exercise its 
powers.  The membership of such Urgency Sub-Committee shall consist of the 
Chair of the Committee, and two other Members nominated by the Group Leader 
or Leaders as appropriate to meet the requirements for the allocation of seats 
between political groups.  Under current allocations this would mean an Urgency 
Sub-Committee will consist of one Member from each of the three political 
groups on the Council.   

 
3.10 Urgency Sub-Committees may exercise their powers in relation to matters of 

urgency on which it is necessary to make a decision before the next ordinary 
meeting of the Committee.  Every decision of each Urgency Sub-Committee is 
required to bereported for information to the next ordinary meeting of the 
Committee as appropriate. 

 
 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The Council’s constitution provides for the appointment of Sub-Committees and 

Urgency Sub-Committees. It is for the Economic Development & Culture 
Committee to determine this action and it could decide not to make such 
appointments.  However, this would restrict the ability of the Council to deal with 
urgent matters and is not therefore regarded as a viable alternative option. 

 
 

2



5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Full Council has considered and approved the Brighton & Hove City Council 

constitution, most recently on 26 March 2015. 
 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 The recommendations are being put forward in line with the requirements of the 

constitution. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 The costs of establishing and running the Urgency Sub-Committees are 

expected to be met within existing levels of resources. The cost of holding the 
committee meetings at the Jubilee Library have been included in the overall 
Workstyles Programme for the move to Hove Town Hall and will be reported to 
the Policy & Resources Committee at a later date. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Peter Francis Date: 08.15.15 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.2 The Council’s constitution complies with the legal framework set out in the 

Localism Act 2011, the Local Government Act 2000 and other relevant 
legislation.  

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Elizabeth Culbert Date:  11.05.15 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.3 There are no equalities implications arising from the report 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.4 There are no sustainability implications arising from the report. 
 

Any Other Significant Implications: 
 
7.5 None 
 
 
 
  

3



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
 Appendices: 
 
1. Economic Development & Culture Committee Terms of Reference 
 
 Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None 
 
 Background Documents 
 
1. The Constitution of Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

4



APPENDIX 1 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF COMMITTEES 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 

 

Explanatory Note 
This Committee is responsible for the council’s functions relating to planning 
policy, employment, economic growth and regeneration, culture, tourism and 
leisure. 

 

Delegated Functions 

 

1    Planning  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions as local planning authority (to the 

extent that they are not development control functions delegated to the 
Planning Committee), including the formulation and development of the 
Development Plan Documents prior to their adoption by Full Council. 

 
2.   Economic Growth and Regeneration  
 
 (a)  To exercise the Council’s functions and partnerships regarding 

the promotion of economic growth and the establishment and 
development of business.  

 (b)  To promote and develop the economic fundamentals of the City in 
areas such as adult skills, productivity, development sites etc.  

 
3.   Major Built Environment Projects 
 
 (a)  To oversee the progress of major projects (including major 

building, infrastructure or other projects involving the 
erection or significant alteration of major permanent 
structures or landmarks) undertaken by the Council, and advise 
the Policy & Resources Committee as appropriate.  

 
 (b)  To review major projects and any project Boards having regard to 

capacity to deliver, corporate priorities and resources, and advise 
the Policy & Resources Committee as appropriate.  

 
4.   Conservation and Design  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to Conservation and 

Design including the Hove Borough Council Act 1976. 
 
5.   Building Control  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions regarding building control. 
 

5



    

6.  Culture, Arts and Heritage  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to culture, including arts, 

entertainment, cultural activities and heritage.  
 
7.  Tourism & Marketing  
 

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to tourism, marketing 
and conferences.  
 

8.  Libraries and Museums  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to libraries, museums, art 

galleries, historic buildings and their gardens and the functions of the 
Council regarding public records.  

 
9.  Events  
 
 To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to events, including the 

annual programme of entertainment events (providing that if the 
relevant Director or Interim Lead, or other officer with delegated 
powers, is of the view that the event is a major event or has corporate 
budgetary or policy implications the matter shall be referred to the 
Policy & Resources Committee).  

 
10.  Leisure, Sports and Recreation  
 

To exercise the Council’s functions in relation to the provision and 
management of leisure, sports and recreation facilities. 

6



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 3 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

1 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 12 MARCH 2015 
 

CONFERENCE ROOM 1, JUBILEE LIBRARY 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Present : Councillors Bowden (Chair) Hawtree (Deputy Chair), Brown (Opposition 
Spokesperson), Deane, Randall, Smith, Morgan, Robins, C Theobald and Wealls 
 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

63 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
 Thanks to Committee Colleagues 
 
 Before proceeding to the formal business of the meeting the Chair wished to place on 

record his thanks to fellow Committee Members for their support during his period as 
Chair. He sent his best wishes to those who were not standing for re-election, including 
Councillor Randall a previous Leader of the Council and Councillor Smith who had 
served for many years as a previous Chair and Executive Councillor in relation to the 
city’s cultural and sporting offer for their contributions. 

 
 The Chair also placed on record his thanks for the contributions made by key officers 

and their staff, including the Assistant Chief Executive, Executive Director, Environment, 
Development and Housing, Head of City Regeneration and Head of City Planning and 
Development. As a result of their work a number of exciting projects had come to fruition 
which had improved the economic vibrancy of the city and enhanced its established 
cultural and sporting offer. 

 
 Members of the Committee also thanked Councillor Bowden for his contribution whilst 

Chair and wished him future success. 
 
63a Declaration of Substitutes 
 
63.1 There were none. 
 
63b Declarations of Interest 
 
63.2 There were none. 

7



 

2 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

 
63c Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
63.3 In accordance with Section 100A of the Local Government Act (“The Act”), the 

Economic Development and Culture Committee considered whether the public should 
be excluded from the meeting during consideration of any item of business on the 
grounds that it is likely in view of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings, that if members of the public were present during it, there would be 
disclosure to them of confidential information as defined in Section 100A(3) of the Act. 

 
63.4 RESOLVED – That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of any item on the agenda. 
 
64 MINUTES 
 
64.1 RESOLVED – That the Chair be authorised to sign the minutes of the meeting held on 

15 January 2015 as a correct record. 
 
65 CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
65.1 The Chair explained that although he would be referring to a few highlights as part of his 

communications a full text in respect of recent and upcoming events would be recorded 
in the substantive minutes of the meeting 

 
Christmas Open Houses Survey feedback 
 

65.2 Although Christmas was now a distant memory, the Chair stated that the results of this 
Survey were now in and made interesting and encouraging reading - based on 
responses from 20% of participants, there had been: 

 
Participating venues: 56 
Participating artists: 524 
Total turnover:  £207,446 
Total audience: 30,800 

 
Brighton Festival and Brighton Festival Fringe 

 
65.3 Brighton Festival and the Festival Fringe had now been launched both, with excellent 

programmes to look forward to in May. 
 

Royal Pavilion & Museums 
 

65.4 RPM’s “War Stories: Voices from the First World War” 
exhibition at Brighton Museum & Art Gallery had closed on Sunday 1 March with 77,429 
people having visited it to the end of January 2015. 

 
Library Service 

 
65.5 Volunteers and young people had helped mark the 10th anniversary of Brighton’s Jubilee 

Library last Thursday, March 5th, on World Book Day.Since opening in 2005, Jubilee 

8



 

3 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

Library had become the top performing library in the region and second most popular in 
the country. The building, itself, the centrepiece of Jubilee Square, had won many 
awards for its contemporary design and energy efficiency.  

 
65.6 Jubilee Library had re-opened the previous weekend following a brief period of closure 

in order to make internal improvements. Two new small meeting rooms and a computer 
training suite where volunteers can help people do things online such as looking for jobs 
or applying for services had been added. There is more space for customers to study 
and plug in their laptops and other devices. A new sitting area, which can be used by 
book groups and community groups has been created on the ground floor. Staff also 
moved stock and IT facilities to make them more accessible 

 
Conferences and Tourism 
 

65.7 Over the last 3 months 12 events had been confirmed which would bring economic 
benefit of £12m on their arrival into the City. Notable events included: 

 
  CASE Europe Social Media Conference – 100 delegates - April 2015 
 
  World Irish Dance Championships – 5000 delegates - March 2016 & 2017 
 
 NUT Annual Conference – 2500 delegates - April 2018 & 2020 

 
International Confex (18-19 February 2015) – Olympia 

 
65.8 VisitBrighton had exhibited at International Confex, is one of the UK’s longest standing 

Industry events. Working in collaboration with VisitEngland the team had joined their 
Rugby World Cup 2015 themed stand (along with the other host World Cup 
destinations/venues). Confex was an annual event which attracted a high number of 
conference organisers from many differing sectors, the show proved to be very 
productive, many new business connections had been made and conference enquiries 
for the city had been received. 

 
Partnership 
 

65.9 The rebook process is nearly completed for the Partnership year 2015-16, this has 
resulted in nearly all businesses staying with VisitBrighton (480 businesses) and will 
result in income of approx. £130,000. 

 
Press and Marketing 
 

65.10 Seven press trips had already taken place in 2015 with more booked up until June. 
Highlights had included Conde Nast Traveller magazine, The Irish Independent and 
Spartacus Traveller - the biggest LGBT guide in Germany. Coverage had also been 
logged in the Mail Online, had launched their new Rugby World campaign and had 
included Brighton & Hove - http://www.visitengland.com/things-to-do/england-2015. 

 

9



 

4 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

Future for Visitor Services Report 
 

65.11 The city council and the Tourism Advisory Board received a report jointly commissioned 
by them on future options for Visitor Services in the city which recommends a more 
commercial approach and a future outside of local authority. 

 
Regeneration and Economic Development 

 
The Open Market. 

 
65.12 The now completed Brighton Open Market had been shortlisted for the best mixed use 

development at the national Placemaking Awards. It had also been nominated for best 
regeneration, best community involvement and best tourism/leisure project in the Royal 
Institute of Chartered Surveyors South East Awards. This was deserved recognition of 
an outstanding development which had kick-started the wider regeneration of the 
London Road and had been achieved by the market traders, the Council and The Hyde 
Group working together in partnership. 

 
Launch of Digital Catapult Centre, New England House 
 

65.13 One of three Digital Catapult Centres in the country is due to open in Brighton tonight. 
The Digital Catapult is a national centre which accelerates the UK’s best digital ideas, 
bringing new products and services to market, creating jobs and value for the UK 
economy. 

 
Saltdean Lido – Update 
 

65.14 The Saltdean Lido Community Interest Company have been successful in obtaining 
£2.3 million of funding from the Coastal Communities Fund and a further £4.7 million 
from Heritage Lottery Fund to go towards the Lido’s restoration project. This substantial 
funding is a significant step forward towards the estimated total of £10 million that will be 
needed to restore the 1930s Grade II* listed lido back to its former glory.  

 
Sports 

 
Active For Life 10 year Anniversary 

 
65.15 In 2015 the Active for Life project would be celebrating its 10 year anniversary shortly. 

The project worked to support people living in targeted communities to participate in 
accessible sport and physical activity sessions in their local community. In 2014 alone, 
5000 people registered to the project and there had been a total of 16,000 attendances 
throughout that year.To celebrate the anniversary there would be a series of special 
events commencing on the 15 March with an Anniversary Launch Event at Churchill 
Square. The event would showcase low cost activities and other opportunities to help 
people to lead active healthy lifestyles across city, and will be supported by project 
Ambassadors, role models who had benefited from the project over the past 10 years. 

 

10



 

5 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

TAKEPART 2015 
 

65.16 Registrations for the summer’s TAKEPART Festival had increased by 15%, 115 
organisations would be providing free or discounted activities within the festival 
programme in 2015. The festival would take place between 20th June - 5th July. In 2015 
there would be a new programme of “Active After Work” for local employees in the city 
alongside the existing programmes: 

 
Preston Park launch day 
o 30 sports clubs offering sessions in local schools 
o 3 school sports competitions 
o Wildpark youth festival 
o Amazing Activities Programme for disabled children and adults  
o Active forever event for older people 
o Bikestock in Stanmer Park  
o Over 200 free taster sessions across the city 

 
Driving Growth Award 
 

65.17 The Chair stated that it gave him great pleasure to be able to announce  the tremendous 
news that the Regeneration Team had been awarded the “Driving Growth” award the 
previous evening, a fitting testament to their hard work and innovative approach. 

 
65.18 RESOLVED - That the contents of the Chair’s Communications be noted and received. 
 
66 CALL OVER 
 
66.1 All items on the agenda were reserved for discussion except Item 70, “University of 

Sussex Listed Building Heritage Partnership Agreement”. 
 
67 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT 
 
67a Petitions 
 
67.1 There were none. 
 
67b Written Questions 
 
67.2 Mrs Fishleigh was invited to put her question to the Committee. This is set below: 
 

“What due diligence has been conducted to assess the feasibility of two major outdoor 
swimming pools within a 4 mile radius of each other?” 

 
67.3 The Chair thanked Mrs Fishleigh for prior notification of her question and responded in 

the following terms: 
 

“Thank you for your question, which I appreciate relates to the proposal for the Open 
Water Swimming Centre on the Peter Pan site in Madeira Drive and the restoration of 
Saltdean Lido in which you are involved. Both of these proposals are far more than just 
outdoor swimming areas.  

11



 

6 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

 
The marketing of the Peter Pan site was undertaken with a broad criteria for a leisure 
based attraction, that could be delivered on a site that has been vacant for many years. 
Just as the council did not restrict the mix of potential leisure uses for proposals to 
restore Saltdean Lido e.g. we could have proposed not to allow a fitness gym or a 
temporary ice rink, restrictions were not placed on the mix of potential leisure uses for 
the Peter Pan Site.  

 
It is not considered appropriate for the council to assess proposals for the Peter Pan site 
directly in relation to the proposed facilities at Saltdean. In my view the proposal for the 
Peter Pan site has a mix of uses which are potentially viable and would provide a 
welcome development at a long neglected area. At this stage we are seeking agreement 
in principle to the proposals so that the details of the transaction will be considered by 
Policy & Resources in due course.  

For my part I agree with what you are quoting as saying in the Argus i.e. “Saltdean Lido 
has two key differences in that it is responding to local public demand for community 
facilities and amenities - it will be a genuine hub with a library, community spaces, 
events, a cafe and leisure facilities as well as the pool. Secondly, in terms of appeal, the 
majority of visitors from outside of Brighton will be visiting the lido for its architecture and 
history. We will run tours and have a heritage centre which a new build will not be able 
to compete with. We don't think competition is a bad thing.” 

67.4 The Chair then invited Mrs Fishleigh to ask a further question if she have one. 
 
67.5 Mrs Fishleigh stated that the Save Saltdean Lido Group was very concerned that the 

proposals in relation to the Peter Pan Leisure Site could compromise their project and 
all the work that been undertaken to date. Mrs Fishleigh stated that her group 
considered that provision of a similar facility in reIatively close proximity at a time when 
measures to close the current funding gap and to bring the revitalisation of Saltdean 
Lido to fruition could have a detrimental impact, given that it was also located in 
relatively close proximity (some 3-4 miles distant). 

 
67.6 The Chair stated that Mrs whilst Mrs Fishleigh’s comments should have been put as a 

question they had nonetheless been noted. It was important to stress that proposals in 
relation to the Peter Pan site were at an early stage in their planning process, also, that 
given the distances between the two venues and the differences in their offer it was 
considered that they would compliment one another. Once completed the Lido would be 
an iconic building representing an example of architecture of its period which would 
provide a family centred pool and community facilities for that part of the city whilst 
having a wider appeal across the city a large. The proposals in respect of the Peter Pan 
site would provide open water swimming facilities which it was hoped would have a 
national appeal and would provide an essentially very different offer. 

 
67.7 Representatives on behalf of the locally based consortium who had put forward the 

Peter Pan offer were present at the meeting and at the request of Members they were 
permitted to give a brief presentation immediately following this item for the benefit of 
members of the committee and the members of the public who were present including 
Mrs Fishleigh. 

 

12



 

7 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

67.8 RESOLVED – That the position be noted. 
 
67c Deputations 
 

67.3 There were none. 
 
68 MEMBER INVOLVEMENT 
 
68a Petitions 
 
68.1 There were none. 
 
68b Written Questions 
 
68.2 There were none. 
 
68c Letters 
 
68.3 There were none. 
 
68d Notices of Motion 
 
68.4 There were none. 
 
69 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 2015 
 
69.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of Environment, 

Development and Housing seeking adoption of the new Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) to replace the currently adopted version. The SCI set out the 
procedures and processes for consultation and engagement in the planning process. 
The draft SCI had been agreed for consultation at Committee meeting held on 13 
November 2014. The draft SCI had been subject to a period of eight weeks public 
consultation which had run between 20 November 2014 to 16 January 2015. 

 
69.2 Councillor Randall commended the report which in his view was timely because it 

provided an update on changes that had occurred in the legislation and the current 
position. In answer to questions it was explained that at the present time the focus 
would be on working pro-actively in the existing conservation areas. 

 
69.3 Councillor Brown referred to Neighbourhood areas which had been established in the 

city to date and sought clarification regarding how conservation groups would feed into 
that process and which groups would be consulted as part of the preliminary 
consultation. Councillor Brown stated she was concerned to ensure that Neighbourhood 
Fora were consulted in relation to the SCI and on other matters germane to the areas 
they represented. It was agreed that the precise wording specification of bodies (as 
listed in the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 
2004 (as amended)) would be clarified and that Members would be advised of this 
information following the meeting. It was confirmed however that even if there was no 
specific reference to neighbourhood fora in the Regulations they would be regarded as 
key general consultees and would be approached as such. As a minimum bodies and 

13



 

8 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

individuals identified as Statutory and general consultee bodies on planning documents 
at the relevant statutory consultation stage and anyone else who had asked to be 
notified of consultation events would be consulted. 

 
69.4 Councillor Hawtree noted the contents of the report which he considered to be a very 

useful document. He stressed that it was important for consultation documents to be 
written as far as was practicable in a clear and concise style which encouraged 
responses. It was also important to identify means of engaging more citizens in that 
process. It was confirmed that officers were aware of this issue and were actively 
seeking to address it. 

 
69.5 RESOLVED – That the Committee adopted the Statement of Community Involvement 

2015 subject to minor editorial or grammatical changes to be agreed with the Director of 
Environment, Development and Housing.  

 
70 UNIVERSITY OF SUSSEX - LISTED BUILDING HERITAGE PARTNERSHIP 

AGREEMENT 
 
70.1 RESOLVED –(1) That agreement is given that the Council enters into a Listed Building 

Heritage Partnership Agreement with English Heritage and the University of Sussex for 
land at the University of Sussex under The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) (Heritage Partnership Agreements) (England) Regulations 2014. 

 
(2)That authority to sign the Listed Building Heritage Partnership Agreement be 
delegated to the Chief Executive and the Head of City Planning and Development. 

 
71 PETER PAN LEISURE SITE, MADEIRA DRIVE - DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL 
 

Before proceeding to consideration of the officer report: 
 

71.1 The Chair invited representatives on behalf of the consortium who had put forward the 
current set of proposals for the site to give a brief presentation. 

 
71.2 Mr Rob Hart was in attendance accompanied by Simon Murie, Andy White and Joe 

McNulty. Mr Hart explained that the consortium which had put forward this bid was 
comprised of established local businesses. There was a growing interest in open water 
swimming and this would cater to that by providing a nationally recognised open water 
centre, as well as encouraging to swim in the sea safely. The facility would be capable 
of use year round, would by virtue of its size have the capability (with eight permanent 
lanes) to host major events year round. It was envisaged that this facility would provide 
lifeguarding and water safety courses as well. The scheme would be entirely 
independently funded, would make a positive contribution to the city and would return to 
a site which had been derelict for some time to use. 

 
71.3 The Committee considered a joint report of Assistant Chief Executive and the Interim 

Executive Director for Finance and Resources seeking approval to grant Landlord’s 
consent, subject to final determination of the Heads of Terms by Policy and Resources 
Committee, for development of the former Peter Pan site on Madeira Drive by the “Sky 
Wide Open” consortium. It was noted that “Sky Wide Open” was a working title and 
would be subject to change. 

14



 

9 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

 
71.4 The report detailed the process undertaken by officers to market the site for 

redevelopment and the selection process which had resulted in the preferred developer 
being chosen. Marketing of the site had taken place at the same time as the Seafront 
Scrutiny Panel. The Panel had highlighted the importance of seeking investment into the 
seafront. This development (which would be paid for entirely by external funding) would 
affect improvements to an area which had been neglected for several years. 
 

71.5 Councillor Hawtree referred to the anticipated costs of bringing the scheme to fruition, 
stating that the costs seemed very modest for what was proposed and that he hoped 
that there was a robust business plan in place. He sought clarification regarding access 
arrangements to the site, seeking confirmation that this would not result in any part of 
the beach becoming private. The location of the site in relation to the Volks Railway was 
confirmed and it was also confirmed that public access to the site would remain 
unrestricted. 

 
71.6 Councillor Smith stated that he considered it regrettable, given that it was his last 

meeting that he was unable to support these proposals. Whilst proposals to return this 
site to use were welcomed, a number of schemes had come forward but had not been 
unable to pay their way and had therefore failed to come to fruition. The most recent of 
these had been the “Karma” scheme which had not been realised because the applicant 
had sought to change its parameters in order to make it more viable for them in ways 
which were not acceptable to the Council. Councillor Smith sought clarification regarding 
consideration that had been given to the viability of the scheme and whether funding 
was in place to support it. 

 
71.7 The Deputy Head of Law, Bob Bruce confirmed that these proposals were at a very 

early stage and that Policy and Resources Committee would need to approve the Heads 
of Terms at the appropriate stage in order for the scheme to progress. There was no 
question that the scheme would be permitted to go forward without the necessary 
guarantees being in place. The Council would require the applicants to provide detailed 
information in order to meet its due diligence requirements. 

 
71.8 Councillor Smith reiterated his concerns bearing in mind the past history of schemes for 

this site. The Deputy Head of Law confirmed that all necessary safeguards would need 
to be in place in advance of any recommendations being put forward to Policy and 
Resources Committee for approval. 

 
71.9 Councillor C Theobald stated that she shared some of the concerns expressed by 

Councillor Smith and hoped that a robust business case would be required. 
 
71.10 The Head of Sport & Leisure, Ian Shurrock explained that an officer of the finance 

department would be included on the officer team which would be reviewing all aspects 
of the project’s business case. In answer to questions by Councillor Randall, it was 
explained that it was intended that the development would be supported by a broader 
range of sports retail facilities including a cycle hub. 

 
71.11 Councillor Wealls sought clarification of the process for agreeing the Heads of Terms 

and these were outlined by the Deputy Head of Law. Councillor Wealls stated that in his 
view it was not possible to judge the business case definitively at this stage, but that as 

15



 

10 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

Committee were simply being asked to give approval to enable further work to take 
place he did not consider this was problematic. All of the necessary requirements would 
need to be met in order for Policy and Resources Committee to determine the matter. 

 
71.12 Councillor Robins stated that he considered it would be regrettable if this scheme and 

that currently underway to revitalise Saltdean Lido were to compromise one another, so 
that ultimately only one of them could succeed. 

 
71.13 Councillor Brown stating that whilst she had initially shared Councillor Smith’s concerns 

having read the report she considered that this scheme which was at a very early and 
preliminary scheme presented a significantly different offer to that which would be 
provided by Saltdean Lido. By giving their approval that day, the Committee would be 
giving their approval to start a process. It was important as part of a process of 
regenerating this part of the seafront to seek to return this area to use and for that 
reason she supported the recommendation. 

 
71.14 Councillor Morgan stated that this sight was located in his Ward, whilst he had listened 

carefully and sympathetically to concerns which had been expressed in respect of 
Saltdean Lido he considered that they were very different, also, that this area was in 
urgent need of regeneration. Councillor Randall concurred in that view, noting that as 
both schemes would be phased, they were unlikely to come on stream at the same time. 

 
71.15 Councillor Deane noted that the project was a work in progress and that further work 

would be carried out at every stage in order to bring it to fruition. 
 
71.16 RESOLVED – (1) That the Economic Development & Culture Committee agree to grant 

Landlord’s consent for the “Sky Wide Open” development on the former Peter Pan site 
on Madeira Drive; and  

 
 (2) That the Committee authorises officers to negotiate Heads of Terms for the required 

Agreement to Lease and Lease, which would then be considered by the Policy & 
Resources Committee for approval. 

 
Note: Councillor Smith wished his name to be recorded as having  voted against the 
recommendation. All other Members voted in support. 

 
72 MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE 
 
72.1 The Committee considered the circulated schedule which provided an update on the 

current progress of major projects across the city. 
 
72.2 The Head of City Regeneration explained that a shortlist of 2 bidders had been agreed 

and that final tenders were due to be submitted by May 2015.  
 
72.3 Councillor Randall was pleased to note the progress that had been achieved in relation 

specifically to the Circus Street scheme but also in relation to a number of key schemes 
across the city which were gathering pace and would provide employment opportunities 
as well as growing and strengthening the city’s economy. Councillor Hawtree agreed 
that it was pleasing to note the level of progress which had been achieved in a number 
of areas. 

16



 

11 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE COMMITTEE 12 MARCH 2015 

 
72.4 The Chair commended the excellent and on–going work which had taken place at New 

England House, noting the pro-active approach that had been used in seeking to 
procure a private sector partner. 

 
72.5 Councillor Morgan sought clarification of progress in relation to the Brighton Centre and 

it was explained that feasibility discussions were continuing. 
 
74.6 RESOLVED – That the contents of the schedule be noted and received. 
 
73 ITEMS REFERRED FOR COUNCIL 
 
73.1 There were none. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 5.45pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  

17



18



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 6(a) 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 
 

 

Subject: Petitions 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2015 

Report of: Head of Legal & Democratic Services 

Contact Officer: Name:  Penny Jennings Tel: 29-1065 

 E-mail: penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk  

Ward Affected   All 

  
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 

 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 To receive any petitions presented at Council, any petitions submitted directly 
to Democratic Services or any e-Petition submitted via the council’s website. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

2.2 That the Committee responds to the petition either by noting it or writing to the 
petition organiser setting out the Council’s views, or where it is considered 
more appropriate, calls for an officer report on the matter which may give 
consideration to a range of options, including the following: 

 

§ taking the action requested in the petition 
§ considering the petition at a council meeting 
§ holding an inquiry into the matter 
§ undertaking research into the matter 
§ holding a public meeting 
§ holding a consultation 
§ holding a meeting with petitioners 
§ referring the petition for consideration by the council’s Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
§ calling a referendum 
 

 

3. PETITIONS 
 
3.1 PETITIONS FOR PRESENTATION 
 

(a) The Hippodrome 
 

“Now that cinema conversion of the Hippodrome has apparently been 
abandoned, we call upon Brighton and Hove City Council to support plans for 
theatre restoration and to use all available powers and its own best 
endeavours to facilitate such plans.” 
 

19



 

 

(b) Traffic Assessment Saltdean and Surrounds 
 

“We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove Council to not to approve any 
residential developments of more than 5 homes until a full and detailed 
assessment in accordance with DfT guidance has been undertaken. To cover 
as a minimum the impact on the A259, Rottingdean High Street, Falmer Road 
and traffic light junctions at Longridge Ave, Rottingdean and Woodingdean.” 
 

 Justification 
 

Access in and out of Saltdean is restricted and limited by the Sea and A259 to 
the South and the South Downs National Park in the East, West and North. 

 
The A259 and B2123 (through Rottingdean to A27) are inadequate and 
congested at peak times and in the all summer tourist season. 

 
The redevelopment of Saltdean Lido and Saltdean Primary School will impact 
on travel to and from Saltdean and its surrounds. 

 
Major developments in Peacehaven, Newhaven and Seaford also heavily 
impact on Saltdean and its surrounds. 

 
Piecemeal developments do not collate and consider the wider and 
cumulative effects on the roads. 
 
 

3.1 PETITIONS REFERRED FROM COUNCIL 
 

 (c) King Alfred Indoor Bowling 
 

“We the undersigned call on Brighton & Hove City Council to halt their plans 
to downgrade bowls facilities at the King Alfred; 
 
Point out that the Council’s unambitious proposal for a three-rink bowls room 
will spell the demise of the King Alfred Indoor Bowls Club and the end of 
indoor bowling in the city; 
 
Insist on the construction of a replacement six-rink bowls hall within any new 
King Alfred redevelopment scheme.” (1612 signatures) 

  
 (d)   Save Preston Park Cycle Track 

 
“We the undersigned petition Brighton & Hove Council to complete the work 
needed to make Preston Park Cycle Track suitable for the racing season of 
2015. WE would also like to see investment in this facility to help make it the 
centre of excellence for cycling it could be for our area.  
 
The oldest outdoor cycle track in the country is in danger of being lost due to 
lack of investment and care. Preston Park Cycle Track has loads of potential 
for open cycling events which can draw in crowds from afar if looked after 
properly. Please see the potential and save the track. (4089 signatures). 

20



 

 

 
(e)   Protection of Land Between Longhill Close, Ovingdean and 

Elvin Crescent Rottingdean 
 
We the undersigned respectfully request that Brighton and Hove Counvncil 
take immediate action to protect the amenities provided by the land between 
Longhill Close Ovingdean and Elvin Crescent Rottingdean (764 signatutes) 
 
(f)  Protect Longhill Close Woodland 
 
“Your voice matters! Protect your environment, request the Council to take 
action before it’s too late! 
 
Clearing of trees and bushes in preparation for potential development has 
begun on land between Longhill Close and Elvin Crescent. Our aim is to 
petition the Council to stop this devastation immediately and have the area 
designated as unsuitable for development in the City Plan on the following 
grounds: 
 
Heritage - it preserves a very important and historic boundary between two 

villages; 
Ecology – the land maintains a natural wildlife habitat which is a link in the 

wildlife corridor that runs through the valley, and is home to flora, fauna and 
notable wildlife; 
Woodland – it maintains local green-space and natural habitats, preventing 

landslip and flooding; 
Noise and Light Pollution – the boundary acts as a noise and light barrier 

across the valley; 
Aesthetic – it provides a visual significant vista for the employment of 

residents and visitors; 
Infrastructure – further development in this area would mean increased 

pressure on sewage, roads, schools, doctors, dentists and air quality. 
The City Plan presently highlights meadows and woodland areas within 
Ovingdean for potential development. These areas define Ovingdean and 
provide a natural break and screening. Without these, Ovingdean could 
become a huge housing estate. We urge the Council to protect these last 
remaining green spaces which, in the case of the Longhill Close land, forms 
a gap between Rottingdean and Ovingdean. 
With YOUR support there has been success with the Meadow Vale planning 

application being refused and Badgers Walk has been earmarked for a 
woodland Tree Preservation Order. 
Please sign the attached petition today in support of preserving this 
woodland (233 signatures) 

21



22



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 
 

18 June 2015 

Agenda Item 6(b) 
 
 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
A period of not more than fifteen minutes shall be allowed for questions submitted by 
a member of the public who either lives or works in the area of the authority at each 
ordinary meeting of the Committee. 
 
Every question shall be put and answered without discussion, but the person to 
whom a question has been put may decline to answer.  The person who asked the 
question may ask one relevant supplementary question, which shall be put and 
answered without discussion. 
 
The following written question has been received from a member of the public. 
 
 
(a) Caroline Lynch  

 
“In 2010 BHCC applied for a Regulation 7 Direction for the conservation areas 
of town to prevent the blight of estate agents boards, this was passed. 
 
In 2009 the Student Housing Strategy recommended similar action be 
investigated for the Article 4 wards for the well documented and well known 
significant blight of these boards cause in our area.  
 
Nothing has been done to progress this. 
 
I would like to ask today that the current Regulation 7 Direction be extended to 
cover all Article 4 wards and I have been directed by the Planning Committee 
to you to initiate this action.” 

 
Reply from Councillor Morgan, Leader of the Council 

 

23



24



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 7(c) 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

Councillor Morgan – Leader 
Brighton & Hove City Council 
Grand Avenue 
Hove 
 
6 June 2015 
 
Woodland area at the rear of Longhill Close Ovingdean. 
 
Dear Cllr. Morgan, 
 
As a ward Councillor, I am writing to raise serious concerns regarding the 
devastation of the Woodland at the rear of Longhill Close. 
 
The above woodland is situated between Ovingdean and Rottingdean  is a 
much loved green lung, and has for many years acted as a buffer, separating 
two rural villages providing a natural break;, and preventing a large urban 
sprawl,  it also offers protection from land slide, as the site is on a very steep 
gradient 
 
When the owners of the land felled most of the trees earlier this year, wildlife 
was badly affected. 
Badgers, foxes, bats, slowworms and many species of birds some of them 
rare were not seen. But nature is a wonderful thing, since February the land 
has been left alone, resulting in the tree stumps regenerating, and now with 
the warmer weather ground cover is also returning bring back the wildlife and 
birds. 
 
Up until recently this was a heavily wooded area, the unintended 
consequences of the Urban Fringe Assessment has had a serious adverse 
effect locally. In my opinion the report by using information from the previous 
2013 urban fringe assessment, now out of date, gives an incomplete overview 
of the ecology of this urban site ( site 43 ) 
The Sussex Biodiversity Records Centre has update information which I 
understand was not used. 
 
I recognize the city has a housing shortage; But the Urban Fringe Assessment 
in my view is in many ways flawed, giving a green light to developers. It does 
not take into account the lack of infrastructure, or serious traffic issues in the 
surrounding area. Rottingdean has a higher pollution levels than EU 
recommendations, with 14,000 vehicles passing through the High Street every 
day 
 
The reality is any proposal to build on the urban fringe will not address the 
housing needs of the city. 
Why because the sites will produce properties at a cost, out of the range of 
residents on lower income in the city, and will not address the housing waiting 

25



list of over 21,000 and the need for rented social housing. But will attract 
buyers from elsewhere moving from more expensive areas like London or 
buying for second homes. 
 
As a council I believe we should be looking at our brown field sites first to 
address the city’s housing needs. 
 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Cllr. Mary Mears 
 
 
 

26



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 8 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Neighbourhood Planning – Delegation of Decisions 

Date of Meeting: Economic Development & Culture Committee  
18 June 2015 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Rebecca Fry Tel: 29-3773 

 Email: Rebecca.fry@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to obtain approval for all decisions and responses 

necessary in respect of neighbourhood planning to be delegated to the Executive 
Director Environment, Development & Housing, excluding decisions to make a 
Neighbourhood Development Plan (NDP).  Currently all formal decisions in 
respect of neighbourhood planning have to be made by the Economic 
Development & Culture committee with the exception of the decision to make a 
NDP which must be determined by Council.   
 

1.2 The recommendation to delegate neighbourhood planning decision making to an 
officer has been necessitated by the introduction of The Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015.  These Regulations introduce 
deadlines for the determination of neighbourhood area designations which are 
unlikely to be met via decision-making under the current Economic Development 
& Culture committee arrangements.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the Committee agrees to delegate all decisions and responses required in 

respect of neighbourhood planning to the Executive Director Environment, 
Development & Housing, excluding decisions to make a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Through the Localism Act 2011, which introduced “neighbourhood planning”, the 

Government is seeking to give local communities more power to influence the 
future of the places in which they live.  Only a Parish Council or designated 
neighbourhood forum can undertake neighbourhood planning for a designated 
neighbourhood area (or a community organisation in respect of community right 
to build order1).  Neighbourhood areas and neighbourhood forums are formally 

                                            
1
 All references to orders in this report include both neighbourhood development orders (NDOs) and 

‘community right to build orders’ (CRBO’s) which are a particular type of neighbourhood development 

27



designated via the submission of an application to the local planning authority. 
Once the neighbourhood area and forum designations (where required) are in 
place the community can produce a neighbourhood development plan or order.   
 

3.2 A local planning authority has a duty to support relevant bodies seeking to 
undertake neighbourhood planning.  It is also responsible for making a number of 
neighbourhood planning decisions, however, it does not have much discretion in 
respect of the matters that can be taken into account.  Whilst an element of 
judgement may be needed when assessing areas and plans, all neighbourhood 
planning decisions primarily relate to whether required documents have been 
submitted and that legally specified requirements have been met.   
 

3.3 A local planning authority is expected to meet its responsibilities ‘as soon as 
possible’.  The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015 introduced deadlines for the determination of applications seeking 
neighbourhood area designation.  Generally in Brighton and Hove, such 
applications must now be determined within 13 weeks from the day after the 
application is first publicised.  This is amended to 20 weeks when the area 
crosses two or more local planning authority boundaries or 8 weeks when it is an 
application by a parish council seeking the designation of the whole of its parish.  
The Government also indicated time limits may be introduced for other 
neighbourhood planning decisions. 
 

3.4 When the Government consulted upon the new proposed deadlines in the 
“Technical Consultation on Planning (July 2014)” it advised: 
 
“We estimate that local planning authorities are taking on average 126 days to 
designate a neighbourhood area. But within this there is considerable variation, with 
some taking only 45 days and others up to 400. In many of the authorities we talk to, 
the Executive has delegated decisions on designating neighbourhood areas to 
others in the authority. This has resulted in a positive improvement in the speed with 
which neighbourhood areas are designated.  
 
In order to incentivise all local planning authorities to take timely decisions that 
enable communities to move forward on plan making and developing Order 
proposals, we propose to require an application for a neighbourhood area 
designation to be determined by a prescribed date.” 
 

3.5 The following summarises the neighbourhood planning decisions taken by a local 
planning authority: 

• neighbourhood areas and business areas – determine designations and 
modifications; 

• neighbourhood forums – determine designations and withdrawal of forum 
designations; 

• submitted draft neighbourhood development plans/orders – determine 
whether requirements met;  

• Independent Examiner’s Report  - determine what action should be taken 
further to examiner’s recommendations; 

                                                                                                                                             
order submitted by a community organisation, which is a body corporate (ie a legal entity) eg a company 
limited by guarantee with charitable status or registered charity; that meets specified conditions.  The 
neighbourhood area is designated by the local planning authority however a community organisation is 
not. 

28



• Neighbourhood development plan/order - determine whether to ‘make’ a 
plan or order (subject to outcome of referendum) and modifications or 
revocations of a plan or order.  All decisions regarding the making of a 
neighbourhood development plan within Brighton & Hove must be 
determined by Council. 
 

3.6 In addition to the above the local planning authority will normally comment upon 
emerging neighbourhood development plans and orders, especially at the pre-
submission and submission stages to address compliance with strategic policies.  
The City Council will also need to produce and publish a formal information 
statement prior to any neighbourhood planning referendum. 
 

3.7 Neighbourhood planning consultations are required to run for at least 6 weeks.  A 
consultation is usually extended if it runs, in part, concurrently with a national 
holiday period in recognition that people may be away from home and work.  
Economic Development & Culture Committee (EDC) sits 5 times a year (in 
January, March, June, September and November). 

 
 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Since the introduction of neighbourhood planning in April 2012 four 

neighbourhood areas have been proposed within or partly within the Brighton & 
Hove local planning authority area.  It was not possible to determine these 
designations within 13 weeks.  Delegation of neighbourhood planning decisions 
will enable faster more responsive determinations.  It will also help to reduce 
what can be considered by communities undertaking neighbourhood planning to 
be undue delay given that the process itself seeks to be democratic and 
decisions largely relate to technical considerations.   
 

4.2 It is considered there are two alternative options that could be taken in place of 
agreeing to delegate neighbourhood planning decisions to the Executive 
Director.  These are (1) no change or (2) agree that officer’s investigate 
amending the decision making process so that neighbourhood planning 
decisions are taken at Planning Committee. 
 

4.3 No change: If no change is taken it is envisaged the deadlines set by the 
Government for designating neighbourhood areas will not be met and the merits 
detailed in 4.1 above will not come about.  In view of the number of decisions that 
need to be taken throughout the neighbourhood planning process, a failure to 
seek a more responsive decision making process could have a significant 
cumulative impact upon a community’s timetable for neighbourhood planning.  
 

4.4 Planning Committee: The Council’s Constitution does not permit neighbourhood 
planning decisions to be taken at Planning Committee.  An amendment to the 
Planning Committee’s terms of reference would therefore be required.  At 
present Planning Committee is a development control committee.  In view of the 
issues raised in 3.2 and 4.1 above and the need to change the Planning 
Committee’s terms of reference this does not form the recommended option. 

29



 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 This report and recommendation is predominantly in response to new statutory 

deadlines.  The proposals set out in the report have not been subject to internal 
or external engagement and consultation except those that are necessary in the 
writing of the report. 

 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 That the committee approve the recommendation to delegate all decisions and 

responses necessary in respect of neighbourhood planning to the Executive 
Director Environment, Development & Housing, excluding decisions to make a 
Neighbourhood Development Plan which must be determined by Council. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 There are no significant financial implications associated to the recommendation 

in this report.  
 

7.2 It is anticipated that costs will be incurred within the Planning revenue budget to 
provide support and advice to communities wishing to undertake neighbourhood 
plans, consultation, publication of neighbourhood plans, examinations and any 
other steps that may be needed for the neighbourhood plan to come into legal 
force, including referendums. 
 

7.3 DCLG funding is available to local planning authorities in the 2015/16 financial 
year of up to £30,000 per neighbourhood plan in recognition of the costs to the 
council outlined above. This amount is payable to the council in stages 
depending on requirements being met. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 11/05/15 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.4 The legislation relevant to the recommendation is set out in the body of the 

Report. 
 

7.5 It is not considered that any adverse human rights implications arise from the 
Report. 

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 17/05/15 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.6 There are no identified equalities implications arising from this report.  The 

designation of a Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum does not give rise for a need 
to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment.  Neighbourhood Forums are legally 
required to be open to all individuals who live and/or work within the designated 

30



neighbourhood area and/or elected City Council Members whose ward falls 
within the designated neighbourhood area.  The effects of a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan or Order will be assessed when any such plan or order is 
submitted for consideration/administration. 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.7 There are no identified sustainability implications arising from this report. The 

planning system has a clear purpose to contribute towards the achievement of 
sustainable development. 

 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
7.8 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

Neighbourhood Planning is a statutory procedure enabling a local community to 
take advantage of the non-compulsory Neighbourhood Planning system.  The 
city council has a duty to support communities wishing to undertake 
Neighbourhood Planning, the principle of which is considered to be consistent 
with the council’s priorities.  It is also consistent with the objectives of the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and Neighbourhood Decision Making.   
 

7.9 The emerging City Plan makes clear that support will be given to communities for 
neighbourhood planning, reflecting the council’s aspirations and the new 
statutory duties.  The designation of a Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum by 
themselves is not felt to affect other services, agencies and the city as a whole.  
A Neighbourhood Development Plan or Order may have implications for other 
services, agencies and the city as a whole.  It is therefore important that 
necessary decisions are taken within reasonable timeframes to help provide 
clarity and for officers to involve all necessary bodies as and when appropriate 
without undue delay.   

 
  

31



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
None 
 
  
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The Localism Act 2011 

 
2. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 

 
3. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 

 
4. Technical Consultation on Planning, July 2014 (DCLG) 
 
 

32



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 9 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and 
Neighbourhood Forum – Brighton Marina 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2015 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Rebecca Fry Tel: 29-3773 

 Email: Rebecca.fry@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Rottingdean Coastal 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE.  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine two neighbourhood planning 

applications at the Marina following their deferral at the 15 January Economic 
Development & Culture committee (please see appendix B for a copy of the 
January report).  

 
1.2 One application relates to the designation of Brighton Marina as a Business 

Neighbourhood Area. The other application is for the neighbourhood forum for 
the Brighton Marina neighbourhood area.   These designations are part of the 
neighbourhood planning provisions introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  Once 
designated the forum will be able to prepare a neighbourhood development plan 
for the area. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the committee approves the designation of the Brighton Marina Business 

Neighbourhood Area as a business area neighbourhood area within the meaning 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as defined by the  Area delineated  
in appendix A to this report. 

 
2.2 That the committee approves the designation of the Brighton Marina 

Neighbourhood Forum as a neighbourhood forum within the meaning of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 These applications were previously considered at the 15 January Economic 

Development & Culture (EDC) committee (please see appendix B for a copy of 
the January report).   Though officers considered the applications met legislative 
requirements and recommended that both applications be approved some 
Committee members raised concerns, in view of the powers such designations 
give a community, that should be explored further to ensure the applications 

33



accorded with the intent and aim of the legislation.  The determination of these 
applications was deferred to allow further dialogue to take place with the relevant 
parties to resolve issues including participation and representation within and 
outside the proposed area (please see appendix C for a copy of the Minutes and 
decision of the 15 January EDC committee). 

 
3.2 The January EDC report (see appendix B) set out the context and background to 

neighbourhood planning in respect of neighbourhood areas and neighbourhood 
forums.  This continues to be applicable to the current considerations.  In 
particular:  

 

• The local planning authority can only consider the designation of a 
neighbourhood area within the boundaries of the area that has been applied 
for by a relevant body: the local planning authority cannot designate a larger 
area to that which has been sought.   

• The local planning authority is, in effect, required to designate some or all of 
the specified neighbourhood area applied for by a relevant body. For 
example, the local planning authority can designate a smaller area or split the 
proposed area into two or more neighbourhood areas. 

 
3.3 One of the main concerns raised by councillors in January was the lack of 

consultee responses to consultation on the area and forum applications 
especially from within the Marina. In summary there were 16 respondents in total 
(1 from within the Marina), 2 late representations and further comments from the 
forum.  5 respondents supported the proposals, 12 respondents objected to the 
area whilst 10 objected to the forum and others were unsure.  As a consequence 
there were queries at Committee about the extent of awareness and support for 
the applications.  Concern was also raised in relation to the extent of the area, 
membership of the Forum and the level of public engagement.   
 

3.4 Neighbourhood planning places a duty on the Local Planning Authority to support 
a community wishing to undertake Neighbourhood Planning.  For this reason, the 
approach taken by officers since January ED&C has been to seek to work with 
and support the proposed neighbourhood forum and to resolve the issues that 
led to the deferral of the neighbourhood area and forum designations (these are 
outlined in sections 4 and 5 below).  Following the deferral City Council officers 
held meetings with the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Forum (the applicant), 
Brighton Marina Residents Association (BMRA) and Ward Councillors for 
Rottingdean Coastal.   
 

3.5 Whilst City Council Members at the January committee raised concern over the 
extent of the area and indicated a larger area could be appropriate, further 
dialogue did not take place with people outside the proposed area because of the 
legislative requirements and reasons summarised above in 3.2, 3.4 and below in 
4.4.    Fundamentally the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Forum wished to 
progress the application with the boundaries applied for and did not intend to 
withdraw and resubmit with a larger area.   
 

3.6 The legal requirements that must be taken into account when designating a 
neighbourhood area and neighbourhood forum are set out in appendix B (the 
January report).  Since January the forum with BMRA undertook further informal 
consultation with local residents which included a questionnaire (distributed week 

34



commencing 30 March with responses sought by 30 April 2015).  Appendix D 
provides a summary of the additional representations received since the 15 
January 2015 Committee. Since the Committee in January, 134 representations 
have been received from residents and workers within the Marina all offering 
support for the proposals.  In addition to this further comments were submitted 
from 3 objectors from outside the area, 2 of which represent Kemp Town Society.  
The main points raised are set out in section 5.  A full schedule of the responses 
received can be viewed and is provided in the application folders. 
 

 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Section 6 in the January EDC report (see appendix B), which sets out the 

analysis and consideration of alternative options in respect of these applications, 
remains relevant to the current considerations.  The following covers the further 
analysis and consideration of options undertaken to address the reasons for 
deferring the applications by the January EDC committee. 
 

4.2 The minutes of the January EDC committee set out the issues and concerns 
raised by Members (see appendix C).  In summary there was concern over 
whether there were terms in leases restricting residents’ participation in 
neighbourhood planning within the Marina, as a consequence, do the proposals 
give Brunswick Group/developers too much power within the forum.   In response 
the Brighton Marina Residents’ Association (BMRA) confirmed in writing its role, 
constitution and refuted the concern that leases restrict participation (see 
appendix E). The Chair and Vice Chair of BMRA has confirmed that it has 
members in the forum who intend to ensure the Association plays a full part in 
the forum’s function.  They support the neighbourhood area and forum being 
limited to the Marina as it is a unique environment and raised concerns about 
extending the area due to opposing views between those outside and those 
within the Marina.  
 

4.3 John Davey (the named contact for the forum) has confirmed that his main job is 
the operation of the Estate Management Company which is responsible for the 
day to day management of the Marina roads and infrastructure and for its 
ongoing sound administration, and it is in this capacity he acts as ‘Administrator’ 
for the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Forum.  He has advised that Brunswick 
Development does not have any further development aspirations (or land without 
planning permission) at Brighton Marina.  All the remaining developable land is 
not owned by Brunswick Development.  Whilst some objectors have raised and 
maintain concerns that key members of the forum have a commercial interest in 
the area, there is no evidence to indicate that forum membership is contrary to 
the legal requirements.  105 respondents to the BMRA/forum’s informal 
consultation are residents within the Marina and support the proposals. 
Neighbourhood planning does not have to be led by residents. 
 

4.4 During meetings, John Davey made clear the forum did not consider a larger 
area to be appropriate in view of the unique characteristics of the Marina.  He 
advised the forum was opposed to extending the area.  In view of the factors 
detailed in appendix B (paragraphs 4.3, 4,4, 6.3 - 6.8), Council officers therefore 
did not enter into dialogue with bodies from outside the proposed area for the 
reasons detailed above in 3.5.  

35



 
4.5 It is considered it has been demonstrated that the Forum has endeavoured to get 

members from the three specified categories (resident/worker/elected City 
Council Member for the area) and is open to all that fall within these categories, 
and is not dominated by any particular section of the community.  It is considered 
Forum membership accords with the requirements and is adequately 
representative of the people within the area to meet the intent and aim of 
legislation. 
 

4.6 In response to the informal consultation undertaken by the BMRA and the forum 
following the deferral of these applications, a significant number of 
representations of support have been received from people living and/or working 
within Brighton Marina (134 respondents).  (See appendix B which includes a 
summary of responses to the formal consultation and appendix D for a summary 
of responses following the deferral of the applications.)  It is therefore considered 
people within the area have been actively engaged in the process and that there 
is significant support for the proposed neighbourhood area and forum. 

 
4.7 In view of the legislation, the proposals under consideration and the forum’s wish 

for the proposed neighbourhood area to be consider as submitted, the local 
planning authority does not have the option to designate a larger area.  For the 
reasons detailed in the January report, attached as appendix B, the Marina is 
considered to form a distinct area and benefits from a number of the 
characteristics included in the National Planning Practice Guidance (see 
appendix B).  Respondents have not sought a smaller or split area neither is it 
considered such an approach would provide a more appropriate area(s) than the 
area being sought by the relevant body (the proposed Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum).  
 

4.8 Business Area Status: 
The majority of respondents to last year’s formal and this year’s informal 
consultation (undertaken by the BMRA and Forum to help address the reasons 
for the deferral of the applications) do not think the area is wholly or 
predominantly business in nature and should not therefore be designated a 
Business Area.  However it is important to note that the majority of respondents 
are residents many of whom do not work within the Marina.  It is not uncommon 
for a person’s view of an area to be influenced by their role within and their 
immediate outlook/surroundings.  For the reasons detailed in appendix B, 
paragraphs 6.9-6.11, the area delineated on the map forming appendix A is 
considered to meet the requirements and should be designated a business area.  
For the reasons detailed in appendix B, paragraph 6.12, it is considered that 
should the neighbourhood area be designated a business area it should be titled 
“Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area”.  

 
 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 The formal consultation undertaken by the City Council accorded with the 

statutory process (please see appendix B – January Report, Section 5).    It was 
not considered appropriate to undertake a formal re-consultation.   As raised 
above the City Council undertook further dialogue with key parties within the 

36



Marina in respect of Neighbourhood Planning.   
 
 

5.2 To help address the concerns raised at the January EDC the applicant and the 
Brighton Marina Residents Association (BMRA) led an informal consultation to 
help demonstrate community engagement and support for the applications.  This 
was done initially by the applicant prompting people within the Marina to submit 
further representations.  Then by an informal consultation by the BMRA, assisted 
by the forum, via the delivery of a survey to all Marina residents and some 
businesses which the forum had contact with when the survey was produced.  
The survey was based upon the City Council’s on-line questionnaire accessible 
during the formal consultation period (Oct - Nov 2014). Approximately 130 
representations of support were received some of the main points raised are as 
follows (Please see appendix D for a detailed summary of additional consultation 
responses): 
 

• The Marina is a unique distinct environment  

• (The proposals) should be specific to the Marina and not include the 
surrounding area  

• The Forum should be made up of people who have a genuine interest in the 
area it represents 

• The Marina is a unique mix of leisure residential and commercial/ is a ‘village’ 
community 

 
5.3 The Chair and Secretary of the Kemp Town Society also submitted further 

comments in respect of the Society’s objection to the applications (the Secretary 
also wrote as a resident of 4 Sussex Square) as did another respondent from 
outside the proposed area. 

 
 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 Further dialogue has been undertaken with appropriate bodies following the 

deferral of these applications in January.  In view of the consultation undertaken 
by the applicant, detailed in section 5, it is considered the applicant has sought to 
ensure all those within the Marina are aware of the proposed neighbourhood 
area and forum.  It is considered the applications accord with the intent and aim 
of the legislation relating to neighbourhood planning 

 
6.2 After considering all relevant factors the committee is recommended that both 

applications are approved and that the proposed area be designated a Business 
Area and formally titled “Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area”. 

 
 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 It is anticipated that costs will be incurred within the Planning revenue budget to 

provide support and advice to communities wishing to undertake neighbourhood 
plans, consultation, publication of neighbourhood plans, examinations and any 
other steps that may be needed for the neighbourhood plan to come into legal 

37



force, including referendums. 
 

7.2 DCLG funding is available to Local Planning Authorities in the 2015/16 financial 
year of up to £30,000 per neighbourhood plan in recognition of the costs to the 
council outlined above. This amount is payable to the council in stages 
depending on requirements being met.  
 

7.3 The DCLG impact assessment estimates costs to local planning authorities of 
between £20k and £86k per plan with more plans being towards the lower end of 
the range. It is therefore possible that the funding available will not be sufficient 
to cover the costs of supporting this process. In addition the DCLG estimate that 
the cost of keeping the plan under review would be 70% of the original cost, 
every ten years. If costs arise which cannot be met from the DCLG funding or 
managed within the existing Planning budgets then additional funding will need to 
be identified. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 28/04/15 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.4 It is considered that the applications for neighbourhood area and neighbourhood 

forum status meet the legislative requirements set down in the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
and that the report’s recommendations accord with the provisions of the same. 

   
 Lawyer Consulted:   Hilary Woodward Date: 06/05/15  
 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.5 There are no identified equalities implications arising from this report.  The 

designation of a Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum by themselves does not give 
rise for a need to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment.  Whilst it enables the 
production of a Neighbourhood Development Plan the effects of which will be 
assessed when any such plan is determined. (Issues regarding membership of 
the Forum are addressed at Paragraph 6.14 Above) 

 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.6 There are no implications arising from this report. The designation of a 

Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum by themselves does not have sustainability 
implications.  Whilst it enables the production of a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan the effects of this will be assessed when any such plan is determined 

 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
7.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications:   

This is a statutory procedure enabling a local community to take advantage of the 
non compulsory Neighbourhood Planning system. The city council has a duty to 
support communities wishing to undertake Neighbourhood Planning, the principle 
of which is considered to be consistent with the council’s priorities. It is also 
consistent with the objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy and 

38



Neighbourhood Decision Making/Governance. The emerging City Plan makes 
clear support will be given to communities for neighbourhood planning, reflecting 
the council’s aspirations and the new statutory duties. The designation of a 
Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum should not affect other services, agencies 
and the city as a whole.  Whilst it enables the production of a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan the effects of which will be assessed when any such plan is 
determined. 

 
 
  

39



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
A. Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area 
 
B. Copy of 15 January 2015 Economic Development & Culture Committee Report 

Relating to the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
 
C. Copy of 15 January 2015 Economic Development & Culture Committee Minutes 

and Decision Relating to the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
 
D. Summary of Representations Received after the Deferral of the Applications in 

January Including the Forum and BMRA Informal Consultation Responses  
 

E. Redacted Copy of Email from the Chair of BMRA 
 

 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The Localism Act 2011 
 
2. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 

 
3. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 

 
4. Localism Act : Neighbourhood Plans and Community Right to Build – Impact 

Assessment (DCLG, March 2012) 
 
 
 

40



R
o

tt
in

g
d

e
a
n

 C
o

a
s
ta

l 
W

a
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 M

a
ri

n
a

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 A

re
a

W
a

rd
s

(c
) 

C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t.
 A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 
L
ic

e
n
c
e
: 

1
0
0
0
2
0
9
9
9
, 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 2
0
1
4
.

M
a
p
p
in

g
 &

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
.

1
:1

0
,0

0
0

S
c
a
le

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 M
a
ri

n
a
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 A
re

a

µ

0
5
2
0

1
,0

4
0

2
6
0

M
e
te

rs

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

A

41



42



Appendix B 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
& CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 57 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

 
 

Subject: Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and 
Neighbourhood Forum – Brighton Marina 

Date of Meeting: Economic Development & Culture Committee 
15 January 2015 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Rebecca Fry Tel: 29-3773 

 Email: rebecca.fry@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: Rottingdean Coastal 

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to determine two neighbourhood planning 

applications.  One relates to the designation of Brighton Marina as a Business 
Neighbourhood Area.  The other application is linked to the area application and 
relates to the designation of the neighbourhood forum for Brighton 
Marina.   These designations are part of the neighbourhood planning provisions 
introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  Once designated they will enable the 
forum to prepare a neighbourhood development plan for the area. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the committee approve the designation of a Brighton Marina Business 

Neighbourhood Area as a business area neighbourhood area within the meaning 
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 the extent of which Area is 
delineated on the map forming appendix 1 to this report. 

 
2.2 That the committee approve the designation of the Brighton Marina 

Neighbourhood Forum as a neighbourhood forum within the meaning of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Through the Localism Act 2011, which introduced “neighbourhood planning”, the 

Government is seeking to give local communities more power to influence the 
future of the places in which they live.  A key element of neighbourhood planning 
is the ability to produce neighbourhood development plans (to be referred to as 
neighbourhood plans in this report).   

 

43



 

 

3.2 Neighbourhood planning is optional, however if a neighbourhood plan is 
prepared it must comply with national policy and be in general conformity with the 
strategic policies of the development plan (eg the Brighton & Hove Local Plan / 
City Plan). They must therefore contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development. A neighbourhood plan enables a community to set out planning 
policies in relation to the development and use of land in a particular 
neighbourhood area. Once adopted, a neighbourhood plan will be used by the 
Local Planning Authority, together with its development plan (eg the Local Plan / 
City Plan), to help determine planning applications for the neighbourhood plan 
area.  In order to have such influence in the planning system neighbourhood 
plans must go through a statutory process.  Only designated bodies that meet 
specified requirements (or a Parish Council) can produce a neighbourhood plan 
for a designated area. 

 
3.3 One of the first stages in producing a neighbourhood plan is to designate the 

neighbourhood area.  An application for designation must be submitted to the 
local planning authority by a relevant body, (a parish council or a neighbourhood 
forum).  The neighbourhood forum must be designated in accordance with the 
relevant legislation. 

 
3.4 The Local Planning Authority determines whether or not a proposed 

neighbourhood area is an appropriate area for designation.  In general a 
proposed area should be considered appropriate except where it overlaps with 
another neighbourhood area or has been submitted by a non qualifying body. 
Where an area is not considered appropriate the Local Planning Authority must 
seek to secure that some or all of the specified area applied for forms part of one 
or more neighbourhood areas (the Local Planning Authority has powers to modify 
existing neighbourhood area designations). 

 
3.5 Whenever a local planning authority exercises powers to designate an area as a 

neighbourhood area, consideration must be given as to whether the authority 
should designate the area concerned as a business area. Designation as a 
business area can only be agreed if the authority considers that the area is 
wholly or predominantly business in nature. 

 
3.6 In order for a local planning authority to designate a neighbourhood forum the 

authority must be satisfied that the neighbourhood forum meets certain statutory 
criteria. These are set out in section 61F (5) of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 and are as follows: 
 

• That the forum is established for the express purpose of promoting or 
improving the social, economic and environmental wellbeing of an area 
that consists of or includes the neighbourhood area concerned; 

• The forum’s membership must be open to individuals who live or work in 
the neighbourhood area and to councillors any of whose ward falls within 
the area; 

• The forum must have at least 21 members each of whom lives, works or is 
a councillor in the area; 

• The forum must have a written constitution   
 

44



 

 

3.7 In addition to the above, when determining an application for a neighbourhood 
forum the Local Planning Authority must have regard to the desirability of 
designating a forum that: 
 

• Has taken reasonable steps to secure membership that includes at least 
one person from each of the three aforementioned groups; 

• Has membership drawn from different places in the area and from 
different sections of the community in the area; and, 

• Whose purpose reflects the character of the area. 
 
 

3.8 Only one forum can be designated for a neighbourhood area.  A forum 
designation ceases after 5 years. 

 
3.9 The Government sets out the benefits of neighbourhood planning in a respective 

Impact Assessment (DCLG, March 2012). It states “The empowerment of 
neighbourhood communities will lead to community ownership of plans and plans 
that better reflect the wishes of local communities. It is hoped that this will lead to 
behavioural change in such a way as to make local communities more 
predisposed to accept development. As a result, it is anticipated that greater 
community engagement, coupled with an appropriate sharing in the benefits 
(including financial benefits) of development, could lead to an increase in 
development….. that is in-line with local needs” It is also considered it will create 
greater certainty for applicants and reduce the number of planning appeals. 

 
4. The Proposal 
 
4.1 The Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum applications were 

submitted in September 2014.  The geographical area proposed is the same as 
the area defined in the Brighton Marina Act.  It is bounded by the cliffs to the 
north and the harbour arms to the south, east and west where it is also bounded 
by the access road.  Appendix 1 shows the extent of the area delineated on a 
map.   

 
4.2 The applicant has indicated they consider the neighbourhood area should be 

designated a business area.   
 
4.3 Area Application - The determination of a neighbourhood area application 

should be judged on the appropriateness of the proposed area / boundary, 
compliance with legislation and take into account the representations received 
during the consultation period with regard also given to forum membership (whilst 
forum membership is continually evolving and thus subject to change it is 
considered appropriate to have regard to the membership information submitted 
because it helps to indicate a level of support).  National Planning Practice 
Guidance (NPPG) makes clear neighbourhood planning gives communities direct 
power to develop a shared vision for their neighbourhood and shape the 
development and growth of their area.  The NPPG provides guidance on 
designating neighbourhood areas and what could be considered when deciding 
boundaries (please see Appendix 2). 

 
4.4 The informal view from DCLG in respect of designating a different area to that 

applied for is as follows: “A local planning authority must designate a 

45



 

 

neighbourhood area if it receives a valid application and some or all of the area 
has not yet been designated. While planning guidance encourages local planning 
authorities to aim to designate the area applied for, the courts (Daws Hill case) 
have confirmed that the discretion that primary legislation gives to local planning 
authorities to refuse to designate the area applied for if they consider the area is 
not appropriate is a broad discretion as long as it is exercised rationally.” 

 
4.5 Forum application - The determination of a neighbourhood forum must include 

confirmation that the forum complies with the statutory criteria set out in 
paragraph 3.6 above and regard should be given to the desirable factors as 
detailed in paragraph 3.7 above.  Only one forum can be designated for a 
neighbourhood area (which cannot overlap with another neighbourhood area).  
Determination cannot take into account financial implications.  To accord with the 
purposes/objectives of localism and legislation, forum membership can only 
include residents, workers and elected members from within the neighbourhood 
area (for example, a forum cannot be made up of and thus dominated by 
members from outside the area) .  The designation of the Forum is therefore 
dependent upon the boundaries of the neighbourhood area to be designated. 
 

4.6 It should be noted that the designation of a neighbourhood area and forum alone 
will not affect planning decisions. It will however enable the designated forum to 
prepare a Neighbourhood Plan which, subject to meeting certain requirements, 
will carry similar planning weight as the adopted Local Plan. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Prior to the submission of the applications, the respective forum endeavoured to 

engage the local community via various methods but most notably a newsletter.   
 

5.2 Upon receipt of an application for the designation of a neighbourhood area and 
an application for the designation of a neighbourhood forum the City Council is 
required to publicise the proposed designation for a minimum of 6 weeks. 
 

5.3 The Brighton Marina neighbourhood area and forum applications were publicised 
for the minimum 6 week period.  The applications were advertised on the City 
Council’s website from 2 October 2014 to 13 November 2014.  In addition to this 
24 notices were displayed within the area. People and bodies on the email 
circulation list for the weekly planning application list were notified of the 
applications. Prior to the closing date key respondents to the City Plan proposals 
for this area were also notified as a follow up to the site notices.  Twenty three 
internal council teams were also consulted.  The publicity arrangements complied 
with the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
 

5.4 Consultation responses : There were in total 16 respondents to the Brighton 
Marina neighbourhood area and forum applications (please see Appendix 3 for a 
summary of responses).  Copies of responses received can be found in the 
application folders. 
 

5.5 Forum membership : According to information submitted by the forum, Brighton 
Marina Neighbourhood Forum has 26 members spread throughout the area.  
This is broken down as follows: 

• Resident (13) 50% 

46



 

 

• Worker (11) 42% 

• Councillor (2) 8% 
 

• 18-34 23% 

• 35-50 27% 

• Over 50 50% 
 

• Female 38% 
 
6. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF OPTIONS 
 
6.1 The appropriateness of the proposed area and its boundary need to be 

considered first because if amendments are to be sought the make up of the 
forum is also likely to need amending. 
 

6.2 This is a statutory procedure and non designation or the seeking of an alternative 
boundary without justification could lead to legal challenges. As raised in 3.4 and 
4.4 above the city council must designate some or all of the area applied for.  
Paragraph 4.3 above and Appendix 2 set out the key factors that should be taken 
into consideration.   
 

6.3 Defining appropriate boundaries for a neighbourhood area within urban areas is 
not straightforward.  People within the same street are likely to define their 
neighbourhood differently based on a number of factors such as where they 
shop, work and whether they have children or not (e.g. familiarity with local 
schools and open spaces).  Urban neighbourhood boundaries are therefore 
unlikely to follow clear widely recognisable boundaries for all people within an 
area in respect of all relevant factors such as geographical, social, cultural, 
community etc.  However, in respect of the Marina there are a number of 
features which make this area distinct.   
 

6.4 In respect of the guidance provided in the NPPG (please Appendix 2 for relevant 
extract) the Marina benefits from a number of elements including:  being part of a 
coherent estate; having relatively distinct physical appearance and 
characteristics; a defined natural boundary by virtue of infrastructure and physical 
features (for example the Marina sea wall, access ramps and cliff). 
 

6.5 However 12 respondents indicated they did not think the boundary of the 
proposed area to be appropriate.  This should therefore be balanced and 
considered against the 3 respondents who did feel the boundary to be 
appropriate and the 26 members of the forum who seek the designation of this 
area.   
 

6.6 Whilst there could be some merit in an extended area, as suggested by some 
respondents, to align with the City Plan development area DA2 or to include 
areas outside the Marina which may be affected by development within the 
Marina it is considered the proposed boundary is distinct and easily defined and 
there is no overriding support for an amended boundary. 
 

6.7 The impact of development in a designated area will not be confined within the 
boundaries.   Neighbourhood plans are subject to public consultation, an 
independent examination and a referendum.  It is therefore imperative the Forum 

47



 

 

not only engage people from within its area but also adjoining areas and take into 
account all representations, in forming its neighbourhood plan.  It is likely, 
especially where significant development is proposed, that the referendum area 
will be extended beyond the neighbourhood area.  It is important, therefore, that 
the opinions of people in adjoining areas are incorporated into the plan-making 
process so that the plan can receive wide support as it passes through 
examination and referendum.  The Forum will therefore need to work with 
residents, businesses and berth holders within and in areas adjoining its 
neighbourhood area in order to consider and incorporate respective views when 
drafting its neighbourhood plan.  
 

6.8 When all relevant factors are taken into account, including the community 
response and submitted forum membership data, it is considered reasonable and 
rational to accept the submitted neighbourhood area as being appropriate. 
 

6.9 Business Area status 
Under section 61H of the 1990 Act whenever a local planning authority exercises 
powers under section 61G to designate an area as a neighbourhood area, 
consideration must be given as to whether the authority should designate the 
area concerned as a business area. Designation as a business area can only be 
done if the authority considers that the area is wholly or predominantly business 
in nature [section 61H(3)].  In respect of this application the submitting body, 
which is currently detailed to have 26 members, seeks business area 
designation.  There are 13 respondents who do not feel the area should be 
designated a business area. 
 

6.10 There are a number of dwellings at the Marina however there is a significant 
element of business.  It is currently designated a District Centre in the adopted 
Local Plan.  Whilst the City Plan Proposed Modifications seek to alter this 
designation in response to the Inspector’s comments, the modifications 
recognise it is still a retail destination.  In addition to the currently designated 
retail area there are a number of business operations including a multi-screen 
cinema, Casino, bowling alley, Health and Fitness Club, fishing and tour boats 
and a boatyard.  The Marina is a private estate and thus in effect operated as a 
commercial venture.   
 

6.11 Whilst additional dwellings are proposed in the emerging City Plan and one 
development site is in the early stages of commencement it is considered 
reasonable to consider the nature of the Marina at this moment in time.  In effect 
the difference between a business area and one that is not a business area is 
that in addition to the normal ‘residents’ referendum on the neighbourhood plan 
there is also a ‘business’ referendum.  Should the outcome of the two 
referendums differ it is for the local authority to decide whether to make a 
neighbourhood plan (or order), a decision which would not be made lightly.  On 
balance it is felt reasonable to consider the Marina to be predominantly business 
in nature especially in view that this should not prejudice the residents but to fail 
to do so would prejudice the workers/businesses within the area.  The specified 
area is therefore considered to meet the requirements and should be designated 
as a business area. 
 

6.12 Name of Neighbourhood Area: 
Legislation makes provision for the designation of a neighbourhood area which 

48



 

 

may also be designated a business area should the neighbourhood area be 
considered to be wholly or predominantly business in nature.  A business area 
designation can only occur when a neighbourhood area is designated.  It is 
therefore considered that should the neighbourhood area be designated a 
business area that this be clear in the name and the title should be “Brighton 
Marina Business Neighbourhood Area”. 

 
6.13 Forum Application and Designation: 

The Forum application has more than the required 21 members, membership is 
open to people who live, work or is a councillor in the area, it has a written 
constitution and the application form confirms the forum has been established for 
the express purpose of promoting and improving the social, economic and 
environmental wellbeing of Brighton Marina.  Whilst one respondent queries the 
wording in the constitution on the basis it appears to favour residents over 
workers, the constitution makes clear the forum “shall promote and improve the 
social, economic and environmental well being of the area”.   It is considered the 
purpose of the Forum detailed in the constitution is acceptable and is not 
considered to conflict with the aims of the strategic DA2 policy in the emerging 
City Plan with which a neighbourhood plan must accord, especially with the 
designation of the area as a business area.   The forum application is therefore 
considered to meet the requirements set out in paragraph 3.6.   
 

6.14 Some respondents considered the forum fails to meet some of the desirable 
factors that a local authority must have regard to, which are set out in paragraph 
3.7.   The respondents consider the forum is not appropriately representative of 
the area primarily by way of : age profile and proportion of workers versus 
residents.  The application included confidential information about forum 
membership, in addition to that required by legislation, to help inform the 
recommendation in respect of the forum application.  The forum has secured 
membership from all three specified groups (residents, workers and Councillors 
in the area) and has a range of ages and gender.  Membership appears to be 
well spread throughout the area.   It is therefore considered the forum has 
endeavoured to address the desirable factors. 
 

6.15 Whilst one respondent suggests the forum’s meeting will be held at times that will 
not be convenient for residents who work, based on the information provided in 
the constitution it is not considered that meetings to “normally be held on 
weekdays and start between 14.00 and 20.00” is unduly restrictive such that this 
should result in the refusal of forum designation.  The forum is open to all the 
required groups within the area and thus meeting times and proxy voting is for 
the forum to determine as considered convenient.  Another respondent raises 
concern over the inability for berth holders to become members of the forum if 
they are not a resident, worker or Councillor within the area.  Whilst this is 
evident in the constitution it is considered this accords with the requirements 
detailed in the Localism Act 2011.  For the reasons detailed in paragraph 6.7 this 
does not and should not preclude berth holders from being involved in the 
preparation of a neighbourhood plan. 
 

6.16 When all relevant factors are taken into account, including the community 
response and submitted forum membership data, it is considered reasonable and 
rational to accept the submitted neighbourhood forum as being appropriate. 

 

49



 

 

7.  CONCLUSION:  
 
7.1 After considering all relevant factors the committee is recommended to approve 

the designation of the Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area as 
delineated in appendix 1 and to approve the designation of the Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum. 

 
8. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
8.1 It is anticipated that costs will be incurred within the Planning revenue budget to 

provide support and advice to communities wishing to undertake neighbourhood 
plans, consultation, publication of neighbourhood plans, examinations and any 
other steps that may be needed for the neighbourhood plan to come into legal 
force, including referendums. 
 

8.2 DCLG funding is available to Local Planning Authorities in the 2014/15 financial 
year of up to £30,000 per neighbourhood plan in recognition of the costs to the 
council outlined above. This amount is payable to the council in stages 
depending on requirements being met. It is currently unclear if this funding will be 
available after the 2014/15 financial year. 
 

8.3 The DCLG impact assessment estimates costs to local planning authorities of 
between £20k and £86k per plan with more plans being towards the lower end of 
the range. It is therefore possible that the funding available will not be sufficient 
to cover the costs of supporting this process. In addition the DCLG estimate that 
the cost of keeping the plan under review would be 70% of the original cost, 
every ten years. If costs arise which cannot be met from the DCLG funding or 
managed within the existing Planning budgets then additional funding will need to 
be identified. 

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 03/12/14 
 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
8.4 The legislative background to neighbourhood planning, including the 

considerations to be taken into account by the local planning authority when 
determining applications for the designation of neighbourhood areas and 
neighbourhood forums, is set out in the body of the report. 
 
There are no adverse human rights implications to draw to Members’ attention. 
 

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Name Hilary Woodward Date: 10/12/14 
 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
8.5 There are no identified equalities implications arising from this report.  The 

designation of a Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum by themselves does not give 

50



 

 

rise for a need to carry out an Equality Impact Assessment.  Whilst it enables the 
production of a Neighbourhood Development Plan the effects of which will be 
assessed when any such plan is determined. (Issues regarding membership of 
the Forum are addressed at Paragraph 6.14 Above) 

 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
8.6 There are no implications arising from this report. The designation of a 

Neighbourhood Area and/or Forum by themselves does not have sustainability 
implications.  Whilst it enables the production of a Neighbourhood Development 
Plan the effects of this will be assessed when any such plan is determined. 

 
Any Other Significant Implications: 

 
8.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications:   

This is a statutory procedure enabling a local community to take advantage of the 
non compulsory Neighbourhood Planning system. The city council has a duty to 
support communities wishing to undertake Neighbourhood Planning, the principle 
of which is considered to be consistent with the council’s priorities. It is also 
consistent with the objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy and 
Neighbourhood Decision Making. The emerging City Plan makes clear support 
will be given to communities for neighbourhood planning, reflecting the council’s 
aspirations and the new statutory duties. The designation of a Neighbourhood 
Area and/or Forum by themselves is not felt to affect other services, agencies 
and the city as a whole.  Whilst it enables the production of a Neighbourhood 
Development Plan the effects of which will be assessed when any such plan is 
determined. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area 
 
2. National Planning Practice Guidance Extract re Designating Neighbourhood 

Areas 
 

3. Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum Applications – Consultation 
Responses : Summaries 

 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
None 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The Localism Act 2011 
 

51



 

 

2. The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 
 

3. Localism Act : Neighbourhood Plans and Community Right to Build – Impact 
Assessment (DCLG, March 2012) 

 
 

  

52



 

 

Appendix 1 
(To the January EDC Report) 

 
 
 

Brighton Marina Business Neighbourhood Area 
 

53



54



R
o

tt
in

g
d

e
a
n

 C
o

a
s
ta

l 
W

a
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 M

a
ri

n
a

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 A

re
a

W
a

rd
s

(c
) 

C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p
y
ri
g
h
t.
 A

ll 
ri
g
h
ts

 r
e
s
e
rv

e
d
. 
L
ic

e
n
c
e
: 

1
0
0
0
2
0
9
9
9
, 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 2
0
1
4
.

M
a
p
p
in

g
 &

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u
p
.

1
:1

0
,0

0
0

S
c
a
le

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 B
ri

g
h

to
n

 M
a
ri

n
a
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 A
re

a

µ

0
5
2
0

1
,0

4
0

2
6
0

M
e
te

rs

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

1

(T
o

th
e

J
a
n
u
a
ry

E
D

C
R

e
p
o
rt

)

55



56



 

 

Appendix 2 
(To the January EDC Report) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

National Planning Practice Guidance Extract – Designating 
Neighbourhood Areas 

57



 

 

National Planning Practice Guidance – Relevant Extracts 
 
What flexibility is there in setting the boundaries of a neighbourhood 
area? (Paragraph: 032 Reference ID: 41-032-20140306 - Revision date: 06 03 2014) 

 

In a parished area a local planning authority is required to have regard to the 
desirability of designating the whole of the area of a parish or town council as a 
neighbourhood area (see 61G(4) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990). 
Where only a part of a parish council’s area is proposed for designation, it is helpful 
if the reasons for this are explained in the supporting statement. Equally, town or 
parish councils may want to work together and propose that the designated 
neighbourhood area should extend beyond a single town or parish council’s own 
boundaries. 
 

In areas where there is no parish or town council those wishing to produce a 
neighbourhood plan or Order must put forward a neighbourhood area using their 
understanding and knowledge of the geography and character of the neighbourhood. 
 
 

What could be considerations when deciding the boundaries of a 
neighbourhood area? (Paragraph: 033 Reference ID: 41-033-20140306 - Revision date: 06 03 

2014) 
 

The following could be considerations when deciding the boundaries of a 
neighbourhood area: 

• village or settlement boundaries, which could reflect areas of planned expansion 

• the catchment area for walking to local services such as shops, primary schools, 
doctors’ surgery, parks or other facilities 

• the area where formal or informal networks of community based groups operate 

• the physical appearance or characteristics of the neighbourhood, for example 
buildings may be of a consistent scale or style 

• whether the area forms all or part of a coherent estate either for businesses or 
residents 

• whether the area is wholly or predominantly a business area 

• whether infrastructure or physical features define a natural boundary, for 
example a major road or railway line or waterway 

• the natural setting or features in an area 

• size of the population (living and working) in the area 
Electoral ward boundaries can be a useful starting point for discussions on the 
appropriate size of a neighbourhood area; these have an average population of about 
5,500 residents. 
  

 

58



 

 

Appendix 3 
(To the January EDC Report) 

 
 
Brighton Marina Business / Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
Applications - Consultation Summary 

 
To facilitate the consultation process and to help ensure representations were not 
misinterpreted a questionnaire was provided and the consultation portal used in addition 
to other written methods for example, letter or email.  
 

Responses 
Number of people who participated to the 
consultation   

Consultation portal 14 

Email 
 

 

 
2 

(5 in total however 3 also 
responded on portal) 

Total 16 
Number of respondents from within area 1 
Number of respondents from outside area 14 
Number of respondents location indefinable 1 

 
The following organisations/bodies submitted representations:  
Organisation Object/Support 

Applications 
Response in Brief 

Kemp Town Society    
 

Object Area should be bigger 

South Downs Society 
 

Object  Area should be bigger -
response was an 
endorsement of Kemp 
Town Society’s comments 

Land Securities 
 

Object Area should be bigger 

Brighton Marina Berth 
Holders Association 
 

Object to Forum Berth Holders should be 
allowed to be Forum 
Members 

 

59



 

 

 
The following sets out the responses to the questions set out on the consultation portal.  
The email responses did not specifically answer these questions, however, an 
‘interpreted/assumed’ response from the comments presented in the emails is shown in 
brackets. 
 

Question 1 - Do you recognise the proposed 
area as a distinct neighbourhood?  

Portal 
responses 

Interpreted 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure   
No 9 (1) 
Yes 5 (1) 

Total 14 (2) 
 

Question 2 - Do you think that the boundaries of 
the proposed area are appropriate? 

Portal 
responses 

Interpreted 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure   
No 10 1(1) 
Yes 3  

Total 13 1(1) 
Nb one respondent on portal left this question blank 
 
Question 3 - Do you think the area is wholly or 
predominantly business in nature and therefore 
agree it should be designated a Business Area? 

Portal 
responses 

Interpreted 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure  ? 
No 13 ? 
Yes 1 ? 

Total 14  
 
 
NB Question 4 was for respondents to add any further comments about the 
neighbourhood area.  Please see the key issues section below which sets out the main 
points raised in response to question 4 and 7 and in emails. 

60



 

 

 
Question 5 - Do you think the Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum should be approved 
(designated)? 

Portal 
responses 

Interpreted 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 2 ? 
No 8 (2) 
Yes 3 ? 

Total 13 (2) 
Nb one respondent on portal left this question blank and there was insufficient direction 
in one email to provide an interpreted assumption. 
 
 

Question 6 - Is the Forum representative of 
people who live and work in the area? 

Portal 
responses 

Interpreted 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 5  
No 8 (2) 
Yes   

Total 13 (2) 
Nb one respondent on portal left this question blank 
 
 
NB Question 7 was for respondents to add any further comments about the 
neighbourhood forum.  Please see the key issues section below which sets out the main 
points raised in response to questions 4 and 7 and in emails. 

 
Key Issues Raised in Representations 
 

Comments were submitted in response to question 4 and 7 and via emails. The main 
issues raised have been summarised below. Please note some respondents raised more 
than one issue.  It is also important to note the analysis only indicates the number of 
people who have raised the issue, it should not therefore be assumed all other 
respondents think the opposite.   
 

Issue Count 
The Area (and the forum) should be bigger : 
It should include : 
Roedean;  
Marine Gate;  
the Kemp Town Estate; 
Arundel Street; 
The French Apartments; 
Courcels; 
Gaswork site (see **); 
Black Rock (see **); 
East Brighton Park; 
The Cliffs (views off); 
Bell Tower Estate; 
All who overlook Marina and need access; 

10 
 
9 
5 
6 
2 
1 
3 
3 
5 
1 
1 
1 
1 

61



 

 

*(Marine Gate and Roedean count includes response seeking inclusion of area 
above the cliff to the north of Marina) 
**(Gasworks and Blackrock count includes response seeking area alignment 
with the DA2 boundary) 

2 
 
1 

Lack of infrastructure - Marina has no school or NHS presence of its own.  
Too small to be a viable neighbourhood.  Any increase in development at 
Marina will have direct traffic impacts upon adjoining area as access only via 
ramps. (one respondent raised lack of a park) 

2 

Regard should be given to the surrounding area – it is a highly sensitive site: a 
variety of different elements were detailed by respondents including: 
Ecological/wildlife assets, environmental, architectural, traffic, South Downs 
National Park/the Downs, recreational assets (including sailing, walking, 
cycling, fishing and the important SE surf spot to the east of Marina,). 

4 

Proposal will enable commercially interested parties/Brunswick Development 
Group within Marina to be dominant and will not adequately reflect the 
broader interests of all those who should be embraced under the scope of 
‘localism’ for this area (eg those within and in surrounding area who will be 
affected). 

5 

Forum membership is not representative.  The various reasons provided 
included (nb each respondent may have indicated more than one): 
Workers and enterprise under represented in view of importance of Marina 
for employment and enterprise; 
Forum age profile not representative; 
Occupants muzzled by communal associations/Brunswick Group; 
Area needs to be extended and forum amended to be representative of wider 
area; 
Constitution focuses on well being of individuals living or wanting to live in 
Marina and fails to make reference to people working or wanting to work in 
the Marina.  Fails to meet DA2 which seeks sustainable mixed use district; 
Meetings will fail to represent those at work (outside area) due to meeting 
times/ Forum should exclude BMRA.) 
 

6 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
5 
 
1 
 
 
1 

The Marina Berth Holders should be allowed to be included within the 
Forum.   Marina includes approximately 1,000 boats used by at least 3,000 
people who are not represented on the Forum. 
 

1 

 
Late Representations 
 
3 late representations were submitted these were as follows: 
 
Organisation/Person Object/Support 

Applications 
Response in Brief 

Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum 

Support Rebuttal to Kemp Town 
Society Comments 

Brighton Marina Residents 
Association 

Support Rebuttal to Kemp Town 
Society Comments 

Individual  Support Support for Brighton 
Marina Residents 

62



 

 

Association’s comments 
 

63



64



APPENDIX C 

15 January 2015 EDC – Transcript of Minutes and Decision in Respect of 
the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum Applications 
(Agenda Item 57) 
 

Transcript of 15 January 2015 EDC Minutes:  
 

57.  DESIGNATION OF NEIGHBOURHOOD/BUSINESS AREA AND 
NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM - BRIGHTON MARINA 

 
57.1 The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director of 
Environment, Development and Housing requesting determination of two 
neighbourhood planning applications. One related to the designation of 
Brighton Marina as a Business Neighbourhood Area. The other application, 
linked to the area application, related to the designation of the neighbourhood 
forum for Brighton Marina. These designations were part of the 
neighbourhood planning provisions introduced by the Localism Act 2011.  
Once designated they would enable the forum to prepare a neighbourhood 
development plan for the area. 
 
57.2 It was explained that the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and 
Forum applications had been submitted in September 2014. The geographical 
area proposed was the same as that defined in the Brighton Marina Act and 
was bounded by the cliffs to the north and the harbour arms to the south, east 
and west where it is also bounded by the access road. Appendix 1 to the 
report showed the extent of the area delineated. The applicant had indicated 
that they considered the neighbourhood area should be designated a 
business area. 
 
57.3 Councillor Mears stated that she had grave concerns regarding the 
surprising and unexpected level of responses to the consultation. She 
understood that in addition to the fact that some properties located at the 
Marina were short term/company lets, there were terms in some leases which 
could preclude residents from responding. Given the important role that any 
neighbourhood area had in forming and taking forward development policy 
she considered that this needed to be addressed before the application could 
be progressed. Councillor Mears stated that she supported the principal of a 
neighbourhood area but not as currently framed as it could result in the 
owners of the site, the Brunswick Group, having significant input regarding its 
future from which the leaseholders themselves might be excluded. It could 
place too much power into the hands of the developers. 
 
57.4 Councillor Hawtree alluded to the fact that there had been differences of 
opinion between different local interest groups when the recent Hove Station 
Neighbourhood Area application had been considered. It was important to 
ensure that the public engagement process was inclusive. 
 
57.5 Councillor Mears stated that she was in agreement that it was important 
for Members to feel assured that an appropriate level of public consultation 
had taken place, and in respect of the Forum’s Membership. Councillor Mears 
was at pains to point out that her concerns were in no way intended as a 
criticism of the hard work which had been undertaken by officers; she was 

65



APPENDIX C 

strongly of the view however that these issues must be addressed before the 
Committee could determine this issue. 
 
57.6 Councillor Mears added that in addition to the other points she had 
raised, she considered that a larger area should be designated than that 
currently proposed. For example, the Regency Terraces and other 
developments/properties located above the Marina could be impacted 
significantly by development there and there was therefore a case for their 
inclusion in any neighbourhood area. Councillors Morgan and Simson 
concurred in that view. Councillor Morgan stated it might also be appropriate 
for the Gas Works site to be included and he was in agreement that the area 
to be included should be re-visited. 
 
57.7 Councillor Robins sought clarification of the powers that the Forum would 
have once set up and concluded that it was not appropriate for a decision to 
be taken as matters stood. 
 
57.8 The Chair, Councillor Bowden, stated that he was of the view that the 
points made by Councillor Mears were valid and that it would be entirely 
appropriate for consideration of this matter to be deferred in order to address 
the concerns which had been raised. The Chair was in agreement that he 
would have expected a high response rate to the consultation that had taken 
place. Councillor Randall concurred in that view and having put the matter to 
the Committee, Councillor Bowden stated that it was clear that crossparty 
Members were of the view that they had concerns which needed to be 
addressed and that further dialogue needed to take place between officers in 
the relevant groups in order for a decision to be made. 
 
57.9 Members were in agreement with the Chair that the following key issues 
needed to be addressed: 

• Level of consultee responses 

• Public engagement 

• Extent of the area 

• Membership of the Forum 
 
57.10 The Deputy Head of Law stated that whilst membership of the Forum 
and the extent of the area it should cover were separate issues, they were 
however clearly linked. He added that the committee could only consider the 
specific proposals put before it and given the issues raised it might be 
considered appropriate to defer the decision and have a further report tabled 
as soon as possible. 
 
57.11 RESOLVED - That consideration of the designation of a Brighton 
Marina Business Neighbourhood Area as a business area neighbourhood 
area and the designation of the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Forum (within 
the meaning of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) be deferred in order 
for further dialogue to take place with the relevant and interested parties to 
resolve issues with participation and representation within and outside the 
proposed area, before these applications form the subject of a further report 
for consideration by the committee in due course.

66



APPENDIX C 

Transcript of 15 January 2015 EDC Decision: 
 

RECORD OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & CULTURE 
COMMITTEE DECISION 
SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF 
NEIGHBOURHOOD/BUSINESS AREA 
AND NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM - 
BRIGHTON MARINA 
AUTHOR: REBECCA FRY 
 
THE DECISION 
RESOLVED - That consideration of the designation of a Brighton Marina 
Business Neighbourhood Area as a business area neighbourhood area within 
the meaning of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 be deferred in order 
for further dialogue to take place with the relevant and interested parties, to 
form the subject of a further report for consideration by the committee in due 
course. 
 
REASON FOR THE DECISION 
The purpose of this report is to determine two neighbourhood planning 
applications. One relates to the designation of Brighton Marina as a Business 
Neighbourhood Area. The other application is linked to the area application 
and relates to the designation of the neighbourhood forum for Brighton 
Marina. These designations are part of the neighbourhood planning provisions 
introduced by the Localism Act 2011. Once designated they will enable the 
forum to prepare a neighbourhood development plan for the area. 
 
DETAILS OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
The appropriateness of the proposed area and its boundary need to be 
considered first because if amendments are to be sought the make up of the 
forum is also likely to need amending. This is a statutory procedure and non 
designation or the seeking of an alternative boundary without justification 
could lead to legal challenges. As raised in 3.4 and 4.4 above the city council 
must designate some or all of the area applied for. Paragraph 4.3 above and 
Appendix 2 set out the key factors that should be taken into consideration. 
 
When all relevant factors are taken into account, including the community 
response and submitted forum membership data, it is considered reasonable 
and rational to accept the submitted neighbourhood area as being 
appropriate. 
 
Proper Officer: 
Date: 16 January 2015 Mark Wall, Head of Democratic Services 
Signed: 
 

67



68



Appendix D 
 
Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum Applications - 
Summary of Responses Submitted After the Deferral of the 
Applications on 15 January 2015 

 
In response to the concerns raised by the 15 January 2015 Economic Development & 
Culture Committee, the Brighton Marina Neighbourhood Forum advised interested 
parties within the Marina to write to the City Council with their views on the Brighton 
Marina Neighbourhood Area and Forum applications.  In addition to this the Brighton 
Marina Neighbourhood Forum with the Brighton Marina Residents Association (BMRA) 
undertook an informal survey consultation based on the original online questionnaire 
provided by the City Council during the formal consultation period. The BMRA 
distributed hard copies of the survey to all residential units within the Marina.  The 
informal survey consultation ran throughout April 2015.  
 

Responses 

 

Number of people who participated in the 
informal consultation   

survey 119 
Email 

(NB. Where a respondent submitted both an email and survey they 
are shown as a survey respondent) 

15 
 

Total 134* 
Type of Respondent  

Resident 105 
Worker 22 

Unknown 7 
 
Number of respondents from within area Approximately 100% 
Number of respondents from outside area 
Number of respondents location unknown 

The survey was only distributed 
within the Marina.  One respondent 

did indicate their property is 
currently rented out. 

  
* Please note additional representations from outside the Marina area are included in a 
separate table at the end of this appendix. 
 
Where an email response did not specifically answer the following questions an 
‘interpreted assumed’ response from the comments presented in the email is shown in 
brackets. 

Question 1 - Do you recognise the proposed area 
as a distinct neighbourhood?  

Survey 
responses 

Assumed 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 0  
No 0  
Yes 119 (15) 

Total 119 (15) 

69



 

Question 2 - Do you think that the boundaries of 
the proposed area are appropriate? 

Survey 
responses 

Assumed 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 0  
No 0   
Yes 119 (15) 

Total 119  (15) 
 
Question 3 - Do you think the area is wholly or 
predominantly business in nature and therefore 
agree it should be designated a Business Area? 

Survey 
responses 

Assumed 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 13  
No 97  
Yes 9  

Total 119  
 
Question 4 was for respondents to add any further comments about the 
neighbourhood area.  Please see the final section of this appendix below for a summary 
of the main issues raised in response to question 4 and 7 and in emails/letters. 
 

Question 5 - Do you think the Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum should be approved 
(designated)? 

Survey 
responses 

Assumed 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 2  
No 0  
Yes 114 (15) 

Total 116 (15) 
NB. 3 respondents left this question blank. 
 
 

Question 6 - Is the Forum representative of 
people who live and work in the area? 

Survey 
responses 

Assumed 
response - 
emails 

Don't know/not sure 16  
No 2  
Yes 97  

Total 115  
NB. 4 respondents left this question blank. 
 
Question 7 was for respondents to add any further comments about the 
neighbourhood forum.  Please see the section below for the main issues raised in 
response to questions 4 and 7 and in emails/letters. 

 
Key Issues Raised in Representations to the Informal Consultation 
 

Comments were submitted in response to question 4 and 7 and via emails. The main 
issues raised have been summarised below. Please note some respondents raised more 
than one issue.  It is also important to note the analysis only indicates the number of 

70



people who raised the issue, it should not therefore be assumed all other respondents 
think the opposite.   
 

Issue Count 
Specific comments as to why the Brighton Marina neighbourhood 
area is distinct and the proposed neighbourhood area is appropriate 
: 

• Unique/different in nature to surrounding area 

• Physically separate 

• Self-contained entity 

• Vibrant/unique/‘village’ style community 

• Unique Environment/unique connections to the sea and marine 
environment 

• Different agenda to outside/distinct future development 
requirements/allocated to provide 15% of the City’s future housing 
requirements 

• Should be represented as a separate area 
 

20 

Specific comments regarding nature of area: 

• Marina is both business and residential 

• With new buildings being built the Marina is not predominantly 
business/Marina is mainly residential 

• Marina is a residential area 

18 
12 
4 
 

2 

Specific comments as to why the proposed Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Forum is supported: 

• Forum will be people with a genuine interest in area / future 
planning and developing the area / prepared to work for the whole 
community 

• It has a fair cross section of representation 

• Can only have positive impact 

• Pace of change is gathering and opportunity to influence by having 
own neighbourhood planning forum is welcomed 

• Strongly believe Marina should have Forum specific to itself 

• This forum will give those with an interest in the Marina a say and 
contribute to the promotion of excellent development so the 
Marina can fulfil its potential to be a fantastic asset for everyone in 
the City 

• Premier Marinas represents 1200 customers and commercial 
tenants and is one of the three major stakeholders on site - the 
area manager supports the applications 

• Those inside the Marina should have foremost say in how the 
Marina environment develops/important those inside are able to 
influence future development within the Marina 

• those inside have suffered from a lack of representation as a 
special area 

• proposals will enhance community spirit and pride in area 

27 

 
 

71



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Additional representations submitted from outside the proposed Brighton Marina 
Neighbourhood Area: 
Organisation/Person Object/Support 

Applications 
Resident of Marine Gate / a lead member of the Brighton 
Marina Action Group 

Object 

Response in Brief 
Queried why site notices weren’t put up in Kemp Town Estate, Arundel Terrace, Marine 
Gate, Courcels and Roedean and why the extended area wasn’t re-consulted.  Raised all 
are affected by development within the Marina and affected by its traffic, visual intrusion 
of high rise development, pollution and have concerns over the architectural quality 
within the Marina.  Residents go to the Marina to shop, eat, use the leisure facilities and 
some have boats and/or work there. Why are they being excluded? Queried the makeup 
of the ‘community’ pressing for a neighbourhood forum and raised it has a strong 
commercial interest that may intend to exclude alternative voices from the planning 
process.  Suggested the BMRA committee is an extension of Brighton Marina Company 
policy.  Submitted information indicating the Marina was being marketed as investment 
opportunities for foreign investors and raised concerns over this. Suggested proposals 
mean commercial interests will decide future of area and that many affected will not be 
heard (didn’t feel it was democratic).  Stated the area should be extended to include 
Black Rock, Kemp Town Gas Works site, Kemp Town Estate, Roedean, Marine Gate, 
Courcels and Arundel Terrace. 

 
Organisation/Person Object/Support 

Applications 
Kemp Town Society (Chair and Secretary the latter also 
wrote in as a resident of 4 Sussex Square) 

Object 

Response in Brief 

72



Queried why residents of the Grade 1 listed Kemp Town Estate weren’t being given an 
opportunity to comment on matters affecting them in the Marina. Suggested the 
proposed area does not meet the ‘Localism Test’.  It is too small and linear and would 
have adverse effects on surrounding area such as additional traffic, visual impacts, 
overcrowding, night time and light intrusion etc. Low response from Marina possibly due 
to many units being holiday or investment properties and residents nervous to go against 
the consortium that runs the Marina.  The neighbourhood area should also include 
Roedean, Marine Gate, Courcelles, the French Apartments and the Kemp Town Estate. 
 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council Internal Responses 
 
Transport Planning : It should be noted that the status of the highway within the 
proposed neighbourhood area boundary is either private or unmaintained public 
highway.  Therefore the primary focus of any future highway authority involvement 
would be in relation to policies which include road safety and access to/from and within 
the area. 
 
Aboriculturist: The Marina, by its very nature, is in an exposed coastal location which is a 
harsh location for trees and other vegetation.  There are, therefore, few trees located 
here.  The national laws regarding trees would still apply if the neighbourhood area and 
neighbourhood forum were designated and therefore the Aboricultural Section has no 
objections to the proposals in this application. 
 
 

73



74



Appendix E 
Redacted Copy of Email from the Chair of Brighton Marina Residents Association  

(Email dated 20 February 2015) 

 

Dear Rebecca, 

 

The opportunity to clarify the questions raised by yourself and Councillor Mary Mears 

concerning the Brighton Marina Residents Association (BMRA) is very welcome. 

 

The statement that "The BMRA may not campaign against anything the head leaseholder 

proposes" would appear to have originated from x letter to The Argus of 12th February… 

What our constitution in fact says is "The BMRA will not itself campaign against any issue."   

The 'head leaseholder' is not referred to at all. 

 

Membership of the BMRA is open to all residents of the Marina, and as with all large groups 

there will be a spectrum of opinions on any subject. It was for this reason that our 

constitution was amended as it was felt that the name of the BMRA should never be able to 

be used in the future by its committee (or wider membership) to hold or express a position 

on ANY issue as it could not possibly be representative of all the membership. 

  

This leads on to the other question needing clarification, "there being terms in some leases 

which could preclude residents from responding." I can assure you that no such terms exist 

in any residential lease or freehold property covenant in the Marina and all residents are 

free to exert their democratic right to object to or support any matter concerning the 

Marina as they see fit. 

 

Judge XX, a previous Chairman of the Association, made it clear that he considered that it 

should be a means of information dissemination and communication, and that should 

controversial issues arise (such as planning applications) the Association’s role should be to 

inform all residents. Beyond this he did not think that the BMRA should be involved in 

objections or protests as this was for individual residents to do if they wished. Those 

objectors could if they chose form a pressure group, and again, if they chose, individual 

members and officers of BMRA could join the pressure group, but the BMRA itself should 

not be involved. This principle has not changed and is now incorporated into our amended 

constitution. 

 

We enjoy a very positive position in the Marina and our voice is heard by the management 

through the active participation of our members in the numerous sub-committees (including 

finance, gardening, security and maintenance) that convene on a regular basis to oversee 

the running of the Marina. Our six-weekly Sunday meetings that are open to all our 

members are also attended by John Davey, who kindly gives up of his time, thus giving all 

residents the opportunity to raise issues with him directly. 

 

I hope this clarifies these questions for yourself and Councillor Mears, but please feel free to 

contact me if any other questions arise, and we look forward to welcoming the Councillors 

to our meeting on 8th March. 

 

Regards 

Tom  

BMRA Chairman 

75



76



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 10 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Local List of Heritage Assets – Adoption 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2015 

Report of: Executive Director Environment, Development & 
Housing 

Contact Officer: Name: Sanne Roberts Tel: 292261 

 Email: sanne.roberts@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

Ward(s) affected: All 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND POLICY CONTEXT 
 
1.1 This report outlines the results of the local list review, with a view to adopt a fully 

updated local list of heritage assets and associated Planning Advice Note (PAN).  
This follows a call for nominations and consultation on a draft local list of heritage 
assets.  An up-to-date and objective local list will inform development 
management decisions and help protect the city’s historic environment. 
 

1.2 The list is a lengthy document; a definitive copy is provided in Members’ rooms 
and in Customer Service Centres.  This includes the full assessment details for 
each asset.  A summary list (including the addresses of all assets recommended 
for inclusion) is contained in appendix 2.   
 

1.3 Appendix 1 contains the consultation responses on the draft local list.  Appendix 
3 includes a summary list of those nominations recommended for removal/not to 
be included.  Appendix 4 contains the recommended text for the associated PAN. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the recommended Local List of Heritage Assets (definitive list provided in 

Members’ rooms and Customer Service Centres) and associated Planning 
Advice Note (PAN) (recommended text set out in Appendix 4) are adopted. 

 
2.2 That authority be delegated to the Policy and Projects Manager, Planning & 

Building Control, to: make any minor typographic or grammatical corrections to 
the Local List and PAN; correct any factual or historical references where new 
evidence is available; and to remove any assets from the local list if nationally 
designated or demolished.  

 
3. CONTEXT/ BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
  Policy Background 
 
3.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) identifies the concept of non-

designated heritage assets, including local listings.  This is reinforced by Historic 
England’s guidance on local listing (May 2012), which also makes clear that local 

77



lists can cover other heritage assets as well as buildings.  Local authorities are 
encouraged to be proactive in identifying these assets, the significance of which 
is a material consideration in determining applications.    
 

3.2 Policy HE10 of the Brighton & Hove Local Plan 2005 sets out the Council’s policy 
with regard to Buildings of Local Interest, whilst policy QD20 sets out the 
approach to Urban Open Space (including those considered to be of local 
interest).   

 
  Local List Review 

 
3.3 The need to review the council’s current local lists is identified in the council’s 

Conservation Strategy (2015).  The process of review and selection criteria were 
approved at Economic Development & Culture Committee in September 2012.  
This allowed for a combined local list of heritage assets, to include buildings, 
parks and gardens.  A call for nominations followed in spring 2013, with a 
substantial number of assets nominated by individuals and local societies.  In 
total, around 450 assets were assessed, including the nominated assets and re-
assessment of those buildings on the current local lists.  A number of thematic 
surveys were undertaken to provide greater consistency across the city.  Due to 
the prevalence of street lights and letterboxes, specific thematic criteria were 
produced in order to identify which examples to include on the local list. 

 
3.4 Conservation area designation provides a greater level of control/protection than 

local listing does.  As such, where an asset is within a conservation area, it has 
generally not been included on the recommended local list.  The exception to this 
is where an asset is considered atypical of the conservation area, but worthy of 
protection in its own right.  This approach is enshrined in the approved selection 
criteria.  A significant number of assets are proposed to be removed from the 
existing lists or are not proposed for inclusion for this reason.  Other reasons for 
removing or not including assets on the list include that they are already 
statutorily listed (and therefore subject to greater protection), have been 
demolished, fall outside the area for which Brighton & Hove City Council are the 
local planning authority or do not meet the approved selection criteria. 
 

3.5 Consultation on the draft local list and associated draft Planning Advice Note 
(PAN) was held for six weeks in February/March 2015.  This included notification 
to owners.   

 
3.6 Full details of the individual comments received as part of this consultation and 

associated council responses in each case are set out in appendix 1.  The results 
of the consultation were largely supportive, with 27 supports for the local list as a 
whole or for recommendations for individual assets, 10 objections to 
recommendations for individual assets and seven further comments/thematic 
nominations received.  A number of comments related to the same asset: most 
notably, nine supported the inclusion of London Road Station, Shaftesbury Place.   
 

3.7 The consultation responses have not resulted in changes to the recommended 
local list, except for the inclusion of further street lights and post boxes which met 
the criteria.  A number of the assessments have been updated to reflect the 
further information provided as part of the consultation, resulting in a greater level 
of accuracy and historic information.  25 Montague Place and St Mary’s Roman 

78



Catholic Church, Surrenden Road, have also been removed from the 
recommended local list as they have now been statutorily listed at a national 
level so are no longer eligible.   
 

3.8 The revised assessments have been drawn together to form the recommended 
Local List of Heritage Assets.  The recommended definitive Local List of 
Heritage Assets is available in Members’ Rooms and Customer Service 
Centres.  This includes the full assessment details for each asset.  A summary 
list including addresses of all assets recommended for inclusion on the local list 
is included in appendix 2.  A summary list of those nominations recommended 
for removal / not to be included on the local list is set out in appendix 3.   

 
  Future Management and Review 

 
3.9 The Local List of Heritage Assets Planning Advice Note (PAN – recommended 

text included in appendix 4) provides information on the impact of the local list, 
the assessment procedure (and selection criteria) and the process for future 
review.   
 

3.10 Any future nominations received will be collated by the council, and reviewed on 
a 5 yearly cycle.  In exceptional cases – where an asset is demonstrably under 
threat – an asset will be considered outside of this timeframe.  Approval will be 
sought from the relevant committee as part of the five year reviews and for 
exceptional cases. 
 

3.11 No comments were received on the content of the draft PAN.  It is therefore 
recommended for approval with only non-material amendments to the text to 
improve accuracy. 
 

3.12 In order to keep the local list as robust and up-to-date as possible, approval is 
sought to allow typographical, grammatical and factual/historical corrections to be 
made, and to remove any assets from the local list if they have been nationally 
designated or demolished.  In all other cases, approval will be sought from the 
relevant committee. 

 
4. ANALYSIS & CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 To not approve the local list.  This option would diverge from national and local 

policy and guidance.  It could lead to the loss or inappropriate alteration of locally 
significant heritage assets, erode the historic environment and create adverse 
publicity for the Council.  Upfront identification of assets allows developers to 
understand the constraints of a site at an early stage. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT & CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Two phases of public consultation have been undertaken as part of the review, 

both in line with the aims of the Community Engagement Framework and 
Standards and with the Planning Department’s Statement of Community 
Involvement. 
 

5.2 The first period of consultation invited nominations over a 12 week period and 
was aimed to engage residents and community groups on a city-wide level.  The 

79



consultation was advertised through posters placed in libraries, information 
points and reception areas, a press release and the council’s website and social 
media.  Community groups, history groups, amenity societies, Ward Councillors 
and the council’s Conservation Advisory Group were also contacted directly.   
 
The second phase was a more targeted consultation, aimed at stakeholders and 
owners directly impacted by the proposals.  No new nominations were accepted 
at this stage.  Where a stakeholder or owner wanted an asset to be re-assessed, 
new evidence was required to show how that asset did/did not meet the selection 
criteria.  Councillors from each party were briefed on the results of the 
assessments, draft local list and PAN ahead of the consultation.  Ward 
councillors and the council’s Conservation Advisory Group were also consulted.  
The draft local list was published on the council’s website for comment, and 
advertised through social media and a press release.  The results of the 
consultations are set out in Section 3 above. 

 
6.  CONCLUSION  
 
6.1 Heritage assets of local interest form an important part of the city’s historic 

environment.  Identification of such local heritage assets helps protect that 
environment and inform development management decisions.  A Local List for 
the city has been produced in consultation with the local community.   Approval is 
therefore sought for the adoption of the Local List of Heritage Assets and 
associated Planning Advice Note, with powers to ensure it remains up-to-date. 

 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
Financial Implications: 

 
7.1 The costs of officer time and consultation associated to the recommendations in 

the report have been met from existing Planning & Building Control revenue 
budgets. Any further costs associated with future management and review of the 
Local List of Heritage Assets and associated Planning Advice Note (PAN) will 
also be met from existing revenue resources.  

 
7.2 Finance Officer Consulted:  Steven Bedford  Date: 24/04/15 
 

Legal Implications: 
 
7.3 Although local listing is not a statutory procedure and a locally listed property will 

not be afforded statutory protection, the fact that a building is on the local list will 
be a material planning consideration in the determination of any planning 
application affecting the same. Such determinations will need to take into 
account both local policy (currently Brighton & Hove Local Plan policy HE10 – 
Buildings of local interest and QD20 – Urban Open Space) and relevant policy in 
the National Planning Policy Framework. 

   
 Lawyer Consulted: Hilary Woodward Date: 27/04/15 
 

80



 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.4 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EQIA) of the Conservation Service was 

undertaken in 2010 and covers work on designation. 
 
 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.5 The local list of heritage assets contributes to nurturing a ‘sense of place which 

builds on local cultural heritage’ under the ‘Culture and Community’ principle of 
the ten One Planet Principles of sustainability.  The proposals have no 
substantial negative impact upon the ten Principles.   

 
Any other significant implications: 

 
7.6 None 
 
  

81



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 
Appendices: 
 
1. Consultation responses 

 
2. Recommended Local List of Heritage Assets – Summary List 

 
3. Summary list of those assets recommended not to be included on the local list of 

heritage assets. 
 

4. Recommended text for the Local List of Heritage Assets Planning Advice Note 
 
Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. Recommended Local List of Heritage Assets 
 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. Historic England – Good Practice Guide for Local Heritage Listing (May 2012): 

https://www.historicengland.org.uk/images-books/publications/good-practice-
local-heritage-listing/  

 
2. National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012): 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--
2  

 
3. Brighton & Hove City Council – Conservation Strategy (2015): 

http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/sites/brighton-
hove.gov.uk/files/Conservation%20Strategy%202015.pdf  

 
4.  Existing Local Lists for Brighton and for Hove (last updated in the 1990s). 
 

82



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

R
e
f 

In
d

iv
id

u
a
l/
 

L
o

c
a
l 
G

ro
u

p
 

A
s

s
e
t 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

/ 
O

b
je

c
t/

 
c
o

m
m

e
n

t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

m
a
in

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 

L
L
H

A
0
0
1

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

H
o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 

R
e
g
e

n
t 

H
o
u
s
e

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

o
u

ld
 a

rg
u
e

 t
h
a

t 
R

e
g
e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
e
 m

o
s
t 
c
e
rt

a
in

ly
 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 

d
u

e
 t
o
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 
h

is
to

ri
c
 (

fo
rm

e
r 

fi
re

 s
ta

ti
o

n
),

 a
e
s
th

e
ti
c
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 (

c
o
n
s
c
io

u
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

d
e
ta

il 
a
n
d

 f
a
n
ta

s
ti
c
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 w
o
rk

s
 o

f 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
),

 t
o

w
n
s
c
a
p

e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
(a

ty
p

ic
a

l 
o
f 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
),

 i
n
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
ta

in
e
d
 

g
la

s
s
 w

in
d
o

w
 o

f 
a
rt

 d
e
c
o
 s

ty
le

 w
h

ic
h
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t
o
 

fl
a
t 
1
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
e
 n

o
te

d
. 
  

 In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n

 f
o
r 

H
is

to
ri
c
 I
n

te
re

s
t.
 

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
re

v
is

e
d
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 m

e
n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
ta

in
e
d
 

g
la

s
s
 w

in
d
o

w
. 

L
L
H

A
0
0
2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

P
re

s
to

n
 

C
ir
c
u
s
, 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
P

re
s
to

n
 C

ir
c
u
s
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
, 
I 
h

o
p
e

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
s
 g

iv
e

n
 t
o
 

p
re

s
e
rv

in
g
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
k
s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
s
 e

x
te

ri
o
r 

th
a

t 
fo

rm
 

th
e
 c

ir
c
u
s
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o

le
, 

a
n

d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o

n
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 t
e

n
a
n

t 
w

h
o
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
a

in
ti
n
g

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 e

x
te

ri
o
r 

a
b
o

v
e
 L

lo
y
d
s
 b

a
n
k
. 
 N

o
t 
o
n

ly
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
 e

x
e
m

p
la

ry
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

1
9
3
0
s
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
a

l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
it
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 s
e
rv

e
s
 t

h
e
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
 p

e
rf

e
c
tl
y
. 
 A

tt
e

n
ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
ta

il 
is

 
s
u
b
lim

e
; 

w
o
u

ld
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 m
a
k
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 w
it
h
 a

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 

in
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

e
v
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 h

a
n
d
 r

a
ils

, 
b
a
n

is
te

rs
, 
p
a
rq

u
e
t 

fl
o
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
re

a
r 

d
o

o
rs

. 
 L

a
m

e
n
ta

b
le

 t
h

a
t 

p
a
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 f

a
lle

n
 i
n
to

 d
is

re
p

a
ir
 a

n
d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
o
rs

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e

d
, 

b
u
t 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o
t 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
ts

e
lf
. 

 
  H

is
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t,
 i
t 
h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 

u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 f
ir
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

m
a
n

y
 y

e
a
rs

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
b
u

ild
in

g
 w

it
h
 m

a
n

y
 p

h
o
to

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 

s
u
rv

iv
in

g
. 
 S

tr
o
n

g
ly

 b
e
lie

v
e
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o

t 
o
n

ly
 b

e
 p

u
t 

o
n

 a
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

b
u
t 
th

a
t 

a
 d

u
ty

 o
f 

c
a
re

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

la
c
e
d

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 n

o
te

d
. 
  

 T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L

is
t 
o
f 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 A

s
s
e
ts

 i
s
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
b
u

ild
in

g
s
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 b

e
in

g
 a

re
a
-b

a
s
e
d
. 
 A

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 
o
n

ly
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n
 r

ig
h

t 
h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  
T

h
is

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 T

h
e
 J

o
k
e
r,

 P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

a
lv

a
ry

 
E

v
a
n
g

e
lic

a
l 
C

h
u
rc

h
, 

V
ia

d
u
c
t 
R

o
a

d
. 

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  
A

n
y
 a

lle
g
e
d

 b
re

a
c
h
 o

f 
p
la

n
n

in
g

 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
te

a
m

 o
n
: 
h
tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
g
h
to

n
-

h
o
v
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/
p

la
n
n

in
g
/p

la
n

n
in

g
-e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

 D
u
ty

 o
f 

C
a
re

 f
a
lls

 o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

 D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
d

ic
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l 

o
f 

in
te

rn
a

l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 s
it
e
’s

 h
is

to
ry

. 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

v
a

lu
e
 a

d
d

e
d
. 

 

83



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

o
n
 t
h

e
 F

ir
e

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e

 c
o
u

ld
 

a
tt
ra

c
t 
to

u
ri
s
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
in

 f
ir
e
 

h
is

to
ry

 m
u
s
e
u
m

/a
rt

 d
e
c
o
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 

 T
h
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  

It
 i
s
 a

 b
e
a

u
ti
fu

l 
b
u

ild
in

g
, 

a
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
, 

u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 b
u

ild
in

g
 t

h
a
t 
e

v
e
ry

o
n

e
 l
o

v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 k

e
p
t 
p
u

b
lic

 s
o
 e

v
e
ry

o
n
e
 c

a
n
 e

n
jo

y
 

it
s
 e

x
p
e
ri

e
n
c
e
. 

 L
o

n
d
o

n
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 c

h
a
n
g

in
g

 r
a
p

id
ly

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
d
 b

u
t 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 

a
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 b

u
t 

o
n

ly
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

n
c
h
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 
P

re
s
to

n
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

tu
n
n

in
g
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
lly

 
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 r

ig
h
t,
 b

u
t 

it
 a

ls
o
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
a

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 o

n
 a

 p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l,
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
le

v
e
l.
  
P

le
a
s
e
 s

to
p
 a

n
y
 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 u
s
e
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
s
to

re
 t
h

is
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t
o

 i
ts

 f
o
rm

e
r 

g
lo

ry
 

a
n
d
 p

le
a
s
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
ir
e
 c

o
v
e
r 

in
 y

o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 c

u
ts

. 
 

L
L
H

A
0
0
3

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

P
re

s
to

n
 

C
ir
c
u
s
, 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
n

d
e
rf

u
l 
o

ld
 f

ir
e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h
e

 h
e
ri

ta
g

e
 l
is

t.
  

I 
w

a
lk

 p
a
s
t 
it
 o

ft
e
n
 a

n
d
 

it
 i
s
 a

 m
a
rv

e
llo

u
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

h
a
t 
s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 g
ra

d
e
 I
 

lis
te

d
 a

s
 f

a
r 

to
o
 m

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 f

ir
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 d
e
s
tr

o
y
e

d
. 
 I
t 

is
 a

 b
u

ild
in

g
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
u
d

 o
f 

a
n
d
 

a
 r

e
a
l 
la

n
d
m

a
rk

 f
o
r 

v
is

it
o
rs

 t
o
 o

u
r 

c
it
y
. 

 W
e
ll 

d
o
n
e
 

B
H

C
C

 k
e
e
p
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g
 o

u
r 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 v

a
lu

e
 a

d
d
e

d
. 

84



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
0
4

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

H
ig

h
d
o

w
n
 

R
o
a
d
, 

4
8
/4

8
A

/4
8

B
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

H
a
p
p

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 o
n
 t
h
e

 l
is

t,
 b

u
t 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ils
 y

o
u

 h
o

ld
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 4
8
 a

n
d
 4

8
b
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
h
e

 f
o
rm

e
r 

b
a
k
e
ry

 s
h
o
p
 o

n
ly

. 
 4

8
a
 s

it
s
 

b
e
h

in
d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

b
a
k
e
ry

 i
ts

e
lf
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
o
m

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 t
h
a
t 

re
m

a
in

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
b

a
k
e
ry

 c
h
im

n
e

y
 a

n
d

 w
o
o

d
e
n

 
b
e
a
m

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
u
rt

y
a
rd

 i
s
 l
a

id
 

w
it
h
 e

n
g

in
e
e
ri

n
g
 b

ri
c
k
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y 

b
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l.
  

T
h
e
 r

o
o
f 

a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

re
s
te

d
 r

id
g
e
 t

ile
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 o

n
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

o
o
f 

o
f 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
. 
 

N
o
th

in
g
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
a
 c

a
n

 b
e
 s

e
e

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
, 
a
s
id

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
d

o
o
r 

th
a
t 

le
a

d
s
 

u
n
d
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
b
. 

 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 I
t 

is
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

b
a
k
e
ry

 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
f 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
(a

s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t)

, 
b

u
t 

it
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 i
ts

 e
n
ti
re

ty
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
 

L
L
H

A
0
0
5

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

P
re

s
to

n
 

C
ir
c
u
s
, 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 a

d
d
 m

y
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 l
is

t;
 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

. 
 I
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 

c
e
n
tr

e
, 
d
ri

v
in

g
 p

a
s
t 

d
a
ily

 I
 e

n
jo

y
 s

e
e

in
g
 t
h

is
 

s
p
le

n
d
id

 o
ld

 b
u
ild

in
g
 s

ta
n
d

in
g
 t
h

e
re

 a
s
 a

 
re

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

fi
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 b

y
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 V

a
lu

e
 a

d
d
e

d
 

L
L
H

A
0
0
6

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

B
ra

y
b

o
n

 
A

v
e
n
u

e
, 

F
o
u
n
ta

in
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
h
a

v
e
 n

o
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
 o

u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g

 a
s
 i
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
a

b
le

 a
tt
ri

b
u
te

s
 f

o
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 

O
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 N
o
 n

e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 
b
u
ild

in
g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 

a
n
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n

 r
e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

a
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
ly

; 
th

e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll 

is
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 o

f 
n
o
 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.

 

L
L
H

A
0
0
7

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

E
a
s
te

rn
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 

M
e

w
s
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

N
o
te

 t
h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 E

a
s
te

rn
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 M

e
w

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 c

a
v
e
a

t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 M

e
w

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 
‘p

ro
te

c
te

d
’ 
b

y
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
. 
 W

o
u
ld

 y
o

u
 p

le
a
s
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 

y
o

u
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
o
 h

a
p

p
e
n

 b
e
fo

re
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 t
h
e

 
M

e
w

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
L

is
t.

 

C
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 M

e
w

s
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t
h

u
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
. 

85



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
0
8

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

It
 s

h
o
u

ld
 d

e
fi
n
it
e
ly

 b
e
 l
is

te
d

, 
in

 f
a
c
t 
I 
c
a
n

’t
 b

e
lie

v
e

 
it
’s

 n
o
t 
a

lr
e
a

d
y
. 

 W
e
ll 

d
o
n
e

 t
o
 w

h
o
e

v
e
r 

is
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

m
a
k
in

g
 i
t 

lo
o
k
 s

o
 l
o
v
e

ly
, 

it
 l
if
ts

 m
y 

s
p
ir
it
s
 w

h
e
n
e

v
e
r 

I 
u
s
e
 i
t 
o
r 

g
la

n
c
e
 u

p
 a

t 
it
 f

ro
m

 
D

it
c
h
lin

g
 R

is
e

. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
0
9

 
L
o
c
a
l 
G

ro
u
p
: 

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
a
n
d
 C

lif
to

n
 

H
ill

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

 

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 

s
u
rv

e
y
, 

 
 M

o
n
ta

g
u

e
 

P
la

c
e

, 
2
5

; 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
    C

o
m

m
e
n
t 

I 
w

a
s
 j
u
s
t 
g
o

in
g

 t
o
 s

a
y
 y

o
u

’v
e
 g

o
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 a

n
 

im
p
re

s
s
iv

e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
a
n
d

 
th

a
n
k
 y

o
u

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

y
o

u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
. 
 I
’m

 s
u
re

 w
e

’ll
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
c
o
u
p
le

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 (
s
e
e
 b

e
lo

w
),

 b
u
t 

v
e
ry

 
im

p
re

s
s
iv

e
, 
th

a
n
k
 y

o
u
. 

- 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 s

tr
e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

la
m

p
p
o
s
ts

 i
n
 P

o
w

is
 

S
q
u

a
re

, 
C

lif
to

n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o

la
s
’ 

C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 
- 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 i
n
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 t
o
 2

5
 

M
o
n
ta

g
u

e
 P

la
c
e

 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
n

o
te

d
  

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

la
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
 C

lif
to

n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

P
o

w
is

 S
q

u
a
re

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
la

m
p
 p

o
s
t 
in

 S
t 

N
ic

h
o

la
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 (
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

1
2

 
Q

u
e
e
n
 S

q
u
a
re

) 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 a

 t
y
p

e
 3

 
c
o
lu

m
n
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
e
s
s
 g

ro
u
p
 v

a
lu

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 
is

o
la

te
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
. 

 S
in

c
e

 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

, 
2
5

 M
o
n
ta

g
u

e
 P

la
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 l
is

te
d
. 

 A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
 

 

L
L
H

A
0
1
0

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

N
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 t

y
p

e
 3

 l
a

m
p
 p

o
s
t 
o
u
ts

id
e
 4

4
 

B
e
lt
o
n
 R

o
a

d
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 t
h

e
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 
T

h
is

 l
a
m

p
 p

o
s
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

d
d
e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
a
s
 i
t 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o
r 

ty
p

e
 3

 l
a
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

. 

L
L
H

A
0
1
1

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

K
in

g
s
 

E
s
p
la

n
a

d
e
, 

M
e
d

in
a
 

H
o
u
s
e

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

is
h
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h

e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
M

e
d
in

a
 H

o
u
s
e

 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
M

e
d

in
a
 H

o
u
s
e

 n
o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
1
2

 
L
o
c
a
l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 

–
 R

o
u

n
d
 H

ill
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 /
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

I 
a
m

 d
e
lig

h
te

d
 t
o
 s

e
e
 t
h

a
t 
2

 s
ty

le
s
 o

f 
e
a
rl

y
 g

a
s
 

lig
h
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 (

n
o

w
 e

le
c
tr

ic
) 

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d

 t
o
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  
I 

w
o
u

ld
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
e

y
 w

e
re

 p
ro

p
e
rl

y
 

lis
te

d
 (

p
e
rh

a
p
s
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

u
p
) 

w
it
h
 E

n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 

w
it
h

in
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 4
 t

y
p
e

 1
 p

o
s
ts

 o
n

 P
ri
n
c
e
s
 C

re
s
c
e

n
t,
 

R
o
u
n

d
 H

ill
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 
 T

w
o
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 l
is

t 
is

 a
 m

a
tt
e
r 

fo
r 

E
n
g
lis

h
 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
. 

A
n

y
o

n
e
 m

a
y
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 a
 b

u
ild

in
g
/s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

fo
r 

lis
ti
n
g

. 
   A

ll 
fo

u
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 

lis
t.

 

86



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

a
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
n
-c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
a
d
, 

b
u
t 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 c
h
u
rl

is
h
 t
o

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
m

 w
h
e

n
 

th
e

y
 a

re
 s

o
 m

u
c
h
 a

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 

a
re

a
. 

 

L
L
H

A
0
1
3

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

M
e
a
d

o
w

 
C

lo
s
e
, 

C
o
u
rt

 
O

rd
 C

o
tt
a

g
e
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
v
e
ry

 m
u
c
h
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 n

o
w

 
re

c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t

h
e
 h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
s
e
 b

e
a

u
ti
fu

l 
c
o
tt
a
g
e
s
. 

 T
h
e

y
 w

e
re

 b
u

ilt
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t
im

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

b
ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 f

lin
t 
C

h
a

llo
n
e
rs

 C
o
tt
a
g

e
s
 o

n
 F

a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t
h
e

 f
lin

t 
c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 b

o
tt

o
m

 o
f 

N
e
v
ill

 R
o

a
d
 i
n
 R

o
tt

in
g

d
e
a

n
. 

 B
o
th

 o
f 

th
e
s
e

 a
re

 
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 t
h

e
y
 f

a
ll 

w
it
h

in
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e

 
s
a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
a
t 

g
iv

e
n
 b

y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a
l 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

, 
e

v
e
n

 s
o
 

I 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
 t
h
a
t 

a
t 

le
a
s
t 
s
o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
. 
 

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
. 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u
rt

 O
rd

 C
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
1
4

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
a
m

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t

o
 v

o
te

 f
o
r 

y
e
s
 t

o
 L

o
n
d
o

n
 R

o
a
d
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 b
e

in
g
 a

 h
e
ri
ta

g
e

 s
it
e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 
 

I 
fe

e
l 
th

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 

w
o
n
d

e
rf

u
l 
fe

e
l 
o
f 

o
p

e
n
n

e
s
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 

d
e
n
s
e
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 h
o

u
s
in

g
. 
 I
t 
o
ff

e
rs

 l
o
v
e

ly
 v

ie
w

s
 

a
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 t
ra

c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

la
tf

o
rm

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

ri
d
g

e
. 
 

It
 h

a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 l
o

v
e

ly
 

p
la

n
te

d
 b

e
d
s
. 
 I
t 

o
ff

e
rs

 a
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
to

 c
o
m

e
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
re

c
o
u
rt

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

p
la

y
. 
 T

h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
fe

e
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

tr
a
c
k
 a

llo
w

s
 f

o
r 

in
v
a
lu

a
b

le
 w

ild
lif

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
u

n
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
 t
h

a
t 
s
it
s
 w

e
ll 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
v
a

lu
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 

L
L
H

A
0
1
5

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
s
tr

o
n
g
ly

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a

d
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 

lis
ti
n
g
 o

r 
in

d
e
e

d
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
c
t 

th
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

87



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
1
6

 
G

ro
u
p
 –

 
L
e
tt
e
r 

B
o
x
 

S
tu

d
y
 G

ro
u
p

 

L
e
tt
e
r 

b
o
x
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 

s
u
rv

e
y
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

N
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
le

tt
e

r 
b
o
x
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

a
d
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

 A
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
m

p
 b

o
x
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 d

a
ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h
e

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 (

E
II
R

).
  

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 m
o
d
e
rn

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
. 
 T

h
e
 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 
w

e
re

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 p

a
rt

ly
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 r

a
ri

ty
, 

w
h

ic
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
a
s
e
 o

f 
la

m
p
 b

o
x
e
s
 n

o
 l
o
n

g
e
r 

a
p
p

e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
. 

 
T

h
e
 t
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
u
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

m
e
n
d
e

d
 t
o
 

re
m

o
v
e
 E

II
R

 a
n
d
 G

V
IR

 e
x
a

m
p
le

s
 o

f 
la

m
p
 a

n
d
 w

a
ll 

b
o
x
e
s
. 
  

 

L
L
H

A
0
1
7

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

P
a
lm

e
ir
a
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
, 
1

4
-

2
2
 e

v
e

n
 a

n
d
 

1
3
-2

1
 o

d
d

 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
tr

o
n

g
ly

 o
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o

s
a
l 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 1
4
-2

2
 

e
v
e

n
 a

n
d
 1

3
-2

1
 o

d
d

 P
a
lm

e
ir
a
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 

lis
t.
  
I 

a
m

 a
 c

a
re

fu
l,
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 m

in
d
e
d
, 

lo
n
g
 

te
rm

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
f 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 

I 
d
o
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 i
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

. 

O
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 N
o
 n

e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 
b
u
ild

in
g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 

a
n
d

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n

 r
e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
1
8

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l-
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

K
in

g
s
w

a
y
, 

1
7
3
-1

8
7

 
O

b
je

c
t 
to

 
re

m
o
v
a
l 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  
I 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 t

o
 b

e
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
It
 m

ig
h
t 
n
o

t 
q

u
it
e
 

s
h
a
re

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 g

ra
n
d
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

lik
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 a

re
a
s
, 
h
o

w
e

v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

ty
p

e
 o

f 
b
u

ild
in

g
 t
h

a
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e
 s

o
re

ly
 m

is
s
e
d
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 i
t 

fa
ll 

in
to

 d
is

re
p
a

ir
, 

s
p
ro

u
t 
u
n
s
ig

h
tl
y
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
s
 o

r 
e

n
d
 u

p
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 
c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

O
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

 N
o
 n

e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e

 s
e
le

c
ti
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 (

o
r 

h
o

w
 i
t 

is
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
).

  
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 r

e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
lr
e
a
d

y
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.

  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

is
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
, 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h
 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 f

o
rm

 a
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 p

a
rt

. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e

l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 f

a
lli

n
g
 i
n
to

 d
is

re
p

a
ir
, 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
n
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 

it
s
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 

  
  

88



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
1
9

 
W

a
rd

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

, 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 w
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o
n

d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 S

u
rv

e
y
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
2
0

 
W

a
rd

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

, 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 w
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o
n

d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 S

u
rv

e
y
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
2
1

 
W

a
rd

 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

, 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
s
 c

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

fo
r 

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 w
a
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o
n

d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o
 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

tr
e
e

t 
lig

h
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

 T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 S

u
rv

e
y
 n

o
te

d
. 

89



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
2
2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

B
ri
s
to

l 
R

o
a
d
, 

1
9
-2

6
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

re
m

o
v
a
l 

A
s
 t
h
e
 o

w
n

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 I
 a

m
 f

in
e
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
 

d
e
n
o
m

in
a
ti
n
g

 o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g

. 
 I
 a

m
 a

 h
u
g
e
 f

a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 i
n
 B

ri
g

h
to

n
, 
it
 b

e
in

g
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

m
a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 I
 m

o
v
e
d
 h

e
re

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

y
p
e
 

o
f 

th
is

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 t

y
p

ic
a

l 
o
f 

K
e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
s
ta

n
d
 o

u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

re
. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

e
ig

h
t 

is
 i
rr

e
g

u
la

r,
 t

h
e
 c

o
lo

u
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 

u
n
c
o
o
rd

in
a

te
d
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

in
d
o

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 g
la

z
in

g
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d

 w
h
ic

h
 d

e
tr

a
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
a
s
h
 s

ty
le

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 b
a

lc
o
n

ie
s
 a

re
 

ru
s
ty

. 
 I
t 

s
e
e
m

s
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 p
o
o
r.

 
 L
o
c
a
l 
c
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

n
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

e
lp

in
g
 

to
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

ls
 t
h

e
 a

re
a
s
 t
h
a

t 
w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

re
c
e
iv

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
n
a
ti
o

n
a
l 
a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

to
 r

u
n

 a
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t 
c
o

v
e
rs

 a
n

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
b

u
ild

in
g
 e

v
e
r 

n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 i
s
 u

n
m

a
n
a
g

e
a
b

le
 a

n
d
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 

c
o
u
n
te

rp
ro

d
u
c
ti
v
e

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
g
o
a

ls
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
I 
a

m
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 h

a
p
p

y
 y

o
u
 

fo
c
u
s
 y

o
u
r 

e
ff

o
rt

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

in
fi
n

it
e
ly

 m
o
re

 
e
x
c
it
in

g
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h

to
n
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

re
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

1
9
-2

6
 B

ri
s
to

l 
R

o
a
d

 n
o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
2
3

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

o
c
c
u

p
a
n
t 

F
o
n
th

ill
 

R
o
a
d
, 

D
u
b
a
rr

y
 

B
u
ild

in
g

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
c
e
rt

a
in

ly
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 

D
u
b
a
rr

y
 H

o
u
s
e

 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d

. 
 I
t 
is

 a
 u

n
iq

u
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

w
it
h
 i
ts

 m
o
s
a
ic

 l
e
tt

e
ri
n
g

 a
n

d
 p

a
in

te
d
 f

lo
w

e
rs

 o
n
 

th
e
 f

ro
n
t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 a

 H
o
v
e
 l
a
n
d

m
a
rk

. 
 I
 h

o
p
e

 b
e

in
g

 o
n
 

th
e
 l
is

t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 p
ro

te
c
t 
it
 f

ro
m

 u
n
s
ym

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 f

u
tu

re
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
D

u
b
a
rr

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
2
4

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

E
d

w
a
rd

 
S

tr
e
e
t,

 
A

M
E

X
 

H
o
u
s
e
; 

     

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

      

I 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 A

M
E

X
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
it
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
e
s
t 

7
0
s
 s

ty
le

 o
ff

ic
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 
n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
in

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

n
tr

y
 a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
 I
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 S

1
0

6
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,
 b

u
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
g
o
o

d
 o

ff
ic

e
 

s
p
a
c
e
 t
h

is
 s

u
re

ly
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k
 i
n
to

 
c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
s
e
. 

  

O
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 
  

 N
o
 n

e
w

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e

 s
e
le

c
ti
o

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
 T

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e

 
a
s
s
e
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n
 r

e
-a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 

 S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h
 

tr
a
m

 a
n
d
 t
ro

lle
y
b

u
s
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

o
te

d
. 

 

90



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

P
re

s
to

n
 

C
ir
c
u
s
, 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

; 
 

  D
it
c
h
lin

g
 

R
o
a
d
, 

T
ra

m
 

S
h
e

lt
e
r,

  
 C

o
o
m

b
e
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
4
3
-

4
5
, 
(B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n

 
T

ra
m

w
a

ys
 

D
e
p
o
t)

 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

    C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

 

C
o
u
ld

 I
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

y
e

le
ts

 o
n
 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o

n
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 w

ir
e
s
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

(a
n
d
 s

ti
ll 

m
is

s
e
d
) 

tr
o
lle

y
b

u
s
 s

y
s
te

m
 

(1
9
3
9
-6

1
).

  
P

e
rh

a
p
s
 p

a
in

t 
th

e
m

 s
o
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
a
n
 

s
e
e
 t
h
e
m

?
 

 T
h
e
 t
ra

m
 s

h
e
lt
e
rs

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
o

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r,

 a
s
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

d
e
p
o
t 

in
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

 
 

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
o

 m
e
n
ti
o

n
 

e
y
e

le
ts

. 

L
L
H

A
0
2
5

 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n

y
 o

n
 

b
e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
, 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
M

e
w

s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

O
n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
h
a
re

h
o
ld

e
rs

 w
e
 w

o
u

ld
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
M

e
w

s
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
 

0
2
6

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

o
n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
o

w
n
e
rs

 

C
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 

R
o
a
d
, 

C
le

rm
o
n
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

O
n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
it
s
 o

w
n
e
r,

 t
h
is

 l
e
tt

e
r 

o
b
je

c
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

le
rm

o
n
t 
C

h
u
rc

h
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

L
o
c
a
l 
L
is

t 
o
f 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 A

s
s
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

 
lis

ti
n
g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
c
c
o
rd

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

ti
n

g
 

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 

 T
h
e
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
n
e
s
s
 

(c
ri
te

ri
a
 F

i)
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

a
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

re
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 

la
rg

e
 r

e
a
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
h

a
t 
is

 p
o
o
rl

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
n
 

n
e
e
d

 o
f 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
).

  
T

h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

e
a
r 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
’s

 
a
p
p
e

a
ra

n
c
e
 –

 b
e
in

g
 s

q
u

a
re

 a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 

v
e
rt

ic
a

l 
rh

y
th

m
. 

O
b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

le
rm

o
n
t 
C

h
u
rc

h
, 

C
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 R

o
a
d

 n
o
te

d
. 

 It
 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

e
a
r 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 o

f 
lim

it
e
d
 a

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
is

 
n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

te
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 c
h
u
rc

h
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 e

s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 

fo
r 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 C
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 R

o
a

d
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

C
le

rm
o
n
t 
R

o
a

d
 a

n
d
 C

u
m

b
e
rl
a

n
d
 

R
o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
u
rc

h
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
t 

w
it
h
 t
h

o
s
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

a
 c

le
a
r 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

w
a
rr

a
n
ts

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

C
le

rm
o
n
t 
C

h
u
rc

h
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

91



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  

T
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n

 a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 e
x
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
la

ri
ty

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 t
h

u
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
f 

th
is

 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

a
p
p
ly

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e

 c
o
m

p
le

x
. 

 

L
L
H

A
 

0
2
7

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

o
n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
o

w
n
e
rs

 

H
o
lla

n
d
 

R
o
a
d
, 

T
h
e
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

O
n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
it
s
 o

w
n
e
r,

 t
h
is

 l
e
tt

e
r 

o
b
je

c
ts

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
T

h
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 l
o
c
a
l 

lis
t 
o
f 

h
e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 l
is

ti
n

g
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
a
c
c
o
rd

 w
it
h
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
  

 In
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 a

ii,
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 n

e
it
h
e
r 

a
 

‘g
o

o
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
’ 
n
o
r 

‘r
a
re

’ 
e
x
a

m
p
le

 o
f 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 t

y
p

e
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 p
la

in
 

1
9
3
0
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 r
a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 

b
a

y
 w

in
d
o

w
s
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
s
u
c
h
 a

 d
e
s
ig

n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 “

q
u

ir
k
y”

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n
t 

e
n
o

u
g
h

 
fe

a
tu

re
 t
o
 q

u
a

lif
y
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 “

ra
re

”.
  
1

9
3
0
s
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t

ile
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 a
re

 a
 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 f

e
a
tu

re
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
n

 e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

g
o
o
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
s
 o

f 
s
o
lid

-t
o
-v

o
id

 
(b

e
tw

e
e

n
 g

ro
u
n
d

 a
n

d
 f

ir
s
t 
w

in
d

o
w

s
) 

a
p

p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 

to
o
 g

re
a
t.
 A

n
d
 t
h

e
 j
u
x
ta

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
d
ja

c
e

n
t 
m

a
n
s
io

n
 b

lo
c
k
 i
s
 p

o
o
r.

  
C

o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
tl
y
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 a

ii 
is

 n
o
t 
fu

lf
ill

e
d
. 

 G
iv

e
n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 

w
e
 p

re
s
u
m

e
 t
h
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 r

e
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 C

i,
 n

o
t 
C

ii 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 i
ts

 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  
W

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 C

i,
 w

h
ils

t 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 c

le
a
rl

y
 a

ty
p

ic
a
l 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 

a
re

a
, 

w
e
 d

o
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 [
s
ic

] 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 
 W

e
re

 
a
n
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a

l 
to

d
a

y
, 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

lik
e
ly

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
fu

s
a
l 
o
f 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 

T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 n

o
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

 r
e

la
ti
v
e
ly

 s
tr

o
n
g

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

ty
le

, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 
c
o
n
fo

rm
 t
o
 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
s
 b

u
t 
is

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 r

ig
h
t.

  
T

h
e
 p

o
o
r 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g

 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 p

o
o
r/

d
o
m

in
a
n
t 
fe

a
tu

re
 t
o

 
o
u
tw

e
ig

h
 t
h

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

s
 a

 
w

h
o
le

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 1

9
3

0
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t

ile
d

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 

c
it
y
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 r

a
re

 i
n
 t
h

e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 a

re
a

 o
f 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 

H
o
v
e
/B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
. 
 F

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 
it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
c
ri
te

ri
o
n

 A
ii 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t.
 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
fo

rm
 

to
 t
h

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 

th
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e

rv
a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.
  
It
 i
s
 n

e
v
e
rt

h
e

le
s
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 
b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

c
e
n
e
 i
n
 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
b
u

ild
in

g
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

in
 

c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n

t 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 
c
ri
te

ri
o
n
 C

i.
  
T

h
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
rr

e
c
te

d
 

to
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 c
ri
te

ri
o
n

 C
i 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n
 C

ii.
 

92



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

b
e
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 T

h
is

 c
a

n
 b

e
 c

le
a
rl

y
 s

e
e
n
 w

it
h

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 e

x
tr

a
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a

 C
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
(w

h
ic

h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
v
e

n
 m

e
n
ti
o
n

 t
h
e

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
p
re

m
is

e
s
).

 
 “T

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a

n
d
 a

p
p

e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 …
 i
s
 o

f 
a

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 

e
s
ta

te
 w

h
e
re

 b
o
th

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 i
n
 a

 m
a

n
n
e
r 

c
re

a
ti
n
g

 f
o
rm

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 o

rd
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

d
is

ti
n
c
tl
y
 c

la
s
s
ic

a
l,
 f

ir
s
t 
in

 t
h

e
 R

e
g

e
n
c
y
 s

ty
le

, 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e

n
tl
y
 I

ta
lia

n
a
te

 o
r 

s
im

ila
r.

” 
 T

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
n
te

rr
u
p
ts

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 o
rd

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

, 
a
n

d
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 s

ty
le

 o
f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

fo
rm

s
 (

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 o

r 
It
a

lia
n
a
te

).
 

 “T
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
s
c
a
le

 a
n

d
 r

h
y
th

m
, 
e

a
c
h
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
ro

o
f 
h

e
ig

h
ts

.”
  
H

o
lla

n
d

 R
o
a

d
 i
s
 a

 
p
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t,
 w

it
h

 4
 o

r 
5
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

e
x
te

n
d

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 e

d
g
e

 o
f 

p
a
v
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 b

e
n
e

a
th

 a
 

p
it
c
h
e

d
 r

o
o
f,

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 o

p
e
n
 a

re
a
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
 s

it
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 h
o

le
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 “T

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

it
y
 o

f 
s
la

te
 r

o
o
fs

, 
is

 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 t
h
e

 
a
re

a
; 

A
d
e

la
id

e
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t 

is
 a

 s
p
le

n
d

id
 e

x
a
m

p
le

, 
b
u
t 

in
 l
e
s
s
e
r 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

ra
c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 

s
p
o
ile

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
d
 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 t
ile

s
.”

  
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

s
 c

la
y
 t

ile
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

le
a
rl

y
 n

o
t 
a
 f

e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
. 

 
C

ri
te

ri
o
n
 C

i/
C

ii 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h
. 

 

93



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
2
8

 
G

ro
u
p
 -

 
D

it
c
h
lin

g
 

R
is

e
 a

n
d
 

A
re

a
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

W
e
, 
th

e
 D

it
c
h

lin
g
 R

is
e
 a

n
d
 A

re
a
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

D
R

A
R

A
) 

a
re

 h
a
p
p

y
 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
to

 t
h

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 t
o

 g
iv

e
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 R

O
A

D
 S

T
A

T
IO

N
 

o
n
 S

h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 s

ta
tu

s
. 

 
T

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

w
a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 
D

R
A

R
A

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 (

T
u
e
s
, 
F

e
b
 1

7
th

) 
a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 
w

id
e

ly
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
e
d

. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
o

u
n
d

in
g
 ‘
Y

E
S

’ 
to

 r
e
c
o
g
n

is
in

g
 t

h
is

 s
ta

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h

to
n
. 
W

e
 s

tr
o
n
g
ly

 a
g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
th

e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t
h

e
 R

o
u
n
d

 H
ill

 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 (

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
).

 H
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

o
u
r 

o
w

n
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

(m
a
in

 p
o

in
ts

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
) 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 w
id

e
r 

c
o
n
te

x
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

W
e
 l
o
o
k
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
is

 
m

a
tt
e
r 

a
n
d
 h

o
p
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
. 

 T
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 a

n
d

 H
is

to
ri

c
a
l 
In

te
re

s
t:
 T

h
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
1
8
7

7
 i
s
 a

 k
e

y 
la

n
d
m

a
rk

 d
e
fi
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 

‘V
ia

d
u
c
t’
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 (

B
H

C
C

 U
rb

a
n
 

C
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
a

ti
o

n
 S

tu
d

y
).

  
T

h
e
 s

tu
d

y
 n

o
te

s
 t

h
e
 

v
ia

d
u
c
t 

it
s
e
lf
, 
b

u
t 
th

e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 t

h
e
 

h
u
m

a
n
/a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

s
ti
m

u
la

te
d
 t
h

e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
o
u
s
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

 i
n
te

ra
c
t 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

u
c
h
-l
o

v
e
d
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
, 
e

it
h

e
r 

b
y
 c

a
tc

h
in

g
 t
ra

in
s
 o

r 
c
ro

s
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

b
ri
d
g

e
. 
 S

h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e

 f
o
rm

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

fe
w

 
‘s

q
u
a
re

-l
ik

e
’ 
lo

c
a
l 
s
p

a
c
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

s
 a

 c
a
lm

 
s
p
a
c
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 r

o
a

d
 u

s
e
rs

. 
 M

a
n

y
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

v
e

n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 s

tr
e
e
t 
p
a
rt

ie
s
, 
p

la
n
ti
n
g
 

d
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 a

 r
a

ilw
a

y
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 h

e
ld

 
th

e
re

. 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
V

a
lu

e
: 

S
in

c
e
 2

0
1
1
 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e

d
 i
n
 e

n
h
a

n
c
in

g
, 

p
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

 s
it
e
, 

e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 g

re
a
te

r 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 
p
e

o
p
le

. 
 I

n
 2

0
1
3
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 j
u
d

g
e
d

 
S

o
u
th

e
rn

’s
 ‘
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

ta
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r’

 a
n
d
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
o
te

d
. 

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 i
n

te
re

s
t 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n

y
in

g
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
it
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 T

h
e
 

S
ig

n
a

lm
a
n
. 

94



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

th
e
 L

R
S

P
 w

a
s
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o

v
e
 C

it
y
 i
n
 

B
lo

o
m

’s
 E

d
w

a
rd

 F
u
re

y
 C

u
p

 f
o
r 

‘c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

p
ir
it
’.
  

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
v
e
 c

re
a
te

d
 f

lo
u
ri
s
h
in

g
 f

o
o
d
 a

n
d

 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

 g
o
o

d
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 o
f 

ti
d

in
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

 D
R

A
R

A
 h

a
v
e
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 S

o
u
th

e
rn

 R
a

il 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 

it
s
e
lf
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 u

s
e
d

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 
 A

 d
ri

n
k
 i
n
 t
h
e

 S
ig

n
a
lm

a
n
 p

u
b
 l
o

o
k
in

g
 u

p
 a

t 
th

e
 

s
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ra
m

e
d
 b

y
 S

h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e

 s
h
o
u

ld
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 t
o

w
n
s
c
a
p

e
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 

L
L
H

A
 

0
2
9

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

M
ile

 O
a
k
 

R
o
a
d
, 

4
7

9
-

4
8
1

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

W
e
 t
h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

lif
e
 i
n

 M
ile

 
O

a
k
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 v
e
ry

 f
e
w

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 1

9
0

0
 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

, 
it
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

o
o

d
 t
o

 
a
d
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

o
 t
h

e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 l
is

t 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
4
7

9
-4

8
1
 n

o
te

d
 

L
L
H

A
0
3
0

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

O
ld

 
S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 
R

o
a
d
, 

1
2

6
, 

S
e
lla

b
y
 

H
o
u
s
e
; 

Q
u
e
e
n

’s
 

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
, 

D
u
k
e
 o

f 
B

e
a

u
fo

rt
 P

u
b

 

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

T
h
a
n
k
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 g

o
o
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  
J
u
s
t 

s
o
m

e
 m

in
o
r 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

d
ra

ft
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t:
 - 

S
e
lla

b
y
 H

o
u
s
e

, 
1
2

6
 O

ld
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 

is
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t,
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

a
m

e
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 a

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
/r

e
ta

in
e
d

 
o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
- 

D
u
k
e
 o

f 
B

e
a
u
fo

rt
, 
Q

u
e

e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
. 
 

R
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
p
a

in
te

d
 i
n
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 g

o
ld

 a
n
d
 

re
n
a
m

e
d
 ‘
T

h
e
 I
s
lin

g
w

o
rd

 I
n

n
’.
  
O

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 

c
o
lo

u
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
, 
n
o
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 t
o

 
e
x
te

ri
o
r 

la
y
o
u
t 

o
r 

in
te

ri
o
r 

th
o
u
g
h

. 
 

P
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
. 

A
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

/c
o
rr

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

. 

L
L
H

A
0
3
1

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

L
e
tt
e
rb

o
x
e
s
 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

N
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

I 
h
a

v
e
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 3

n
o
 V

R
 b

o
x
e
s
 a

re
 s

it
u
a

te
d
 a

t:
 

(i
) 

th
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 A

v
e
 a

n
d
 W

a
ld

e
g
ra

v
e
 

R
o
a
d
. 

(i
i)
  
in

 t
h

e
 w

a
ll 

o
p

p
o
s
it
e
 6

7
 P

re
s
to

n
 D

ro
v
e
 a

n
d
  

(i
ii)

 4
6
 F

lo
re

n
c
e
 R

o
a

d
. 

 A
n
o

n
ym

o
u
s
 b

o
x
e
s
 a

re
 s

it
u

a
te

d
 (

 I
 t
h

in
k
):

 

V
R

 b
o
x
e
s
: 

 i)
 

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t,
 b

u
t 
a
m

e
n
d
e

d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

 i
t 
is

 a
 V

R
 b

o
x
 

ii)
 

A
lr
e

a
d

y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
iii

) 
A

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
 

95



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

(i
) 

in
 a

 w
a

ll 
p
ie

r 
S

p
ri

n
g
fi
e

ld
 R

o
a
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 

a
n
d
 a

 l
it
tl
e
 d

is
ta

n
c
e

 n
o
rt

h
 o

f 
B

e
a
c
o

n
s
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a

d
 

(i
i)
n
e

a
r 

c
o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 A

v
e
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

d
o

w
n
 

R
o
a
d
. 

 E
R

 V
II
 b

o
x
e
s
 a

re
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 a

t:
 

(i
) 

in
 w

a
ll 

a
t 

8
4
/8

6
 B

e
a
c
o
n
s
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d

 
(i
i)
 o

u
ts

id
e

 1
4

8
 P

re
s
to

n
 D

ro
v
e
 (

n
r 

F
iv

e
w

a
y
s
).

 

A
N

O
N

 b
o
x
e
s
: 

 i)
 

A
d
d

e
d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
ii)

 
A

d
d

e
d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
 

 E
R

 V
II

 
 i)
 

A
d
d

e
d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
ii)

 
D

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
 

L
L
H

A
0
3
2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

T
id

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
re

m
o
v
a
l 

I 
h
a

v
e
 s

p
o
k
e
n
 t
o
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e

t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
w

h
o
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
fu

s
e
d
 a

b
o

u
t 

y
o
u
r 

le
tt
e
r.

  
D

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 

a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 u

n
c
o
n

n
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n

 a
lp

h
a

b
e
ti
c
a
l 
o
rd

e
r.

  
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
a

n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o
rm

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 w
e
re

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 a
s
 I
 h

a
d
 h

o
p

e
d
 t

o
 d

o
. 
 A

s
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 

c
h
a
ir
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
 I
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
-d

e
p
th

 k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

 o
f 

b
o
th

 t
h
e

 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
. 
 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
t 

s
e
e
m

s
 s

tr
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

iv
is

iv
e

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
o

n
 o

n
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

w
it
h

o
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
 M

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 a
re

 
v
e
ry

 s
im

ila
r,

 p
e
rh

a
p
s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

in
 e

a
c
h
 o

n
e

, 
b
u

t 
a
s
 i
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 m

a
d
e
 

c
le

a
r 

w
h

a
t 

y
o
u
r 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
it
 i
s
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
a
t 
th

is
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
. 

 F
o
r 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

, 
F

o
u

n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t 

w
a
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

 a
s
 

a
n
o
th

e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l,
 a

lt
h

o
u
g

h
 w

h
ils

t 
n
o
t 

a
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
o
f 

g
re

a
t 

b
e
a

u
ty

 i
t 

d
o

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
h

e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

o
f 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
lig

h
t 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n

d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 T
id

y
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

m
e
a
n
w

h
ile

 i
s
 r

e
m

o
rs

e
le

s
s
ly

 b
e
in

g
 g

ro
u
n
d

 
d
o

w
n
 b

y
 e

x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

a
ily

 p
a
s
s
in

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
m

o
to

rb
ik

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
o
rr

ie
s
 s

o
 i
t 

is
 

C
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 l
e

tt
e
r 

s
e
n
t,

 a
s
 b

e
lo

w
: 

 T
id

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 a
re

 a
ll 

w
it
h

in
 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

re
a
-

b
a
s
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o

n
. 
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 A
re

a
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

th
a
t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h

e
 ‘
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 

in
te

re
s
t’
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

. 
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 
is

 i
n
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h

is
 

in
te

re
s
t/

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e

 a
re

a
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 
c
le

a
rl

y
 w

o
rt

h
y
 o

f 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
  

 T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L

is
t 
o
f 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 A

s
s
e
ts

 i
s
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u

a
l 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  

W
h
e
re

a
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

s
 a

re
 a

n
 a

re
a
-b

a
s
e
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

th
e

 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 
 In

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 a
re

a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
n
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L
is

t 
o
f 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 A

s
s
e
ts

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 m

o
re

 p
o
w

e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
h
is

to
ri
c
 a

n
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

s
tr

e
e
t/
a
re

a
. 

 F
o
r 

th
e
 a

b
o

v
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 

b
e
 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 ‘
to

o
l’ 

th
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 

w
h

o
le

 s
tr

e
e
ts

, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 T

id
y
 

S
tr

e
e
t.

  
A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 s
ys

te
m

a
ti
c
 

96



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

n
o
t 
s
u
rp

ri
s
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 d

o
o
rs

 a
re

 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e

d
. 

 I 
b
e

lie
v
e

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

l 
to

 r
e
ta

in
 

o
n
ly

 K
e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 R

o
b
e
rt

 S
tr

e
e

t 
o
n

 t
h

e
 

lis
t,
 o

w
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 p

u
re

 a
n

d
 m

o
s
tl
y
 u

n
d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
o
s
e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

, 
b

u
t 
n
o

th
in

g
 s

e
e
m

e
d
 t
o
 

h
a
p
p

e
n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

is
 a

n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 I
 r

e
a
lly

 t
h

in
k
 t
h
a
t 

if
 a

 l
e
tt

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

k
in

d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

is
 s

e
n
t 

o
u
t 
th

e
n

 i
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e

 e
x
p
la

in
e
d

 w
h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a

ls
 a

re
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

, 
s
o

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n
 a

ll 
s
e
e
 

c
le

a
rl

y
 w

h
a
t 
th

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

. 
 

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
ly

, 
if
 i
t 
is

n
’t
 g

o
in

g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 m

u
c
h
 

d
if
fe

re
n
c
e
, 
w

h
a
t 

is
 t
h

e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

th
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
?

  
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
rl

y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
, 
c
o
m

p
a
c
t 
a
n

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
a
re

a
. 
 U

n
le

s
s
 w

e
 c

a
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

ll 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 f
o
r 

y
o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

t,
 I
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
o
n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

T
id

y
 S

tr
e

e
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e
a
c
h

 s
tr

e
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 I
t 

is
 n

o
t 

in
te

n
d
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
y
 f

u
ll 

‘s
tr

e
e
ts

’ 
o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 
a
s
 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 

 In
 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 A

re
a
, 

it
 h

a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
e

e
n

 
p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 t
h
o
s
e

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ty
p

ic
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

 - 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
M

e
w

s
 (

th
e

 o
ld

 d
ri
ll 

h
a
ll)

, 
G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d

 
- 

G
a
le

e
d
 S

tr
ic

t 
B

a
p
ti
s
t 
C

h
a

p
e
l,
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d

 
- 

H
e
a
rt

 i
n
 H

a
n
d
 p

u
b

lic
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a

d
 

- 
B

ri
g
h

th
e

lm
 C

e
n
tr

e
 R

e
s
t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

 F
o
u
n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d

 T
id

y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

w
e
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

o
ld

 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
(l

a
s
t 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 1
9

9
0
s
).

  
It
 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h

y
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t;
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

s
e
e
m

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 v

e
ry

 s
y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
re

v
ie

w
 i
t 
s
e
e
m

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t

h
e
m

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 s

tr
e
a
m

lin
e
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
m

o
re

 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
  

 In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
Q

u
e

e
n

’s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 a

 
m

e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t.
  

T
h
is

 s
tr

e
e
t 
h
a
s
 s

im
ila

rl
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 l
is

t,
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
re

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

, 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
ts

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
re

c
o
g
n

it
io

n
 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 
 

97



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
 

0
3
3

 
G

ro
u
p
 –

 
B

ri
g

h
to

n
 

S
o
c
ie

ty
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g

 
T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

N
o
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

I 
ju

s
t 
w

a
n
t 

to
 p

a
s
s
 o

n
 m

y 
th

a
n
k
s
 f
o
r 

p
re

p
a
ri
n

g
 

s
u
c
h
 w

e
ll 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
. 
 I
 h

a
v
e
 s

p
e

n
t 
m

a
n

y
 h

o
u
rs

 t
ra

w
lin

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 s

h
e

e
ts

 –
 a

n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

ie
c
e

 o
f 

w
o
rk

. 
 I 
h
a

v
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 
ty

p
e
s
 1

, 
2
, 
3

, 
a
n
d
 4

 t
h

a
t 
a
re

 s
ti
ll 

in
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 

M
o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 a

n
d
 B

e
a
c
o

n
s
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
s
 c

o
n

ta
in

 t
h

e
s
e
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
. 
 T

h
e

y
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

th
e
m

a
ti
c
 s

u
rv

e
y
 f

o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 
lig

h
ti
n
g
. 

 

N
o
te

d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
re

c
ia

ti
o
n
. 

     A
ll 

o
f 

th
e
 t

y
p

e
 1

 a
n

d
 t

y
p
e

 4
 l
a
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n

 a
d

d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t.
 N

o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e
 t

y
p

e
 2

 a
n
d

 
ty

p
e
 3

 l
a
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 m
a
tc

h
 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 

L
L
H

A
0
3
4

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 -
 

5
 o

w
n

e
r 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 

P
a
lm

e
ir
a
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
, 
1

4
-

2
2
 e

v
e

n
 a

n
d
 

1
3
-2

1
 o

d
d

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

W
e
 b

e
lie

v
e
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e

 s
h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 l
is

te
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
: 

(1
) 

th
e
 b

ro
w

n
 p

la
q
u

e
 

m
a
rk

in
g
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
S

ir
 J

a
c
k
 H

o
b
b
s
 

(f
a
m

o
u
s
 c

ri
c
k
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 w

e
ll 

k
n
o
w

n
 H

o
v
e
 

la
n

d
m

a
rk

).
  
M

a
d
e
 f

a
m

o
u
s
 a

g
a
in

 m
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

y
 

th
e
 f

ilm
 S

lu
m

 D
o
g
 M

ill
io

n
a

ir
e
; 
(2

) 
it
 i
s
 t
h

e
 k

n
o
w

n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 s

it
e
 o

f 
a
 b

ro
n

z
e
 a

g
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
s
it
e
 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 f

a
m

o
u
s
 a

m
b
e
r 

c
u
p
 w

a
s
 f

o
u
n

d
, 
n

o
w

 i
n
 

H
o
v
e
 m

u
s
e
u
m

 (
fu

rt
h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 

th
e
 A

m
b
e
r 

C
u
p
 f

ro
m

 
h
tt
p
:/
/p

o
rt

s
la

d
e

h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.
c
o
m

/ 
a
n
d
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.b
b
c
.c

o
.u

k
/a

h
is

to
ry

o
ft

h
e

w
o
rl

d
/o

b
je

c
ts

/G
p
v
p

A
z
j3

T
2

y
F

U
Y

IM
9
6

lc
e

w
) 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
n
o

te
d
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h

e
 

h
is

to
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 
 S

ir
 J

a
c
k
 H

o
b
b
s
 l
iv

e
d

 i
n

 H
o

v
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
4

6
 a

n
d
 1

9
6
3

. 
 I

n
 t
h

is
 t
im

e
, 
h
e
 l
iv

e
d

 a
t 
fo

u
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h
 1

3
 P

a
lm

e
ir
a
 A

v
e
n

u
e
 w

a
s
 

h
is

 l
a
s
t.
  
It
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p

e
a
r 

th
a
t 

H
o
b

b
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
y
 

m
a
jo

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

in
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
, 
n

o
r 

th
a
t 

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
o
n
g
 t

im
e
 (

n
o
r 

a
t 
th

e
 h

e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

h
is

 c
a
re

e
r)

. 
 T

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

o
f 

H
o
b
b
s
’ 

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 p
la

q
u

e
. 

 T
h
e
 A

m
b
e
r 

C
u
p
 w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 H

o
v
e
 B

a
rr

o
w

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o

d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
7
-5

8
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 s
it
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
h
e

 b
a
c
k
 

g
a
rd

e
n
 t
o
 1

3
 P

a
lm

e
ir
a
 A

v
e

n
u
e
. 

 T
h
e
 A

m
b
e
r 

C
u
p
 i
s
 o

f 
g
re

a
t 
a
rc

h
a
e
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
, 
b
u

t 
h
a
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
b
u

ild
in

g
 a

t 
1
3
 P

a
lm

e
ir
a
 

A
v
e
n
u

e
. 

 
 F

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 f

o
r 

H
is

to
ri
c
 I
n
te

re
s
t.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
e
t,

 w
h

ic
h
 

98



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o

n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  
  

 

L
L
H

A
0
3
5

 
G

ro
u
p
 –

 
S

u
s
s
e
x
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 

T
ru

s
t 

P
a
rk

s
 &

 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

t 
/ 

C
o
m

m
e
n
t 

I 
a
m

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 o

n
 b

e
h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

T
ru

s
t 
to

 t
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

n
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e
 T

ru
s
t 

is
 p

le
a
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e

n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 f

o
r 

B
ri
g

h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e

. 
 T

h
e
 T

ru
s
t 

a
p
p
re

c
ia

te
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

o
s
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 p

a
rk

s
 o

r 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 l
is

t,
 h

a
v
e
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h
in

 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

in
v
a
ri

a
b

ly
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 f

o
r 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 
 I

n
 t
h

e
s
e
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

th
e
 T

ru
s
t 
a
c
c
e
p
ts

 t
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 l
is

t,
 a

n
d
 l
o
o
k
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 
to

 i
ts

 a
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 S
u
p
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
in

 d
u
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

 

A
c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e

 o
f 

d
ra

ft
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
n
o
te

d
. 

 

L
L
H

A
0
3
6

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

M
e
a
d

o
w

 
C

lo
s
e
, 

1
-8

 
C

o
u
rt

 O
rd

 
C

o
tt
a

g
e
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

a
s
 m

o
s
t 
in

te
re

s
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 y

o
u
r 

le
tt

e
r 

o
f 

2
9
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
5
. 

 I
 h

a
v
e
 l
iv

e
d
 i
n
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 

s
in

c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
 a

n
d
 f

e
e
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
s
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

 f
in

e
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

ru
ra

l 
te

rr
a
c
e
d
 

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 (

s
e
e
 T

h
e
 E

n
g

lis
h
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 H

o
u
s
e
 b

y
 

S
te

fa
n
 M

u
th

e
s
iu

s
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e

y
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 l
is

te
d
. 

 
T

h
e

y 
a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

f 
h

is
to

ri
c
 (

lo
c
a
l)
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 I
 

b
e
lie

v
e
 B

o
b
 C

o
p
p
e
r 

w
a
s
 b

o
rn

 a
t 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u
rt

 O
rd

 C
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 n

o
te

d
. 

 It
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e
n

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
B

o
b
 C

o
p
p

e
r 

w
a
s
 b

o
rn

 a
t 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
; 
a
 b

lu
e
 p

la
q

u
e
 o

n
 1

 C
h

a
llo

n
e
r 

C
o
tt
a

g
e
s
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

a
m

ily
 d

w
e

lt
 h

e
re

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

1
8
9
8

 a
n

d
 1

9
6
9
. 

 

L
L
H

A
0
3
7

 
G

ro
u
p
 –

 
B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

a
n
d
 A

d
e

la
id

e
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
G

ro
u
p

 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
 H

o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
 C

o
m

m
e
n
t 

T
h
a
n
k
 y

o
u
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

ra
ft

 l
is

t 
a
n
d

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

y
o

u
r 

h
a
rd

 w
o
rk

. 
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 a

n
d
 A

d
e
la

id
e
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

’ 
G

ro
u
p
 a

re
 p

le
a
s
e
d
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
s
t 
o
f 

o
u
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 

o
n
e
 q

u
e
ry

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 H

o
v
e

 L
a

w
n
s
 –

 w
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 

th
a
t 
T

h
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 l
is

ti
n
g
 s

h
o
u

ld
 s

ta
rt

 a
t 
th

e
 P

e
a
c
e
 

S
ta

tu
e
, 

b
u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
le

a
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 l
is

t.
  

P
e
rh

a
p
s
 

y
o

u
 c

o
u
ld

 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 L

a
w

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 P

e
a
c
e
 

S
ta

tu
e
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 

  

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 n
o
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
H

o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

to
 c

la
ri
fy

 e
x
a
c
tl
y
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
rt

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 (

to
 s

ta
rt

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 P

e
a
c
e
 S

ta
tu

e
, 
K

in
g
’s

 R
o
a
d
 t

o
 C

o
u
rt

e
n

a
y
 G

a
te

, 
C

o
u
rt

e
n

a
y
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
).

 

99



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
L
H

A
0
3
8

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
(o

w
n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r)
 

T
e
m

p
le

 
S

tr
e
e
t,

 7
 

O
b
je

c
t 
to

 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 q

u
a

lif
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 c

a
te

g
o
ri

e
s
: 
A

(i
) 

(i
i)
 

(v
),

 C
 (

i)
 (

iv
) 

a
n
d
 F

 (
i)
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 a

n
 u

n
s
p

o
ilt

 
1
8
3
0
s
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o

w
e
d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 i
n
 a

 v
a
ri
e

g
a
te

d
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
o
f 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

g
e
. 

 I
ts

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
r 

a
re

 
u
n
a

lt
e
re

d
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

 k
it
c
h
e
n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
, 
it
 i
s
 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

 o
f 

b
u
n
g

a
ro

o
s
h
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

w
in

d
o

w
 f

ra
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 g

la
s
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
ti
ll 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
ls

. 

T
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

a
re

 a
lr

e
a
d

y
 a

c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

is
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
; 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u

te
s
 g

re
a
tl
y
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 b

u
t 
is

 
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a
. 
 I

t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 f
o
rm

s
 a

 
c
le

a
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
th

a
n

 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 

 
A

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 l
is

te
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 

th
e

y
 a

re
 o

f 
d
if
fe

ri
n
g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

h
ic

h
 l
im

it
s
 t
h
e

ir
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
. 
  

 R
e
m

o
v
a
l 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
d

e
v
a
lu

e
 t
h

e
 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 

th
is

 b
u

ild
in

g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

. 
 

L
L
H

A
0
3
9

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 
R

o
a
d
, 

T
e
m

p
le

 
H

e
ig

h
ts

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
h
a

v
e
 l
iv

e
d
 i
n
 T

e
m

p
le

 H
e

ig
h
ts

 s
in

c
e
 i
ts

 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 i
n
to

 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 t
h

o
ro

u
g

h
ly

 
e
n
d
o
rs

e
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

lis
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 e

d
it
in

g
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 r

e
p
e
ti
ti
v
e

. 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 n
o
te

d
. 

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
e
d
it
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 t

y
p

in
g
 e

rr
o
r 

L
L
H

A
0
4
0

 
A

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

T
h
e
 C

lif
f,

 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e

 
O

b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

U
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
a
u

th
o
ri

ty
’s

 A
p
p
ro

v
e

d
 S

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 

C
ri
te

ri
a
 (

A
S

C
),

 w
e

 a
im

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

e
n
o
u

g
h
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
L
is

t 
o
f 

H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 A

s
s
e
ts

. 
  

 T
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
re

, 
M

e
d

ia
 a

n
d
 S

p
o
rt

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
1
 t

h
a
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 

e
n
la

rg
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
in

d
o

w
s
, 
re

fe
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n

, 
fi
lli

n
g
-i
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 l
o
g
g

ia
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
a
 s

u
n
 l
o

u
n
g

e
 m

e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

lis
ti
n
g
. 

 
A

lt
h
o
u

g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 

L
a
d

y
 S

a
c
k
v
ill

e
 w

a
s
 c

lo
s
e
, 
th

e
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 

w
e
re

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 m

in
o
r 

a
n
d

 l
a

te
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

o
u
tw

e
ig

h
 t
h

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 c

o
n

n
e

c
ti
o
n
. 

  
 T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

a
t 
s
in

c
e

 

L
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g

 i
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
to

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 l
is

ti
n
g
; 

it
 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e

, 
a
n

d
 h

a
s
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e

le
c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
. 
 I

ts
 r

e
je

c
ti
o
n

 f
o
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 l
is

ti
n

g
 i
n
 2

0
0
1

 
th

e
re

fo
re

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

 t
h
a
t 

it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
b
je

c
ti
o

n
s
 L

L
H

A
0

4
0
 a

n
d
 0

4
1
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 v

ie
w

e
d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 f

u
lly

 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 d

e
g
re

e
 o

f 
s
u
rv

iv
a

l 
o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 
a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e

ir
 i
n
te

re
s
t.

 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
v
e
a

le
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
it
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

M
rs

 F
a
n
n

y
 M

a
rt

in
e
a
u

 –
 f

o
r 

100



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

L
u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
, 
th

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 2

0
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 c

o
n

v
e
rs

io
n
s
, 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 
re

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

in
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

in
g

 t
h
e

 
v
a

lid
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
. 
 S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
w

o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 1

9
4
7
/8

 (
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s
 t

o
 

fl
a
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
fi
lli

n
g
 o

f 
lo

g
g

ia
),

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 

w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 1

9
5
5
, 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e

 l
a

te
 1

9
6
0
s
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 i
n
 1

9
7
1
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 8

0
s
 a

n
d
 9

0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 n

a
rr

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 

L
a
d

y
 S

a
c
k
v
ill

e
 a

n
d
 E

d
w

in
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 i
s
 o

f 
o
b

v
io

u
s
 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
s
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

m
a
n
if
e
s
ta

ti
o
n
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d

g
e
 i
s
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
a

b
le

. 
 C

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 d
ra

w
in

g
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 1

9
0
4
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 1

9
2
3
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
. 

 I
t 

is
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 a
n

y
 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
re

m
a
in

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
b
u

ild
in

g
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
p
p
e

a
r 

to
 b

e
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
in

g
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 

a
b
o
u

t 
w

h
a
t 
it
 a

tt
ri

b
u

te
d
 t

o
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
h
e

e
t 
s
ta

te
s
 “

N
e

w
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
ts

 
d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 o

u
tl
in

e
 s

h
a

p
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

g
a
b

le
s
 

a
n
d
 t

a
ll,

 a
n
g
u

la
r 

c
h

im
n
e

ys
.”

  
T

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

 
d
ra

w
in

g
s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 

d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 E
a
c
h
 c

ri
te

ri
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
u
rn

; 
it
 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
n

o
n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 

 In
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

: 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

is
p
u
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
e
lli

n
g
 

h
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
n

a
rr

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
, 
b
u

t 
th

e
s
e
 n

a
rr

a
ti
v
e
s
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 a

s
 i
t 
s
ta

n
d
s
 

to
d
a

y
. 
 T

h
is

 r
ic

h
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
n

y 
c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e

, 
w

h
e

th
e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

w
h
o
m

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 –
 w

a
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 J

a
m

e
s
 

M
a
rt

in
e
a

u
 (

p
h

ilo
s
o
p
h

e
r,

 f
a
th

e
r)

, 
H

a
rr

ie
t 
M

a
rt

in
e
a
u
 

(n
o
v
e

lis
t,
 s

is
te

r)
 a

n
d
 P

e
n
e

lo
p
e
, 

D
o
ro

th
y
 a

n
d

 M
ill

ic
e
n

t 
L
a

w
re

n
c
e

 (
fo

u
n
d
e
rs

 o
f 

n
e

ig
h
b
o
u
ri

n
g

 R
o
e

d
e
a

n
 S

c
h
o
o

l,
 

M
a
rt

in
e
a

u
’s

 n
ie

c
e
s
).

  
T

h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e

 w
a

s
 

c
h
o
s
e
n
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

to
 b

e
 n

e
a
r 

to
 h

e
r 

n
ie

c
e
s
 a

t 
R

o
e
d

e
a
n
 S

c
h
o

o
l 
(g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
a
s
 W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e
) 

a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 

th
e
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

 s
o
m

e
 R

o
e
d

e
a
n
 g

ir
ls

 b
o
a
rd

e
d
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
 

L
o
d
g

e
. 
  

 It
 i
s
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 m
u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
o
n
 f

o
r 

In
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
fo

rm
 o

f 
S

im
p
s
o
n
’s

 b
u
ild

in
g
 

n
e
v
e
rt

h
e

le
s
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

h
im

n
e

y
s
, 
c
a
n

te
d
 

b
a

y
s
 a

n
d
 v

e
ra

n
d

a
h
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

w
o
 w

in
g
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 

T
h
e
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 d

o
u
b
le

d
 t

h
e
 f

o
o
tp

ri
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
u
c
h
 l
e
s
s
 g

ra
n
d
 t

h
a
n

 
o
ri
g
in

a
lly

 p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 m

o
d
e
s
t 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 

L
u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 a
t 
a
 n

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
le

v
e
l.
  
A

t 
a
 l
o
c
a

l 
le

v
e
l,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 g
a
rd

e
n

 a
re

 g
o
o

d
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t,
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

fe
w

 s
u
rv

iv
e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 
 T

h
e

 w
o
rk

s
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
e
 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
b

u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 s

m
a
ll 

c
o
u
n
tr

y
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ro

o
f-

fo
rm

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
 (

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

im
p
s
o
n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

w
o
 

lo
w

e
r 

fl
a

n
k
in

g
 w

in
g
s
 –

 a
s
 v

ie
w

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

),
 a

s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
, 

e
n
tr

a
n

c
e
 h

a
ll 

a
n
d
 l
o
b

b
y
, 

te
rr

a
c
e
 

a
n
d
 w

e
ll-

p
re

s
e
rv

e
d
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 
 I
t 

is
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e

d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 w

in
d
o

w
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

n
d

 s
o
m

e
 

re
s
iz

e
d
; 
th

e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
n
la

rg
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
. 
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n

 
b

y
 e

x
p
e
rt

s
, 

w
ri
tt

e
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 (
a
lt
h

o
u
g

h
 n

o
t 
d
ra

w
in

g
s
) 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

s
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
w

o
rk

. 
 I
t 
is

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

In
te

re
s
t 
a

n
d
 R

a
ri
ty

. 
 

101



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

b
u
ild

in
g
 o

r 
th

ro
u
g
h

 h
is

to
ri
c
a
l 
re

c
o
rd

s
. 
 I

t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 A

S
C

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
h
a
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e
d
 b

e
y
o

n
d
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
a
b
le

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

fo
rm

, 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
h

is
to

ri
c
a

l 
fo

rm
, 
a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e

 
p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 t
h
e

 l
is

t 
b
e
c
a

u
s
e
 o

f 
a
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 

n
a
rr

a
ti
v
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
s
s
e
t 
it
s
e
lf
. 
 A

s
 

it
 s

ta
n

d
s
, 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e
 e

n
o
u

g
h
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

fo
r 

p
la

c
in

g
 t
h

is
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
 

 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 s
ti
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 

g
a
rd

e
n
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f

o
r 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
In

te
re

s
t,
 

H
is

to
ri
c
 I
n

te
re

s
t 
a

n
d
 R

a
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

y
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 o
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a

l 
lis

t 
o
f 

h
e
ri
ta

g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d

 t
h
e

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

h
is

to
ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
la

ri
fy

 
h
o

w
 i
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 w
h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
h

o
s
e
 p

a
rt

s
 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.

 
 

L
L
H

A
0
4
1

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
–
 

o
w

n
e
r/

 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

r 

T
h
e
 C

lif
f,

 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e

 
O

b
je

c
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
a
m

 w
ri
ti
n
g
 t

o
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 m

y 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

 a
n

d
 o

p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
lis

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 m

y 
fl
a
t 

is
 

w
it
h

in
. 

 I
t 

is
 m

y
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

h
a
s
 o

n
c
e
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
1
, 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 r

e
je

c
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
‘s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
’.
  

S
in

c
e

 t
h
e

n
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d
e
 

to
 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

y
 i
ts

 v
a
ri
o

u
s
 o

w
n
e
rs

. 
 I
n

 f
a
c
t 
a
 

la
rg

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
m

y 
fl
a
t 
(k

it
c
h
e

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

h
a
llw

a
y
) 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
7
1
 a

s
 w

a
s
 t
h

e
 c

a
s
e
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e

 n
e
x
t 

d
o
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 F

re
e

h
o

ld
s
 t
h

e
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
b
o

v
e
. 

 M
a

y
 I

 p
o
in

t 
o
u

t:
 (

1
) 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 i
t 
s
ta

n
d
s
 n

o
w

 
lo

o
k
s
 n

o
th

in
g
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
S

im
p
s
o
n
’s

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

d
e
s
ig

n
; 
(2

) 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 
n
o
th

in
g

 l
e
ft

 o
f 

th
e

 
o
ri
g
in

a
l 
a

lt
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
; 
(3

) 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 

p
a
s
t 
5
0

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h
e
re

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

id
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
; 

(4
) 

A
ll 

w
in

d
o

w
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 

re
p
la

c
e

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
s
iz

e
d

; 
(5

) 
W

h
it
e
 

L
o
d
g

e
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 n

o
r 

is
 i
t 
in

 a
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

, 
it
 i
s
 m

e
re

ly
 a

 m
is

m
a
tc

h
e
d
 

b
lo

c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 

in
 R

o
e
d

e
a
n
. 

  
 In

 c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 I
 s

tr
o
n

g
ly

 o
p
p

o
s
e
 t
h
e

 l
is

ti
n

g
 o

f 
W

h
it
e
 

L
o
d
g

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 g

ro
u
n
d

s
 i
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
th

in
g
 l
e
ft

 t
o
 

o
ff

e
r 

in
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
e
v
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 c

u
lt
u
re

 o
f 

S
e
e
 a

b
o

v
e

 

102



��
��
��
��
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�	�
��
�
�
��
�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	�
	��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
. 
 I
t 
is

 n
e
it
h
e
r 

ra
re

 n
o
r 

in
ta

c
t.

  
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 i
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 A

S
C

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

lis
ti
n
g

 a
n

d
 i
t 

d
id

n
’t
 m

e
e
t 
th

is
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 2
0
0
1
. 

 
 

L
L
H

A
0
4
2

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
 o

f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o

n
. 
 I

t 
is

 a
 l
o

v
e
ly

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

in
 a

 p
e
a
c
e
fu

l 
s
e
tt
in

g
. 
 I
 a

m
 v

e
ry

 g
la

d
 t
h
e

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o

n
 a

re
a

 w
a
s
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
 s

o
u

th
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 
 I

t 
is

 a
 p

it
y
 t

h
e

 I
ta

lia
n
a
te

 s
ta

ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
e
 

o
n
 t
h

e
 o

th
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
ra

c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 t
ic

k
e
t 
o
ff

ic
e
 

w
a
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 a

b
o
u
t 

1
9

9
1
. 
 

H
o

w
 t
h

e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
s
 g

o
t 
p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

a
c
t 
o
f 

v
a

n
d
a

lis
m

 i
s
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 m

e
. 
 I
 h

o
p
e
 t

h
a
t 

if
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
e
r 

a
n

y
 p

la
n
 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
a
ff

o
ld

 y
a

rd
 

b
e
h

in
d
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t-

b
o

u
n
d

 p
la

tf
o
rm

 i
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 

to
 r

e
-i
n
s
ta

ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 I
t 
s
h
o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 r

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
t 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
o
ts

 
o
f 

p
h
o
to

s
, 

a
n
d
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e

 [
S

ta
ti
o
n
] 

w
a
s
 b

y
 t
h

e
 

s
a
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t.

 
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

L
L
H

A
0
4
3

 
In

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 
P

la
c
e

, 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 
S

ta
ti
o
n

 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

I 
w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

ti
n
g
 o

f 
L
o
n
d

o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o

n
 i
n
 S

h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e

 
S

u
p

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
L
o

n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

 S
ta

ti
o
n
 n

o
te

d
. 

�

103



104



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

A
 

i

A
 

ii

A
 

ii
i

A
 

iv

A
 

v

B
 

i

B
 

ii

B
 

ii
i

B
 

iv

B
 

v

C
 

i

C
 

ii

C
 

ii
i

C
 

iv

D
 

i

D
 

ii

E
 i

E
 

ii

F
 i

F
 

ii

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
1

A
b
in

g
e
r 

R
o
a
d

8
7

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
-s

to
re

y
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 v

ill
a
, 

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

id
-1

9
th

 C
e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
 o

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 f
ro

n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
r 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
s
. 

 I
ts

 a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 

–
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 -

 r
e
s
p
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 

o
f 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

C
ro

w
n
 W

o
rk

s
, 

C
ro

w
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 

p
o
rt

ic
o
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 b

a
lls

 a
n
d
 f

in
ia

ls
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
rt

ic
o
. 

 A
ll 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 u

P
V

C
. 

 T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 A

b
in

g
e
r 

V
ill

a
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 F

re
d
e
ri

c
k
 P

e
te

rs
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
2

A
d
e
la

id
e
 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 

S
q
u
a
re

A
d
e
la

id
e
 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

d
e
la

id
e
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t 

b
e
g
a
n
 i
n
 1

8
3
0
-3

4
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
D

e
c
im

u
s
 B

u
rt

o
n
 f

o
r 

Is
a
a
c
 L

y
o
n
 G

o
ld

s
m

id
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 p
e
ri

o
d
 o

f 

in
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 

G
o
ld

s
m

id
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 t

o
 a

n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 p

la
n
, 

w
it
h
 P

a
lm

e
ir

a
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
5
0
-6

0
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 f

o
rm

 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
p
ie

c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

te
, 

a
n
d
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 p
ri

v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 

is
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 

o
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 p

la
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 s

e
rp

e
n
ti
n
e
 p

a
th

s
 t

o
 A

d
e
la

id
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
P

a
lm

e
ir

a
 

S
q
u
a
re

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 m

o
re

 f
o
rm

a
l,
 w

it
h
 a

 f
o
u
n
ta

in
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
ta

in
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 W

o
rl

d
 W

a
r 

II
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 p

u
b
lic

 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
3

A
lb

io
n
 H

ill
6
2

M
o
n
tr

e
a
l 

A
rm

s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

ti
le

d
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t.

  
T

ile
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 d

e
e
p
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 C
o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 

tw
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 (

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 H

o
rs

e
 &

 G
ro

o
m

, 
Is

lin
g
w

o
rd

 

R
o
a
d
 o

r 
R

o
s
e
 H

ill
 T

a
v
e
rn

, 
R

o
s
e
 H

ill
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
),

 w
h
ic

h
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
. 

 F
a
s
c
ia

 r
e
fe

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 ‘
U

n
it
e
d
’ 
B

re
w

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 &
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 B

re
w

e
ri

e
s
 L

td
. 

 T
h
is

 b
re

w
e
ry

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 U
n
it
e
d
 b

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
's

 R
o
c
k
 

b
re

w
e
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

re
e
n
-t

ile
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
's

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 P
a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 P
u
b
 s

ig
n
 s

e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
in

 c
a
n
te

d
 c

o
rn

e
r.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
4

B
a
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

P
e
tr

o
l 
P

u
m

p
s
 

a
t 

1
9
A

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

P
e
tr

o
l 
P

u
m

p
s

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 C
A

A
 p

a
ir

 o
f 

e
a
rl

y
 1

9
5
0
s
 p

e
tr

o
l 
p
u
m

p
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
w

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
e
ir

 a
d
v
e
rt

 g
lo

b
e
s
. 

 S
it
u
a
te

d
 i
n
 a

 m
a
in

ly
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
tr

e
e
t,

 o
u
ts

id
e
 a

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

to
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
e
tr

o
l 
g
a
ra

g
e
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
5

B
e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e

3
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

N
u
m

b
e
r 

3
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

e
a
rl

y
-m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
re

e
 f

lo
o
rs

 p
lu

s
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
It

 h
a
s
 a

 c
u
rv

e
d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

g
ro

u
n
d
, 

fi
rs

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
rs

 (
th

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

is
 s

m
a
lle

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r)

, 
w

it
h
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 t

o
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
u
rv

e
d
, 

s
m

a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

a
s
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
0
 (

B
H

2
0
0
0
/0

3
1
8
1
/F

P
).

  
T

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 b

a
n
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
B

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

h
it
e
 t

ile
d
 s

te
p
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
rb

le
 n

o
s
in

g
s
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
o
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 

P
la

c
e
 (

g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
) 

is
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 n
e
xt

 d
o
o
r,

 a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 v

e
ry

 s
im

ila
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
6

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 R
o
a
d

2
9
, 

3
0

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 

n
o
w

 

o
ff

ic
e
, 

s
h
o
p
 

a
n
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g

N
o
 C

A
P

a
ir

e
d
 t

h
re

e
-s

to
re

y
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 v

ill
a
s
. 

 S
h
o
p
/o

ff
ic

e
 o

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 R

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
a
t 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
0
 r

e
ta

in
s
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

h
it
e
 t

ile
s
 t

o
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 D
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 w

it
h
 

c
a
n
o
p
ie

s
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
T

w
o
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 m

a
rg

in
 g

la
zi

n
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
0
; 

th
o
s
e
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
9
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 u

p
v
c
. 

 I
n
 1

8
9
6
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
lle

d
 K

e
n
m

a
re

 H
o
u
s
e
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
0
) 

a
n
d
 B

u
c
k
la

n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
9
);

 o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 M

rs
 l
e
 F

o
u
r 

a
n
d
 M

rs
 H

a
rc

o
u
rt

 M
ill

s
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
7

B
ra

y
b
o
n
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

F
o
u
n
ta

in
 

C
e
n
tr

e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
F

o
rm

e
rl

y
 t

h
e
 P

a
ri

s
h
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
C

h
ri

s
t 

th
e
 K

in
g
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 F

o
u
n
ta

in
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 E

lim
 P

e
n
te

c
o
s
ta

l 
C

o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

 1
9
5
2
-

8
 b

y
 L

. 
K

e
ir

 H
e
tt

 a
n
d
 b

u
ilt

 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 e

xp
a
n
d
in

g
 s

u
b
u
rb

s
. 

 B
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

q
u
a
t,

 m
o
n
o
lit

h
ic

 t
o
w

e
r 

to
 w

e
s
t 

e
n
d
 

(h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
),

 w
it
h
 t

h
re

e
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
lo

u
v
re

d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

e
lf
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 t

o
w

e
r 

is
 e

m
b
ra

c
e
d
 b

y
 

b
lin

d
 s

id
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 i
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

. 
 C

h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll 

in
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 (

n
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
) 

w
it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

; 
c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
 b

u
t 

o
f 

n
o
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

it
s
e
lf
. 

 D
e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 b

y
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

a
s
 a

 ‘
fu

s
io

n
 o

f 
R

o
m

a
n
e
s
q
u
e
, 

It
a
lia

n
 B

a
ro

q
u
e
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
lis

h
 A

rt
s
 &

 C
ra

ft
s
 

In
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
’.
  

It
 h

a
s
 s

im
ila

ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 K

e
ir

 H
e
tt

’s
 o

th
e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
, 

n
o
ta

b
ly

 S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 M

o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 (

K
ie

r 
H

e
tt

’s
 f

ir
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

s
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
) 

a
n
d
 H

o
u
n
s
o
m

 M
e
m

o
ri

a
l 
U

R
C

 C
h
u
rc

h
 (

a
lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
le

s
s
e
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
lit

y
).

  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
8

B
ri

s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s

T
h
e
 E

s
ta

te
 o

f 

th
e
 F

ir
s
t 

M
a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l:
 1

2
 

B
ri

s
to

l 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
; 

1
-

1
1
 (

o
d
d
) 

C
h
u
rc

h
 

P
la

c
e
; 

W
a
lls

 

to
 B

a
d
g
e
r'
s
 

T
e
n
n
is

 

C
o
u
rt

s
; 

W
a
lls

 

to
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
ri

s
to

l 

N
u
rs

e
ri

e
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
s
ta

te
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 

w
a
lls

W
it
h
in

 a
n
d
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 K

e
m

p
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
lls

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l’s
 e

s
ta

te
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
3
2
 a

n
d
 1

8
5
1
. 

 T
h
e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 r
e
s
id

e
d
 i
n
 1

9
-2

0
 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

S
q
u
a
re

 (
B

ri
s
to

l 
M

a
n
s
io

n
s
),

 b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 l
ik

e
ly

 o
w

n
e
d
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
3
, 

1
4
, 

1
5
, 

1
6
, 

1
8
, 

3
3
, 

3
4
 a

n
d
 3

5
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

S
q
u
a
re

. 
 H

e
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 l
a
n
d
 f

ro
m

 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 R

e
a
d
 K

e
m

p
 t

o
 a

d
d
 a

 d
a
ir

y
, 

fa
rm

, 
n
u
rs

e
ry

 g
a
rd

e
n
, 

p
le

a
s
u
re

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

s
ta

b
le

s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
s
ta

te
 w

o
rk

e
rs

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
 C

h
u
rc

h
 P

la
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 D

a
ir

y
m

a
n
’s

 h
o
u
s
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
m

o
u
ld

e
d
 d

o
o
rc

a
s
e
; 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 3
 a

n
d
 5

 f
o
rm

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 t

w
o
-s

to
re

y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 b

u
t 

a
re

 o
f 

le
s
s
e
r 

s
ta

tu
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 d

a
ir

y
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 n

o
rt

h
 (

n
o
w

 a
lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 

fo
rm

 a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
g
a
ra

g
e
).

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
2
 B

ri
s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
u
n
d
ry

. 
 O

f 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
rs

iz
e
d
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t,

 i
t 

is
 

o
f 

3
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

h
e
n
 v

ie
w

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 A

ll 
th

e
s
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

h
a
re

 s
im

ila
r 

fe
a
tu

re
s
, 

b
e
in

g
 b

u
ilt

 o
f 

p
lu

m
 b

ri
c
k
 i
n
 F

le
m

is
h
 b

o
n
d
 w

it
h
 

b
u
ff

 b
ri

c
k
 f

la
t-

g
a
u
g
e
d
 a

rc
h
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 s

ta
b
le

 b
lo

c
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
 P

la
c
e
 a

ls
o
 s

h
a
re

d
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
a
s
 

d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
5
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
lls

: 
T

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 l
a
n
d
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

b
y
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 R

e
a
d
 K

e
m

p
 i
n
 1

8
2
5
. 

 I
t 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 1

-2
 m

e
tr

e
 h

ig
h
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 q

u
o
in

s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 (

m
a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 g

re
e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
 a

b
o
v
e
).

  
T

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 p

h
a
s
e
 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 2

-3
 m

e
tr

e
 h

ig
h
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

, 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 u

ti
lis

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

lu
m

 b
ri

c
k
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 (

m
a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 b

la
c
k
).

  

T
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 D

u
k
e
’s

 e
s
ta

te
 i
n
 S

u
ff

o
lk

 (
S

h
o
tl
e
y
 B

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 C

e
m

e
n
t 

W
o
rk

s
) 

a
n
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

y
 s

e
a
. 

 I
t 

is
 m

o
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 l
a
te

r 
1
8

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 o

r 
a
re

a
s
 i
n
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

b
ri

c
k
 w

a
lls

 

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 t

a
ll 

w
a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 B

a
d
g
e
r’
s
 T

e
n
n
is

 C
o
u
rt

s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 e
n
c
lo

s
in

g
 p

le
a
s
u
re

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
, 

th
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

s
 a

 t
e
n
n
is

 g
ro

u
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
.1

9
3
0
s
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 e

xa
m

p
le

 o
f 

a
 l
a
w

n
 t

e
n
n
is

 c
lu

b
. 

 T
h
e
 w

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

1
5
, 

1
6
 a

n
d
 1

8
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

S
q
u
a
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 l
is

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 l
is

ti
n
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  

2
3
3
 E

a
s
te

rn
 

R
o
a
d
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 r
e
b
u
ilt

/m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

R
e
s
e
a
rc

h
 b

y
 B

ri
s
to

l 
N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 (
n
o
t 

lis
te

d
).

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
0
9

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
q
u
a
re

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 W

ic
k
 E

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

b
ri

c
k
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
, 

th
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
C

h
a
rl

e
s
 B

u
s
b
y
. 

 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 1

8
2
5
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 1

8
4
2
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 p

la
n
 s

h
o
w

s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
, 

w
it
h
 c

lu
m

p
e
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
. 

 A
 s

im
ila

r 
b
u
t 

s
im

p
lif

ie
d
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

p
la

n
ti
n
g
 s

ti
ll 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 r
e
ta

in
s
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 o

n
 a

 l
o
w

 s
to

n
e
 p

lin
th

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 f

o
u
n
ta

in
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 n
e
a
r 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
0

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

W
e
s
t

2
0

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
a
c
h
 H

o
u
s
e

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 f

lin
t 

c
o
b
b
le

, 
b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

c
o
a
c
h
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 S

q
u
a
re

. 
 L

o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

o
n
 a

 m
e
w

s
 s

tr
e
e
t.

  
M

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

f 
4
 b

a
y
s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
re

e
 b

a
y
s
 f

o
rm

 a
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

a
re

 u
n
u
s
u
a
lly

 l
a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
th

is
 t

y
p
e
. 

 T
h
e
 f

in
a
l 
b
a
y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 

a
b
o
v
e
.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

���������	���


����������

�
��
�
�����
�
�

�
�������
��

D
a
te

 o
f 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
A

s
s
e
t 

T
y
p

e
C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 

A
re

a
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

�����
��������

�
���������������

���
�
��

�����������

���
��������
�
��

��������
�

���
�
��

A
s
s
e
t 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
ID

S
tr

e
e
t

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a
m

e
L

o
c
a
li

ty

105



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
1

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

W
e
s
t

3
5

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
a
c
h
 H

o
u
s
e
 

a
n
d
 

s
ta

b
le

/c
o
tt

a
g
e

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 f

lin
t 

c
o
b
b
le

 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
in

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 E
a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 S

q
u
a
re

. 
 

L
a
rg

e
 t

im
b
e
r 

g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
r 

to
 l
e
ft

, 
w

it
h
 i
rr

e
g
u
la

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 o

v
e
r 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
o
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
e
 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

) 
m

a
y
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
o
rs

. 
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

d
o
o
r 

s
it
u
a
te

d
 t

o
 f

a
r 

ri
g
h
t 

w
it
h
in

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 

a
 l
a
te

r 
in

s
e
rt

io
n
.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
2

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

W
e
s
t

6
2

B
o
w

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
u
n
n
e
r

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

T
h
e
 p

u
b
 i
s
 f

ir
s
t 

m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
 1

8
6
7
, 

w
h
e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
 P

e
n
n
ic

o
tt

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 i
s
 d

is
p
u
te

d
 b

y
 A

n
th

o
n
y
 D

a
le

 w
h
o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 p

u
lle

d
 d

o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
5
0
s
 

to
 b

u
ild

 t
h
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll.

  
T

h
e
 p

u
b
 w

a
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

, 
b
e
fo

re
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 i
n
 1

9
2
6
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

a
m

e
 o

f 
‘T

h
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 I

n
n
’,
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
ts

 n
a
m

e
 t

o
 ‘
B

o
w

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
u
n
n
e
r’
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
. 

 T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
P

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 s

m
a
ll 

in
 s

c
a
le

. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
, 

c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
 d

o
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 a

 

w
in

d
o
w

 w
it
h
 h

ig
h
 s

ta
ll 

ri
s
e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 m

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

a
 s

in
g
le

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
 

o
ff

s
e
t 

s
m

a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-c

.h
tm

l,
 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/0

7
/b

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
-s

tr
e
e
t-

w
e
s
t.

h
tm

l.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
3

C
a
v
e
n
d
is

h
 

P
la

c
e

G
a
te

 P
ie

rs
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 8

 a
n
d
 

9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 -
 g

a
te

 

p
ie

rs

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

P
a
ir

 o
f 

h
is

to
ri

c
 g

a
te

 p
ie

rs
; 

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

in
 u

s
e
 o

r 
a
tt

a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 

 C
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
, 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
8
 a

n
d
 9

 C
a
v
e
n
d
is

h
 P

la
c
e
 i
n
 c

.1
8
2
9
 b

y
 A

.H
. 

W
ild

s
, 

o
r 

s
o
o
n
 a

ft
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

s
 t

w
o
 s

e
m

i-

d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 C

a
v
e
n
d
is

h
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 g
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
/o

r 
s
id

e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 

 U
n
u
s
u
a
lly

, 
th

e
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 g

a
te

s
/r

a
ili

n
g
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
n
 h

o
te

l 
in

 t
h
e
 

e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 g

a
te

s
/r

a
ili

n
g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

 C
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

q
u
a
re

 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
y
 

d
is

p
la

y
 a

 z
ig

-z
a
g
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 o
f 

fo
lia

te
 f

ili
g
re

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
, 

w
it
h
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

ie
ld

e
d
 s

q
u
a
re

 p
a
n
e
l 
a
b
o
v
e
. 

 S
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
s
 w

it
h
 s

in
u
o
u
s
 

s
u
n
b
u
rs

t 
s
ty

le
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 i
n
ta

c
t,

 t
h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
5
5
1
0
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
1
1
5
p
2
1
0
p
5
4
6
p
.a

s
p
x 

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
4

C
h
a
llo

n
e
rs

 

M
e
w

s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

L
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

fo
rm

in
g
 a

 y
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
3
9
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
e
y
 a

re
 l
o
n
g
 a

n
d
 l
o
w

 b
a
rn

-

lik
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
, 

w
it
h
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

g
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
, 

in
v
o
lv

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
w

lin
g
 c

lu
b
h
o
u
s
e
 b

a
rn

 a
n
d
 c

a
rt

 l
o
d
g
e
 a

re
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

m
e
w

s
, 

b
u
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
5

C
h
e
s
h
a
m

 R
o
a
d

3
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

E
a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 k

n
a
p
p
e
d
 f

lin
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 

T
h
re

e
 p

a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

e
a
c
h
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

g
a
b
le

 w
it
h
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 d

o
o
rs

 a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

ll 
h
a
v
e
 T

u
d
o
r 

g
o
th

ic
 a

rc
h
e
s
. 

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 q

u
a
lit

y
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
6
 a

s
 ‘
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 B
o
y
s
, 

G
ir

ls
 a

n
d
 I

n
fa

n
ts

’.
  

It
 

w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 S

t 
M

a
rk

’s
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
te

r 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 N

a
u
ti
c
a
l 
T

ra
in

in
g
 C

o
rp

s
. 

 N
o
w

 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
 

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
6

C
h
u
rc

h
 H

ill
1
-7

 V
ill

a
g
e
 

B
a
rn

 a
n
d
 T

h
e
 

B
a
rn

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 

(n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
)

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 C
A

T
h
e
 V

ill
a
g
e
 B

a
rn

 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 b

e
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 a

t 
th

e
 h

e
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 o

f 
P

a
tc

h
a
m

. 
 I

t 
o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 C
o
u
rt

 F
a
rm

, 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 

th
e
 M

a
rq

u
e
s
s
 o

f 
A

b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
’s

 e
s
ta

te
. 

 L
o
n
g
, 

lo
w

 f
o
rm

, 
w

it
h
 f

lin
t 

a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 a

 s
la

te
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 b

e
lie

v
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 l
o
n
g
e
s
t 

s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 b

a
rn

 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 i
n
 t

o
ta

l 
1
9
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 l
e
n
g
th

. 
 T

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
s
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 f

iv
e
 b

a
y
s
 (

n
o
w

 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 1

, 
2
, 

3
).

  
A

is
le

d
 f

o
rm

 w
it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 a

rc
a
d
e
 p

o
s
ts

, 
ti
e
b
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
s
s
in

g
 b

ra
c
e
s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 e

a
s
tw

a
rd

s
 b

y
 1

0
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 c

.1
5
5
0
. 

 T
h
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
fo

u
r 

b
a
y
s
 w

e
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
6
1
0
, 

n
o
w

 f
o
rm

in
g
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll.

  
T

h
e
 b

a
rn

 w
a
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 r
e
p
a
ir

e
d
 i
n
 1

6
2
1
-4

2
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

1
9
8
0
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
, 

a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
ro

o
fl
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

ro
o
f 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 e

ro
d
e
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 i
t 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
-l

is
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 1

9
9
0
s
 l
is

t 
re

v
ie

w
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/a
rc

h
a
e
o
lo

g
y
d
a
ta

s
e
rv

ic
e
.a

c
.u

k
/a

rc
h
iv

e
s
/v

ie
w

/v
a
g
_
d
e
n
d
ro

/f
u
ll_

re
c
o
rd

.c
fm

?
rn

=
1

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
7

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 H

o
lla

n
d
 

R
o
a
d

1
 a

n
d
 3

2
-3

8
 

e
v
e
n

G
w

y
d
y
r 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 G

w
y
d
y
r 

H
a
ir

 S
a
lo

n

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

1
8
9
0
 b

y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
 i
n
 F

le
m

is
h
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 s

ty
le

. 
 B

u
ilt

 i
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ti
n
g
 a

s
h
la

r 
to

 t
h
e
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
lo

c
k
 

(4
0
 H

o
lla

n
d
 R

o
a
d
) 

h
a
s
 u

n
if
o
rm

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g
, 

w
h
ils

t 
th

a
t 

to
 C

h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 T

u
s
c
a
n
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

(w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 a
 b

a
n
k
),

 c
o
rn

e
r 

o
ri

e
ls

, 
tu

rr
e
ts

, 
g
a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

s
. 

 A
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

b
a
rb

e
r’
s
 s

h
o
p
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 v

it
ro

lit
e
 f

it
ti
n
g
s
 f

ro
m

 1
9
3
6
. 

 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 b

a
rb

e
r’
s
 s

h
o
p
 a

n
d
 b

a
n
k
, 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 6
0
-s

e
a
te

r 
re

s
ta

u
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 E

a
c
h
 f

la
t 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 

ro
o
m

 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
rv

a
n
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
8

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

1
1
0

T
h
e
 A

lb
io

n
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 1

8
5
4
, 

w
h
e
n
 P

e
te

r 
A

k
e
h
u
rs

t 
w

a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
 w

a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

re
w

e
ry

 f
ro

m
 1

8
7
1
 

u
n
ti
l 
1
9
0
0
 w

h
e
n
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 t

o
o
k
 t

h
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 o

v
e
r.

  
T

h
e
y
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 1

9
1
2
 w

h
ic

h
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 g

re
e
n
 t

ile
d
 p

u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 c

u
rv

e
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
n
e
ls

, 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rs

. 
 E

tc
h
e
d
 g

la
s
s
 

a
d
v
e
rt

is
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
ra

g
e
 b

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
ir

 t
ra

d
e
m

a
rk

 c
o
c
k
e
re

l.
  

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l,
 w

it
h
 t

w
o
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
h
a
n
g
in

g
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
. 

 H
e
a
v
y
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
s
 t

o
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-c

.h
tm

l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
1
9

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

K
io

s
k

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 

K
io

s
k

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
 k

io
s
k
s
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 e

a
rl

ie
s
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

is
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 (

th
e
 K

1
, 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 w

it
h
 a

 

w
o
o
d
e
n
 d

o
o
r)

 w
a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 o

n
ly

 i
n
 1

9
2
1
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

w
e
ll-

re
c
e
iv

e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 l
e
d
 t

o
 a

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

9
2
4
 f

o
r 

a
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 

T
h
e
 w

in
n
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 b

y
 G

ile
s
 G

ilb
e
rt

 S
c
o
tt

 (
th

e
 K

2
),

 w
h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 a

 N
e
o
-c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 c

u
b
ic

le
 w

it
h
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

lly
 v

a
u
lt
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 a

 

p
e
rf

o
ra

te
d
 c

ro
w

n
 b

e
lo

w
 r

o
o
f 

le
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
5
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 K

6
, 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

te
 t

h
e
 s

ilv
e
r 

ju
b
ile

e
 o

f 
K

in
g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 V

. 
 

T
h
e
 k

io
s
k
 i
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
b
o
lt
e
d
 c

a
s
t-

ir
o
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 a

 c
o
n
c
re

te
 b

a
s
e
. 

 S
q
u
a
re

 i
n
 p

la
n
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

lly
 d

o
m

e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
re

e
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 k

io
s
k
 

a
re

 g
la

ze
d
, 

w
it
h
 e

ig
h
t 

h
o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
p
a
n
e
s
 o

f 
g
la

s
s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 m

a
rg

in
 g

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
s
. 

 I
llu

m
in

a
te

d
 ‘
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
’ 
s
ig

n
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

n
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
, 

w
it
h
 

s
e
ri

f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
le

tt
e
ri

n
g
 o

n
 o

p
a
q
u
e
 g

la
s
s
. 

 C
ro

w
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
lie

f 
b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 d

o
m

e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
In

 c
o
m

p
a
ri

s
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 K

2
, 

th
e
 k

io
s
k
 w

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 s

m
a
lle

r.
  

T
h
e
 

c
ro

w
n
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

p
e
rf

o
ra

te
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
rg

in
 g

la
zi

n
g
 w

a
s
 a

 n
e
w

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 a

lt
e
re

d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 A
 m

o
re

 v
a
n
d
a
l-

p
ro

o
f 

‘m
a
rk

 I
I’
 v

e
rs

io
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
9
. 

 K
6
 k

io
s
k
s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
6
8
, 

w
it
h
 o

v
e
r 

6
0
 0

0
0
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
6
2
, 

m
u
c
h
 m

o
re

 m
o
d
e
rn

 d
e
s
ig

n
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 d

e
p
a
rt

e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 i
c
o
n
ic

 ‘
re

d
 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
 b

o
x’

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

T
h
e
 K

6
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 k

io
s
k
 t

o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 

 A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 l
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 i
s
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

g
ro

u
p
 v

a
lu

e
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lis
te

d
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 
 A

 p
o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 D

C
M

S
 a

n
d
 B

T
. 

 T
o
 b

e
 l
is

ta
b
le

, 
a
 k

io
s
k
 

n
e
e
d
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
: 

a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 v

is
u
a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
; 

a
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 
e
xc

e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 

in
te

re
s
t 

in
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 r

ig
h
t;

 p
ro

xi
m

it
y
 t

o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 G
ra

d
e
 I

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
; 

a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
o
n
te

xt
u
a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 G

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 k

io
s
k
 (

e
.g

. 
a
 r

u
ra

l 
p
o
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
).

 T
h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 k

io
s
k
s
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

a
b
le

 b
e
lo

w
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 L

is
ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
 –

 S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 2
0
1
1
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

h
e
-t

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
-b

o
x.

c
o
.u

k
/k

io
s
k
s
/k

6
/ 

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
0

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

8
0

O
ld

 F
ir

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
ir

e
 S

ta
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
W

h
it
e
 g

la
ze

d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
G

e
n
e
ra

lly
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
in

 d
e
s
ig

n
: 

T
h
re

e
 a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
rc

h
 i
s
 w

id
e
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 r
is

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 e

a
v
e
s
 h

e
ig

h
t 

to
 f

o
rm

 a
 s

m
a
ll 

g
a
b
le

 w
it
h
 f

in
ia

ls
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 s

h
o
u
ld

e
r.

  

B
u
lls

e
y
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
0
9
 a

s
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

a
 p

la
q
u
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
; 

th
e
 d

a
te

 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 T
w

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
la

q
u
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

‘P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 b

y
 S

e
a
 U

rb
a
n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
y
 f

ro
m

 1
8
9
7
 t

o
 1

9
7
4
.

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
1

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
's

 

C
h
u
rc

h

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
1
8
6
4
 b

y
 S

c
o
tt

 &
 S

u
te

r.
  

S
c
o
tt

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 S

t 
B

a
rt

h
o
lo

m
e
w

, 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 t

e
n
 y

e
a
rs

 l
a
te

r.
  

F
lin

t 
w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 N

a
v
e
 

w
it
h
 p

o
ly

g
o
n
a
l 
a
p
s
e
. 

 N
o
rt

h
 a

is
le

 1
8
8
9
 b

y
 R

e
g
in

a
ld

 B
lo

m
fi
e
ld

. 
 C

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 2

0
0
4
 b

y
 C

liv
e
r 

M
e
rc

e
r,

 r
e
q
u
ir

in
g
 f

lo
o
rs

 t
o
 

b
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t 

p
o
rt

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
; 

th
e
 e

a
s
t 

p
o
rt

io
n
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 t

re
fo

il-
h
e
a
d
e
d
 l
a
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 A

p
s
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 b

y
 W

a
rd

 &
 H

u
g
h
e
s
 1

9
2
7
, 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
-l

ig
h
t 

s
o
u
th

 w
in

d
o
w

 b
y
 M

o
rr

is
 &

 C
o
.,

 1
9
1
5
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
2

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

R
ic

h
a
rd

's
 

F
la

ts

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 1
9
3
5
 f

o
r 

S
t 

R
ic

h
a
rd

’s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 (

fo
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 R

e
v
d
 B

a
s
il 

J
e
lli

c
o
e
),

 a
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

ld
e
rl

y
. 

 T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
lig

io
u
s
 f

a
it
h
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 D

e
n
m

a
n
 &

 S
o
n
. 

 I
t 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 t
w

o
 a

n
d
 a

 h
a
lf
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 

ro
o
f 

a
n
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 a

t 
it
s
 c

e
n
tr

e
p
o
in

t,
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 t

w
o
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 h

a
lv

e
s
 a

n
g
le

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 i
n
 t

o
w

a
rd

 e
a
c
h
o
th

e
r.

  

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 f
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

a
n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

la
w

n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

106



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
3

C
h
u
rc

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

B
ri

g
h
th

e
lm

 

C
e
n
tr

e
 R

e
s
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rk

)

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

F
o
rm

e
r 

b
u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 t

o
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
(l

is
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I,
 n

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
th

e
lm

 C
e
n
tr

e
).

  
T

h
e
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
2
4
/5

. 
 C

o
lli

s
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 I

n
fa

n
tr

y
 B

a
rr

a
c
k
s
 s

to
o
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 s

it
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

. 
 I

t 
is

 s
u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 a

 b
u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

ro
m

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 a

s
 e

a
rl

y
 a

s
 t

h
e
 1

7
0
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 e
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t.

  
Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 w

a
s
 

b
u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

th
is

 p
a
rt

 i
n
 1

8
4
5
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll 

a
n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

s
id

e
 o

f 
Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

 

a
n
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 i
s
 m

a
rk

e
d
 b

y
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
. 

 B
u
ri

a
ls

 c
e
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

8
5
0
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 

p
u
b
lic

 g
a
rd

e
n
 i
n
 1

8
8
4
. 

 T
h
e
 g

ra
v
e
s
to

n
e
s
 w

e
re

 m
o
v
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 1

9
4
9
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
a
n
 i
n
v
e
n
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
m

o
ri

a
ls

 w
a
s
 

c
o
m

p
ile

d
. 

 A
ll 

h
is

to
ri

c
 O

S
 m

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 d

ra
w

in
g
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 t

o
 b

e
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

w
it
h
 a

 s
in

g
le

 l
in

e
a
r 

ro
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 C

h
a
p
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 d

ra
w

in
g
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
is

 t
o
 b

e
 l
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 a

n
d
 t

re
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

p
a
th

 f
o
llo

w
s
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

b
u
t 

is
 s

e
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
s
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0
, 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
4

C
h
u
rc

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
1
5
-1

1
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

O
ff

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

S
h
o
w

ro
o
m

 

(n
o
w

 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t)

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

O
ff

ic
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

ro
o
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
G

a
s
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
, 

b
u
ilt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
v
ili

o
n
 B

a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
a
n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
it
s
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
. 

 I
n
 1

9
6
4
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 m

u
s
ic

 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
a
n
d
 l
a
te

r 
it
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
is

to
ry

 c
e
n
tr

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t.

  
S

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fa

ç
a
d
e
, 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
v
y
 p

la
in

 h
o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
n
ta

b
la

tu
re

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 4

 p
ila

s
te

rs
. 

 T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 e

m
b
le

m
 o

f 
tw

o
 d

o
lp

h
in

s
 i
s
 s

e
t 

in
 a

n
 o

v
a
l 
p
la

q
u
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
r.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
5

C
le

rm
o
n
t 

R
o
a
d

1
9
-2

1
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

T
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

te
p
 u

p
 t

h
e
 h

ill
 w

it
h
 s

ta
g
g
e
re

d
 r

o
o
fl
in

e
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
llo

w
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 (
n
o
w

 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
),

 f
ro

n
ti
n
g
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t.

  
M

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 o
f 

s
im

p
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

o
n
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
. 

 D
e
e
p
 m

o
d
ill

io
n
 e

a
v
e
s
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 E
a
c
h
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

is
 o

f 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

th
o
s
e
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
9
 a

n
d
 2

0
 h

a
v
e
 s

im
ila

rl
y
-d

e
ta

ile
d
 c

o
rb

e
ls

 a
n
d
 f

a
s
c
ia

s
 a

n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 l
ik

e
ly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 p
a
ir

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
9
 h

a
s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
re

c
e
s
s
e
d
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

2
0
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
o
o
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
1
 h

a
s
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

e
e
p
ly

 r
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

w
it
h
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 t

ili
n
g
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
6

C
le

v
e
la

n
d
 R

o
a
d

2
7
a

T
h
e
 

C
le

v
e
la

n
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
e
d
 w

a
lls

, 
s
la

te
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 d

o
rm

e
rs

. 
 O

c
c
u
p
y
in

g
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r 

p
lo

t,
 i
t 

h
a
s
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 C
le

v
e
la

n
d
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 L

u
c
e
rn

e
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
a
t 

to
 L

u
c
e
rn

e
 R

o
a
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 p
a
ir

e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
, 

s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

a
y
 w

it
h
 t

a
ll 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 f
u
lly

 g
la

ze
d
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 b

a
y
 w

it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
o
 C

le
v
e
la

n
d
 R

o
a
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 p
a
ir

e
d
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
is

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 c
u
rv

e
d
 c

o
rb

e
l 
w

it
h
 a

 s
la

n
te

d
 c

o
rn

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
b
e
lo

w
. 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

C
le

v
e
la

n
d
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
0
s
; 

th
e
 C

le
v
e
la

n
d
 H

o
te

l 
(a

s
 i
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
n
 

k
n
o
w

n
) 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
6
 d

ir
e
c
to

ry
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 o
n
ly

 6
 o

th
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t.

  
T

h
e
 H

o
te

l 
w

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 a

t 
th

a
t 

ti
m

e
 b

y
 

C
h
a
rl

e
s
 W

ill
ia

m
 T

u
c
k
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 f

ir
s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

O
S

) 
m

a
p
, 

a
n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 c

.1
9
1
0
-

1
2
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
g
h
to

n
-h

o
v
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

it
e
s
/b

ri
g
h
to

n
-

h
o
v
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/f

ile
s
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
/C

h
a
ra

c
te

r_
A

re
a
_
P

re
s
to

n
P

a
rk

_
_
F

in
a
l.
p
d
f 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
7

C
lif

ft
o
n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

C
lif

to
n
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

C
lif

to
n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

8
4
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

xc
lu

s
iv

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
; 

th
is

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
m

a
in

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

lif
to

n
 W

in
d
m

ill
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 e

re
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
1
0
s
 o

r 
1
8
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 W

in
d
m

ill
 

S
tr

e
e
t,

 A
lb

io
n
 H

ill
 i
n
 a

ro
u
n
d
 1

8
3
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 l
a
y
o
u
t 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
w

in
d
in

g
 ‘
s
e
rp

e
n
ti
n
e
’ 
p
a
th

s
 w

it
h
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
a
n
d
 c

lu
m

p
e
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 

T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

a
n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

ie
rs

 r
e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
 h

e
d
g
e
 b

e
h
in

d
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
8

C
o
ld

e
a
n
 L

a
n
e

C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
S

t 

M
a
ry

 

M
a
g
d
a
le

n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 

n
o
w

 p
la

c
e
 o

f 

w
o
rs

h
ip

N
o
 C

A
A

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 C
h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 1

9
5
5
. 

 A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 c

.1
7
8
0
. 

 A
n
 L

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
1
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 

w
h
ils

t 
a
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
1
0
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
. 

 T
h
e
 1

9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
s
e
 f

o
rm

in
g
 a

n
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 y

a
rd

. 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
ld

e
a
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 f

a
rm

la
n
d
, 

a
 n

e
e
d
 w

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 c

h
u
rc

h
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 f

a
rm

 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 u
s
e
. 

 I
t 

n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

n
 L

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
m

p
le

x;
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
w

e
s
t 

(a
lig

n
e
d
 n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u
th

) 
is

 t
h
e
 1

8
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 b

a
rn

, 
w

it
h
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
n
d
 a

 h
a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
G

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

th
re

s
h
in

g
 d

o
o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 r

a
n
g
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

s
o
u
th

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
is

 (
a
lig

n
e
d
 e

a
s
t-

w
e
s
t)

. 
 S

lig
h
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

in
 h

e
ig

h
t,

 i
t 

is
 b

ri
c
k
-b

u
ilt

 w
it
h
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

t.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
2
9

C
o
n
w

a
y
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
0
1

F
lin

t 
c
o
tt

a
g
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

L
a
u
n
d
ry

 

(o
ff

ic
e
) 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

n
o
w

 

o
ff

ic
e
s

N
o
 C

A
C

o
n
w

a
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

w
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
 w

it
h
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

lig
h
t 

in
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 1
0
1
 C

o
n
w

a
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 L

a
u
n
d
ry

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 i
n
 1

8
8
6
, 

a
n
d
 p

ro
b
a
b
ly

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 i
ts

 f
ro

n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
 b

lo
c
k
 o

r 
p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 a

n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
. 

 I
t 

is
 o

f 
tw

o
 

s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

, 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
a
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
. 

 D
e
n
s
e
ly

 p
a
c
k
e
d
 f

ie
ld

 f
lin

t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 

th
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 m

u
lli

o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

c
o
lu

m
n
s
 w

it
h
 C

o
ri

n
th

ia
n
 c

a
p
it
a
ls

. 
 

A
p
p
a
re

n
t 

e
n
g
ra

v
e
d
 s

to
n
e
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
; 

n
o
t 

d
e
c
ip

h
e
ra

b
le

 f
ro

m
 s

tr
e
e
t.

  
E

xt
re

m
e
ly

 l
a
rg

e
 s

to
n
e
 l
in

te
l 
a
b
o
v
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 S
q
u
a
re

 f
a
n
lig

h
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
o
o
r,

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 f
lig

h
t 

o
f 

h
e
a
v
ily

-w
o
rn

 s
to

n
e
 s

te
p
s
. 

 T
ile

d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
n
d
 t

a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
0

C
o
o
m

b
e
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e

4
3
-4

5
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

T
ra

m
w

a
y
s
 

D
e
p
o
t

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

T
ra

m
 D

e
p
o
t

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

tr
a
m

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
1
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

o
f 

1
9
0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

ro
u
te

 r
a
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 O

ld
 S

te
in

e
 t

o
 

P
re

s
to

n
 B

a
rr

a
c
k
s
 o

n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

ro
u
te

s
 w

e
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
0
4
. 

 T
ra

m
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

ra
m

w
a
y
 d

e
p
o
t 

o
n
 C

o
o
m

b
e
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 t

ra
m

s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
3
9
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 t

ro
lle

y
- 

a
n
d
 m

o
to

r-
b
u
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 n

o
w

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
 B

u
s
 D

e
p
o
t.

  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 

o
f 

lo
n
g
, 

lo
w

 f
o
rm

 

(1
5
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 l
e
n
g
th

 b
u
t 

o
n
ly

 o
n
e
 t

o
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 h

ig
h
).

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 n
a
rr

o
w

 g
a
b
le

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

c
lo

c
k
. 

 O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

te
rm

in
a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

 g
a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
 w

it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 t

a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.l
o
k
o
m

o
ti
v
e
.d

e
/l
o
k
o
m

o
ti
v
g
e
s
c
h
ic

h
te

/d
o
k
u
m

e
n
te

/S
K

F
/b

ri
g
h
to

n
_
7
5
.j
p
g
 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
1

C
o
u
rt

 F
a
rm

 

R
o
a
d

K
in

g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 

V
I 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
-s

to
re

y
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 h

u
n
g
 t

ile
 v

e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
re

v
iv

a
l 
fl
a
ts

, 
b
y
 T

. 
G

a
rr

e
tt

 &
 S

o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

, 
w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 a
n
d
 

g
a
b
le

s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 r

o
o
fl
in

e
. 

 R
e
g
u
la

r 
rh

y
th

m
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 g

a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
; 

th
is

 p
a
tt

e
rn

 t
h
e
n
 r

e
p
e
a
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
re

e
n
.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
2

C
o
u
rt

e
n
a
y
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

C
o
u
rt

e
n
a
y
 

G
a
te

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
T

h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

L
a
rg

e
 6

 a
n
d
 7

 s
to

re
y
 N

e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 a

p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

. 
 B

u
ilt

 1
9
3
4
 t

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 C

o
le

ri
d
g
e
, 

J
e
n
n
in

g
s
 &

 S
o
im

e
n
o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 

o
f 

g
a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
, 

w
it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

to
re

y
 b

a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
rt

h
 a

n
d
 f

if
th

 s
to

re
y
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
to

re
y
 b

a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 f

if
th

 a
n
d
 s

ix
th

 i
s
 i
n
 s

to
n
e
, 

a
s
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
S

h
a
llo

w
 b

o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

id
e
 b

a
y
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
3

C
ro

w
n
 R

o
a
d

C
ro

w
n
 H

o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
N

o
 C

A
F

lin
t 

a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 g

a
b
le

d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
It

 i
s
 n

o
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
, 

b
u
t 

is
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

e
d
it
io

n
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 o

f 
c
.1

8
7
0
. 

 

H
e
re

, 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

a
 s

m
a
ll 

y
a
rd

, 
w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 y

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

o
u
th

. 
 A

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
, 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

in
 f

ie
ld

s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 p

re
d
a
te

s
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
It

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
 b

a
rn

, 
a
n
d
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
a
te

r 

b
e
e
n
 a

 r
id

in
g
 s

ta
b
le

. 
 I

t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 y

a
rd

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

s
u
rv

iv
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 f

o
r 

lo
w

 f
lin

t 
w

a
lls

.

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
4

C
ro

w
n
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
2

D
o
lp

h
in

 

C
o
tt

a
g
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A
E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 n
o
w

 w
it
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
s
. 

 F
la

t 
a
rc

h
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

rc
h
it
ra

v
e
 a

n
d
 

c
a
n
o
p
y
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 a

 t
re

lli
s
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 t
o
 m

a
tc

h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
4
, 

1
5
 a

n
d
 1

9
 C

ro
w

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

(l
is

te
d
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I)
. 

 S
h
a
llo

w
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 b

o
th

 

fl
o
o
rs

, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

a
ir

e
d
 6

 o
v
e
r 

6
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
e
s
.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
5

C
u
m

b
e
rl

a
n
d
 

R
o
a
d

C
le

rm
o
n
t 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

1
8
7
7
-8

 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

J
.G

. 
G

ib
b
in

s
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 a
s
 a

 C
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
a
lis

t 
C

h
a
p
e
l.
  

F
lin

t 
w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
G

o
th

ic
 i
n
 s

ty
le

, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
, 

w
it
h
 p

o
rc

h
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 b

y
 s

te
p
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
in

te
d
-a

rc
h
 s

to
n
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 O
c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
tu

rr
e
t 

to
 

s
o
u
th

e
a
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r;

 n
o
 s

p
ir

e
. 

 P
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

b
u
tt

re
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

C
u
m

b
e
rl

a
n
d
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 C

le
rm

o
n
t 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 

it
 i
s
 

s
e
t 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 o

n
 r

a
is

e
d
 g

ro
u
n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 l
o
w

 f
lin

t 
w

a
ll.

 E
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

n
o
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

107



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
6

D
a
v
ig

d
o
r 

R
o
a
d

1
2

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

lu
b
 

(n
o
w

 f
la

ts
)

N
o
 C

A
A

 l
a
rg

e
, 

2
-3

 s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 A

rt
s
 &

 C
ra

ft
s
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 F
o
u
r 

b
a
y
s
 i
n
 w

id
th

; 
th

re
e
 w

it
h
 

g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
 

u
n
u
s
u
a
l 
p
o
rc

h
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 s

u
c
h
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 a

s
 a

 c
a
n
o
p
y
 r

o
o
f,

 a
n
 a

rc
h
e
d
 b

a
tw

in
g
 f

a
n
lig

h
t 

a
n
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 s

id
e
-l

ig
h
ts

 d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 s

m
a
ll 

s
to

n
e
 

c
o
lu

m
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t

w
o
 w

e
s
te

rn
 b

a
y
s
 e

a
c
h
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 w
it
h
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 l
e
a
d
-l

ig
h
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 b

a
y
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
 B

u
ilt

 1
9
0
7
 b

y
 T

. 
G

a
rr

e
tt

, 
it
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

lu
b
 (

th
e
 W

in
d
le

s
h
a
m

 C
lu

b
),

 w
it
h
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 b

o
w

lin
g
 g

re
e
n
. 

 

It
 w

a
s
 p

a
rt

-c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 1

9
8
8
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 c

lu
b
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
7

D
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 

R
o
a
d

1
-5

 (
o
d
d
)

T
u
d
o
r 

C
o
tt

a
g
e
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

F
o
rm

e
r 

fa
rm

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 M

a
n
o
r/

C
o
u
rt

 F
a
rm

, 
c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 a

 

‘T
u
d
o
rb

e
th

a
n
 s

ty
le

, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 l
is

te
d
 T

u
d
o
r 

C
o
u
rt

 o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 (

a
ls

o
 f

o
rm

e
r 

fa
rm

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
).

  
V

a
ri

e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 t

a
ll 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

m
o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
, 

fl
in

t 
w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 C
a
rv

e
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

b
a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

s
 t

o
 g

a
b
le

s
. 

 L
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

c
lo

s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t,

 w
it
h
 a

 l
o
w

 f
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 p

re
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

D
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 R
o
a
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
s
. 

 B
e
fo

re
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 r

o
u
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 f

a
rm

y
a
rd

 a
lo

n
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0
, 

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
8

D
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 

R
o
a
d

3
9
 a

n
d
 4

1
R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
, 

fi
rs

t 
e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
 a

n
d
 p

re
-d

a
ti
n
g
 m

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

 P
a
rt

 b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

 m
o
c
k
-t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

e
d
, 

w
it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

 i
s
 e

xe
c
u
te

d
 i
n
 a

 h
e
rr

in
g
b
o
n
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

3
9
 i
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
 

b
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

s
u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

 l
o
n
g
 r

a
n
g
e
 s

e
t 

p
a
ra

lle
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 

e
xt

e
n
d
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
 o

f 
th

is
. 

 T
h
is

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

 c
a
ts

lid
e
 r

o
o
f 

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

o
rc

h
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
 a

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
ro

o
fs

c
a
p
e
. 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

4
1
 

h
a
s
 a

 s
im

p
le

r 
p
la

n
 f

o
rm

, 
c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
a
 l
o
n
g
 r

a
n
g
e
 s

e
t 

p
a
ra

lle
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 j
e
tt

ie
d
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

n
 o

ri
e
l 

w
in

d
o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 t

im
b
e
r 

m
u
lli

o
n
e
d
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
e
d
 l
ig

h
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
ir

 o
w

n
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
3
9

D
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 

R
o
a
d

8
 a

n
d
 1

0
R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
S

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 ‘
T

u
d
o
rb

e
th

a
n
’ 
s
ty

le
, 

s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e
 n

e
a
rb

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
T

u
d
o
r 

C
lo

s
e
 (

lis
te

d
).

  
O

n
e
 a

n
d
 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 L

o
n
g
 r

a
n
g
e
 s

e
t 

p
a
ra

lle
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

in
te

rs
p
e
rs

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
t 

s
lid

e
s
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
. 

 A
re

a
s
 o

f 

re
n
d
e
r,

 m
o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 l
a
id

 i
n
 a

 h
e
rr

in
g
b
o
n
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

. 
 J

e
tt

ie
d
 g

a
b
le

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 o

a
k
 b

e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

. 
 G

a
b
le

 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
0
 l
e
s
s
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
. 

 W
in

d
o
w

s
 a

re
 t

im
b
e
r 

m
u
lli

o
n
e
d
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
e
d
 l
ig

h
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
0

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

is
e

7
6
-7

8
T

h
e
 

S
ig

n
a
lm

a
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

a
in

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

lin
th

 a
n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 q

u
o
in

s
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 n
o
w

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
, 

w
it
h
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 

d
e
n
ti
l 
c
o
rn

ic
e
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

a
ir

e
d
 p

ila
s
te

rs
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 m
o
d
e
s
t 

e
n
ta

b
la

tu
re

. 
 T

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 h

u
n
g
 

s
a
s
h
e
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 p

a
ir

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

in
g
le

 s
a
s
h
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
R

a
is

e
d
 l
e
tt

e
ri

n
g
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 b
e
lo

w
 e

a
v
e
s
 r

e
a
d
s
 ‘
R

a
ilw

a
y
 H

o
te

l’.
  

T
w

o
 

s
m

a
ll 

d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 r

o
o
fs

lo
p
e
. 

 T
h
e
 n

e
a
rb

y
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
7
7
; 

it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 h

o
te

l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
. 

 A
ll 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
1

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d

1
7
6

T
h
e
 J

o
lly

 

B
re

w
e
r

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
S

tr
e
e
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 c

a
lle

d
 t

h
e
 J

o
lly

 B
re

w
e
r 

fr
o
m

 a
s
 e

a
rl

y
 a

s
 1

8
4
8
, 

w
h
e
n
 D

a
v
id

 D
u
n
k
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
ri

e
to

r.
  

T
h
e
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
 o

f 

c
.1

8
4
0
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 t

h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

y
e
t 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 I

s
t 

E
d
it
io

n
 O

S
 

m
a
p
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 a

n
 ‘
in

n
’,
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 e

xi
s
ti
n
g
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 a

ls
o
 e

xt
a
n
t.

  
W

e
ll-

k
n
o
w

n
 b

re
w

e
ry

 T
a
m

p
lin

’s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 1

8
7
4
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 S

te
e
p
 

ti
le

d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 G
la

ze
d
 r

e
d
-b

ro
w

n
 t

ile
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 r
o
u
g
h
-c

a
s
t 

re
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
l 
m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

(n
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

).
  

A
b
o
v
e
, 

a
 t

o
w

e
r 

w
it
h
 d

o
m

e
d
 r

o
o
f 

c
re

a
te

s
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

fe
a
tu

re
. 

 E
tc

h
e
d
 g

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
w

o
 

s
h
a
llo

w
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

g
la

zi
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

th
e
 F

lo
re

n
c
e
 P

la
c
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
 d

e
p
ic

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 J

o
lly

 

B
re

w
e
r.

  
B

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 e

a
v
e
s
 a

 b
lu

e
 a

n
d
 g

o
ld

 m
o
s
a
ic

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 ‘
T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 A

le
s
’.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.n

a
ti
o
n
a
la

rc
h
iv

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

2
a
/r

e
c
o
rd

s
.a

s
p
x?

c
a
t=

1
7
9
-t

a
m

p
lin

s
&

c
id

=
1
#
1
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/m
h
m

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
2

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d

2
9
2

F
iv

e
w

a
y
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l 
/ 

P
u
b
lic

 

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
F

iv
e
w

a
y
s
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
c
ie

n
t 

d
o
w

n
la

n
d
 r

o
u
te

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 r
a
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 o

p
e
n
 f

a
rm

la
n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

in
to

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
s
u
b
u
rb

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 –

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 n
a
m

e
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
m

e
r 

P
a
rk

 H
o
te

l 
–
 w

a
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

is
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

1
9
0
1
, 

w
h
e
n
 G

e
o
rg

e
 H

a
m

m
o
n
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 

c
la

y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 B
lu

e
-b

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 p

lin
th

 w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

iv
e
w

a
y
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 H

o
lli

n
g
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
, 

it
 h

a
s
 t

w
o
 m

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 G
a
b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

it
s
e
lf
, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

g
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

R
o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 p

a
ir

e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
M

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
3

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
, 

J
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

U
p
p
e
r 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

T
ra

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
r

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

T
ra

m
 S

h
e
lt
e
r

N
o
 C

A
E

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

ra
m

 s
h
e
lt
e
r.

  
T

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

e
d
 w

it
h
 s

h
in

g
le

 r
o
o
f 

w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

ts
. 

 E
a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 u

p
ri

g
h
ts

 t
o
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

e
 f

a
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 g

n
a
rl

e
d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

o
f 

tr
e
e
-t

ru
n
k
s
. 

 P
a
n
e
ls

 o
f 

p
ly

w
o
o
d
 i
n
b
e
tw

e
e
n
, 

w
it
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
w

o
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 f

ro
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 t

ra
m

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
1
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 r

o
u
te

 f
ro

m
 V

a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
p
o
t 

in
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
/P

re
s
to

n
 B

a
rr

a
c
k
s
. 

 O
th

e
r 

ro
u
te

s
 w

e
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 b

y
 1

9
0
4
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
, 

T
iv

o
li 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t,

 F
iv

e
w

a
y
s
, 

R
a
c
e
 H

ill
 a

n
d
 R

o
c
k
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r

o
u
te

 a
lo

n
g
 D

it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
 d

a
te

s
 t

o
 1

9
0
2
. 

 T
h
e
 t

ra
m

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
1
9
3
9
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 t

ro
lle

y
 b

u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
to

r 
b
u
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 f
le

xi
b
le

 a
n
d
 v

e
rs

a
ti
le

 i
n
 

lig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 s

u
b
u
rb

a
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 O
th

e
r 

tr
a
m

 s
h
e
lt
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 a

t 
D

it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d
 (

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

S
u
rr

e
n
d
e
n
 R

o
a
d
) 

a
n
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 (

P
e
p
p
e
r-

b
o
x)

 (
b
o
th

 g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
  

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
4

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

M
a
tt

h
ia

s
 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
1
9
0
6
-7

 b
y
 L

a
c
y
 W

. 
R

id
g
e
, 

c
o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d
 1

9
1
2
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

in
 a

n
 E

a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 S

ty
le

. 
 M

a
in

 n
a
v
e
 o

f 
d
o
u
b
le

 h
e
ig

h
t 

w
it
h
 

la
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 w

o
o
d
e
n
 h

a
m

m
e
r-

b
e
a
m

 r
o
o
f.

  
L
o
w

e
r 

o
n
e
-s

to
re

y
 s

id
e
 a

is
le

s
. 

 R
o
u
n
d
 t

o
w

e
r 

lo
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 s

o
u
th

w
e
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r,

 w
it
h
 o

p
e
n
 b

e
lf
ry

 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 s

h
o
rt

 s
h
in

g
le

 s
p
ir

e
. 

 A
p
s
id

a
l 
c
h
a
n
c
e
l 
w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 s

to
n
e
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 (

v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 H

o
lli

n
g
b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 A
v
e
n
u
e
).

  
T

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 i
s
 

s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 s

m
a
ll 

c
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

. 
 T

a
ll 

fl
in

t 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 g

a
te

 p
ie

rs
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
5

D
it
c
h
lin

g
 

R
o
a
d
/L

e
w

e
s
 

R
o
a
d

T
h
e
 L

e
v
e
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

F
o
rm

e
rl

y
 a

n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
 m

a
rs

h
y
 l
a
n
d
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
ir

s
 a

n
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 o
n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 

In
 1

8
2
2
 T

h
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
w

a
s
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

b
y
 A

 H
 W

ild
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
o
ta

n
is

t/
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
e
r 

H
e
n
ry

 P
h
ili

p
s
. 

E
lm

 a
v
e
n
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
te

d
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 i
n
 1

8
4
4
, 

a
s
 a

 g
if
t 

fr
o
m

 

th
e
 E

a
rl

 o
f 

C
h
ic

h
e
s
te

r.
  

In
 1

8
7
7
 t

h
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
w

a
s
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 b

y
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
te

d
 w

it
h
 s

h
ru

b
s
. 

 I
t 

la
rg

e
ly

 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 t

h
is

 l
a
y
o
u
t 

u
n
ti
l 
1
9
2
7
, 

w
h
e
n
 a

 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
B

e
rt

ie
 H

u
b
b
a
rd

 M
a
c
L
a
re

n
. 

 I
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 b
o
a
ti
n
g
 p

o
o
l,
 b

ri
d
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
rg

o
la

. 
 M

a
c
L
a
re

n
 w

a
s
 

S
u
p
e
ri

n
te

n
d
e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 P

a
rk

s
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,

 h
a
v
in

g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 P

re
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

. 
 A

 l
a
rg

e
-s

c
a
le

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

 h
a
s
 j
u
s
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 

th
is

 h
a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
ta

in
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 l
a
y
o
u
t,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
n
u
e
 o

f 
E

lm
s
, 

1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 1

9
2
7
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

.

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
6

D
ro

v
e
 R

o
a
d

1
8
 a

n
d
 2

0
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
, 

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
-m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
a
ll,

 h
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 2

 o
v
e
r 

2
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 o

n
e
 i
s
 o

f 

tr
ip

a
rt

it
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 S
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
o
rs

 w
it
h
in

 e
n
c
lo

s
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
e
s
. 

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

(t
h
e
 ‘
n
e
w

’ 
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

–
 

n
o
w

 E
m

m
a
u
s
 –

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
0
7
 a

n
d
 i
s
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I

I)
, 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 d

ir
e
c
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
ll 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

M
a
n
o
r 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
y
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
o
rk

in
g
 f

o
r 

th
e
 M

a
n
o
r.

  
W

h
e
n
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 C

o
n
v
e
n
t 

to
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 M

a
n
o
r,

 a
 p

ri
e
s
t 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 o

n
e
 o

f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

 M
id

d
le

to
n
 (

2
0
0
2
) 

s
ta

te
s
 t

h
a
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
8
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

w
o
 s

ta
ir

c
a
s
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

ro
n
t 

ro
o
m

 w
a
s
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 S

t 
S

te
p
h
e
n
. 

 S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 s

m
a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 l
a
te

r 
fe

n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 A

b
u
tt

e
d
 b

y
 t

a
ll 

fl
in

t 
w

a
lls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 

T
h
e
 w

a
lls

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

u
rt

ila
g
e
 l
is

te
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

108



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
7

D
ro

v
e
 R

o
a
d

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

M
a
n
o
r 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
0
7
 b

y
 t

h
e
 B

o
rr

e
r 

fa
m

ily
, 

to
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 O

ld
 M

a
n
o
r.

 I
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
0
4
 a

n
d
 1

9
9
6
 a

s
 S

t 
M

a
ry

e
's

 C
o
n
v
e
n
t,

 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 h

e
a
v
ily

 e
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 d

o
rm

it
o
ri

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
la

u
n
d
ry

, 
w

h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 d
o
m

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
. 

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 a
n
 E

m
m

a
u
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

e
o
p
le

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

o
ff

ic
e
s
, 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
 a

n
d
 c

a
fé

. 
A

 f
o
lly

 a
n
d
 g

ro
tt

o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 

in
 t

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
, 

a
n
d
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 p
a
rt

ia
lly

 f
ro

m
 f

a
b
ri

c
 p

ill
a
g
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 O

ld
 M

a
n
o
r.

 T
h
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
 p

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

la
w

n
 a

n
d
 M

a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 i
ts

 p
ri

m
a
ry

 s
e
tt

in
g
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

s
id

e
 o

f 
M

a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d
 

(a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 t
u
n
n
e
l 
b
e
n
e
a
th

 M
a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d
) 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t

o
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 M

a
n
o
r,

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
n
s
' b

u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

 

w
ild

lif
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 

 E
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
 a

n
d
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

ti
ll 

s
u
rv

iv
e
. 

 T
h
e
 t

it
h
e
 

a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 e

n
ti
re

 a
re

a
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

J
o
h
n
 B

o
rr

e
r 

a
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 ‘
M

a
n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
’,
 

‘P
la

n
ta

ti
o
n
’ 
(l

o
w

e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 e

a
s
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
) 

a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
s
 P

ie
c
e
 (

P
a
s
tu

re
 –

 u
p
p
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 e

a
s
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
8

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

1
3
2

G
o
o
d
 

C
o
m

p
a
n
io

n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
1
9
3
9
 f

o
r 

w
e
ll-

k
n
o
w

n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

re
w

e
ry

 T
a
m

p
lin

’s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
y
 t

h
e
ir

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

A
rt

h
u
r 

P
a
c
k
h
a
m

. 
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 a

 p
e
ri

o
d
 o

f 

e
xp

a
n
s
io

n
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
 –

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 a

s
 a

 s
e
a
s
id

e
 r

e
s
o
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 s

u
b
u
rb

a
n
 

g
ro

w
th

. 
 O

th
e
r 

p
u
b
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

T
a
m

p
lin

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 S

t 
A

u
b
y
n
’s

 H
o
te

l,
 T

h
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 a

n
d
 G

ra
n
d
 C

e
n
tr

a
l.
  

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

. 
 C

le
a
rl

y
 

1
9
3
0
s
 i
n
 s

ty
le

, 
b
u
t 

w
it
h
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 R

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
. 

 B
ri

c
k
, 

w
it
h
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
p
la

n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 t

w
o
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 b

y
 a

 

c
a
n
te

d
 c

o
rn

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 p

la
n
 f

o
rm

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
s
 w

e
ll 

to
 i
ts

 c
o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

 M
a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 o
n
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 w
it
h
 l
a
rg

e
, 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
 

a
b
o
v
e
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

 D
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 u

rn
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
. 

 F
o
u
r 

c
e
n
tr

e
d
 a

rc
h
e
s
 t

o
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 o

n
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 s
q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 t

a
p
e
re

d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 s

te
e
p
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

w
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 

ro
o
f 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 3

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
9
3
9
, 

th
e
 d

a
y
 B

ri
ta

in
 d

e
c
la

re
d
 w

a
r 

o
n
 G

e
rm

a
n
y
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/m
y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
6
2
7
7
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
1
1
6
p
1
7
2
p
4
1
4
p
0
p
1
1
6
p
1
6
9
p
3
9
4
p
2
0
4
p
6
3
8
p
.a

s
p
x,

 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.n

a
ti
o
n
a
la

rc
h
iv

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

2
a
/r

e
c
o
rd

s
.a

s
p
x?

c
a
t=

1
7
9
-t

a
m

p
lin

s
&

c
id

=
2
#
2
  

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
4
9

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

2
1
8

T
h
e
 D

y
k
e
 

P
u
b
 a

n
d
 

K
it
c
h
e
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
F

o
rm

e
rl

y
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 W

in
d
m

ill
 I

n
n
, 

a
n
d
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 W

ill
ia

m
 T

ru
s
le

r,
 w

h
o
 a

ls
o
 o

w
n
e
d
 a

 m
ill

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

a
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
n
a
m

e
d
 

th
e
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 H

o
te

l 
in

 t
h
e
 1

8
9
0
s
, 

a
n
d
 r

e
b
u
ilt

 i
n
 a

 T
u
d
o
r 

re
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

 s
p
ra

w
lin

g
 p

la
n
 f

o
rm

, 
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

w
o
 h

a
lf
-t

im
b
e
re

d
 j
e
tt

ie
d
 e

n
d
 

g
a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 a

 t
ile

-h
u
n
g
 h

ip
p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t.

  
B

ri
c
k
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 s

to
n
e
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

ra
n
s
o
m

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
ile

 r
o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
0

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

P
a
ir

 o
f 

B
o
lla

rd
s
 a

t 
S

t 

N
ic

h
o
la

s
 

C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

B
o
lla

rd

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A
1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 p

a
ir

 o
f 

c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

o
lla

rd
s
 a

t 
s
o
u
th

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

. 
 E

c
c
le

s
ia

s
ti
c
a
l 
p
a
tt

e
rn

 w
it
h
 G

o
th

ic
 a

rc
h
 f

lu
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

q
u
a
tr

e
fo

il 
b
a
n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 o

c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
c
a
p
. 

 A
n
o
th

e
r 

p
a
ir

 o
f 

b
o
lla

rd
s
 a

re
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
th

 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
; 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 

s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 l
is

te
d
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
1

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

R
o
y
a
l 

A
le

xa
n
d
ra

 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 

L
a
in

s
o
n
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

T
h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
A

le
xa

n
d
ra

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 i
n
 1

8
8
1
. 

 T
h
is

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
T

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
fo

r 
S

ic
k
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

t 
1
7
8
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 i
n
 1

8
6
8
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
in

 L
iv

e
rp

o
o
l 
in

 1
8
5
1
. 

 D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 L

a
in

s
o
n
 i
n
 a

 Q
u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 s

ty
le

, 
it
 i
s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
d
-b

ri
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
s
. 

 L
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 

la
rg

e
ly

 b
e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

o
n
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r 

p
lo

t,
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 (

a
n
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
lls

) 
fo

rm
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

it
s
 s

e
tt

in
g
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

R
o
y
a
l 
A

le
xa

n
d
ra

 C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 B

ri
e
f

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
2

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

N
ic

h
o
la

s
 

C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 t
o
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 o

f 
M

y
ra

 C
h
u
rc

h
; 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
a
ri

s
h
 c

h
u
rc

h
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
th

e
lm

s
to

n
. 

 I
t 

is
 s

a
id

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 m
a
rk

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
a
 

B
la

c
k
 D

e
a
th

 p
la

g
u
e
-p

it
 o

f 
1
3
4
8
. 

 C
e
rt

a
in

ly
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 1

4
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 B
y
 1

8
1
8
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 w
a
s
 f

u
ll,

 a
n
d
 a

n
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

(f
o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
is

 s
it
e
).

  
T

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 r
e
ta

in
s
 h

e
a
d
s
to

n
e
s
 t

o
 

P
h
o
e
b
e
 H

e
s
s
e
l,
 M

a
rt

h
a
 G

u
n
n
, 

A
m

o
n
 W

ild
s
, 

S
a
k
e
 D

e
e
n
 M

a
h
o
m

e
d
, 

N
ic

h
o
la

s
 T

e
tt

e
rs

e
ll 

a
n
d
 A

n
n
a
 M

a
ri

a
 C

ro
u
c
h
 (

a
ll 

lis
te

d
),

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
 

o
f 

a
 m

e
d
ie

v
a
l 
c
ro

s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

a
th

 i
s
 p

a
v
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 p

a
v
io

u
rs

, 
a
n
d
 f

o
llo

w
s
 t

h
e
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 O

S
 m

a
p
s
. 

 A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 a
re

 e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 d

e
ta

il 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

is
s
e
d
 o

ff
. 

 I
t 

fo
rm

s
 a

 

p
le

a
s
a
n
t 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
, 

b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
m

a
tu

re
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 a

n
d
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 r
e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

a
 r

u
ra

l 
v
ill

a
g
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
s
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0
, 

A
n
tr

a
m

 a
n
d
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
3

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

N
ic

h
o
la

s
 

R
e
s
t 

G
a
rd

e
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rk

)

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

T
h
ir

d
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 t

o
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

. 
 L

o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

s
id

e
 o

f 
D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
, 

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 i
ts

e
lf
. 

 B
u
ri

a
ls

 

w
e
re

 p
ro

h
ib

it
e
d
 f

ro
m

 1
8
5
3
, 

s
o
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

o
n
ly

 a
 s

h
o
rt

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

n
te

re
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 l
is

te
d
 a

rc
h
w

a
y
 o

f 
1
8
4
0
, 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

b
y
 A

m
o
n
 H

e
n
ry

 W
ild

s
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
. 

  
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ra
v
e
s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 w

a
lls

, 
w

it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
 

V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 t

o
m

b
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 i
n
-s

it
u
. 

 A
lo

n
g
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 1
4
 l
a
rg

e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
v
a
u
lt
s
; 

a
ls

o
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
A

m
o
n
 H

e
n
ry

 W
ild

s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

a
th

s
 

a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ra
v
e
y
a
rd

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
in

g
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 r
e
m

a
in

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
4

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 

P
a
rk

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
4
0
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

s
 o

p
e
n
 l
a
n
d
; 

P
o
rt

 H
a
ll 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 m

ill
 a

re
 t

h
e
 

n
e
a
re

s
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

n
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
. 

 B
y
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

O
S

) 
m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
7
0
),

 t
h
e
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 l
in

e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
m

ill
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 W

in
d
m

ill
 I

n
n
 (

n
o
w

 D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

u
b
 a

n
d
 K

it
c
h
e
n
) 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 T
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

a
ll 

w
o
o
d
e
d
 a

re
a
s
, 

b
u
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 o

p
e
n
. 

 T
h
is

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
, 

w
it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

s
p
re

a
d
in

g
 o

n
 a

ll 
s
id

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 t

ri
a
n
g
u
la

r 
p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

p
e
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 

a
p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 p

lo
t 

in
 i
ts

 s
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

(i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 n
u
rs

e
ry

 o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
1
2
 O

S
 m

a
p
).

  
T

h
e
 c

.1
9
1
2
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 a
re

a
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

llo
tm

e
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

la
y
o
u
t 

is
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

.1
9
3
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 G

ra
m

m
a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
(B

H
A

S
V

IC
) 

a
t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 

R
o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
rk

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
4
, 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
ta

il 
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 

o
f 

p
a
th

s
, 

fo
rm

a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

c
a
fé

, 
b
o
w

lin
g
 g

re
e
n
 (

n
o
w

 o
p
e
n
 a

ir
 t

h
e
a
tr

e
) 

a
n
d
 t

e
n
n
is

 

c
o
u
rt

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
p
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
ti
ll 

s
u
rv

iv
e
. 

 T
h
e
 c

a
fe

 h
a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

lo
s
t 

it
s
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 t

h
a
tc

h
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 t

im
b
e
r 

s
h
in

g
le

s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
2
0
1
5
 (

p
a
rk

 b
u
ild

in
g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
)

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
5

E
a
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

G
ra

n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

7
5
 a

n
d
 9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
in

e
m

a
O

ld
 T

o
w

n
 C

A
C

in
e
m

a
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
3
0
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

B
ri

ll’
s
 B

a
th

s
 f

o
r 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 C

in
e
m

a
s
 L

td
 (

A
B

C
) 

a
n
d
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 S

a
v
o
y
 

C
in

e
m

a
-T

h
e
a
tr

e
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 w

e
re

 b
y
 W

ill
ia

m
 R

 G
le

n
 (

o
n
e
 o

f 
A

B
C

’s
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

) 
in

 a
n
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 s

ty
le

. 
 W

h
it
e
 g

la
ze

d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 t

ile
s
 t

o
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
it
h
 s

tr
o
n
g
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 t
o
 t

h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
s
 t

o
 E

a
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 G

ra
n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 I
ts

 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

w
a
s
 i
n
 a

n
 O

ri
e
n
ta

l 

s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 2

3
0
0
 s

e
a
ts

, 
a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

, 
tw

o
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
ts

, 
tw

o
 c

a
fe

s
 a

n
d
 a

 d
a
n
c
e
 h

a
ll.

  
It

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
ts

 n
a
m

e
 t

o
 A

B
C

 

C
in

e
m

a
 i
n
 1

9
6
3
, 

u
n
d
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 n

a
m

e
 i
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 t

o
 a

 4
 s

c
re

e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
in

 1
9
7
6
. 

 I
t 

la
te

r 
o
p
e
ra

te
d
 a

s
 C

a
n
n
o
n
 C

in
e
m

a
s
 a

n
d
 V

ir
g
in

 

C
in

e
m

a
s
 b

e
fo

re
 r

e
v
e
rt

in
g
 t

o
 A

B
C

 C
in

e
m

a
 i
n
 1

9
9
7
. 

 I
t 

c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
9
9
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
s
. 

G
ra

n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 (

fa
c
in

g
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

a
n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
) 

h
a
s
 a

 w
id

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 f

lu
te

d
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

u
n
b
e
a
m

s
 t

o
 h

e
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 o

v
e
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 

th
re

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

fe
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
it
h
 5

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 t

h
re

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 g

ro
u
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
ila

s
te

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 r

is
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 f

ri
e
ze

; 
p
la

in
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

w
o
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 c

o
rb

e
l-

s
ty

le
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 i
s
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

o
rd

e
r,

 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

a
n
d
 f

ra
m

e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

 T
h
e
 E

a
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 r
o
u
n
d
 f

e
a
tu

re
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 w
it
h
 t

a
ll 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 p

ila
s
te

rs
, 

s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

a
p
it
a
ls

, 
s
w

a
g
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
a
lli

o
n
s
. 

 A
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 s

to
re

y
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

E
lle

ra
y
 1

9
8
9
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
g
h
to

n
fi
lm

.c
o
m

/S
a
v
o
y
.h

tm
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/c
in

e
m

a
tr

e
a
s
u
re

s
.o

rg
/t

h
e
a
te

rs
/5

9
1
5
 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
6

E
a
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

R
o
y
a
l 
S

u
s
s
e
x 

C
o
u
n
ty

 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 

B
a
rr

y
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

N
o
 C

A
F

o
u
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

C
o
u
n
ty

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
S

e
a
-B

a
th

in
g
 I

n
fi
rm

a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 B

a
rr

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 

b
u
ilt

 

1
8
2
6
-8

 b
y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 B

a
rr

y
. 

 4
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

th
e
 t

h
re

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 a

re
 c

a
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 a

 p
e
d
im

e
n
t.

  
T

h
is

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
o
rt

io
n
 

te
rm

in
a
te

s
 v

ie
w

s
 n

o
rt

h
 a

lo
n
g
 P

a
s
to

n
 P

la
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

in
 1

8
3
9
 b

y
 W

ill
ia

m
 H

a
lle

tt
, 

e
a
s
t 

in
 1

8
4
1
 b

y
 H

e
rb

e
rt

 

W
ill

ia
m

s
 a

n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
 1

8
5
2
-3

, 
a
g
a
in

 b
y
 H

e
rb

e
rt

 W
ill

ia
m

s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
y
m

m
e
tr

y
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
a
te

r 
e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 

p
a
rt

ly
 e

ro
d
e
 t

h
is

. 
 T

h
e
 l
is

te
d
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
(1

8
5
6
 b

y
 H

a
lle

tt
) 

is
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 B

a
rr

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

109



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
7

E
a
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

S
u
s
s
e
x 

E
y
e
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

N
o
 C

A
1
9
3
5
 b

y
 J

.L
.D

e
n
m

a
n
 (

1
8
8
2
-1

9
7
5
),

 i
n
 a

 N
e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 S

p
la

y
e
d
 U

-p
la

n
 w

it
h
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
t 

o
f 

m
u
lt
i-

c
o
lo

u
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 s

to
n
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 r

is
e
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

to
 f

o
rm

 a
 s

q
u
a
t 

to
w

e
r.

  
P

o
ly

g
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ir
 t

o
w

e
rs

 a
re

 s
e
t 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 L
e
tt

e
rs

 ‘
S

’ 
a
n
d
 

‘E
’ 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 f
a
n
lig

h
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
w

o
 s

q
u
a
re

 s
to

n
e
 l
a
m

p
p
o
s
ts

 f
la

n
k
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
8

E
d
w

a
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
p
ir

it
u
a
lis

t 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
 C

A
1
9
6
4
-5

 b
y
 B

e
v
 P

ik
e
 o

f 
O

v
e
rt

o
n
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 I

n
 p

la
n
: 

K
id

n
e
y
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

v
a
l 
s
h
a
p
e
d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

re
c
ta

n
g
u
la

r 
c
o
rr

id
o
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 k

id
n
e
y
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

v
a
l 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 f

o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 b

lo
c
k
s
 l
a
id

 v
e
rt

ic
a
lly

, 
w

it
h
o
u
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

to
 f

o
rm

 s
ta

rk
ly

 u
n
p
e
rf

o
ra

te
d
 w

a
lls

 s
o
ft

e
n
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
ir

 s
in

u
o
u
s
 f

o
rm

s
. 

 T
h
e
 s

m
o
o
th

 a
n
g
u
la

r 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
is

. 
 I

t 
re

p
la

c
e
d
 

a
 c

h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 M

ig
h
e
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
5
9

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

7
2

T
h
e
 

R
a
c
e
h
o
rs

e
 

In
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 

(n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l)

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 a

n
d
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 (

w
it
h
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 a

tt
ic

) 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 a

n
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
. 

 U
ti
lis

e
s
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 t

o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y
. 

 P
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 t

o
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

tw
o
 b

a
y
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 t

o
 l
o
w

e
r 

fl
o
o
r,

 

p
a
rt

ly
 p

a
in

te
d
. 

 D
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 t

ile
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 m

o
c
k
-t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 

 P
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

ti
le

d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

, 
a
n
d
 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
. 

 C
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
0

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

2
-6

T
h
e
 A

d
m

ir
a
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

o
n
d
 r

e
d
-b

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

u
rv

e
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e
 a

n
d
 I

s
lin

g
w

o
rd

 R
o
a
d
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 

a
n
d
 o

f 
6
 b

a
y
s
, 

th
e
 o

u
te

rm
o
s
t 

b
a
y
s
 e

a
c
h
 c

o
n
ta

in
 a

n
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 t

ra
p
e
zo

id
a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f

a
n
lig

h
t.

  
T

w
o
 

s
h
a
llo

w
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
6
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 e

xp
o
s
e
d
 b

o
xe

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

lo
o
rs

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 S
tr

ip
p
e
d
 d

o
w

n
, 

n
e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 i
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

 R
o
o
f 

b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

w
it
h
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 m

id
d
le

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
 e

xt
e
n
d
s
 

a
lo

n
g
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 A

d
m

ir
a
l 
N

a
p
ie

r 
In

n
, 

it
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 c

.1
9
3
4
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
d
 a

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

1
8
6
0
s
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
a
m

e
 n

a
m

e
. 

 I
t 

is
 r

e
m

in
is

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

J
. 

L
. 

D
e
n
m

a
n
 (

s
e
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
3
 R

ic
h
m

o
n
d
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
),

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 

c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

h
e
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

in
 t

h
is

 c
a
s
e
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

n
a
m

e
s
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
7
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
7
_
1
0
7
.h

tm
l,
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
6
2
4
9
.a

s
p
x?

p
a
th

=
0
p
1
1
5
p
2
0
4
p
6
1
0
p
 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
1

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

S
to

n
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

m
a
rk

e
r

N
o
 C

A
B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 s
to

n
e
, 

s
e
t 

to
 b

a
c
k
 o

f 
p
a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l.
  

R
e
c
ta

n
g
u
la

r 
in

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 f

la
t 

fa
c
e
 t

o
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
ro

u
n
d
e
d
 h

e
a
d
. 

 I
ts

 f
ro

n
t 

fa
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 ‘
B

S
tM

D
C

 1
8
7
5
’ 
w

it
h
 a

rr
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

lis
m

 l
ik

e
ly

 s
ta

n
d
s
 f

o
r 

‘B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 S
t.

 M
a
rt

in
’s

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

(o
r 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
/c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
)’
; 

th
e
 a

rr
o
w

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e
 e

xa
c
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t’
s
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

t 
M

a
rt

in
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 s
to

n
e
 p

re
d
a
te

s
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
2

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e

E
lm

 G
ro

v
e
 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

xt
 t

h
a
t 

“c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 b
u
ild

in
g
 e

v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
).

 

T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
a
t 

A
c
t.

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 G

ilb
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f

ro
m

 1
8
9
0
. 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 

T
h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 1

8
7
0
-

1
9
0
3
. 

T
h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
f 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt

a
, 

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 F

re
e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 

R
o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
. 

In
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 g

ra
d
e
 

II
 l
is

te
d
: 

F
in

s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

);
 D

o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 R

u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 

o
f 

1
8
9
3
; 

a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 

A
ll 

a
re

 b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll 

b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 

1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(F
re

s
h
fi
e
ld

 P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
it
y
 

C
o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
3

F
a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

W
a
ll 

to
 T

h
e
 

R
o
ty

n
g
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

F
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 p

a
th

w
a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

la
y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

s
 a

n
d
 B

u
rn

e
s
 V

a
le

. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll 

to
 R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 

b
u
ilt

 1
8
9
4
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
6
4
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
ir

e
. 

 S
it
e
 n

o
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

 S
tr

a
ig

h
t 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 

w
a
ll,

 a
b
u
tt

in
g
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

e
d
g
e
, 

w
it
h
 t

w
o
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
a
v
e
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 p

ie
rs

 w
it
h
 s

to
n
e
 c

o
p
in

g
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
d
if
ie

d
 t

o
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 B

u
rn

e
s
 V

a
le

 a
n
d
 T

h
e
 R

o
ty

n
g
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.r

g
g
j.
n
e
t/

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
/o

ld
_
p
c
/,

 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.r

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
v
ill

a
g
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/a

ro
u
n
d
-a

b
o
u
t/

h
is

to
ry

-e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t/

ro
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
-t

im
e
-d

o
u
g
la

s
-d

e
n
n
o
/r

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
-t

im
e
-c

h
a
p
te

r-
6
 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
4

F
a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d
, 

T
h
e
 B

o
w

lin
g
 

G
re

e
n

O
ld

 C
a
rt

 

L
o
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

B
a
rn

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

L
o
n
g
, 

lo
w

 b
a
rn

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

t 
o
n
e
 e

n
d
 a

b
u
ts

 C
h
a
llo

n
e
rs

 M
e
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

a
rt

 l
o
d
g
e
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 o

th
e
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
rn

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
3
9
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
. 

 W
it
h
in

 l
iv

in
g
 m

e
m

o
ry

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 a

 f
a
rm

 c
a
rt

 l
o
d
g
e
/r

e
p
a
ir

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

 T
h
e
 l
o
d
g
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 s
h
e
lt
e
r,

 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 b

a
rn

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

o
w

ls
 C

lu
b
h
o
u
s
e
. 

 B
o
th

 r
e
ta

in
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
n
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

h
e
 l
o
d
g
e
 i
s
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

e
d
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

p
a
d
s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

la
rg

e
ly

 u
n
a
lt
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 C

h
a
llo

n
e
rs

 –
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
m

a
n
o
ri

a
l 
fa

rm
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
p
p
a
re

n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 

m
e
e
t 

th
is

 c
ri

te
ri

a

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
5

F
lo

re
n
c
e
 P

la
c
e

J
e
w

is
h
 B

u
ri

a
l 

G
ro

u
n
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 F

re
e
h
o
ld

 B
u
ri

a
l 
G

ro
u
n
d
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e
 c

o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

8
2
6
 b

y
 T

.R
.K

e
m

p
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 i
ts

 c
e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 

w
a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

a
p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 d

o
u
b
lin

g
 i
ts

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
iz

e
. 

 A
t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
, 

th
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e
w

 g
a
te

, 
p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
lls

. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
9
3
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
L
a
in

s
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

o
n
; 

it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 

o
th

e
r 

w
o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 w

a
lls

 a
re

 o
f 

fl
in

t 
w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 T
h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
c
ta

n
g
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 

s
lo

p
e
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
w

it
h
 g

ra
v
e
s
to

n
e
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 i
n
 r

o
w

s
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 i
s
 o

v
e
rg

ro
w

n
. 

 O
n
 r

a
is

e
d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
, 

it
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 o
v
e
rl

o
o
k
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

u
s
t 

y
a
rd

 a
n
d
 a

b
a
tt

o
ir

; 
n
o
w

 t
h
e
 H

o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 D

e
p
o
t 

a
n
d
 W

a
s
te

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
S

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
6

F
lo

re
n
c
e
 R

o
a
d

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

K
n
a
p
p
e
d
 f

lin
t 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 1
8
9
4
-5

 b
y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 B

a
in

e
s
 &

 S
o
n
. 

 E
a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 S

ty
le

; 
s
im

ila
ri

ti
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 w
o
rk

 a
t 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
P

la
c
e
, 

b
u
t 

w
it
h
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 C
o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 t

o
w

e
r 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 s

h
in

g
le

 s
p
ir

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
o
rn

e
r.

  
L
a
rg

e
 s

it
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
p
la

n
 f

o
rm

. 
 S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 f

lin
t 

a
n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 w

a
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
7

F
o
n
th

ill
 R

o
a
d

D
u
b
a
rr

y
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 

(c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 

F
o
n
th

ill
 

R
o
a
d
, 

H
o
v
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 

H
o
v
e
 P

a
rk

 

V
ill

a
s
, 

M
ic

ro
s
c
a
p
e
 

H
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

D
u
b
a
rr

y
 

H
o
u
s
e
) 

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
a
c
to

ry
N

o
 C

A
T

h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 T
a
b
le

t 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
1
 b

y
 H

a
rr

y
 W

ill
ia

m
 K

ilb
y
 P

e
a
rs

, 
s
o
n
 o

f 
a
 r

e
ta

il 
c
h
e
m

is
t.

  
T

h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

 

lim
it
e
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
m

e
ti
c
s
. 

 I
t 

g
ra

d
u
a
lly

 a
c
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

h
e
 F

o
n
th

ill
 R

o
a
d
 s

it
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

.1
9
0
7
 a

n
d
 1

9
2
3
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri

o
d
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

a
c
to

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 f
o
u
r 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 D
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 F

ir
s
t 

W
o
rl

d
 W

a
r,

 K
ilb

y
 P

e
a
rs

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 D

u
b
a
rr

y
 

c
o
s
m

e
ti
c
s
, 

n
a
m

e
d
 i
n
 h

o
n
o
u
r 

o
f 

F
re

n
c
h
 a

lli
e
s
 (

th
e
 g

la
m

o
ro

u
s
 M

a
d
a
m

e
 d

u
 B

a
rr

y
 w

a
s
 a

 f
a
v
o
u
ri

te
 o

f 
L
o
u
is

 X
V

).
  

T
h
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 T
a
b
le

t 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 

w
e
n
t 

in
to

 l
iq

u
id

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

9
2
3
. 

 I
ts

 a
s
s
e
ts

 w
e
re

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

c
a
lle

d
 D

u
b
a
rr

y
, 

w
it
h
 K

ilb
y
 P

e
a
rs

 a
s
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

d
ir

e
c
to

r.
  

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

e
ll-

k
n
o
w

n
 f

o
r 

it
s
 p

a
c
k
a
g
in

g
 –

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 g
la

s
s
 b

o
tt

le
s
 –

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
b
le

 

it
e
m

s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 E

 W
a
lli

s
 L

o
n
g
 i
n
 1

9
3
0
. 

 O
f 

th
re

e
 a

n
d
 f

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
s
, 

it
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
lig

h
tl
y
 d

if
fe

ri
n
g
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
; 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 e

xt
e
n
t 

to
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

n
 s

it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 l
a
rg

e
 p

a
n
e
ls

 w
it
h
 g

re
e
n
 m

o
s
a
ic

 l
e
tt

e
ri

n
g
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
, 

in
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

ri
tt

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

c
re

a
te

 a
 s

tr
o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

. 
 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 u

p
v
c
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
ri

tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 

 T
h
e
 r

o
o
f 

is
 m

a
in

ly
 f

la
t,

 w
it
h
 

s
o
m

e
 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
. 

 O
n
e
 6

-b
a
y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

a
ra

p
e
t,

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 c

u
rv

e
d
 p

e
d
im

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
b
a
y
, 

w
it
h
 a

 l
a
rg

e
r 

p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 t

w
o
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
. 

 D
u
b
a
rr

y
 m

o
v
e
d
 a

w
a
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

h
e
n
 p

u
t 

to
 a

 v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

u
s
e
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
8

F
o
n
th

ill
 R

o
a
d

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

B
ri

d
g
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

B
ri

d
g
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 t

o
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

-b
y
-S

e
a
 l
in

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 1

8
4
0
 (

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 l
in

e
),

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 d
a
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 t
im

e
. 

 

B
u
ilt

 i
n
 b

u
ff

 b
ri

c
k
, 

w
it
h
 a

 l
o
w

, 
s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

l-
a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 p

ie
rs

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

 

R
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 p

a
n
e
ls

 o
f 

fl
in

t 
a
b
o
v
e
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

110



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
6
9

F
o
re

d
o
w

n
 R

o
a
d

5
4

T
h
e
 O

ld
 

F
o
rg

e
 a

n
d
 

F
o
rg

e
 

C
o
tt

a
g
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

R
u
ra

l 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

N
o
 C

A
B

ri
c
k
 o

n
e
-s

to
re

y
 f

o
rg

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

te
e
p
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f,

 g
a
b
le

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 A

d
jo

in
in

g
 t

h
is

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 i
s
 a

 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 s

h
a
llo

w
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
B

o
th

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
 1

8
4
1
 b

la
c
k
s
m

it
h
 A

b
e
l 
C

o
o
m

s
 

w
o
rk

e
d
 t

h
e
re

 a
n
d
 l
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
. 

 A
t 

th
is

 p
o
in

t,
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 o

p
e
n
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 l
a
n
d
, 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
a
s
t 

o
f 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

V
ill

a
g
e
. 

 T
h
e
 f

o
rg

e
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 c

.1
9
9
0
, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
in

 e
xi

s
ti
n
g
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r

o
o
f 

h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
u
p
v
c
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

to
 f

o
rm

 a
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
 e

n
ti
re

ly
 s

u
b
u
rb

a
n
 s

e
tt

in
g
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
0

F
o
re

d
o
w

n
 R

o
a
d

F
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

to
 

fo
rm

e
r 

Is
o
la

ti
o
n
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

(h
o
s
p
it
a
l)

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 F

o
re

d
o
w

n
 I

s
o
la

ti
o
n
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
8
7
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 d

is
e
a
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
rg

e
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 o

u
ts

e
t,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 

a
d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 f

lin
t 

w
a
ll 

m
a
rk

s
 t

h
e
 e

xt
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 w

e
s
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 o

f 
fi
e
ld

 f
lin

t 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 q

u
o
in

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 s

te
p
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 h

ill
. 

T
h
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
8
0
s
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

s
o
o
n
 a

ft
e
rw

a
rd

s
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
 o

f 
fl
in

t 
w

a
ll 

a
n
d
 t

o
w

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

 c
a
m

e
ra

 o
b
s
c
u
ra

, 
a
re

 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 

s
u
rv

iv
a
ls

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

H
E

 S
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
1

F
o
re

d
o
w

n
 R

o
a
d

F
o
re

d
o
w

n
 

T
o
w

e
r

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

W
a
te

r 
to

w
e
r 

(h
o
s
p
it
a
l)

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 F

o
re

d
o
w

n
 I

s
o
la

ti
o
n
 H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
8
7
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 d

is
e
a
s
e
s
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 s
o
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
9
 t

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 w

a
te

r 
to

w
e
r 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
re

s
s
u
ri

s
e
d
 w

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
, 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 2
7
,5

0
0
 g

a
llo

n
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r.
  

S
q
u
a
re

 i
n
 p

la
n
, 

it
 i
s
 o

f 
y
e
llo

w
 b

ri
c
k
 

w
it
h
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
e
s
, 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 t

a
n
k
. 

 T
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 w

a
te

r 
ta

n
k
 w

e
re

 2
7
 i
n
c
h
e
s
 t

h
ic

k
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
ts

 w
e
ig

h
t.

  
T

h
e
 w

a
te

r 
to

w
e
r 

w
a
s
 d

is
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
8
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 w

a
y
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

o
o
n
 a

ft
e
rw

a
rd

s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
fl
in

t 
w

a
ll 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

u
s
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

 c
a
m

e
ra

 o
b
s
c
u
ra

. 
 I

ts
 n

e
w

 u
s
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 r
o
o
f 

a
n
d
 g

la
zi

n
g
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t

a
n
k
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 

2
0
0
2
, 

H
E

 S
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
2

F
u
rz

e
 H

ill
F

u
rz

e
 C

ro
ft

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
7
 s

to
re

y
 m

o
d
e
rn

e
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

, 
1
9
3
6
 b

y
 T

o
m

s
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
T

h
e
 W

ic
k
/W

ic
k
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

u
ilt

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 B
e
ll 

M
o
d
e
rn

 F
la

ts
, 

w
h
o
 a

ls
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 W

ic
k
 H

a
ll.

  
W

a
lls

 o
f 

g
a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
, 

b
e
lo

w
 a

 f
la

t 
ro

o
f 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
v
ily

 

p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

ri
tt

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
s
ig

n
 h

a
s
 a

 h
o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
3

G
e
o
rg

e
 S

tr
e
e
t

8
5

O
ld

 F
ir

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
ir

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
, 

n
o
w

 c
a
fé

 a
n
d
 

fl
a
t

N
o
 C

A
G

e
o
rg

e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

s
 a

rt
is

a
n
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
w

 f
o
rm

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
’s

 p
ri

m
a
ry

 s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
ts

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
5
 G

e
o
rg

e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fo
rm

e
rl

y
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 H

o
v
e
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

F
ir

e
 B

ri
g
a
d
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 c

.1
8
7
9
 (

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

V
o
lu

n
te

e
r 

B
ri

g
a
d
e
),

 a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 i
n
 t

a
n
d
e
m

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
F

ir
e
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t.

  
A

 w
a
tc

h
 r

o
o
m

 w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

in
 

1
9
0
8
 b

y
 L

a
in

s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
. 

 I
t 

la
te

r 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
fi
re

 b
ri

g
a
d
e
 i
n
 1

9
1
4
. 

 P
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 f

ro
m

 1
9
1
0
 a

n
d
 

1
9
1
4
. 

 T
h
e
 b

ri
g
a
d
e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
s
e
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
2
6
, 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

m
o
v
e
d
 t

o
 l
a
rg

e
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 o

n
 H

o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

(a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  

T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 a

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
s
im

ila
rl

y
-s

c
a
le

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 S
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

to
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 f
a
s
c
ia

. 
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 H
o
v
e
 C

re
s
t 

lo
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
3
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
3
_
1
3
4
.h

tm
l 
h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
3
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
3
_
1
2
1
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
4

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

P
la

c
e

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

K
n
a
p
p
e
d
 f

lin
t 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

c
h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 1
9
0
3
 b

y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 B

a
in

e
s
 &

 S
o
n
, 

in
 t

h
e
 F

re
e
 P

e
rp

 s
ty

le
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 w
o
rk

. 
 I

t 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
ld

 t
o
 t

h
e
 U

n
io

n
 C

h
u
rc

h
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

 b
o
m

b
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
9
4
4
; 

th
e
 

d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 r
e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 f
ro

m
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
b
u
ilt

 t
o
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l.
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
0
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
0
_
0
8
7
.h

tm
l,
 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
0
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
0
_
0
8
2
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
5

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

R
o
a
d

G
a
le

e
d
 S

tr
ic

t 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

G
a
le

e
d
 S

tr
ic

t 
B

a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l,
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 1

5
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
8
6
8
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 B

e
n
ja

m
in

 N
u
n
n
 i
n
 N

e
o
c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 

o
f 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 s

m
a
ll 

o
c
u
lu

s
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

is
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 t

h
re

e
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 

th
re

e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
d
 b

y
 p

ila
s
te

rs
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 ‘
G

A
L
E

E
D

 A
.D

. 
1
8
6
8
’ 
is

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
re

 

is
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l-

s
ty

le
 g

a
s
 l
a
m

p
 f

ix
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

p
ila

s
te

r.
  

It
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

la
in

 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 (

n
o
t 

in
s
p
e
c
te

d
).

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
6

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

R
o
a
d

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

M
e
w

s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

M
ili

ta
ry

 -
 D

ri
ll 

H
a
ll

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

B
u
ilt

 a
ro

u
n
d
 1

8
7
0
 a

s
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
d
q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
A

rt
ill

e
ry

 V
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

, 
w

h
o
 h

a
d
 m

o
v
e
d
 f

ro
m

 C
h
u
rc

h
 S

tr
e
e
t.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

E
a
g
le

 I
ro

n
 F

o
u
n
d
ry

. 
 I

t 
is

 f
ir

s
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 O

S
 m

a
p
s
 a

s
 a

n
 ‘
a
rt

ill
e
ry

 d
e
p
o
t’
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
n
 a

s
 a

 d
ri

ll 
h
a
ll.

  
It

 w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

m
ili

ta
ry

 u
n
ti
l 
1
9
4
9
 (

la
s
tl
y
 a

s
 a

 T
A

 c
e
n
tr

e
),

 b
e
fo

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

s
a
g
e
n
ts

’ 
w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
re

e
 p

a
rt

s
 t

o
 

th
e
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
; 

a
ll 

o
f 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
, 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
a
rt

 i
s
 c

a
s
te

lla
te

d
, 

w
h
ils

t 
th

e
 o

u
te

r 
p
a
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
tr

ik
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

ri
c
k
 e

a
v
e
s
 

c
o
rn

ic
e
. 

 T
h
e
 l
e
ft

 p
o
rt

io
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 
a
 m

u
c
h
 l
a
te

r 
d
a
te

, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
p
o
o
re

r 
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
7

G
o
ld

s
to

n
e
 

V
ill

a
s

1
0
0

T
h
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 

C
A

B
u
ilt

 1
8
8
5
 a

n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 n
a
m

e
d
 T

h
e
 C

lif
to

n
v
ill

e
 H

o
te

l.
  

It
s
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
s
id

e
 H

o
v
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
s
 i
ts

 c
lo

s
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

ra
ilw

a
y
. 

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
rs

. 
 L

a
rg

e
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 f

u
ll 

e
xt

e
n
t 

o
f 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
S

p
a
n
d
re

l 
d
e
ta

ils
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

s
e
v
e
n
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 o

u
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 a

re
 p

a
ir

e
d
. 

 S
c
a
llo

p
-s

ty
le

 m
o
ti
f 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 H
e
a
v
y
 d

e
n
ti
l 

c
o
rn

ic
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

it
h
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
N

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

o
rm

e
rs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
4
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
4
_
0
6
7
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
8

G
o
ld

s
to

n
e
 

V
ill

a
s

E
u
ro

p
a
 

H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

, 
n
o
w

 

o
ff

ic
e
s

H
o
v
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 

C
A

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t 
c
h
a
p
e
l,
 b

u
ilt

 1
8
7
8
 i
n
 a

 n
e
o
-c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 o

v
e
r 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

. 
 S

q
u
a
re

-h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 a
n
d
 r

o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
P

ila
s
te

rs
 r

is
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

a
n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

, 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 s

im
p
le

 p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 b

u
lls

 e
y
e
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
  

S
im

ila
r 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 f

o
llo

w
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
9
6
8
 b

y
 E

d
w

a
rd

 C
u
lli

n
a
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 s

h
e
ll 

a
n
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

fl
o
o
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 

o
f 

a
 n

e
w

 r
e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t

o
p
 f

lo
o
r,

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 p

e
n
e
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l.
  

A
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

a
s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
 

s
ta

ir
c
a
s
e
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 m
ir

ro
re

d
 s

ta
ir

c
a
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.e

d
w

a
rd

c
u
lli

n
a
n
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

.c
o
m

/,
 h

tt
p
s
:/

/w
w

w
.r

o
y
a
la

c
a
d
e
m

y
.o

rg
.u

k
/a

rt
is

t/
3
3
 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
7
9

G
ra

n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e

G
ra

n
d
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
T

h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

B
u
ilt

 1
8
8
3
 a

s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 f
la

ts
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 1

0
 f

la
ts

 (
ra

n
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
re

e
 t

o
 f

iv
e
 b

e
d
ro

o
m

s
),

 w
it
h
 

s
ta

b
lin

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

a
u
lt
e
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
It

 w
a
s
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
re

d
 i
n
 1

9
8
1
-2

 t
o
 f

o
rm

 2
5
 u

n
it
s
. 

 T
w

o
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
u
n
it
s
 a

re
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
lo

c
k
 (

o
n
 C

h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
).

  
T

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 G
a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 a

 b
a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
C

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 

ra
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 s

to
n
e
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l,
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

t 
e
v
e
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 c
u
p
o
la

. 
 B

la
n
k
 w

a
ll 

to
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

s
o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 i
t 

w
a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 e

xt
e
n
d
 t

h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
lo

n
g
 G

ra
n
d
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
, 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
; 

th
is

 n
e
v
e
r 

h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
0

G
ra

n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 

F
a
c
u
lt
y
 o

f 
A

rt

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

B
u
ilt

 a
s
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 P

o
ly

te
c
h
n
ic

 F
a
c
u
lt
y
 o

f 
A

rt
 &

 D
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
 t

h
re

e
 p

h
a
s
e
s
; 

1
9
5
8
-6

1
, 

1
9
6
7
 a

n
d
 1

9
6
9
. 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

tw
o
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
y
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

P
e
rc

y
 B

ill
in

g
to

n
 w

it
h
 S

ir
 R

o
b
e
rt

 M
a
tt

h
e
w

 &
 S

 A
 W

 J
o
h
n
s
o
n
-M

a
rs

h
a
ll 

a
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
in

g
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

. 
A

ft
e
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 S

ir
 H

u
g
h
 

C
a
s
s
o
n
 a

ls
o
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

ra
is

in
g
 i
t 

o
v
e
r 

a
 p

o
d
iu

m
 a

n
d
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 m

o
re

 v
e
rt

ic
a
lit

y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
. 

P
h
a
s
e
 1

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

to
 

W
ill

ia
m

 S
tr

e
e
t;

 p
h
a
s
e
 t

w
o
 t

h
e
 K

in
g
s
w

o
o
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
tu

rn
 t

o
 G

ra
n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 G

ra
n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

9
6
9
 a

s
 

p
h
a
s
e
 3

. 
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 p

lu
s
 a

n
 a

n
g
le

d
 c

le
re

s
to

ry
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
n
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r 

s
it
e
. 

It
 h

a
s
 a

 c
o
n
c
a
v
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rv

e
 o

f 
G

ra
n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e
 

w
it
h
 a

 g
la

ze
d
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

s
e
t 

b
e
h
in

d
 p

ilo
ti
s
. 

T
w

o
 b

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
fe

n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

a
rt

ic
u
la

te
d
 i
n
 a

 r
h
y
th

m
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 w

id
th

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 

te
rr

a
c
e
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 K

in
g
s
w

o
o
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 f

o
u
r 

p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 b

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

s
la

n
ti
n
g
 b

a
c
k
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

111



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
1

G
ra

n
d
 P

a
ra

d
e
/ 

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

P
la

c
e
/ 

M
a
rl

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
la

c
e

V
ic

to
ri

a
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

T
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 a

 p
o
o
rl

y
-d

ra
in

e
d
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 l
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rm
it
te

n
t 

W
e
lle

s
b
o
u
rn

e
 s

tr
e
a
m

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 a

lo
n
g
 i
ts

 w
e
s
te

rn
 

s
id

e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

d
ry

in
g
 n

e
ts

 a
n
d
 s

to
ri

n
g
 b

o
a
ts

. 
 W

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

is
e
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

s
 a

 f
a
s
h
io

n
a
b
le

 r
e
s
o
rt

, 
th

e
 a

re
a
 b

e
g
a
n
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
in

g
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
c
lo

s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 O

ld
 S

te
in

e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
 1

7
7
8
, 

th
e
 a

re
a
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 w

e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 1

7
8
7
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 

a
re

a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

 V
a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 S

te
in

e
 E

n
c
lo

s
u
re

s
, 

V
ic

to
ri

a
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 o
p
e
n
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
c
ri

b
e
rs

. 
 I

n
 1

8
8
3
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

n
c
lo

s
u
re

 w
a
s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 a

n
 e

n
c
ir

c
lin

g
 p

a
th

 

m
a
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 e
n
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 e

xc
lu

s
iv

e
 u

s
e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
8
9
6
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t

h
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

o
rn

a
m

e
n
ta

l 

la
y
o
u
t 

w
it
h
 d

w
a
rf

 f
e
n
c
e
s
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 l
is

te
d
 s

ta
tu

e
 o

f 
Q

u
e
e
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 5

 s
ta

tu
e
s
 o

f 

a
lle

g
o
ri

c
a
l 
fi
g
u
re

s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 o

n
ly

 t
w

o
 b

lin
d
 p

lin
th

s
 r

e
m

a
in

. 
 T

h
e
 M

a
zd

a
 E

le
c
tr

ic
 F

o
u
n
ta

in
 s

ta
n
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 G
iv

e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 

in
 1

9
3
0
 b

y
 T

h
o
m

s
o
n
-H

o
u
s
to

n
 L

td
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 e

xh
ib

it
io

n
, 

it
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 w
a
s
 i
llu

m
in

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 b
e
lo

w
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

o
lo

u
re

d
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 

fo
u
n
ta

in
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
b
o
x 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 w

e
s
t 

p
a
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 w
it
h
 m

u
lt
i-

c
o
lo

u
re

d
 ‘
s
u
n
b
e
a
m

’ 
s
ta

in
e
d
 g

la
s
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

B
e
rr

y
 

2
0
0
0
 i
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
 H

is
to

ry
 V

o
l 
2
8
, 

N
o
 2

.,
 C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

V
a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y
 1

9
9
5

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
2

G
re

e
n
w

a
y
s

6
-1

0
B

e
a
c
o
n
 C

o
u
rt

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
6
-1

0
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 C

o
u
rt

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
 t

w
o
 f

o
rm

e
r 

1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

a
rn

s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 G

ra
n
g
e
 F

a
rm

; 
o
n
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 f

a
rm

 c
o
m

p
le

xe
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 o

f 

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 o

n
e
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

a
rn

, 
w

it
h
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
, 

a
n
d
 a

 s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 b

a
rn

. 
 T

h
e
 b

a
rn

s
 h

a
v
e
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 

b
ri

c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

a
n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 o

r 
h
a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 G

ra
n
g
e
 F

a
rm

 w
a
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 G

ra
n
g
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 L

o
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 M

a
n
o
r,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 u

s
e
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 a

s
 a

 f
a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t

e
n
a
n
t 

fa
rm

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

1
9
8
0
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 (

1
-5

 B
e
a
c
o
n
 C

o
u
rt

) 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
fl
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
fl
ig

h
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 e

ro
d
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x’
s
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  

T
h
e
y
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
ir

 f
a
rm

 y
a
rd

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
v
e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

. 
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 

h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 ‘
s
u
b
u
rb

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’ 
o
f 

th
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 g

a
rd

e
n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
3

G
re

e
n
w

a
y
s

5
0
 a

n
d
 5

2
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
F

a
rm

w
o
rk

e
r’
s
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
. 

 D
a
te

d
 1

8
9
2
. 

 F
lin

t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 s

in
g
le

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
ri

d
g
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
. 

 S
e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
p
a
ir

. 
 S

in
g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

g
a
b
le

. 
 T

h
re

e
-b

ri
c
k
 d

e
e
p
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

 

F
ro

n
t 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 s

e
t 

to
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 o

p
e
n
-s

id
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
. 

 P
o
rc

h
e
s
 a

re
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 (
b
u
t 

d
o
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
) 

th
o
s
e
 t

o
 1

2
0
-1

2
4
 V

a
le

 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 (

b
u
ilt

 b
y
 A

b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n
 1

9
0
9
).

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 c

re
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 N

e
v
ill

 F
a
m

ily
, 

s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
G

a
rt

e
r.

  
W

ill
ia

m
 

N
e
v
ill

, 
1

s
t  M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

A
b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

 K
n
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
G

a
rt

e
r 

in
 1

8
8
6
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

e
d
 a

s
 L

o
rd

-L
ie

u
te

n
a
n
t 

o
f 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
9
2
 

a
n
d
 1

9
0
5
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
u
d
o
r 

ro
s
e
 a

n
d
 p

o
rt

c
u
lli

s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

re
s
t,

 a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

tu
d
o
r 

ro
s
e
s
 s

e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

T
h
e
s
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
t 

N
e
v
ill

’s
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

a
s
 L

o
rd

-L
ie

u
te

n
a
n
t 

o
f 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

a
n
d
, 

m
o
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
, 

h
is

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
fa

m
ily

 

a
n
d
 P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

a
t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

w
it
h
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 H

ill
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ru
n
n
in

g
a
n
d
p
ri

c
e
.c

o
.u

k
/n

e
v
ill

c
re

s
ta

n
d
g
u
n
/h

is
to

ry
/ 

h
tt

p
:/

/t
h
e
p
e
e
ra

g
e
.c

o
m

/p
1
4
3
9
.h

tm
#
i1

4
3
8
9
 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
4

H
a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 

R
o
a
d

1
S

ta
ti
o
n
 H

o
te

l
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

d
a
te

d
 1

8
9
4
, 

w
it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

H
a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

H
a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 R

o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

a
b
le

 s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 s
to

n
e
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 a

 d
o
o
r 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 

b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 f

a
s
c
ia

 b
o
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 f

a
s
c
ia

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 r

o
u
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 W

o
o
d
s
id

e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
n
d
 t

w
o
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
T

h
e
s
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 l
ik

e
ly

 m
a
tc

h
e
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 H

a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 R

o
a
d
 b

y
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

o
o
r 

p
la

c
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
lly

, 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
in

g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 

 P
a
ir

e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
5

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 

M
ile

 O
a
k
 R

o
a
d

F
lin

t 
w

a
lls

 

lin
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 

v
ill

a
g
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

N
o
 C

A
F

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 l
in

in
g
 w

e
s
te

rn
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 h

is
to

ri
c
 v

ill
a
g
e
 o

f 
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
re

 o
f 

v
a
ry

in
g
 h

e
ig

h
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
; 

re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
ir

 p
ie

c
e
m

e
a
l 

d
a
te

s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

h
is

to
ri

c
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 a

n
d
 1

0
1
-1

0
2
 

A
p
p
le

s
h
a
m

 W
a
y
 a

n
d
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t;

 t
h
e
s
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 h

is
to

ri
c
 w

a
lls

 t
o
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 H

o
u
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 a

 s
u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 b

ri
d
g
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 b

ri
d
g
e
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 t

w
o
 h

a
lv

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 w

a
lls

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
lm

o
s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

, 
m

a
rk

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

ro
v
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 a

re
: 

A
p
p
le

s
h
a
m

 W
a
y
, 

9
9
 (

s
id

e
 w

a
ll)

, 
1
0
1
-1

0
2
 (

re
a
r 

w
a
lls

);
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 1
 (

s
id

e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

w
a
lls

),
 3

-7
 (

o
d
d
, 

fr
o
n
t 

w
a
lls

);
 H

ig
h
 C

lo
s
e
, 

1
, 

1
2
 (

s
id

e
 w

a
lls

);
 M

e
lr

o
s
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

5
9
 (

s
id

e
 w

a
ll)

; 
M

ile
 O

a
k
 R

o
a
d
, 

3
3
 (

a
ll 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
),

 P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 (

fr
o
n
t 

w
a
ll)

; 
W

in
d
le

s
h
a
m

 C
lo

s
e
, 

2
a
 (

fr
o
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

id
e
 w

a
lls

);
 

V
a
lle

y
 R

o
a
d
, 

1
 (

s
id

e
 w

a
ll)

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
6

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

5
4

Q
u
e
e
n
 

V
ic

to
ri

a
 

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

L
o
n
g
, 

n
a
rr

o
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t.

  
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
ile

d
 

ro
o
f.

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

fe
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 e

xt
e
n
d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 h
a
n
g
in

g
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
 

s
e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 n

a
m

e
 ‘
T

h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
’ 
in

s
c
ri

b
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 N
a
m

e
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 f

a
n
lig

h
t.

  
B

u
ilt

 

1
9
3
0
s
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 M

a
ri

n
e
 D

ri
v
e
 (

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

b
e
y
o
n
d
) 

w
e
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
w

o
rk

e
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
2

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
7

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
0
0

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l,
 n

o
w

 

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 a

n
d
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 F
lin

t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 l
a
te

r 
in

s
e
rt

e
d
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

, 
h
e
a
v
y
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 

to
 t

h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

. 
 G

a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 d

a
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
; 

c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 w

it
h
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 

lo
w

e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

S
te

y
n
in

g
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t.

  
In

 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
t 

w
a
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 V

ie
w

 H
o
te

l.
  

It
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 

re
ta

il 
a
n
d
 f

la
ts

. 
 A

n
 o

u
ts

h
o
t 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 f

ro
n
ts

 o
n
 t

o
 S

te
y
n
in

g
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 o

f 
fi
e
ld

 f
lin

t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

a
ll 

th
a
t 

e
xt

e
n
d
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 o

f 
S

te
y
n
in

g
 R

o
a
d
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
8

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

R
e
a
d
in

g
 

R
o
o
m

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
a
ll

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

S
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 f

lin
t 

a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f,

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
8
5
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 f

ro
n
te

d
 o

n
to

 a
 v

ill
a
g
e
 s

q
u
a
re

, 
s
e
t 

b
e
s
id

e
 

th
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
  

It
 s

ti
ll 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

s
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 a
t 

it
s
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 N

e
v
ill

 R
o
a
d
. 

 I
ts

 e
a
rl

y
 h

is
to

ry
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

P
a
ri

s
h
 C

h
u
rc

h
, 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

lib
ra

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
h
a
ll.

  
It

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
n
o
o
k
e
r 

h
a
ll.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
8
9

H
ig

h
d
o
w

n
 R

o
a
d

4
8
, 

4
8
A

 a
n
d
 

4
8
B

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
 +

 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti

o
n
 a

b
o
v
e

N
o
 C

A
T

u
rn

 o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t

o
 g

a
b
le

t,
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 r

id
g
e
 t

ile
s
. 

 F
o
rm

e
rl

y
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

b
a
k
e
ry

 s
h
o
p
, 

th
e
 b

a
k
e
ry

 i
ts

e
lf
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

(4
8
a
).

  
It

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

a
k
e
h
o
u
s
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 a

n
d
 

w
o
o
d
e
n
 b

e
a
m

s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
u
rt

y
a
rd

 i
s
 l
a
id

 i
n
 b

ri
c
k
 p

a
v
e
rs

. 
 T

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t,

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 

fo
rm

s
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 (
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 c

o
rb

e
ls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fa

s
c
ia

s
).

  
It

 i
s
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

to
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 

 C
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 w

in
d
o
w

 f
ra

m
e
s
 w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

p
a
n
d
re

ls
 a

n
d
 c

u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
. 

 P
a
ir

e
d
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 C
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

t.
  

C
h
im

n
e
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
lls

.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
0

H
ill

s
id

e
S

t 
A

n
d
re

w
's

 

C
h
u
rc

h

M
o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
R

e
d
-b

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 c

h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 C
ru

c
if
o
rm

 i
n
 p

la
n
, 

w
it
h
 t

ile
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

o
w

e
r 

to
 ‘
w

e
s
t’
 e

n
d
 (

a
c
tu

a
lly

 s
o
u
th

w
e
s
t)

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

m
o
n
o
lit

h
ic

, 
w

it
h
 s

tr
o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

lit
y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 w
id

th
, 

b
ro

a
d
 l
o
u
v
re

d
 b

e
lf
ry

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 b

a
n
d
in

g
. 

 C
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

(2
0
1
3
) 

to
 r

e
c
a
ll 

L
u
ty

e
n
’s

 T
h
ie

p
v
a
l 
m

e
m

o
ri

a
l 
b
u
ilt

 j
u
s
t 

a
 y

e
a
r 

e
a
rl

ie
r.

  
R

o
u
n
d
 a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
n
d
 d

o
o
r 

o
p
e
n
in

g
s
. 

 R
e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
 m

o
re

 

A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 C

ra
ft

s
 i
n
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  

R
e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 S

t 
A

n
d
re

w
 (

w
h
o
 w

a
s
 a

 f
is

h
e
rm

a
n
),

 t
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

o
f 

th
e
 r

o
o
f 

is
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
e
m

b
le

 a
n
 

u
p
tu

rn
e
d
 f

is
h
in

g
 b

o
a
t.

  
E

re
c
te

d
 1

9
3
3
-4

 t
o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
L
. 

K
e
ir

 H
e
tt

; 
h
is

 f
ir

s
t 

c
h
u
rc

h
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 p

a
id

 f
o
r 

b
y
 h

is
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
 I

t 
re

p
la

c
e
d
 

a
n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 c

h
u
rc

h
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 m

o
s
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
1
3
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

112



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
1

H
o
lla

n
d
 R

o
a
d

1
-3

T
h
e
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

A
n
 i
n
n
 a

n
d
 s

ta
b
le

s
 w

e
re

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
it
e
 i
n
 1

8
3
4
. 

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 i
n
 1

9
2
5
, 

w
h
o
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 r
e
b
u
ild

 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
 i
n
 1

9
3
8
. 

 A
t 

th
a
t 

p
o
in

t 
C

e
c
il 

T
 B

e
n
n
e
tt

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 T
a
m

p
lin

’s
 u

s
u
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

w
a
s
 A

rt
h
u
r 

P
a
c
k
h
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
y
 s

o
ld

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
 i
n
 1

9
6
3
. 

 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

ty
le

 a
s
 a

 ‘
s
u
b
tl
e
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 m

o
d
e
rn

’.
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

o
n
 b

ri
c
k
 p

lin
th

 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t

w
o
 l
a
rg

e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
b
a
y
s
 c

a
p
p
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
ic

a
l 
ro

o
fs

 g
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
tu

rr
e
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 a
n
d
 r

o
o
fs

 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 d

o
m

in
a
n
t 

fe
a
tu

re
s
. 

 B
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

e
rs

, 
th

e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
re

e
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

fo
rm

in
g
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

to
n
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 f

lu
te

d
 p

ila
s
te

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
C

ri
tt

a
l 

s
ty

le
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
a
 p

ro
b
a
b
le

 c
a
rt

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
fi
lle

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 m
u
s
ic

 v
e
n
u
e
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 i
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 

b
e
e
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll.

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
0
8
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-c

.h
tm

l,
 h

tt
p
:/

/p
u
b
s
h
is

to
ry

.c
o
m

/S
u
s
s
e
xP

u
b
s
/B

ri
g
h
to

n
/B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
.s

h
tm

l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
2

H
o
lla

n
d
 R

o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 H

e
b
re

w
 

C
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 

S
y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

J
e
w

is
h

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 b
u
ilt

 a
s
 a

 g
y
m

n
a
s
iu

m
 i
n
 1

8
8
3
 b

y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 F

u
lle

r,
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

 S
y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e
 i
n
 1

9
2
9
-3

0
 b

y
 M

a
rc

u
s
 G

la
s
s
. 

 T
h
e
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 i
s
 

b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
fi
rm

 C
o
x 

&
 B

a
rn

a
rd

. 
 I

t 
d
is

p
la

y
s
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
, 

re
m

in
is

c
e
n
t 

o
f 

V
ie

n
n
e
s
e
 J

u
g
e
n
d
s
ti
l.
  

M
a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 

s
h
a
llo

w
-a

rc
h
; 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
h
a
llo

w
 a

rc
h
w

a
y
 w

it
h
 H

e
b
re

w
 I

n
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 p

a
ir

e
d
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 s

ix
-

lig
h
t 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
3

H
o
v
e
 P

la
c
e

9
L
e
ic

e
s
te

r 

L
o
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 

W
a
lls

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 r

o
o
f 

la
rg

e
ly

 c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 p
a
ra

p
e
t.

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
rt

ic
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 b
a
lc

o
n
y
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 w

it
h
 s

le
n
d
e
r 

tw
is

te
d
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 

S
o
lid

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
lls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
is

e
d
 p

a
n
e
ls

, 
p
y
ra

m
id

-c
a
p
p
e
d
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 l
a
m

p
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rt

h
ro

w
. 

 H
o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

w
o
 

m
a
n
s
io

n
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 1

9
8
9
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
4

H
o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

3
T

h
e
 G

in
g
e
r 

P
ig

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

O
ld

 H
o
v
e
 C

A
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

le
h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
 a

s
 e

a
rl

y
 a

s
 1

5
7
8
, 

a
n
d
 a

 ‘
S

h
ip

 I
n
n
’ 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 (
o
r 

re
b
u
ilt

) 
in

 1
7
0
2
. 

 T
h
is

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 

h
o
u
s
e
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 r

u
m

o
u
re

d
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 f
a
v
o
u
re

d
 w

a
te

ri
n
g
-h

o
le

 f
o
r 

s
m

u
g
g
le

rs
. 

 A
 r

o
a
d
-w

id
e
n
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

is
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
1
4
 b

y
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

B
re

w
e
ry

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
m

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 H
o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
T

h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 G

a
rr

e
tt

. 
 I

n
 1

9
1
5
 W

.E
.L

y
n
n
 w

a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 I
n
 1

9
1
6
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 t

o
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 o

w
n
 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
6
3
. 

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 n
a
m

e
d
 T

h
e
 G

in
g
e
r 

P
ig

. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
re

e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 f

a
s
c
ia

 e
xt

e
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

  
 T

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

; 
th

e
 f

a
s
c
ia

 r
is

e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

d
e
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

 r
o
u
n
d
 p

la
q
u
e
 d

e
p
ic

ti
n
g
 a

 s
h
ip

 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 i
t.

 M
o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r-

fr
a
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 

 T
ile

d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

2
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-i

n
d
e
x-

g
-n

.h
tm

l

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
5

H
o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

F
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
9
 

a
n
d
 H

o
v
e
 

M
a
n
o
r 

F
la

ts

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

O
ld

 H
o
v
e
 C

A
T

a
ll 

fl
in

t 
w

a
ll.

  
C

o
u
rs

e
d
 f

lin
t 

p
e
b
b
le

s
 s

e
t 

in
 l
im

e
 m

o
rt

a
r.

  
T

e
rm

in
a
te

s
 i
n
 p

ie
r 

to
 w

e
s
t,

 w
it
h
 g

re
e
n
s
a
n
d
 s

a
n
d
s
to

n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
v
ill

a
g
e
 

o
f 

H
o
v
e
 w

a
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 a

lo
n
g
 H

o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 o

f 
a
 f

e
w

 h
o
u
s
e
s
, 

c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 M
a
n
o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 w

a
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

w
a
y
 f

ro
m

 

th
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
a
s
t 

(S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
's

 C
h
u
rc

h
).

  
T

h
e
 w

a
ll 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 g
a
rd

e
n
 w

a
ll 

to
 H

o
v
e
 M

a
n
o
r.

  
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 H

o
v
e
 H

o
u
s
e
, 

it
 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 f

ir
s
t 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
. 

 S
o
m

e
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 s

ta
te

 t
h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

7
8
5
, 

b
u
t 

it
 m

a
y
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
 b

e
 a

n
 o

ld
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 

re
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
n
a
m

e
d
 H

o
v
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

in
 1

8
6
7
 w

h
e
n
 J

o
h
n
 O

lli
v
e
r 

V
a
lla

n
c
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
o
ri

a
l 
ri

g
h
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 

d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
6
. 

 H
is

to
ri

c
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
s
 s

h
o
w

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 w
a
ll 

in
 t

h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

n
ly

 t
h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 t

h
ir

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
0
s
 a

n
d
 c

.1
9
1
0
 m

a
p
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

u
ll 

w
a
ll 

is
 o

n
ly

 a
g
a
in

 e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
is

 c
o
in

c
id

e
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
s
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
6

H
o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

R
e
g
e
n
t 

H
o
u
s
e
 &

 

A
u
d
le

y
 H

o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
ir

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
, 

n
o
w

 f
la

ts

O
ld

 H
o
v
e
 C

A
F

ir
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
, 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 1

9
2
6
, 

a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 a
s
 a

 f
ir

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 

o
n
 G

e
o
rg

e
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 H
o
v
e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
1
9
7
6
 (

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

re
lo

c
a
te

d
 t

o
 E

n
g
lis

h
 C

lo
s
e
).

  
7
 b

a
y
 –

 a
lm

o
s
t 

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
- 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
3
 b

a
y
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
lig

h
tl
y
. 

 P
a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 b

a
y
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 

(p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 d
o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
e
 e

n
g
in

e
s
),

 a
n
d
 t

w
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

m
o
s
t 

b
a
y
s
. 

 B
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

 w
it
h
 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
b
e
ll 

c
o
te

. 
 F

la
t 

1
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

n
 a

rt
 d

e
c
o
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 1

9
8
1
, 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 D

e
n
is

 H
a
w

e
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
7

Is
lin

g
w

o
rd

 R
o
a
d

1
2
9

H
o
rs

e
 a

n
d
 

G
ro

o
m

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

ile
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 C

o
le

m
a
n
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 F
a
s
c
ia

 a
n
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 ‘
U

n
it
e
d
’ 
B

re
w

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 &
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 

B
re

w
e
ri

e
s
 L

td
. 

 T
h
is

 b
re

w
e
ry

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 U
n
it
e
d
 b

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
's

 R
o
c
k
 b

re
w

e
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

re
e
n
-

ti
le

d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
's

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 N
o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
8

K
in

g
’s

 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

S
h
e
lt
e
rs

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

S
h
e
lt
e
r

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 7
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
e
lt
e
rs

 o
n
 H

o
v
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t,

 b
u
ilt

 b
y
 H

o
v
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
: 

P
a
in

te
d
 c

a
s
t-

ir
o
n
 w

it
h
 g

la
ze

d
 p

a
n
e
ls

. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 

s
p
in

e
 w

it
h
 U

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 t

e
rm

in
a
ls

. 
 S

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y
 w

it
h
 f

la
t 

ro
o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

p
ie

rc
e
d
 w

it
h
 q

u
a
tr

e
fo

il 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 b

a
ll 

fi
n
ia

ls
. 

 D
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 t

o
 d

e
e
p
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

n
 s

h
a
p
e
d
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 s
p
ri

n
g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
a
s
t-

ir
o
n
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

 D
a
d
o
 p

a
n
e
ls

 w
it
h
 r

e
lie

f 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 s

h
ip

 –
 t

h
e
 s

y
m

b
o
l 
o
f 

H
o
v
e
. 

 5
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I

I.
  

It
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 t

w
o
 a

re
 t

h
o
s
e
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 

s
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 

o
f 

K
in

g
 A

lf
re

d
’s

 L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

G
le

n
d
o
r 

R
o
a
d
; 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

(e
ig

h
th

) 

s
h
e
lt
e
r 

is
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

M
e
d
in

a
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 T
h
is

 d
is

p
la

y
s
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
ta

ils
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 

S
o
u
th

e
rn

 W
a
te

r 
a
p
p
a
ra

tu
s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
u
s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
.

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
0
9
9

K
in

g
s
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

M
e
d
in

a
 

H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
a
th

 h
o
u
s
e

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 M
e
d
in

a
 H

o
u
s
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 l
a
rg

e
r 

s
it
e
, 

M
e
d
in

a
 B

a
th

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

P
B

 C
h
a
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 H

o
v
e
 B

a
th

 

a
n
d
 L

a
u
n
d
ry

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 i
n
 1

8
9
3
-4

. 
 M

e
d
in

a
 H

o
u
s
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 a

 l
a
u
n
d
ry

 a
n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
’s

 s
lip

p
e
r 

b
a
th

s
. 

 S
w

im
m

in
g
 p

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

lip
p
e
r 

b
a
th

s
 

fo
r 

m
e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

e
re

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 P
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
m

e
n
’s

 s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

o
o
l 
s
u
rv

iv
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

ti
le

s
 i
n
 a

 b
o
ld

 p
s
e
u
d
o
-A

ra
b
ic

 s
ty

le
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 t

u
rn

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 T

u
rk

is
h
 b

a
th

s
 i
n
 1

9
0
6
, 

a
n
d
 l
a
te

r 
u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 d
ia

m
o
n
d
 f

a
c
to

ry
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

M
e
d
in

a
 H

o
u
s
e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 B

ri
e
f

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
0

K
in

g
's

 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

K
in

g
s
 L

a
w

n
 

ra
ili

n
g
s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

C
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 b

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 K

in
g
s
 L

a
w

n
s
. 

 P
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 d

o
g
 r

a
il,

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 b

a
rs

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 r

a
il,

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 w

it
h
 s

c
ro

lle
d
 b

a
c
k
 s

ta
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

e
rm

in
a
te

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

e
n
d
 i
n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 p

ie
r,

 

w
it
h
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

ri
c
k
 b

a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
to

n
e
 c

a
p
. 

 A
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 (

n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
s
a
b
le

) 
is

 s
e
t 

a
p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 c

e
n
tr

a
lly

. 
 I

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
g
a
te

 i
s
 m

is
s
in

g
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
, 

o
c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
g
a
te

 p
o
s
ts

 s
u
rv

iv
e
. 

 K
in

g
s
 L

a
w

n
s
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

H
o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 f

ro
m

 S
t 

J
o
h
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 t

o
 F

o
u
rt

h
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 (

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  

P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
, 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
r 

p
ri

v
a
te

 u
s
e
. 

 

H
o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 1

9
4
8
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

a
w

n
s
 a

s
 a

 p
ri

v
a
te

 s
p
a
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
1

K
in

g
's

 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

ra
ili

n
g
s
 (

H
o
v
e
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

to
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
, 

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
, 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

a
s

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

ra
ili

n
g
s
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 d
a
m

a
g
in

g
 s

to
rm

 i
n
 1

8
8
0
, 

it
 w

a
s
 d

e
c
id

e
d
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 a
 s

e
a
 w

a
ll 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 b

e
a
c
h
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 f

u
tu

re
 s

to
rm

 d
a
m

a
g
e
. 

 T
h
e
 w

o
rk

s
 w

e
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

ir
 J

o
h
n
 C

o
o
d
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
8
4
-1

8
8
6
. 

 T
h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

ra
ili

n
g
s
. 

 A
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
m

e
s
 G

ra
y
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 f

u
ll 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

 C
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
, 

th
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 

a
re

 p
a
in

te
d
 d

a
rk

 g
re

e
n
 (

B
S

 4
8
0
0
 1

4
 C

 3
9
) 

w
it
h
 a

 s
ilv

e
r 

h
a
n
d
ra

il;
 g

ra
n
it
e
 s

te
p
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

e
a
c
h
 a

t 
re

g
u
la

r 
in

te
rv

a
ls

. 
 E

a
c
h
 r

a
ili

n
g
 

p
a
n
e
l 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

w
o
 h

e
ra

ld
ic

 s
h
ie

ld
s
; 

a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 e

a
c
h
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
re

e
 m

a
rt

le
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
rt

le
ts

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 a
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

re
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
 A

d
e
la

id
e
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 f

ir
s
t,

 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u
ll 

le
n
g
th

. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 1

9
7
9
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
1
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
1
_
1
6
8
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
2

K
in

g
's

 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S
t 

A
u
b
y
n
s
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
1
8
9
9
 b

y
 L

a
in

s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
s
. 

 B
lo

c
k
 o

f 
8
 f

la
ts

, 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

4
 f

lo
o
rs

 w
it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 f

o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 l
a
rg

e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

y
 L

a
in

s
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

th
is

 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 b
u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
th

is
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
. 

 S
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
d
u
tc

h
 g

a
b
le

s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
 a

n
d
 a

 t
u
rr

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

w
e
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r.

  
M

a
in

 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

(s
o
u
th

) 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 H
e
a
v
y
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
s
. 

 U
n
u
s
u
a
lly

, 
th

e
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

is
 p

a
in

te
d
 y

e
llo

w
, 

w
it
h
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
d
e
ta

ils
 p

ic
k
e
d
 o

u
t 

in
 w

h
it
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

113



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
3

K
in

g
's

 G
a
rd

e
n
s

5
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

D
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
, 

te
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
. 

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 s

ty
le

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 1

8
8
9
 b

y
 J

.T
.C

h
a
p
p
e
ll.

  
T

h
re

e
 

s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 a
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 b

a
y
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

lc
o
v
e
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 b
a
y
 (

w
it
h
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f

a
n
lig

h
ts

) 

a
n
d
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 S
h
a
p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

s
la

b
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
ta

c
k
s
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 b

a
n
d
s
. 

 D
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 a

n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 f

ro
n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
4

K
in

g
's

 R
o
a
d

3
1

O
ld

 S
h
ip

 

H
o
te

l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l
O

ld
 T

o
w

n
 C

A
H

o
te

l,
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 1

6
0
0
 i
n
 S

h
ip

 S
tr

e
e
t.

  
It

 i
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 n

a
m

e
 r

e
fe

rs
 t

o
 i
ts

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 p

a
rt

ly
 f

ro
m

 s
h
ip

’s
 t

im
b
e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

w
a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 N

ic
h
o
la

s
 T

e
tt

e
rs

e
ll 

in
 1

6
7
1
, 

th
e
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

o
a
t 

th
a
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 t

h
e
 f

le
e
in

g
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 I

I 
to

 F
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 1

6
5
1
. 

In
te

ri
o
r 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 

fi
rs

t-
fl
o
o
r 

A
s
s
e
m

b
ly

 R
o
o
m

 (
lis

te
d
) 

a
n
d
 B

a
llr

o
o
m

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 1

7
6
1
 b

y
 R

o
b
e
rt

 G
o
ld

e
n
. 

 G
o
ld

e
n
 a

ls
o
 r

e
d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 o

th
e
r 

ro
o
m

s
 a

t 
th

is
 d

a
te

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 w

it
h
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
’s

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 a

 h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
s
o
rt

. 
 S

e
a
w

a
rd

 f
a
c
in

g
 p

lo
t 

a
c
q
u
ir

e
d
 1

7
9
4
 (

c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
),

 f
ro

m
 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 

e
xp

a
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t:

 S
h
ip

 S
tr

e
e
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

b
lo

c
k
 a

d
d
e
d
 1

8
3
8
; 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
5
; 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 

a
n
d
 g

a
ra

g
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 1

9
2
7
-8

; 
b
lo

c
k
 o

n
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

K
in

g
’s

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 B

la
c
k
 L

io
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

re
b
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
6
3
-4

 b
y
 D

e
n
m

a
n
 &

 S
o
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

M
o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0
.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
5

K
in

g
's

 R
o
a
d

1
0
6
-1

2
1

M
e
tr

o
p
o
le

 

H
o
te

l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

H
o
te

l,
 1

8
8
8
-9

0
 b

y
 A

lf
re

d
 W

a
te

rh
o
u
s
e
 f

o
r 

G
o
rd

o
n
 H

o
te

l 
C

o
. 

(o
n
e
 o

f 
B

ri
ta

in
’s

 f
ir

s
t 

h
o
te

l 
c
h
a
in

s
).

  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
. 

 L
a
rg

e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 

o
p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
C

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 b

y
 1

9
6
1
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 b

y
 R

. 
S

e
if
e
rt

 &
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

w
a
s
 a

ls
o
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
. 

 O
th

e
r 

1
9
6
0
s
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
a
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

H
e
ig

h
ts

) 
a
ls

o
 b

y
 S

e
if
e
rt

 d
o
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
6

K
in

g
's

 R
o
a
d

1
3
3
-1

3
4

A
s
tr

a
 H

o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
 +

 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

B
u
ilt

 1
9
3
8
, 

1
0
 s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 w
it
h
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
A

rt
 D

e
c
o
, 

w
it
h
 l
a
te

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 a

n
d
 N

e
o
-C

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
. 

 

S
to

n
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
rs

, 
b
ri

c
k
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
o
 K

in
g
’s

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

tw
o
 s

to
n
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 r

is
e
 f

ro
m

 3
rd

 t
o
 7

th
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 8
th
-1

0
th
 f

lo
o
rs

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 w

e
s
t,

 g
iv

in
g
 a

 z
ig

g
u
ra

t 
s
k
y
lin

e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 f

la
ts

. 
P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 (

s
e
rv

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
).

 S
a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 c

o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 

b
a
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 –

 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 C
lu

b
 –

 b
u
ilt

 1
8
7
6
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

u
ild

in
g
o
p
in

io
n
s
.c

o
m

/2
0
1
2
/1

2
/1

8
/a

s
tr

a
-

h
o
u
s
e
/ 

 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
7

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

H
o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
w

n
s

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

/B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

H
o
v
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 i
s
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
te

rm
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
w

n
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
’s

 s
e
a
fr

o
n
t.

  
It

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 S

t 
J
o
h
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 (

c
a
lle

d
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 L

a
w

n
s
);

 a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

fr
o
m

 S
t 

J
o
h
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 t

o
 F

o
u
rt

h
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 (

n
a
m

e
d
 K

in
g
’s

 L
a
w

n
s
 -

 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 W

e
s
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
 L

a
w

n
s
).

  
T

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 

th
e
 1

8
3
0
 A

c
t 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 E

s
ta

te
 l
a
id

 d
o
w

n
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 e

re
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 l
a
w

n
s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
e
 f

a
s
h
io

n
a
b
le

 s
e
t 

in
to

 t
h
e
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 W

e
s
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
 L

a
w

n
s
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 

fo
r 

p
ri

v
a
te

 u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
o
s
e
 l
iv

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 H
o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
ir

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 1

9
4
8
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
y
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 

T
h
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 o

f 
a
n
 o

p
e
n
 t

ra
c
t 

o
f 

g
ra

s
s
e
d
 l
a
w

n
, 

in
te

rs
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 l
in

e
a
r 

p
a
th

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t.

  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
; 

th
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 i
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 w

a
ll 

o
r 

ra
ili

n
g
s
 (

th
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

w
e
re

 e
re

c
te

d
 i
n
 c

.1
9
0
1
).

  
T

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 h
a
s
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 

(a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  

H
is

to
ri

c
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

a
w

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 l
it
tl
e
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
e
e
n
 s

lo
p
in

g
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

ll 
fl
a
t.

  
K

in
g
’s

 L
a
w

n
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 h
a
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 (

h
e
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 f

lo
w

e
r 

b
e
d
s
) 

to
 i
ts

 n
o
rt

h
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 1

9
4
9
. 

 A
 h

y
d
ra

u
lic

 e
n
g
in

e
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 l
a
w

n
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 s

e
a
 w

a
te

r 
to

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 t
w

o
 s

h
e
lt
e
rs

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 L

a
w

n
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 T

h
e
 D

ri
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

e
p
lic

a
s
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 

s
h
e
lt
e
rs

; 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
ls

 w
e
re

 b
lo

w
n
 d

o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

u
rr

ic
a
n
e
 o

f 
1
9
8
7
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
8

L
a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 

R
o
a
d

1
-6

M
ile

 E
n
d
 

C
o
tt

a
g
e
s

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
B

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
s
ix

 c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
la

y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

; 
a
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

ro
o
f 

s
lo

p
e
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 

 T
h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

ri
g
h
t 

a
n
g
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

a
t 

th
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 e

n
d
 o

f 
L
a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 R

o
a
d
; 

a
 

d
ro

v
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

h
ic

h
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
a
s
 a

 h
o
rs

e
-r

id
in

g
 r

o
u
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

re
 o

f 
la

te
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 d

a
te

. 
 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
 f

ir
s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
s
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 

 A
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 

m
a
p
. 

 A
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 y
a
rd

, 
th

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 W

o
o
tt

o
n
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

ro
v
e
 r

o
a
d
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
e
y
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
 f

a
rm

w
o
rk

e
rs

’ 
c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
0
9

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

P
la

c
e

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

P
la

c
e
 H

o
te

l

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l
B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 D

u
d
le

y
 H

o
te

l.
  

B
u
ilt

 a
s
 L

a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 1

8
5
4
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 r
o
o
f 

fo
rm

 s
ti
ll 

g
iv

e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
u
b
tl
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
: 

a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
g
la

zi
n
g
, 

fa
c
e
te

d
 b

o
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

o
u
n
d
e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

a
n
d
 l
o
w

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 a

 b
o
a
rd

in
g
 h

o
u
s
e
 b

y
 1

8
7
8
, 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

w
a
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

D
u
d
le

y
 M

a
n
s
io

n
 B

o
a
rd

in
g
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

 B
o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 H

o
te

ls
 L

td
 i
n
 1

8
9
9
, 

it
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 a

s
 D

u
d
le

y
 P

ri
v
a
te

 H
o
te

l 
b
y
 1

9
0
5
. 

 R
o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 1

9
1
1
 b

y
 F

.C
. 

A
xt

e
ll.

  
O

th
e
r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 b

a
llr

o
o
m

 a
n
d
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 p

a
in

ti
n
g
s
 b

y
 A

.E
. 

M
a
rt

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t.

  
H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
0

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

R
o
a
d

1
M

e
rc

ia
 H

o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

 a
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

Y
o
rk

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 R

o
a
d
, 

n
o
w

 f
la

ts
. 

 B
u
ilt

 1
8
8
0
 b

y
 H

.J
. 

L
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
in

 a
 

Q
u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 V
ib

ra
n
t 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
. 

 M
e
ta

l 
c
a
n
o
p
ie

d
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 a

n
d
 v

e
ra

n
d
a
h
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 L

a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 R

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
o
rc

h
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 l
e
tt

e
ri

n
g
 ‘
M

e
rc

ia
 H

o
u
s
e
’.
  

S
h
o
u
ld

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 e

a
re

d
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
, 

s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 

p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 a
t 

a
tt

ic
 l
e
v
e
l 
h
e
ld

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

w
o
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
ta

c
k
s
. 

 S
w

a
g
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
d
a
lli

o
n
s
 s

e
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
1

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

R
o
a
d

C
o
u
rt

h
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
iv

il 
- 

C
o
u
rt

 

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
C

o
u
rt

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

b
u
ilt

 1
9
6
9
 b

y
 F

it
zr

o
y
 R

o
b
in

s
o
n
. 

 L
o
n
g
, 

lo
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 s

tr
o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

, 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

it
s
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

te
rm

in
a
te

s
 v

ie
w

s
 u

p
 R

o
c
h
e
s
te

r 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 D
a
rk

 b
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t

w
o
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
b
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 a

b
o
v
e
 (

s
e
p
a
ra

te
d
 b

y
 g

la
zi

n
g
).

  
T

h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 b

a
n
d
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
s
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
lo

w
 i
t.

  
S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 b
ro

w
n
-b

ri
c
k
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 s

h
ru

b
b
e
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

v
ia

 a
 f

lig
h
t 

o
f 

s
te

p
s
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 f
la

g
p
o
le

. 
 F

it
zr

o
y
 R

o
b
in

s
o
n
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
e
r 

o
f 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
’s

 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 

p
ro

lif
ic

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 ‘
b
a
n
k
e
r’
s
 b

ru
ta

lis
m

’.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

jo
u
rn

a
l.
c
o
.u

k
/n

e
w

s
/o

b
it
u
a
ry

-h
e
rb

e
rt

-f
it
zr

o
y
-

ro
b
in

s
o
n
-1

9
1
4
-2

0
0
5
/5

8
3
1
4
5
.a

rt
ic

le
 

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
2

L
a
u
ri

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d

4
-3

2
 (

e
v
e
n
) 

- 

n
o
rt

h
 s

id
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
te

rr
a
c
e
 o

f 
d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 S

ta
n
le

y
 P

e
a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
s
 o

f 
P

re
s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r.

  
P

e
a
c
h
 a

ls
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 P

re
s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r 

(i
n
 1

9
0
5
),

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
h
o
p
s
 o

n
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
 t

h
e
 M

a
n
o
r,

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 E

s
ta

te
 

O
ff

ic
e
 o

n
 S

o
u
th

 R
o
a
d
 (

g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
).

  
H

e
 h

a
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 w
o
rk

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
s
 a

t 
th

e
ir

 o
th

e
r 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n
 W

ilt
s
h
ir

e
. 

 T
h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 

1
8
9
8
. 

 I
t 

is
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

w
it
h
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

to
 t

h
e
 r

o
o
fl
in

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 g

a
b
le

s
, 

d
o
rm

e
rs

 b
re

a
k
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
-l

e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
t 

s
te

p
s
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e
 h

ill
. 

 

B
ri

c
k
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 S
o
m

e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

c
a
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

s
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 

c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
3

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

1
0
9

T
h
e
 B

e
a
r 

In
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
L
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

re
p
la

c
in

g
 a

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 n

a
m

e
. 

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 B

e
a
r 

R
o
a
d
, 

it
 h

a
s
 t

w
o
 

p
ri

n
c
ip

a
l 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
tc

h
 i
n
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 M

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

 a
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

a
n
d
 o

ri
e
n
ta

te
d
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 

ju
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

g
a
b
le

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

h
a
llo

w
 a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 

w
it
h
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 M
o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 

 P
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

b
ri

c
k
 c

h
im

n
e
y
. 

 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

114



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
4

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 

E
xt

ra
 M

u
ra

l 

C
e
m

e
te

ry

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

N
o
 C

A
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 1

8
4
8
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
t,

 a
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

In
s
p
e
c
to

r 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
u
ri

a
ls

 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 o

r 
a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
’s

 c
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

. 
 I

n
 t

h
is

 l
ig

h
t,

 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 E

xt
ra

 M
u
ra

l 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 w

a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
0
 b

y
 C

o
rd

y
 B

u
rr

o
w

s
 a

n
d
 R

e
v
. 

J
o
h
n
 N

e
ls

o
n
 G

o
u
lt
y
, 

w
it
h
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

A
.H

. 
W

ild
s
, 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
r 

p
ri

v
a
te

 b
u
ri

a
ls

. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 1

3
 a

c
re

s
 o

f 
la

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
1
 f

o
r 

C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 

b
u
ri

a
ls

, 
w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f

o
r 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t 
a
n
d
 R

o
m

a
n
 C

a
th

o
lic

 b
u
ri

a
ls

. 
 T

h
e
 M

a
rq

u
e
s
s
 o

f 
B

ri
s
to

l 
g
a
v
e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

5
 a

c
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
7
. 

 T
h
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
 o

f 
R

e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 W

o
o
d
v
a
le

 C
e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 B
u
ri

a
l 
in

 o
r 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 i
lle

g
a
l 
in

 1
8
5
4
. 

 T
h
e
 V

e
s
tr

y
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

a
ff

o
rd

 t
o
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

u
ri

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 t

o
w

n
’s

 p
o
o
r 

in
 t

h
e
 

E
xt

ra
 M

u
ra

l 
C

e
m

e
te

ry
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 M

a
rq

u
e
s
s
 o

f 
B

ri
s
to

l 
g
a
v
e
 t

h
e
m

 2
0
 a

c
re

s
 o

f 
la

n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

s
id

e
 o

f 
L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
, 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

s
o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 E

xt
ra

 M
u
ra

l 
C

e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 W

o
o
d
v
a
le

 C
e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 W
o
o
d
v
a
le

 C
e
m

e
te

ry
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 E

xt
ra

 M
u
ra

l 
C

e
m

e
te

ry
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 i
n
te

rl
in

k
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 E

xt
ra

 M
u
ra

l 
C

e
m

e
te

ry
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

b
y
 A

m
o
n
 H

e
n
ry

 W
ild

s
 –

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 w
it
h
in

 a
 v

a
lle

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 D

o
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

h
e
n
 

e
d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
. 

 I
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 a

 h
ig

h
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 G

o
th

ic
 r

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
la

b
o
ra

te
 t

o
m

b
s
, 

m
a
u
s
o
le

u
m

s
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
d
s
to

n
e
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 d

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 s

ty
le

s
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

e
m

in
e
n
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
ia

n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ri

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 I
t 

re
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 

e
xi

s
te

n
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
b
o
u
t 

1
0
0
 y

e
a
rs

, 
b
u
t 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 l
e
s
s
 p

ro
s
p
e
ro

u
s
. 

 B
y
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
W

o
rl

d
 W

a
r 

II
 i
t 

h
a
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 c
e
a
s
e
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

h
e
 f

re
e
h
o
ld

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 i
ts

 a
d
jo

in
in

g
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

D
a
le

 1
9
9
1

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
5

L
o
c
k
s
 H

ill
6

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
0
3
 a

s
 t

h
e
 i
n
fa

n
ts

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 S

c
h
o
o
l.
  

L
a
te

r 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 t

h
e
 b

o
y
s
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
n
 i
n
 1

9
3
0
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

It
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

E
.H

.L
. 

B
a
rk

e
r 

a
n
d
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 d

o
n
a
te

d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 E

a
rd

le
y
 H

a
ll,

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
la

n
d
 o

w
n
e
r 

in
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
. 

It
 

w
a
s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 a

t 
S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
re

s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

 e
xp

a
n
s
io

n
 i
n
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 h

a
d
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
u
s
e
 b

y
 1

9
8
3
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 v

a
c
a
n
t.

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

f 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
o
m

p
le

x 
p
la

n
 f

o
rm

, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 r

o
a
d
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 w

a
lls

 a
re

 r
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t

w
o
 b

lu
e
 b

ri
c
k
 b

a
n
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 s

te
e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 h
a
v
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
n
g
 w

id
e
 b

a
n
d
s
 o

f 

re
d
 a

n
d
 b

lu
e
 c

la
y
 t

ile
s
, 

h
ip

p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

s
, 

c
re

s
te

d
 r

id
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

T
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
s
 o

f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
o
p
e
n
in

g
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
a
te

r 
e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 f

ro
n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll,

 w
it
h
 i
ro

n
 g

a
te

s
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 m
a
tc

h
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

8
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 s

h
e
d
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
6

L
o
c
k
s
 H

ill
B

ra
c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
(o

ld
 

b
u
ild

in
g
)

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
F

lin
t-

fa
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 r
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll.

  
C

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

s
e
t 

p
a
ra

lle
l 
to

 r
o
a
d
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

g
a
b
le

s
. 

 E
c
c
le

s
ia

s
ti
c
a
l 
in

 s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 p

o
in

te
d
 a

rc
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
; 

th
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 

 H
a
n
n
a
h
 B

ra
c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 b
o
u
g
h
t 

la
n
d
 

a
n
d
 d

o
n
a
te

d
 m

o
n
e
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 

a
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 1
8
7
1
. 

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 ‘
o
f 

th
e
 l
a
b
o
u
ri

n
g
, 

m
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
o
re

r 
c
la

s
s
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
ri

s
h
 o

f 
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
.’
  

B
ra

c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 i
n
h
e
ri

te
d
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
h
e
r 

fa
m

ily
’s

 w
e
a
lt
h
. 

 S
h
e
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 b
e
n
e
fa

c
to

r 
fo

r 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

c
a
u
s
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 d
o
n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
t 

le
a
s
t 

£
2
0
,0

0
0
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
6
0
s
 t

o
 B

a
lli

o
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
la

rs
h
ip

s
 i
n
 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 m

e
d
ic

in
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

re
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

c
h
o
o
s
in

g
 B

a
lli

o
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 w

a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 a

s
s
u
m

e
d
 a

n
c
e
s
tr

a
l 
lin

k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

a
lli

o
l 
fa

m
ily

. 
 I

t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
y
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

h
o
s
e
n
 a

s
 

th
e
 f

a
m

ily
 d

id
 n

o
t 

liv
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

a
m

ily
 v

a
u
lt
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 S
t 

N
ic

o
la

s
’ 
C

h
u
rc

h
. 

 B
ra

c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 l
iv

e
d
 i
n
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 S

q
u
a
re

, 

h
a
v
in

g
 m

o
v
e
d
 w

it
h
 h

e
r 

b
ro

th
e
r 

fr
o
m

 M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
to

 H
o
v
e
 i
n
 1

8
4
4
. 

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 E

d
m

u
n
d
 E

v
a
n
 S

c
o
tt

, 
w

h
o
 h

a
d
 a

ls
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 S

t 

A
n
d
re

w
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 (

w
it
h
 S

u
te

r 
in

 1
8
6
4
) 

a
n
d
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

. 
 A

ll 
o
f 

S
c
o
tt

’s
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 a

re
 f

lin
t-

fa
c
e
d
 i
n
 a

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 

G
o
th

ic
 s

ty
le

; 
in

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 

to
 h

is
 w

o
rk

 a
t 

S
t 

B
a
rt

h
o
lo

m
e
w

’s
, 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
. 

 T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 J

o
h
n
 K

in
g
 (

b
ro

th
e
r 

to
 A

lic
e
 K

in
g
, 

B
ra

c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

’s
 

h
o
u
s
e
k
e
e
p
e
r)

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 2
5
0
 b

o
y
s
 a

n
d
 g

ir
ls

. 
 I

t 
w

a
s
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 S

a
tu

rd
a
y
 2

5
th
 M

a
y
 1

8
7
2
. 

 I
n
 1

8
8
1
 a

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 c

re
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

in
fa

n
ts

, 
w

h
ile

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
8
8
3
 t

h
e
 g

ir
ls

' d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

m
o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 n

e
w

ly
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 c

la
s
s
ro

o
m

. 
F

ro
m

 1
8
8
4
 t

h
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
re

 c
a
lle

d
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 a

n
d
 H

a
n
g
le

to
n
 B

o
y
s
' a

n
d
 G

ir
ls

' S
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
 M

o
re

 e
xp

a
n
s
io

n
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
4
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/d
is

c
o
v
e
ry

.n
a
ti
o
n
a
la

rc
h
iv

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

e
ta

ils
/r

d
/3

8
a
3
9
7
6
6
-5

5
9
9
-4

e
9
c
-8

5
4
1
-7

b
9
8
9
d
d
fe

7
4
6
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/0

7
/s

t-

n
ic

o
la

s
-s

c
h
o
o
l-

p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
-h

is
to

ry
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
7

L
o
c
k
s
 H

ill
L
o
xd

a
le

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

s
c
h
o
o
l

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

L
o
xd

a
le

, 
L
o
c
k
s
 H

ill
, 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

S
a
m

u
e
l 
D

e
n
m

a
n
 f

o
r 

b
re

w
e
ry

 c
o
-o

w
n
e
r 

W
a
lt
e
r 

M
e
w

s
 i
n
 1

8
9
9
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t

ile
 h

a
n
g
in

g
, 

s
to

n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

, 
b
u
t 

h
a
s
 a

n
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
w

e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 r

is
e
s
 t

o
 f

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
s
 i
n
 h

e
ig

h
t.

  

T
h
e
 t

o
p
 s

to
re

y
 i
s
 o

f 
m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
, 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 m
e
ta

l 
c
u
p
o
la

. 
 T

h
e
 t

o
w

e
r,

 g
a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
 c

o
m

b
in

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 a

n
 i
n
te

re
s
ti
n
g
 s

k
y
lin

e
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

 T
a
ll 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll 

to
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t 

w
it
h
 r

a
is

e
d
 p

ie
rs

 

a
n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 b

e
h
in

d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t,

 M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
8

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

8
4
-1

0
3

F
o
rm

e
r 

C
o
-

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
F

o
rm

e
r 

C
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 s

to
re

, 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 S

o
c
ie

ty
. 

 1
9
3
1
 b

y
 B

e
th

e
ll 

a
n
d
 

S
w

a
n
e
ll,

 i
n
 s

tr
ip

p
e
d
 C

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
t 

g
la

zi
n
g
. 

S
to

n
e
 f

a
ç
a
d
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
b
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 w

id
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 g

ia
n
t 

R
o
m

a
n
 D

o
ri

c
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

 A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 (

2
0
0
8
) 

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 ‘
p
o
m

p
o
u
s
 b

u
t 

s
tr

ip
p
e
d
 c

la
s
s
ic

is
m

’.
  

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 f

lo
o
r 

a
re

a
 o

f 
c
7
0
,0

0
0
 s

q
u
a
re

 f
e
e
t.

  
T

h
e
s
e
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
b
u
ilt

 

in
 2

0
1
4
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 s
tu

d
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
2

L
L
H

A
0
1
1
9

M
a
c
k
ie

 A
v
e
n
u
e

2
L
a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 

H
o
te

l

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
fa

rm
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
, 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d
 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 P

a
tc

h
a
m

 w
a
s
 s

o
ld

 o
ff

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 

c
o
in

c
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

xp
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
8
. 

 T
h
e
 L

a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 E

s
ta

te
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
 b

y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 F

e
rg

u
s
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 

L
a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 H

o
te

l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n
 1

9
3
5
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
F

ri
a
ry

, 
H

o
lr

o
y
d
 a

n
d
 H

e
a
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 e

s
ta

te
 a

ls
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 C

lo
c
k
 T

o
w

e
r,

 M
a
c
k
ie

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
, 

th
e
 P

la
in

fi
e
ld

s
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 V

a
le

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 

a
t 

th
e
 c

u
tt

in
g
 e

d
g
e
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 u
rb

a
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

it
s
 t

im
e
. 

 I
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 ‘
re

fo
rm

 p
u
b
s
’ 
o
f 

th
e
 a

g
e
, 

th
e
 L

a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

m
p
le

 s
p
a
c
e
 f

o
r 

a
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
c
u
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 e

s
ta

te
. 

 T
h
is

 m
a
rk

s
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
 p

o
in

t 
in

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 

 

B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 M
a
in

 b
lo

c
k
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

e
d
a
lli

o
n
, 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
te

d
 w

in
g
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 C
u
rv

e
d
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
lo

n
n
a
d
e
 t

o
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 f

o
rm

s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

fe
a
tu

re
. 

 A
rt

 d
e
c
o
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 a

n
 i
llu

m
in

a
te

d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 c

e
ili

n
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 

to
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r.

  
A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 M

a
c
k
ie

 H
a
ll 

in
 s

im
ila

r 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

m
a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 g

iv
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 b

a
rn

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 p
la

n
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 h

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
F

re
e
-s

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
u
b
 s

ig
n
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

la
n
 f

o
rm

, 
it
s
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 m

o
d
e
rn

 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 p

u
b
 o

r 
c
o
u
n
tr

y
 h

o
u
s
e
. 

 C
A

M
R

A
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

to
 b

e
 o

f 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

E
n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 L

is
ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
, 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

e
 a

n
d
 E

xc
h
a
n
g
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 2

0
1
1
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

e
ri

ta
g
e
p
u
b
s
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

u
b
s
/p

u
b
g
u
id

e
.a

s
p
 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
0

M
a
c
k
ie

 A
v
e
n
u
e

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 

C
lo

c
k
 T

o
w

e
r

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
lo

c
k
 T

o
w

e
r

N
o
 C

A
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
fa

rm
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
, 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d
 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 P

a
tc

h
a
m

 w
a
s
 s

o
ld

 o
ff

 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 

c
o
in

c
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

xp
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
8
. 

 T
h
e
 L

a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 E

s
ta

te
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
 b

y
 G

e
o
rg

e
 F

e
rg

u
s
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 C

lo
c
k
 T

o
w

e
r,

 L
a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 H

o
te

l,
 M

a
c
k
ie

 H
a
ll,

 M
a
c
k
ie

 A
v
e
n
u
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
, 

th
e
 P

la
in

fi
e
ld

s
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 V

a
le

 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
tt

in
g
 e

d
g
e
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 u
rb

a
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

it
s
 t

im
e
. 

 T
h
e
 c

lo
c
k
 t

o
w

e
r 

w
a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

s
ta

te
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

te
. 

 A
rt

 d
e
c
o
 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

it
 h

a
s
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
lo

c
k
 t

o
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
it
s
 f

o
u
r 

fa
c
e
s
. 

 

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
1

M
a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d

1
T

h
e
 L

e
e
s
 a

n
d
 

V
ill

a
 M

a
ri

a

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
n
v
e
n
t

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 o
n
 l
a
n
d
 f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 B

ri
s
to

l 
N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s
 a

n
d
 f

o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 e

s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l.
  

T
h
e
 s

it
e
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

w
o
 m

a
in

 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 b
ri

c
k
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
lls

 (
w

a
lls

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 u
n
d
e
r 

E
s
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l,
 B

ri
s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
);

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 T

h
e
 

L
e
e
s
 a

n
d
 V

ill
a
 M

a
ri

a
. 

 T
h
e
 L

e
e
s
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 1
9
0
6
 b

y
 E

d
w

a
rd

 G
o
ld

ie
 f

o
r 

th
e
 R

e
v
e
re

n
t 

S
u
p
e
ri

o
re

s
s
 o

f 
S

t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 R
e
tr

e
a
t 

in
 B

u
rg

e
s
s
 H

ill
. 

 B
u
ilt

 i
n
 

a
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
, 

it
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 P

e
b
b
le

-d
a
s
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
, 

p
la

s
te

r 
a
n
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

d
re

s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 s

te
e
p
 h

ip
p
e
d
 

s
la

te
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 V

ill
a
 M

a
ri

a
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
1
2
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
1
 a

s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
b
lo

c
k
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 I
t 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 

la
rg

e
ly

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 e

c
h
o
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 s

ty
le

 o
f 

T
h
e
 L

e
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

e
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
ly

 a
s
 ‘
S

t 
A

u
g
u
s
ti
n
e
’s

 

p
ri

v
a
te

 h
o
u
s
e
 f

o
r 

la
d
ie

s
’,
 t

h
e
 ‘
S

is
te

rs
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
ti
n
e
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
S

t 
A

u
g
u
s
ti
n
e
’s

 N
u
rs

in
g
 H

o
m

e
’ 
u
n
ti
l 
it
 w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

e
n
e
d
ic

ti
n
e
 n

u
n
s
 i
n
 1

9
9
4
. 

 T
h
e
 

s
it
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 (
n
o
t 

lis
te

d
).

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

115



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
2

M
a
n
o
r 

R
o
a
d

M
a
n
o
r 

C
o
tt

a
g
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

fo
rm

e
r 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

.1
8
4
0
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 i
n
 

a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
r 

a
n
c
ill

a
ry

 u
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

(1
8
0
7
, 

lis
te

d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
a
s
 S

t 
M

a
ry

’s
 C

o
n
v
e
n
t)

. 
 I

t 
w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 

1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 I
t 

is
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 a

d
 h

o
c
 m

a
n
n
e
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
e
t 

o
n
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r,

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

it
h
 h

e
d
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
3

M
a
ri

n
e
 D

ri
v
e

M
a
ri

n
e
 G

a
te

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
1
9
3
7
-3

9
 b

y
 W

im
p
e
ri

s
, 

S
im

p
s
o
n
 &

 G
u
th

ri
e
. 

 D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 i
n
 a

 U
-s

h
a
p
e
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 a
ll 

fl
a
ts

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
e
a
v
ie

w
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 1

2
0
 

fl
a
ts

, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
g
a
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 a

 r
e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 l
a
tt

e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
te

e
l 

fr
a
m

e
, 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
w

a
lls

 w
e
re

 n
o
n
-l

o
a
d
b
e
a
ri

n
g
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 a

llo
w

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

 P
o
rt

h
o
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

a
th

ro
o
m

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

s
u
b
tl
e
 n

a
u
ti
c
a
l 
fe

e
l.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
tk

in
s
o
n
 e

t 
a
l,
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
 h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

a
ri

n
e
g
a
te

.c
o
.u

k
/ 

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
4

M
e
a
d
o
w

 C
lo

s
e

1
-8

 C
o
u
rt

 O
rd

 

C
o
tt

a
g
e
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
, 

b
u
ilt

 1
8
9
6
. 

 F
lin

t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

 S
la

te
 r

o
o
fs

, 
o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
-c

o
v
e
re

d
. 

 P
a
ir

e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
, 

s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 l
a
te

r 
p
o
rc

h
e
s
. 

 E
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 r

is
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

, 
s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 

p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 t

ile
 h

u
n
g
 g

a
b
le

. 
M

id
d
le

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
in

g
le

 2
 o

v
e
r 

2
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f

lo
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

ri
g
h
t 

a
n
g
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

m
a
in

 r
o
a
d
 (

F
a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d
).

  
It

 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 M
e
a
d
o
w

 C
lo

s
e
, 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 g
ra

s
s
e
d
 v

e
rg

e
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
5

M
ile

 O
a
k
 R

o
a
d

2
7
7
-2

8
3
 

(o
d
d
)

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

w
o
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
. 

 F
ir

s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

c
.1

9
3
0
s
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 

it
 p

re
d
a
te

s
 m

o
s
t 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
P

a
ir

e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

ti
le

d
 p

o
rc

h
 h

o
o
d
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 s
in

g
le

 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 

 A
 s

in
g
le

 h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 a

n
d
 a

 p
a
ir

e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

s
e
t 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
ly

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 C
ill

 a
n
d
 l
in

te
l 
b
a
n
d
s
. 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

2
7
7
 h

a
s
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r;

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 s

m
a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
/f

o
re

c
o
u
rt

s
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
6

M
ile

 O
a
k
 R

o
a
d

4
7
9
+

4
8
1

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
u
tb

re
a
k
s
 o

f 
C

h
o
le

ra
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 a

n
d
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 A

c
ts

 o
f 

1
8
4
8
, 

1
8
7
5
 a

n
d
 1

8
7
8
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 S

a
n
it
a
ti
o
n
 

A
c
t 

1
8
6
6
. 

 L
o
c
a
lly

, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
te

r 
p
u
m

p
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
le

a
n
 

w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
ly

 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 M

ile
 O

a
k
 F

a
rm

 w
a
s
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 1
8
9
0
, 

a
n
d
 a

 p
u
m

p
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 b

u
ilt

 t
h
e
re

 i
n
 1

9
0
0
 t

o
 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
J
a
m

e
s
 J

o
h
n
s
to

n
, 

w
a
te

rw
o
rk

s
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

  
T

w
o
 w

a
te

rw
o
rk

e
r’
s
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
s
to

n
, 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 d

a
te

d
 2

4
 J

u
ly

 

1
9
0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
m

p
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
6
1
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 w

a
te

r 
p
u
m

p
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 

(a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

u
m

p
in

g
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

2
7
).

  
S

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f,

 o
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 

e
a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
c
h
im

n
e
y
s
ta

c
k
s
 t

o
 f

ro
n
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
a
r 

ro
o
f 

s
lo

p
e
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
r 

is
 u

n
p
a
in

te
d
 w

it
h
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

a
n
d
s
 a

t 
c
ill

 a
n
d
 l
in

te
l 
h
e
ig

h
t 

to
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 

m
a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ti
ll 

a
p
p
a
re

n
t 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
1
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 b
a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
w

it
h
 s

in
g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
, 

a
ll 

w
it
h
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

4
7
9
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
8

M
o
n
te

fi
o
re

 

R
o
a
d

2
M

o
n
te

fi
o
re

 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

(F
o
rm

e
r 

H
a
n
n
in

g
to

n
's

 

D
e
p
o
s
it
o
ry

)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

W
a
re

h
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
Im

p
o
s
in

g
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

o
rn

e
r 

d
o
m

e
d
 t

u
rr

e
t.

  
B

u
ilt

 1
9
0
1
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 C
la

y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
 f

o
r 

H
a
n
n
in

g
to

n
s
 (

to
 p

la
n
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
9
).

  
T

h
is

 w
e
ll-

k
n
o
w

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 h

a
d
 d

iv
e
rs

if
ie

d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 f

o
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u
rn

it
u
re

 

re
p
o
s
it
o
ry

. 
 I

t 
w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
, 

a
g
a
in

 b
y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
, 

in
 1

9
1
5
. 

 S
ta

b
lin

g
 a

n
d
 a

 w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 w

e
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
5
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

f 
4
 s

to
re

y
s
 

w
it
h
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir

d
 a

n
d
 f

o
u
rt

h
 f

lo
o
rs

 s
e
t 

b
e
n
e
a
th

 s
m

a
ll 

p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 D

a
v
ig

d
o
r 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 M

o
n
te

fi
o
re

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
tc

h
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 o

ff
ic

e
 u

s
e
 b

y
 L

e
g
a
l 
&

 G
e
n
e
ra

l 
a
n
d
 n

o
w

 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 M

o
n
te

fi
o
re

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
7
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
7
_
0
1
1
.h

tm
l

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
2
9

M
o
n
te

fi
o
re

 

R
o
a
d

3
6

T
h
e
 G

ra
c
e
 

E
y
re

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

(F
o
rm

e
r 

U
n
it
e
d
 

M
e
th

o
d
is

t 

C
h
u
rc

h
)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
 C

A
F

lin
t 

c
h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 b

u
ff

 b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 B

a
th

 s
to

n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 t
ile

d
 r

o
o
f,

 b
u
ilt

 1
9
0
4
-5

 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
E

.J
. 

H
a
m

ilt
o
n
. 

 E
a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 i
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 I

t 
fr

o
n
ts

 

o
n
 t

o
 M

o
n
te

fi
o
re

 R
o
a
d
, 

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 A

v
o
n
d
a
le

 R
o
a
d
. 

 M
a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 t

o
 M

o
n
te

fi
o
re

 R
o
a
d
; 

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 

S
in

g
le

 b
a
y
 d

o
u
b
le

-h
e
ig

h
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 p
o
in

te
d
-a

rc
h
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
in

te
d
 a

rc
h
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 

w
in

d
o
w

. 
 O

n
e
-s

to
re

y
 b

a
y
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
o
in

te
d
-a

rc
h
 o

p
e
n
in

g
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

s
ty

le
 t

o
 O

ld
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
; 

th
a
t 

to
 A

v
o
n
d
a
le

 R
o
a
d
 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 s

c
h
o
o
lr

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 m

o
re

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 i
n
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  

It
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 a

 b
u
ff

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll,

 

p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
0

M
o
n
tg

o
m

e
ry

 

S
tr

e
e
t

3
3

T
h
e
 P

o
e
ts

 

C
o
rn

e
r

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
P

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 b

u
ilt

 1
8
8
6
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 M

o
n
tg

o
m

e
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t 

y
e
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
s
ti
n
g
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 

H
is

to
ri

c
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
’s

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
e
xt

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 H
is

to
ri

c
a
lly

 n
a
m

e
d
 T

h
e
 E

c
lip

s
e
, 

in
 1

8
9
5
 i
t 

w
a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

B
re

w
e
ry

, 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
it
 w

a
s
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
, 

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 i
ts

 p
re

s
e
n
t 

fo
rm

. 
O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
m

a
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

B
re

w
e
ry

 u
n
ti
l 

1
9
2
9
 w

h
e
n
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 t

o
o
k
 o

v
e
r,

 w
h
o
 t

h
e
n
 s

o
ld

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
 i
n
 1

9
3
1
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
ir

e
, 

it
 w

a
s
 s

o
ld

 t
o
 H

a
rv

e
y
’s

 o
f 

L
e
w

e
s
 i
n
 1

9
9
5
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
. 

 T
w

o
 g

a
b
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
to

n
e
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
6
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
6
_
0
0
4
.h

tm
l 
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/s

e
a
rc

h
/l
a
b
e
l/
H

o
v
e
%

2
0
P

u
b
s
%

2
0
In

d
e
x%

2
0
P

%
2
0
-%

2
0
R

 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
1

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 

R
o
a
d

1
7

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

T
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

b
u
ilt

 c
.1

8
2
5
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
im

ila
r 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
4
-1

6
 (

lis
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I)
. 

 T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt

ic
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
a
ra

p
e
t 

w
it
h
 h

e
a
v
y
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
 a

n
d
 w

re
a
th

e
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

 B
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t

o
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

is
 e

lo
n
g
a
te

d
, 

in
 t

h
e
 m

a
n
n
e
r 

o
f 

a
 p

ia
n
o
 n

o
b
ile

. 
 R

a
is

e
d
 s

to
re

y
 

b
a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

 F
la

t 
a
rc

h
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f

a
n
lig

h
t,

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 s
h
o
rt

 f
lig

h
t 

o
f 

s
te

p
s
. 

 S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 

s
m

a
ll 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

it
h
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

.

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
2

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 

R
o
a
d

F
ir

s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 

o
f 

C
h
ri

s
t 

S
c
ie

n
ti
s
t

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 a
 h

o
u
s
e
 b

u
ilt

 c
.1

8
5
0
, 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 r
e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 a

n
d
 e

n
la

rg
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 F

ir
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
C

h
ri

s
t 

S
c
ie

n
ti
s
t 

in
 1

9
2
1
 b

y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
. 

 R
u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 r

e
n
d
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
: 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 p
o
rt

io
n
 f

o
rm

s
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

 h
ig

h
ly

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t;

 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 p
o
rt

io
n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
it
s
e
lf
, 

w
it
h
 t

w
o
 t

ie
rs

 o
f 

ro
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 

p
ila

s
te

rs
, 

w
it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
b
e
lo

w
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
3

N
e
v
ill

 R
o
a
d

1
8
, 

2
0
, 

2
2

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt

ic
, 

s
te

p
p
in

g
 u

p
 r

o
a
d
. 

 D
e
n
s
e
 f

ie
ld

 f
lin

t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 D
o
o
rs

 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 e
n
c
lo

s
e
d
 g

a
b
le

d
 

p
o
rc

h
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l.
  

S
m

a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

n
o
n
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l.
  

C
ill

 a
n
d
 l
in

te
l 
b
a
n
d
s
. 

 T
ile

d
 

g
a
b
le

d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
 o

n
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
lls

. 
 S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 f
lin

t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
0
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
o
g
ra

m
 ‘
A

’ 
fo

r 
‘A

b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
’ 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 1
8
9
1
. 

 I
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 N
e
v
ill

 R
o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
ts

e
lf
 n

a
m

e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

W
ill

ia
m

 N
e
v
ill

, 
1

s
t  M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

A
b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
4

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
a
d

3
3

S
t 

C
h
ri

s
to

p
h
e
r'
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

s
c
h
o
o
l

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 c
.1

8
9
7
 a

n
d
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 E

d
w

a
rd

 L
lo

y
d
 (

th
e
 E

n
g
lis

h
 t

e
n
o
r)

, 
w

h
o
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 i
t 

to
 C

la
ra

 B
u
tt

 a
n
d
 S

im
s
 R

e
e
v
e
s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 

H
a
s
s
e
n
d
e
a
n
. 

 L
lo

y
d
 m

o
v
e
d
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 1

9
0
2
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 I

n
 1

9
4
4
, 

S
t 

C
h
ri

s
to

p
h
e
r’
s
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
, 

a
n
d
 

h
a
s
 a

 s
la

te
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 o

rn
a
te

 c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 a

n
d
 g

la
s
s
 p

o
rc

h
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 S
ta

in
e
d
 g

la
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

p
o
rt

io
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 

p
ie

rs
, 

m
o
d
e
rn

 f
e
n
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

 h
e
d
g
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ie
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 e

a
g
le

s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

116



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
5

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
a
d

3
5

A
ld

ri
n
g
to

n
 

H
o
u
s
e
 (

L
a
d
y
 

C
h
ic

h
e
s
te

r 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 

(f
o
rm

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
)

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

8
9
0
s
 a

s
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
 f

o
r 

M
r 

a
n
d
 M

rs
 H

a
m

m
o
n
d
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
0
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
s
y
c
h
ia

tr
ic

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 L

a
d
y
 

C
h
ic

h
e
s
te

r 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l.
  

E
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
te

r 
b
u
ilt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r,

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

v
ill

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 L

a
d
y
 C

h
ic

h
e
s
te

r 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 D

r 
H

e
le

n
 B

o
y
le

 a
n
d
 D

r 
M

a
b
e
l 
J
o
n
e
s
 i
n
 1

9
0
5
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

t 
1
0
1
 R

o
u
n
d
h
ill

 C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 7

0
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 P

la
c
e
, 

b
e
fo

re
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 s

it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 u

n
iq

u
e
 i
n
 c

a
te

ri
n
g
 f

o
r 

n
e
rv

o
u
s
 d

is
o
rd

e
rs

 i
n
 w

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 a
t 

th
e
 t

im
e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

a
t 

g
e
n
e
ra

l 
h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

, 
b
u
t 

a
ls

o
 n

o
t 

c
a
te

re
d
 f

o
r 

b
y
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

. 
 I

t 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
o
f 

it
s
 t

y
p
e
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o
p
u
la

r 
u
n
ti
l 

it
s
 c

lo
s
u
re

 i
n
 1

9
8
8
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 d
a
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 u
n
it
 r

u
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 N
H

S
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 

2
0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/c

a
te

g
o
ry

_
id

_
_
1
7
8
2
.a

s
p
x

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
6

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
a
d

1
7
2

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
1
9
3
0
s
-1

9
5
0
s
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 R

o
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
; 

b
ri

c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

R
o
u
n
d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r.

  
H

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
E

lo
n
g
a
te

d
 g

a
b
le

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

o
rc

h
. 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
7

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

M
u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 

A
rt

 G
a
lle

ry

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
 (

n
o
w

 

m
u
s
e
u
m

)

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 &

 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

A

H
o
v
e
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 L

a
in

s
o
n
 i
n
 1

8
7
7
 f

o
r 

J
o
h
n
 O

lli
v
e
r 

V
a
lla

n
c
e
. 

 Y
e
llo

w
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

it
 i
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
 I

ta
lia

n
a
te

 s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 s

im
ila

ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 O

s
b
o
rn

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 I

s
le

 o
f 

W
ig

h
t.

  
U

s
e
d
 t

o
 h

o
u
s
e
 G

e
rm

a
n
 p

ri
s
o
n
e
rs

 o
f 

w
a
r 

d
u
ri

n
g
 W

o
rl

d
 

W
a
r 

I,
 i
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

w
o
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 1

9
2
3
, 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
fr

o
n
t 

d
o
o
r,

 s
ta

ir
c
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

fi
re

p
la

c
e
s
. 

 M
rs

 V
a
lla

n
c
e
 d

ie
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
4
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 s

o
ld

 t
o
 H

o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 m
u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 a

rt
 g

a
lle

ry
 i
n
 1

9
2
5
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

 i
ts

 s
e
tt

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
 J

a
ip

u
r 

G
a
te

 (
lis

te
d
) 

is
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
e
re

 r
e
in

s
ta

te
d
 i
n
 1

9
9
4
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
8

N
o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d

7
5

H
e
a
rt

 a
n
d
 

H
a
n
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 G
re

e
n
 t

ile
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 

w
it
h
 d

e
e
p
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 G
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

p
u
b
 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o
o
r 

to
 e

a
c
h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 F
a
s
c
ia

 a
n
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 ‘
U

n
it
e
d
’ 
B

re
w

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 &
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 B

re
w

e
ri

e
s
 L

td
. 

 T
h
is

 b
re

w
e
ry

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 U
n
it
e
d
 b

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
's

 R
o
c
k
 b

re
w

e
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

re
e
n
-t

ile
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
's

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
, 

c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

m
o
u
ld

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
, 

la
rg

e
 p

a
n
e
l 
fo

r 
p
u
b
 s

ig
n
 a

n
d
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 s

ig
n
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
3
9

N
o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d

B
ri

g
h
th

e
lm

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

E
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 t

o
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
(l

is
te

d
) 

to
 f

o
rm

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 B
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
8
6
-7

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 f

ir
e
 t

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 W

e
lls

-T
h
o
rp

e
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
e
l 

(a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

fo
r 

H
o
v
e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll)

. 
 R

o
b
u
s
t 

a
n
d
 h

e
a
v
y
 w

it
h
 a

 l
a
y
e
re

d
 f

a
c
a
d
e
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
 f

o
rm

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
ri

b
b
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

y
e
llo

w
 b

ri
c
k
 (

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
).

  
In

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 p

ie
rc

e
d
 r

e
lie

f 
p
a
n
e
l 
b
y
 J

o
h
n
 S

k
e
lt
o
n
 (

n
e
p
h
e
w

 o
f 

E
ri

c
 G

ill
) 

d
e
p
ic

ti
n
g
 l
o
a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

is
h
e
s
. 

 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
is

te
d
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
h
a
p
e
l,
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 i
s
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 l
is

ti
n
g
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
0

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
3
9
-1

4
2

B
a
rc

la
y
s
 

B
a
n
k

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
a
n
k

N
o
 C

A
B

a
n
k
, 

b
u
ilt

 1
9
5
7
-9

 t
o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
D

e
n
m

a
n
 &

 S
o
n
. 

 P
o
rt

la
n
d
 s

to
n
e
 a

s
h
la

r 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 w
it
h
 a

s
h
la

r 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 D

o
ri

c
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

 S
in

g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 

c
a
rv

e
d
 s

to
n
e
 e

a
g
le

 (
th

e
 B

a
rc

la
y
s
 s

y
m

b
o
l)

. 
 G

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

is
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 v

o
u
s
s
o
ir

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
. 

 M
a
in

 f
e
a
tu

re
 

o
f 

th
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

 i
s
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
tr

ip
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
; 

th
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 t

o
p
 f

lo
o
r 

is
 s

e
t 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

n
 I

ta
lia

n
a
te

 l
o
g
g
ia

. 
 D

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 b

y
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 a

s
 a

 

‘s
o
m

b
re

 c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
m

o
n
o
lit

h
’.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
1

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
7
1
-1

7
3

L
lo

y
d
s
 B

a
n
k

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
a
n
k

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

F
o
rm

e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
&

 C
o
u
n
ti
e
s
 B

a
n
k
, 

b
y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
. 

 C
o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

tu
rr

e
t 

a
n
d
 g

a
b
le

s
 o

p
ti
m

is
e
 i
ts

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
th

e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

a
v
ili

o
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 v

ia
 P

a
v
ili

o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 O
th

e
rw

is
e
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 p
la

in
 p

o
lis

h
e
d
 g

ra
n
it
e
 a

n
d
 B

a
th

 s
to

n
e
 f

a
ç
a
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 

P
a
v
ili

o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
s
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

s
id

e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
is

te
d
 N

a
tw

e
s
t 

B
a
n
k
, 

s
u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

a
ir

 a
re

 v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
2

N
o
rt

o
n
 R

o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 T

o
w

n
 

H
a
ll

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
iv

il 
- 

T
o
w

n
 

H
a
ll

W
ill

e
tt

 E
s
ta

te
1
9
7
0
-3

 b
y
 W

e
lls

-T
h
o
rp

e
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
to

w
n
 h

a
ll 

(W
a
te

rh
o
u
s
e
, 

1
8
8
2
) 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 1

9
6
6
. 

 T
h
e
 

P
e
v
s
n
e
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
g
u
id

e
 (

2
0
0
8
) 

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
s
 i
t 

a
s
 a

 ‘
g
e
n
tl
e
r 

fo
rm

 o
f 

B
ru

ta
lis

m
 t

h
a
n
 m

ig
h
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
a
n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

d
a
te

’.
  

T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

w
a
s
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
 h

a
ll 

in
 H

ilv
e
rs

u
m

 (
D

u
d
o
k
 1

9
3
1
) 

a
n
d
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

c
iv

ic
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 T

h
e
 N

e
th

e
rl

a
n
d
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 f

o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

p
le

x,
 

ir
re

g
u
la

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
te

rl
o
c
k
in

g
 c

u
b
ic

 f
o
rm

s
, 

m
a
n
y
 w

it
h
 d

e
e
p
ly

-c
h
a
m

fe
re

d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

. 
 S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 

th
e
re

 

is
 n

o
 s

e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 p

u
b
lic

 s
p
a
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 e

xt
e
ri

o
r 

is
 o

f 
ri

b
b
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 p

a
n
e
ls

 w
it
h
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
a
g
g
re

g
a
te

 (
D

e
rb

y
s
h
ir

e
 S

p
a
r 

a
n
d
 

C
o
rn

is
h
 G

ra
n
it
e
) 

a
n
d
 b

ro
n
ze

-t
in

te
d
 p

a
te

n
t 

c
u
rt

a
in

 w
a
ll 

g
la

zi
n
g
. 

 J
e
tt

ie
d
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
s
. 

 A
 c

lo
c
k
 t

o
w

e
r 

is
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 e
a
s
t,

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 W

a
te

rh
o
u
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 T
h
e
 f

u
ll-

h
e
ig

h
t 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

o
rc

h
 t

o
 N

o
rt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 g

ra
n
d
 s

c
a
le

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

u
m

a
n
-

s
c
a
le

 o
f 

th
e
 d

o
o
rs

, 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 a

ll;
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

to
 h

a
v
e
 s

te
p
-f

re
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 

G
re

a
t 

H
a
ll 

w
a
s
 c

a
n
ti
le

v
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 p
ia

zz
a
 w

it
h
 m

o
s
a
ic

 f
lo

o
r 

b
e
n
e
a
th

. 
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 i
n
fi
lle

d
 i
n
 1

9
9
1
. 

In
te

rn
a
lly

, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

iv
e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ro

u
s
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
re

a
s
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

y
c
h
 e

lm
 w

o
o
d
e
n
 p

a
n
e
lli

n
g
 a

n
d
 a

 d
ra

m
a
ti
c
 

w
y
c
h
 e

lm
 c

e
ili

n
g
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
fl
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
n
d
e
lie

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e
 G

re
a
t 

H
a
ll.

  
A

e
s
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

 p
le

a
s
in

g
, 

th
e
 c

e
ili

n
g
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 f

o
r 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

a
c
o
u
s
ti
c
s
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 n
u
c
le

a
r 

b
u
n
k
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
te

d
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
n
u
c
le

a
r 

w
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 t
u
n
n
e
l 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8
, 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 (
n
o
t 

lis
te

d
) 

2
0
1
4
, 

H
a
th

e
rl

e
y
 2

0
1
2
, 

W
e
lls

-T
h
o
rp

e
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

 c
o
m

m
.

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
3

O
ld

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 

H
o
u
s
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
(f

lin
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
)

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
S

m
a
ll 

s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

u
ilt

 o
f 

c
ru

c
if
o
rm

 p
la

n
. 

K
n
a
p
p
e
d
 f

lin
t 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 a
 s

te
e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
-t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
tr

ia
n
g
u
la

r 
w

in
d
o
w

 i
n
 g

a
b
le

. 
B

u
ilt

 i
n
 c

.1
8
6
2
 a

s
 a

 ‘
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l’.

 I
t 

w
a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
c
re

m
e
n
ta

lly
, 

fi
rs

t 
a
lo

n
g
 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
n
a
m

e
d
 P

a
tc

h
a
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 1
9
1
9
 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

c
a
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.
 I

t 
h
a
d
 a

 m
a
xi

m
u
m

 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
1
5
0
 p

u
p
ils

 b
y
 1

9
3
2
. 

It
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 a

 m
u
c
h
 g

re
a
te

r 

d
e
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
  

T
h
e
 l
a
te

r 
e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 o

f 
n
o
 s

p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
4

O
ld

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 

P
e
a
c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

P
a
tc

h
a
m

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

N
o
 C

A
B

o
u
g
h
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
 E

s
ta

te
 b

y
 H

e
rb

e
rt

 C
a
rd

e
n
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

9
2
8
 (

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

xp
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
).

  
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

in
g
 o

p
e
n
 d

o
w

n
la

n
d
, 

it
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

a
s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 g
a
rd

e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 a

 s
u
n
k
e
n
 r

o
s
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
, 

D
o
ri

c
 T

e
m

p
le

 a
n
d
 T

u
s
c
a
n
 P

e
rg

o
la

. 
 T

h
e
 T

e
m

p
le

 (
d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 f

ru
it
 m

o
ti
fs

 a
n
d
 f

ig
u
re

h
e
a
d
s
) 

a
n
d
 P

e
rg

o
la

 w
e
re

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 1

9
2
4
 

W
e
m

b
le

y
 E

xh
ib

it
io

n
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
T

h
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
in

 1
9
2
9
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
8
4
3
8
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
1
1
4
p
4
5
0
p
8
1
5
p
.a

s
p
x 

h
tt

p
:/

/b
ri

g
h
to

n
b
it
s
.b

lo
g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/0

6
/p

a
tc

h
a
m

-

p
e
a
c
e
-g

a
rd

e
n
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
5

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

6
4

S
t 

L
u
k
e
's

 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
1
8
7
2
-5

 b
y
 J

o
h
n
 H

ill
 i
n
 a

n
 E

a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 g

o
th

ic
 s

ty
le

. 
 R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 p

o
ly

c
h
ro

m
a
ti
c
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

im
p
le

 l
a
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 i
n
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

o
w

e
r 

to
 s

o
u
th

e
a
s
t 

w
it
h
 p

o
ly

g
o
n
a
l 
a
p
s
e
, 

c
o
rb

e
lle

d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
p
ir

e
. 

 L
a
rg

e
, 

g
a
b
le

d
 n

o
rt

h
 a

is
le

 a
d
d
e
d
 1

8
8
2
 

b
y
 J

.G
.G

ib
b
in

s
. 

 P
la

in
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

w
it
h
 l
a
te

 e
xa

m
p
le

 o
f 

a
 w

e
s
t 

g
a
lle

ry
. 

 I
t 

is
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 w
it
h
 a

 r
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 p

ie
rs

 t
o
 

th
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
6

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

B
H

A
S

V
IC

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
1
2
/1

3
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
S

a
m

u
e
l 
B

ri
d
g
m

a
n
 R

u
s
s
e
ll 

F
R

IB
A

, 
a
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

b
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
, 

H
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 S

u
s
s
e
x 

G
ra

m
m

a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l.
 B

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 c
o
lle

g
e
 i
n
 1

9
7
5
. 

R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 c

o
lle

g
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 N

e
o
-E

a
rl

y
 G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 s

ty
le

, 
s
e
t 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
tl
y
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 a

 g
ra

n
d
 d

o
o
r 

s
to

n
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
 w

it
h
 b

ro
k
e
n
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

 c
o
p
p
e
r 

ro
o
f-

to
p
 c

u
p
o
la

 w
it
h
 w

e
a
th

e
rv

a
n
e
. 

 V
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 p

la
n
 t

o
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 l
ig

h
t.

 I
m

p
re

s
s
iv

e
 i
ro

n
 g

a
te

s
 w

it
h
 e

n
a
m

e
lle

d
 s

h
ie

ld
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
, 

H
o
v
e
, 

E
a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x.

 L
a
rg

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
5
 b

y
 J

 L
 D

e
n
m

a
n
.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
7

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
a
re

a
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
e
c
ra

te
d
 i
n
 1

8
8
2
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 a
t 

S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 w

a
s
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
. 

 T
h
is

 c
o
in

c
id

e
s
 

w
it
h
 a

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
u
s
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
. 

 C
h
a
p
e
ls

, 
a
 l
o
d
g
e
, 

g
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

 w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

fl
in

t.
  

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h
 s

y
c
a
m

o
re

, 
p
o
p
la

r,
 e

lm
 a

n
d
 o

a
k
 (

a
n
d
 l
a
te

r 
w

e
e
p
in

g
 e

lm
s
 i
n
 1

8
9
0
).

  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
1
2
 (

c
.3

 

a
c
re

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

o
f 

c
h
a
p
e
ls

),
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

r 
a
 l
a
rg

e
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
O

ld
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 (

m
e
s
s
 r

o
o
m

 a
n
d
 

s
to

re
) 

o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
d
g
e
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

. 
 I

t 
m

a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 u
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
d
g
e
. 

 M
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 v

a
ri

e
d
 a

n
d
 o

ft
e
n
 e

la
b
o
ra

te
 m

e
m

o
ri

a
ls

. 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

117



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
8

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

C
h
a
p
e
ls

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re

N
o
 C

A
H

o
v
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
8
2
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

, 
a
 l
o
d
g
e
, 

g
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

 w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 f

lin
t.

  

T
h
e
 C

h
a
p
e
ls

 w
e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 M

r 
E

B
 E

lli
c
e
 C

la
rk

, 
s
u
rv

e
y
o
r 

to
 H

o
v
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

, 
in

 a
 1

3
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

ty
le

. 
 T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 f

lin
t 

a
n
d
 s

to
n
e
 w

a
lls

 t
o
 

th
e
 e

xt
e
ri

o
r,

 w
it
h
 C

h
e
lm

s
fo

rd
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 r

o
o
fs

 a
re

 o
f 

s
la

te
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 s

tr
ik

in
g
ly

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l:
 T

h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

 a
re

 o
f 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 g
a
te

h
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 t

u
rr

e
t 

jo
in

in
g
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
4
9

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

L
o
d
g
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re

N
o
 C

A
H

o
v
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
8
2
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

, 
lo

d
g
e
, 

g
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

 w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 f

lin
t.

  
It

 

w
a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
9
. 

 T
h
e
 l
o
d
g
e
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

f 
fl
in

t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 

h
a
s
 a

 p
e
b
b
le

-d
a
s
h
 f

in
is

h
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 T
h
e
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 c

o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 r

o
o
f 

fo
rm

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
0

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 P

a
rk

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

S
m

a
ll 

p
a
rt

 i
n
 

T
h
e
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

u
m

 

C
A

F
o
rm

e
rl

y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 E

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
la

n
d
, 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 H

o
v
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 p
a
rk

 o
n
 3

0
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
8
9
9
. 

 A
ft

e
r 

m
u
c
h
 p

o
lit

ic
a
l 
w

ra
n
g
lin

g
, 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

e
rn

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

 w
a
s
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 o
p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 2

4
 M

a
y
 

1
9
0
6
 w

it
h
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 f

o
u
n
ta

in
 a

d
d
e
d
 b

y
 1

9
0
8
. 

 W
o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
xt

 

d
e
c
a
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 h

a
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

T
h
e
 D

ro
v
e
w

a
y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

e
d
 a

n
 a

n
c
ie

n
t 

d
ro

v
in

g
 r

o
u
te

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
la

y
o
u
t 

o
f 

p
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 

p
la

n
ti
n
g
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 3

rd
 e

d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

9
1
0
),

 a
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 m
a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 s

ti
ll 

e
xi

s
ts

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 s
h
o
w

n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 

 T
h
e
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

re
 f

o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

, 
w

it
h
 g

ra
s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 t

re
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 A
lo

n
g
 

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 t
e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

 p
la

q
u
e
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

te
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

w
e
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r 

is
 t

h
e
 

‘G
o
ld

s
to

n
e
’.
  

It
 l
ik

e
ly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

n
 o

u
tl
ie

r 
to

 a
 s

to
n
e
 c

ir
c
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 a

 ‘
D

ru
id

ic
a
l 
s
to

n
e
’.
  

It
 w

a
s
 r

e
-e

re
c
te

d
 i
n
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ri

e
d
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
y
 y

e
a
rs

 b
y
 a

 f
a
rm

e
r 

fr
u
s
tr

a
te

d
 b

y
 s

ig
h
ts

e
e
rs

 o
n
 h

is
 l
a
n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p

a
v
ili

o
n
 d

a
te

s
 t

o
 1

9
2
5
, 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 

a
 c

a
fé

, 
d
re

s
s
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 t

o
ile

ts
. 

 W
o
o
d
e
n
 f

e
n
c
in

g
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
7
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

a
k
e
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
. 

 

T
h
e
 m

in
ia

tu
re

 r
a
ilw

a
y
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
1
 (

fo
rm

e
rl

y
 a

t 
W

it
h
d
e
a
n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 S
ta

d
iu

m
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
2
0
1
5
 (

p
la

q
u
e
 p

re
-2

0
1
5
)

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
1

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
n
d

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
1
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
. 

 P
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 

la
n
d
 h

a
d
 f

o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 E

s
ta

te
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
a
rk

e
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
. 

 T
o
w

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r 

H
.H

. 
S

c
o
tt

 h
a
d
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 a

rt
if
ic

ia
l 
la

k
e
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 s
im

p
lif

ie
d
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 

 I
n
s
te

a
d
, 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
la

n
te

d
 r

o
u
n
d
e
l,
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 f

o
u
r 

p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 g

ra
s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
-s

e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

p
o
rt

s
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t

re
e
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
te

d
 

to
 t

h
e
 e

d
g
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

s
. 

 A
 d

w
a
rf

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
, 

w
it
h
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

a
th

s
 a

re
 l
in

e
d
 b

y
 f

lin
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
a
v
ili

o
n
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
2
, 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
H

.H
. 

S
c
o
tt

. 
 I

t 
h
a
s
 a

n
 e

lo
n
g
a
te

d
 o

c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
p
la

n
 f

o
rm

, 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

a
s
e
, 

o
a
k
 s

u
p
e
r-

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

ts
 a

n
d
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
 (

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 w
it
h
 t

ile
-c

o
v
e
ri

n
g
).

 T
h
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 w

a
s
 

a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
5
, 

a
g
a
in

 t
o
 H

.H
.S

c
o
tt

’s
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
. 

 B
ri

c
k
-b

u
ilt

 w
it
h
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f,

 i
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

 l
a
d
ie

s
 w

.c
. 

a
n
d
 a

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t’
s
 r

o
o
m

 (
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 

u
ri

n
a
ls

 t
o
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
re

e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

).
  

T
h
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 n

o
w

 h
a
s
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 a

 c
a
fé

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 

g
a
te

 p
ie

rs
 m

a
tc

h
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 S

t 
A

n
n
’s

 W
e
ll 

G
a
rd

e
n
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 S

t 
A

n
n
’s

 W
e
ll 

G
a
rd

e
n
 w

e
re

 e
re

c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
0
8
; 

it
 i
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
o
s
e
 a

t 
th

e
 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 w

e
re

 e
re

c
te

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/1

1
/t

re
e
s
-o

f-

h
o
v
e
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5
 (

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 p

re
-2

0
1
5
)

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
2

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

1
2
6

S
e
lla

b
y
 

H
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
S

e
lla

b
y
 H

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

w
it
h
 f

lin
t-

fa
c
e
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 Y

e
llo

w
-b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

w
it
h
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
s
ti
n
g
 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 d

e
n
s
e
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
. 

 I
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 g

lim
p
s
e
d
 i
n
 v

ie
w

s
 f

ro
m

 O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d
. 

 H
a
n
n
a
h
 B

ra
c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 i
n
h
e
ri

te
d
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
h
e
r 

fa
m

ily
’s

 w
e
a
lt
h
. 

 H
a
v
in

g
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

la
n
d
 i
n
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 i
n
 1

8
7
1
, 

s
h
e
 b

u
ilt

 t
h
e
 ‘
B

ra
c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l’ 

w
h
ic

h
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
7
2
. 

 S
e
lla

b
y
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
3
 O

S
 m

a
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l.
  

B
ra

c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 d
ie

d
 i
n
 1

8
7
2
, 

le
a
v
in

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 t

o
 h

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
k
e
e
p
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
n
io

n
 A

lic
e
 K

in
g
. 

 K
in

g
 t

o
o
k
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

s
h
e
 n

a
m

e
d
 S

e
lla

b
y
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

ft
e
r 

B
ra

c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 f
a
m

ily
’s

 s
u
p
p
o
s
e
d
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 S

e
la

b
y
 i
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

a
s
 

s
o
ld

 t
o
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
 1

9
1
3
 f

o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
u
s
e
. 

 P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 I

n
fa

n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 i
ts

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
3

O
ld

 S
te

in
e

O
ld

 S
te

in
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

T
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 a

 p
o
o
rl

y
-d

ra
in

e
d
 p

ie
c
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
o
n
 l
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

rm
it
te

n
t 

W
e
lle

s
b
o
u
rn

e
 s

tr
e
a
m

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 a

lo
n
g
 i
ts

 w
e
s
te

rn
 

s
id

e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

d
ry

in
g
 n

e
ts

 a
n
d
 s

to
ri

n
g
 b

o
a
ts

. 
 W

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

is
e
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

s
 a

 f
a
s
h
io

n
a
b
le

 r
e
s
o
rt

, 
th

e
 a

re
a
 b

e
g
a
n
 t

o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
in

g
. 

 B
a
th

in
g
 m

a
c
h
in

e
s
, 

a
n
 a

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 r
o
o
m

 a
n
d
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s
 w

e
re

 s
it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 i
ts

 p
e
ri

p
h
e
ry

, 
a
n
d
 a

 t
o
w

e
r 

fr
o
m

 w
h
e
re

 m
u
s
ic

ia
n
s
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
m

e
n
a
d
e
rs

 w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

7
6
5
. 

 A
s
 i
ts

 p
o
p
u
la

ri
ty

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
, 

th
e
 p

a
ri

s
h
 v

e
s
tr

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 t
o
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

m
o
re

 l
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 i
t.

  
T

h
e
 O

ld
 S

te
in

e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 t
u
rf

e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 1

7
7
8
, 

w
it
h
 f

o
rm

a
l 
p
ro

m
e
n
a
d
e
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t.

  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
’s

 

fa
s
h
io

n
a
b
le

 s
ta

tu
s
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 G

e
o
rg

e
, 

P
ri

n
c
e
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
 (

la
te

r 
P

ri
n
c
e
 R

e
g
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 K

in
g
 G

e
o
rg

e
 I

V
) 

b
e
g
a
n
 r

e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ld
 S

te
in

e
 (

la
te

r 
to

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
P

a
v
ili

o
n
) 

in
 t

h
e
 m

id
 1

7
8
0
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

fi
v
e
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lle

y
 w

e
re

 r
e
tu

rf
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 

1
7
8
7
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 W

e
lls

b
o
u
rn

e
 w

a
s
 c

u
lv

e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 1

7
9
3
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

 V
a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

O
ld

 S
te

in
e
 h

a
d
 a

 n
e
w

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
b
ri

c
k
 p

a
th

 s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 1

8
0
6
, 

w
a
s
 g

a
s
 l
it
 i
n
 1

8
2
4
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 b

is
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

 n
e
w

 r
o
a
d
 l
in

k
in

g
 C

a
s
tl
e
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 S

t 

J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 1

8
3
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

fo
rm

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t,

 t
re

e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 F

o
u
n
ta

in
 w

e
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

in
 1

8
4
6
. 

 A
 s

ta
tu

e
 o

f 

J
o
h
n
 C

o
rd

y
 B

u
rr

o
w

s
 (

s
u
rg

e
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
o
lit

ic
ia

n
 w

h
o
 p

a
rt

ly
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 F

o
u
n
ta

in
) 

s
ta

n
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

w
e
s
t.

  
T

h
e
 E

g
y
p
ti
a
n
 C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

M
e
m

o
ri

a
l 
w

a
s
 e

re
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n
 1

8
8
8
. 

 T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 W

a
r 

M
e
m

o
ri

a
l 
w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
2
2
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

e
 o

f 
G

e
o
rg

e
 I

V
 t

h
a
t 

n
o
w

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
th

e
 n

o
rt

h
 g

a
te

 o
f 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
P

a
v
ili

o
n
. 

 H
is

to
ri

c
 m

a
p
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

ls
o
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 m
e
te

o
ro

lo
g
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ti
o
n
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

B
e
rr

y
 2

0
0
0
 i
n
 G

a
rd

e
n
 H

is
to

ry
 V

o
l 
2
8
, 

N
o
 2

.,
 C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

V
a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y
 1

9
9
5

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
4

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

1
-3

U
p
p
e
r 

C
o
tt

a
g
e
s

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
S

h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
th

re
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
, 

s
e
t 

a
t 

ri
g
h
t 

a
n
g
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 t

w
o
 e

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
3
9
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
; 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

h
a
t 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 

T
h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 d

a
te

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

h
e
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
; 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 E
xt

e
n
s
iv

e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

im
e
 m

e
a
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e
ir

 r
o
o
f 

fo
rm

) 
n
o
w

 f
o
rm

 a
 u

n
if
ie

d
 g

ro
u
p
. 

T
h
e
y
 r

e
ta

in
 a

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 f

ro
n
t 

w
it
h
 f

lin
t 

to
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
s
id

e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

h
a
v
e
 s

m
a
ll 

fr
o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h
 f

lin
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
lls

. 
T

h
e
y
 f

a
c
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 H

a
ll 

fa
rm

y
a
rd

 -
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

fo
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

a
rd

 i
ts

e
lf
 -

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 f

a
rm

w
o
rk

e
rs

' c
o
tt

a
g
e
s
. 

T
h
e
 f

lin
t 

s
id

e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

h
a
rd

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

ro
a
d
s
id

e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
2
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
5

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

T
h
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 

R
o
o
m

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
S

m
a
ll 

s
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

u
ilt

 o
f 

fi
e
ld

 f
lin

ts
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 a
 s

te
e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 c

la
y
-t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f,

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 p

o
rc

h
. 

B
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
7
3
 a

s
 a

 ‘
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l’ 

b
u
t 

c
lo

s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

w
in

d
lin

g
 p

u
p
il 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 1

9
0
7
. 

In
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
ri

v
a
te

 n
u
rs

e
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
in

c
e
 1

9
9
3
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
6

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

T
h
e
 O

ld
e
 

B
a
rn

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
A

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
a
rn

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 G

ra
n
g
e
 F

a
rm

, 
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
. 

 T
h
e
 O

ld
e
 B

a
rn

 i
s
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

th
re

s
h
in

g
/s

h
e
a
ri

n
g
 b

a
rn

, 
s
e
t 

a
t 

ri
g
h
t 

a
n
g
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

ro
a
d
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 h
a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 r

o
o
f 

to
 T

h
e
 O

ld
e
 B

a
rn

 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

 

C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

ro
o
fl
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 p

ip
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

o
o
f 

d
e
tr

a
c
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

b
u
t 

a
re

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 a

t 
a
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r,

 s
u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

m
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
o
fs

c
a
p
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
ta

c
t.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
7

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

T
h
e
 S

m
it
h
y

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

R
u
ra

l 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
O

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 f

lin
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 g

a
b
le

d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
F

o
rm

e
rl

y
 t

h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 s

m
it
h
y
, 

it
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 i
n
 

n
e
e
d
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir

, 
b
u
t 

it
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

u
s
e
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 

it
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 h

a
rm

fu
l 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
. 

 T
h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
; 

s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 f
lin

t 
w

a
ll 

a
n
d
 g

ra
s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
. 

 I
t 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 

w
h
e
re

 i
t 

is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
m

it
h
y
. 

 A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 f
a
rm

in
g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
8

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

1
-6

 M
e
a
d
o
w

 

V
a
le

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 

n
o
w

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

N
o
 C

A
R

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fa

rm
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

n
o
w

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
  

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 ‘
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 H

o
u
s
e
’ 
(n

o
w

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
),

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 f

a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 (

n
o
t 

o
f 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 

in
te

re
s
t)

 t
h
e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

‘W
o
o
d
e
n
d
e
a
n
’.
  

T
h
e
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 y
a
rd

. 
 O

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 

lo
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 s

o
u
th

, 
a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 g
a
ra

g
e
s
).

  
D

o
u
b
le

 h
e
ig

h
t 

b
a
rn

 w
it
h
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

h
a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 

to
 w

e
s
t;

 n
o
w

 w
it
h
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 d

o
rm

e
rs

. 
 L

o
w

e
r 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

a
n
g
e
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 e

a
s
t,

 w
it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 F

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
a
s
 

o
f 

ti
le

 h
a
n
g
in

g
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
m

e
s
 G

ra
y
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
3
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
3
_
0
7
3
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

118



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
5
9

O
xf

o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t

2
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

s
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 f

la
t

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
d
; 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
7
 w

a
s
 o

f 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
. 

 C
o
b
b
le

 f
ro

n
te

d
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 g
a
m

b
re

lle
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

h
a
p
e
d
 t

ile
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 d
o
rm

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

o
p
e
n
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 a

 s
h
a
llo

w
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
 T

ile
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 d

o
o
r,

 d
a
te

d
 1

8
1
5
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
0

O
xf

o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t

O
xf

o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
 C

A
D

a
te

d
 1

8
9
0
, 

b
u
t 

in
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 s

ti
ll 

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 a

n
 1

8
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
/l
a
te

 G
e
o
rg

ia
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 D

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 P

a
rk

e
r 

A
n
s
c
o
m

b
e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f 

C
h
ri

s
t 

s
in

c
e
 a

ro
u
n
d
 1

9
1
8
. 

 O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 f

la
t 

ro
o
f.

  
S

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 t

a
ll 

p
a
ir

e
d
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

fl
a
n
k
in

g
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
ro

u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 P
a
ra

p
e
t 

ri
s
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 c

e
n
tr

e
; 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

 r
o
u
n
d
e
l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 ‘
O

xf
o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l’.

  
S

it
u
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

id
d
le

 o
f 

a
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
, 

a
n
d
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t.

  
R

e
a
r 

v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 F

ra
n
c
is

 S
tr

e
e
t;

 b
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 t

h
re

e
 r

o
u
n
d
-

h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
1

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

1
3
-2

1
 o

d
d
, 

1
4
-2

2
 e

v
e
n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 

n
o
w

 

m
o
s
tl
y
 f

la
ts

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 f

o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 1
8
-2

6
 (

e
v
e
n
) 

a
n
d
 1

3
-1

7
 (

o
d
d
),

 b
u
t 

th
e
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
4
-

2
2
 (

e
v
e
n
) 

a
n
d
 1

3
-2

1
 (

o
d
d
).

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

w
it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

w
o
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

b
o
th

 g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
ta

il.
  

T
h
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

a
re

 e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
.1

8
9
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 c

.1
9
1
0
 m

a
p
. 

 G
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
, 

it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

ll 
d
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

1
8
9
0
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
p
 w

a
s
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
in

 d
e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

e
a
c
h
 r

is
in

g
 t

o
 a

 g
a
b
le

. 
 A

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 d

o
o
r 

is
 a

 b
a
lc

o
n
y
 w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 b

o
tt

le
 b

a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

e
m

i-

d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 o

f 
g
re

a
te

r 
b
u
lk

. 
 T

h
e
y
 r

e
ta

in
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 p

e
d
im

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 b
a
lc

o
n
y
 

w
it
h
 t

im
b
e
r 

b
a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
. 

 A
ll 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
, 

m
a
n
y
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
ta

in
 t

h
e
ir

 t
e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 

b
o
tt

le
 b

a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
, 

b
a
ll 

fi
n
ia

ls
 a

n
d
/o

r 
u
rn

s
. 

 S
ie

 J
a
c
k
 H

o
b
b
s
 (

fa
m

o
u
s
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 c

ri
c
k
e
te

r)
 l
iv

e
d
 a

t 
1
3
 P

a
lm

e
ir

a
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 i
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 p
la

q
u
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ro
n
ze

 A
g
e
 H

o
v
e
 B

a
rr

o
w

, 
in

 w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 A

m
b
e
r 

C
u
p
 

w
a
s
 d

is
c
o
v
e
re

d
. 

 T
h
e
 B

a
rr

o
w

 w
a
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
5
7
-8

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

b
c
.c

o
.u

k
/a

h
is

to
ry

o
ft

h
e
w

o
rl

d
/o

b
je

c
ts

/G
p
v
p
A

zj
3
T

2
y
F

U
Y

IM
9
6
lc

e
w

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
2

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 

H
o
v
e
 R

e
fo

rm
 

S
y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

N
o
 C

A
R

e
fo

rm
 S

y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e
, 

1
9
6
6
-7

 b
y
 D

e
re

k
 S

h
a
rp

 F
R

IB
A

. 
 T

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

to
n
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 b
y
 R

a
b
b
i 
E

rw
in

 S
 R

o
s
e
n
b
lu

m
 o

n
 1

7
 J

u
ly

 1
9
6
6
 /

 2
9

th
 

T
a
m

m
u
z 

5
7
2
6
. 

 M
o
d
e
rn

 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

y
e
t 

re
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

id
d
le

 e
a
s
te

rn
 S

y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 d

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
. 

 B
u
ff

-

b
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 p

e
rf

o
ra

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 
 P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

ro
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 w

it
h
 o

p
e
n
 s

id
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 T
h
re

e
 l
a
rg

e
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
. 

 S
ta

in
e
d
 g

la
s
s
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 P

e
tt

s
. 

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 E

a
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 s

lig
h
tl
y
, 

w
it
h
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
3

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d

V
ill

a
g
e
 H

a
ll

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

V
ill

a
g
e
 H

a
ll

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
, 

b
ri

c
k
-b

u
ilt

 h
a
ll 

w
it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
3
5
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 1

9
3
0
s
 d

e
ta

ils
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
r 

e
m

b
e
lli

s
h
m

e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 

(i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
),

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 d
a
te

 s
to

n
e
. 

 R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 w

a
s
 a

n
n
e
xe

d
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
 1

9
2
8
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 –
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 

fa
rm

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
a
s
t 

ro
a
d
 –

 l
e
d
 t

o
 m

u
c
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
u
b
u
rb

a
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 

o
f 

th
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
 l
e
d
 t

o
 a

 n
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 p
u
b
lic

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 h
a
ll 

fo
rm

s
 p

a
rt

.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
4

P
a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 P

a
rk

 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

xt
 t

h
a
t 

“c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 b
u
ild

in
g
 e

v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
).

 

T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
a
t 

A
c
t.

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 G

ilb
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f

ro
m

 1
8
9
0
. 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 

T
h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 1

8
7
0
-

1
9
0
3
. 

T
h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
f 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt

a
, 

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 F

re
e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 

R
o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
. 

In
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 g

ra
d
e
 

II
 l
is

te
d
: 

F
in

s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

);
 D

o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 R

u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 

o
f 

1
8
9
3
; 

a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 

A
ll 

a
re

 b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll 

b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 

1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(F
re

s
h
fi
e
ld

 P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
it
y
 

C
o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
5

P
a
v
ili

o
n
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s

2
-3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

O
ff

ic
e

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

F
o
rm

e
r 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 H

e
ra

ld
, 

b
u
ilt

 1
9
3
4
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
J
o
h
n
 L

e
o
p
o
ld

 D
e
n
m

a
n
. 

 N
e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 i
n
 s

ty
le

, 
a
n
d
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

P
e
v
s
n
e
r 

G
u
id

e
 a

s
 ‘
v
e
ry

 s
ty

lis
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll-

d
e
ta

ile
d
’.
  

S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
in

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 S
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

s
e
t 

in
 a

n
 a

rc
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

-h
e
a
d
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rw

a
y
. 

 T
w

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o
o
rw

a
y
s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 

 B
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 s

to
n
e
 

d
re

s
s
in

g
s
. 

 C
a
rv

in
g
 b

y
 J

o
s
e
p
h
 C

ri
b
b
. 

 8
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 P
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 c

lo
c
k
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
6

P
a
y
n
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e

1
8

T
h
e
 G

e
o
rg

e
 

P
a
y
n
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
1
9
0
1
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

T
.H

. 
S

c
u
tt

 f
o
r 

b
re

w
e
rs

 S
m

it
h
e
rs

 &
 S

o
n
s
 o

f 
W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
, 

H
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 n
a
m

e
d
 t

h
e
 K

e
n
d
a
l 
A

rm
s
, 

w
it
h
 i
ts

 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 o

n
 K

e
n
d
a
l 
R

o
a
d
. 

F
ra

n
k
 W

a
s
h
in

g
to

n
 –

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
lif

ic
 f

a
m

ily
 o

f 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 -

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

la
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 S
m

it
h
e
rs

 o
w

n
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
2
9
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
. 

 I
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

n
a
m

e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

a
y
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 i
n
 

c
.1

9
0
0
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

T
.H

.S
c
u
tt

. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
E

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 

K
e
n
d
a
l 
R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 P

a
y
n
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
. 

 R
o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 F
a
s
c
ia

 e
xt

e
n
d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f

u
ll 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 

b
o
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 H
ig

h
ly

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

a
b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

a
n
te

d
. 

 L
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
ri

g
in

a
l 
p
u
b
 s

ig
n
 e

v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 P

a
y
n
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t,

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

lo
w

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 g

a
b
le

 t
o
 r

o
a
d
, 

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

2
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-i

n
d
e
x-

g
-n

.h
tm

l 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
7

P
o
rt

 H
a
ll 

A
v
e
n
u
e

M
ill

lig
a
n
 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 s
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 

fl
a
t

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 f

ir
s
t 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
9
8
 O

S
 M

a
p
. 

 I
t 

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
is

 m
a
p
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

e
d
it
io

n
s
. 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 n

a
m

e
 i
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

 H
a
ll 

T
a
v
e
rn

 f
ro

m
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

1
8
9
0
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
7
3
 (

u
n
d
e
r 

1
0
 P

a
rk

 V
ie

w
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
).

  
R

e
c
o
rd

s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 O

ff
ic

e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

it
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 b

y
 a

s
 e

a
rl

y
 a

s
 1

8
8
2
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 T

a
m

p
lin

 B
re

w
e
ry

. 
 I

n
 

1
8
9
0
 G

e
o
rg

e
 P

o
s
tl
e
th

w
a
it
e
 w

a
s
 p

ro
p
ri

e
to

r.
  

H
e
 w

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 N

e
ls

o
n
, 

S
ta

n
le

y
 B

 L
a
w

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
le

 f
a
m

ily
. 

 I
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
-l

ic
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
7
3
, 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 s
h
o
p
 w

it
h
 f

la
t 

o
v
e
r 

n
a
m

e
d
 M

ill
ig

a
n
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

it
 

h
a
s
 t

h
re

e
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 c

u
rv

e
d
 s

id
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll 

p
a
n
e
s
 o

f 
g
la

s
s
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
e
d
 d

e
ta

il.
  

O
n
e
 i
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
n
ly

, 
w

it
h
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 t

w
o
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 r

is
e
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l;
 o

n
e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 f
o
u
r 

d
o
o
rs

. 
 R

e
m

a
in

in
g
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 o

r 
2
0
 o

v
e
r 

1
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
l 
p
u
b
 

s
ig

n
 n

o
w

 r
e
a
d
s
 ‘
M

ill
ig

a
n
 H

o
u
s
e
’.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
6
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
6
_
0
7
5
.h

tm
l,
 h

tt
p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
6
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
6
_
0
7
6
.h

tm
l,
 h

tt
p
:/

/d
is

c
o
v
e
ry

.n
a
ti
o
n
a
la

rc
h
iv

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

e
ta

ils
/r

d
/b

a
c
2
c
f3

a
-8

4
5
8
-4

5
3
3
-8

c
a
6
-1

e
4
6
2
9
9
e
e
d
1
f 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
8

P
re

s
to

n
 C

ir
c
u
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 F

ir
e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
ir

e
 S

ta
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
P

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 f
ir

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
3
8
 b

y
 G

ra
e
m

e
 H

ig
h
e
t 

in
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 S

to
n
e
 a

n
d
 b

ri
c
k
. 

 G
e
n
e
ra

lly
 o

f 
a
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

e
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
t 

s
ty

le
, 

it
 a

ls
o
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

o
ti
fs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
te

d
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

ta
ff

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 R
e
lie

fs
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 f

ir
e
 f

ig
h
ti
n
g
 

b
y
 J

o
s
e
p
h
 C

ri
b
b
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

a
 p

e
ri

o
d
 o

f 
m

o
re

 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 f

ir
e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
-c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 s

ty
le

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 

p
e
ri

o
d
. 

E
y
e
le

ts
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

tr
o
lle

y
b
u
s
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

w
h
ic

h
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 1
9
3
9
 t

o
 1

9
6
1
. 

 I
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

ta
ir

c
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rq

u
e
t 

fl
o
o
ri

n
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
re

a
r 

d
o
o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 s

it
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

fi
re

fi
g
h
ti
n
g
 s

in
c
e
 1

9
0
1
, 

th
e
 s

it
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

m
b
e
r 

A
le

 b
re

w
e
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

A
n
tr

a
m

 a
n
d
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

119



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
6
9

P
re

s
to

n
 D

ro
v
e

B
la

k
e
rs

 P
a
rk

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
lic

 P
a
rk

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

A
ld

e
rm

a
n
 J

o
h
n
 G

e
o
rg

e
 B

la
k
e
r 

g
if
te

d
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
 1

8
9
3
, 

‘f
o
r 

th
e
 f

re
e
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 i
n
h
a
b
it
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 o

f 
re

c
re

a
ti
o
n
’ 
(B

u
rg

u
n
d
y
 B

o
o
k
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 m

a
n
u
a
l 
fo

r 
1
8
9
4
/5

).
  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 r
e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 s

e
t 

th
e
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 a

 p
a
rk

, 
it
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

a
y
o
r 

o
n
 3

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

1
8
9
4
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 a

 w
in

d
in

g
 ‘
fi
g
u
re

 o
f 

e
ig

h
t’
 p

a
th

, 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 

la
rg

e
 l
o
o
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n
d
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
lo

o
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
b
o
th

 w
it
h
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

g
ra

s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
 w

it
h
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 A

 c
lo

c
k
 t

o
w

e
r 

w
a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
6
 (

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
).

  
T

e
n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

s
 w

e
re

 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

(s
o
u
th

e
rn

) 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 b
y
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 

 T
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 l
o
n
g
 v

ie
w

s
 s

o
u
th

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

p
a
rk

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

la
k
e
rs

p
a
rk

.o
rg

.u
k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/

c
a
te

g
o
ry

/a
b
o
u
t-

b
la

k
e
rs

-p
a
rk

 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
0

P
re

s
to

n
 D

ro
v
e

B
la

k
e
rs

 P
a
rk

 

C
lo

c
k
 T

o
w

e
r

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
a
rk

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 -

 

c
lo

c
k
 t

o
w

e
r

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

F
re

e
-s

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 i
ro

n
 c

lo
c
k
 t

o
w

e
r,

 5
0
 f

e
e
t 

in
 h

e
ig

h
t,

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

8
9
6
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 r

is
e
s
 i
n
 f

o
u
r 

s
ta

g
e
s
. 

 I
ts

 

d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

lo
w

e
r 

m
o
ti
fs

, 
p
ila

s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 a

 c
u
p
o
la

 w
it
h
 d

o
lp

h
in

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

v
a
n
e
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

ic
k
e
d
 

o
u
t 

in
 g

o
ld

 p
a
in

t.
  

T
h
e
 c

lo
c
k
 t

o
w

e
r 

(a
n
d
 p

a
rk

) 
w

a
s
 d

o
n
a
te

d
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 b

y
 A

ld
e
rm

a
n
 S

ir
 J

o
h
n
 B

la
k
e
r,

 1
s
t  b

a
ro

n
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 

 H
is

 m
o
n
o
g
ra

m
 i
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

lo
c
k
 t

o
w

e
r.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
1

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d

2
T

h
e
 J

o
k
e
r

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 (

p
a
in

te
d
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r)

 w
it
h
 s

h
a
llo

w
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
It

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

-s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 a

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 L

o
n
g
h
u
rs

t’
s
 B

re
w

e
ry

 i
n
 1

8
7
9
. 

 T
h
e
n
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 A

rm
s
 (

ta
k
in

g
 

it
s
 n

a
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
P

re
s
to

n
 l
a
n
d
o
w

n
e
rs

 t
h
e
 B

e
n
n
e
tt

-S
ta

n
fo

rd
s
),

 i
t 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

s
 n

o
w

. 
 I

n
 1

8
7
7
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

 t
h
e
 

la
n
d
o
w

n
e
r 

a
s
 J

. 
H

a
in

e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

re
s
to

n
 C

ir
c
u
s
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
re

e
 d

o
u
b
le

-d
o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

(o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 

d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
),

 t
h
re

e
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
e
d
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t.

  
B

a
rl

e
y
-t

w
is

t 

ra
in

w
a
te

r 
d
o
w

n
p
ip

e
s
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 t

o
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 (

fr
o
n
ti
n
g
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

B
e
a
c
o
n
s
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
);

 t
h
a
t 

to
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 r

o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 g

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

b
lin

d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

T
a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
 t

o
 B

e
a
c
o
n
s
fi
e
ld

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
0
a
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
0
a
_
0
9
6
.h

tm
l,
 h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
0
a
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
0
a
_
1
0
5
.h

tm
l,
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
6
2
9
0
.a

s
p
x?

p
a
th

=
0
p
2
1
4
p
2
1
7
p
2
2
0
p
2
1
5
p
2
0
4
p
6
1
9
p
 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
2

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d

8
7

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 

A
n
n
e
xe

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

xt
 t

h
a
t 

“c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 b
u
ild

in
g
 e

v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
).

 

T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
a
t 

A
c
t.

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 G

ilb
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f

ro
m

 1
8
9
0
. 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 

T
h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 1

8
7
0
-

1
9
0
3
. 

T
h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
f 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt

a
, 

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 F

re
e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 

R
o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
. 

In
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 g

ra
d
e
 

II
 l
is

te
d
: 

F
in

s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

);
 D

o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 R

u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 

o
f 

1
8
9
3
; 

a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 

A
ll 

a
re

 b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll 

b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 

1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(F
re

s
h
fi
e
ld

 P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
it
y
 

C
o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
3

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d

2
0
1
-2

0
5
 o

d
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p

P
re

s
to

n
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

T
w

o
 t

o
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

w
it
h
 s

h
o
p
s
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
D

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 S

ta
n
le

y
 P

e
a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 f

a
m

ily
 o

f 
P

re
s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r.

  
T

h
e
y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 p

le
a
s
a
n
t 

v
ie

w
 f

ro
m

 P
re

s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r.

  
D

e
s
ig

n
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 i
t 

w
a
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
A

c
a
c
ia

 

H
o
u
s
e
 (

1
9
9
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 

n
o
w

 l
is

te
d
).

  
P

e
a
c
h
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
s
 o

n
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 P

re
s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r 

(1
9
0
5
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 E

s
ta

te
 

O
ff

ic
e
 i
n
 S

o
u
th

 R
o
a
d
 (

b
o
th

 l
is

te
d
),

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir

 o
th

e
r 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n
 W

ilt
s
h
ir

e
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 E

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 s

ty
le

, 
w

it
h
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 

o
f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
G

a
b
le

s
 e

xt
e
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

n
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 M

id
d
le

 R
o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

la
s
te

rw
o
rk

 d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 s

h
e
a
v
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
rn

 a
n
d
 c

o
c
k
e
re

ls
. 

 T
h
e
 s

h
e
a
v
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
rn

 (
to

 M
id

d
le

 R
o
a
d
) 

lik
e
ly

 d
e
n
o
te

 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
u
s
e
 

a
s
 a

 b
a
k
e
ry

; 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
a
in

te
d
 s

ig
n
 f

o
r 

H
o
v
is

 o
n
 t

h
e
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

 b
e
lo

w
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

P
re

s
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r 

A
rc

h
iv

e

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
4

Q
u
e
e
n
's

 P
a
rk

 

R
o
a
d

1
7
5

T
h
e
 

Is
lin

g
w

o
rd

 

In
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l 
/ 

P
u
b
lic

 

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
M

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 I
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
p
s
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 s

iz
e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 i
t 

lik
e
ly

 a
ls

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 a

s
 

a
n
 h

o
te

l.
  

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

c
o
n
c
e
a
lin

g
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
s
 o

n
 t

o
 I

s
lin

g
w

o
rd

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 

P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
 t

w
o
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
s
 a

re
 a

lm
o
s
t 

id
e
n
ti
c
a
l.
  

T
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 f
la

n
k
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 f

lo
o
r.

  
T

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 h

e
a
d
s
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
ic

h
e
 s

e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 I

s
lin

g
w

o
rd

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 e

a
c
h
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

a
t 

p
a
ra

p
e
t 

le
v
e
l.
  

R
u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

tu
c
c
o
 a

n
d
 p

ie
rc

e
d
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

a
n
te

d
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 i
s
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 p

ila
s
te

rs
, 

w
it
h
 b

lin
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 a

 s
in

g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
t 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

w
a
s
 r

e
fi
tt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 

 D
e
s
p
it
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
o
ri

g
in

a
l 

ro
o
m

 d
iv

is
io

n
s
, 

th
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

it
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

A
M

R
A

 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.h

e
ri

ta
g
e
p
u
b
s
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

u
b
s
/r

e
a
l-

h
e
ri

ta
g
e
-p

u
b
-e

n
tr

y
.a

s
p
?
N

a
tP

u
b
ID

=
B

R
I/

1
1
0
 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
5

Q
u
e
e
n
's

 P
a
rk

 

R
o
a
d

O
rc

h
a
rd

 D
a
y
 

N
u
rs

e
ry

 

(Q
u
e
e
n
's

 

P
a
rk

 

M
e
th

o
d
is

t 

C
h
u
rc

h
)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

, 
n
o
w

 n
u
rs

e
ry

N
o
 C

A
M

e
th

o
d
is

t 
C

h
u
rc

h
, 

n
o
w

 n
u
rs

e
ry

 (
Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 L
o
ft

).
  

1
8
9
1
 b

y
 W

.S
. 

P
a
rn

a
c
o
tt

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 M

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

 

e
n
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 f

ro
n
ts

 Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 R
o
a
d
. 

 L
a
rg

e
ly

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

e
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 I

t 
c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
ro

u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

 w
it
h
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
tr

a
c
e
ry

 a
n
d
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
ir

e
d
 p

ila
s
te

rs
; 

b
lin

d
 c

o
lo

n
n
a
d
e
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 S
m

a
lle

r 
ro

u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

w
it
h
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 (

a
g
a
in

 p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

) 
b
e
y
o
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 s

te
p
s
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 

a
t 

lo
w

e
r 

h
e
ig

h
t.

  
A

ll 
s
e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 a

 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 s

h
a
llo

w
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 R
u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 C

h
u
rc

h
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 

p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
g
h
to

n
h
is

to
ry

.o
rg

.u
k
/s

tr
e
e
ts

/s
tr

e
e
ts

_
q
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
6

Q
u
e
e
n
's

 R
o
a
d

5
9

T
h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 C
A

T
h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
s
 m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

1
8
5
9
, 

w
h
e
n
 J

 S
a
u
n
d
e
rs

 w
a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 T
h
e
 s

ty
le

 o
f 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
p
p
e
a
rs

 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 d

a
te

. 
 4

 s
to

re
y
 a

n
d
 o

n
ly

 2
 b

a
y
s
 w

id
e
. 

 T
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

c
u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

n
g
le

d
 f

a
s
c
ia

. 
 A

b
o
v
e
, 

tw
o
 s

h
a
llo

w
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
w

o
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
-

h
e
a
d
e
d
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 p

a
n
e
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
. 

 T
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
ir

d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t.

  
T

h
e
 r

o
o
fl
in

e
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
a
rv

e
d
 s

to
n
e
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 w

o
rd

s
 ‘
T

h
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

’,
 p

ila
s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 f

o
lia

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 S
m

a
ll 

c
u
p
o
la

 w
it
h
 

c
o
lu

m
n
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

 c
o
p
p
e
r 

d
o
m

e
d
 r

o
o
f 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

o
n
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 m

is
s
in

g
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
7

Q
u
e
e
n
's

 R
o
a
d

6
9
-7

0
T

h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
's

 

H
e
a
d

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 C
A

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

8
4
5
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 R

a
ilw

a
y
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 l
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 

h
o
te

ls
, 

p
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
s
, 

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
7
8
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

, 
th

e
 T

e
rm

in
u
s
 H

o
te

l 
w

a
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

p
p
o
s
it
e
 t

h
e
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 S

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
4
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

w
id

e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
5
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
o
th

e
r 

tw
o
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 H
e
a
d
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 f

a
c
e
 t

h
e
 R

a
ilw

a
y
 S

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

ro
o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

y
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
T

im
b
e
r 

p
u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 g

o
ld

 f
a
s
c
ia

 r
e
a
d
in

g
 ‘
W

h
is

k
y
, 

B
le

n
d
e
r,

 W
in

e
 a

n
d
 B

ra
n
d
y
 S

h
ip

p
e
r.

  

T
h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 H
e
a
d
’.
  

C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 F

re
n
c
h
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
, 

c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 

h
e
a
v
ily

 d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
, 

w
it
h
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

a
n
d
 s

w
a
g
s
 a

n
d
 g

a
rl

a
n
d
s
 s

e
t 

b
e
lo

w
 a

 p
a
ra

p
e
t 

w
it
h
 b

o
tt

le
 b

a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t 

re
a
d
in

g
 ‘
T

h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 H
e
a
d
’.
  

T
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 e
xp

o
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
a
 f

a
ç
a
d
e
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
a
t 

p
e
ri

o
d
 w

a
s
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 n

o
w

 m
a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

to
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 R
o
a
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

120



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
8

Q
u
e
e
n
s
b
u
ry

 

M
e
w

s

F
re

n
c
h
 

R
e
fo

rm
e
d
 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t 

n
o
w

 d
w

e
lli

n
g

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

F
re

n
c
h
 R

e
fo

rm
e
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
, 

b
u
ilt

 b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

J
.G

.G
ib

b
in

s
 i
n
 1

8
8
7
-8

 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 F

re
n
c
h
 s

p
e
a
k
in

g
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 v

is
it
o
rs

 t
o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 

 O
n
e
 

o
f 

o
n
ly

 t
w

o
 s

u
c
h
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 c
h
u
rc

h
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
, 

th
e
 o

th
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 i
n
 S

o
h
o
 S

q
u
a
re

, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

lis
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I,
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 1

8
9
1
-3

).
  

T
h
e
 

s
m

a
ll 

c
h
a
p
e
l 
is

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 r

e
d
-b

ri
c
k
, 

w
it
h
 a

 s
te

e
p
ly

-p
it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 t
u
rr

e
te

d
 l
a
n
te

rn
. 

T
h
re

e
 G

o
th

ic
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

s
id

e
, 

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 r
is

e
s
 i
n
to

 a
 s

m
a
ll 

g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
. 

 S
o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 

h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 p

o
in

te
d
-a

rc
h
 w

it
h
 

c
a
rv

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 A
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 d

o
o
r 

is
 a

 c
ir

c
u
la

r 
w

in
d
o
w

 w
it
h
 q

u
a
tr

e
fo

il 
tr

a
c
e
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

la
n
k
. 

 S
m

a
ll 

a
p
s
e
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 C
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 
a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
n
y
 f

e
a
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
la

in
 i
n
te

ri
o
r.

  
It

e
m

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

Q
u
e
e
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
’s

 G
o
ld

e
n
 J

u
b
ile

e
 w

e
re

 a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 d

is
c
o
v
e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
fo

u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

to
n
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r,

 J
u
b
ile

e
 m

e
d
a
l 

a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

J
u
b
ile

e
 c

o
in

s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
7
9

R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 

P
la

c
e

3
3

F
o
rm

e
r 

R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 

H
o
te

l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l
V

a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

1
9
3
1
 b

y
 J

.L
. 

D
e
n
m

a
n
 i
n
 a

 N
e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 s

ty
le

 a
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

h
o
te

ls
 D

e
n
m

a
n
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 

B
re

w
e
ry

. 
 I

t 
re

p
la

c
e
d
 a

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 h

o
te

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 m

a
k
e
s
 g

o
o
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
it
s
 c

o
rn

e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 c
u
rv

e
d
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 

 T
a
ll 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 s
e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
0

R
o
e
d
a
le

 R
o
a
d

1
T

h
e
 

H
o
lli

n
g
b
u
ry

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

N
o
 C

A
T

u
rn

-o
f-

th
e
-2

0
th
-c

e
n
tu

ry
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

s
it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

R
o
e
d
a
le

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 F
ir

s
t 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 H

o
lli

n
g
b
u
ry

 

H
o
te

l,
 i
ts

 f
ir

s
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 w

a
s
 H

o
ra

c
e
 J

o
h
n
 W

h
it
w

e
ll 

in
 1

8
9
9
. 

 I
t 

is
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 m

a
p
s
 f

ro
m

 c
.1

8
8
5
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 g
a
b
le

 a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
5
 r

o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 R

o
e
d
a
le

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 

d
e
e
p
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
S

o
m

e
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
. 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
1

R
o
s
e
 H

ill
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e

7
0
-7

1
R

o
s
e
 H

ill
 

T
a
v
e
rn

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

g
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f,
 a

n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

in
g
, 

tw
o
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

 G
re

e
n
-t

ile
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 

tw
o
 d

o
o
rs

 a
n
d
 t

w
o
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 F
a
s
c
ia

 a
n
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 ‘
U

n
it
e
d
’ 
B

re
w

e
ry

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

P
o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 &
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 B

re
w

e
ri

e
s
 L

td
. 

 T
h
is

 b
re

w
e
ry

 w
a
s
 f

o
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 m

e
rg

e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 U
n
it
e
d
 b

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
's

 R
o
c
k
 

b
re

w
e
ry

 i
n
 1

9
2
7
. 

 T
h
e
 g

re
e
n
-t

ile
d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 i
s
 t

y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
a
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
's

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l,
 w

it
h
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 a

 

la
rg

e
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
. 

 P
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 t

o
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
lls

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 f

ir
s
t 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 R

o
s
e
 H

ill
 T

a
v
e
rn

 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 1
8
6
4
, 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 w

a
s
 a

 J
. 

C
o
lli

n
s
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
2

R
u
tl
a
n
d
 R

o
a
d

5
9

T
h
e
 A

n
c
ie

n
t 

M
a
ri

n
e
r

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
L
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

fi
rs

t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

f 

P
o
e
t’
s
 C

o
rn

e
r.

  
It

 w
a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

S
a
m

u
e
l 
D

e
n
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 S

m
it
h
e
rs

 B
re

w
e
ry

 f
ro

m
 1

8
9
6
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

la
n
d
lo

rd
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 

H
a
rr

y
 W

a
s
h
in

g
to

n
. 

 T
h
e
 p

u
b
 w

a
s
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
 i
n
 1

9
2
9
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 I

t 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

s
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r 

p
lo

t,
 w

it
h
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

g
a
b
le

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 f

a
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

a
c
h
 s

tr
e
e
t.

  
R

o
u
n
d
-

a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 p

a
ir

e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
It

 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-p

u
b
s
-c

.h
tm

l 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
3

R
u
tl
a
n
d
 R

o
a
d

W
e
s
t 

H
o
v
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
u
rc

h

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
 C

A
O

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
w

it
h
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f.

  
G

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f

o
rm

s
 m

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

d
 p

o
rc

h
. 

 T
w

o
-l

ig
h
t 

p
o
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
, 

s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 r
o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
. 

 ‘
R

u
tl
a
n
d
 H

a
ll’

 i
n
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

p
a
rt

 d
a
m

a
g
e
d
. 

 

S
in

g
le

 t
w

o
-c

e
n
tr

e
d
 a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 

 P
la

n
s
 b

y
 W

.H
.N

a
s
h
 f

o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 M
is

s
io

n
 H

a
ll 

w
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
6
, 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 

d
o
n
a
te

d
 b

y
 C

lif
to

n
v
ill

e
 C

o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
u
rc

h
. 

 N
a
m

e
d
 R

u
tl
a
n
d
 G

o
s
p
e
l 
H

a
ll,

 i
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
0
0
. 

 I
t 

is
 n

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 B
a
p
ti
s
t 

c
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
4

S
a
c
k
v
ill

e
 R

o
a
d

2
5
 a

n
d
 2

7
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 

n
o
w

 

w
it
h
 o

p
ti
c
ia

n
s

O
ld

 H
o
v
e
 C

A
S

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

n
o
w

 p
a
rt

ly
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

n
 o

p
ti
c
ia

n
s
, 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

S
a
c
k
v
ill

e
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 

R
o
a
d
. 

 F
ir

s
t 

e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
.1

9
1
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

n
 e

c
le

c
ti
c
 m

ix
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 A

rt
s
 &

 C
ra

ft
s
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
s
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 

C
o
m

p
le

x 
ti
le

d
 r

o
o
fs

c
a
p
e
. 

 R
o
u
g
h
c
a
s
t 

re
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

ile
 h

a
n
g
in

g
. 

 T
w

o
 g

a
b
le

s
 f

ro
n
t 

o
n
 t

o
 S

a
c
k
v
ill

e
 R

o
a
d
 (

w
e
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
),

 w
it
h
 a

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
lly

-

p
la

c
e
d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
7
).

  
T

im
b
e
r 

s
q
u
a
re

 o
ri

e
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 

s
e
t 

b
e
n
e
a
th

 e
a
v
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
w

e
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r.

  
B

u
tt

re
s
s
e
s
 d

iv
id

e
 t

h
e
 b

a
y
s
. 

 M
a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
t 

in
 l
a
rg

e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

w
it
h
in

 a
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
. 

 S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 s

lig
h
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 

 N
u
m

b
e
r 

2
5
 h

a
s
 a

 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 f
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
d
g
e
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 

lo
w

 w
a
ll 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r,

 w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 b

lo
c
k
w

o
rk

 a
b
o
v
e
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
5

S
a
c
k
v
ill

e
 R

o
a
d

T
e
n
n
y
s
o
n
 

C
o
u
rt

 (
H

o
v
e
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
(n

o
w

 

fl
a
ts

)

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 1
8
8
7
-8

8
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 T

 C
h
a
p
p
e
ll 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 C

la
rk

e
 &

 M
ic

k
le

th
w

a
it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 D

is
p
e
n
s
a
ry

, 
W

e
s
te

rn
 

D
is

tr
ic

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

t 
4
 F

a
rm

 R
o
a
d
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
d
 o

u
tg

ro
w

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

n
d
 o

f 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
, 

it
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 n

u
m

e
ro

u
s
 

p
la

in
 a

n
d
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

s
, 

ta
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 A

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

a
n
e
l 
to

 i
ts

 s
o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 s

ta
te

s
 ‘
T

h
is

 H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
w

in
g
 w

a
s
 e

re
c
te

d
 i
n
 

m
e
m

o
ry

 o
f 

C
a
rr

 B
u
rt

o
n
 E

s
q
. 

b
y
 h

is
 w

id
o
w

 M
a
ry

 P
e
n
n
y
 B

u
rt

o
n
’,
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 1
8
8
8
 a

n
d
 a

 c
o
a
t 

o
f 

a
rm

s
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 w
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
6
 

a
n
d
 1

9
3
4
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
c
lo

s
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
9
7
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
6

S
h
a
ft

e
s
b
u
ry

 

P
la

c
e

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

B
u
ilt

 1
8
7
7
 b

y
 W

. 
S

a
w

y
e
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 C
o
a
s
t 

R
a
ilw

a
y
. 

 O
n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

b
u
ilt

 i
n
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

T
u
s
c
a
n
 V

ill
a
 ‘
h
o
u
s
e
’ 
s
ty

le
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
5
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

8
7
0
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 W

e
s
t 

W
o
rt

h
in

g
, 

S
h
o
re

h
a
m

-b
y
-S

e
a
, 

H
o
v
e
, 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

o
w

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 S

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

e
t 

o
n
 a

 r
a
is

e
d
 p

lin
th

 w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
s
te

p
s
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 2

:5
:2

 b
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 b

a
y
s
 b

re
a
k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

s
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 

s
la

te
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 c

o
rn

ic
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
lo

c
k
 i
s
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 s

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y
 w

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 g

a
b
le

d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 W

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

ro
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

a
m

b
e
re

d
 h

e
a
d
s
, 

m
o
u
ld

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 1

 o
v
e
r 

1
 s

lid
in

g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 I
t 

is
 v

e
ry

 s
im

ila
r 

in
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
 H

o
v
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 o

n
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 (

b
u
ilt

 1
8
6
5
-7

),
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
a
rg

e
r 

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 g

ra
n
d
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 I
ts

 m
a
in

 b
lo

c
k
 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 

id
e
n
ti
c
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
 m

a
in

 s
o
u
th

 b
u
ild

in
g
 (

b
u
ilt

 1
8
5
7
),

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 

m
o
u
ld

in
g
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
c
a
l 
to

 t
h
o
s
e
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
 a

n
d
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 S

ta
ti
o
n
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
 G

u
id

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 N

D

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
7

S
o
m

e
rh

ill
 R

o
a
d

P
a
rk

 G
a
te

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
F

la
ts

, 
1
9
5
8
, 

b
y
 E

ri
c
 L

y
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 G

e
o
ff

re
y
 T

o
w

n
s
e
n
d
. 

 4
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 f

la
t 

ro
o
f.

  
B

ri
c
k
, 

h
u
n
g
 t

ile
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 h

o
llo

w
 b

lo
c
k
w

o
rk

, 
b
u
ilt

 a
ro

u
n
d
 a

 

c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

. 
 C

o
lo

u
re

d
 g

la
zi

n
g
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ir

w
e
lls

 (
c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
).

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

. 
 L

y
o
n
s
 c

o
-

fo
u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 S

p
a
n
 i
n
 1

9
4
8
, 

a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 G

e
o
ff

re
y
 T

o
w

n
s
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 L

e
s
lie

 B
ils

b
y
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
n
y
 w

a
s
 s

o
-c

a
lle

d
 a

s
 i
t 

a
im

e
d
 

to
 ‘
s
p
a
n
’ 
th

e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
-e

n
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t-

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
t-

w
a
r 

m
a
s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

 H
e
 m

a
d
e
 h

is
 n

a
m

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

m
a
ll 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 R

ic
h
m

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 B

la
c
k
h
e
a
th

 d
u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 1

9
5
0
s
. 

 H
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
s
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
ig

h
t,

 w
h
ils

t 
b
lu

rr
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

d
g
e
s
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 o

u
ts

id
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
o
o
r 

s
p
a
c
e
. 

 T
h
e
y
 u

s
e
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 i
n
te

rs
p
e
rs

e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 h

u
n
g
 t

ile
, 

a
n
d
 o

ft
e
n
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 t

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 m

ix
. 

 A
ll 

th
e
s
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
v
id

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

 G
a
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

N
a
ir

n
 &

 

P
e
v
s
n
e
r 

1
9
6
5
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.p

a
rk

g
a
te

-h
o
v
e
.c

o
m

/ 
h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

h
e
m

o
d
e
rn

h
o
u
s
e
.n

e
t/

d
ir

e
c
to

ry
-o

f-
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

-a
n
d
-d

e
s
ig

n
e
rs

/e
ri

c
-l

y
o
n
s
/ 

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
8

S
o
m

e
rh

ill
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

A
n
n
's

 W
e
ll 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
le

a
s
u
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
, 

n
o
w

 

p
u
b
lic

 p
a
rk

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
d
ic

in
a
l 
s
p
ri

n
g
, 

k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 c

h
a
ly

b
e
a
te

. 
 P

a
ti
e
n
ts

 c
a
m

e
 t

o
 d

ri
n
k
 t

h
e
 w

a
te

rs
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

u
re

 t
h
e
ir

 a
ilm

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
8

th
/e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

a
te

r 
fo

r 
th

is
 t

ra
d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
ly

b
e
a
te

 l
iv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 ‘
S

w
is

s
 C

o
tt

a
g
e
’ 
(n

o
w

 d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
),

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 t

h
a
tc

h
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
A

 p
u
m

p
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

p
ri

n
g
. 

 

T
h
e
 d

e
c
lin

e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
ri

n
g
 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
v
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
8
0
s
 a

s
 a

 p
le

a
s
u
re

 g
a
rd

e
n
 b

y
 D

r 
B

a
y
e
s
, 

b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 i
ts

 

n
a
m

e
 w

a
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 S

t 
A

n
n
’s

 W
e
ll 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 o
w

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

, 
n
o
ta

b
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

G
e
o
rg

e
 A

lb
e
rt

 S
m

it
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
9
2
 a

n
d
 1

9
0
4
. 

 S
m

it
h
 w

a
s
 a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 p

io
n
e
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 f

ilm
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

n
d
 b

u
ilt

 h
is

 o
w

n
 f

ilm
 s

tu
d
io

 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 H

o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 1

9
0
7
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
lic

 p
a
rk

 i
n
 1

9
0
8
. 

 T
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 p

ie
rs

 w
e
re

 e
re

c
te

d
 t

o
 

m
a
rk

 t
h
is

 o
c
c
a
s
io

n
 (

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 o

n
e
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 a

t 
H

o
v
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

im
ila

r 
a
t 

H
o
v
e
 P

a
rk

).
  

T
h
e
 p

a
rk

 w
a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
1
3
, 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 

d
o
n
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

n
d
 b

y
 M

rs
 F

lo
ra

 S
a
s
s
o
o
n
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
p
o
rt

s
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e
r 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 e

xp
e
c
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 p

u
b
lic

 p
a
rk

. 
 A

 

s
c
e
n
te

d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

lin
d
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
4
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
c
y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
b
ri

c
k
 d

o
v
e
c
o
te

 w
it
h
 s

to
n
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 s
h
in

g
le

 r
o
o
f.

  

T
h
e
 v

a
ri

e
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 h

is
to

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 l
a
y
o
u
t 

a
n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

ta
n
n
s
w

e
llg

a
rd

e
n
s
.c

o
.u

k
/#

!h
is

to
ry

/c
3
zm

, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/0

7
/s

t-
a
n
n
s
-w

e
ll-

g
a
rd

e
n
s
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5
 (

w
a
lls

, 
g
a
te

 p
ie

rs
 a

n
d
 d

o
v
e
c
o
te

 P
re

-

2
0
1
5
)

121



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
1
8
9

S
o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t 

/ 

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 

C
lo

s
e

1
5
 /

 2
1
a

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

F
a
rm

h
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 F

a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 s
tu

c
c
o
e
d
 t

w
o
-s

to
re

y
 v

ill
a
 w

it
h
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
It

 h
a
s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
 p

ila
s
te

rs
, 

a
n
d
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

le
ft

 h
a
n
d
 s

id
e
. 

 I
t 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

d
e
p
ic

te
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
5
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
; 

th
e
 a

re
a
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 n

o
rt

h
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

o
n
d
 o

n
 

a
n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

ti
th

e
 m

a
p
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 f

a
rm

's
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t.

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
c
o
m

p
le

x 
in

 t
h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
rm

e
d
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 e

s
ta

te
, 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 H

a
ll 

fa
m

ily
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 f

a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
 t

h
e
 o

n
ly

 b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
; 

th
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

h
a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 m

o
d
e
rn

 h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 b

y
 1

8
9
1
 i
t 

w
a
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 ‘
T

h
e
 O

ld
 

S
c
h
o
o
lh

o
u
s
e
’.
  

It
 w

a
s
 l
a
te

r 
o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 a

g
a
in

 b
y
 f

a
rm

e
rs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 

2
0
0
2

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
0

S
o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

A
lm

a
 C

o
tt

a
g
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 l
a
te

 1
8

th
/e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
S

a
id

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

e
te

rs
 f

a
m

ily
, 

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 w
e
ll-

k
n
o
w

n
 i
n
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
in

g
 i
n
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
. 

 T
h
e
 1

8
6
1
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 A

b
ra

h
a
m

 P
e
te

rs
, 

m
a
rk

e
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
e
r,

 a
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 h

is
 f

a
m

ily
 (

c
o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
h
is

 

w
if
e
, 

th
e
ir

 e
ig

h
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 h

is
 b

ro
th

e
r,

 s
is

te
r-

in
-l

a
w

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
ir

 t
w

o
 s

o
n
s
).

  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 s

h
a
llo

w
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f,

 a
n
d
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 

s
id

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
r.

  
D

o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 p

ila
s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 s

im
p
le

 a
rc

h
it
ra

v
e
. 

 W
in

d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

a
is

e
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
. 

 W
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 f

ro
n
t 

d
o
o
r 

n
o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l.
  

W
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

d
o
 n

o
t 

lin
e
 u

p
 w

it
h
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
1

S
o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

T
h
e
 O

ld
 

B
re

w
e
ry

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
re

w
e
ry

, 
n
o
w

 

fa
c
to

ry

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

B
u
ilt

 1
8
8
0
 f

o
r 

b
re

w
e
ry

-o
w

n
e
r 

J
o
h
n
 D

u
d
n
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
 b

re
w

e
ry

 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
, 

b
u
ilt

 c
.1

8
5
0
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

D
ro

v
e
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

S
o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t.

  
It

s
 e

xp
a
n
s
iv

e
 s

iz
e
 w

a
s
 m

a
d
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
e
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 M

a
lt
 T

a
x 

in
 1

8
8
0
. 

 T
h
e
 b

re
w

e
ry

 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

 s
ta

b
le

, 
b
a
rn

 a
n
d
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 w
e
ll 

(o
v
e
r 

a
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
p
ri

n
g
) 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

f 
5
 s

to
re

y
s
, 

y
e
llo

w
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 a

 c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
re

v
iv

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 

A
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 i
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 b

e
s
id

e
 t

h
is

 (
o
n
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t)

, 
w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
s
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 1
8
8
1
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ls
 ‘
D

&
S

’ 
fo

r 
D

u
d
n
e
y
 

a
n
d
 S

o
n
. 

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
th

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 d

a
te

, 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 s

ty
le

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
m

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 

a
 t

a
ll 

g
a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll.

  

T
h
e
 5

th
 s

to
re

y
 i
s
 a

 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
9
2
0
. 

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ro

o
f 

fo
rm

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
8
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
8
_
0
3
2
.h

tm
 

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
2

S
o
u
th

 S
tr

e
e
t

W
h
y
c
h
o
te

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

W
h
y
c
h
o
te

, 
b
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
9
5
 f

o
r 

b
re

w
e
r 

H
e
rb

e
rt

 M
e
w

s
, 

is
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
T

h
e
 G

re
e
n
, 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 t
a
ll 

b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 f

lin
t 

w
a
ll.

  
F

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
ri

c
k
, 

re
n
d
e
r,

 h
u
n
g
 t

ile
 a

n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
, 

it
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 n
u
m

e
ro

u
s
 M

o
c
k
 T

u
d
o
r 

g
a
b
le

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

f 
fl
in

t 
a
n
d
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
rv

e
d
 s

to
n
e
s
. 

 A
n
d
re

w
 M

e
lv

ill
e
, 

th
e
a
tr

ic
a
l 
im

p
re

s
a
ri

o
 a

n
d
 f

o
rm

e
r 

o
w

n
e
r 

o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
’s

 G
ra

n
d
 T

h
e
a
tr

e
, 

b
o
u
g
h
t 

th
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 i
n
 1

9
2
8
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

2
0
1
0
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
3

S
o
u
th

d
o
w

n
 

R
o
a
d

1
-8

 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
ill

a
g
e
 C

A

8
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 l
a
te

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

b
u
ilt

 b
y
 W

a
lt
e
r 

a
n
d
 H

e
rb

e
rt

 M
e
w

s
 t

o
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
ir

 b
re

w
e
ry

 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

v
ill

a
g
e
. 

 A
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 N

o
rt

h
 R

o
a
d
, 

u
s
in

g
 s

im
ila

r 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
, 

b
u
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 a
lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

e
m

i-

d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 p
re

s
ti
g
io

u
s
 t

h
a
n
 t

h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 b

re
w

e
ry

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 B

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 l
in

te
l/
c
ill

 b
a
n
d
s
. 

 G
a
b
le

s
 f

a
c
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 t

ile
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

s
 

to
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 r

e
ta

in
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 p

o
ts

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

ill
a
g
e
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
4

S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
's

 

R
o
a
d

S
to

re
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 6

7
 

a
n
d
 6

7
A

, 

a
n
d
 6

7
A

S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
's

 

R
o
a
d
 P

o
lic

e
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
o
lic

e
 S

ta
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 c

.1
9
0
8
 a

s
 a

 p
o
lic

e
 s

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
 1

9
1
9
 S

u
p
e
ri

n
te

n
d
e
n
t 

W
 S

u
te

r 
a
n
d
 t

h
re

e
 

c
o
n
s
ta

b
le

s
 w

e
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 l
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
re

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

n
d
 9

 b
a
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t,

 w
it
h
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 p

o
rt

io
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r.

  
A

 W
o
rl

d
 

W
a
r 

II
 d

e
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 u

n
it
 a

ls
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r.

  
It

 i
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 a

 s
la

te
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 d
o
m

in
a
n
t 

s
a
n
d
s
to

n
e
 p

o
rt

ic
o
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 E

a
s
t 

S
u
s
s
e
x 

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
re

s
t 

c
a
rv

e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 d

o
u
b
le

 d
o
o
rs

. 
 L

a
rg

e
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 b

ri
c
k
 p

ie
rs

 r
is

e
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
is

. 
 T

o
 

th
e
 l
e
ft

 o
f 

th
e
 p

o
rt

ic
o
 a

re
 5

 w
in

d
o
w

s
; 

o
n
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 p
o
lic

e
 p

h
o
n
e
 b

o
x.

  
T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ti
m

b
e
r 

s
a
s
h
e
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 

tw
o
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
re

e
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

u
P

V
C

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 r

ig
h
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
rt

ic
o
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 a
 

s
e
lf
-c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

u
P

V
C

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
r.

 T
o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 s

it
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 o
n
c
e
 s

ta
b
le

s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 

n
o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 g

a
ra

g
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

re
ta

in
s
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
it
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
; 

th
e
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

o
rt

io
n
 r

e
ta

in
s
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 ‘
fr

o
n
t-

o
f-

h
o
u
s
e
’ 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  

F
ro

m
 h

e
re

, 
a
 c

o
rr

id
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 4

 w
h
it
e
-t

ile
d
 c

e
lls

 w
it
h
 b

a
rr

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
m

e
ta

l 
d
o
o
rs

. 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

o
u
ld

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 u

n
it
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
S

E
 H

is
to

ri
c
 B

u
ild

in
g
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

 H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 (
n
o
t 

lis
te

d
).

  
 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
5

S
t 

C
a
th

e
ri

n
e
's

 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

1
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
F

iv
e
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

p
lu

s
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t,

 d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 b

la
c
k
 b

ri
c
k
 b

a
n
d
in

g
, 

re
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 t

ile
 h

a
n
g
in

g
, 

w
it
h
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 

fr
o
n
ti
n
g
 r

o
a
d
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 r

is
in

g
 f

ro
m

 g
ro

u
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
ir

d
 f

lo
o
rs

. 
 C

a
n
o
p
ie

d
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
o
ri

e
l 
w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  

T
h
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
a
n
e
 o

f 
g
la

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

s
a
s
h
, 

a
n
d
 m

u
lt
i-

p
a
n
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
t 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
h
a
s
 a

 f
a
n
lig

h
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

s
a
s
h
, 

a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll-

p
a
n
e
d
 m

a
rg

in
 g

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
r.

  
D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

 t
o
 g

a
b
le

. 
 

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
6

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
's

 

R
o
a
d

1
1
0

S
t 

A
n
n
e
's

 

C
h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll,

 

n
o
w

 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
p

E
a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
1
9
1
2
 i
n
 F

re
e
 S

ty
le

. 
 B

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 G
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
s
h
a
llo

w
-a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 t

e
xt

 ‘
S

t 
A

n
n
e
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 H

a
ll’

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
in

te
l.
  

D
o
o
r 

is
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o
o
r.

  
S

h
a
llo

w
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
la

q
u
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

e
xt

 ‘
1
9
1
2
 T

h
e
 J

o
h
n
 N

ix
o
n
 M

e
m

o
ri

a
l’.

  
W

h
it
e
 p

a
in

te
d
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 U
n
u
s
u
a
l 
s
k
y
lin

e
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 c

h
e
q
u
e
rb

o
a
rd

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 a

n
d
 b

ro
a
d
 s

h
a
llo

w
-a

rc
h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 H

a
ll 

to
 S

t 
A

n
n
e
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 B

u
rl

in
g
to

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

(d
e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 1

9
8
6
),

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
p
 i
n
 2

0
0
2
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 a
n
d
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
7

S
t 

G
e
o
rg

e
's

 

R
o
a
d

M
e
w

s
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 

re
a
r 

o
f 

G
a
rn

e
t 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

M
e
w

s
E

a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
b
b
le

 m
e
w

s
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

(n
o
w

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
).

  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
n
ti
l 

e
a
v
e
s
 d

e
ta

il.
  

D
o
o
rs

 a
n
d
 g

a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 a
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

T
h
e
 g

a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

la
te

r 
w

it
h
 a

 c
o
n
c
re

te
 l
in

te
l.
  

S
o
m

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
m

a
ll 

fi
xe

d
 

m
u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 f

a
n
lig

h
ts

. 
 S

o
m

e
 l
a
te

r 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 S
o
m

e
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 m

e
w

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

  
M

o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 m

e
w

s
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

y
 G

a
rn

e
t 

H
o
u
s
e
; 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 m

e
w

s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 g

lim
p
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 p

a
s
s
a
g
e
w

a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 

s
im

ila
rl

y
 b

e
 g

lim
p
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 r

o
a
d
s
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
8

S
t 

J
a
m

e
s
's

 

S
tr

e
e
t

8
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

n
o
w

 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t

E
a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
2
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

it
h
 m

a
in

ly
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
T

a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 t

o
 w

e
s
t 

s
id

e
. 

 S
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

to
 S

t 

J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 

w
it
h
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
n
d
 p

a
in

te
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a
l 
ti
le

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 (

fr
o
n
ti
n
g
 W

e
n
tw

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t)

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
2
 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 n

in
e
te

e
n
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 b

y
 a

 t
im

b
e
r 

d
e
a
le

r 
th

e
n
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 j
e
w

e
lle

r,
 b

u
tc

h
e
r,

 h
a
ir

d
re

s
s
e
r,

 

ta
ilo

r,
 b

o
o
k
s
e
lle

r,
 s

ta
ti
o
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 n

e
w

s
a
g
e
n
ts

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e
 1

9
4
0
s
 i
t 

jo
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 8

1
 a

n
d
 8

1
A

, 
to

 f
o
rm

 a
 c

h
e
m

is
t 

a
n
d
 o

p
ti
c
ia

n
. 

 A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 s

ta
te

 

th
a
t 

in
 ‘
S

t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 

w
h
a
t 

in
te

re
s
ts

 a
re

 t
h
e
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
la

p
s
e
s
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 v

e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
…

 e
.g

. 
…

 [
n
u
m

b
e
r 

8
2
],

 v
e
ry

 m
o
d
e
s
t,

 w
it
h
 f

ir
s
t-

fl
o
o
r 

b
o
w

 

a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a
l 
ti
le

s
’.
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

M
ill

e
r 

2
0
1
1

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
1
9
9

S
t 

P
e
te

r'
s
 R

o
a
d

S
t 

P
e
te

r'
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
0
6
 a

s
 S

t 
A

n
d
re

w
’s

 I
n
fa

n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
t 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 S

t 
P

e
te

r’
s
 I

n
fa

n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 1
9
4
7
. 

A
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

u
n
k
n
o
w

n
. 

S
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 i
n
 r

o
u
g
h
c
a
s
t 

re
n
d
e
r 

w
it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 p

lin
th

 a
n
d
 s

te
e
p
 c

la
y
-t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

 w
it
h
 h

u
g
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ro
n
t,

 o
n
e
 w

it
h
 h

a
lf
 t

im
b
e
ri

n
g
, 

ro
o
ft

o
p
 c

u
p
o
la

 a
n
d
 t

a
ll 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 

s
ta

c
k
s
. 

T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 s

h
o
w

s
 c

le
a
r 

s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
A

rt
s
 a

n
d
 C

ra
ft

s
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
. 

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 f
ro

n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 i
n
ta

c
t 

1
9
3
9
 a

ir
 r

a
id

 s
h
e
lt
e
rs

 b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 c

a
n
te

e
n
. 

M
o
d
e
rn

 r
e
a
r 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
f 

in
te

re
s
t.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
0

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 

M
e
th

o
d
is

t 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

1
8
9
7
-8

 i
n
 E

a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 S

ty
le

 b
y
 E

.J
. 

H
a
m

ilt
o
n
. 

 B
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 c

h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.

  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

d
o
w

n
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 

th
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 f

a
c
e
s
 t

h
e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 I
t 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
o
in

te
d
 a

rc
h
 d

o
o
r,

 f
la

n
k
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

la
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 b

e
lo

w
 a

 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 w
it
h
in

 a
 p

o
in

te
d
 a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
. 

 T
a
ll 

la
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 S
m

a
ll 

la
n
te

rn
 s

p
ir

e
 t

o
 r

id
g
e
lin

e
. 

S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 m

a
tu

re
 t

re
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 l
o
w

 w
a
ll 

w
it
h
 r

a
ili

n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.s

u
s
s
e
xp

a
ri

s
h
c
h
u
rc

h
e
s
.o

rg
/s

p
c
_
V

3
1
/a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

-a
n
d
-a

rt
is

ts
/3

2
9
-a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

-a
n
d
-a

rt
is

ts
-h

 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

122



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
1

S
ta

n
le

y
 A

v
e
n
u
e

C
h
u
rc

h
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
o
o
d
 

S
h
e
p
h
e
rd

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

A
n
g
lic

a
n

N
o
 C

A
A

 T
in

 T
a
b
e
rn

a
c
le

 m
is

s
io

n
 c

h
u
rc

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 t
o
 s

e
rv

e
 t

h
e
 r

a
p
id

ly
 g

ro
w

in
g
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
M

ile
 O

a
k
 i
n
 1

9
3
6
, 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

e
v
d
 E

rn
e
s
t 

H
o
lm

e
s
, 

V
ic

a
r 

o
f 

S
t 

N
ic

o
la

s
 C

h
u
rc

h
, 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
. 

 T
h
is

 w
a
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 n
e
w

 c
h
u
rc

h
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
; 

th
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

to
n
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 o
n
 7

th
 

J
u
n
e
 1

9
6
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 d

e
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 S

a
tu

rd
a
y
 2

8
th
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

1
9
6
7
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 b
y
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 b

u
ild

e
rs

 G
e
o
rg

e
 C

o
m

b
e
r 

C
o
m

p
a
n
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
M

.G
. 

A
lf
o
ld

 o
f 

C
la

y
to

n
, 

B
la

c
k
 &

 D
a
v
ie

l.
  

It
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
is

tr
ic

t 
C

h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 1

9
6
9
, 

a
n
d
 a

 P
a
ri

s
h
 C

h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 1

9
9
4
. 

 T
h
e
 P

a
ri

s
h
 

u
n
it
e
d
 w

it
h
 S

t 
N

ic
o
la

s
 &

 S
t 

A
n
d
re

w
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
. 

 B
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 m

o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 b

a
n
d
 o

f 
ta

p
e
ri

n
g
 c

le
re

s
to

re
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 

E
xp

o
s
e
d
 b

e
ll 

lo
c
a
te

d
 a

b
o
v
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
-c

o
fe

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/p

/c
h
u
rc

h
-o

f-
g
o
o
d
-s

h
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
2

S
ta

ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d

2
T

h
e
 

W
h
is

tl
e
s
to

p
 

In
n

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
re

e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 f

ro
n
ti
n
g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fr
o
n
ta

g
e
, 

w
it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 

ti
le

d
 r

o
o
f 

b
e
h
in

d
. 

 M
id

 t
o
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
; 

e
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 a

g
a
in

 i
n
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
3

S
to

n
e
h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

8
0

U
n
it
s
 1

-7
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
a
c
to

ry
, 

n
o
w

 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d

N
o
 C

A
D

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

S
a
m

u
e
l 
D

e
n
m

a
n
. 

 T
h
e
 A

b
b
o
tt

 b
ro

th
e
rs

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

s
 a

 m
in

e
ra

l 
w

a
te

r 
fa

c
to

ry
 f

ro
m

 1
9
0
4
-1

9
1
2
. 

 A
ft

e
r 

a
 p

e
ri

o
d
 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
c
y
, 

M
a
y
n
a
rd

’s
 w

h
o
le

s
a
lin

g
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n
g
 c

o
n
fe

c
ti
o
n
e
rs

 o
p
e
ra

te
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
7
 a

n
d
 1

9
6
2
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 b

y
 D

o
m

in
ic

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s
 i
n
 2

0
0
2
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 l
iv

e
/w

o
rk

 u
n
it
s
. 

 T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
, 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 l
in

te
ls

. 
 7

 b
a
y
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
; 

e
a
c
h
 b

a
y
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
d
 b

y
 a

 p
ila

s
te

r 
a
n
d
 n

o
w

 f
o
rm

in
g
 o

n
e
 u

n
it
. 

 A
 d

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

e
a
c
h
 b

a
y
, 

w
it
h
 t

w
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 

fo
u
r 

s
m

a
lle

r 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

o
 a

 m
a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 G
la

ze
d
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  

P
e
d
im

e
n
ts

 t
o
 o

u
te

r 
a
n
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
4

S
u
d
e
le

y
 P

la
c
e
 

a
n
d
 S

u
d
e
le

y
 

S
tr

e
e
t

4
b
 a

n
d
 1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
h
a
p
e
l 
a
n
d
 

c
in

e
m

a
, 

n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
F

o
rm

e
r 

c
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
p
e
l,
 b

u
ilt

 1
8
9
1
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

in
e
m

a
 u

s
e
 i
n
 1

9
2
0
. 

 A
t 

th
a
t 

p
o
in

t 
it
 w

a
s
 c

a
lle

d
 t

h
e
 K

in
g
’s

 C
lif

f 
C

in
e
m

a
 a

n
d
 

c
o
u
ld

 s
e
a
t 

3
7
0
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 S

o
u
n
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
0
. 

 I
n
 1

9
5
1
 i
t 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
ti
n
e
n
ta

le
 C

in
e
m

a
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 i
n
 f

o
re

ig
n
 f

ilm
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 

th
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
6
0
s
 u

n
ti
l 
it
s
 c

lo
s
u
re

 i
n
 1

9
8
6
 i
t 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
e
d
 i
n
 p

o
rn

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

 f
ilm

s
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 1

9
9
0
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f

o
rm

in
g
 m

a
in

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 i
n
 a

 s
tr

ip
p
e
d
-d

o
w

n
 R

o
m

a
n
e
s
q
u
e
 s

ty
le

. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rw

a
y
 w

it
h
in

 h
e
a
v
y
 a

rc
h
e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
. 

 

R
o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
o
r,

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 P
ila

s
te

rs
 d

iv
id

e
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

P
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
 r

o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 t

o
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
. 

 T
w

o
-s

to
re

y
 r

o
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 (

o
n
 S

u
d
e
le

y
 S

tr
e
e
t)

, 

s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 C
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
6

S
u
rr

e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
9
-3

0
G

ra
n
d
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
te

l 
/ 

P
u
b
lic

 

H
o
u
s
e

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 C
A

F
o
rm

e
r 

ra
ilw

a
y
 h

o
te

l,
 n

o
w

 p
u
b
. 

 1
9
2
5
 f

o
r 

T
a
m

p
lin

s
 B

re
w

e
ry

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 b
y
 t

h
e
ir

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

A
rt

h
u
r 

P
a
c
k
h
a
m

. 
 A

s
h
la

r-
fa

c
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
a
 

B
a
ro

q
u
e
 s

ty
le

. 
 C

o
rn

e
r 

to
w

e
r 

w
it
h
 c

o
p
p
e
r 

d
o
m

e
. 

 T
w

o
 s

im
ila

r 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 S

u
rr

e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 G

u
ild

fo
rd

 R
o
a
d
, 

e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 t

ra
n
s
o
m

e
d
 a

n
d
 

m
u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 s
h
a
llo

w
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 S

u
rr

e
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

a
re

 b
o
w

e
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
7

T
h
e
 C

lif
f,

 

R
o
e
d
e
a
n

4
0
 &

 4
0
A

W
h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e
 

w
it
h
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 

g
a
rd

e
n

R
o
e
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 

G
a
rd

e
n

H
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

G
a
rd

e
n
, 

n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 v

ill
a
 w

it
h
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

in
g
s
 t

o
 e

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 w

e
s
t.

  
M

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 f

a
c
e
s
 s

o
u
th

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
, 

fr
o
m

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 a
p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

ly
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l.
  

R
o
u
g
h
c
a
s
t 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

s
te

e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

 T
w

o
 g

a
b
le

s
 

to
 s

o
u
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
a
c
h
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 a
n
d
 s

in
g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 a

tt
ic

. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
c
lo

s
e
d
 

v
e
ra

n
d
a
h
/s

u
n
 l
o
u
n
g
e
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
O

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 w
in

g
s
; 

th
a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 

 S
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
w

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 

O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 b
u
ilt

 1
9
0
4
 f

o
r 

M
rs

 F
a
n
n
y
 M

a
rt

in
e
a
u
, 

d
a
u
g
h
te

r 
to

 J
a
m

e
s
 M

a
rt

in
e
a
u
 (

p
h
ilo

s
o
p
h
e
r)

 a
n
d
 s

is
te

r 
to

 H
a
rr

ie
t 

M
a
rt

in
e
a
u
 (

n
o
v
e
lis

t)
. 

 M
rs

 

M
a
rt

in
e
a
u
 c

h
o
s
e
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

W
h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
ts

 p
ro

xi
m

it
y
 t

o
 R

o
e
d
e
a
n
 S

c
h
o
o
l.
  

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 h

e
r 

n
ie

c
e
s
 P

e
n
e
lo

p
e
, 

D
o
ro

th
y
 a

n
d
 M

ill
ic

e
n
t 

L
a
w

re
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
m

e
 R

o
e
d
e
a
n
 g

ir
ls

 b
o
a
rd

e
d
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
 L

o
d
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 l
in

k
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 M

a
rt

in
e
a
u
’s

 c
h
o
ic

e
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t,

 J
.W

. 
S

im
p
s
o
n
. 

 S
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l-

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
, 

J
.W

. 
S

im
p
s
o
n
 h

a
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 R

o
e
d
e
a
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 1
8
9
7
 a

n
d
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 W

a
r 

M
e
m

o
ri

a
l 
(b

o
th

 g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
) 

a
n
d
 w

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 a

s
 p

re
s
id

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
B

ri
ti
s
h
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

 

fr
o
m

 1
9
1
9
 t

o
 1

9
2
1
. 

 T
h
o
s
e
 p

a
rt

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 1

9
0
4
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

b
a
y
s
, 

v
e
ra

n
d
a
h
 a

n
d
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 s

o
ld

 t
o
 L

a
d
y
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 S

a
c
k
v
ill

e
-W

e
s
t 

in
 1

9
2
4
, 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 E

d
w

in
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
. 

 L
u
ty

e
n
s
 w

a
s
 a

 c
lo

s
e
 

fr
ie

n
d
 (

a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
o
v
e
r)

 o
f 

L
a
d
y
 S

a
c
k
v
ill

e
-W

e
s
t.

  
T

h
e
 L

u
ty

e
n
s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

in
g
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 h

a
ll 

a
n
d
 

g
a
ra

g
e
 b

lo
c
k
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
, 

a
 p

la
in

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 

 H
e
 a

ls
o
 e

n
la

rg
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

d
d
e
d
 a

 c
h
a
u
ff

e
u
r’
s
 

b
u
n
g
a
lo

w
, 

w
h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 f
o
rm

s
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

4
2
 T

h
e
 C

lif
f 

(n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t)

. 
 T

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

w
in

g
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 b
o
o
k
 r

o
o
m

, 
w

h
ils

t 
th

a
t 

to
 

th
e
 e

a
s
t 

w
a
s
 a

 l
o
g
g
ia

. 
 O

p
e
n
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
w

it
h
 s

la
te

 c
o
lu

m
n
s
, 

th
e
 l
o
g
g
ia

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-t

ile
d
, 

e
n
c
lo

s
e
d
, 

a
n
d
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 

s
o
u
th

. 
 T

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 s

o
u
th

 e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 o

f 
n
o
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
in

te
re

s
t.

  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 c

re
a
te

 a
 ‘
h
id

d
e
n
’ 
g
a
rd

e
n
, 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 p
re

v
a
ili

n
g
 w

in
d
s
. 

 I
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 s

to
n
e
 s

te
p
s
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

-o
n
-e

d
g
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
 o

f 
L
u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 (
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 S

t 
J
u
d
e
’s

 C
h
u
rc

h
, 

H
a
m

p
s
te

a
d
 G

re
e
n
 a

n
d
 f

o
rm

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
p
ir

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

a
t 

S
is

s
in

g
h
u
rs

t)
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 c

.1
9
4
7
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 

v
a
ri

o
u
s
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 s

in
c
e
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t 

(n
o
rt

h
),

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
p
la

n
 f

o
rm

 a
n
d
 r

o
o
fs

c
a
p
e
. 

 I
t 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 d
a
te

 s
to

n
e
 t

o
 

L
u
ty

e
n
s
’ 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 h

a
ll 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
, 

d
a
te

d
 1

9
0
4
 a

n
d
 1

9
2
4
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
.o

rg
/w

h
it
e
-l

o
d
g
e
.h

tm
l,
  

E
n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 (
n
o
t 

lis
te

d
),

 c
o
p
ie

s
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 T

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 R

IB
A

.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
8

T
h
e
 D

ri
v
e
 &

 

E
a
to

n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

E
a
to

n
 M

a
n
o
r

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
W

ill
e
tt

 E
s
ta

te
 

C
A

B
u
ilt

 1
9
6
3
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

iv
e
rp

o
o
l 
V

ic
to

ri
a
 F

ri
e
n
d
ly

 S
o
c
ie

ty
, 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 H

u
b
b
a
rd

 F
o
rd

 &
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 6

-8
 s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
 

in
n
e
r 

c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

. 
 S

o
ft

e
n
e
d
 B

ru
ta

lis
t 

s
ty

le
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 p

u
rp

le
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 e

xp
o
s
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 f

ra
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
n
e
ls

 o
f 

ri
b
b
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 

b
e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 m

a
k
e
s
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

a
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
0
9

T
h
e
 D

ri
v
e

2
2

A
ru

n
d
e
l 

H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
W

ill
e
tt

 E
s
ta

te
 

C
A

4
 s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 f
la

ts
, 

b
u
ilt

 1
8
9
8
 i
n
 a

 F
re

e
 J

a
c
o
b
e
a
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 B

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
o
tt

a
 w

it
h
 a

 p
in

n
a
c
le

d
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
te

lla
te

d
 t

o
w

e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 

s
o
u
th

e
a
s
t 

c
o
rn

e
r,

 a
n
d
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

 o
n
 t

h
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
. 

 T
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 h

e
a
v
y
 t

ra
n
s
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 m

u
lli

o
n
s
, 

w
it
h
 

o
ri

e
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

e
r.

  
T

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

, 
w

it
h
 c

a
s
te

lla
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f

ri
e
ze

 a
n
d
 j
o
g
g
le

-j
o
in

te
d
 l
in

te
l.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

M
o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
0

T
h
e
 D

ro
v
e
w

a
y

6
5

C
a
s
a
 B

la
n
c
a

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
n
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

e
 s

ty
le

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 f

la
t 

ro
o
f 

(r
o
o
f 

te
rr

a
c
e
).

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 a
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 ‘
to

w
e
r-

lik
e
’ 
b
a
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 

w
in

d
o
w

. 
 G

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

s
e
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
. 

 T
h
re

e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

a
n
d
s
 t

o
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
 a

n
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 a
t 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

C
o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 r
o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 p

ie
rs

. 
 M

id
d
le

to
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

p
a
in

te
r 

P
ie

t 
M

o
n
d
ri

a
n
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 l
iv

e
d
 o

r 

m
o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 v
is

it
e
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
, 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
th

ro
o
m

, 
b
u
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
te

 t
h
is

. 
 M

id
d
le

to
n
 

2
0
0
2
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
1

T
h
e
 D

ro
v
e
w

a
y

3
5
-3

9
U

n
ig

a
te

 D
a
ir

y
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
N

o
 C

A
S

in
g
le

 s
to

re
y
, 

e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th

 C
e
n
tu

ry
 f

a
rm

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

n
o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
d
a
ir

y
 d

e
p
o
t.

  
T

h
e
 c

.1
8
4
0
 P

re
s
to

n
 t

it
h
e
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 u

n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 l
a
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

ro
v
e
w

a
y
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 P

re
s
to

n
 a

n
d
 B

la
tc

h
in

g
to

n
. 

 I
n
d
e
e
d
 a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

7
9
5
-

1
8
0
5
 d

ra
ft

 O
S

 m
a
p
 i
n
 t

h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
t 

a
s
 t

h
is

 f
a
rm

. 
 I

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
 i
t 

is
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 a

s
 

H
ill

s
 B

a
rn

, 
a
n
d
 b

y
 1

9
1
1
 i
t 

w
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

P
re

s
to

n
 F

a
rm

. 
 I

t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

d
a
ir

y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

it
s
 h

is
to

ry
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
a
p
p
in

g
 s

h
o
w

s
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
s
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 

 T
h
e
 s

it
e
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
lo

n
g
, 

lo
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 h

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 o

r 
g
a
b
le

d
 

ti
le

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 F

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 t
a
ll 

fl
in

t 
w

a
ll 

to
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

y
a
rd

.

X
X

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
2

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

C
o
u
rt

 B
a
rn

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 

(n
o
w

 h
o
u
s
e
)

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

F
o
rm

e
r 

b
a
rn

, 
n
o
w

 h
o
u
s
e
. 

 L
o
n
g
, 

lo
w

 f
o
rm

 w
it
h
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 a
n
d
 a

 d
o
m

in
a
n
t 

ti
le

d
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 C

o
u
rt

 F
a
rm

; 
o
n
e
 o

f 
4
 

fa
rm

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 f

ro
m

 a
ro

u
n
d
 T

h
e
 G

re
e
n
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 

m
o
s
t 

lik
e
ly

 d
u
ri

n
g
 

th
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
2
0
s
 w

h
e
n
 T

u
d
o
r 

C
lo

s
e
 (

a
ls

o
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
a
rm

 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 C

o
u
rt

 F
a
rm

) 
w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
/d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 s

y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
lly

, 
w

it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 w

a
ll,

 b
u
t 

th
e
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

ro
o
f 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 u

n
a
lt
e
re

d
. 

 R
e
g
re

tt
a
b
ly

, 
a
 f

lu
e
 

h
a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

o
o
f.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

123



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
3

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

K
ip

lin
g
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n
s

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
o
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 g

re
e
n
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
n
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 t

o
 T

h
e
 E

lm
s
. 

 T
h
e
y
 f

o
rm

 a
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 

d
is

c
re

te
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 

b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

a
ll 

fl
in

t 
w

a
lls

 w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
e
n
c
lo

s
u
re

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
lin

t-
fa

c
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

p
e
rg

o
la

 t
h
a
t 

e
xt

e
n
d
s
 

w
it
h
in

 K
ip

lin
g
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

f 
T

h
e
 E

lm
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 c
ro

q
u
e
t 

la
w

n
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll 

g
a
rd

e
n
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
. 

 T
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 a
re

a
 w

a
s
 

a
lw

a
y
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 w
o
o
d
e
d
; 

th
e
 1

8
3
8
 T

it
h
e
 M

a
p
 A

p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 a

t 
th

is
 t

im
e
 a

 p
la

n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 E

liz
a
b
e
th

 D
e
a
lt
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 T

h
e
 E

lm
s
) 

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
H

o
u
s
e
, 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 Y

a
rd

’ 
o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 J

a
m

e
s
 I

n
g
ra

m
. 

T
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
lls

 s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 m
a
tc

h
e
s
 t

h
e
 e

xi
s
ti
n
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
w

e
s
t 

o
f 

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 w

e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
m

 s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

a
lls

. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 T

h
e
 E

lm
s
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 

c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
re

s
s
u
re

, 
it
 w

a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 R

o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 P

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 S

o
c
ie

ty
 i
n
 1

9
8
1
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 

a
 b

e
q
u
e
s
t 

fr
o
m

 M
r 

C
a
to

n
. 

T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
to

re
d
 a

s
 a

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
-s

ty
le

d
 w

a
lle

d
 g

a
rd

e
n
, 

p
a
th

s
 c

re
a
te

d
 u

s
in

g
 b

ri
c
k
s
 f

ro
m

 D
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 a

 c
ro

q
u
e
t 

la
w

n
 

la
id

 o
u
t.

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 i
n
 t

ru
s
t 

to
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

9
8
5
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
4

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

Q
u
a
k
e
r'
s
 

B
u
ri

a
l 

G
ro

u
n
d

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

R
e
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

S
m

a
ll 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

. 
 N

o
w

 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t

o
 C

o
p
p
e
rs

, 
th

e
 a

re
a
 f

o
rm

e
rl

y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 Q

u
a
k
e
r 

B
u
ri

a
l 

G
ro

u
n
d
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 b

o
u
g
h
t 

b
y
 N

ic
h
o
la

s
 B

e
a
rd

 i
n
 1

6
6
1
. 

 T
h
e
 B

e
a
rd

 f
a
m

ily
 w

e
re

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
la

n
d
o
w

n
in

g
 f

a
m

ily
 w

h
o
 w

e
re

 i
n
fl
u
e
n
ti
a
l 
in

 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
Q

u
a
k
e
r 

m
o
v
e
m

e
n
t.

  
1
0
2
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ri

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

it
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

6
7
5
 a

n
d
 1

8
8
9
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ra
v
e
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 u

n
m

a
rk

e
d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 Q

u
a
k
e
r 

tr
a
d
it
io

n
. 

 T
h
e
 B

e
a
rd

s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 e
re

c
te

d
 a

 f
a
m

ily
 t

o
m

b
. 

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
rt

ly
 d

is
m

a
n
tl
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

la
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 t

o
m

b
s
to

n
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 l
in

e
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 n

o
rt

h
w

e
s
t 

w
a
lls

 o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 

 T
h
e
 s

to
n
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
is

 s
ti
ll 

in
 s

it
u
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
S

E
 A

n
 a

rc
h
a
e
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
d
e
s
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

la
n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

Q
u
a
k
e
r 

b
u
ri

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
, 

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

(2
6
1
3
),

 2
0
0
6

X
X

X
2
0
1
5
 (

B
e
a
rd

 f
a
m

ily
 t

o
m

b
 p

re
-2

0
1
5
)

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
5

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

C
o
u
rt

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 

B
u
ild

in
g
, 

C
it
y
 

C
o
lle

g
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

C
A

T
h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 

u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
is

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
is

to
ri

c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

xt
 t

h
a
t 

“c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

to
 o

n
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 b
u
ild

in
g
 e

v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

A
p
ri

l 
2
0
1
1
).

 

T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft

e
r 

th
a
t 

A
c
t.

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 

a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 G

ilb
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f

ro
m

 1
8
9
0
. 

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft

e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 

T
h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 1

8
7
0
-

1
9
0
3
. 

T
h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
f 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt

a
, 

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t

u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 F

re
e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 

B
o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 

R
o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
. 

In
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 g

ra
d
e
 

II
 l
is

te
d
: 

F
in

s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

);
 D

o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 R

u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 

o
f 

1
8
9
3
; 

a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 

A
ll 

a
re

 b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll 

b
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 

1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 

Q
u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(F
re

s
h
fi
e
ld

 P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 

a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 

(n
o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
it
y
 

C
o
lle

g
e
) 

o
f 

s
o
m

e
 t

im
e
 b

e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 

 T
h
e
 G

lo
u
c
e
s
te

r 
B

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
0
8
 i
n
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

C
o
u
rt

, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

e
lh

a
m

 

S
tr

e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
a
p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

w
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
la

s
s
ro

o
m

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
n
fa

n
ts

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

k
n
o
w

n
 b

u
t 

it
 

s
h
a
re

s
 a

 s
im

ila
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
la

n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

. 
It

 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

C
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
. 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
6

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

R
o
a
d

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

C
h
a
p
e
ls

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re

N
o
 C

A
P

a
ir

 o
f 

s
m

a
ll 

fl
in

t 
c
e
m

e
te

ry
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

, 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
la

te
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

8
7
2
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 n

e
w

 P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
, 

th
e
 

c
h
a
p
e
ls

 w
e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 E

.E
.S

c
o
tt

. 
 S

c
o
tt

 i
s
 n

o
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

h
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
S

t 
B

a
rt

h
o
lo

m
e
w

’s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 (

1
8
7
4
),

 a
n
d
 h

e
 a

ls
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 S

t 
A

n
d
re

w
’s

 

C
h
u
rc

h
, 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 (

1
8
6
4
) 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 B

ra
c
k
e
n
b
u
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 L

o
c
k
s
 H

ill
 (

1
8
7
2
).

  
T

h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 w

a
s
 e

n
la

rg
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 (

c
.1

9
0
4
),

 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 n

o
 n

e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

. 
 T

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

c
h
a
p
e
l 
is

 s
ti
ll 

u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

w
h
ils

t 
th

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

is
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
to

re
. 

 I
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 

g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t 

c
h
a
p
e
l 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
b
u
ilt

 i
n
 b

ri
c
k
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
7

U
n
io

n
 R

o
a
d

P
a
rk

 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

Ir
e
la

n
d
’s

 R
o
y
a
l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
2
0
s
. 

 C
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 1

0
 a

c
re

s
, 

it
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 c
ri

c
k
e
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
, 

a
 f

iv
e
s
 c

o
u
rt

, 
c
a
n
a
l,
 g

o
th

ic
 

to
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

v
ia

ry
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
te

 p
ie

rs
 t

o
 U

n
io

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

lis
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I

I)
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 

 I
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
3
0
s
, 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

n
e
w

 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
it
 w

a
s
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 a

 z
o
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
 w

it
h
 e

xo
ti
c
 a

n
im

a
ls

, 
a
n
 a

v
ia

ry
 a

n
d
 o

ri
e
n
ta

l 
th

e
m

e
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 b

a
n
k
ru

p
tc

y
 o

f 
th

e
 o

w
n
e
r,

 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
3
3
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 a

s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rg

ro
w

n
 i
n
 1

8
3
8
. 

 P
a
rk

 C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
4
9
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
ri

c
k
e
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 -

 b
y
 A

.H
.W

ild
s
 i
n
 a

n
 I

ta
lia

n
a
te

 s
ty

le
 -

 f
o
rm

 a
n
 a

p
p
ro

xi
m

a
te

 h
o
rs

e
s
h
o
e
 s

h
a
p
e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

in
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
s
ty

le
, 

w
it
h
 w

in
d
in

g
 p

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
a
th

 f
o
llo

w
s
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r.
  

T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 b
y
 a

 f
lin

t 
c
o
b
b
le

 w
a
ll 

w
it
h
 y

e
llo

w
-b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
; 

e
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 m
a
tc

h
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

B
e
rr

y
 2

0
0
0
 h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
8
4
2
1
.a

s
p
x 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
8

U
p
p
e
r 

D
ri

v
e

C
a
rd

in
a
l 

N
e
w

m
a
n
 

S
c
h
o
o
l

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
C

a
th

o
lic

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l.
 O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
7
7
/7

8
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
F

re
d
e
ri

c
k
 H

 P
o
w

n
a
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e
 S

a
c
re

d
 H

e
a
rt

 C
o
n
v
e
n
t 

g
ir

ls
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
 T

h
e
 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
7
9
 a

n
d
 a

n
 e

a
s
t 

w
in

g
 a

d
d
e
d
 1

9
0
1
. 

It
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 C

a
rd

in
a
l 
N

e
w

m
a
n
 S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 1
9
7
2
, 

w
h
e
n
 a

ll 
C

a
th

o
lic

 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

e
re

 a
m

a
lg

a
m

a
te

d
. 

A
 d

ig
n
if
ie

d
 c

o
lle

g
ia

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

f 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
p
la

c
e
. 

 

N
e
o
 J

a
c
o
b
e
a
n
 i
n
 s

ty
le

 w
it
h
 a

 H
ig

h
 G

o
th

ic
 s

ty
le

 C
h
a
p
e
l.
 A

ls
o
 o

f 
in

te
re

s
t 

is
 t

h
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 B

is
h
o
p
s
 H

o
u
s
e
, 

d
a
ti
n
g
 f

ro
m

 c
1
9
0
0
-1

9
1
0
 a

n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 a

 s
m

a
lle

r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
fo

r 
p
o
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
it
s
 w

it
h
in

 a
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
o
p
e
n
 s

e
tt

in
g
 o

f 

p
la

y
in

g
 f

ie
ld

s
 a

n
d
 t

re
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
ia

l 
n
o
te

 a
re

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
 f

lin
t 

w
a
lls

 t
h
a
t 

e
n
c
lo

s
e
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 U

p
p
e
r 

D
ri

v
e
 a

n
d
 O

ld
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
y
 p

re
-d

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l,
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

in
 p

a
rt

.

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
1
9

U
p
p
e
r 

D
ri

v
e

C
o
tt

e
s
m

o
re

 

S
t 

M
a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
 p

ri
v
a
te

 b
o
y
s
 p

re
p
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
t 

n
o
w

 a
 C

a
th

o
lic

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
s
in

c
e
 1

9
5
0
. 

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
s
. 

B
u
ilt

 c
1
8
9
6
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
A

 B
u
rn

e
t-

B
ra

n
n
 a

n
d
 E

rn
e
s
t 

R
 B

a
rr

o
n
 o

f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

A
 h

a
n
d
s
o
m

e
, 

h
e
a
v
ily

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 F

re
e
 J

a
c
o
b
e
a
n
 s

ty
le

. 
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

m
u
lli

o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

te
e
p
 c

la
y
-t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

 s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 c

u
p
o
la

s
. 

E
xt

e
n
d
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
 i
n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 m

a
n
n
e
r.

 

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
0

U
p
p
e
r 

H
a
m

ilt
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

2
8

T
h
e
 C

h
im

n
e
y
 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
v
ill

e
 a

re
a
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 s

o
u
th

e
a
s
t 

w
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 D

a
n
ie

l 
F

ri
e
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

id
 1

8
6
0
s
 a

s
 m

id
d
le

-c
la

s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
8
0
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

 H
a
ll 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 T

h
e
 C

h
im

n
e
y
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

 S
tr

e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 f

ro
m

 1
8
8
3
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 

h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
a
m

ilt
o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
 t

o
 1

8
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 1

8
8
7
. 

O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t

h
e
 M

a
rq

u
e
s
s
 o

f 
E

xe
te

r,
 i
t 

is
 f

ir
s
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 o

f 
1
8
9
6
, 

w
h
e
n
 J

. 
W

. 
W

o
o
d
h
a
m

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 a

s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

ro
a
d
s
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 

 T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 L

o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
 

c
o
rn

e
r 

w
it
h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
a
m

ilt
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 E

xe
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t.

  
O

n
 b

o
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
 s

in
g
le

 b
a
y
 i
s
 s

e
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 g
a
b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 h

ig
h
ly

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

la
s
te

rw
o
rk

 d
e
p
ic

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 C

o
a
t 

o
f 

A
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
rq

u
e
s
s
 o

f 
E

xe
te

r.
  

P
u
b
 f

a
s
c
ia

 

s
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

a
y
s
. 

 H
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 s

q
u
a
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
g
la

zi
n
g
 b

a
rs

. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 t

ile
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
p
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

 t
o
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 

 C
a
rt

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 E

xe
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.m

y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
6
4
7
8
.a

s
p
x 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
1

U
p
p
e
r 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 

R
o
a
d

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 

D
e
p
o
t 

C
a
n
te

e
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

D
u
s
t 

D
e
s
tr

u
c
to

r,
 

n
o
w

 c
a
n
te

e
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 1

8
1
0
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 T

o
w

n
 A

c
t 

a
llo

w
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

‘s
c
a
v
e
n
g
e
rs

’ 
to

 c
o
lle

c
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
’s

 r
u
b
b
is

h
. 

 T
h
e
 r

u
b
b
is

h
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
n
 s

to
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 P

a
ri

s
h
 D

u
s
t 

Y
a
rd

, 
a
t 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
. 

 I
n
 1

8
8
6
 a

 ‘
D

u
s
t 

D
e
s
tr

u
c
to

r’
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
u
s
t 

y
a
rd

, 
w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 2

2
0
ft

 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 d

a
te

d
 1

8
9
5
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
in

e
ra

te
d
 t

h
e
 t

o
w

n
’s

 w
a
s
te

, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

y
p
ro

d
u
c
t 

‘c
lin

k
e
r’
 (

th
o
s
e
 p

a
rt

s
 t

h
a
t 

d
id

n
’t
 b

u
rn

) 
u
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

a
rd

 c
o
re

 f
o
r 

ro
a
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

r 
to

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
a
l 
w

a
ll 

(s
e
e
 w

a
ll 

o
n
 U

p
p
e
r 

H
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d
).

  
T

h
e
 D

u
s
t 

D
e
s
tr

u
c
to

r 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
5
2
, 

w
h
e
n
 

w
a
s
te

 b
e
g
a
n
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 S

h
e
e
p
c
o
te

 V
a
lle

y
 i
n
s
te

a
d
. 

 A
 n

e
w

 w
a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 a
t 

th
e
 H

o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
 s

it
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 D

u
s
t 

D
e
s
tr

u
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
’s

 c
a
n
te

e
n
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
lli

s
 2

0
1
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
0
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
0
_
1
0
3
.h

tm
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/h
o
lli

n
g
d
e
a
n
.y

o
la

s
it
e
.c

o
m

/t
h
e
-o

ld
-w

a
s
te

-d
e
s
tr

u
c
to

r.
p
h
p
 

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

124



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
2

V
a
le

 A
v
e
n
u
e

1
2
0
-1

2
4
 

e
v
e
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

, 
c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 a

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
th

re
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
, 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 t

w
o
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 

s
ta

c
k
s
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
; 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
 g

a
b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
rw

a
y
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

tw
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

a
b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
o
g
ra

m
 ‘
A

’ 
fo

r 
‘A

b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
’ 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 1
9
0
9
. 

 B
o
th

 e
n
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
in

g
le

 c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir

 f
ro

n
t 

d
o
o
rs

 s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 b

a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
, 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 g
ra

s
s
e
d
 b

a
n
k
. 

 E
a
c
h
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 h

a
s
 a

 m
a
tc

h
in

g
 o

p
e
n
-s

id
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 a
s
 f

a
rm

w
o
rk

e
r’
s
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

A
b
e
rg

a
v
e
n
n
y
 e

s
ta

te
.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
3

V
e
n
tn

o
r 

V
ill

a
s

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

U
n
it
e
d
 

R
e
fo

rm
 

C
h
u
rc

h

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
S

to
n
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 i
n
 E

a
rl

y
 E

n
g
lis

h
 G

o
th

ic
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 B
u
ilt

 a
s
 a

 C
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
u
rc

h
 i
n
 1

8
6
7
 b

y
 H

o
ra

ti
o
 N

e
ls

o
n
 G

o
u
lt
y
. 

 

F
ro

n
ts

 o
n
 t

o
 V

e
n
tn

o
r 

V
ill

a
s
 a

n
d
 B

la
tc

h
in

g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 M
a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 o

n
 V

e
n
tn

o
r 

V
ill

a
s
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 

in
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 l
o
w

 p
o
rc

h
 w

it
h
 m

o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 

a
n
d
 t

re
fo

il 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 s

id
e
s
. 

 F
la

n
k
e
d
 b

y
 s

te
e
p
ly

-p
it
c
h
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 p

o
in

te
d
 a

rc
h
e
d
 b

lin
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 (

lik
e
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 d
o
o
rs

).
  

A
b
o
v
e
, 

a
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
tr

ip
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 f

o
u
r 

lig
h
ts

. 
 

T
h
re

e
 s

id
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
re

e
 r

o
u
n
d
 l
ig

h
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
4

V
ia

d
u
c
t 

R
o
a
d

1
0
-3

2
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

1
8
5
0
s
, 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.

  
S

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 r
o
a
d
, 

w
it
h
 l
ig

h
tw

e
ll 

s
e
t 

b
e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
. 

 R
u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 i
o
n
ic

 p
ila

s
te

rs
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
P

a
ir

e
d
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
s
. 

 O
n
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 b

lin
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
 d

o
o
rs

. 
 M

o
u
ld

e
d
 d

e
ta

il 
to

 p
a
ra

p
e
t.

  
T

h
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
0
 u

n
u
s
u
a
lly

 c
u
rv

e
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 b

u
ild

in
g
 l
in

e
. 

 S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
d
e
ta

il,
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

d
o
o
rs

 a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

n
d
 F

re
n
c
h
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

 

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
5

V
ia

d
u
c
t 

R
o
a
d

C
a
lv

a
ry

 

E
v
a
n
g
e
lic

a
l 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

N
o
 C

A
1
8
7
6
 b

y
 J

a
m

e
s
 B

a
rn

e
s
 a

s
 a

 P
ri

m
it
iv

e
 M

e
th

o
d
is

t 
C

h
a
p
e
l.
  

In
 1

8
9
5
 i
t 

w
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

a
s
 a

 R
a
ilw

a
y
 M

is
s
io

n
 H

a
ll 

fo
r 

w
o
rk

e
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 n

e
a
rb

y
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 

w
o
rk

s
. 

 D
a
rk

 y
e
llo

w
-b

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fa

c
a
d
e
. 

G
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll 

tu
rr

e
t 

fi
n
ia

ls
 t

o
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
re

e
 l
a
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 

b
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 d
o
o
r.

  
M

a
c
h
ic

o
la

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
B

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 l
a
n
c
e
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 

a
n
 i
n
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 

re
a
d
s
 ‘
R

a
ilw

a
y
 M

is
s
io

n
’.
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
6

V
ic

to
ri

a
 R

o
a
d

C
a
tt

le
 A

rc
h

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

R
a
ilw

a
y
 

T
u
n
n
e
l

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 t

o
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

-b
y
-S

e
a
 r

a
ilw

a
y
 l
in

e
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 1

8
4
0
, 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
in

 l
in

e
 t

o
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 

 I
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
is

 t
u
n
n
e
l 
w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 a
t 

th
a
t 

ti
m

e
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 T

it
h
e
 M

a
p
. 

 A
t 

th
is

 p
o
in

t,
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 u
n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
u
s
e
. 

 T
h
e
 t

u
n
n
e
l 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 

h
o
n
o
u
r 

th
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 

a
 l
o
n
g
-e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

ra
c
k
, 

a
n
d
 w

a
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
fa

rm
 l
a
n
d
. 

 S
im

p
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
; 

s
to

c
k
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 

h
o
rs

e
s
h
o
e
 a

rc
h
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ro
u
n
d
-h

e
a
d
e
d
 a

rc
h
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
. 

 M
e
ta

l 
ra

ili
n
g
s
 a

b
o
v
e
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
7

V
ic

to
ri

a
 R

o
a
d

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
iv

il 
- 

T
o
w

n
 

H
a
ll

N
o
 C

A
R

o
n
u
k
 H

a
ll 

w
a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
9
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 t
o
w

n
 h

a
ll.

  
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 R

o
n
u
k
 H

a
ll 

a
n
d
 W

e
lf
a
re

 I
n
s
ti
tu

te
, 

it
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
2
7
-8

 

to
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 G

ilb
e
rt

 M
 S

im
p
s
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

a
n
c
e
s
, 

s
o
c
ia

ls
, 

a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

. 
 C

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 a

 t
o
w

n
 h

a
ll 

re
q
u
ir

e
d
 

re
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
a
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

g
a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
. 

 I
t 

is
 o

f 
b
ri

c
k
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 t
ile

d
 r

o
o
f.

  
T

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
o
r 

re
ta

in
s
 s

im
p
le

 n
e
o
-c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

.

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
8

V
ic

to
ri

a
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 

K
in

g
s
 

R
o
a
d

2
2

T
h
e
 A

lib
i 

(f
o
rm

e
r 

S
t 

A
u
b
y
n
's

 

H
o
te

l)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

C
lif

to
n
v
ill

e
 C

A
F

o
rm

e
r 

S
t 

A
u
b
y
n
’s

 H
o
te

l,
 1

9
0
8
 b

y
 A

rt
h
u
r 

P
a
c
k
h
a
m

 w
h
o
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 i
n
-h

o
u
s
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 

fo
r 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 B

re
w

e
ry

 f
ir

m
 T

a
m

p
lin

’s
. 

 T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 s

im
ila

r 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 w

e
s
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

d
o
m

e
 t

o
 c

o
rn

e
r.

  
P

u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 w
it
h
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 c

o
rn

e
r,

 o
v
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

a
rv

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
n
a
m

e
 ‘
S

t 
A

u
b
y
n
’s

 H
o
te

l’.
  

C
o
rn

e
r 

b
a
y
 h

a
s
 t

h
re

e
 f

la
n
k
s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 s
in

g
le

 h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
re

e
 o

v
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
. 

 C
o
p
p
e
r 

d
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 s

w
a
g
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 T
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
a
y
, 

w
it
h
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
te

 t
ri

a
n
g
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 c

u
rv

e
d
 p

e
d
im

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
O

u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
 a

re
 p

e
d
im

e
n
te

d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

M
o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
2
9

W
a
rr

e
n
 R

o
a
d

T
h
e
 D

o
w

n
s
 

H
o
te

l

W
o
o
d
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 h

o
te

l,
 b

u
ilt

 1
9
2
7
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
, 

w
it
h
 m

o
c
k
 t

im
b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 j
e
tt

ie
d
. 

 T
a
lle

r 
tw

o
 w

id
e
 b

a
y
 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
a
y
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 j
e
tt

ie
d
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 S
lig

h
tl
y
 s

p
la

y
e
d
 w

in
g
s
 t

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

lo
w

e
r 

in
 h

e
ig

h
t,

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 m

in
o
r 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 

 A
ll 

w
it
h
 h

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 ‘
D

o
w

n
 H

o
te

l’ 
p
a
in

te
d
 o

n
 r

o
o
f 

to
 w

e
s
te

rn
 w

in
g
. 

 L
a
te

r 
g
la

ze
d
 

e
xt

e
n
s
io

n
 b

e
y
o
n
d
. 

 S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 g
ra

s
s
e
d
 b

a
n
k
 (

a
n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

),
 a

t 
a
 b

u
s
y
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
. 

 F
re

e
-s

ta
n
d
in

g
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
s
.

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
0

W
e
lli

n
g
to

n
 

R
o
a
d

1
8

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
, 

la
te

r 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 

u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
D

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
v
ill

a
, 

b
u
ilt

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
5
0
-1

8
6
0
. 

 W
e
lli

n
g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
a
th

 o
f 

th
e
 D

u
k
e
 o

f 

W
e
lli

n
g
to

n
 i
n
 1

8
5
2
 a

s
 a

 g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
m

i 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 v

ill
a
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

ro
a
d
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 m
a
in

ly
 

d
e
n
s
e
ly

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
s
. 

 B
y
 1

8
6
4
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 b
o
a
rd

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 a

 n
o
ta

b
le

 p
u
p
il 

w
a
s
 W

a
lt
e
r 

A
rt

h
u
r 

C
o
p
in

g
e
r 

(1
8
3
7
-1

9
1
0
),

 

th
e
 j
u
ri

s
t 

a
n
d
 a

u
th

o
r 

w
h
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
w

 o
f 

c
o
p
y
ri

g
h
t.

 B
y
 1

8
7
0
 i
t 

w
a
s
 o

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 a
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
J
o
h
n
 C

h
e
s
te

r 
C

ra
v
e
n
, 

w
h
o
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
d
 t

o
 R

o
b
e
rt

 S
te

v
e
n
s
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
o
m

o
ti
v
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

 m
a
jo

r 

in
d
u
s
tr

y
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
1
9
th

 a
n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ri
e
s
. 

C
ra

v
e
n
 d

ie
d
 a

t 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
n
 1

8
8
7
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e
a
b
ly

 a
s
 a

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
c
e
, 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
e
 C

ra
v
e
n
 f

a
m

ily
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
2
5
. 

 B
y
 1

9
2
7
 i
t 

w
a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
o
c
ie

ty
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

h
o
m

e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
7
9
, 

w
h
e
n
 i
t 

b
e
c
a
m

e
 a

 d
a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 I
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
4
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 i
s
 c

le
a
rl

y
 l
e
g
ib

le
 (

d
e
s
p
it
e
 l
a
te

r 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
s
),

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 2
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 5

 b
a
y
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 b
ra

c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

p
o
rt

ic
o
 w

it
h
 D

o
ri

c
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
tw

o
-b

y
-t

w
o
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
s
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
fi
lle

d
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 

b
lo

c
k
w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
 (

n
o
w

 a
ls

o
 i
n
fi
lle

d
).

  
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 s

e
t 

in
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
a
rr

ia
g
e
 d

ri
v
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t,

 a
n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 g

o
th

ic
 s

ty
le

 w
ro

u
g
h
t 

ir
o
n
 r

a
ili

n
g
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 I

n
 2

0
0
6
, 

th
e
 

in
te

ri
o
r 

s
ti
ll 

re
ta

in
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 e

xt
e
n
s
iv

e
 m

o
d
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
u
s
e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
ta

ir
c
a
s
e
.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
1

W
e
lli

n
g
to

n
 

R
o
a
d

4
-1

6
 e

v
e
n
, 

1
8
 a

n
d
 2

0

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

w
a
re

h
o
u
s
in

g
/i

n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

N
o
 C

A
A

ld
ri

n
g
to

n
 B

a
s
in

, 
fo

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 H
a
rb

o
u
r,

 w
a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
5
0
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

im
b
e
r 

p
o
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 g
a
s
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 B
y
 c

.1
8
7
0
 a

 

s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
fl
in

t 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
ilt

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 c

lif
f,

 w
it
h
 d

u
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

o
th

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
in

 a
n
d
 W

e
lli

n
g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 T
h
e
s
e
 

fo
rm

e
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

B
a
lt
ic

 W
h
a
rf

. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
re

e
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 (
n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
0
) 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n
d
 1

1
 o

p
e
n
-s

id
e
d
 s

h
e
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t,

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 1
0
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 o

p
e
n
, 

v
a
u
lt
e
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
. 

 T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 

w
a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 t

y
p
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 (
n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
8
).

  
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 d

w
e
lli

n
g
s
 (

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 4
-1

6
).

  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 o

p
e
n
-

s
id

e
d
 s

h
e
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
, 

th
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 

 T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 p

re
s
e
n
t 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 W

e
lli

n
g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 

R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 t

h
re

e
 e

a
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 t

w
o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 

o
ri

e
l 
to

 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t.

  
S

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 

 O
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
 h

a
s
 a

 s
in

g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f

lo
o
r.

  
D

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t

o
 r

o
o
f 

s
lo

p
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t,

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 l
ik

e
ly

 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
. 

 N
u
m

b
e
rs

 1
8
 a

n
d
 2

0
 a

re
 o

f 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 t

o
 W

e
lli

n
g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 t

ile
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 O

p
e
n
in

g
s
 o

f 
v
a
ri

e
d
 s

iz
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
o
s
e
 t

o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
0
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
e
d
. 

 L
e
tt

e
ri

n
g
 s

ta
ti
n
g
 ‘
W

o
rk

s
, 

S
h
o
w

ro
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 O

ff
ic

e
s
’ 
to

 s
id

e
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
0
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

 h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.b

ri
ta

in
fr

o
m

a
b
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/i
m

a
g
e
/e

p
w

0
1
8
0
8
1
 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
2

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 R
o
a
d

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

N
o
n
c
o
n
fo

rm
is

t

W
e
s
t 

H
ill

 C
A

1
8
9
4
-6

 b
y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 H

e
w

it
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 N

a
th

a
n
ie

l 
E

p
is

c
o
p
a
l 
R

e
fo

rm
e
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
, 

it
 w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 a

 S
tr

ic
t 

B
a
p
ti
s
t 

c
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

9
6
5
 a

n
d
 r

e
-n

a
m

e
d
 

P
ro

v
id

e
n
c
e
 C

h
a
p
e
l.
  

It
 w

a
s
 r

e
-o

p
e
n
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
t 

H
ill

 B
a
p
ti
s
t 

C
h
a
p
e
l 
in

 2
0
1
3
. 

 R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 

 S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

ro
a
d
: 

 N
a
rr

o
w

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
u
b
le

 h
e
ig

h
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f,

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
rc

h
 f

la
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 s

q
u
a
re

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 s

in
g
le

 l
a
rg

e
 t

w
o
-

c
e
n
tr

e
d
 a

rc
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

L
o
w

e
r 

o
n
e
-s

to
re

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

te
e
p
 m

o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 

e
a
c
h
 c

o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 s
in

g
le

 t
w

o
-c

e
n
tr

e
d
 

a
rc

h
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 S
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 l
ig

h
tw

e
ll,

 i
t 

is
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 f

lig
h
t 

o
f 

s
te

p
s
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll 

w
it
h
 t

a
ll 

p
ie

rs
 w

it
h
 

tr
ia

n
g
u
la

r 
c
o
p
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
e
s
th

ill
b
c
.o

rg
/a

b
o
u
t-

u
s
/o

u
r-

h
is

to
ry

/

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
3

W
e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t

5
7

M
o
lly

 

M
a
lo

n
e
's

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 B

u
ilt

 i
n
 c

.1
9
0
1
 f

o
r 

E
d
lin

s
 a

s
 C

h
ri

s
ti
e
’s

 H
o
te

l.
  

It
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 C

a
rp

e
n
te

r’
s
 A

rm
s
 (

la
te

r 
k
n
o
w

n
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

p
a
s
s
e
s
),

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

W
e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 

in
 1

8
6
8
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 

la
rg

e
ly

 h
id

d
e
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 

p
a
ra

p
e
t,

 w
it
h
 d

o
rm

e
rs

. 
 F

re
e
 r

e
n
a
is

s
a
n
c
e
 s

ty
le

, 
w

it
h
 a

 g
a
b
le

, 
tu

rr
e
t 

a
n
d
 o

ri
e
l 
to

 t
h
e
 f

ro
n
t.

  
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 (

2
0
0
8
) 

lik
e
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

il 
to

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 

o
f 

T
re

a
d
w

e
ll 

&
 M

a
rt

in
. 

 S
ta

in
e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

 (
n
o
t 

in
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
) 

to
 i
n
te

ri
o
r,

 d
e
p
ic

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
t 

P
ie

r.
  

T
h
e
 c

a
rv

e
d
 d

e
ta

ils
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
ly

 d
e
p
ic

t 

m
e
rm

a
id

s
, 

a
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 d

o
lp

h
in

, 
s
c
a
llo

p
 s

h
e
lls

, 
fr

u
it
 a

n
d
 m

y
th

ic
a
l 
b
ir

d
s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
. 

 S
o
u
c
re

: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/b
ri

g
h
to

n
b
it
s
.b

lo
g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
2
/0

3
/5

7
-w

e
s
t-

s
tr

e
e
t.

h
tm

l 

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

125



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
4

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

K
in

g
s
w

a
y
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 

B
o
w

ls
 

P
a
v
ili

o
n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

C
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e

S
a
c
k
v
ill

e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

S
in

g
le

 s
to

re
y
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
s
h
o
rt

 c
o
lo

n
n
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
xa

g
o
n
a
l 
c
lo

c
k
 o

v
e
r.

 B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
S

im
ila

r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

e
a
w

a
rd

 s
id

e
, 

b
u
t 

w
it
h
 c

o
lo

n
n
a
d
e
 o

m
it
te

d
. 

 T
h
e
 K

in
g
s
w

a
y
 B

o
w

ls
 c

lu
b
 w

a
s
 f

o
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
2
5
, 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

w
a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 c

lu
b
h
o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
6
3
, 

a
t 

w
h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 l
a
d
ie

s
 c

lu
b
 (

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 1
9
3
8
) 

to
o
k
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 ‘
o
ld

’ 

b
o
w

lin
g
 c

lu
b
.

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
5

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

W
e
s
te

rn
 

L
a
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 

H
o
v
e
 L

a
g
o
o
n

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
w

n
s

E
a
s
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

S
a
c
k
v
ill

e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 &

 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

A
s

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

e
d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
7
0
) 

s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 L

a
w

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 b

e
a
c
h
. 

 B
y
 c

.1
8
9
8
 i
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
la

im
e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 a

s
 p

a
rt

-s
c
ru

b
la

n
d
, 

p
a
rt

-l
a
w

n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 a

re
a
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 u

rb
a
n
 e

xp
a
n
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

la
y
o
u
t 

w
a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 f
o
rm

e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
s
p
a
c
e
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 t

e
n
n
is

 c
o
u
rt

s
, 

b
o
w

lin
g
 g

re
e
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

 c
ro

q
u
e
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
, 

a
 b

a
n
d
s
ta

n
d
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
g
o
o
n
 w

it
h
 c

a
fé

. 
 A

 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

a
ll 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
s
 t

h
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 l
a
w

n
s
. 

 I
t 

is
 o

f 
d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 a

n
d
 t

ile
, 

a
n
d
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 i
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 T

h
e
 

w
a
ll 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
m

a
ll 

p
a
v
ili

o
n
s
 t

o
 i
ts

 w
e
s
te

rn
 h

a
lf
. 

 T
o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
t,

 t
h
e
 w

a
ll 

is
 m

o
re

 v
a
ri

e
d
, 

a
s
 i
t 

is
 s

u
b
s
e
rv

ie
n
t 

to
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 

th
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 f

o
rm

in
g
 a

 s
ta

n
d
a
lo

n
e
 f

e
a
tu

re
. 

 T
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

fo
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
p
o
rt

s
 r

e
m

a
in

s
, 

a
s
 d

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

o
d
e
rn

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
).

  
E

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

u
n
k
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

ls
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 b

a
n
d
s
ta

n
d
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 l
a
g
o
o
n
 –

 r
e
c
la

im
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
 t

id
a
l 
p
o
o
l 
–
 r

e
ta

in
s
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t.

  
T

h
e
 c

a
fé

 b
u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

n
e
w

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

d
d
e
d
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/p
o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.

c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
3
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-l

a
g
o
o
n
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5
 (

b
ri

c
k
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 w

a
ll 

p
re

-2
0
1
5
)

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
6

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
4
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
a
n
k
, 

th
e
n
 

P
o
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
, 

n
o
w

 s
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 

fl
a
ts

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 I

ta
lia

n
a
te

 b
u
ild

in
g
, 

w
it
h
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

h
o
p
 t

o
 f

ro
n
t.

  
T

h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
 d

a
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 B
u
ilt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

e
a
s
te

rn
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

f 
H

a
m

p
to

n
 L

o
d
g
e
, 

it
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
 S

u
tt

o
n
 L

o
d
g
e
. 

 T
h
e
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

h
o
p
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
fr

o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 a

t 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 t

u
rn

 o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

ro
v
in

c
ia

l 
B

a
n
k
, 

it
 w

a
s
 l
a
te

r 
u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 p
o
s
t-

o
ff

ic
e
 (

fr
o
m

 1
9
7
3
 t

o
 2

0
0
5
) 

b
e
fo

re
 

c
o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t

o
 a

 s
h
o
p
. 

 I
t 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 d
o
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 

b
a
y
, 

s
e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 d

o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
 w

it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 p

ie
rs

, 
lio

n
-h

e
a
d
 f

ig
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 d

e
n
ti
ls

. 
 S

m
a
lle

r 
tr

ia
n
g
u
la

r 
p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 t

h
re

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t,

 w
it
h
 d

e
n
ti
l 
d
e
ta

il 
to

 p
a
ra

p
e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 T
h
e
 m

a
in

 b
u
ild

in
g
 b

e
h
in

d
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 t
o
w

e
r 

to
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
, 

w
it
h
 a

 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
t 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

e
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
c
k
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f,

 o
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
, 

ra
is

e
d
 

s
tr

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 q

u
o
in

s
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

lin
th

 t
o
 f

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

re
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 f

lin
t 

p
lin

th
 t

o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

p
o
rc

h
 t

o
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

w
w

w
.c

m
p
c
a
o
n
lin

e
.o

rg
.u

k
 

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
7

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
4
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 i
n
te

r-
w

a
r 

s
h
o
p
. 

 R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
f 

la
rg

e
ly

 h
id

d
e
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
G

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

c
o
n
ta

in
s
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 

re
c
e
s
s
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
s
 r

is
e
 f

ro
m

 f
ir

s
t 

to
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

e
ta

l 
p
a
n
e
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 

 T
w

o
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

 f
ro

n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
ll 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 r

a
is

e
d
 m

o
u
ld

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
. 

 O
f 

a
 s

m
a
lle

r-
s
c
a
le

 t
h
a
n
 m

a
n
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
, 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 s

e
n
s
e
 o

f 
v
e
rt

ic
a
lit

y
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
8

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
4
4
-1

4
5

M
it
re

 H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
M

it
re

 H
o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 1
9
3
5
 b

y
 J

. 
S

ta
n
le

y
 B

e
a
rd

 &
 B

e
n
n
e
tt

. 
 B

u
ilt

 f
o
r 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

to
re

s
 w

it
h
 a

 s
ix

-s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

in
 s

ty
le

 

to
 m

a
n
s
io

n
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

id
d
le

-c
la

s
s
 s

u
b
u
rb

s
 o

f 
in

te
rw

a
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

 L
o
w

e
r 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

re
 s

to
n
e
-f

a
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 f

o
rm

 t
h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 

s
to

re
y
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 B
ri

c
k
 i
s
 i
n
te

rs
p
e
rs

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
re

e
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 
s
ta

c
k
s
 o

f 
s
to

n
e
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 r

is
e
 t

o
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

fl
o
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 s

ta
c
k
e
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 g

iv
e
 a

n
 

e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

v
e
rt

ic
a
lit

y
 t

o
 a

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 b

u
lk

y
, 

h
o
ri

zo
n
ta

lly
-e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

 W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
0
6
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 

c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

xf
o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

 T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
e
s
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 

d
a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

In
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
n
 f

o
r 

re
ta

ile
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

g
iv

e
n
 

th
e
 t

ig
h
t 

k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
3
9

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
5
6
-1

6
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 b
u
ilt

 f
o
r 

B
o
o
ts

, 
1
9
2
7
-8

 b
y
 B

ro
m

le
y
, 

C
a
rt

w
ri

g
h
t 

&
 W

a
u
m

s
le

y
. 

 C
la

s
s
ic

a
l-

R
e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 A
s
h
la

r-
fa

c
e
d
, 

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
. 

 T
w

o
 

s
to

re
y
s
, 

ri
s
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
re

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
e
d
im

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 I

o
n
ic

 c
o
lo

n
n
a
d
e
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

C
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 o

f 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r.

  
W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 

fr
o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
0
6
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 

w
a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

lo
ts

 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

xf
o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
e
s
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

In
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
n
 f

o
r 

re
ta

ile
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 t

ig
h
t 

k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 

o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 

 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
0

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
6
3
-1

6
8

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
B

u
ilt

 1
9
2
6
-3

0
 i
n
 a

 C
o
n
ti
n
e
n
ta

l 
c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 

 P
ila

s
te

rs
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 b

ro
n
ze

 t
o
rc

h
e
re

s
. 

 M
o
n
o
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 c

a
rt

o
u
c
h
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 p

o
rt

io
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 

S
ta

ff
o
rd

’s
 H

a
rd

w
a
re

 S
to

re
 w

a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
. 

 C
a
rt

e
rs

 w
a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 p

o
rt

io
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 m

o
n
o
g
ra

m
s
. 

 R
o
m

a
n
-t

ile
d
 m

a
n
s
a
rd

 r
o
o
f,

 

w
it
h
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

o
rm

e
rs

 u
n
d
e
r 

s
w

a
g
s
. 

 W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
0
6
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

xf
o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 

H
a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
e
s
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

In
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 

fe
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
n
 f

o
r 

re
ta

ile
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 t

ig
h
t 

k
n
it
 1

9
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
. 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
1

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
6
9
-1

7
4

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
1
9
3
1
 f

o
r 

B
H

S
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
7
0
 i
t 

w
a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 C

&
A

, 
a
n
d
 n

o
w

 b
y
 P

ri
m

a
rk

. 
 P

o
s
s
ib

ly
 b

y
 G

a
rr

e
tt

 &
 S

o
n
. 

 P
a
in

te
d
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 s

to
n
e
 a

s
h
la

r 
in

 a
 

‘b
lo

c
k
y
 A

m
e
ri

c
a
n
 s

ty
le

’ 
(a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 b

y
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
),

 w
it
h
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 s

tr
ip

s
 o

f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

e
ta

l 
p
a
n
e
ls

. 
 C

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
m

o
ti
fs

 i
n
 

re
lie

f 
a
b
o
v
e
; 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
‘w

in
g
e
d
’ 
m

o
ti
f 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 ‘
1
9
3
1
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
B

H
S

’.
  

M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

to
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 o

f 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 

e
xe

c
u
te

d
 i
n
 a

 s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 m

a
n
n
e
r 

w
it
h
 d

e
e
p
 f

a
s
c
ia

 b
a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

a
re

a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
ilt

 o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 

 F
ro

m
 1

9
0
6
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 

s
id

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 

 T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

la
rg

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
s
. 

 T
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

xf
o
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 

b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
e
s
t 

e
xa

m
p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 

e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 

In
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 

fe
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
n
 f

o
r 

re
ta

ile
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t

h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 

g
iv

e
n
 t

h
e
 t

ig
h
t 

k
n
it
 1

9
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 

d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
, 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
. 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
2

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

2
0
3
-2

1
1

1
-1

7
 A

rc
a
d
e
 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
, 

Im
p
e
ri

a
l 

A
rc

a
d
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

a
rc

a
d
e

N
o
 C

A
1
9
2
3
-4

 b
y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
, 

re
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 1

9
3
4
 b

y
 G

a
rr

e
tt

 &
 S

o
n
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 

 

S
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 a

rt
 d

e
c
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 c

u
rv

e
d
 p

o
rt

io
n
 t

o
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 e

m
u
la

ti
n
g
 a

 s
h
ip

’s
 p

ro
w

. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

fe
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 t

o
w

e
rs

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 c

h
e
v
ro

n
 g

la
zi

n
g
. 

 M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 

 A
rc

a
d
e
 h

a
s
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 s
te

p
p
e
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

  
E

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 a
n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 g

la
zi

n
g
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 a

rc
a
d
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

 f
u
lly

 g
la

ze
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

X
P

re
-2

0
1
5

126



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
3

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

2
1

T
h
e
 P

a
ri

s
 

H
o
u
s
e
 

(f
o
rm

e
r 

T
h
e
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 

H
o
te

l)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e
 /

 

H
o
te

l

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

4
 s

to
re

y
 l
a
te

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
; 

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

 T
h
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 H

o
te

l.
  

P
u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 t

o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

E
la

b
o
ra

te
 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 t

o
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 S

tr
e
e
t 

E
a
s
t.

  
W

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 

 R
o
o
f 

la
rg

e
ly

 h
id

d
e
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t,

 w
it
h
 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 f

in
ia

ls
, 

p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 d
o
m

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
4

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

6
4

H
o
v
e
 B

a
n
k

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

B
a
n
k

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

1
8
9
0
 b

y
 Z

e
p
h
a
n
ia

 K
in

g
 f

o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 &

 C
o
u
n
ty

 B
a
n
k
. 

 L
o
o
s
e
ly

 T
u
d
o
r 

s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 a

 c
o
rn

e
r 

tu
rr

e
t 

a
n
d
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

k
y
lin

e
 o

f 
g
a
b
le

s
 a

n
d
 e

la
b
o
ra

te
 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

 T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
ta

in
s
 o

ri
e
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

p
e
d
im

e
n
te

d
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 l
a
rg

e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
s
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

M
o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
5

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
0
0

L
a
n
e
 &

 

S
te

d
m

a
n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
L
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

h
a
rm

a
c
y
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t.

  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
. 

 S
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 

is
 o

f 
ti
m

b
e
r 

w
it
h
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 c
a
rb

o
y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

t 
tr

a
n
s
o
m

 l
e
v
e
l.
  

S
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 

w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
re

c
e
s
s
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
. 

 S
lim

 m
u
lli

o
n
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

la
te

 

g
la

s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 w

in
d
o
w

 h
e
a
d
s
. 

 A
rt

 N
o
u
v
e
a
u
 i
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t

o
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 s

in
g
le

 h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 

P
a
ra

p
e
t 

c
o
n
c
e
a
lin

g
 r

o
o
f.

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
6

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

3
1
A

Ig
ig

i
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
L
a
te

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
/E

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

it
h
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t.

  
S

m
a
ll-

s
c
a
le

 i
n
fi
ll 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
o
n
e
-b

a
y
 w

id
th

 a
n
d
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
. 

 

S
im

p
le

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t,

 w
it
h
 f

u
ll-

w
id

th
 d

is
p
la

y
 w

in
d
o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 c

u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 a

n
d
 o

g
e
e
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 B
u
ild

in
g
 

s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 D

u
tc

h
 g

a
b
le

 w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
n
ic

h
e
.

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
7

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

5
0
-5

9
H

ill
s
 o

f 
H

o
v
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

F
o
rm

e
rl

y
 W

ill
ia

m
 H

ill
’s

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
; 

a
 m

o
s
a
ic

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
is

 s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

P
la

c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 (

s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 J

a
m

e
s
 G

ra
y
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 s

im
ila

r 
in

 d
e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

6
0
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
) 

w
e
re

 

e
xt

e
n
s
iv

e
ly

 r
e
m

o
d
e
lle

d
 (

o
r 

re
b
u
ilt

) 
in

 1
9
2
1
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
G

a
rr

e
tt

 &
 S

o
n
; 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 t
a
k
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 I
t 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 f

u
ll-

h
e
ig

h
t 

b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 p

a
ir

e
d
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
, 

b
o
o
k
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 4

-b
a
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
. 

 D
e
e
p
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 

a
b
o
v
e
 

w
h
ic

h
 f

o
rm

s
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

, 
w

it
h
 r

a
is

e
d
 h

o
ri

zo
n
ta

l 
b
a
n
d
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re
 

u
n
ti
l 
1
9
8
2
. 

 I
t 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 f

la
ts

 i
n
 1

9
8
7
. 

 S
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
re

 p
ri

m
a
ri

ly
 n

o
w

 m
o
d
e
rn

 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

M
o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/r
e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
1
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
1
_
0
4
8
.h

tm
l 

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
8

W
h
it
e
w

a
y
 L

a
n
e

W
h
it
e
w

a
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
a
ll

R
o
tt

in
g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

1
9
7
4
 b

y
 M

ic
h
a
e
l 
B

le
e
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
 F

lin
t,

 w
e
a
th

e
rb

o
a
rd

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

ile
 h

u
n
g
. 

 B
u
ilt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

g
a
rd

e
n
 t

o
 T

h
e
 G

ra
n
g
e
, 

a
n
d
 s

e
e
n
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

N
ic

h
o
ls

o
n
's

 s
tu

d
io

 (
g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
).

  
A

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

, 
th

e
 h

a
ll 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
 o

f 
tr

a
d
it
io

n
a
l 

a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

ill
a
g
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
 g

u
id

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 N

D

X
X

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
4
9

W
ilb

u
ry

 R
o
a
d

H
a
re

w
o
o
d
 

C
o
u
rt

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
la

ts
W

ill
e
tt

 E
s
ta

te
 

C
A

T
w

o
 p

a
ra

lle
l 
ra

n
g
e
s
 o

f 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 f
la

ts
. 

 D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 1

9
4
7
 b

y
 D

e
n
m

a
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
M

a
s
o
n
ic

 B
e
n
e
v
o
le

n
t 

In
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

b
u
ilt

 u
n
ti
l 

1
9
5
6
. 

 T
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
tf

ro
n
t 

is
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 7

 s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 a
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
. 

 B
ri

c
k
, 

w
it
h
 f

la
t 

ro
o
f 

a
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

s
h
a
llo

w
 b

o
w

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 1

s
t  t

o
 6

th
 s

to
re

y
s
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
0

W
ilm

in
g
to

n
 

W
a
y

2
-1

0
T

h
e
 L

o
n
g
 

M
a
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
O

n
e
 a

n
d
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

w
it
h
 f

la
t 

a
n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
fs

 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
 B

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

9
3
9
, 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
8
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 

fo
r 

th
e
 P

o
rt

s
m

o
u
th

 &
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 B

re
w

e
ri

e
s
. 

 P
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
y
 S

ta
v
e
rs

 T
ilt

m
a
n
. 

 S
im

ila
r 

b
ro

w
n
 b

ri
c
k
 t

o
 t

h
a
t 

o
f 

th
e
 L

a
d
ie

s
 M

ile
 H

o
te

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

f 
s
im

ila
r 

d
a
te

. 
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

c
e
n
tr

a
lly

 t
o
 t

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 N

e
o
-G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 p

o
rt

io
n
, 

w
it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 d
e
ta

ili
n
g
. 

 P
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 t

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

o
th

 

fl
o
o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 p

o
rt

io
n
 i
s
 s

e
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t.

  
It

 t
e
rm

in
a
te

s
 i
n
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
e
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 s

u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
a
tt

e
n
u
a
te

d
 D

e
c
o
 

la
n
te

rn
, 

w
it
h
 c

o
p
p
e
r 

ro
o
f.

  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 f
re

e
s
ta

n
d
in

g
 p

u
b
 s

ig
n
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 

P
e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
1

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

T
e
m

p
le

 

H
e
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

la
te

r 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l,
 

n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
&

 

C
lif

to
n
 H

ill
 C

A

T
h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
 1

8
4
3
-4

4
 a

s
 a

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 s
c
h
o
o
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 1

8
4
6
. 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 f

o
u
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
3
7
 i
n
 

N
e
w

p
o
rt

 I
o
W

 b
y
 L

ie
u
t.

 C
h
a
rl

e
s
 R

o
b
e
rt

 M
a
ld

e
n
 R

N
, 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

h
e
a
d
m

a
s
te

r,
 a

n
d
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r.

 I
t 

to
o
k
 t

h
e
 n

a
m

e
 

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 H
o
u
s
e
 w

h
e
n
 i
t 

m
o
v
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
t 

b
e
lie

v
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 o

ld
e
s
t 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

p
re

p
a
ra

to
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

It
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 i
n
 1

9
1
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 i
n
 1

9
3
4
 t

o
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

s
it
e
 n

e
a
r 

W
a
s
h
in

g
to

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
. 

A
t 

th
a
t 

ti
m

e
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
d
 i
ts

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 F

u
rz

e
 

H
ill

. 
In

 1
9
2
1
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 N

e
w

 S
u
s
s
e
x 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
fo

r 
W

o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 e

xt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

e
s
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
te

 

1
9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 a

n
d
 e

xt
e
n
s
iv

e
ly

 r
e
m

o
d
e
le

d
 b

y
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
. 

It
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
u
s
e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t

o
 f

la
ts

. 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 e

xt
e
n
s
io

n
 o

n
 W

in
d
le

s
h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
. 

T
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 h

a
s
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
s
 b

u
t 

it
 o

w
e
s
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

la
y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
 r

e
m

o
d
e
lin

g
. 

H
e
n
ry

 C
h
a
rl

e
s
 M

a
ld

e
n
, 

th
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

W
in

d
le

s
h
a
m

 H
o
u
s
e
 h

e
a
d
, 

w
a
s
 t

h
e
 e

ld
e
s
t 

s
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
u
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

a
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
fr

o
m

 1
8
5
5
 t

o
 1

8
8
8
. 

 W
h
ils

t 
s
tu

d
y
in

g
 a

t 
T

ri
n
it
y
 C

o
lle

g
e
 

C
a
m

b
ri

d
g
e
, 

it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 u
p
 f

ix
e
d
 r

u
le

s
 f

o
r 

fo
o
tb

a
ll.

  
T

h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
e
n
t 

tw
o
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 s

e
n
t 

a
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

tw
o
 w

h
o
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 

b
e
e
n
 t

o
 a

 P
u
b
lic

 S
c
h
o
o
l.
  

O
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 w

a
s
 M

a
ld

e
n
. 

 A
t 

th
is

 g
a
th

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g
e
 

F
o
o
tb

a
ll 

R
u
le

s
 w

e
re

 d
ra

w
n
 u

p
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 l
a
te

r 
to

 b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 b
y
 a

ll 
p
la

y
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 g

a
m

e
 o

f 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 F

o
o
tb

a
ll 

w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 a

n
d
 M

a
ld

e
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

 ‘
fa

th
e
r 

o
f 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 r

u
le

s
.’

X
X

X
X

2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
2

W
y
n
d
h
a
m

 

S
tr

e
e
t

5
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

H
o
u
s
e

E
a
s
t 

C
lif

f 
C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
, 

s
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll.

  
R

e
n
d
e
r 

to
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

a
n
d
 f

lin
t 

c
o
b
b
le

s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
. 

 P
it
c
h
e
d
 t

ile
d
 r

o
o
f.

  
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 

w
it
h
in

 g
a
b
le

d
 p

o
rc

h
 (

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 a
 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
).

  
T

w
o
 m

u
lli

o
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 

to
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 t

o
 

b
o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 D

e
n
ti
l 
c
o
rn

ic
e
. 

 F
ir

s
t 

e
v
id

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 

it
s
 s

ty
le

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 a
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 d

a
te

. 
 I

ts
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 t
o
 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 i
t 

p
re

d
a
te

s
 m

o
s
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

X
X

X
X

P
re

-2
0
1
5

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
3

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e

3
1

H
o
b
g
o
b
lin

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

P
u
b
lic

 H
o
u
s
e

V
a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A
4
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

u
b
lic

 h
o
u
s
e
, 

lik
e
ly

 e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 d

a
te

. 
 R

is
e
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 t

e
rm

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 t

e
rr

a
c
e
. 

 H
ip

p
e
d
 

c
la

y
 t

ile
 r

o
o
f 

w
it
h
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 

c
o
rb

e
lle

d
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
. 

 L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 C

h
e
a
p
s
id

e
. 

 P
u
b
 f

ro
n
ta

g
e
 e

xt
e
n
d
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f

lo
o
r 

o
f 

b
o
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 s

h
a
llo

w
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

a
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ila
s
te

rs
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 e

n
ta

b
la

tu
re

 w
it
h
 d

e
n
ti
l 

d
e
ta

il.
  

C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 f

ir
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f

lo
o
r,

 w
it
h
 a

e
d
ic

u
la

te
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 a

b
o
v
e
. 

 S
o
u
rc

e
: 

V
a
lle

y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y

X
X

X
2
0
1
5

127



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
4

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y

L
e
tt

e
rb

o
xe

s
T

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

le
tt

e
r 

b
o
xe

s

T
h
e
 1

8
4
0
 p

o
s
ta

l 
re

fo
rm

 l
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

le
tt

e
r 

b
o
xe

s
, 

in
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
to

w
n
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
n
y
 v

ill
a
g
e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
ill

a
r 

b
o
xe

s
 w

e
re

 h
e
xa

g
o
n
a
l 
in

 f
o
rm

; 
a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

d
e
s
ig

n
s
 f

o
llo

w
e
d
. 

 I
n
 1

8
5
9
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
; 

u
ti
lis

in
g
 a

 c
y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 O
n
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

ti
ll-

in
-s

e
rv

ic
e
 F

ir
s
t 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 

M
o
n
tp

e
lie

r 
R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 (

g
ra

d
e
 I

I 
lis

te
d
).

  
A

n
o
th

e
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 d
e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
6
6
 –

 t
h
e
 P

e
n
fo

ld
 –

 w
h
ic

h
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 t

o
 a

 h
e
xa

g
o
n
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 

 A
 

re
p
lic

a
 P

e
n
fo

ld
 w

a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 o

n
 M

a
d
e
ir

a
 D

ri
v
e
 i
n
 1

9
8
9
/9

0
. 

 T
h
e
 c

y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 1

8
7
9
 d

e
s
ig

n
 r

e
tu

rn
e
d
 

to
 t

h
is

 s
h
a
p
e
. 

 S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
s
 a

ll 
la

rg
e
ly

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
; 

ra
d
ic

a
l 
d
e
p
a
rt

u
re

s
 f

ro
m

 i
t 

o
n
ly

 a
p
p
e
a
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
8
0
s
. 

 W
a
ll 

b
o
xe

s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 1
8
5
7
 a

n
d
 c

e
a
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
8
0
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 b

o
xe

s
 f

ro
m

 w
it
h
in

 

w
a
lls

. 
 L

a
m

p
 b

o
xe

s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
9
6
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
a
te

r 
ro

lle
d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

 O
ri

g
in

a
lly

 g
re

e
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 b

le
n
d
 i
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir

 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
s
, 

th
e
 i
c
o
n
ic

 ‘
p
ill

a
r 

b
o
x 

re
d
’ 
w

a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 i
n
 1

8
7
4
. 

 T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

o
r 

le
tt

e
r 

b
o
xe

s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 a

 r
o
y
a
l 
c
ip

h
e
r.

  
F

o
r 

a
 f

e
w

 y
e
a
rs

 u
n
d
e
r 

V
ic

to
ri

a
’s

 r
e
ig

n
, 

th
is

 w
a
s
 o

m
it
te

d
 (

1
8
8
3
-1

8
8
7
).

  
T

h
o
s
e
 b

o
xe

s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

a
 r

o
y
a
l 
c
ip

h
e
r 

a
re

 c
o
m

m
o
n
ly

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 ‘
a
n
o
n
y
m

o
u
s
 b

o
xe

s
’.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 

n
o
w

 o
v
e
r 

8
5
0
0
0
 b

o
xe

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

lo
n
e
. 

 E
n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 a

n
d
 R

o
y
a
l 
M

a
il 

(w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

D
C

M
S

) 
a
g
re

e
d
 a

 p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 o

f 
re

te
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

le
tt

e
r 

b
o
xe

s
 i
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir

 e
xi

s
ti
n
g
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

le
tt

e
r 

b
o
xe

s
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

u
s
u
a
lly

 b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 

th
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 l
is

t.
  

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
s
t 

b
o
xe

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
 a

re
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 l
is

te
d
. 

S
o
u
rc

e
s
: 

h
tt

p
:/

/h
is

to
ri

c
e
n
g
la

n
d
.o

rg
.u

k
/i
m

a
g
e
s
-

b
o
o
k
s
/p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
/d

ls
g
-s

tr
e
e
t-

fu
rn

it
u
re

/,
 h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.p

o
s
ta

lh
e
ri

ta
g
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
/l
e
tt

e
rb

o
xe

s
, 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.l
b
s
g
.o

rg
/,

 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.w

ic
k
s
.o

rg
/p

u
lp

/s
ta

ts
.h

tm
l,
 h

tt
p
:/

/c
v
p
h
m

.o
rg

.u
k
/r

e
le

a
s
e
/R

M
%

2
0
a
n
d
%

2
0
E

H
%

2
0
P

o
lic

y
%

2
0
o
n
%

2
0
P

o
s
tb

o
xe

s
.p

d
f 

X
X

X
X

X
E

xa
m

p
le

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t:
 A

ll 
V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 a

n
d
 

a
n
o
n
y
m

o
u
s
 p

ill
a
r 

b
o
xe

s
. 

A
s
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

h
is

to
ri

c
 

p
o
s
t 

b
o
xe

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
, 

th
e
s
e
 b

o
xe

s
 m

e
ri

t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t;
 A

ll 
w

a
ll 

b
o
xe

s
 a

n
d
 

la
m

p
 b

o
xe

s
 d

a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 o

r 
p
re

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
ig

n
 

o
f 

E
d
w

a
rd

 V
II

I,
 a

s
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 r

a
re

r 
in

 

th
e
 c

it
y
. 

 T
h
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

w
a
ll 

b
o
xe

s
 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
; 

n
o
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
la

m
p
 b

o
xe

s
 

d
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri

o
d
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 k

n
o
w

n
; 

A
ll 

E
d
w

a
rd

 V
II

I 
le

tt
e
r 

b
o
xe

s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 r

a
re

 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
im

e
 

E
d
w

a
rd

 V
II

I 
w

a
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 t

h
ro

n
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 h

is
 

a
b
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
. 

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 o

n
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
; 

P
ill

a
r 

b
o
xe

s
 t

h
a
t 

fo
rm

 a
 c

le
a
r 

g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 s

tr
e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

; 

P
ill

a
r 

b
o
xe

s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
le

a
r 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

v
is

u
a
l 

o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
) 

w
it
h
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 F
o
r 

a
 l
is

t 
o
f 

k
n
o
w

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 f

u
ll 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

L
L
H

A
0
2
5
5

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti
n
g

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
 

S
u
rv

e
y

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
ild

in
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g

S
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

g
a
s
 l
a
m

p
s
 a

rr
iv

e
d
 i
n
 1

8
1
6
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 a

 p
ro

lif
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
s
t-

ir
o
n
 g

a
s
 l
a
m

p
 p

o
s
ts

 i
n
 a

 p
ro

d
ig

io
u
s
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
. 

E
a
rl

y
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 w

e
re

 a
t 

th
e
 O

ld
 S

te
in

e
 i
n
 1

8
2
4
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
a
y
in

g
 o

f 
m

a
in

s
. 

E
le

c
tr

ic
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 

th
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 p

e
ri

o
d
, 

fr
o
m

 a
b
o
u
t 

1
8
7
9
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 1

8
8
0
s
, 

fi
rs

tl
y
 a

t 
th

e
 R

o
y
a
l 
P

a
v
ili

o
n
. 

M
a
in

s
 w

e
re

 l
a
id

 i
n
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

8
9
0
s
 b

u
t 

th
e
y
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 e
n
a
b
le

d
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 i
n
te

rn
a
lly

, 
e
xc

e
p
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 1

8
9
0
s
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 o

n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

s
e
a
fr

o
n
t.

 T
h
e
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 f

o
r 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 g
ra

d
u
a
l;
 i
n
 1

9
1
9
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
ti
ll 

a
lm

o
s
t 

2
,0

0
0
 g

a
s
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ts

 i
n
 H

o
v
e
 w

h
ils

t 

a
s
 l
a
te

 a
s
 1

9
3
8
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
ti
ll 

c
1
0
0
 g

a
s
 l
a
m

p
s
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 g

a
s
 l
a
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 c

a
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 b

e
 d

is
ti
n
g
u
is

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

p
re

s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 b

o
x 

a
d
d
it
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 t

o
p
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
lu

m
n
. 

M
o
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
ilt

 e
le

c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 w

e
re

 

e
re

c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 o

r 
la

te
r.

 T
h
is

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

o
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 C

o
. 

L
im

it
e
d
 (

B
L
E

E
C

O
) 

in
 1

9
2
1
, 

w
h
o
 t

o
o
k
 o

n
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
. 

T
h
e
y
 a

ls
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

h
e
 ‘
s
w

a
n
 n

e
c
k
’ 
la

n
te

rn
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
is

 t
im

e
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 f
iv

e
 m

a
in

 t
y
p
e
s
 o

f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
 c

o
lu

m
n
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 

p
lu

s
 a

 f
e
w

 r
a
re

r 
ty

p
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

m
u
c
h
 l
a
rg

e
r 

s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

c
o
lu

m
n
s
 (

o
f 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 o

n
e
s
 a

re
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 l
is

te
d
).

 O
f 

fi
v
e
 m

a
in

 t
y
p
e
s
, 

tw
o
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 g

a
s
 l
a
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

(c
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 4

) 
a
n
d
 t

w
o
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 l
a
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 (

c
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
s
 2

 a
n
d
 3

).
 V

e
ry

 r
a
re

 a
re

 

th
e
 e

a
rl

y
 t

y
p
e
 5

 c
o
lu

m
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 g
a
s
 l
a
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
, 

T
h
e
 t

y
p
e
 6

 e
le

c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

c
o
lu

m
n
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
 i
s
 m

u
c
h
 r

a
re

r 
th

a
n
 t

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 

c
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 s

o
m

e
 r

a
re

 e
xa

m
p
le

s
 o

f 
o
th

e
r 

p
a
tt

e
rn

s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 b

u
t 

th
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 a

re
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 l
is

te
d
. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 t
y
p
e
s
 

a
re

 d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 1

 -
 O

c
ta

g
o
n
a
l,
 p

a
n
e
lle

d
 s

o
c
le

 s
e
rv

e
s
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
e
 f

o
r 

o
c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
ta

p
e
ri

n
g
 s

h
a
ft

, 
p
a
n
e
lle

d
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 b

a
s
e
, 

s
im

p
le

 c
o
v
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l.
 O

n
ly

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 

M
o
u
ld

in
g
 d

e
ta

il 
v
a
ri

e
s
. 

S
o
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 n
a
m

e
p
la

te
 f

ro
m

 a
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 f

o
u
n
d
ry

; 
C

o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 2

 -
 

S
q
u
a
re

 p
lin

th
 c

h
a
m

fe
re

d
 t

o
 a

n
 o

c
ta

g
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

ib
b
e
d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
, 

s
le

n
d
e
r 

ta
p
e
ri

n
g
 s

h
a
ft

 o
f 

c
lu

s
te

re
d
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
, 

c
a
ly

x 
o
r 

b
e
ll 

c
a
p
it
a
l.
 

M
a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d
 b

y
 J

 E
v
e
ry

 o
f 

L
e
w

e
s
. 

M
o
s
tl
y
 f

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 3

 -
 C

y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
s
o
c
le

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
k
a
b
le

 c
o
m

p
a
rt

m
e
n
t,

 o
ft

e
n
 m

a
rk

e
d
 

B
L
E

E
C

O
 b

u
t 

s
o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 c

re
s
t;

 f
lu

te
d
, 

ta
p
e
ri

n
g
 s

h
a
ft

 t
o
p
p
e
d
 b

a
s
k
e
t 

c
a
p
it
a
l.
 F

o
u
n
d
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
. 

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

b
y
 B

L
E

E
C

O
. 

O
ft

e
n
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d
 b

y
 J

 E
v
e
ry

 o
f 

L
e
w

e
s
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 4

 -
 S

tr
a
ig

h
t-

s
id

e
d
 p

o
s
t 

c
a
s
t 

a
s
 f

lu
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

a
p
e
ri

n
g
 T

u
s
c
a
n
 c

o
lu

m
n
 r

is
in

g
 

fr
o
m

 a
 c

y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
im

p
o
s
t 

b
lo

c
k
, 

s
in

g
le

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

rm
 t

o
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 p

la
in

 c
y
lin

d
ri

c
a
l 
im

p
o
s
t.

 O
n
ly

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 5

 -
 S

q
u
a
re

 

b
a
s
e
 w

it
h
 b

ro
a
c
h
e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

, 
fl
u
te

d
 c

o
lu

m
n
, 

tw
o
 l
a
d
d
e
r 

a
rm

s
, 

le
a
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l.
 M

a
k
e
rs

 n
a
m

e
 s

ta
m

p
e
d
 o

n
 b

a
s
e
. 

O
n
ly

 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 

ty
p
e
 6

 –
 W

id
e
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
b
a
s
e
 w

it
h
 c

o
n
c
a
v
e
 s

o
c
le

, 
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
ro

je
c
ti
n
g
 b

a
n
d
 w

it
h
 T

u
d
o
r 

ro
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

g
g
 a

n
d
 d

a
rt

 m
o
u
ld

in
g
 b

e
lo

w
, 

to
p
p
e
d
 b

y
 

ta
p
e
ri

n
g
 f

lu
te

d
 s

h
a
ft

 w
it
h
 a

c
a
n
th

u
s
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 t
o
 s

w
e
lli

n
g
 f

o
o
t 

a
n
d
 t

w
in

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

rm
. 

M
a
k
e
rs

 p
la

te
 s

h
o
w

s
 c

a
s
t 

in
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
. 

A
lm

o
s
t 

e
xc

lu
s
iv

e
ly

 

fo
u
n
d
 i
n
 H

o
v
e
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 7

 -
 A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

ty
p
e
 o

f 
e
a
rl

y
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 c

o
lu

m
n
 i
s
 s

e
e
n
 o

n
ly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 p

u
b
lic

 o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 o

n
 V

a
lle

y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
, 

h
a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 b

y
 C

a
p
ta

in
 M

a
c
L
a
re

n
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 B

L
E

E
C

O
; 

C
o
lu

m
n
 t

y
p
e
 8

 -
 O

n
 t

h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

in
 H

o
v
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 t

a
ll 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 d

a
ti
n
g
 f

ro
m

 1
9
2
3
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
u
fa

c
tu

re
d
 b

y
 J

 E
v
e
ry

 o
f 

L
e
w

e
s
 (

th
o
u
g
h
 t

h
re

e
 w

e
re

 r
e
p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 1

9
9
0
s
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
w

 d
o
u
b
le

 l
a
n
te

rn
s
 w

e
re

 f
it
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
s
te

rn
 e

n
d
);

 C
o
lu

m
n
 T

y
p
e
 9

 -
 A

 g
a
s
 l
a
m

p
 

c
o
lu

m
n
 w

it
h
 n

a
rr

o
w

 c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
a
n
e
lle

d
 s

o
c
le

 s
e
rv

in
g
 a

s
 a

 b
a
s
e
 f

o
r 

a
 f

lu
te

d
 t

a
p
e
ri

n
g
 s

h
a
ft

 a
n
d
 t

w
in

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

rm
s
. 

K
n
o
w

n
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 

in
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
. 

O
n
ly

 o
n
e
 k

n
o
w

n
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 e

xa
m

p
le

.

X
X

X
X

X
X

E
xa

m
p
le

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 w

ill
 

b
e
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
lis

t:
 R

a
re

 c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 

c
o
lu

m
n
 p

a
tt

e
rn

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 t
y
p
e
s
, 

u
n
le

s
s
 i
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
is

t 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

; 
S

u
rv

iv
in

g
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
ty

p
e
 1

, 

ty
p
e
 4

, 
ty

p
e
 5

 a
n
d
 t

y
p
e
 6

 c
o
lu

m
n
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
; 

G
ro

u
p
s
 o

r 
ro

w
s
 o

f 
ty

p
e
 2

 a
n
d
 t

y
p
e
 

3
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 f

o
rm

a
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

, 

s
q
u
a
re

s
, 

c
re

s
c
e
n
ts

 o
r 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

f 
lis

te
d
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o

r 
w

h
e
re

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 a

 n
o
ta

b
le

 

lis
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

r 
h
is

to
ri

c
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 
th

e
 s

u
rv

iv
a
l 
o
f 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
s
w

a
n
 

n
e
c
k
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 l
a
n
te

rn
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

 F
o
r 

a
 l
is

t 
o
f 

k
n
o
w

n
 e

xa
m

p
le

s
, 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 

th
e
 f

u
ll 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

128



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

S
tr

e
e
t

N
u

m
b

e
r

N
a
m

e
L

o
c
a
li
ty

A
s
s
e
t 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

A
s
s
e
t 

T
y
p

e
C

o
n

s
e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 

A
re

a

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
R

e
m

o
v
e
d

/N
o

t 
In

c
lu

d
e
d

/ 
N

o
t 

E
li
g

ib
le

/D
e
m

o
li
s
h

e
d

A
b
in

g
e
r 

R
o
a
d

8
3
, 
8
5
, 
8
9
, 

9
1
, 
9
3

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
-s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 v

il
la

, 
d
a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

id
-1

9
th

 C
e
n
tu

ry
 

a
n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
 o

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
r 

w
a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 f
ro

n
t 
a
n
d
 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

id
e
s
 (

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 f
e
n
c
e
s
).

  

T
h
e
ir

 a
li
g
n
m

e
n
t 
re

s
p
e
c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 C

ro
w

n
 W

o
rk

s
, 
C

ro
w

n
 R

o
a
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t
il
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
s
 

a
re

 p
la

in
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir

 d
e
ta

il
in

g
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 v

il
la

 a
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

8
7
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
9
 

re
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 8
3
, 
8
5
, 
8
9
, 
9
1
 a

n
d
 9

3
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
a
z
e
h
il
l 
R

o
a
d

B
a
z
e
h
il
l 

R
o
a
d
 

P
u
m

p
in

g
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

B
a
ls

d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
u
m

p
in

g
 

S
ta

ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
E

li
g
ib

le

B
e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e

7
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

E
a
rl

y
 t
o
 m

id
-1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 s

im
il
a
ri

ti
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 

P
la

c
e
. 
 T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 c
u
rv

e
d
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 w
it
h
 

s
m

a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 c

u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 s

a
s
h
e
s
, 
to

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 l
ik

e
ly

 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 m

a
tc

h
e
d
 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e
, 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 l
o
s
t 
m

a
n
y
 o

f 

it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
te

re
s
t 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e

2
5
, 
2
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

E
a
rl

y
 t
o
 m

id
-1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 p

a
ir

e
d
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 O

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t,
 e

a
c
h
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 a

 c
u
rv

e
d
 b

a
y
 f
ro

m
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 2

n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
5
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

w
in

d
o
w

s
, 
w

h
e
re

a
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
6
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 r

e
ta

in
 a

 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
u
n
if
o
rm

it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir

 s
m

a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
).

  
O

f 
a
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
 B

e
d
fo

rd
 P

la
c
e
, 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 p

la
in

e
r 

in
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 c

a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
. 
 D

o
rm

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 a

t 
ro

o
f 
le

v
e
l.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 g
o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
 p

a
ir

 o
f 
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 

to
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
it
y
/c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 

s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 
o
f 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 q

u
a
li
ty

, 
n
o
r 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
lo

s
e
ly

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

s
s
e
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 

a
re

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
e
d
fo

rd
 S

q
u
a
re

B
e
d
fo

rd
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 
s
q
u
a
re

. 
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

q
u
a
re

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
0
1
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 i
t 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
’s

 e
a
rl

ie
s
t 
s
q
u
a
re

. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

8
1
8
. 
 T

h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 I
t 

w
a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 M

a
y
 1

8
8
7
, 
fo

ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
, 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 
s
im

p
ly

, 
w

it
h
 a

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 

a
n
d
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
. 
 I
t 
n
o
w

 h
a
s
 a

 m
o
re

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
in

s
e
rt

e
d
 p

o
s
t-

1
9
6
0
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

n
y
 h

is
to

ri
c
 p

re
c
e
d
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 c

o
n
ta

in
 n

o
 

m
a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
 m

o
d
e
rn

 d
e
s
ig

n
; 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
ls

 w
e
re

 r
e
m

o
v
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 

th
e
 w

a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 w

o
o
d
e
n
 p

a
li
n
g
s
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
h
o
o
p
e
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 

in
s
ta

ll
e
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 (

a
n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
) 

b
u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

a
re

a
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
h
is

to
ri

c
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

129



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

B
e
n
n
e
tt
 R

o
a
d
, 

B
ri

s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 

P
ri

n
c
e
's

 T
e
rr

a
c
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 o
f 
d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
, 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 ‘
U

’-
s
h
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 B

ri
s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 

H
is

to
ri

c
 m

a
p
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
; 
6
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

w
e
s
t 
s
id

e
 o

f 
P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 w

e
re

 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
to

 b
e
 b

u
il
t 
a
n
d
 a

re
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t 

e
d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
7
0
).

  
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 o

v
e
r 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 s
h
a
ll
o
w

 c
a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
. 
 B

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 2

n
d
 e

d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

lo
n
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 R

u
g
b
y
 

P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 W

h
it
e
h
a
w

k
 R

o
a
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
il
t.
  
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 e

x
te

n
t 
o
f 
P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 B

ri
s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 B

e
n
n
e
tt
 R

o
a
d
 a

re
 f
ir

s
t 
la

id
 o

u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 3

rd
 e

d
it
io

n
 

O
S

 m
a
p
 (

c
.1

9
1
0
).

  
T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

4
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 b

u
il
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t 
s
id

e
 o

f 

P
ri

n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

lo
n
g
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 
B

e
n
n
e
tt
 R

o
a
d
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

lo
n
g
 B

ri
s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t,
 P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 t
o
 B

ri
s
to

l 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 4

th
 e

d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

9
3
0
s
).

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 s

ti
ll
 

re
m

a
in

 u
n
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 a

re
a
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 

m
a
p
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
7
, 
w

h
o
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
in

 1
8
6
5
-9

, 
B

e
n
n
e
tt
 R

o
a
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
0
-4

 a
n
d
 B

ri
s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
in

 1
9
2
0
-4

. 
 S

tr
e
e
t 
d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 

re
fe

r 
to

 a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 l
a
u
n
d
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 g

e
n
e
ra

ll
y
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 

te
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
. 
 M

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
P

ri
n
c
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 a

re
 o

f 
b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r,

 w
it
h
 a

 l
e
a
n
-t

o
 r

o
o
f 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

v
a
ri

a
ti
o
n
, 
re

v
e
a
li
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 s

tr
e
e
t 
o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 B

ri
s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t 

is
 s

im
il
a
rl

y
 o

f 
b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r,

 w
it
h
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  

B
e
n
n
e
tt
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 o

f 
re

d
 a

n
d
 b

ro
w

n
 b

u
ff
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 S

o
m

e
 o

f 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 r

e
ta

in
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
g
la

z
in

g
 p

a
tt
e
rn

. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
li
n
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

a
n
d
 e

it
h
e
r 

th
e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 
B

ri
s
to

l 
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

a
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 e

s
ta

te
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

c
o
n
fl
ic

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

le
a
r 

li
n
k
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 

B
ri

s
to

l’s
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 p

lu
m

-c
o
lo

u
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 b

u
il
t 
a
t 
a
 m

u
c
h
 l
a
te

r 
d
a
te

 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 K

e
m

p
 

T
o
w

n
 e

s
ta

te
 o

r 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 n

u
rs

e
ri

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

 w
o
u
ld

 s
u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 

a
rt

is
a
n
’s

 h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 s

e
rv

a
n
t’
s
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 

p
ie

c
e
m

e
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
ls

o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 

n
o
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

fi
rm

 e
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
e
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
. 
 a

n
d
 

B
ri

s
to

l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
in

 1
9
2
0
-4

. 
 r

a
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 m

e
ri

t 
to

 

w
a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
e
 

a
n
 e

x
p
li
c
it
 l
in

k
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
rq

u
is

 o
f 
B

ri
s
to

l 
o
r 

K
e
m

p
 

T
o
w

n
 e

s
ta

te
. 
 T

h
e
y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 a

 p
le

a
s
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

rf
u
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
la

c
k
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 m

e
ri

t 
to

 w
a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 o

f 
a
 h

o
u
s
e
 t
y
p
e
 f
o
u
n
d
 

e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
5
, 
2
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

T
w

o
, 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
s
te

p
p
in

g
 u

p
 t
h
e
 h

il
l.
  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w

it
h
 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 h
id

d
e
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
ts

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
5
 h

a
s
 a

 V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
, 
w

it
h
 

c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
, 
a
n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
s
 t
o
 d

o
o
r,

 w
in

d
o
w

s
, 
s
tr

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  

It
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 1
7
, 
1
8
 a

n
d
 1

9
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
6
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 A

 r
e
m

n
a
n
t 
o
f 
a
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 a

t 
p
a
ra

p
e
t 
le

v
e
l.
  
B

o
th

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 

fo
re

c
o
u
rt

e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
, 
lo

w
 w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 s

p
e
a
rh

e
a
d
e
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
6
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
o
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
r 

to
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
5
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
m

e
ri

t,
 b

u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

M
o
n
te

p
li
e
r 

&
 C

li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

P
a
s
s
a
g
e

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

S
to

n
e
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

M
a
rk

e
r

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
w

o
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 m
a
rk

e
rs

 i
n
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 P
a
s
s
a
g
e
 a

re
 b

o
th

 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ll
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

B
o
y
c
e
's

 S
tr

e
e
t

2
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 l
is

te
d
 

a
t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

B
ra

n
g
w

y
n
 W

a
y

6
-3

0
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
6
-3

0
 B

ra
n
g
w

y
n
 W

a
y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 

g
ra

s
s
 v

e
rg

e
 b

u
t 
v
is

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
, 
th

e
y
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
is

ib
le

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

B
ra

n
g
w

y
n
 E

s
ta

te
. 
 T

h
e
 E

s
ta

te
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 W

.H
.L

e
e
 i
n
 c

.1
9
3
6
. 
 A

rt
is

t 
S

ir
 F

ra
n
k
 

B
ra

n
g
w

y
n
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 t
h
re

a
te

n
e
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
h
is

 n
a
m

e
. 
 H

e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

la
te

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 l
a
m

p
p
o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
rk

 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

te
 (

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 

li
s
te

d
).

  
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 

w
a
ll
s
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 G

a
b
le

d
 e

n
d
s
 

fa
c
e
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 m

e
ri

t,
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir

 p
e
ri

o
d
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

a
ls

o
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 e

s
ta

te
. 
A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 

th
e
y
 a

re
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
in

te
re

s
t 
to

 w
a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

130



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 S

q
u
a
re

1
-4

1
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
1
9
6
6
 b

y
 F

it
z
ro

y
 R

o
b
in

s
o
n
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 (
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 O

ff
ic

e
).

  
F

it
z
ro

y
 R

o
b
in

s
o
n
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 

fo
u
n
d
e
r 

o
f 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
’s

 l
a
rg

e
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
s
t 
p
ro

li
fi
c
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
, 

s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 ‘
b
a
n
k
e
r’
s
 b

ru
ta

li
s
m

’.
  
T

h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
la

n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 
H

a
n
n
in

g
to

n
s
 (

s
e
e
 h

tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
9
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
0
9
_
0
2
7
.h

tm
l)

. 
 T

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 h

is
to

ri
c
 L

a
n
e
s
. 
 R

e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 u

n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

, 

s
h
o
p
s
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
re

e
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

q
u
a
re

 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 F

o
u
rt

h
 s

id
e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 p
y
ra

m
id

a
l 
ro

o
fe

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
. 
 P

o
rt

a
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 a

d
ja

c
e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 l
is

te
d
 

D
ru

id
’s

 H
e
a
d
 p

u
b
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 P

la
c
e
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
c
o
n
c
re

te
) 

u
s
e
d
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 (
ti
le

 h
a
n
g
in

g
, 
fl
in

t 
a
n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 s

h
ip

la
p
 b

o
a
rd

in
g
).

  

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t
h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
s
: 
‘A

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
ll
y
 o

f 
it
s
 t
im

e
, 
w

it
h
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 

u
p
p
e
r 

b
a
y
s
 c

la
d
 i
n
 t
il
e
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

h
ip

la
p
 b

o
a
rd

in
g
, 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll
y
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

c
a
le

 

a
n
d
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 
T

h
e
 L

a
n
e
s
, 
it
 w

a
s
 w

e
ll
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 b

u
il
t,
 e

a
rn

in
g
 a

 C
iv

ic
 T

ru
s
t 
A

w
a
rd

, 

a
n
d
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
u
rb

a
n
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l’.

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

jo
u
rn

a
l.
c
o
.u

k
/n

e
w

s
/o

b
it
u
a
ry

-h
e
rb

e
rt

-f
it
z
ro

y
-r

o
b
in

s
o
n
-1

9
1
4
-

2
0
0
5
/5

8
3
1
4
5
.a

rt
ic

le
, 
C

o
n
c
re

te
 Q

u
a
rt

e
rl

y
 7

5
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r-

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

1
9
6
7
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

q
u
a
re

 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 h

a
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
 s

h
o
p
 u

n
it
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
rt

a
l 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
th

e
 s

h
ip

la
p
 b

o
a
rd

in
g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 

a
rt

if
ic

ia
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 b

o
a
rd

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ti
m

b
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 a

lu
m

in
iu

m
. 
 M

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

, 

fa
s
c
ia

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir

 p
il
a
s
te

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 

u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
a
ll
y
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

h
a
s
 l
o
s
t 

it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
u
n
it
y
. 
 T

h
e
 f
o
u
n
ta

in
 i
s
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 

in
s
e
rt

io
n
. 
 T

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

ro
d
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

B
ri

s
to

l 
P

la
c
e

S
e
c
re

t 

G
a
rd

e
n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

N
o
 C

A
K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 w

a
s
 a

 s
p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 b

u
il
t 
in

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 t
o
 m

id
-1

8
2
0
s
 b

y
 B

u
s
b
y
 

a
n
d
 W

il
d
s
 f
o
r 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 K

e
m

p
. 
 T

h
e
 w

a
ll
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
c
.1

8
3
0
 f
o
r 

L
a
u
re

n
c
e
 P

e
e
l,
 

b
ro

th
e
r 

o
f 
R

o
b
e
rt

 P
e
e
l,
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
r 

3
2
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 S

q
u
a
re

. 
 P

e
e
l 
w

a
s
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 

la
n
d
o
w

n
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

a
tr

o
n
 i
n
 K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 b

y
 

a
n
 u

n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 p

a
s
s
a
g
e
w

a
y
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 
 I
t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
y
 s

e
rv

e
d
 a

s
 

p
le

a
s
u
re

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 o

r 
k
it
c
h
e
n
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
7
5
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
e
x
te

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 o

n
ly

 o
n
e
 t
h
ir

d
 o

f 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l.
  
T

h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 e

x
te

ri
o
r 

w
a
ll
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
n
 a

rt
if
ic

ia
l 
s
to

n
e
 i
n
v
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
il
d
e
r 

W
il
li
a
m

 R
a
n
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

a
te

 t
o
 c

.1
8
3
0
. 
 T

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

 f
ro

m
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
1
8
7
5
. 
 B

o
th

 t
h
e
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 n

o
w

 a
re

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
 (

m
o
s
tl
y
 l
e
v
e
ll
e
d
),

 w
it
h
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 m
a
tu

re
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 (
w

h
ic

h
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 w

a
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
E

n
g
li
s
h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 w

a
ll
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 b

e
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 

s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 g

a
rd

e
n
 o

f 
it
s
 k

in
d
 i
n
 K

e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 i
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 3

2
 S

u
s
s
e
x
 S

q
u
a
re

 (
li
s
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I
).

  

T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

re
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
ta

in
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 
a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 a
 t
h
ir

d
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
s
u
rv

iv
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 o

p
e
n
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I 
li
s
ti
n
g
 o

f 
it
s
 

w
a
ll
s
, 
v
a
u
lt
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

B
ri

s
to

l 
R

o
a
d

1
9
-2

6
 

(c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
p
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
9
-2

6
 B

ri
s
to

l 
R

o
a
d
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 a

 u
n
if
o
rm

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

s
to

re
y
 e

a
rl

y
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 o

r 
p
a
rt

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
6
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 a

rc
h
w

a
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 E

a
s
te

rn
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 M

e
w

s
 (

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  

R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t,
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 o
r 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
T

h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
c
a
s
t 

ir
o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
, 
w

it
h
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
in

d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
s
 r

e
ta

in
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
9
 i
s
 o

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
b
u
t 
fo

rm
s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 2

 s
to

re
y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y
 a

n
d
 

E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

in
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
o
m

e
 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
s
u
rv

iv
e
 w

h
o
ll
y
 i
n
ta

c
t.
  

T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
h
a
rm

fu
l 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

131



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

B
ro

a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t

4
, 
7
, 
9
, 
2
1
, 

2
3
, 
2
5
 a

n
d
 

2
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

T
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
S

e
v
e
n
 l
a
te

 1
8

th
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 B

ro
a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 w

it
h
 s

im
il
a
r 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
. 
 T

h
re

e
 a

n
d
 f
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 o

v
e
r 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
 (

th
e
 d

o
o
r 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

).
  
M

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
, 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 a

ll
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 1

:1
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 M

o
u
ld

e
d
 s

to
re

y
 b

a
n
d
 a

t 

th
ir

d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l,
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

s
to

re
y
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

7
 h

a
s
 a

 s
im

il
a
r 

d
o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
 

w
it
h
 b

li
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 f
la

n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

9
 h

a
s
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 

h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
 w

it
h
 b

li
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
b
e
s
id

e
 a

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
1
 

h
a
s
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
, 
re

ta
in

in
g
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f
a
n
li
g
h
t 
w

it
h
 

a
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
 S

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

2
3
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
a
n
li
g
h
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
s
u
rv

iv
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 b
a
lc

o
n
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

2
4
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

2
5
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 l
o
s
t 
it
s
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r.

  
It
 h

a
s
 a

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 

fl
o
o
r.

  
A

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
le

 h
u
n
g
 s

to
re

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
, 
re

m
o
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ro

o
f 
fo

rm
. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

2
6
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 l
o
s
t 
it
s
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

o
o
f 
fo

rm
, 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
M

a
ri

n
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 (

li
s
te

d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I)

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 

th
e
 a

re
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 S

q
u
a
re

 

a
n
d
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 

li
s
te

d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

C
a
s
tl
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
9
A

C
a
s
tl
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

F
ly

 S
ta

b
le

s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
ta

b
le

s
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 1

3
a
-1

4
 S

to
n
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

u
rt

il
a
g
e
 l
is

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

1
1
6

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

C
li
ft
o
n
v
il
le

 C
A

M
id

-1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 

c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 u

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

. 
 P

a
ra

p
e
t 
w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 d

e
ta

il
. 
 S

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
re

ta
in

s
 a

 

re
c
e
s
s
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

o
li
d
 s

ta
ll
 r

is
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 d

e
ta

il
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 f
a
s
c
ia

, 

h
a
v
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

ra
il
in

g
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
M

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t,
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 n

o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

re
ta

in
s
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

C
ir

c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t

C
ir

c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
h
o
o
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 

p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

th
is

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

x
t 
th

a
t 

“c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
to

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

e
v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
1
).

 T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft
e
r 

th
a
t 
A

c
t.
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 

S
im

p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 

G
il
b
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f
ro

m
 1

8
9
0
. 
T

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft
e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 
a
n
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft
e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 
T

h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 

1
8
7
0
-1

9
0
3
. 
T

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

ll
 o

f 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt
a
, 
s
to

n
e
 

a
n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t
u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 

F
re

e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 
R

o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
. 
In

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f
o
u
r 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
: 
F

in
s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 f
la

ts
);

 D
o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 

R
u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 
S

ta
n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 
a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 
A

ll
 a

re
 b

y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll
 b

y
 

S
im

p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 
1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 
Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 
(F

re
s
h
fi
e
ld

 

P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 
1
8
8
0
; 
P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 
a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 
(n

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
C

it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
) 

o
f 
s
o
m

e
 t
im

e
 

b
e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

th
e
 p

la
in

e
s
t 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
ll
y
, 

s
it
s
 a

m
id

 a
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
v
a
ri

e
d
 a

n
d
 p

o
o
r 

q
u
a
li
ty

 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
. 
It
s
 s

tr
e
e
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

la
te

r 
w

id
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
. 
It
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e
 i
s
 

n
e
u
tr

a
l.
  
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
 

o
f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 

c
o
n
te

x
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

132



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

C
la

re
n
c
e
 S

q
u
a
re

C
la

re
n
c
e
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

S
m

a
ll
 s

q
u
a
re

, 
fo

rm
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
2
0
s
, 
fo

ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
0
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

8
2
0
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 d
e
fi
n
e
 t
h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
 G

ra
s
s
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
a
re

a
, 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
. 
 B

o
u
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 o

n
 a

 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 d

w
a
rf

 w
a
ll
 w

it
h
 

s
to

n
e
 c

o
p
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 a

re
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 m

o
d
e
rn

 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
it
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 t
h
e
 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
 g

ra
n
t-

fu
n
d
e
d
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 V

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fa

b
ri

c
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
; 
m

o
s
t 
d
a
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
0
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
e
x
a
c
tl
y
 m

a
tc

h
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 

a
re

 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

a
n
d
 l
a
c
k
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

C
la

re
n
d
o
n
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e

C
la

re
n
d
o
n
 

a
n
d
 P

e
rc

iv
a
l 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
rm

in
g
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 t
o
 C

la
re

n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 P

e
rc

iv
a
l 
T

e
rr

a
c
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 t
w

o
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 

b
o
th

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

W
. 
P

e
rc

iv
a
l 
B

o
x
a
ll
 o

f 
B

e
ll
e
 V

u
e
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 C

u
b
it
t.
  
B

u
il
t 
a
n
d
 l
ik

e
ly

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
il
d
e
rs

 t
h
e
 

C
h
e
e
s
e
m

a
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
4
5
 a

n
d
 1

8
5
0
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
rm

 a
 ‘
b
u
ff
e
r’
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 L

a
rg

e
ly

 o
f 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 l
in

e
a
r,

 

w
it
h
 c

u
rv

e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

. 
 G

ra
s
s
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 n

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 
a
n
d
 a

 t
a
ll
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
 

w
it
h
 b

o
tt
le

 b
a
lu

s
tr

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 A

 s
im

il
a
r 

la
y
o
u
t 
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 

s
h
o
w

 l
it
tl
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 m

e
ri

t.
  
T

h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
 a

re
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
is

te
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l

3
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 O

th
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ir

 (
n
u
m

b
e
r 

4
) 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
a
v
il
y
 

a
lt
e
re

d
, 
b
u
t 
li
k
e
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 m

a
tc

h
e
d
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
, 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 q

u
o
in

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
ir

e
d
 

m
o
d
il
li
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

a
v
e
s
. 
 E

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 s

e
t 
in

 r
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
, 
w

it
h
 r

o
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

e
h
in

d
 

p
a
ra

p
e
t.
  
In

n
e
r 

b
a
y
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 3

 o
v
e
r 

3
 s

a
s
h
 a

b
o
v
e
 (

w
it
h
 

s
h
u
tt
e
rs

),
 b

e
lo

w
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
f.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 

th
e
 M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 C

li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
b
u
t 

is
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
it
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 g

ro
u
p
 v

a
lu

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
b
u
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
 i
s
 o

f 
le

s
s
e
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

. 
 I
ts

 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

4
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

C
o
n
e
y
 H

il
l

R
a
il
w

a
y
 

T
u
n
n
e
l 

(e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 

v
e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
 

s
ta

c
k
)

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

R
a
il
w

a
y
 

T
u
n
n
e
l

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 C
A

 /
 

N
o
 C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

C
ro

m
w

e
ll
 R

o
a
d

4
4
-4

8
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

m
ix

e
d

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

. 
 G

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fe

d
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
s
a
id

 t
o
 b

e
 b

y
 

W
il
li
a
m

 W
il
le

tt
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 4
4
, 
4
5
 a

n
d
 4

8
 h

a
v
e
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

re
c
e
s
s
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 a
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
rc

h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
, 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 
a
 

d
e
n
ti
l 
s
tr

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

, 
a
n
d
 u

n
u
s
u
a
ll
y
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

tt
ic

 

w
in

d
o
w

s
; 
s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 h
a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
 g

a
b
le

s
 w

it
h
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 s

a
s
h
e
s
. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
rs

 4
6
 a

n
d
 4

7
 a

re
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 b

u
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
ta

il
s
 a

s
 

w
e
ll
 a

s
 o

rn
a
te

 t
im

b
e
r 

p
o
rc

h
e
s
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 

a
re

 o
f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 W

il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

C
ro

w
n
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
4
, 
1
5
, 
1
9
, 

2
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t,
 a

s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

D
o
rs

e
t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s

2
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
. 
 P

ro
b
a
b
ly

 l
a
te

 1
8

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 
b
u
t 
re

-f
ro

n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
-m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

tt
ic

. 
 F

ro
n
t 
d
o
o
r 

w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 f
a
n
li
g
h
t 
s
e
t 
in

 

s
im

p
le

 c
la

s
s
ic

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
re

e
 s

to
n
e
 s

te
p
s
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 

g
ro

u
n
d
, 
fi
rs

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 i
ro

n
w

o
rk

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 s

tr
o
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 

v
a
lu

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

133



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

D
o
rs

e
t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s

D
o
rs

e
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
D

o
rs

e
t 
G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

7
9
0
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 p
ri

v
a
te

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 r

e
s
id

in
g
 t
h
e
re

. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

fo
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
It
 h

a
s
 a

 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 (

li
s
te

d
) 

a
n
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
a
ll
y
, 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
, 

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 L

it
tl
e
 o

f 
th

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 
 

In
 t
h
e
 1

9
8
0
s
 i
t 
w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 a

 ‘
p
e
a
c
e
 p

a
rk

’,
 w

it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
tr

e
e
s
 p

la
n
te

d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 

a
re

 o
f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
s
e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
. 
 I
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

, 
b
u
t 
is

 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 

o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

6
9
-8

1
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 t
u
rn

-o
f-

th
e
-c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
A

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

tw
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
a
n
d
 b

u
il
t 

in
 t
h
e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
fr

o
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 S

im
il
a
r 

s
im

p
ly

 d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

x
te

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 b

u
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
ly

 a
lt
e
re

d
. 
 C

u
rv

e
d
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 u
n
u
s
u
a
l.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
–
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

u
rv

e
d
 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 –

 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

re
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 c

it
y
 t
o
 w

a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 

T
h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d

S
t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 

P
a
rk

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 S

t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 C

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

; 
o
p
e
n
e
d
 1

8
2
4
. 
 I
t 
is

 b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 

h
e
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
th

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

 i
s
 o

n
 a

n
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 a

li
g
n
m

e
n
t,
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
 a

n
d
 i
n
 w

h
o
le

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
 

O
S

 m
a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ra
v
e
s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
a
c
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
-w

o
rk

e
d
 a

s
 a

 c
h
il
d
re

n
’s

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

o
ll
is

 2
0
1
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t,
 a

s
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
fu

lf
il
 t
h
e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 f
u
lf
il
s
 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’ 
o
n
ly

 t
o
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 e

x
te

n
t.
  
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

li
s
te

d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

, 
a
n
d
 n

o
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
ts

 (
a
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

S
t 
N

ic
h
o
la

s
 

c
h
u
rc

h
y
a
rd

s
).

  
It
 h

a
s
 s

o
m

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 

it
s
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
’s

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
p
a
ri

s
h
 c

h
u
rc

h
, 

b
u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
–
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
s
o
 a

lt
e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
 –

 t
h
a
t 
it
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
w

a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

U
p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t

3
7
 a

n
d
 1

1
5

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

T
w

o
 c

o
n
jo

in
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 1

1
5
 U

p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
3
4
 a

n
d
 1

8
4
2
 a

n
d
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

s
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

b
u
t 
n
o
t 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 s

p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
-b

u
il
t 
h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 I
t 

h
a
s
 a

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
3
 b

a
y
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 n

a
rr

o
w

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
. 
 I
t 
is

 s
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
 (

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 w

it
h
 

ra
il
in

g
s
).

  
T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
li
s
h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 (
2
0
0
8
) 

th
a
t 
in

te
rn

a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 f
o
rm

 

la
rg

e
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
e
. 
 3

7
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 i
s
 o

f 
4
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 a

ll
 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 I
t 

w
a
s
 b

u
il
t 
in

 1
8
8
1
-1

8
8
5
 o

n
 a

 w
e
d
g
e
-s

h
a
p
e
d
 p

lo
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
1
5
 U

p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t.
  
It
 r

is
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
1
5
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 a
n
 I
ta

li
a
n
a
te

 t
o
w

e
r 

w
it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
e
d
g
e
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
E

n
g
li
s
h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 L

is
ti
n
g
 D

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
8
 (

n
o
t 
li
s
te

d
).

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 C

li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 a

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 o

f 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 a

 p
e
ri

o
d
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 m

u
c
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 3

7
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 m

a
k
e
s
 

g
o
o
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
o
g
ra

p
h
y
, 
s
iz

e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
p
e
 o

f 
it
s
 

p
lo

t,
 t
h
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
1
5
 U

p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 

w
h
ic

h
 d

e
tr

a
c
ts

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
ir

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

E
a
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t

1
8
-1

9
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
4
 s

to
re

y
, 
re

n
d
e
re

d
, 
b
o
w

 f
ro

n
te

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 G

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
e
x
te

n
d
s
 f
ro

m
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
6
 t
o
 1

9
. 
 A

b
o
v
e
, 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 1
6
 a

n
d
 1

7
 h

a
v
e
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
, 
w

h
il
s
t 
1
8
 a

n
d
 1

9
 h

a
v
e
 b

o
w

 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 R

o
o
f 
s
e
t 
b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 O

ld
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

A
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

134



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

E
a
s
te

rn
 T

e
rr

a
c
e

E
a
s
te

rn
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
E

a
s
te

rn
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
in

 c
.1

8
2
7
-8

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
rm

 a
 b

u
ff
e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
, 
w

it
h
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 s

e
t 
to

 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 e

a
s
t.
  
It
 f
o
rm

s
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 s

tr
ip

 o
f 

g
ra

s
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 b

o
tt
le

 b
a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
c
u
rv

e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 

lo
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 t
h
ic

k
 h

e
d
g
e
s
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 

s
h
o
w

 l
it
tl
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 m

e
ri

t.
  
T

h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
 a

re
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
is

te
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 

s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

E
a
s
te

rn
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 

M
e
w

s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
 

M
e
w

s
 s

tr
e
e
t,
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 8
1
 S

t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 R
o
a
d
 (

li
s
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I)

. 
 T

w
o
 a

n
d
 

th
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

ll
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
d
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 t
h
re

e
 

s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

re
 m

o
d
e
rn

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 e

x
e
c
u
te

d
 i
n
 a

 m
e
w

s
 s

ty
le

. 
 T

h
e
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

s
id

e
s
 a

re
 o

f 
b
ri

c
k
 o

r 
re

n
d
e
r,

 s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 c

u
tt
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

a
v
e
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

 d
e
n
ti
l 
s
tr

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

a
v
e
s
 d

e
ta

il
s
. 
 

G
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 a
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 s

id
e
. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 

s
la

te
 r

o
o
fs

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

e
w

s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 

in
fi
ll
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

a
n
d
 l
is

ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

E
a
s
th

il
l 
P

a
rk

E
a
s
th

il
l 

H
o
u
s
e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

c
e
n
tr

e

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
il
la

g
e
 C

A

T
h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 l
a
n
d
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

tw
o
 f
ie

ld
s
, 
a
ll
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

y
 B

la
k
e
r,

 s
u
rg

e
o
n
 t
o
 Q

u
e
e
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

t 
th

is
 

ti
m

e
 w

a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 B

la
k
e
r.

  
In

 1
8
4
8
, 
E

d
w

a
rd

 B
la

k
e
r 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 

re
fr

o
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
n
a
m

in
g
 i
t 
E

a
s
th

il
l 
H

o
u
s
e
. 
 H

e
 j
o
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 f
ie

ld
s
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
’s

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 l
a
te

r 
o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 J

o
h
n
 D

u
d
n
e
y
 (

1
8
9
0
s
),

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 f
o
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

S
o
u
th

d
o
w

n
 B

re
w

e
ry

 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

ld
 V

il
la

g
e
, 
S

.H
. 
H

a
rr

is
 (

1
9
1
0
s
) 

a
n
d
 E

rn
e
s
t 
W

e
b
b
 (

1
9
3
0
s
).

  

A
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
S

a
m

u
e
l 
D

e
n
m

a
n
 w

e
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
9
1
3
. 
 D

u
ri

n
g
 

th
e
 w

a
r 

th
e
 p

o
li
c
e
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
 1

9
4
7
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 w

e
re

 s
o
ld

 

to
 P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il
 f
o
r 

a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 a

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 

a
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.
  
M

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 f
a
c
e
s
 w

e
s
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
5
 b

a
y
s
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 

b
a
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 i
ts

 r
e
v
e
a
l)

. 
 M

u
ll
io

n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

m
a
tc

h
 a

n
d
 a

re
 

re
g
u
la

rl
y
-p

la
c
e
d
. 
 T

h
o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
re

 l
a
rg

e
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
ll
y
 p

la
c
e
d
; 
th

is
 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t.
  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 
P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 V

il
la

g
e
 

C
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
2
0
1
0

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

‘C
h
u
rc

h
 a

n
d
 V

il
la

s
’ 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

E
a
s
th

il
l 
W

a
y

E
a
s
th

il
l 
P

a
rk

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n
s
, 
n
o
w

 

p
u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

P
o
rt

s
la

d
e
 O

ld
 

V
il
la

g
e
 C

A

T
h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 l
a
n
d
 o

f 
E

a
s
th

il
l 
P

a
rk

 d
iv

id
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
w

o
 f
ie

ld
s
, 
b
o
th

 

o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 H

a
rr

y
 B

la
k
e
r.

  
T

h
a
t 
to

 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
w

a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 E

d
w

a
rd

 B
la

k
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
ts

 a
s
 ‘
G

o
o
d
s
p
e
e
d
s
’ 
in

 u
s
e
 a

s
 a

ra
b
le

 l
a
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 f
ie

ld
 t
o
 

th
e
 w

e
s
t 
is

 d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 a

s
 ‘
C

h
u
rc

h
 P

ie
c
e
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
e
’.
  
It
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 B

la
k
e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ie

ld
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
a
s
tu

re
. 
 I
n
 

1
8
4
8
, 
E

d
w

a
rd

 B
la

k
e
r 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
fr

o
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
n
a
m

in
g
 i
t 
E

a
s
th

il
l 
H

o
u
s
e
. 
 H

e
 

jo
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 f
ie

ld
s
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
’s

 g
ro

u
n
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
te

r 
h
o
m

e
 t
o
 H

a
rr

y
 

B
la

k
e
r,

 s
u
rg

e
o
n
 t
o
 Q

u
e
e
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
re

w
e
r 

J
o
h
n
 D

u
d
n
e
y
. 
 T

h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 i
s
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
7
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
e
ld

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 

le
g
ib

le
, 
ru

n
n
in

g
 n

o
rt

h
-s

o
u
th

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
la

n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 p

e
ri

p
h
e
ry

 a
n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 T

h
e
 d

ri
v
e
w

a
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
w

e
s
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 A

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 o

rc
h
a
rd

 i
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 p
u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

 i
n
 1

9
4
8
. 
 M

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 
(a

n
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
) 

re
m

a
in

s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
a
rk

 n
o
w

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
ie

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 a

 p
la

y
in

g
 f
ie

ld
, 

p
u
b
li
c
 t
o
il
e
ts

 a
n
d
 w

a
r 

m
e
m

o
ri

a
l.
  
T

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 o

rc
h
a
rd

 –
 w

it
h
in

 a
 w

a
ll
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 –

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 p

e
a
c
e
fu

l 
g
a
rd

e
n
. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/p

o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.
c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
4
/0

3
/p

o
rt

s
la

d
e
-e

a
s
th

il
l-

h
o
u
s
e
.h

tm
l,
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.b
ri

g
h
to

n
-h

o
v
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

it
e
s
/b

ri
g
h
to

n
-

h
o
v
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/f
il
e
s
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
/P

o
rt

s
la

d
e
_
C

A
A

-

_
fi
n
a
l_

S
e
p
t_

2
0
1
0
_
s
m

a
ll
e
r_

1
4
-5

6
.p

d
f 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 p

a
rk

 r
e
ta

in
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 

it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 t
o
 E

a
s
th

il
l 
H

o
u
s
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
lw

a
y
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
im

p
le

. 
 

It
s
 u

s
e
 s

in
c
e
 1

8
4
8
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

 h
a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
 n

o
w

 

h
a
s
 a

 m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l,
 ‘
u
rb

a
n
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l’ 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  
T

h
e
 

p
a
rk

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
, 
b
u
t 
is

 i
n
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 ‘
C

h
u
rc

h
 a

n
d
 V

il
la

s
’ 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
a
re

a
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 a

 g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 t
o
 a

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

135



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

E
a
to

n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

7
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

c
.1

8
8
0
s
, 
3
 s

to
re

y
 y

e
ll
o
w

/c
re

a
m

 b
ri

c
k
 W

il
le

tt
-s

ty
le

 m
a
n
s
io

n
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
, 
w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 
 S

m
a
ll
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
tu

rr
e
t 

fe
a
tu

re
. 
 I
n
c
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
u
ld

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
w

o
rk

. 
 H

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

, 
w

it
h
 l
a
te

r 
d
o
rm

e
rs

 t
o
 

fr
o
n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 S

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 3

, 
8
 a

n
d
 1

5
 E

a
to

n
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
W

il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 s

im
il
a
ri

ti
e
s
 t
o
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 

is
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

E
a
to

n
 R

o
a
d

1
4

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

T
h
re

e
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
1
8
8
0
s
. 
 Y

e
ll
o
w

/c
re

a
m

 g
a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

h
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 O

c
c
u
p
ie

s
 a

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
c
o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 d

o
o
rs

 o
n
 N

o
rt

o
n
 R

o
a
d
 

a
n
d
 E

a
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 
b
o
th

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 f
li
g
h
t 
o
f 
s
te

p
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 

h
e
a
d
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 1

 o
v
e
r 

1
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 

H
ig

h
ly

 d
e
c
o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
c
is

e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
u
ld

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
s
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 (

li
s
te

d
) 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
8
8
0
s
 b

y
 W

il
li
a
m

 W
il
le

tt
. 
 

T
h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 d

is
p
la

y
s
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

t 
a
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
a
te

. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
 W

il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
, 

d
e
s
p
it
e
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 I
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

E
d
w

a
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t

A
M

E
X

 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

O
ff
ic

e
N

o
 C

A
B

u
il
t 
in

 1
9
7
7
 t
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
G

o
ll
in

s
, 
M

e
lv

in
, 
W

a
rd

 &
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

fo
u
n
d
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ir

m
 h

a
d
 r

e
ti
re

d
 i
n
 1

9
7
4
. 
 A

m
o
n
g
s
t 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
th

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

 h
a
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

a
m

p
u
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I*

 l
is

te
d
 

A
rt

s
 T

o
w

e
r)

. 
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
 A

m
e
x
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 ‘
it
s
 h

u
g
e
 b

u
lk

 

s
o
ft
e
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
m

fe
re

d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

m
p
h
a
ti
c
 h

o
ri

z
o
n
ta

li
ty

 o
f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
te

 

b
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
w

h
it
e
 G

R
P

 a
n
d
 b

lu
e
-t

in
te

d
 g

la
s
s
’.
  
It
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 k

n
o
w

n
 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 a

s
 ‘
th

e
 w

e
d
d
in

g
 

c
a
k
e
’.
 B

u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
M

ig
h
e
ll
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 i
t 
is

 s
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 E

d
w

a
rd

 S
tr

e
e
t 
b
e
h
in

d
 a

 h
a
rd

 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
d
 p

ia
z
z
a
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
g
g
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
 t
h
e
 

u
s
e
 o

f 
G

R
P

 p
a
n
e
ls

 f
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
la

d
d
in

g
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 
A

 G
u
id

e
 t
o
 

th
e
 B

u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 N

D

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

o
f 
s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 i
t 
re

la
te

s
 p

o
o
rl

y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

e
e
t 
s
c
e
n
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 u

n
d
u
ly

 a
g
g
re

s
s
iv

e
 i
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

v
ie

w
s
. 
 I
ts

 b
u
lk

 –
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 b

y
 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
 –

 d
e
tr

a
c
ts

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 e

ro
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
. 
T

h
e
 s

e
v
e
re

 s
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 

o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
, 
w

in
d
s
w

e
p
t 

p
ia

z
z
a
 a

re
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 u

n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

F
a
rm

 R
o
a
d

F
a
rm

 M
e
w

s
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

M
e
w

s
, 
b
u
il
t 
c
.1

8
5
4
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 1
1
 F

a
rm

 R
o
a
d
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

ll
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

; 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
o
u
rt

y
a
rd

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 s

o
u
th

, 
n
o
w

 

g
a
ra

g
e
s
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 w

e
a
th

e
rb

o
a
rd

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 G

a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r.

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

y
 s

ta
ir

 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 a
t 
th

is
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
w

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 

a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
 p

a
rt

ly
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 ‘
b
a
c
k
la

n
d
’ 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

F
a
rm

 R
o
a
d

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 

M
e
w

s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

M
e
w

s
, 
b
u
il
t 
1
8
5
0
-4

, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 4
 F

a
rm

 R
o
a
d
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

ll
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
c
e
n
tr

a
l 
h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
d
 a

re
a
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
h
ip

p
e
d
 

ro
o
fs

. 
 G

a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 b

y
 s

ta
ir

 a
n
d
 g

a
n
g
w

a
y
 t
o
 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 a
t 
th

is
 l
e
v
e
l.
  

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

m
e
w

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 

a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
s
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

a
re

a
 p

a
rt

ly
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 ‘
b
a
c
k
la

n
d
’ 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

F
o
u
n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t

1
-2

4
 a

n
d
 3

3
-

3
7
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l,
 p

u
b

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
S

tr
e
e
t 
o
f 
p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
in

d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

a
 p

u
b
. 
 M

a
in

ly
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 b

ri
c
k
. 
H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 I
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 r

e
ta

in
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
u
s
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 h

o
is

ts
/p

u
ll
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 

d
o
o
rs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 S

tu
d
y
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
h
m

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/
s
tr

e
e
t-

h
is

to
ry

-

fo
u
n
d
ry

-s
tr

e
e
t 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
F

o
u
n
d
ry

 S
tr

e
e
t 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
th

e
 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 m

ix
 o

f 
u
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
is

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 

in
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
a
-

b
a
s
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

136



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

F
u
rz

e
 H

il
l

W
ic

k
 H

a
ll

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
S

e
v
e
n
 s

to
re

y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

, 
b
u
il
t 
1
9
3
6
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 B
e
ll
 M

o
d
e
rn

 F
la

ts
, 
w

h
o
 

a
ls

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 F

u
rz

e
 C

ro
ft
. 
 S

e
v
e
n
th

 f
lo

o
r 

s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
il
e
-h

u
n
g
 m

a
n
s
a
rd

 s
ty

le
 r

o
o
f.
  

B
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 c

ri
tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
, 
s
e
t 
in

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 m

a
tu

re
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 
 B

u
il
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

s
it
e
 o

f 
a
 f
o
rm

e
r 

e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 m

a
n
s
io

n
, 
a
ls

o
 c

a
ll
e
d
 W

ic
k
 H

a
ll
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

s
 u

p
m

a
rk

e
t 
re

n
ta

l 
a
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 a

 r
o
o
f 
g
a
rd

e
n
, 
p
it
c
h
 a

n
d
 p

u
tt
, 
h
o
t 

w
a
te

r 
a
n
d
 h

e
a
ti
n
g
, 
p
o
rt

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t.
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
m

p
c
a
o
n
li
n
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
2
5
4
.a

s
p
x
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 O

f 
s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
rt

 d
e
c
o
 d

e
s
ig

n
, 
it
 i
s
 o

f 
le

s
s
e
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

q
u
a
li
ty

 t
h
a
n
 i
ts

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
r 

F
u
rz

e
 C

ro
ft
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

is
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

G
e
o
rg

e
 S

tr
e
e
t

9
-1

0
, 
1
7
-3

5
 

(c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 

s
o
m

e
 n

o
w

 

s
h
o
p
s

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
m

o
s
tl
y
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

s
. 
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 o

r 
p
a
in

te
d
 

b
ri

c
k
, 
b
u
t 
o
n
e
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 p

a
in

te
d
 f
li
n
t 
c
o
b
b
le

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
. 
 S

o
m

e
 w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 

P
it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 o

r 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 V

a
ri

o
u
s
ly

 a
lt
e
re

d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
li
tt
le

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 

C
li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
ly

 

a
lt
e
re

d
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

G
lo

u
c
e
s
te

r 
P

la
c
e

2
0
-2

2
L
o
m

b
a
rd

 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
, 
n
o
w

 

o
ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

re
ta

il

N
o
 C

A
F

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
w

it
h
 r

e
ta

il
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 b
u
il
t 
to

 r
e
p
la

c
e
 a

 b
o
m

b
-d

a
m

a
g
e
d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
in

 1
9
5
7
 f
o
r 

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
S

u
s
s
e
x
 R

e
g
im

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

it
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
im

e
n
t 
in

 1
9
4
4
 o

n
 t
h
e
 o

c
c
a
s
io

n
 o

f 
it
 b

e
in

g
 g

ra
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 h

o
n
o
ra

ry
 r

ig
h
t 
o
f 
e
n
tr

y
 

to
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 f
la

ts
 f
o
r 

‘a
ll
 r

a
n
k
s
 p

a
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
t’
. 
 T

h
e
 

h
is

to
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
e
m

o
ra

te
d
 b

y
 a

 p
la

q
u
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 
 I
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

la
y
to

n
 a

n
d
 B

la
c
k
 w

it
h
 S

u
p
p
e
l.
  
U

ti
li
ta

ri
a
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 i
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
; 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

m
o
s
tl
y
 g

la
z
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
s
 t
o
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ll
 r

is
e
r.

  
F

ir
s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

fo
rm

s
 a

 

b
a
n
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 h

o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 
 F

o
u
r 

la
rg

e
 s

q
u
a
re

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 e

ig
h
t 

s
m

a
ll
e
r 

s
q
u
a
re

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

t 
th

ir
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
A

ll
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
. 
 B

ri
c
k
-b

u
il
t 
w

it
h
 a

 f
la

t 
ro

o
f.
  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

b
y
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
n
o
ta

b
le

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
t,
 i
t 
is

 o
f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 m

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 o
th

e
r 

w
o
rk

s
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
in

 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 p

o
s
t-

w
a
r 

re
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
s
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

 v
a
ri

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

rf
u
l 
s
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

G
o
ld

e
n
 S

q
u
a
re

W
a
s
h
 H

o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

O
u
th

o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

S
m

a
ll
, 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 o

u
th

o
u
s
e
. 
F

li
n
t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
, 
w

it
h
 m

o
n
o
-

p
it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
 B

ri
c
k
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
rm

e
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 w
a
s
h
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
F

ro
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 s
in

g
le

 d
o
o
r 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
T

h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
re

 l
a
te

r;
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

a
n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

d
o
o
rw

a
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fl
in

tw
o
rk

 b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 i
s
 o

f 
a
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
x
e
d
 p

a
n
e
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
T

h
e
 

o
u
th

o
u
s
e
 o

n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
u
r 

la
b
o
u
re

r’
s
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
s
; 
th

e
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

1
9
3
0
s
. 
 T

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
n
o
w

 i
s
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 f
o
rm

s
 a

 c
u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t 
a
n
d
 P

a
rk

 R
o
a
d
 w

it
h
 m

a
in

ly
 h

a
rd

 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.r
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
v
il
la

g
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/a

ro
u
n
d
-a

b
o
u
t/
h
is

to
ry

-e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t/
ro

tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
-

ti
m

e
-d

o
u
g
la

s
-d

e
n
n
o
/r

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
-t

im
e
-c

h
a
p
te

r-
4
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
is

 a
ls

o
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
It
s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 i
ts

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 i
n
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 v

il
la

g
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

G
ra

n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e

2
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 d
iv

id
e
d
 i
n
to

 f
la

ts
, 
li
k
e
ly

 c
.1

8
8
0
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
E

.J
. 
O

c
k
e
n
d
e
n
. 
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 

w
it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 a
tt
ic

 s
to

re
y
 w

h
ic

h
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
b
s
c
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ro

o
f 
fo

rm
. 
 Y

e
ll
o
w

 

s
to

c
k
 b

ri
c
k
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
u
ld

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
s
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
rc

h
, 
fu

ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

to
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 f
u
ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
b
o
w

 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 M

o
u
ld

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 1

 o
v
e
r 

1
 h

u
n
g
 

s
a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 t
h
e
 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

6
 G

ra
n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 a

t 
a
tt
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
re

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

b
tr

u
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 I
t 
is

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 (

a
n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r)

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

137



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

G
ra

n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e

7
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 d
iv

id
e
d
 i
n
to

 f
la

ts
, 
li
k
e
ly

 c
.1

8
8
0
 b

y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
E

.J
. 
O

c
k
e
n
d
e
n
. 
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 

w
it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 a
tt
ic

 s
to

re
y
 w

h
ic

h
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 o
b
s
c
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ro

o
f 
fo

rm
. 
 Y

e
ll
o
w

 

s
to

c
k
 b

ri
c
k
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
u
ld

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
s
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
rc

h
, 
fu

ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

to
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d
 f
u
ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
b
o
w

 t
o
 s

o
u
th

. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 6

 G
ra

n
d
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 (

to
 s

o
u
th

) 
is

 t
h
u
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

7
. 
 M

o
u
ld

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 1

 

o
v
e
r 

1
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

6
 G

ra
n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
s
 a

t 
a
tt
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
re

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

b
tr

u
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 d

e
tr

a
c
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 I
t 
is

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 (

a
n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r)

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

G
ra

n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e

G
ra

n
d
 

A
v
e
n
u
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

G
ra

n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 W

e
s
t 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 e

s
ta

te
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
. 
B

u
il
d
in

g
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 G

ra
n
d
 A

v
e
n
u
e
 i
ts

e
lf
 

w
a
s
 s

p
o
ra

d
ic

; 
th

e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
m

a
in

ly
 o

n
ly

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

e
a
s
t 
s
id

e
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 t
h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 w

it
h
 b

ro
a
d
 g

ra
s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 

to
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
 s

e
p
a
ra

ti
n
g
 s

id
e
 r

o
a
d
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
o
a
d
. 
 T

h
a
t 
to

 t
h
e
 w

e
s
t 
w

a
s
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
 t
a
n
d
e
m

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
a
d
. 
 

O
n
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 e

x
te

n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
1
0
-1

2
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

m
a
p
, 
w

h
il
s
t 
th

e
 w

h
o
le

 a
re

a
 i
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

m
a
p
. 
 I
t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
s
 w

e
re

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

a
il
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t
w

o
 c

u
rv

e
d
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
, 
w

it
h
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
re

a
 o

f 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

id
e
. 
 T

h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 e

a
s
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
, 
w

it
h
 

d
ia

g
o
n
a
l 
fl
o
w

e
rb

e
d
s
 s

e
t 
a
t 
re

g
u
la

r 
in

te
rv

a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
a
re

a
 o

f 
tr

e
e
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 r

e
ta

in
s
 l
it
tl
e
 o

f 

it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
, 
it
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 

m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

G
ra

n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

R
o
a
d

A
d
e
lp

h
i 

H
o
te

l 
(w

e
s
t 

w
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

R
o
y
a
l 
A

lb
io

n
 

H
o
te

l)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
te

l
V

a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
(u

n
d
e
r 

G
ra

n
d
 J

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
, 
W

e
s
te

rn
 w

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 R

o
y
a
l 
A

lb
io

n
 H

o
te

l)
. 
 T

h
is

 

g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

th
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t

H
a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

C
re

s
c
e
n
t-

s
h
a
p
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 f
ro

n
ti
n
g
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 
(l

is
te

d
),

 w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
in

 c
.1

8
2
2
 

b
y
 A

.H
.W

il
d
s
 f
o
r 

H
e
n
ry

 B
ro

o
k
e
r.

  
F

li
n
t 
c
o
b
b
le

 w
a
ll
 (

a
ls

o
 l
is

te
d
) 

fr
o
n
ti
n
g
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
; 

n
o
 h

is
to

ri
c
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
s
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

O
S

) 
s
h
o
w

s
 

li
tt
le

 d
e
ta

il
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
; 
it
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 s
o
li
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
, 
p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
tr

e
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 
 I
t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 h

a
d
 a

 m
o
re

 ‘
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
’ 
la

y
o
u
t 
a
t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 
 A

 d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 
w

it
h
 t
w

o
 p

a
th

s
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 p

a
ra

ll
e
l 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
, 
te

rm
in

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 

c
u
rv

e
d
 p

a
th

s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

n
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 l
a
id

 

to
 l
a
w

n
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h
 t
re

e
s
. 
 E

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

is
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
ra

ll
e
l 
p
a
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

u
rv

e
d
 p

a
th

s
 a

re
 

in
d
is

ti
n
c
t.
  
A

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 d

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 m

a
tu

re
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
ll
y
 

w
a
s
 o

f 
re

la
ti
v
e
ly

 s
im

p
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
, 
a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
p
a
c
e
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 
T

re
e
 P

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
 

th
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

2
1
-3

1
 o

d
d

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

S
h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 a
ll
 b

u
t 
o
n
e
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

s
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
s
 e

x
c
e
p
t 
fo

r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
1
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

 f
li
n
t 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 

d
re

s
s
in

g
s
. 
 1

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  
H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
. 
 C

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
 t
o
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
ll
s
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

n
t 
d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 o

n
 t
o
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 

v
e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

re
 s

e
t 
a
t 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 c

o
a
s
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 

o
f 
th

a
t 
a
re

a
 i
n
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 v

il
la

g
e
. 
 T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

u
n
if
o
rm

. 
 

T
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

138



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

6
1

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

O
u
th

o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

In
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
4
0
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
 a

s
 a

 n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
it
 i
s
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 ‘
th

e
 o

ld
 

b
a
k
e
ry

’.
  
It
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 v

il
la

g
e
 b

a
k
e
ry

 a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
o
v
e
n
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 o

n
e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
. 
 I
t 
is

 a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 

p
a
s
s
a
g
e
w

a
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 
th

e
 B

la
c
k
 H

o
rs

e
 (

li
s
te

d
).

  
It
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 f
o
rm

e
d
 o

f 
tw

o
 

h
a
lv

e
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 m
o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f
a
c
in

g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t 
b
u
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
ir

 g
a
b
le

 w
a
ll
s
 o

ff
-s

e
t 
fr

o
m

 o
n
e
 a

n
o
th

e
r.

  
F

li
n
t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 v

is
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

a
s
s
a
g
e
w

a
y
 h

a
s
 a

 d
o
o
r 

w
it
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 (
s
e
t 
b
e
n
e
a
th

 a
 

s
in

g
le

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
li
n
te

l)
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
o
o
r 

a
b
o
v
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 n

a
m

e
 s

u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

th
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 b
a
k
e
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

n
o
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
a
s
il
y
 v

is
ib

le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 o
f 
li
m

it
e
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 a

ls
o
 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 a
lt
e
re

d
. 
 I
ts

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

b
a
b
le

 f
o
rm

e
r 

u
s
e
 a

re
 i
n
 k

e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 i
s
 

m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

7
8
-8

0
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
a
n
d
 c

a
ts

li
d
e
 t
o
 r

e
a
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
0
 i
s
 

d
a
te

d
 1

7
1
2
 b

u
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
fr

o
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
 A

n
 i
n
g
le

n
o
o
k
 

fi
re

p
la

c
e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

8
0
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

7
8
 i
s
 t
w

o
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

id
th

, 
w

it
h
 t
w

o
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 a

 4
 p

a
n
e
ll
e
d
 d

o
o
r 

(t
o
p
 t
w

o
 p

a
n
e
ls

 g
la

z
e
d
).

  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
0
 i
s
 o

n
e
 

b
a
y
 w

id
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

 m
a
tc

h
in

g
 d

o
o
r.

  
T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 a

 

s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
a
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
p
 h

u
n
g
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
a
b
o
v
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 v

il
la

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 

T
h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

rt
ic

le
 4

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

8
8
-9

6
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

s
h
o
p
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 a

n
d
 t
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 w
it
h
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 a
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

F
ie

ld
 f
li
n
t 
w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 T

il
e
 h

a
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 o

f 
d
o
rm

e
rs

. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 

ti
le

d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 P

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 a

ll
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
; 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

f 

u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 m

o
d
e
rn

 d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
b
ri

c
k
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
. 
 A

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 

s
h
o
w

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
2
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
2
_
1
2
0
.h

tm
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
n
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 w

h
ic

h
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
b
u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

v
e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 
b
u
il
d
-u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
in

 R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
u
n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
0
2
-1

0
4

P
e
lh

a
m

 

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
-t

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

c
c
u
p
y
in

g
 c

o
rn

e
r 

p
lo

t 
o
n
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 S

te
y
n
in

g
 

R
o
a
d
. 
 P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
 s

te
p
p
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 
it
s
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

. 
 A

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 f
ir

s
t 
e
v
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 T

w
o
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
u
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
in

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
. 
 T

h
a
t 
to

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
it
s
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
; 
a
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
te

r 
in

fi
ll
e
d
 

w
it
h
 d

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

id
e
li
g
h
ts

. 
 W

in
d
o
w

 w
it
h
 J

u
li
e
t 
b
a
lc

o
n
y
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 T

h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
rn

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 

h
a
s
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

R
a
is

e
d
 s

to
re

y
 b

a
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 S

te
y
n
in

g
 R

o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 o

f 
th

re
e
 n

a
rr

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
a
 

c
h
a
p
e
l,
 b

u
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 h

is
to

ri
c
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 
th

is
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

to
 i
t.
  
T

h
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
is

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 

it
s
 v

a
ri

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
s
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 u

n
it
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

c
a
le

 a
n
d
 h

e
ig

h
t)

. 
 T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
0
6
-1

1
4

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
5
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
. 
 B

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
w

it
h
 

g
a
b
le

s
 f
ro

n
ti
n
g
 o

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
h
ip

p
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
b
e
h
in

d
. 
 S

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 

w
it
h
 p

o
rc

h
e
s
 w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

o
o
d
w

o
rk

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

a
y
s
 

a
n
d
 p

o
rc

h
e
s
 f
o
rm

 a
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll
 w

id
th

 o
f 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 
 S

e
t 
s
li
g
h
tl
y
 b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 

b
e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 p

ie
rs

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

A
re

a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 a

n
d
 r

e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
. 
 

It
 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 v

a
ri

e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 p
ie

c
e
m

e
a
l 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

139



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
2
4

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 W

h
ip

p
in

g
 P

o
s
t 
L
a
n
e
. 
 

T
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 
th

e
 l
is

te
d
 w

a
ll
s
 t
o
 T

h
e
 D

e
n
e
 a

b
u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
. 
 A

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 

is
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
4
0
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 s

ty
le

. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
F

li
n
t 
w

a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
; 

re
n
d
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 s

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l,
 w

it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

d
o
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 f
la

n
k
e
d
 b

y
 o

n
e
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 
 T

h
re

e
 

s
q
u
a
re

 o
ri

e
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 s
m

a
ll
 g

a
b
le

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 

g
re

a
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 I
t 
is

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 

w
a
rr

a
n
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

J
u
b
il
e
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

J
u
b
il
e
e
 

L
ib

ra
ry

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

L
ib

ra
ry

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
In

e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

. 
 I
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

ti
m

e
 h

a
s
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
ly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
 i
ts

 

in
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 i
n
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

K
in

g
s
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e

S
o
u
th

 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 

C
o
u
rt

e
n
a
y
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

C
li
ft
o
n
v
il
le

 C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

a
lo

n
g
 C

o
u
rt

e
n
a
y
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 a

re
 a

ll
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  

T
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 w

a
ll
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

a
ls

o
 e

it
h
e
r 

li
s
te

d
 o

r 
c
u
rt

il
a
g
e
 l
is

te
d
 (

d
e
p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 

th
e
ir

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

o
s
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
).

  
T

h
is

 

g
iv

e
s
 t
h
e
 w

a
ll
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

K
in

g
's

 R
o
a
d

R
o
tu

n
d
a
 

(K
io

s
k
 f
a
c
in

g
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

W
e
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
e
a
fr

o
n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
 (

li
s
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
K

io
s
k
 f
a
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
W

e
s
t 

S
tr

e
e
t’
).

  
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 l
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

1
7
3
-1

8
7

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

S
a
c
k
v
il
le

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
4
-5

 s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 p

lu
s
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 l
ig

h
tw

e
ll
s
 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 b
o
tt
le

-n
e
c
k
 b

a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
d
 w

a
ll
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 r

o
o
f 
fo

rm
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
 a

n
d
 p

o
rc

h
 w

it
h
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
B

a
lc

o
n
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
n
o
p
ie

s
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  

D
o
rm

e
rs

 w
it
h
 p

e
d
im

e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

e
re

d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
. 
 P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
ri

d
g
e
 

c
h
im

n
e
y
s
ta

c
k
s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

s
ta

tu
s
 t
h
a
n
 

m
o
s
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
s
 w

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
, 

a
n
d
 t
o
o
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
re

te
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  

T
h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

a
c
k
v
il
le

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

1
8
9

S
a
c
k
v
il
le

 

H
o
te

l

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
te

l
S

a
c
k
v
il
le

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
is

t

D
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

C
a
ff
y
n
s
 

G
a
ra

g
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

G
a
ra

g
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
u
ld

 

th
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t

D
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

K
in

g
s
w

a
y

V
ic

e
ro

y
 

L
o
d
g
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
P

e
m

b
ro

k
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

A

M
o
s
tl
y
 6

 s
to

re
y
 b

lo
c
k
 o

f 
fl
a
ts

 a
t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
K

in
g
s
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 r

is
in

g
 t
o
 7

 a
t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 m
o
d
e
rn

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
. 
 B

u
il
t 
c
.1

9
3
6
 b

y
 E

d
w

in
n
 &

 

C
o
 L

td
, 
it
 h

a
s
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 g

la
z
e
d
 b

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

is
 c

a
n
te

d
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
la

ts
. 
 W

h
it
e
 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 b

a
n
d
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 g

iv
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

 v
e
ry

 h
o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

. 
 3

 

m
o
d
e
rn

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
2
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
2
_
1
8
1
.h

tm
l 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
it
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 
s
o
m

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 u

P
V

C
, 
a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
e
 s

k
y
li
n
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 o
v
e
ra

ll
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

lo
c
k
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
lo

c
k
s
 o

f 
th

is
 s

ty
le

 a
n
d
 p

e
ri

o
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t,
 t
h
is

 i
s
 l
im

it
e
d
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

140



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

K
in

g
s
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 

F
o
u
rt

h
 A

v
e
n
u
e

1
5
-1

6
 a

n
d
 

H
a
m

il
to

n
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s
 1

-

1
4

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

T
h
e
 A

v
e
n
u
e
s
 

C
A

F
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

tt
ic

. 
 G

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.
  
C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 

to
 f
ro

n
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
a
w

a
rd

-f
a
c
in

g
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 B

o
tt
le

 b
a
lu

s
tr

a
d
e
 t
o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 

p
a
ra

p
e
t 
o
f 
n
o
s
. 
1
5
-1

6
 K

in
g
’s

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 M

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 s

te
p
s
 w

it
h
 w

h
it
e
 

a
n
d
 b

la
c
k
 t
il
e
s
. 
 L

a
rg

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
4
 p

a
n
e
ll
e
d
 p

a
rt

-g
la

z
e
d
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 s

id
e
 l
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 

fa
n
li
g
h
t 
w

it
h
in

 a
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

o
rt

ic
o
 w

it
h
 D

o
ri

c
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 
 C

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 a

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
T

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 e

n
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 P

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
p
a
rt

y
 w

a
ll
 

c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
. 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

s
im

il
a
r 

to
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
te

rr
a
c
e
s
, 

th
e
y
 o

c
c
u
p
y
 a

 l
e
s
s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

L
a
n
s
d
o
w

n
e
 R

o
a
d

6
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 

H
o
v
e
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 

S
y
n
a
g
o
g
u
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

J
e
w

is
h

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

1
9
3
7
-8

 b
y
 E

d
w

a
rd

 L
e
w

is
, 
w

h
o
 r

e
m

o
d
e
ll
e
d
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 f
o
rm

e
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 

g
y
m

n
a
s
iu

m
 (

th
e
 R

o
y
a
l 
G

y
m

n
a
s
iu

m
).

  
A

n
tr

a
m

 a
n
d
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
 i
t 
a
s
 a

 ‘
ty

p
ic

a
l 

p
ie

c
e
’ 
o
f 
1
9
3
0
s
 I
n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ty
le

. 
 W

h
it
e
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

w
it
h
 a

s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
ll
y
 p

la
c
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 b
a
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 p

a
rt

-r
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 1

9
4
9
, 
re

q
u
ir

in
g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
g
re

g
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ri
ly

 m
o
v
e
 t
o
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 o

n
 T

h
ir

d
 A

v
e
n
u
e
. 
 A

 c
a
n
o
p
y
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 

d
o
o
rs

 w
e
re

 a
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
7
6
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

m
o
d
e
s
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t;
 i
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 

a
n
d
 d

o
o
rs

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 t
o
 

M
o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 P

la
c
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 e

s
ta

te
 o

f 
M

o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 d

a
te

s
 a

s
 f
a
r 

b
a
c
k
 a

s
 t
h
e
 S

a
x
o
n
 

p
e
ri

o
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

o
m

e
s
d
a
y
 B

o
o
k
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t
h
e
 A

rc
h
b
is

h
o
p
 o

f 

C
a
n
te

rb
u
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 d

e
p
ic

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

7
7
8
-8

3
 Y

e
a
k
e
ll
 a

n
d
 G

a
rd

in
e
r 

m
a
p
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 f
a
rm

in
g
 h

a
m

le
t 
o
f 
M

o
u
ls

e
c
o
m

b
 F

a
rm

. 
 T

h
is

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 t
w

o
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
n
o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
it
h
e
 b

a
rn

. 
 I
n
 1

7
8
8
, 
B

e
n
ja

m
in

 T
il
ls

to
n
e
 

(a
 b

ra
n
d
y
 m

e
rc

h
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 b

a
n
k
e
r)

 b
o
u
g
h
t 
th

e
 f
a
rm

 f
ro

m
 P

e
te

r 
W

e
b
b
. 
 H

e
 p

ro
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

 t
h
e
 f
a
rm

 t
o
 a

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
 r

e
tr

e
a
t.
  
H

e
 r

e
fr

o
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 M

a
n
o
r 

H
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 1

7
9
0
; 
it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 

th
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 w

e
re

 a
lt
e
re

d
 a

t 
a
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
a
te

. 
 I
n
 1

8
3
5
 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

te
 a

m
o
u
n
te

d
 t
o
 1

0
0
0
 

a
c
re

s
. 
 T

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 l
o
d
g
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
 o

p
e
n
 

a
re

a
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 t
re

e
 b

e
lt
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
e
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
e
d
 a

re
a
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
a
s
t 
(t

h
a
t 
p
a
rt

 

fa
c
in

g
 L

e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d
).

  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 

1
9
2
5
 f
ro

m
 M

r 
B

.T
. 
R

o
g
e
rs

-T
il
ls

to
n
e
, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 3

1
5
-a

c
re

 M
o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 e

s
ta

te
. 
 

M
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 
 

M
o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 P

la
c
e
 h

a
s
 s

in
c
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
a
s
t.
  
S

o
m

e
 m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 n

o
w

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

o
p
e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 d

ri
v
e
w

a
y
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
a
li
g
n
m

e
n
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 r
a
il
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
s
id

e
. 
  
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 

a
n
d
 P

e
v
s
n
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 
B

u
tl
e
r 

2
0
1
1
, 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 

p
le

a
s
a
n
t 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
 I
t 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
ta

in
s
 l
it
tl
e
 o

f 
it
s
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 l
a
y
o
u
t,
 a

n
d
 n

o
w

 h
a
s
 a

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

li
s
te

d
 M

o
u
ls

e
c
o
o
m

b
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 a
re

a
 i
s
 

c
o
v
e
re

d
 b

y
 a

 T
re

e
 P

re
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
r.

 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

U
n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 

A
ld

ri
c
h
 

L
ib

ra
ry

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
D

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 1

9
9
4
-9

6
 b

y
 L

o
n
g
 &

 K
e
n
ti
s
h
 w

it
h
 O

v
e
 A

ru
p
 &

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
e
n
g
in

e
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
1
. 
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 h

ig
h
, 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 f
ra

m
e
 w

it
h
 g

la
z
e
d
 c

u
rt

a
in

 w
a
ll
in

g
 a

n
d
 

a
lu

m
in

iu
m

 g
ri

d
 w

a
lk

w
a
y
s
, 
li
k
e
 b

ri
s
e
 s

o
le

il
. 
D

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 n

a
rr

o
w

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

a
v
il
io

n
s
, 

w
it
h
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
re

a
d
in

g
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
v
e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 C

a
re

 h
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
 

in
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

s
s
e
ts

 d
a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
0
 y

e
a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 

is
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
it
tl
e
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

a
n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 b

e
 f
o
rm

e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir

 s
p
e
c
ia

l 

in
te

re
s
t.
  
T

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
is

t,
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
t 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
0
 y

e
a
rs

 w
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
e
e
d
 

to
 b

e
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 a

n
d
/o

r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
 T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

1
3
 y

e
a
rs

 a
g
o
. 
W

h
il
s
t 
it
 h

a
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 m

e
ri

t 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
ju

d
g
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

W
il
d
 P

a
rk

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
li
c
 P

a
rk

N
o
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 w
it
h
in

 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

 

A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o
r 

th
is

 

a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

141



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

L
e
w

e
s
 R

o
a
d

W
o
o
d
v
a
le

 

C
e
m

e
te

ry

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

L
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 

re
m

e
m

b
ra

n
c
e

N
o
 C

A
In

e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 i
s
 a

 g
ra

d
e
 I
I 

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 P

a
rk

 a
n
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
. 
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 
P

a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 

g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
n
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
n
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 i
s
 

s
it
u
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

 w
il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

W
it
h
d
e
a
n
 

P
a
rk

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

F
a
rm

la
n
d
, 

n
o
w

 p
a
rk

N
o
 C

A
W

it
h
d
e
a
n
 d

a
te

s
 f
ro

m
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
th

e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

2
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 
w

h
e
n
 i
t 
w

a
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 a

s
 

W
ic

te
d
e
n
e
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 a

 h
a
m

le
t,
 i
t 
h
a
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 j
u
s
t 
o
n
e
 f
a
rm

 b
y
 t
h
e
 1

8
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 I
n
 

1
7
9
4
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
o
ri

a
l 
e
s
ta

te
 w

e
re

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 f
a
m

il
y
 b

y
 W

il
li
a
m

 R
o
e
. 
 

R
o
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
. 
 B

y
 t
h
e
 m

id
-

1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
h
e
 h

a
m

le
t 
c
o
n
s
is

te
d
 o

f 
W

it
h
d
e
a
n
 F

a
rm

, 
W

it
h
d
e
a
n
 C

o
u
rt

 (
th

e
 m

a
n
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
) 

a
n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

fa
rm

h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 g

ro
u
p
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 a

t 
th

e
 j
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 P

e
a
c
o
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 a

n
d
 T

o
n
g
d
e
a
n
 L

a
n
e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

1
8
4
2
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 h

a
m

le
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
re

e
 b

e
lt
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 b

y
 R

o
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

la
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
o
w

 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

 i
s
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fi
e
ld

s
, 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
it
h
e
 

a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 o

w
n
e
d
 b

y
 M

a
ry

 E
li
z
a
b
e
th

 R
o
e
, 
fa

rm
e
d
 b

y
 J

a
m

e
s
 G

o
rr

in
g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
 

u
s
e
 a

s
 m

e
a
d
o
w

s
, 
a
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 w

o
o
d
s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

in
 1

9
3
3
, 
to

 s
to

p
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 m

a
n
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

t 
th

e
 b

o
tt
o
m

 o
f 

P
e
a
c
o
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 w

e
re

 d
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
3
6
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

b
e
in

g
 l
e
ft
 a

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 

p
a
rk

la
n
d
. 
 D

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 w

a
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 w

a
s
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

fo
o
d
 g

ro
w

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
e
 w

a
r 

in
it
ia

ll
y
 a

s
 a

ll
o
tm

e
n
ts

 b
e
fo

re
 r

e
v
e
rt

in
g
 t
o
 p

a
rk

 u
s
e
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
6
0
 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

s
 a

 h
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l 
e
x
h
ib

it
, 
a
n
d
 n

o
w

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

 s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
li
la

c
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 –

 

o
n
e
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 t
w

o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 
 A

 p
o
n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

m
a
n
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
. 
 T

h
e
 t
re

e
 b

e
lt
s
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 m

u
c
h
 d

a
m

a
g
e
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 1

9
8
7
 h

u
rr

ic
a
n
e
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 r

e
ta

in
s
 s

o
m

e
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 w

o
o
d
 b

e
lt
s
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 w
a
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
ll
y
 

fa
rm

la
n
d
; 
it
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
h
a
s
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 

u
s
e
 t
o
 p

a
rk

la
n
d
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

m
a
n
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
h
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l 

e
x
h
ib

it
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
il
a
c
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 n
a
tu

re
 a

n
d
 h

o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l 
v
a
lu

e
, 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

L
o
n
g
h
il
l 
R

o
a
d

2
3

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
P

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 2

 s
to

re
y
, 
e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

is
t 
in

 s
ty

le
, 
w

it
h
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 f
la

t 
ro

o
fs

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 a

 h
o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

; 
th

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
is

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
ri

tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 t
a
ll
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
 a

n
d
 h

e
d
g
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

in
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

is
t 
s
ty

le
, 
b
u
t 
is

 a
 m

o
d
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
th

is
 

s
ty

le
. 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
L
o
n
g
h
il
l 
R

o
a
d
 i
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 

b
y
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
s
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

ll
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
a
n
d
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 b
e
 g

li
m

p
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
ri

tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 –

 a
n
 

in
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 –

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

L
o
w

e
r 

R
o
c
k
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

1
1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
 

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

7
3
, 
7
3
a
 a

n
d
 7

3
b
 a

n
d
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

ra
il
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

L
o
w

e
r 

R
o
c
k
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

1
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
F

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

lu
s
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
b
e
h
in

d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
. 
 

B
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 r
is

e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f
u
ll
 h

e
ig

h
t 
o
f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
to

 n
o
rt

h
 o

f 
d
o
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 

a
 f
li
g
h
t 
o
f 
s
te

p
s
. 
 N

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

a
t 
a
re

a
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 

s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
g
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t.
  
It
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 c

ri
te

ri
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

142



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

M
a
d
e
ir

a
 D

ri
v
e

A
th

in
a
 B

 

A
n
c
h
o
r

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

U
n
c
a
te

g
o
ri

s
e

d

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
In

e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

n
c
h
o
r 

is
 

n
o
t 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 f
ix

e
d
 t
o
 i
ts

 p
li
n
th

, 
b
u
t 
re

s
ts

 b
y
 i
ts

 

o
w

n
 w

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 p

a
d
lo

c
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

 m
e
ta

l 
p
o
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 

a
n
c
h
o
r 

is
 n

o
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
b
li
c
 a

rt
, 
b
u
t 
is

 i
n
s
te

a
d
 

a
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 s

h
ip

. 
 I
t 
w

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 

e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 a

 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
u
s
 

is
 s

im
il
a
rl

y
 i
n
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

M
a
d
e
ir

a
 P

la
c
e

1
1
, 
1
3
, 
1
4

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 F

o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 p

lu
s
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 

p
a
ra

p
e
ts

, 
a
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 r
is

in
g
 f
ro

m
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
ir

d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
1
 

a
n
d
 1

3
 h

a
v
e
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
4
 h

a
s
 a

 c
a
n
o
p
ie

d
 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

m
o
d
e
ra

te
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 i
s
 a

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t

9
A

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
L
o
w

, 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 r

o
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

y
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  

T
im

b
e
r 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 a
b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
s
 t
o
 

p
a
ra

p
e
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 w

it
h
 a

 s
im

p
le

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 I
t 

is
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 i
s
 a

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t

1
7

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

v
e
n
u
e

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

in
te

rc
o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 a

n
c
il
la

ry
 u

s
e
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
4
-1

6
 

M
a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
S

tr
e
e
t 
(l

is
te

d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I)

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 l
is

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

g
re

a
te

r 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e

1
0
9
-1

1
2

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

P
la

c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
g
a
rd

e
n
 i
n
 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
1
0
9
-1

1
2
 M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 d

a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 l
ik

e
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
, 
w

it
h
 n

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
to

 

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
, 
a
n
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 o

r 
a
 w

a
ll
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 h
a
rd

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
la

n
ts

 a
n
d
 p

o
tt
e
d
 p

la
n
ts

. 
 A

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 
 I
t 
fo

rm
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
a
 s

e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
s
u
c
h
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

a
lo

n
g
 t
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
. 
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 l
e
g
ib

le
, 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
a
v
il
y
 a

lt
e
re

d
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
 r

e
ta

in
s
 l
it
tl
e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l/
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
k
e
s
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e

1
1
4
-1

1
5

B
lo

o
m

s
b
u
ry

 

P
la

c
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
g
a
rd

e
n
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
s
e
a
fr

o
n
t 
te

rm
in

u
s
 o

f 
B

lo
o
m

s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e
 (

in
 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
1
1
4
-

1
1
5
 M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
).

  
B

lo
o
m

s
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
1
0
s
 a

n
d
 2

0
s
. 
 1

1
4
 

a
n
d
 1

1
5
 M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 c

.1
8
2
5
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 

W
il
d
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
b
y
. 
 I
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 c

.1
8
2
5
. 
 T

h
e
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

ie
rs

 w
e
re

 r
e
in

s
ta

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 g

ra
n
t-

fu
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t,
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 
in

 h
is

to
ri

c
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
e
n
s
e
ly

 p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h
 s

h
ru

b
s
; 

it
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
th

is
 d

e
n
s
e
ly

 p
la

n
te

d
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 r

e
ta

in
 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
h
is

to
ri

c
 o

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 t
o
 w

a
rr

a
n
t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e

1
1
7
-1

2
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
g
a
rd

e
n
 f
ro

n
ti
n
g
 1

1
7
-1

2
3
 M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
c
.1

8
2
5
, 

p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
W

il
d
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
b
y
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 b
u
ff
e
r 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 s
ti
ll
 v

is
ib

le
; 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
u
c
h
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

to
 p

a
rk

in
g
. 
 A

 s
m

a
ll
 r

e
c
ta

n
g
u
la

r 
g
ra

s
s
e
d
 a

re
a
 

re
m

a
in

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

 h
e
d
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
o
 

h
e
a
v
il
y
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 a

n
y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l/
d
e
s
ig

n
 

in
te

re
s
t,
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
e
s
 a

 l
im

it
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 i
n
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
s
ta

te
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

143



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e

1
2

T
h
e
 

A
m

s
te

rd
a
m

 

H
o
te

l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
te

l
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
5
 s

to
re

y
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
in

 u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 b
a
r 

a
n
d
 h

o
te

l 
w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
1
 

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
. 
 B

o
w

e
d
 t
h
re

e
 b

a
y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 f
a
c
e
s
 s

e
a
w

a
rd

. 
 P

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

a
r 

a
t 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 u
n
d
e
r 

a
 s

w
e
e
p
in

g
 m

e
ta

l 
ro

o
f.
  
C

a
n
o
p
ie

d
 b

a
lc

o
n
y
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 n

o
n
-

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
ra

il
in

g
s
. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

a
b
le

 w
it
h
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 a
n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
ta

c
k
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 
 I
ts

 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 a
 

te
rr

a
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

 w
a
ll
 a

n
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 d

e
fi
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

lo
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 i
t 
is

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

s
ta

tu
s
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 

C
li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 i
s
 a

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e

2
4
-3

0
V

a
n
 A

le
n
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
1
9
9
9
 b

y
 P

R
C

 F
e
w

s
te

r 
(p

ro
je

c
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
P

e
te

r 
R

u
tt
e
r)

, 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 2

0
0
1
. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 

re
fe

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

e
a
s
id

e
. 
 T

h
re

e
 b

lo
c
k
s
, 
s
te

p
p
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll
o
w

 t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
s
it
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
s
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rv

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
w

it
h
 

c
u
rv

e
d
 b

a
y
s
, 
p
o
rt

 h
o
le

s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

o
n
 a

 c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 B

ri
ta

n
n
ia

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H

o
m

e
b
u
il
d
e
r 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

A
w

a
rd

s
 2

0
0
2
 (

B
e
s
t 
A

p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
B

u
il
d
in

g
).

  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

e
r 

p
e
tr

o
l 
s
ta

ti
o
n
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 V

a
n
 A

le
n
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

a
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
a
n
d
 w

e
ll
-d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
It
 w

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
u
t 
o
n
ly

 1
2
 

y
e
a
rs

 a
g
o
; 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
0
 

y
e
a
rs

 a
re

 i
n
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
3
0
 y

e
a
rs

 n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
f 
th

is
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 e

x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

ti
m

e
 h

a
s
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

M
a
ri

n
e
 S

q
u
a
re

M
a
ri

n
e
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
in

 1
8
2
3
-5

 f
o
r 

T
h
o
m

a
s
 A

tt
re

e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
y
 W

il
d
s
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
b
y
. 
 

T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
 a

 s
q
u
a
re

 w
it
h
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
te

rm
in

u
s
; 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
re

s
c
e
n
t-

s
h
a
p
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 T

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 

p
a
th

 t
o
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 g
a
rd

e
n
, 
w

it
h
 f
o
u
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
. 
 N

o
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 c

re
s
c
e
n
t-

s
h
a
p
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
 

s
o
li
d
 w

a
ll
/b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
w

it
h
 n

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
im

il
a
r 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 w

e
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

n
o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
; 
th

e
 p

a
th

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 
 T

h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 h
e
d
g
e
 f
o
rm

s
 a

 s
o
li
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 f
o
rm

s
 a

 

p
le

a
s
a
n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
ts

 a
re

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l/
d
e
s
ig

n
 

in
te

re
s
t,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

is
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

M
a
ri

n
e
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 

M
e
w

s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
M

e
w

s
 s

tr
e
e
t,
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 t
w

o
 p

a
ra

ll
e
l 
te

rr
a
c
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 2
6
 

B
ri

s
to

l 
R

o
a
d
. 
 E

a
s
t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
m

e
w

s
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

s
 i
n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
a
ra

g
e
s
 t
o
 w

e
s
t 
e
n
d
. 
 

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 p

lu
s
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 

S
o
m

e
 g

a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 b
u
t 
m

o
s
tl
y
 n

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 w
it
h
 m

o
c
k
-

G
e
o
rg

ia
n
 d

o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
. 
 H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

e
w

s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 d

e
s
ig

n
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
a
rl

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
la

c
e

9
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

o
ff
ic

e
s

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

4
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 f
ro

n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 

s
la

te
 m

a
n
s
a
rd

 r
o
o
f.
  
C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 r
is

e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll
 f
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
s
. 
 F

ro
n
t 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 p

e
d
im

e
n
te

d
 p

o
rt

ic
o
 w

it
h
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 
 R

u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
l.
  
B

a
lc

o
n
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 f
u
ll
 w

id
th

 

o
f 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
P

la
in

 s
to

re
y
 b

a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
ir

d
 a

n
d
 f
o
u
rt

h
 s

to
re

y
s
. 
 

P
a
ra

p
e
t 
d
e
ta

il
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

 

g
o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
ty

p
e
, 
it
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
 I
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
a
rl

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
la

c
e

2
0
-2

2
T

h
e
 A

ll
ie

d
 

Ir
is

h
 B

a
n
k

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
a
n
k

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

144



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

M
e
d
in

a
 H

o
u
s
e

9
 a

n
d
 1

0
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
 

(m
e
w

s
)

C
li
ft
o
n
v
il
le

 C
A

T
w

o
, 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 m

e
w

s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
; 
li
k
e
ly

 m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 8
 a

n
d
 9

. 
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 ‘
2
-s

to
re

y
 p

e
b
b
le

 f
ro

n
te

d
 m

e
w

s
, 

b
ri
c
k
 q

u
o
in

s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 o
p
e
n
in

g
s
. 
 N

o
w

 u
s
e
d
 a

s
 r

e
p
a
ir
 g

a
ra

g
e
, 
o
ff
ic

e
s
 o

r 
s
to

ra
g
e
 

o
v
e
r.

 L
o
c
a
l 
v
e
rn

a
c
u
la

r 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
, 
d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 g

o
o
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
“b

e
a
c
h
” 

m
a
te

ri
a
l.

’ 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

8
, 
fo

u
r 

p
a
n
e
ll
e
d
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 b

o
th

 8
 a

n
d
 9

 w
it
h
 s

im
p
le

 d
o
o
r 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
. 
 T

w
o
 o

v
e
r 

tw
o
 h

u
n
g
 

s
a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
0
 f
o
rm

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

w
it
h
 F

re
n
c
h
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

 m
o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 

m
e
ta

l 
s
e
a
m

 r
o
o
f.
  
P

la
n
n
in

g
 h

is
to

ry
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 5
 t
o
 1

0
 o

b
ta

in
e
d
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

to
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
b
u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
9
8
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
2
. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

–
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

 s
ty

le
, 
a
ls

o
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 v

e
ry

 l
it
tl
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 f
a
b
ri

c
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 

a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
b
u
il
t,
 a

n
d
 –

 

b
e
in

g
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 -

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

h
o
ld

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 o

r 
to

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 

in
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

ls
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

fo
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 H

o
u
s
e
 

L
a
n
e

4
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

R
e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
O

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
s
ta

u
ra

n
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 n
a
rr

o
w

 l
a
n
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
. 
 S

y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t,
 w

it
h
 r

e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

m
a
ll
 

p
a
n
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 T

il
e
d
 s

ta
ll
ri

s
e
r.

  
M

o
d
e
rn

 f
a
s
c
ia

. 
 F

la
t 
ro

o
f 
w

it
h
 l
a
n
te

rn
 l
ig

h
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 o

r 
to

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 I
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
id

d
le

 S
tr

e
e
t

6
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

o
ff
ic

e
s

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
3
 s

to
re

y
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
to

re
y
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 a
 n

o
n
-t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

a
n
s
a
rd

 

ro
o
f.
  
4
 w

in
d
o
w

 r
a
n
g
e
. 
 1

8
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 d

o
o
r 

c
a
s
e
 t
o
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r,

 b
u
t 
re

m
a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
fr

o
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 d

a
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
r 

b
o
n
d
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
a
s
h
-s

ty
le

 m
o
d
e
rn

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 c

e
m

e
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
ra

v
e
s
.

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 p
o
li
te

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
ll
y
 

–
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 d

o
o
rc

a
s
e
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
–
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

la
c
k
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
h
is

to
ri

c
, 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
to

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
 a

ls
o
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
b
u
il
t 
in

 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 O

ld
 T

o
w

n
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 i
t 
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

M
o
n
ta

g
u
e
 P

la
c
e

2
5

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
 G

a
ra

g
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 -
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
 g

a
ra

g
e

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
B

ri
c
k
-b

u
il
t 
w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 g
la

z
e
d
 r

o
o
f,
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 1

9
0
9
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 

C
la

y
to

n
 &

 B
la

c
k
 f
o
r 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
, 
H

o
v
e
 a

n
d
 P

re
s
to

n
 U

n
it
e
d
 O

m
n
ib

u
s
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 (

th
e
 

‘U
n
it
e
d
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
’)
. 
 G

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f
ro

n
ti
n
g
 r

o
a
d
, 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 l
a
rg

e
 t
im

b
e
r 

s
li
d
in

g
 d

o
o
rs

 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
in

g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 
 W

id
e
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 g

a
b
le

 a
b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
e
d
im

e
n
t.
  
G

la
z
e
d
 b

ro
w

n
 b

ri
c
k
 p

e
d
im

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
 

b
ri

c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 E

le
c
tr

o
b
u
s
e
s
, 
m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
 V

e
h
ic

le
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 

o
f 
W

e
s
t 
N

o
rw

o
o
d
, 
w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 i
n
 1

9
0
8
/9

 (
m

o
s
tl
y
 b

o
u
g
h
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
-h

a
n
d
 

fr
o
m

 L
o
n
d
o
n
),

 a
n
d
 w

e
re

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
1
9
1
7
. 
 A

t 
th

e
ir

 p
e
a
k
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
6
 

e
le

c
tr

o
b
u
s
e
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 O

n
ly

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 h

a
d
 m

o
re

 e
le

c
tr

o
b
u
s
e
s
 (

2
0
).

  
T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 b
u
s
 g

a
ra

g
e
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
3
2
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 

m
e
c
h
a
n
ic

’s
 g

a
ra

g
e
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

te
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
il
t 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 

s
ta

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
it
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 

la
rg

e
ly

 i
n
ta

c
t.
  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 
E

S
R

O
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.e
c
o
n
o
m

is
t.
c
o
m

/n
o
d
e
/9

4
6
5
0
2
6
, 

‘T
h
e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
ia

n
’ 
J
u
n
e
 2

5
 1

9
0
9
, 
M

C
H

A
 N

e
w

s
le

tt
e
r 

2
0
1
5

In
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

145



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

B
u
il
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
a
 c

ri
c
k
e
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
, 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

w
e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
4
3
 t
o
 1

8
4
7
. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 n

o
ta

b
le

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
A

m
o
n
 H

e
n
ry

 W
il
d
s
, 
a
n
d
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
a
s
e
s
. 
 W

h
e
n
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
it
 m

a
rk

e
d
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
m

o
s
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
’s

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rl

o
o
k
e
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
ly

b
e
a
te

 S
p
ri

n
g
 (

S
t 
A

n
n
’s

 W
e
ll
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
) 

a
n
d
 

H
o
v
e
, 
u
n
ti
l 
V

e
rn

o
n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
c
.1

0
 y

e
a
rs

 l
a
te

r 
o
n
 l
a
n
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 u
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
a
rk

e
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 A

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
m

a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

re
s
c
e
n
t 
s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 

w
a
ll
 t
o
 V

e
rn

o
n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 (

s
im

il
a
r 

to
 H

a
n
o
v
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t)

, 
a
n
d
 s

h
ru

b
s
 b

e
h
in

d
. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
7
5
 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 l
a
y
o
u
t 
m

o
re

 c
le

a
rl

y
; 
it
 h

a
s
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 D

-s
h
a
p
e
, 
w

it
h
 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 p

a
th

. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
th

 a
lo

n
g
 t
h
e
 V

e
rn

o
n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 w

id
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
m

o
re

 l
ik

e
 a

n
 a

v
e
n
u
e
. 
 S

e
rp

e
n
ti
n
e
 p

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 c

lu
m

p
s
 o

f 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 o

c
c
u
p
y
 t
h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
 A

n
 a

ir
 r

a
id

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

w
a
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 d

u
ri

n
g
 W

o
rl

d
 W

a
r 

II
. 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
 w

it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 

ra
il
in

g
s
 o

r 
w

a
ll
s
 t
o
 m

a
rk

 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
. 
 W

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 f
a
c
il
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
m

p
c
a
o
n
li
n
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
2
0
8
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
3
6
p
2
1
p
5
2
p
.a

s
p
x
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
m

p
c
a
o
n
li
n
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
1
6
9
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
3
6
p
2
1
p
5
0
p
.a

s
p
x
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
6
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
6
_
1
6
9
.h

tm
l 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

re
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 i
s
 o

f 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 I
t 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
ta

in
s
 l
it
tl
e
 

o
f 
it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 (

p
a
th

s
 o

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
),

 n
o
r 

it
s
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l/
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
r 

in
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t

S
e
v
e
n
 D

ia
ls

 

E
lm

 T
re

e
, 

o
u
ts

id
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
8

B
ri

g
h
to

n
U

n
c
a
te

g
o
ri

s
e
d

T
re

e
M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

s
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
 a

n
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

r 
h
is

to
ri

c
 p

a
rk

 &
 g

a
rd

e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 

a
b
o
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
te

a
m

 w
il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

P
la

c
e

B
H

T
 F

ir
s
t 

B
a
s
e
 D

a
y
 

C
e
n
tr

e
, 
S

t 

S
te

p
h
e
n
's

 

H
a
ll

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
h
a
p
e
l,
 n

o
w

 

d
a
y
 c

e
n
tr

e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I*

. 
 T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

R
o
a
d

W
a
ll
 t
o
 P

a
rk

 

R
o
y
a
l 

(n
u
m

b
e
r 

6
6
)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
o
u
n
d
a
ry

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

C
o
u
rs

e
d
 f
li
n
t 
c
o
b
b
le

 w
a
ll
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 p

ie
rs

, 
p
li
n
th

 a
n
d
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
; 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 b

ri
c
k
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r.

  
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 t
h
e
 w

a
ll
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

6
6
 M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

R
o
a
d
. 
 B

u
il
t 
in

 a
 

J
a
c
o
b
e
a
n
 s

ty
le

, 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 e

re
c
te

d
 i
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
1
8
4
0
 f
o
r 

M
a
ry

 W
a
g
n
e
r,

 s
is

te
r 

to
 R

e
v
d
 

H
e
n
ry

 W
a
g
n
e
r,

 w
h
o
 l
e
t 
th

e
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 g
ir

l’s
 s

c
h
o
o
l.
  
M

a
ry

 W
a
g
n
e
r 

d
ie

d
 i
n
 1

8
7
0
, 
w

h
e
n
 

th
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 h

e
r 

n
e
p
h
e
w

 A
rt

h
u
r 

W
a
g
n
e
r 

w
h
o
 l
iv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 u

n
ti
l 
1
9
0
2
. 
 

L
a
te

r 
c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

 R
o
y
a
l 
C

o
u
rt

 H
o
te

l,
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
6
5
. 

S
it
e
 n

o
w

 f
la

ts
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 w

a
ll
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 a

 r
e
m

in
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 l
a
rg

e
 h

o
u
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
c
e
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 t
h
is

 p
lo

t,
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 w

e
ll
-

k
n
o
w

n
 W

a
g
n
e
r 

fa
m

il
y
. 
 T

h
e
 b

ri
c
k
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r,

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 a

lt
e
ri

n
g
 i
ts

 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

N
a
m

ri
k
 M

e
w

s
1
-2

0
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
O

ld
 H

o
v
e
 C

A
B

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
, 
b
u
t 
it
 i
s
 u

n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
a
t 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
. 
 

T
h
e
 1

8
7
5
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

O
S

) 
m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 m
e
w

s
 r

o
a
d
 w

it
h
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
tr

e
e
t.
  
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
la

y
o
u
t 
o
n
ly

 b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 

e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
9
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 
 I
t 
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir

s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 

D
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
 1

8
9
6
, 
w

h
e
n
 i
t 
is

 n
a
m

e
d
 N

a
m

ri
k
 S

ta
b
le

s
. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
9
1
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
c
o
rd

s
 t
h
re

e
 s

ta
b
le

s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 t
w

o
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 t
h
e
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 w

e
re

 

o
c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 H

a
w

k
in

s
, 
c
o
a
c
h
m

a
n
 a

n
d
 g

ro
o
m

 a
n
d
 J

a
m

e
s
 T

a
ff
e
r,

 c
o
a
c
h
m

a
n
, 
a
s
 

w
e
ll
 a

s
 t
h
e
ir

 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 f
a
m

il
ie

s
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
 (

a
ls

o
 n

a
m

e
d
 T

h
e
 C

o
a
c
h
 H

o
u
s
e
) 

is
 o

f 
tw

o
 

s
to

re
y
s
, 
w

it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
a
n
d
 L

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 p

la
n
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 a

rc
h
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
. 
 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 l
a
te

r 
in

s
e
rt

io
n
. 
 T

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
il
t 
a
n
d
 o

f 
tw

o
 

s
to

re
y
s
. 
 T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

, 
b
u
t 
re

ta
in

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 w

it
h
 

g
a
ra

g
e
/s

ta
b
le

 d
o
o
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

ir
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r.

  
G

a
ra

g
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

e
w

s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 1

9
3
0
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

M
id

d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 l
a
te

 e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
 

m
e
w

s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 A

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
 

o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

146



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

2
-8

 (
e
v
e
n
)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

A

R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 B

u
il
t 
c
.1

9
0
2
. 
 T

w
o
 

s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

s
. 
 E

a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
, 
b
u
t 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 s

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
, 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 r

id
g
e
 t
il
e
s
, 
m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 

to
 g

a
b
le

s
, 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 w

it
h
 h

u
n
g
 t
il
e
s
, 
w

h
it
e
 t
im

b
e
r 

b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

n
d
 6

 o
v
e
r 

1
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 s

tr
e
e
tf
ro

n
t 
b
e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 w
a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

p
ie

rs
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ra

il
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
, 
fe

n
c
e
s
, 
b
ri

c
k
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 b

lo
c
k
 w

a
ll
s
. 
 S

o
m

e
 b

la
c
k
 a

n
d
 w

h
it
e
 t
il
e
d
 p

a
th

s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 &

 P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t,
 M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

, 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 P

e
m

b
ro

k
e
 &

 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
h
a
rd

 r
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
, 
w

h
it
e
 p

a
in

te
d
 e

x
te

ri
o
r 

ti
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

la
in

 r
e
d
 t
il
e
. 
 T

h
e
y
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

M
o
rn

in
g
to

n
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s
 

a
n
d
 B

ri
tt
a
n
y
 

C
o
u
rt

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
N

o
 C

A
T

w
o
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
c
.1

9
3
0
s
 f
la

ts
, 
b
u
il
t 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 f
lo

o
r 

p
la

n
. 
 H

y
b
ri

d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
, 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

. 
 M

o
rn

in
g
to

n
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
 i
s
 o

f 

th
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
B

ri
tt
a
n
y
 C

o
u
rt

 i
s
 f
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 B

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
; 
th

a
t 
to

 M
o
rn

in
g
to

n
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
1
9
3
0
s
 s

u
n
b
u
rs

t 
m

o
ti
f.
  
B

ri
tt
a
n
y
 C

o
u
rt

 r
e
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 

c
ri

tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 h

o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
g
la

z
in

g
 b

a
rs

. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

e
ta

l 
p
a
n
e
ls

 t
o
 M

o
rn

in
g
to

n
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s
. 
 B

o
th

 a
re

 s
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 B

o
th

 b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
a
 

h
y
b
ri

d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 s

o
m

e
 

in
te

re
s
ti
n
g
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
, 
b
u
t 
is

 o
f 
li
m

it
e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 b

u
t 
o
v
e
ra

ll
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 d

o
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
, 
M

o
rn

in
g
to

n
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
is

 a
ls

o
 

m
u
c
h
-a

lt
e
re

d
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

N
e
w

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d

G
ro

u
n
d
s
 t
o
 

H
o
v
e
 

M
u
s
e
u
m

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

P
e
m

b
ro

k
e
 a

n
d
 

P
ri

n
c
e
s
 C

A

H
o
v
e
 M

u
s
e
u
m

 w
a
s
 b

u
il
t 
b
y
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
T

h
o
m

a
s
 L

a
in

s
o
n
 i
n
 1

8
7
7
 f
o
r 

J
o
h
n
 O

ll
iv

e
r 

V
a
ll
a
n
c
e
. 
 O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 n

a
m

e
d
 B

ro
o
k
e
r 

H
a
ll
, 
it
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
9
8
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

m
a
p
 i
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
g
ro

u
n
d
s
, 
w

it
h
 d

ri
v
e
w

a
y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
t,
 a

 g
re

e
n
h
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
e
rn

 b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 t
o
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 S

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
a
te

r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 e

n
c
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
 n

o
w

 o
c
c
u
p
ie

s
 a

 m
u
c
h
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 p

lo
t.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 
b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 M
u
s
e
u
m

 a
n
d
 A

rt
 G

a
ll
e
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 a

re
 

p
a
rt

ly
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 l
o
w

 w
a
ll
 w

it
h
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

ie
rs

. 
 I
t 
is

 m
a
in

ly
 l
a
id

 t
o
 

g
ra

s
s
, 
w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

rn
a
m

e
n
ta

l 
tr

e
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
 J

a
ip

u
r 

G
a
te

 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 I
n
d
ia

n
 D

ru
m

 P
la

tf
o
rm

, 
b
u
il
t 
a
n
d
 s

h
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
lo

n
ia

l 
a
n
d
 I
n
d
ia

n
 E

x
h
ib

it
io

n
, 
S

o
u
th

 K
e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 i
n
 1

8
8
6
. 
It
 w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 H

o
v
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 I
m

p
e
ri

a
l 
In

s
ti
tu

te
 i
n
 1

9
2
6
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 o

f 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t;
 i
n
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
it
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 f
o
c
a
l 
p
o
in

t 
to

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
s
 i
ts

 

fo
rm

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t.
  
It
 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 o

f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

N
e
w

 S
te

in
e

N
e
w

 S
te

in
e
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 N

e
w

 S
te

in
e
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

7
9
0
s
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

u
r 

s
to

re
y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
s
 (

m
o
s
tl
y
 l
is

te
d
).

  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
a
n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 p
ri

v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
 e

n
c
lo

s
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 

O
rd

n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
im

p
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
, 
w

it
h
 a

 g
ra

s
s
e
d
 

a
re

a
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

: 
li
k
e
ly

 s
im

il
a
r 

to
 i
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
la

y
o
u
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 

re
ta

in
 a

 c
a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
in

g
 w

it
h
 d

o
g
 r

a
il
, 
s
e
t 
in

to
 a

 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 s

to
n
e
 c

o
p
in

g
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
ta

c
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 

C
li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

N
o
rf

o
lk

 S
q
u
a
re

N
o
rf

o
lk

 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

N
o
rf

o
lk

 S
q
u
a
re

 w
a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
2
0
s
. 
 I
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 m

a
tc

h
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
b
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
o
u
r 

c
u
rv

e
d
 b

e
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

m
id

d
le

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

8
8
6
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 

1
8
8
4
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
 r

e
m

o
d
e
ll
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
5
0
s
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

in
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 c

o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s
 (

n
o
w

 s
h
o
p
 u

n
it
s
) 

a
n
d
 b

u
s
 s

h
e
lt
e
rs

 a
lo

n
g
 W

e
s
te

rn
 

R
o
a
d
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ra

il
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 m
e
s
h
 f
e
n
c
in

g
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 i
s
 t
o
o
 a

lt
e
re

d
 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
te

re
s
t 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
. 
 W

h
a
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
it
 d

o
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
5
1
-1

5
4

H
S

B
C

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
a
n
k

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

147



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
6
2
-1

6
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
a
n
k

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

O
ld

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

2
5
-3

9
P

a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 
C

o
-

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
, 
8
 b

a
y
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
la

t 
ro

o
f 
b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
L
ik

e
ly

 b
u
il
t 
c
.1

9
3
5
. 
 

M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 e

n
ti
re

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 F

e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 f
lo

o
rs

 

a
b
o
v
e
 m

a
tc

h
; 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
c
ri

tt
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 u

p
v
c
 i
m

it
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
w

o
-t

o
n
e
 b

ri
c
k
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

; 
g
la

z
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 m

o
s
a
ic

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rd

s
 ‘
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 E

q
u
it
a
b
le

 C
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 S

o
c
ie

ty
’ 
in

 d
a
rk

 b
lu

e
 l
e
tt
e
ri

n
g
 

o
n
 a

 w
h
it
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 e

ro
d
e
d
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
a
n
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

O
ld

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

D
ri

n
k
in

g
 

F
o
u
n
ta

in

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

D
ri

n
k
in

g
 

F
o
u
n
ta

in

N
o
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 f
o
u
n
ta

in
 i
s
 

li
s
te

d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

B
H

A
S

V
IC

 

fi
e
ld

H
o
v
e

P
a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 

G
ro

u
n
d

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

s
 o

p
e
n
 l
a
n
d
; 

P
o
rt

 H
a
ll
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 m

il
l 
a
re

 t
h
e
 n

e
a
re

s
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

n
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
. 
 B

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 f
ir

s
t 
O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

O
S

) 
m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
7
0
),

 t
h
e
 r

a
il
w

a
y
 l
in

e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
m

il
l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 W

in
d
m

il
l 
In

n
 (

n
o
w

 D
y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

u
b
 a

n
d
 K

it
c
h
e
n
) 

h
a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
m

a
ll
 

w
o
o
d
e
d
 a

re
a
s
, 
b
u
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 o

p
e
n
. 
 T

h
is

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
, 
w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
p
re

a
d
in

g
 o

n
 a

ll
 s

id
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 d

is
ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 t
ri

a
n
g
u
la

r 
p
ie

c
e
 o

f 

la
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 o

p
e
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
, 
a
p
a
rt

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 p

lo
t 
in

 i
ts

 

s
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 
c
o
rn

e
r 

(i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 n
u
rs

e
ry

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
1
2
 O

S
 m

a
p
).

  
T

h
e
 c

.1
9
1
2
 m

a
p
 

s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 a
re

a
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

ll
o
tm

e
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
la

y
o
u
t 
is

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

.1
9
3
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 G

ra
m

m
a
r 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
(B

H
A

S
V

IC
) 

a
t 

th
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
O

ld
 S

h
o
re

h
a
m

 R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 d

iv
id

e
d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
 P

a
rk

. 
 A

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 M

id
d
le

to
n
 (

2
0
0
2
),

 

th
e
re

 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 h

o
u
s
e
 c

a
ll
e
d
 T

h
e
 L

a
w

n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 o
f 
D

y
k
e
 R

o
a
d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
a
s
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 b

y
 W

il
li
a
m

 K
ir

k
p
a
tr

ic
k
 a

n
d
 G

e
o
rg

e
 G

a
ll
a
rd

 i
n
 1

8
5
2
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 

a
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
. 
 T

h
is

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
 c

le
a
rl

y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

m
a
p
p
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
s
 O

S
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 p
a
v
il
io

n
 a

n
d
 

m
in

ia
tu

re
 r

if
le

 r
a
n
g
e
; 
th

e
 p

a
v
il
io

n
 n

o
t 
lo

n
g
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

if
le

 r
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 u

n
u
s
e
d
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
a
s
 a

 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
, 
th

e
 s

p
a
c
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

h
o
ld

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

r 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 w
a
rr

a
n
t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
o
f 
h
e
ri

ta
g
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

H
o
v
e
 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

O
ff
ic

e
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re

N
o
 C

A
H

o
v
e
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
8
2
, 
a
t 
w

h
ic

h
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 c

h
a
p
e
ls

, 
a
 l
o
d
g
e
, 
g
a
te

w
a
y
 a

n
d
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
, 
p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 f
li
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 (

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

a
c
tu

a
ll
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
e
s
s
 r

o
o
m

 a
n
d
 s

to
re

) 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

o
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 O

S
 m

a
p
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 1

9
th
 a

n
d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 b
u
il
t 
in

 t
h
e
 m

id
-2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 

It
 i
s
 o

f 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
, 
w

it
h
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f,
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
a
b
le

d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

-

d
a
s
h
e
d
 w

a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 s

m
o
o
th

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 a

 l
a
te

r 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 
it
 i
s
 i
n
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

it
s
e
lf
. 
 T

h
e
 c

e
m

e
te

ry
 –

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

s
 

p
a
rt

 –
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 a

s
 a

 

w
h
o
le

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

148



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

O
ld

 S
h
o
re

h
a
m

 

R
o
a
d

P
a
rk

 H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
la

te
r 

c
a
re

 h
o
m

e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
is

t

D
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

O
rc

h
a
rd

 R
o
a
d

A
ll
ia

n
c
e
 

H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

O
ff
ic

e
N

o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
is

t

D
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d

B
y
re

 

C
o
tt
a
g
e
s

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
1
8

th
 a

n
d
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 f
a
rm

 b
u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 H

a
ll
 f
a
rm

, 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
 B

y
re

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
s
 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 h

e
ld

 a
 c

a
rr

ia
g
e
 a

n
d
 3

 o
r 

4
 h

o
rs

e
s
. 
 A

 w
e
ll
-h

o
u
s
e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 b

e
s
id

e
 i
t 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 o

p
e
n
 s

id
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 b

o
a
rd

e
d
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 2
 a

n
d
 3

 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 g
ra

n
a
ry

, 

w
h
il
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 4
, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

 w
e
re

 b
a
rn

s
. 
 T

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 p

a
rt

ly
 

o
b
s
c
u
re

d
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 f
li
n
t 

w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 o

rn
a
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t,
 a

s
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 d

o
 

n
o
t 
m

e
e
t 
2
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 

a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
ri

g
in

s
 a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
t,
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 n

o
w

 

d
is

p
la

y
 a

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d

T
h
e
 H

a
m

e
s

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

A
L
o
w

 a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 T

h
e
 O

ld
e
 B

a
rn

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 G

ra
n
g
e
 

F
a
rm

, 
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
. 
 F

ro
n
ti
n
g
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
it
 h

a
s
 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
s
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 

d
re

s
s
in

g
s
, 
a
 w

e
a
th

e
rb

o
a
rd

e
d
 g

a
b
le

 a
n
d
 a

 t
il
e
 r

o
o
f.
  
C

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
ta

ll
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 u

p
v
c
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t,
 a

s
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
2
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
b
u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 

o
f 
it
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 R

o
a
d

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
t

e
 H

o
u
s
e
, 

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
t

e
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
, 

G
a
b
le

 E
n
d
 

C
o
tt
a
g
e

O
v
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 

fa
rm

h
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
R

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fa

rm
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 f
a
rm

 h
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l.
  
A

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 t
h
e
 

la
rg

e
 ‘
O

v
in

g
d
e
a
n
 H

o
u
s
e
’ 
(n

o
w

 d
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
),

 t
h
e
s
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 

s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
‘W

o
o
d
e
n
d
e
a
n
’.
 F

a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 (

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
te

 H
o
u
s
e
) 

is
 s

e
t 
to

 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

fa
rm

 b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
O

n
e
 f
u
ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
s
q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
 

h
a
n
g
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 a

 o
n
e
-s

to
re

y
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
 h

o
c
 f
e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

A
p
p
e
a
rs

 e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 i
n
 i
ts

 o
v
e
ra

ll
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 d

iv
id

e
d
 i
n
to

 

th
re

e
 (

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
te

 H
o
u
s
e
, 
W

o
o
d
in

g
c
o
te

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 G

a
b
le

 E
n
d
).

 A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 J

a
m

e
s
 G

ra
y
 C

o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
3
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
3
_
0
7
3
.h

tm
l 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
rm

h
o
u
s
e
 (

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
te

 H
o
u
s
e
, 

W
o
o
d
in

g
c
o
te

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 G

a
b
le

 E
n
d
) 

o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

 m
o
re

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 t
y
p
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
te

re
s
t 
n
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 A

v
e
n
u
e

5
7
-6

5
 (

o
d
d
) 

a
n
d
 6

2
-6

6
 

(e
v
e
n
)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 
b
y
 1

8
9
8
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

5
7
 a

n
d
 5

9
 a

re
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

9
1
0
-2

 m
a
p
, 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 o

p
e
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
, 
a
ll
o
tm

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 c

ri
c
k
e
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 6
1
 a

n
d
 6

3
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 6

2
-6

6
 (

e
v
e
n
) 

w
e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 1

9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
(6

1
-6

5
 o

d
d
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 t
h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 S

q
u
a
re

) 
w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

ft
e
r 

th
is

 d
a
te

. 
 A

ll
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

f 
v
a
ri

e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
. 
 T

h
e
y
 t
e
n
d
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

ip
p
e
d
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

, 
g
a
b
le

 

e
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
 h

a
n
g
in

g
 o

r 
m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
il
e
 h

u
n
g
, 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 o

r 
b
ri

c
k
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

to
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 o
f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 

o
f 
e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 s

u
b
u
rb

a
n
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
y
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

149



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 A

v
e
n
u
e

1
-1

2
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

B
u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
8
3
 a

n
d
 1

8
8
8
, 
tw

o
 o

p
p
o
s
in

g
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
4
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

tt
ic

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 f
la

t 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
. 
 H

e
a
v
il
y
 

o
rn

a
m

e
n
te

d
. 
 T

h
e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 
P

a
lm

e
ir

a
 M

a
n
s
io

n
s
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 s

o
m

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
 (

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
le

s
s
e
r 

q
u
a
li
ty

),
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
ir

 s
im

il
a
r 

d
a
te

 o
f 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 a

re
 g

o
o
d
 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
la

te
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 l
a
te

r 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 T

o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 s

o
m

e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 (

b
y
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

) 
to

 P
a
lm

e
ir

a
 

M
a
n
s
io

n
s
, 
th

e
ir

 d
e
ta

il
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
le

s
s
e
r 

q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

 

is
 n

o
 c

le
a
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

P
a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t

1
7
, 
2
2
, 
2
3
, 

2
4
, 
2
8
, 
2
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

Q
u
e
e
n
's

 P
a
rk

 

C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 c

. 
m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
b
b
le

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
s
 w

it
h
 

b
ri

c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
; 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
. 
 S

in
g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r,

 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 (

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
).

  
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 

s
la

te
 r

o
o
fs

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
e
a
s
il
y
 v

is
ib

le
 f
ro

m
 s

tr
e
e
t 
le

v
e
l.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 

fo
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

P
e
lh

a
m

 S
q
u
a
re

P
e
lh

a
m

 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
S

m
a
ll
 s

q
u
a
re

. 
 T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 w

e
re

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
ir

s
t,
 o

n
 l
a
n
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 H

a
ll
 e

s
ta

te
. 
 A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
it
 w

a
s
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 
a
s
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 

c
a
ll
e
d
 P

e
lh

a
m

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 P

e
lh

a
m

 f
a
m

il
y
 –

 t
h
e
 E

a
rl

s
 o

f 
C

h
ic

h
e
s
te

r 
- 

w
e
re

 l
o
c
a
l 

a
ri

s
to

c
ra

c
y
, 
re

s
id

in
g
 a

t 
S

ta
n
m

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e
. 
 T

h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 –
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

to
 t
h
e
 e

a
s
t 
a
n
d
 s

o
u
th

 –
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
5
6
 a

n
d
 1

8
6
7
. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 w
e
re

 

M
r 

C
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

r 
H

a
c
k
, 
w

h
o
 l
iv

e
d
 a

t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

9
8
 a

n
d
 9

9
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 
re

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

(o
p
p
o
s
it
e
 t
h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

),
 a

n
d
 b

u
il
d
e
r 

M
r 

L
y
n
n
e
. 
  
M

r 
C

a
rt

e
r 

la
te

r 
s
o
ld

 h
is

 s
h
a
re

 t
o
 M

r 

H
a
c
k
. 
 T

h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
la

y
o
u
t,
 w

it
h
 s

im
p
le

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 a

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 l
a
te

r 
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
s
 a

 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
re

a
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
8
0
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
n
a
m

e
d
 Q

u
e
e
n
 M

o
th

e
r’
s
 

G
a
rd

e
n
 t
o
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
 t
h
e
 Q

u
e
e
n
 M

o
th

e
r’
s
 e

ig
h
ti
e
th

 b
ir

th
d
a
y
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
-

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
d
/p

la
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
. 
 I
t 
n
o
w

 c
o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
ru

b
s
. 
 

S
u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 s

to
n
e
 p

li
n
th

 a
n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
ra

il
in

g
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
il
la

r 

p
o
s
t 
b
o
x
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 K

6
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 b

o
x
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
w

e
s
t 
c
o
rn

e
r.

  
D

u
ri

n
g
 W

o
rl

d
 W

a
r 

II
 

th
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

n
 a

ir
 r

a
id

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 p
le

a
s
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 q

u
ie

t 

g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 a
n
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
 d

e
n
s
e
 u

rb
a
n
 a

re
a
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/m

h
m

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/
s
tr

e
e
t-

h
is

to
ry

-p
e
lh

a
m

-s
q
u
a
re

 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 h

a
s
 c

le
a
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
v
a
lu

e
. 
 I
t 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
is

p
la

y
s
 

li
m

it
e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 v
e
ry

 b
a
s
ic

 

d
e
s
ig

n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 I
t 
a
ls

o
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 

ra
il
in

g
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
re

ta
in

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 T

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 

is
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

150



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

P
e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t

Y
o
rk

 

B
u
il
d
in

g
, 

C
it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

T
h
e
 1

8
7
0
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 a

 f
o
rm

 o
f 
u
n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 

p
ri

m
a
ry

 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 E
n
g
la

n
d
 &

 W
a
le

s
. 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
li
v
e
r 

th
is

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

ta
te

d
 o

f 
B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
n
te

x
t 
th

a
t 

“c
o
ll
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
h
e
y
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
to

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

e
v
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 c
o
u
n
tr

y
” 

(L
is

ti
n
g
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 G

u
id

e
: 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
A

p
ri

l 

2
0
1
1
).

 T
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 a
ft
e
r 

th
a
t 
A

c
t.
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 

S
im

p
s
o
n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 s

u
rv

e
y
o
r/

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 b

y
 h

is
 s

o
n
 

G
il
b
e
rt

 M
u
rr

a
y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 T
h
o
m

a
s
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 &

 S
o
n
 f
ro

m
 1

8
9
0
. 
T

h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
ls

o
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 s

o
m

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 H

o
v
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft
e
r 

1
8
7
6
, 
a
n
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 P
re

s
to

n
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
B

o
a
rd

, 
a
ft
e
r 

1
8
7
8
. 
T

h
e
ir

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
p
a
n
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
 

1
8
7
0
-1

9
0
3
. 
T

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 a

ll
 o

f 
re

d
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 w

h
it
e
-p

a
in

te
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

in
 Q

u
e
e
n
 A

n
n
e
 R

e
v
iv

a
l 
s
ty

le
. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

r 
o
n
e
s
 b

ri
n
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
o
tt
a
, 
s
to

n
e
 

a
n
d
 p

e
b
b
le

d
a
s
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 t
u
rr

e
ts

 i
n
 a

n
 E

d
w

a
rd

ia
n
 

F
re

e
 S

ty
le

. 
T

h
e
 o

n
ly

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 H

o
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
is

 i
n
 C

o
n
n
a
u
g
h
t 
R

o
a
d
 (

1
8
8
4
) 

a
n
d
 i
s
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
. 
In

 B
ri

g
h
to

n
 n

in
e
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
n
d
 f
o
u
r 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I 
li
s
te

d
: 
F

in
s
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
8
1
 (

n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 f
la

ts
);

 D
o
w

n
s
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 

R
u
g
b
y
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
0
; 
S

ta
n
fo

rd
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l,
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 
a
n
d
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 S

t 
L
u
k
e
’s

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
1
9
0
3
. 
A

ll
 a

re
 b

y
 S

im
p
s
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

fi
v
e
 (

a
ll
 b

y
 

S
im

p
s
o
n
) 

a
re

: 
T

h
e
 C

ir
c
u
s
 S

tr
e
e
t 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
o
f 
1
8
8
4
-8

5
 (

n
o
w

 v
a
c
a
n
t)

; 
E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l,
 E

lm
 G

ro
v
e
 o

f 
1
8
9
3
; 
Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 P
a
rk

 P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 P

a
rk

 S
tr

e
e
t 
(F

re
s
h
fi
e
ld

 

P
la

c
e
) 

o
f 
1
8
8
0
; 
P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

n
o
w

 o
w

n
e
d
 b

y
 C

it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
) 

o
f 

1
8
8
0
; 
a
n
d
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l,
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 
(n

o
w

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
C

it
y
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
) 

o
f 
s
o
m

e
 t
im

e
 

b
e
fo

re
 1

8
7
6
. 
T

h
e
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 S

c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
s
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 e

n
s
u
in

g
 d

e
c
a
d
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
th

e
 P

e
lh

a
m

 S
tr

e
e
t 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

. 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
is

 l
a
n
d
lo

c
k
e
d
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 n

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
to

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
fe

a
tu

re
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 

c
o
n
te

x
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

P
o
rt

la
n
d
 S

tr
e
e
t

3
 a

n
d
 4

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
S

m
a
ll
, 
2
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 l
a
te

r 
a
tt
ic

. 
 E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 C

o
b
b
le

 f
ro

n
t,
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 

d
re

s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
. 
 T

il
e
 r

o
o
f 
w

it
h
 l
a
te

r 
d
o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

, 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 

s
ta

c
k
. 
 S

m
a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  f

lo
o
r,

 l
a
te

r 
h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
P

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
ic

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 d
o
u
b
le

-

fr
o
n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 c

o
tt
a
g
e
. 
 T

h
is

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
 b

lo
c
k
in

g
 i
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ro

n
t 

d
o
o
r 

to
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

3
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 e

v
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

iv
in

g
 f
a
b
ri

c
. 
 T

h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 R

a
g
la

n
 C

o
u
rt

 w
a
s
 b

u
il
t,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

id
e
 w

a
ll
 t
o
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
 r

e
b
u
il
t 
in

 b
ri

c
k
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
 i
s
 n

o
w

 

v
ia

 R
a
g
la

n
 C

o
u
rt

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
R

a
g
la

n
 C

o
u
rt

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
5
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
5
_
0
1
4
.h

tm
l

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
it
s
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

id
e
 

w
a
ll
. 
 I
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

P
o
w

is
 S

q
u
a
re

P
o
w

is
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

P
o
w

is
 S

q
u
a
re

 f
o
rm

s
 a

n
 e

lo
n
g
a
te

d
 ‘
D

’-
s
h
a
p
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
, 
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 (

li
s
te

d
).

  

T
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

e
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

s
 o

n
e
, 
a
n
d
 b

u
il
t 
c
.1

8
5
0
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 

J
o
h
n
 Y

e
a
rs

le
y
 a

n
d
 H

e
n
ry

 F
a
it
h
fu

ll
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
, 
a
n
d
 W

il
li
a
m

 Y
e
a
rs

le
y
, 
s
o
li
c
it
o
r 

o
f 

W
e
ls

h
p
o
o
l,
 w

h
o
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 n

a
m

e
d
 i
t 
P

o
w

is
 P

la
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 n

a
m

e
 P

o
w

is
 i
s
 d

e
ri

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

J
o
h
n
 Y

e
a
rs

le
y
’s

 b
ir

th
p
la

c
e
 o

f 
M

o
n
tg

o
m

e
ry

 i
n
 P

o
w

y
s
. 
 Y

e
a
rs

le
y
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ro

n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

, 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t  e

d
it
io

n
 O

S
 m

a
p
 (

c
.1

8
7
0
) 

a
s
 b

e
in

g
 o

v
a
l 
in

 s
h
a
p
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

 s
im

p
le

 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
n
d
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
. 
 I
t 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 a

s
 p

ri
v
a
te

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
ly

 u
n
ti
l 
1
8
9
7
, 
w

h
e
n
 i
t 
c
a
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 

fo
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
M

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ra

il
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 

re
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 ‘
h
o
o
p
-t

o
p
’ 
ra

il
in

g
s
. 
 A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t
h
e
 s

q
u
a
re

 a
s
 

‘u
n
u
s
u
a
ll
y
 i
n
ti
m

a
te

’.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
it
s
 s

iz
e
, 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll
-

s
c
a
le

 o
f 
s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

 s
e
a
w

a
rd

 a
s
p
e
c
t.
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

A
n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.c
m

p
c
a
o
n
li
n
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
2
1
6
_
p
a
th

_
_
0
p
3
6
p
2
8
p
6
3
p
.a

s
p
x
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 h

a
s
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 k

io
s
k
s
. 
 

It
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 v
e
ry

 s
im

p
le

 a
n
d
 

li
tt
le

 o
f 
th

is
 n

o
w

 s
u
rv

iv
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 h

a
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l/
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

r 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 n

o
r 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

151



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

P
re

s
to

n
 R

o
a
d

2
5
1
-2

5
3
 

(o
d
d
)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

o
ff
ic

e
s

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

T
h
e
 C

le
rm

o
n
t 
E

s
ta

te
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 m

id
d
le

-c
la

s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 b

y
 D

a
n
ie

l 
F

ri
e
n
d
 f
ro

m
 

1
8
6
6
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
. 
 B

u
il
t 
to

 t
a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 r
a
il
w

a
y
 s

ta
ti
o
n
 (

1
8
6
9
),

 i
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 

C
le

rm
o
n
t 
R

o
a
d
, 
C

le
rm

o
n
t 
T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 
L
o
rn

e
 V

il
la

s
, 
S

ta
ti
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
v
il
la

s
 

a
lo

n
g
 P

re
s
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

A
2
3
).

  
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 2
5
1
-2

5
3
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 t
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 v

il
la

s
 o

n
 P

re
s
to

n
 

R
o
a
d
. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 c

.1
8
7
0
, 
a
re

 m
a
in

ly
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
 p

lu
s
 h

a
lf
-

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
In

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t 
to

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

, 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 2
5
1
 a

n
d
 2

5
3
 a

re
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

a
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 f
li
g
h
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ir
s
, 
c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 
a
n
d
 

o
v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 r

o
o
fs

 a
re

 h
ip

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 s

la
te

. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
in

k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
 w

it
h
 a

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
 a

n
d
 m

a
tu

re
 v

e
g
e
ta

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
y
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
ta

in
 

th
e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
s
p
a
c
io

u
s
 p

lo
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 f
o
rm

 t
h
e
ir

 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 s

e
tt
in

g
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
P

re
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t,
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

P
re

s
to

n
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
6
-1

8
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

w
it
h
 s

h
o
p
s

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

T
h
re

e
 t
h
re

e
-s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
8
 w

it
h
 l
a
te

r 
a
tt
ic

 

s
to

re
y
).

  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
B

o
w

 f
ro

n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  
T

h
a
t 
to

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
7
 h

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 
 T

h
a
t 
to

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
6
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 c
a
n
o
p
y
. 
 

M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

a
t 
a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
ir

 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

th
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

P
re

s
to

n
 S

tr
e
e
t

4
0
-4

4
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

w
it
h
 s

h
o
p
s

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

F
iv

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
 w

it
h
 a

m
m

o
n
it
e
 

c
a
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 a

 m
o
u
ld

e
d
 e

a
v
e
s
 c

o
rn

ic
e
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
0
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 

h
e
ig

h
t,
 b

u
t 
h
a
s
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

m
m

o
n
it
e
 c

a
p
it
a
ls

. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

m
m

o
n
it
e
 c

a
p
it
a
ls

 w
e
re

 a
 

m
o
ti
f 
o
ft
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

tt
ri

b
u
te

d
 t
o
 A

m
o
n
 W

il
d
s
, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
h
e
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
in

 t
h
is

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 h

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

o
le

 u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
ti
f.
  
C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
. 
 I
t 
is

 

li
k
e
ly

 t
h
e
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 l
a
te

r 
in

s
e
rt

io
n
s
 i
n
to

 e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
o
 

m
u
c
h
 t
o
 r

e
ta

in
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
in

te
re

s
t 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

Q
u
e
e
n
s
 G

a
rd

e
n
s

1
-2

3
, 
2
4
-4

6
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
b
u
il
t 
la

te
 1

8
4
0
s
 b

y
 s

p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
 b

u
il
d
e
rs

. 
 S

h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

f 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

u
il
t 
n
e
x
t 
to

 e
a
c
h
o
th

e
r 

to
 c

re
a
te

 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 e

x
a
c
t 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 d

if
fe

rs
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
 M

a
jo

ri
ty

 a
re

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 o

r 
b
ri

c
k
 w

it
h
 

p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 f
la

t 
o
r 

s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 f
ro

n
t 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
, 

s
o
m

e
 w

it
h
 b

li
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  

S
e
v
e
ra

l 
o
f 
th

e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
 

a
b
o
v
e
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
h
m

s
.o

rg
.u

k
/c

o
n
te

n
t/
s
tr

e
e
t-

h
is

to
ry

-q
u
e
e
n
s
-g

a
rd

e
n
s

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 Q

u
e
e
n
’s

 G
a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 a

 

v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 t
y
p
if
ie

s
 t
h
e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 

a
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 S

q
u
a
re

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 w
a
s
 b

u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
1
8
 a

n
d
 1

8
2
8
. 
 T

h
e
 s

p
e
c
u
la

ti
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

J
o
s
h
u
a
 H

a
n
s
o
n
 s

o
ld

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
lo

ts
, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
o
v
e
n
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
fa

c
a
d
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 b

y
 W

il
d
s
 a

n
d
 W

il
d
s
 (

w
it
h
 l
a
te

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
 b

y
 W

il
d
s
 

a
n
d
 B

u
s
b
y
).

  
T

h
e
 c

o
v
e
n
a
n
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 t
h
e
 o

b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

o
w

n
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 e
q
u
a
ll
y
 t
o
 

th
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

fo
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
In

 t
h
e
 m

id
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 w
a
s
 b

u
il
t 
in

 t
h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

, 
o
p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
6
9
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 a

t 
th

re
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

; 
th

e
 t
o
p
 l
e
v
e
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
p
a
th

 w
it
h
 p

e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 w

h
il
s
t 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
re

 

la
rg

e
ly

 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
ra

il
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
n
 

u
n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
6
0
s
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 A

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

in
te

re
s
t 
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

152



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 

P
la

c
e
/Y

o
rk

 P
la

c
e

S
t 
P

e
te

r'
s
 

C
h
u
rc

h
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

P
u
b
li
c
 P

a
rk

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

S
t 
P

e
te

r’
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
 w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
1
8
2
4
-2

5
 b

y
 C

h
a
rl

e
s
 B

a
rr

y
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
u
b
li
c
ly

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 
a
n
d
 w

e
re

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

o
p
e
n
e
d
 u

p
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 (

in
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
ra

ff
ic

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 
V

a
ll
e
y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y
 2

0
0
5

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

re
a
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 o

f 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 S

t 
P

e
te

r’
s
 C

h
u
rc

h
. 
 I
t 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
ta

in
s
 i
ts

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

r 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
. 
 I
ts

 

in
te

re
s
t 
is

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
e
tt
in

g
 t
o
 

th
e
 l
is

te
d
 c

h
u
rc

h

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

R
o
u
n
d
h
il
l 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t

1
5
 a

n
d
 1

7
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
u
n
d
 H

il
l 
C

A
E

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 D

o
u
b
le

-f
ro

n
te

d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
s
. 
 P

a
in

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

ti
le

d
 m

o
n
o
-p

it
c
h
e
d
 h

o
o
d
. 
 S

q
u
a
re

 

b
a
y
s
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
, 
ri

s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll
 g

a
b
le

. 
 T

w
o
 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 (

w
it
h
 m

u
lt
i-

p
a
n
e
d
 t
o
p
 s

a
s
h
) 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

o
f 
e
a
c
h
 b

a
y
. 
 

T
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 M

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
, 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 s

p
e
a
r 

fi
n
ia

ls
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 (

li
s
te

d
),

 b
e
h
in

d
 a

 b
ri

c
k
 a

n
d
 f
li
n
t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

n
 i
n
fi
ll
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
it
u
a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

L
e
n
n
o
x
 R

o
a
d
; 
w

h
ic

h
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 t
h
e
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n
 r

o
u
te

 

C
a
t 
C

re
e
p
. 
 A

 s
e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
1
0
 

m
a
p
. 
 I
t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 d
w

e
ll
in

g
 b

y
 c

.1
9
3
0
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 d

iv
id

e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t.
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
7
 i
s
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
ra

te
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t.
  
P

a
in

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
li
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
b
ri

c
k
w

o
rk

, 
e
ro

d
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r.

  
A

s
 

s
u
c
h
, 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

1
5
 i
s
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 (

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
3
).

  
L
is

ti
n
g
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
lo

c
a
l 

li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

R
o
y
a
l 
C

re
s
c
e
n
t

R
o
y
a
l 

C
re

s
c
e
n
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
R

o
y
a
l 
C

re
s
c
e
n
t 
w

a
s
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
’s

 f
ir

s
t 
u
n
if
ie

d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
a
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

7
9
8
 a

n
d
 1

8
0
7
 f
o
r 

W
e
s
t 
In

d
ia

n
 

m
e
rc

h
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
u
la

to
r 

J
.B

. 
O

tt
o
 a

n
d
 p

re
d
a
te

s
 t
h
e
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
S

e
t 
to

 

th
e
 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 c

re
s
c
e
n
t-

s
h
a
p
e
d
. 
 I
n
 1

8
0
2
 O

tt
o
 e

re
c
te

d
 a

 

s
ta

tu
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ri
n
c
e
 o

f 
W

a
le

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
ry

 t
o
 i
m

p
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 P

ri
n
c
e
. 
 M

a
d
e
 

o
f 
C

o
a
d
e
 s

to
n
e
, 
it
 w

e
a
th

e
re

d
 b

a
d
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 
to

 i
m

p
re

s
s
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 i
n
 1

8
1
9
. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 a
 p

la
in

 g
ra

s
s
e
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
, 
w

it
h
 s

o
li
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 a
n
d
 n

o
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
o
 

th
e
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

b
y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
g
iv

e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 a

 p
u
b
li
c
ly

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

p
a
c
e
. 
 I
t 
is

 b
o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
m

o
d
e
rn

 r
a
il
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 h
e
d
g
e
. 
 I
t 
is

 

la
rg

e
ly

 l
a
id

 t
o
 g

ra
s
s
, 
w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 s

m
a
ll
 c

ir
c
u
la

r 
fl
o
w

e
rb

e
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
n
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 n

o
n
-o

ri
g
in

a
l,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

is
 a

 p
o
o
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 

o
f 
th

e
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
is

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 f
e
a
tu

re
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
a
fr

o
n
t 
ro

a
d
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

is
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

s
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

R
u
s
s
e
ll
 S

q
u
a
re

R
u
s
s
e
ll
 

S
q
u
a
re

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

R
u
s
s
e
ll
 S

q
u
a
re

 w
a
s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 1

8
2
0
s
 (

th
e
 s

o
u
th

, 
w

e
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

o
rt

h
 

s
id

e
s
),

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
4
0
s
, 
to

 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 
A

.H
. 
W

il
d
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 l
a
id

 o
u
t 
w

it
h
 t
re

e
 a

n
d
 s

h
ru

b
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 

c
.1

8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 s

h
o
w

s
 a

 p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
a
th

, 
p
e
ri

m
e
te

r 
p
la

n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

 s
in

g
le

 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
p
la

n
te

d
 f
e
a
tu

re
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 1

8
8
4
 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t.
  
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
l 
th

a
n
 i
ts

 p
re

d
e
c
e
s
s
o
r,

 

w
it
h
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

a
tu

re
 t
re

e
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 d
a
ti
n
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
th

 n
o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
in

s
ta

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 g

ra
n
t-

fu
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

1
9
9
0
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

e
s
ig

n
 t
o
 

th
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
 q

u
a
li
ty

, 
n
o
r 

d
o
e
s
 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
it
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 
 I
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 

b
u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 

te
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 s

e
t 
a
ro

u
n
d
 f
o
rm

a
l 
s
q
u
a
re

s
. 
 T

h
e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

q
u
a
re

 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 

in
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
a
c
k
v
il
le

 R
o
a
d

2
9
-4

3
 (

o
d
d
)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

O
ld

 H
o
v
e
 C

A
S

h
o
rt

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 3
5
-4

3
 a

re
 f
ir

s
t 
s
h
o
w

n
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
9
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 
w

h
il
s
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 2
9
-3

3
 a

re
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
.1

9
1
0
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 n

e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
 r

e
ta

in
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
d
e
ta

il
in

g
: 
 T

w
o
 

s
to

re
y
, 
w

it
h
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
o
r 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 a

tt
ic

 s
to

re
y
s
. 
 B

u
ff
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
fs

 (
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
o
fs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-c

o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

).
  
S

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l-
a
rc

h
e
d
 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
n
d
 d

o
o
r 

o
p
e
n
in

g
s
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
, 
m

o
u
ld

e
d
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 g

a
b
le

s
 w

it
h
 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 b

a
rg

e
b
o
a
rd

s
. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
ll
y
, 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 2
9
-3

3
 S

a
c
k
v
il
le

 R
o
a
d
 h

a
v
e
 s

m
a
ll
-

p
a
n
e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 s

a
s
h
, 
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
 t
o
 w

in
d
o
w

 c
il
ls

 a
n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

s
. 
 A

ll
 a

re
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
, 
o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 w

it
h
 l
o
w

 b
ri

c
k
 w

a
ll
s
 

w
it
h
 p

ie
rs

 a
n
d
 r

a
il
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 (
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
).

 S
e
v
e
ra

l 
b
la

c
k
 a

n
d
 

w
h
it
e
 t
il
e
d
 p

a
th

s
 a

ls
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 w

e
ll
. 
 

T
h
e
y
 a

re
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

153



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 P

a
rk

 

R
o
a
d

S
a
lt
d
e
a
n
 

L
id

o

S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

L
id

o
N

o
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I*

. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

S
e
y
m

o
u
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

1
5

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
L
o
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r 

o
f 
1
4
2
 M

a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
 (

B
ri

s
to

l 
C

o
u
rt

 W
e
s
t)

, 
1
5
 S

e
y
m

o
u
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 
is

 

th
e
 o

n
ly

 h
is

to
ri

c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
th

ro
u
g
h
-r

o
a
d
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
n
e
c
te

d
 

M
a
ri

n
e
 P

a
ra

d
e
 a

n
d
 S

t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 R
o
a
d
. 
 T

h
e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
 w

a
s
 f
o
rm

e
rl

y
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

K
e
m

p
 T

o
w

n
 B

re
w

e
ry

; 
th

e
 s

it
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 1

5
 

S
e
y
m

o
u
r 

S
tr

e
e
t 
is

 a
 l
o
w

, 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
n
in

g
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
re

 l
o
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 h
u
m

b
le

; 
th

e
 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

d
o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r,

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 

b
ra

c
k
e
ts

. 
 T

h
is

 r
is

e
s
 t
o
 e

a
v
e
s
 l
e
v
e
l,
 i
n
te

rr
u
p
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
 c

o
rn

ic
e
. 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u

n
u
s
u
a
ll
y
 

la
rg

e
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

 (
re

la
ti
v
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
) 

w
h
ic

h
 

d
o
m

in
a
te

s
 t
h
e
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
. 
 I
t 
is

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
h
ip

 S
tr

e
e
t 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

1
1
-1

2
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
s

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

A
T

w
o
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
; 
3
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 n

a
rr

o
w

 l
a
n
e
, 
a
n
d
 s

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
n
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
 (

to
 a

ll
o
w

 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
li
g
h
w

e
ll
).

  

R
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
, 
ro

o
f 
n
o
t 
v
is

ib
le

. 
 B

o
w

e
d
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r;

 t
h
a
t 
to

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
2
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 
th

e
 m

a
in

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
. 
 H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 e

x
p
o
s
e
d
 b

o
x
e
s
 

re
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 L

a
te

r 
m

e
ta

l 
b
a
lc

o
n
y
 (

p
ro

b
a
b
le

 

fi
re

 e
s
c
a
p
e
) 

a
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
a
re

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

O
ld

 T
o
w

n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
s
 m

o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
il
lw

o
o
d
 S

tr
e
e
t

3
(p

a
rt

 o
f 

S
il
lw

o
o
d
 

G
a
te

, 
1
-3

 

p
lu

s
 3

A
)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

 a
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
N

o
w

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
S

il
lw

o
o
d
 G

a
te

, 

1
-3

 S
il
lw

o
o
d
 S

tr
e
e
t.
  
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

o
o
fl
in

e
 w

it
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 5
-7

 a
ls

o
. 
 T

h
e
 

ro
o
fl
in

e
 s

e
e
m

s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 F

ro
n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

w
in

d
o
w

 f
ro

m
 g

ro
u
n
d
 t
o
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 t
w

o
 

s
te

p
s
. 
 R

a
il
in

g
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
li
g
h
tw

e
ll
. 
 H

e
a
v
y
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r,

 s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 a

t 
a
 l
a
te

r 
d
a
te

. 
 F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 c

o
rb

e
l 
a
n
d
 d

e
n
ti
ls

 a
b
o
v
e
 

d
o
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 d

is
ru

p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
S

il
lw

o
o
d
 G

a
te

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
q
u
a
li
ty

, 
b
u
t 
is

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
G

e
o
rg

e
's

 R
o
a
d

1
0
-1

3
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
a
n
k

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
R

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 
 U

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

 c
o
n
ta

in
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 S

t 
G

e
o
rg

e
’s

 R
o
a
d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 p

la
in

 s
a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 C

o
ll
e
g
e
 R

o
a
d
. 
 

H
e
a
v
y
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 a

b
o
v
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
is

t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

m
a
k
e
s
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t

3
8
-3

8
A

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 s

ty
le

. 
 S

h
o
p
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

id
e
. 
 A

b
o
v
e
, 
n
a
rr

o
w

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 S

t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
re

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  
D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

te
p
p
e
d
 

d
e
ta

il
 t
o
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
S

im
il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
fr

o
n
ta

g
e
 b

u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 a

 w
id

e
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 ‘
s
tr

e
tc

h
e
d
’ 
a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 v

e
rt

ic
a
l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

d
if
fe

rs
 i
n
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 t
o
 i
ts

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

, 
th

e
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri

e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
t 
a
ty

p
ic

a
l 

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

w
it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 

w
o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t

8
1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 
n
o
w

 

re
s
ta

u
ra

n
t,
 

a
n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

u
m

b
e
r 

8
1
 i
s
 a

 4
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
It
 f
ro

n
ts

 o
n
 t
o
 N

e
w

 

S
te

in
e
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  
B

a
lc

o
n
y
 w

it
h
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
in

g
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
F

la
n
k
 w

a
ll
 f
ro

n
ts

 o
n
to

 S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 

s
h
o
p
 f
ro

n
t.
  
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 r

e
a
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

8
1
, 
a
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 a

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

154



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t 

N
o
rt

h

4
7

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 O

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
it
 

h
a
s
 a

 b
ri

c
k
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 a

 p
o
o
rl

y
 

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
e
d
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
. 
 A

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
m

a
g
e
 s

u
rv

iv
e
s
 o

f 
it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 (

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

1
9
6
0
s
).

  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
2
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
2
_
0
8
5
.h

tm
l

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

re
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 a

n
d
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t 

N
o
rt

h

4
8
-5

0
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
te

ls
, 
n
o
w

 

s
h
o
p
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

u
m

b
e
rs

 4
8
 t
o
 5

0
 S

t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 
N

o
rt

h
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
e
 e

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 t
il
e
d
 m

a
n
s
a
rd

 r
o
o
fs

. 
 L

o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 o

f 
N

e
w

 S
te

in
e
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 s

im
il
a
r 

in
 s

c
a
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
-4

9
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 D

e
v
o
n
s
h
ir

e
 H

o
te

l,
 w

h
il
s
t 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
0
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 N

e
w

 S
te

in
e
 H

o
te

l.
  
H

is
to

ri
c
 p

h
o
to

s
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 B

o
th

 b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 
4
 

p
il
a
s
te

rs
 w

it
h
 i
o
n
ic

 c
a
p
it
a
ls

 d
iv

id
e
 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
b
a
y
s
. 
 A

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 d

iv
id

e
s
 t
h
e
 

to
p
 s

to
re

y
, 
w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
a
v
e
s
 c

o
rn

ic
e
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 B

o
th

 h
a
v
e
 p

o
o
r 

m
o
d
e
rn

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 a

tt
ic

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

4
8
-4

9
 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
f 
5
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 a

 5
 w

in
d
o
w

 r
a
n
g
e
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 a

 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 I
ts

 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
c
a
n
o
p
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

x
tr

a
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fi
rs

t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
rs

 a
n
d
 s

tr
o
n
g
 g

ri
d
 s

u
p
e
ri

m
p
o
s
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 f
a
ç
a
d
e
. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

5
0
 i
s
 o

f 
4
 s

to
re

y
s
 a

n
d
 7

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 w

it
h
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 o

f 

th
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

o
n
ly

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.i
m

a
g
e
s
.b

ri
g
h
to

n
-h

o
v
e
-r

p
m

l.
o
rg

.u
k
/a

s
s
e
tb

a
n
k
-

p
a
v
il
io

n
/a

c
ti
o
n
/v

ie
w

A
s
s
e
t?

id
=

2
7
4
2
3
&

in
d
e
x
=

1
&

to
ta

l=
6
&

v
ie

w
=

v
ie

w
S

e
a
rc

h
It
e
m

, 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
2
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
2
_
0
8
5
.h

tm
l,
 C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 

s
o
m

e
 g

ro
u
p
 v

a
lu

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
is

te
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

n
 N

e
w

 

S
te

in
e
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 p

re
v
a
il
in

g
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
y
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t 

N
o
rt

h

5
8

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

u
m

b
e
r 

5
8
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
d
e
c
a
d
e
. 
 N

o
w

 a
ls

o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

5
6
, 
it
 i
s
 o

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 c
a
fé

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
b
o
v
e
. 
 

It
 i
s
 w

h
it
e
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 g

la
s
s
 b

a
lc

o
n
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

la
rg

e
ly

 r
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
d
e
c
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t 

S
o
u
th

1
1
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
4
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
w

it
h
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

in
g
le

 c
a
n
te

d
 

b
a
y
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 s

to
re

y
s
. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 t
il
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
re

tt
e
d
 v

a
ll
a
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r;

 s
c
a
ll
o
p
e
d
 c

o
rb

e
ls

 b
e
n
e
a
th

 t
h
e
 t
h
ir

d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
t 

e
a
v
e
s
 l
e
v
e
l,
 w

it
h
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

u
tc

h
 g

a
b
le

 w
it
h
 s

u
n
d
ia

l 
a
n
d
 s

c
a
ll
o
p
-d

e
ta

il
 

s
h
o
u
ld

e
rs

 s
u
rm

o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

. 
 V

e
ry

 l
a
rg

e
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
 t
o
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
ll
. 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 u
n
u
s
u
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 T

h
e
 

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 s
tr

e
e
ts

c
a
p
e
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
d
 o

f 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
v
a
ry

in
g
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
, 
m

a
n
y
 w

it
h
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 h
is

to
ri

c
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

 

s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 e

c
le

c
ti
c
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

is
 s

tr
e
e
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 S
tr

e
e
t 

S
o
u
th

1
2
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
4
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

  
B

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 a

ll
 f
lo

o
rs

 a
b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
p
a
ra

p
e
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a
l 
ti
le

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 S

m
a
ll
 

p
a
n
e
d
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
w

; 
th

o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

a
re

 l
a
te

r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
t 
M

a
rt

in
's

 S
tr

e
e
t

S
t 
M

a
rt

in
's

 

C
o
u
rt

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 f
a
c
e
d
 i
n
 f
ie

ld
 f
li
n
t 
w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 s
te

e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 

g
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

d
 r

o
o
f.
 B

u
il
t 
in

 1
8
7
5
 a

s
 S

t 
M

a
rt

in
’s

 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 a

 ‘
N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l’,

 b
u
t 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 f
la

ts
 w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 d

o
rm

e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 a
d
d
it
io

n
s
/ 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rw

is
e
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
o
 

a
lt
e
re

d

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

155



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d

4
6

H
o
ll
in

g
b
u
ry

 

H
o
u
s
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

h
o
m

e

N
o
 C

A
D

o
u
b
le

-f
ro

n
te

d
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 t
o
w

n
h
o
u
s
e
, 
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

t 
e
n
d
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
e
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
rl

y
-d

e
ta

il
e
d
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 T

h
is

 a
re

a
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 D

a
n
ie

l 
F

ri
e
n
d
 a

s
 a

 m
id

d
le

-c
la

s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

e
s
ta

te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
6
0
s
, 
a
n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 B

ri
g
d
e
n
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 H

a
m

il
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 
H

a
m

il
to

n
 

T
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
P

re
s
to

n
v
il
le

 R
o
a
d
, 
P

re
s
to

n
v
il
le

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
, 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 
w

it
h
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

o
d
il
li
o
n
s
. 
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 f
la

n
k
e
d
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 b

y
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 T

h
e
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 

o
p
e
n
in

g
s
 a

ll
 h

a
v
e
 r

o
u
n
d
e
d
 c

o
rn

e
rs

. 
 D

o
o
r 

h
a
s
 g

la
z
e
d
 l
ig

h
ts

 a
n
d
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
; 

fa
n
li
g
h
t 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
’s

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
n
a
m

e
 ‘
H

o
ll
in

g
b
u
ry

 H
o
u
s
e
’.
  
S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

o
ll
is

 

2
0
1
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 d

o
u
b
le

-

fr
o
n
te

d
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 s

ty
le

 a
n
d
 p

e
ri

o
d
 

fo
r 

th
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
s
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 

o
f 
s
im

il
a
rl

y
 d

e
ta

il
e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 

is
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
it
s
 t
y
p
e
, 
it
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

ra
ri

ty
 o

r 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
li
ty

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
ta

n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d

4
8

(n
o
m

in
a
te

d
 

a
s
 4

8
 

H
a
m

il
to

n
 

R
o
a
d
)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
D

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
b
u
il
t 
1
8
7
0
 f
o
r 

D
a
n
ie

l 
F

ri
e
n
d
. 
 F

ri
e
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
v
il
le

 

a
re

a
–
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 B

ri
g
d
e
n
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 H

a
m

il
to

n
 R

o
a
d
, 
H

a
m

il
to

n
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 
P

re
s
to

n
v
il
le

 

R
o
a
d
, 
P

re
s
to

n
v
il
le

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 S

ta
n
fo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 -

 a
s
 a

 m
id

d
le

-c
la

s
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
 i
n
 

th
e
 1

8
6
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

8
7
0
s
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 o

v
e
r 

b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 a

tt
ic

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
 

w
it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 w

in
d
o
w

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
, 
q
u
o
in

s
 a

n
d
 

m
o
d
il
li
o
n
s
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 l
a
rg

e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 p
o
rc

h
, 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 

g
ro

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

ri
p
a
rt

it
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f,
 n

o
w

 c
o
v
e
re

d
 i
n
 

c
o
n
c
re

te
 t
il
e
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
C

o
ll
is

 2
0
1
0
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
6
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
6
_
1
0
4
.h

tm
l

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 h

o
u
s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
o
rc

h
, 
ro

o
f 

s
la

te
s
, 
c
h
im

n
e
y
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 u

n
s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
rg

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
o
rm

e
r.

  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

d
o
u
b
le

-f
ro

n
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
y
p
e
, 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
s
ty

le
 a

n
d
 p

e
ri

o
d
 o

f 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
, 
n
o
r 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
ta

n
m

e
r 

V
il
la

g
e

1
1
 a

n
d
 1

2
S

ta
n
m

e
r

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

S
ta

n
m

e
r 

C
A

In
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

S
o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

. 
T

h
e
 S

o
u
th

 D
o
w

n
s
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

a
rk

 A
u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 f
o
r 

th
is

 a
re

a
 a

n
d
 w

il
l 
b
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

S
te

y
n
in

g
 R

o
a
d

S
o
u
th

d
o
w

n
, 

B
ro

o
k
s
id

e
, 

M
u
lb

e
rr

y
, 

B
ra

e
m

a
r,

 S
t 

Iv
e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
o
rn

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 a

tt
ic

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 E

a
rl

y
 2

0
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 R

e
g
u
la

r 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 B

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 

re
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 m

o
c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

fr
a
m

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

. 
 P

a
ir

e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 t
il
e
d
 p

o
rc

h
e
s
. 
 

S
q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
s
 w

it
h
 h

u
n
g
 t
il
e
s
. 
 T

il
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 f
li
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
s
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ie
c
e
m

e
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
R

o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 

in
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
to

n
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

2
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
 s

it
u
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
a
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 s

la
te

 

ro
o
f.
  
C

h
im

n
e
y
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
ll
s
. 
 F

ro
n
t 
d
o
o
r 

s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 a
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 s

li
g
h
t 

re
c
e
s
s
, 
th

e
 h

e
a
d
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

o
li
d
. 
 S

m
a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 s

a
s
h
e
s
 s

e
t 
w

it
h
in

 a
 s

h
a
ll
o
w

 b
o
w

 

w
in

d
o
w

 w
h
ic

h
 r

is
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

le
v
e
ls

. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
E

n
g
li
s
h
 H

e
ri

ta
g
e
 

D
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 R

e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

1
3
A

-1
4
 S

to
n
e
 S

tr
e
e
t

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 

fl
y
 s

ta
b
le

s
 (

li
s
te

d
).

  
It
 i
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 

in
 t
h
o
s
e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 

th
a
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

s
ta

tu
s
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
 

It
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

S
u
rr

e
n
d
e
n
 R

o
a
d

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 

R
o
m

a
n
 

C
a
th

o
li
c
 

C
h
u
rc

h

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
la

c
e
 o

f 

W
o
rs

h
ip

 -
 

R
o
m

a
n
 

C
a
th

o
li
c

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 P

e
rc

y
 L

a
m

b
 i
n
 1

9
1
0
-2

, 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 1

9
7
5
 w

h
e
n
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
h
a
p
e
 o

f 
a
 c

ro
s
s
 w

a
s
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r.

  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
P

re
s
to

n
 D

ro
v
e
 a

n
d
 

S
u
rr

e
n
d
e
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

re
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 a

 ‘
k
e
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
’.
  
S

to
n
e
 w

it
h
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f.
  
M

a
in

 e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 S

u
rr

e
n
d
e
n
 

R
o
a
d
 d

o
m

in
a
te

d
 b

y
 l
a
rg

e
 s

q
u
a
re

 t
o
w

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

c
ta

g
o
n
a
l 
to

w
e
r 

to
 n

o
rt

h
e
a
s
t 
c
o
rn

e
r.

  

P
e
rp

e
n
d
ic

u
la

r 
tr

a
c
e
ry

 t
o
 b

e
lf
ry

 w
in

d
o
w

s
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 s

o
m

e
 a

re
 l
o
u
v
e
re

d
, 
s
o
m

e
 a

re
 b

li
n
d
. 
 

C
re

n
a
ll
a
te

d
 t
o
p
. 
 T

h
e
 t
o
w

e
r 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 P

e
rp

e
n
d
ic

u
la

r 

d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 L

a
rg

e
 P

e
rp

e
n
d
ic

u
la

r 
w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 n

a
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 s

id
e
 

a
is

le
 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
P

re
s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 

g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

156



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

S
u
s
s
e
x
 M

e
w

s
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

M
e
w

s
E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
M

e
w

s
 s

tr
e
e
t,
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 t
w

o
 p

a
ra

ll
e
l 
te

rr
a
c
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 v

ia
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 

a
rc

h
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
lo

s
e
d
 a

t 
it
s
 s

o
u
th

 e
n
d
 b

y
 a

 t
a
ll
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 

h
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 s
e
t 
b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
ts

. 
 S

tr
o
n
g
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n
g
 b

a
n
d
 a

t 
e
a
v
e
s
 l
e
v
e
l.
  
W

in
d
o
w

s
 

a
n
d
 d

o
o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
lt
e
re

d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

n
e
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

e
w

s
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 a

rc
h
w

a
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
 

It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

S
u
s
s
e
x
 S

tr
e
e
t

T
a
rn

e
r 

P
a
rk

B
ri

g
h
to

n
P

a
rk

 &
 

G
a
rd

e
n

G
a
rd

e
n
, 
n
o
w

 

p
u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

C
a
rl

to
n
 H

il
l 
C

A
T

h
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 t
o
 1

 T
il
b
u
ry

 P
la

c
e
 (

S
t 
J
o
h
n
’s

 L
o
d
g
e
).

  

B
u
il
t 
in

 c
.1

8
1
5
, 
th

e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
u
c
h
 l
a
rg

e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
o
s
e
 

s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 

m
e
rc

h
a
n
t 
E

d
w

a
rd

 T
a
rn

e
r 

a
n
d
 h

is
 w

it
h
 L

a
e
ti
ti
a
 (

n
e
e
 T

il
b
u
ry

).
  
E

d
w

in
 T

il
b
u
ry

 T
a
rn

e
r 

(s
o
n
 

o
f 
th

e
 a

b
o
v
e
),

 b
u
il
t 
th

e
 l
is

te
d
 f
li
n
t 
lo

o
k
o
u
t 
to

w
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
o
 s

ig
h
t 
s
h
ip

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
l.
  
T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 T

il
b
u
ry

 T
a
rn

e
rs

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 

1
9
3
0
s
, 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 d

is
p
o
s
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
 l
a
n
d
. 
 P

a
rt

 o
f 
it
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 a

 n
u
rs

e
ry

, 
n
o
w

 t
h
e
 

T
a
rn

e
rl

a
n
d
 N

u
rs

e
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l.
  
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

w
a
s
 a

c
q
u
ir

e
d
 b

y
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
li
c
 p

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

re
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 m

a
p
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
id

 o
u
t 

w
it
h
 a

 s
e
ri

e
s
 o

f 
la

w
n
s
 a

re
a
s
 b

o
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
th

s
 a

n
d
 t
re

e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 p

a
rk

 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
n
 a

 s
te

e
p
 

w
e
s
t 
to

 e
a
s
t 
s
lo

p
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
t 
is

 u
n
c
le

a
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
g
a
rd

e
n
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 t
h
is

 s
lo

p
e
 o

r 

w
a
s
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
. 
 T

e
rr

a
c
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
v
id

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
p
a
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

re
c
re

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 a

 b
a
ll
 c

o
u
rt

 a
n
d
 p

la
y
 a

re
a
. 
 A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
n
o
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

h
is

to
ri

c
 m

e
ri

t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

a
rk

. 
 A

n
 a

ir
 r

a
id

 s
h
e
lt
e
r 

h
a
d
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 

in
s
e
rt

e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 w

a
r.

  
In

 c
o
n
tr

a
s
t,
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 s
u
rr

o
u
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
o
w

e
r 

it
s
e
lf
 

re
ta

in
s
 m

o
re

 o
f 
it
s
 h

is
to

ri
c
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r.
  
T

h
e
 p

a
rk

 r
e
ta

in
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fl
in

t 
w

a
ll
s
. 
S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
a
rl

to
n
 H

il
l 
C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
S

ta
te

m
e
n
t,
 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
9
2
3
2
.a

s
p
x
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

p
a
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
u
b
li
c
 

a
m

e
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 

o
f 
th

e
 l
is

te
d
 t
o
w

e
r.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

T
e
m

p
le

 S
tr

e
e
t

7
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
. 
 R

o
o
f 
h
id

d
e
n
 b

y
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
D

o
o
r 

w
it
h
 s

q
u
a
re

 

fa
n
li
g
h
t 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 b

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

is
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll
 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 C

u
rv

e
d
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 s

m
a
ll
-

p
a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 D

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
 t
o
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 i
t 
is

 o
f 
a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 t
y
p
e
 

a
n
d
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
e
rm

in
u
s
 P

la
c
e

1
-6

 

(c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

)

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

W
e
s
t 
H

il
l 
C

A
E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 h

o
u
s
e
s
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
, 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
B

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

fl
o
o
r,

 w
it
h
 s

m
a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
/o

r 
th

e
 b

a
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 2
, 
5
 a

n
d
 6

. 
 S

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
. 
 

R
e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

tr
in

g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 m

o
u
ld

in
g
 t
o
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
H

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 t
o
o
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
 D

ri
v
e

8
-1

4
 (

e
v
e
n
)

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
s

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

T
w

o
 m

a
tc

h
in

g
 s

e
m

i-
d
e
ta

c
h
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 c

o
m

p
ri

s
in

g
 4

 h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 T

h
re

e
 f
lo

o
rs

 

w
it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 B

u
ff
 g

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
. 
 P

a
ir

e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 c

e
n
tr

e
, 
re

c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 

h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

o
g
-t

o
o
th

e
d
 b

a
n
d
s
, 
C

o
ri

n
th

ia
n
 c

a
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 

k
e
y
s
to

n
e
s
, 
s
u
rm

o
u
n
te

d
 b

y
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
. 
 H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 b

o
th

 

fl
o
o
rs

 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 a

n
d
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 c

o
rb

e
ll
e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

e
ta

il
 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
6
 (

li
s
te

d
).

  
P

a
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 A

ll
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

re
 

la
rg

e
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 D

o
rm

e
rs

 s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 h
ip

p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f,
 e

x
c
e
p
t 
fo

r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

1
0
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 f
in

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 W

il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

c
o
n
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

1
6
 (

li
s
te

d
),

 

a
n
d
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
o
th

e
r,

 t
h
e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

m
a
tc

h
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

r 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
ir

 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
 D

ri
v
e

2
0

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

F
la

ts
W

il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

A
 4

-5
 s

to
re

y
 a

p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
b
lo

c
k
 w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
R

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 a

n
d
 c

re
a
m

 s
to

n
e
, 
o
n
c
e
 h

o
m

e
 

to
 n

o
v
e
li
s
t 
D

a
m

e
 I
v
y
 C

o
m

p
to

n
 B

u
rn

e
tt
 (

1
8
9
7
-1

9
1
5
).

  
T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

b
y
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
W

a
rr

e
n
 C

o
o
p
e
r 

fo
r 

T
.L

. 
W

il
li
a
m

s
 i
n
 1

8
9
4
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 w

a
s
 f
o
r 

a
 

fo
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
to

re
y
 w

it
h
in

 a
 s

te
e
p
ly

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
w

it
h
 

g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 t
o
 s

tr
e
e
t.
  
T

h
e
 r

o
o
f 
fo

rm
 w

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
; 
in

s
te

a
d
 i
t 
w

a
s
 

fi
n
is

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 f
la

t 
ro

o
f.
  
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 (

B
H

2
0
1
2
/0

0
8
3
2
) 

to
 

b
u
il
d
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 s

to
re

y
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f 
to

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 h

a
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
e
n
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
ll
y
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 r
o
o
f 
fo

rm
, 
a
lb

e
it
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

h
is

to
ri

c
 p

re
c
e
d
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

o
ll
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
 D

ri
v
e

9
5

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
is

t

D
e
m

o
li
s
h
e
d

157



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

T
h
e
 D

ro
v
e
w

a
y

F
o
u
n
ta

in
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

D
ri

n
k
in

g
 

F
o
u
n
ta

in

T
h
e
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

u
m

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

a
ll
s
 t
o
 T

h
e
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

u
m

, 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 f
o
u
n
ta

in
 

fo
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 l
is

ti
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 o

ff
e
rs

 i
t 
g
re

a
te

r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

B
u
il
d
in

g
 

a
d
jo

in
in

g
 

D
a
le

 

C
o
tt
a
g
e
 i
n
 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
 o

f 

C
o
n
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 f
li
n
t 

w
a
ll

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

O
u
th

o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 f
li
n
t-

b
u
il
t 
o
u
th

o
u
s
e
, 
w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
f.
  
R

o
o
f 
is

 o
f 
tw

o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
h
e
ig

h
ts

, 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
tw

o
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 H

a
lf
-h

ip
p
e
d
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 c
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o
w

s
. 
 A

d
jo

in
s
 D

a
le

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
 (

li
s
te

d
),

 b
u
t 
is

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 o

f 
S

t 

M
a
rg

a
re

t’
s
 C

o
n
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
n
v
e
n
t.
  

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
 t
o
 D

a
le

 C
o
tt
a
g
e
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

li
s
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t,
 a

s
 l
is

ti
n
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 

g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
ts

e
lf
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 g

ro
u
p
 v

a
lu

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 D

a
le

 

C
o
tt
a
g
e
. 
 I
t 
is

, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

in
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 u

s
e
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 l
o
s
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
it
s
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

in
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 w
in

d
o
w

s
, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

F
o
rm

e
r 

s
ta

b
le

 a
n
d
 

a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

w
a
ll
 e

a
s
t 
o
f 

O
u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 

L
o
u
rd

e
s
 R

C
 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 

S
c
h
o
o
l

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

W
a
ll
 a

n
d
 

s
ta

b
le

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 f
li
n
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 B

ri
c
k
 a

rc
h
w

a
y
 t
o
 s

o
u
th

 

w
a
ll
. 
 P

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
w

it
h
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f
a
c
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
t.
  
B

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 

b
e
h
in

d
 a

 t
a
ll
 c

o
u
rs

e
d
 f
li
n
t 
c
o
b
b
le

 w
a
ll
. 
 W

a
ll
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 

d
o
o
rw

a
y
, 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
, 
q
u
o
in

s
 a

n
d
 h

a
lf
-r

o
u
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 c

o
p
in

g
. 
 T

h
e
 w

a
ll
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 

to
 n

o
rt

h
 i
n
 l
e
s
s
 h

ig
h
-q

u
a
li
ty

 f
li
n
tw

o
rk

 (
fi
e
ld

 f
li
n
t)

. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
 m

a
p
s
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
it
 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

n
 o

u
tb

u
il
d
in

g
 t
o
 C

a
v
e
n
d
is

h
 a

n
d
 P

a
x
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 (
li
s
te

d
).

  
T

h
e
 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 v

is
u
a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 i
s
 n

o
w

 s
e
v
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 O

u
r 

L
a
d
y
 o

f 
L
o
u
rd

e
s
 R

o
m

a
n
 C

a
th

o
li
c
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 w

a
ll
 a

n
d
 s

ta
b
le

 a
re

 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
ta

b
le

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 o

f 
m

in
im

a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 
p
ro

m
in

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
. 
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

th
e
m

 w
it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

F
o
rm

e
r 

s
ta

b
le

s
 t
o
 

T
h
e
 D

e
n
e
 

a
n
d
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 

w
a
ll
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
ta

b
le

s
, 
n
o
w

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
F

o
rm

e
rl

y
 t
h
e
 

s
ta

b
le

s
 t
o
 T

h
e
 D

e
n
e
 (

li
s
te

d
) 

a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 

g
ro

u
n
d
s
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

re
-d

a
te

d
 1

9
4
8
 a

n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 u

s
e
. 
 I
t 
is

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 c
u
rt

il
a
g
e
 l
is

te
d
. 
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

li
s
ti
n
g
. 
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

L
it
tl
e
 B

a
rn

, 

B
o
x
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
, 

B
o
w

ls
 

C
o
tt
a
g
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

A
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l,
 

n
o
w

 h
o
u
s
e
s

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

O
n
e
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
n
o
w

 c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 
 F

li
n
t 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
(L

it
tl
e
 B

a
rn

) 
s
e
t 
p
a
ra

ll
e
l 
to

 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
. 
 

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 (
B

o
w

ls
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
 t
o
 n

o
rt

h
, 
B

o
x
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
 t
o
 s

o
u
th

) 
a
t 
ri

g
h
t 
a
n
g
le

s
 t
o
 

ro
a
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 o
f 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 e

le
m

e
n
t,
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 f
o
rm

 a
 U

-s
h
a
p
e
d
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
 m

a
p
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 B

o
w

ls
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 B

o
x
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
 a

re
 f
ir

s
t 
e
v
id

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
. 
 L

it
tl
e
 B

a
rn

 i
s
 

fi
rs

t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
3
0
 O

S
 m

a
p
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 

a
re

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
o
ri

g
in

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

v
il
la

g
e
, 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

lt
e
re

d
 s

u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
o
v
e
rt

ly
 

a
p
p
a
re

n
t.
  
T

h
e
 d

o
m

in
a
n
t 
e
le

m
e
n
t 
–
 L

it
tl
e
 B

a
rn

 –
 i
s
 o

f 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
d
a
te

, 
a
n
d
 i
ts

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 r

o
o
f 
p
it
c
h
 i
s
 n

o
t 
th

a
t 
o
f 
a
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 

a
g
ri

c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
 A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
y
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 v

il
la

g
e
, 
th

e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 

D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

S
q
u
a
s
h
 

C
o
tt
a
g
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
ta

b
le

, 
n
o
w

 

h
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

F
li
n
t 
b
u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

 g
a
b
le

d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
A

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
tu

rr
e
t 
is

 s
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

ri
d
g
e
li
n
e
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
rm

s
 a

n
 u

n
u
s
u
a
l 
fe

a
tu

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
. 
 I
ts

 p
ro

m
in

e
n
c
e
 i
s
 

h
e
ig

h
te

n
e
d
 b

y
 i
ts

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
T

h
e
 G

re
e
n
 w

h
e
re

 i
t 
tu

rn
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
F

a
lm

e
r 

R
o
a
d
. 
It
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 1

8
3
9
 t
it
h
e
 m

a
p
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 h

a
d
 a

 v
a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

u
s
e
s
. 
 I
t 
w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 t
h
e
 s

ta
b
le

 t
o
 D

o
w

n
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
a
n
d
 l
a
te

r 
fi
tt
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 s
q
u
a
s
h
 c

o
u
rt

. 
 

A
 p

a
c
k
 o

f 
b
e
a
g
le

s
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
a
re

n
tl
y
 a

ls
o
 o

n
c
e
 k

e
p
t 
th

e
re

. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
. 
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 s

o
m

e
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 

o
f 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
fl
ig

h
ts

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

 g
a
ra

g
e
 d

o
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

 g
a
b
le

 e
n
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

C
o
ll
is

 2
0
1
0

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

e
ro

d
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
u
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
a
b
ri

c
. 
 I
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
 a

n
d
 i
s
 m

o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

158



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

T
h
e
 G

re
e
n

S
t 
M

a
rt

h
a
's

 

C
o
n
v
e
n
t

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
o
n
v
e
n
t

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
h
e
 o

rd
e
r 

o
ri

g
in

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 D

o
rd

o
g
n
e
, 
F

ra
n
c
e
 i
n
 1

6
4
3
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
v
e
n
t 
in

 R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

w
a
s
 o

n
ly

 e
s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
3
. 
 I
t 
m

o
v
e
d
 t
o
 i
ts

 p
re

s
e
n
t 
s
it
e
 i
n
 1

9
2
4
/5

, 
b
e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 o

f 
R

u
d
y
a
rd

 K
ip

li
n
g
’s

 m
in

ia
tu

re
 r

if
le

 r
a
n
g
e
. 
 T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

w
it
h
 p

it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
P

a
ir

e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 r

a
is

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 q

u
o
in

s
. 
 I
t 
is

 s
e
t 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
ll
y
 b

a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
fr

o
n
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 
d
ri

v
e
w

a
y
 f
la

n
k
e
d
 b

y
 l
a
w

n
s
 a

n
d
 

o
rn

a
m

e
n
ta

l 
tr

e
e
s
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 f
li
n
t 
w

a
ll
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 B

a
s
e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

q
u
a
d
, 
e
n
c
lo

s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
re

e
 a

n
d
 a

 h
a
lf
 s

id
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 c

h
a
p
e
l 
te

rm
in

a
te

s
 i
n
 a

n
 a

p
s
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 

m
o
d
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
1
9
2
0
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 o

r 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 

w
o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

T
h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

1
-7

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 C
A

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 e

x
is

t.
  
A

ll
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 i
n
 T

h
e
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
re

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
, 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h
e
m

 w
it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
id

y
 S

tr
e
e
t

1
-2

7
 a

n
d
 3

1
-

5
2
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
3
6
 a

n
d
 1

8
4
1
, 
T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 
c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 s
tr

e
e
t 
o
f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 

re
n
d
e
re

d
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
w

it
h
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
P

it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
fs

 (
n
o
w

 m
o
s
tl
y
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 t
il
e
),

 

w
it
h
 c

h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

y
 w

a
ll
s
. 
 E

a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 h

a
d
 a

 s
m

a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
h
e
a
d
e
d
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 b
a
s
e
m

e
n
t 

li
g
h
tw

e
ll
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

is
 r

u
s
ti
c
a
te

d
, 
te

rm
in

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

 r
a
is

e
d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 s

tr
in

g
 

c
o
u
rs

e
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 a

 p
il
a
s
te

r 
w

it
h
 i
o
n
ic

 c
a
p
it
a
l.
  
M

o
s
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

re
ta

in
 t
h
e
ir

 o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
ta

il
in

g
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s

o
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 S

tu
d
y

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 c
h
a
ra

c
te

rf
u
l 

s
tr

e
e
ts

c
a
p
e
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

L
a
in

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
s
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 

S
tu

d
y
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 

4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 d

o
e
s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
o
w

e
r 

G
a
te

, 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d

T
o
w

e
r 

H
o
u
s
e

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

 a
n
d
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 

c
e
n
tr

e

P
re

s
to

n
 P

a
rk

 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 a

s
 i
t 
is

 s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 l
is

te
d
 a

t 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

th
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

2
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t.
  
It
 f
o
rm

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

n
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 

(a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

).
  
S

h
o
p
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 c

o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

(o
ri

g
in

a
l)

 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t.
  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 

io
n
ic

 p
il
a
s
te

r 
to

 e
it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t 
fa

ç
a
d
e
. 
 H

ip
p
e
d
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 i
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

te
rr

a
c
e
s
 o

n
 T

id
y
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

ro
d
e
d
 d

u
e
 

to
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 I
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 
s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
s
. 
 I
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
it
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

m
a
n
y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t 
n
o
r 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

3
1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
a
fé

 a
n
d
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
 c

o
rn

e
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
re

n
d
e
re

d
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
a
n
d
 o

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 b

o
x
e
d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 
 

C
o
rn

e
r 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 c

a
fé

, 
w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

 o
n
to

 T
ra

fa
lg

a
r 

S
tr

e
e
t.
  

K
e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 o

f 
th

re
e
 b

a
y
s
; 
s
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

n
 K

e
n
s
in

g
to

n
 P

la
c
e
. 
 D

o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

in
g
le

 s
m

a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 

w
in

d
o
w

 s
u
rv

iv
in

g
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 a

w
n
in

g
 o

v
e
r.

  
T

h
re

e
, 
th

re
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
re

e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

to
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  
F

o
rm

e
r 

fr
o
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

a
v
e
d
 o

v
e
r 

a
n
d
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ri

e
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 c

a
fé

, 
s
u
c
h
 t
h
a
t 
it
s
 

o
ri

g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
le

a
r.

  
It
s
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

, 
s
c
a
le

 a
n
d
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 

th
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
te

re
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 A

rt
ic

le
 4

 D
ir

e
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 
w

it
h
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

U
p
p
e
r 

G
a
rd

n
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

3
9

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

W
a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 /
 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
T

a
ll
, 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
/i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
fi
rs

t 
s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
8
7
0
 

O
S

 m
a
p
. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 f
ro

n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

it
h
 V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 s

m
a
ll
-p

a
n
e
d
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 

a
 l
a
rg

e
 s

li
d
in

g
 d

o
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
N

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
e
a
ls

 f
li
n
t 
a
n
d
 b

ri
c
k
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
. 
 R

o
o
f 
p
it
c
h
e
d
 a

n
d
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f,
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 c
o
n
c
e
a
le

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

c
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
e
d
 b

y
 i
ts

 m
ix

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l,
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
a
n
d
 

w
a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

is
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
 

k
e
e
p
in

g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

159



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

U
p
p
e
r 

G
a
rd

n
e
r 

S
tr

e
e
t

4
0
-4

1
T

h
e
 T

in
d
le

 

C
e
n
tr

e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

n
o
w

 

c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 C

A
A

 p
la

q
u
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
 a

n
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
a
te

 o
f 
1
8
2
6
 a

s
 a

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 

th
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 r

e
o
p
e
n
e
d
 (

a
n
d
 r

e
b
u
il
t)

 i
n
 1

8
8
7
 a

s
 t
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
In

fa
n
ts

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 1

8
8
7
 r

e
b
u
il
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

tt
ri

b
u
te

d
 t
o
 T

h
o
m

a
s
 

S
im

p
s
o
n
, 
th

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 B

o
a
rd

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
f 
th

a
t 
p
e
ri

o
d
. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 c

e
rt

a
in

ly
 s

h
a
re

s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
la

n
g
u
a
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 S

im
p
s
o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 

b
u
t 
is

 m
u
c
h
 l
e
s
s
 c

o
h
e
re

n
t 
in

 i
ts

 d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
s
 p

a
in

te
d
 r

e
n
d
e
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
. 
It
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
k
n
o
w

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
n
d
e
ri

n
g
 i
s
 a

 l
a
te

r 
a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 l
a
te

r 
b
e
c
a
m

e
 a

 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 p
a
rt

ia
ll
y
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 f
la

ts
, 
w

it
h
 a

 m
o
d
e
rn

 r
o
o
f 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
, 

a
n
d
 a

 n
u
rs

e
ry

.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 m

o
d
e
s
t 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

S
im

p
s
o
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
It
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 m

ix
e
d
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 
th

e
 

N
o
rt

h
 L

a
in

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
s
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

U
p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t

6
6
-6

8
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

V
ic

to
ri

a
n
 o

n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

h
o
p
s
, 
a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 
e
a
rl

ie
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 S

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 d
is

p
la

y
 

s
im

p
le

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
; 
a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
 P

o
s
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ry
 o

f 

S
u
s
s
e
x
 (

1
8
7
8
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p
s
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

 b
u
tc

h
e
r 

(6
6
),

 a
 s

h
o
e
m

a
k
e
r 

(6
7
) 

a
n
d
 a

 

b
a
k
e
r 

(6
8
) 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

6
6
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 d
e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 g

ri
ll
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ll
 r

is
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

m
a
ll
 r

a
m

s
 

h
e
a
d
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
rb

e
ls

, 
in

d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 o

f 
it
s
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 b
u
tc

h
e
r’
s
 s

h
o
p
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

h
o
p
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
; 
th

e
y
 a

re
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

U
p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

S
tr

e
e
t

6
9

W
in

d
m

il
l

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
u
b
li
c
 H

o
u
s
e

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

A
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n
 t
h
is

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 1

8
2
4
 P

ig
o
tt
-S

m
it
h
 m

a
p
, 
w

h
e
n
 i
t 
is

 t
h
e
 o

n
ly

 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 U

p
p
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 o

n
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
id

 o
u
t.
  
It
 i
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 
d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 a

s
 a

 p
u
b
 a

s
 e

a
rl

y
 a

s
 1

8
3
2
, 
a
n
d
 s

a
id

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
ts

 

fi
rs

t 
li
c
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 1

8
2
8
. 
 T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
, 
w

it
h
 a

 t
h
re

e
 b

a
y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 s

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
h
in

d
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 w

a
ll
s
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 
 S

m
a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
; 
th

o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
ll
e
r 

th
e
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 b
li
n
d
 w

in
d
o
w

 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
. 
 O

v
e
rh

a
n
g
in

g
 e

a
v
e
s
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 s

la
te

 r
o
o
f 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
c
h
im

n
e
y
 s

ta
c
k
s
. 
 

B
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 t
w

o
 f
lo

o
rs

 t
o
 C

li
ft
o
n
 P

la
c
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
, 
fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 a

 b
li
n
d
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 

h
e
a
d
e
d
 o

p
e
n
in

g
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
M

y
a
ll
 2

0
0
8
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 W

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 M

o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
is

 a
n
 e

a
rl

y
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 

o
f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
is

 a
n
d
 i
n
 b

e
in

g
 a

 f
o
c
a
l 

p
o
in

t 
a
lo

n
g
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t.
  
It
 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 r
e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
in

 i
ts

e
lf
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

U
p
p
e
r 

R
o
c
k
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

3
B

ri
g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
N

o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 a

s
 i
t 
is

 s
ta

tu
to

ri
ly

 l
is

te
d
 a

t 

g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

th
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

U
p
p
e
r 

R
o
c
k
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s

1
6

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 a

n
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
, 
c
.1

8
1
5
, 
a
n
d
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
7
 a

n
d
 1

8
 (

b
o
th

 

li
s
te

d
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I)

. 
 4

 s
to

re
y
s
 o

v
e
r 

h
a
lf
 b

a
s
e
m

e
n
t.
  
F

u
ll
-h

e
ig

h
t 
s
e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
b
a
y
, 
w

it
h
 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
o
p
y
 t
o
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r.

  
L
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
b
u
il
t 
in

 1
9
9
0
s
, 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 

d
e
li
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

 4
 s

to
re

y
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 b

u
il
t 
to

 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 l
o
w

 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
 w

it
h
 p

ie
rs

 w
it
h
 b

a
ll
 f
in

ia
ls

 a
n
d
 c

a
s
t 
ir

o
n
 r

a
il
in

g
s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 

re
b
u
il
t 
a
n
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
0
s
 s

u
c
h
 

th
a
t 
it
 h

a
s
 l
o
s
t 
it
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
. 
 I
t 
a
ls

o
 n

o
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

In
ta

c
tn

e
s
s
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
it
 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
 n

o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.
  
It
 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

U
p
p
e
r 

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
's

 

S
tr

e
e
t

3
3

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
u
b
li
c
 H

o
u
s
e

E
a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

A
T

h
e
 H

a
n
d
 i
n
 H

a
n
d
 P

u
b
li
c
 H

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
U

p
p
e
r 

S
t 
J
a
m

e
s
’s

 S
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d
 M

a
ri

n
e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
 B

u
il
t 
in

 t
h
e
 m

id
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
, 
h
is

to
ri

c
 i
m

a
g
e
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

o
o
f 

fo
rm

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 a

 p
it
c
h
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
to

 a
 g

a
m

b
re

l 
ro

o
f.
  
T

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 u
n
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
 s

tr
e
e
t 
d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

3
3
 w

a
s
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
a
l 
m

e
rc

h
a
n
t 
–
 G

e
o
rg

e
 H

il
l 
–
 i
n
 1

8
5
4
. 
 B

y
 1

8
7
1
 i
t 
is

 

li
k
e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 a

 b
e
e
r 

re
ta

il
e
r,

 n
a
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 G

a
s
fi
tt
e
r’
s
 A

rm
s
 w

it
h
 S

a
m

u
e
l 

P
u
ll
in

 a
s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
. 
 A

 y
e
a
r 

la
te

r,
 i
t 
re

m
a
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
 b

u
t 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 h

a
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

a
n
d
-i

n
-H

a
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
’s

 u
s
e
 a

n
d
 n

a
m

e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

. 
 I
ts

 u
s
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
b
re

w
e
ry

 s
in

c
e
 1

9
8
9
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
y
b
ri

g
h
to

n
a
n
d
h
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/p

a
g
e
_
id

_
_
6
3
0
2
.a

s
p
x
?
p
a
th

=
0
p
2
1
4
p
2
1
5
p
3
9
4
p
2
0

4
p
1
0
6
2
p

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 r

e
ta

in
s
 a

 

m
id

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 p

u
b
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  

It
s
 r

o
o
f 
fo

rm
 h

a
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 a

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
s
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
s
 a

 m
id

 1
9
th

 

c
e
n
tu

ry
 p

u
b
li
c
 h

o
u
s
e
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
s
t 
C

li
ff
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

160



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

V
ic

a
ra

g
e
 L

a
n
e

F
o
rg

e
 H

o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

R
e
ti
re

m
e
n
t 

H
o
m

e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

B
u
il
t 
1
9
7
2
 o

n
 s

it
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

s
m

it
h
y
. 
 T

h
e
 1

8
9
0
, 
1
8
9
1
 a

n
d
 1

9
0
2
 s

tr
e
e
t 
d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
e
 s

m
it
h
y
 w

a
s
 r

u
n
 b

y
 a

 W
.E

.B
o
w

le
s
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
 a

s
 a

 s
m

it
h
s
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
e
in

g
 

fo
rg

e
. 
 A

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 f
ro

m
 c

.1
9
0
8
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
h
a
d
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 E

rn
ie

 S
te

n
n
in

g
. 
 D

’E
n
n
o
 (

2
0
0
9
) 

s
u
g
g
e
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
S

te
n
n
in

g
 h

a
d
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 f
ro

m
 C

h
a
rl

ie
 C

ro
s
s
in

g
h
a
m

. 
 S

tr
e
e
t 
d
ir

e
c
to

ri
e
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 S
te

n
n
in

g
 w

a
s
 s

ti
ll
 i
n
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 l
a
te

 a
s
 1

9
4
9
. 
 H

is
to

ri
c
 m

a
p
s
 a

n
d
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 

s
m

it
h
y
 t
o
 b

e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 t
h
a
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
ie

c
e
m

e
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
F

o
rg

e
 H

o
u
s
e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

p
li
c
a
te

 t
h
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

s
c
a
le

 o
f 
th

e
s
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
. 
 2

 s
to

re
y
 w

it
h
 h

ip
p
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
P

a
in

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

w
it
h
 h

u
n
g
 c

la
y
 

ti
le

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 T

im
b
e
r 

s
m

a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 c

a
s
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 a

 

fl
in

t 
b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
a
ll
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
D

’E
n
n
o
 2

0
0
9

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

 

s
y
m

p
a
th

e
ti
c
 1

9
7
0
s
 i
n
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
s
s
e
x
 

v
e
rn

a
c
u
la

r.
  
It
 i
s
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 o
f 
li
m

it
e
d
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 i
ts

e
lf
. 
 I
t 
is

 l
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
a
 p

ro
m

in
e
n
t 
c
o
rn

e
r 

in
 

th
e
 v

il
la

g
e
, 
b
u
t 
la

c
k
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
la

n
d
m

a
rk

 s
ta

tu
s
 o

r 

d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 

in
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 b

e
s
t 
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

V
ic

a
ra

g
e
 L

a
n
e

H
a
u
s
 

A
ll
is

to
n
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

b
u
ts

 H
o
rs

e
s
h
o
e
 C

o
tt
a
g
e
, 
2
 W

h
ip

p
in

g
 P

o
s
t 

L
a
n
e
, 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
. 
 F

li
n
t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 

G
a
b
le

 e
n
d
 f
ro

n
ts

 o
n
to

 r
o
a
d
, 
w

it
h
 s

q
u
a
re

 b
a
y
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 a
 s

in
g
le

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 t
h
e
 g

a
b
le

 e
n
d
 (

a
tt
ic

).
  
H

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 

re
c
e
n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
d
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

V
ic

to
ri

a
 T

e
rr

a
c
e
, 

K
in

g
's

 R
o
a
d

1
0

T
h
e
 N

e
p
tu

n
e
 

P
u
b
li
c
 

H
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
u
b
li
c
 H

o
u
s
e

C
li
ft
o
n
v
il
le

 C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
te

rr
a
c
e
 p

u
b
li
c
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 R

o
u
g
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 
w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 

fl
o
o
r.

  
R

o
o
f 
h
id

d
e
n
 b

e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
P

u
b
li
c
 h

o
u
s
e
 f
ro

n
ta

g
e
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 d

o
o
rs

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
, 
w

it
h
 a

 s
e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
s
h
a
p
e
d
 ‘
p
e
d
im

e
n
t’
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 f
a
s
c
ia

 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 a

 d
e
p
ic

ti
o
n
 o

f 
N

e
p
tu

n
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 –

 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 t
h
e
 ‘
p
e
d
im

e
n
t’
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

ti
n
g
 N

e
p
tu

n
e
 –

 i
s
 

o
f 
s
o
m

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r,
 b

u
t 
it
s
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

re
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

ty
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 

th
e
re

fo
re

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
a
rm

d
e
n
e
 R

o
a
d

P
a
tc

h
a
m

 

J
u
n
io

r 

S
c
h
o
o
l

P
a
tc

h
a
m

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

N
o
 C

A
O

p
e
n
e
d
 1

9
3
7
 a

s
 a

 p
u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
il
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
to

 s
e
rv

e
 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

ly
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 L

a
d
ie

s
 M

il
e
 E

s
ta

te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
. 
T

h
e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
t 
w

a
s
 P

. 
B

il
li
n
g
to

n
. 
It
 i
s
 t
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

 s
p
a
c
e
 o

n
 a

 l
in

e
a
r 

p
la

n
 f
o
rm

 w
it
h
 

e
n
d
 p

a
v
il
io

n
s
. 
It
 i
s
 i
n
 a

 v
e
ry

 s
tr

ip
p
e
d
-d

o
w

n
 N

e
o
 G

e
o
rg

ia
n
 s

ty
le

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d
; 

re
d
 a

n
d
 b

lu
e
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 c

la
y
 t
il
e
d
 r

o
o
f.
 T

h
e
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 U

P
V

C
. 
It
 

s
it
s
 w

e
ll
 b

e
lo

w
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
in

 W
a
rm

d
e
n
e
 R

o
a
d
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
o
n
ly

 t
h
e
 l
o
n
g
 r

o
o
f 
is

 

n
o
ti
c
e
a
b
le

. 
 I
t 
is

 o
th

e
rw

is
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 a

t 
d
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

la
y
in

g
 f
ie

ld
s
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
is

 o
f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 m

e
ri

t 
to

 m
e
e
t 

tw
o
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t

9
, 
1
0
, 
1
1
, 
1
7
 

a
n
d
 1

8

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
T

e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 s

to
re

y
 d

w
e
ll
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

. 
 E

a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 a

 c
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 

w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 b

o
th

 f
lo

o
rs

, 
fl
a
n
k
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
d
o
o
r 

w
it
h
 f
a
n
li
g
h
t.
  
P

it
c
h
e
d
 t
il
e
 r

o
o
fs

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

9
-1

1
 a

n
d
 1

8
 r

e
ta

in
 f
li
n
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 d

a
te

 o
f 
1
8
9
8
 

in
d
ic

a
te

d
 o

n
 s

to
n
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
0
 a

n
d
 1

1
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
7
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

 

b
a
lc

o
n
y
 a

d
d
e
d
 a

t 
ro

o
f 
le

v
e
l.
  
W

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 9
, 
1
7
 a

n
d
 1

8
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 i
n
 u

p
v
c
. 
 

h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-j

a
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
3
2
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
3
2
_
1
2
6
.h

tm
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 

re
la

ti
v
e
ly

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir

 t
y
p
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
 o

r 

‘s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

161



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

W
e
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t

2
1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

B
a
n
k
, 
n
o
w

 

p
u
b
 a

n
d
 f
la

ts

N
o
 C

A
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 t
h
e
 A

b
b
e
y
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
B

u
il
d
in

g
 S

o
c
ie

ty
. 
 B

u
il
t 
1
9
3
8
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 o

f 

H
.E

.M
e
n
d
e
ls

s
o
h
n
. 
 4

 s
to

re
y
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 f
la

t 
ro

o
f.
  
L
o
c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

c
o
rn

e
r 

o
f 
R

e
g
e
n
c
y
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 
S

tr
e
e
t,
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
r 

is
 d

is
ti
n
g
u
is

h
e
d
 b

y
 a

 c
o
p
p
e
r 

d
ru

m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

o
o
f.
  
B

e
lo

w
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 c

u
rv

e
d
 a

n
d
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 h

a
d
 c

u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

u
p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

. 
 B

o
th

 s
tr

e
e
t 
e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
, 
w

it
h
 h

o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
b
a
n
d
s
 o

f 
g
la

z
in

g
 

to
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  
T

h
e
 g

la
z
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 s
li
g
h
tl
y
, 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 c

u
rv

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
rn

e
rs

 

(n
o
w

 c
a
n
te

d
).

  
T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 f
o
rm

 a
 p

u
b
li
c
 h

o
u
s
e
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
A

 G
u
id

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

u
il
d
in

g
s
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 N

D
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
2
9
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
2
9
_
2
0
2
.h

tm
 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
O

f 
s
o
m

e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 b
e
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 

p
e
ri

o
d
 a

n
d
 s

ty
le

, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

e
x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
it
s
 c

o
rn

e
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
u
rv

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 –

 w
h
ic

h
 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 d
is

ti
n
c
ti
v
e
 f
e
a
tu

re
 o

f 

th
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 –

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 r

e
fe

n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
ts

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 m

e
a
n
s
 i
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

1
-1

1
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

N
o
 C

A
K

n
o
w

n
 v

a
ri

o
u
s
ly

 a
s
 A

ld
ri

n
g
to

n
 B

e
a
c
h
 B

u
n
g
a
lo

w
s
, 
S

e
a
s
id

e
 B

u
n
g
a
lo

w
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 

S
e
a
s
id

e
 V

il
la

s
, 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 i
s
 n

o
w

 k
n
o
w

n
 a

s
 1

-1
1
 W

e
s
te

rn
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e
 o

r 
‘M

il
li
o
n
a
ir

e
’s

 

R
o
w

’ 
a
n
d
 i
s
 l
o
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 b

e
a
c
h
fr

o
n
t 
b
e
s
id

e
 A

ld
ri

n
g
to

n
 B

a
s
in

. 
 D

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 1

9
0
8
-1

9
0
9
 

b
y
 E

J
 H

o
ll
a
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

ld
ri

n
g
to

n
 E

s
ta

te
 o

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

M
ic

h
a
e
l 
P

a
g
e
t 
B

a
x
te

r,
 L

o
rd

 

o
f 
th

e
 M

a
n
o
r 

o
f 
A

ld
ri

n
g
to

n
, 
it
 t
o
o
k
 a

 d
e
c
a
d
e
 t
o
 b

u
il
d
. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

1
2
 i
n
c
h
 t
h
ic

k
 w

a
ll
s
 b

u
il
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 b

lo
c
k
s
 a

n
d
 r

a
il
w

a
y
 s

le
e
p
e
rs

 a
n
d
 2

0
 f
o
o
t 
d
e
e
p
 

fo
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
ir

 e
x
p
o
s
e
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 u
n
if
ie

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 c

re
n
a
ll
a
te

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
ts

 a
n
d
 v

e
ra

n
d
a
h
s
. 
 F

a
c
il
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

h
o
t 

s
a
lt
-w

a
te

r 
b
a
th

s
 w

e
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
. 
 T

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
q
u
is

it
io

n
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 W

o
rl

d
 W

a
r 

II
 a

n
d
 

p
a
in

te
d
 b

la
c
k
 b

y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
c
a
m

o
u
fl
a
g
e
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

1
 (

P
a
g
e
t 
B

a
x
te

r’
s
 o

w
n
 h

o
u
s
e
) 

o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 

s
to

o
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 g

a
p
 w

a
s
 i
n
fi
ll
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 2
0

th
 

c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
 T

h
e
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 b

o
a
s
ts

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

m
o
u
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
b
o
th

 p
a
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
t.
  

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
M

id
d
le

to
n
 2

0
0
2
, 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.b
ri

ta
in

fr
o
m

a
b
o
v
e
.o

rg
.u

k
/i
m

a
g
e
/e

p
w

0
1
7
7
5
1
?
s
e
a
rc

h
=

a
ld

ri
n
g
to

n
%

2
0
b
a
s
in

&
r

e
f=

0
 h

tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.h
o
v
e
d
e
e
p
s
e
a
a
n
g
le

rs
.c

o
.u

k
/h

is
to

ry
-h

d
s
a
.h

tm
l 

h
tt
p
:/
/p

o
rt

s
la

d
e
h
is

to
ry

.b
lo

g
s
p
o
t.
c
o
.u

k
/2

0
1
3
/1

1
/h

o
v
e
-l

a
g
o
o
n
.h

tm
l 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 a

n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

a
lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

C
e
n
tr

a
l 

B
o
w

ls
 

P
a
v
il
io

n

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e

S
a
c
k
v
il
le

 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 C

A

B
u
il
t 
in

 1
9
6
3
, 
a
s
 a

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 K

in
g
s
w

a
y
 B

o
w

ls
 C

lu
b
. 
 B

ri
c
k
 b

u
il
t 

w
it
h
 a

 r
e
c
e
s
s
e
d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
p
o
rt

io
n
 i
n
 r

e
n
d
e
r.

  
It
 i
s
 o

f 
o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 w

it
h
 a

 f
la

t 
ro

o
f.
  

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
w

li
n
g
 g

re
e
n
s
, 
w

a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e
s
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
t 
fo

rm
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 
p
a
rt

. 
 I
t 
is

 

th
e
re

fo
re

 o
f 
s
o
m

e
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
is

 

is
 l
im

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 i
ts

 c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
t 
is

 a
 l
a
te

r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
2
 

c
ri

te
ri

a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
. 
 T

h
e
 W

e
s
te

rn
 L

a
w

n
s
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

H
o
v
e
 D

e
e
p
 

S
e
a
 A

n
g
le

r'
s
 

C
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

C
lu

b
h
o
u
s
e

N
o
 C

A
T

h
e
 D

e
e
p
 S

e
a
 A

n
g
li
n
g
 C

lu
b
 w

a
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 1

9
0
9
, 
a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

te
d
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 b

e
a
c
h
 a

t 
th

e
 w

e
s
te

rn
 e

n
d
 o

f 
H

o
v
e
 E

s
p
la

n
a
d
e
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

w
a
s
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

y
 a

 l
a
rg

e
r 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
n
 1

9
2
2
. 
 I
n
 1

9
8
3
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
, 
d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 

C
h
ri

s
to

p
h
e
r 

D
o
d
d
, 
w

a
s
 b

u
il
t,
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
M

a
rt

e
ll
o
 T

o
w

e
rs

. 
 I
t 
w

o
n
 b

e
s
t 

n
e
w

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

 i
n
 1

9
8
3
, 
jo

in
tl
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 b

y
 H

o
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 H

o
v
e
 C

iv
ic

 

S
o
c
ie

ty
. 
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 s

u
ff
e
re

d
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l 
s
to

rm
 d

a
m

a
g
e
 i
n
 1

9
9
6
, 
b
u
t 
w

a
s
 f
u
ll
y
 

re
p
a
ir

e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 i
n
 u

s
e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 H

o
v
e
 D

e
e
p
 S

e
a
 A

n
g
li
n
g
 C

lu
b
h
o
u
s
e
. 
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 M

a
rt

e
ll
o
 T

o
w

e
r 

d
e
fe

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

lo
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

o
u
th

e
a
s
t 
c
o
a
s
t 
w

e
re

 

b
u
il
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

8
0
5
 a

n
d
 1

8
1
2
, 
a
n
d
 s

tr
e
tc

h
e
d
 f
ro

m
 S

e
a
fo

rd
, 
E

a
s
t 
S

u
s
s
e
x
 a

n
d
 

A
ld

e
b
u
rg

h
, 
S

u
ff
o
lk

. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
M

a
rt

e
ll
o
 T

o
w

e
rs

 a
re

 n
o
t 
a
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 t
y
p
e
 w

it
h
in

 

B
ri

g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.h
o
v
e
d
e
e
p
s
e
a
a
n
g
le

rs
.c

o
.u

k
/h

is
to

ry
-h

d
s
a
.h

tm
l

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
ll
y
 a

lt
e
re

d
/e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir

e
d
 i
n
 1

9
9
6
. 
 

T
h
e
 m

o
d
e
rn

 (
M

a
rt

e
ll
o
) 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
n
o
v
e
lt
y
, 
b
u
t 
w

a
s
 b

u
il
t 
o
n
ly

 3
0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
g
o
; 

th
e
 a

rc
h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t 
is

 n
o
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
ti
m

e
 h

a
s
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
n
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
 v

ie
w

 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
k
e
n

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

162



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

W
e
s
te

rn
 

E
s
p
la

n
a
d
e

R
o
u
n
d
 

H
o
u
s
e
 /
 M

rs
 

B
u
m

b
le

s

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
tr

e
e
t 

F
u
rn

it
u
re

 -
 

s
h
e
lt
e
r 

n
o
w

 

c
a
fé

N
o
 C

A
O

v
a
l 
in

 p
la

n
, 
b
ri

c
k
 t
im

b
e
r 

s
u
p
e
rs

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 c

a
n
o
p
y
-s

ty
le

 l
e
a
d
 r

o
o
f.
  
T

h
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 f
ir

s
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 c

.1
9
1
0
-1

2
 O

rd
n
a
n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
, 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 s
h
e
lt
e
r.

  
It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
o
s
tl
y
 i
n
fi
ll
e
d
 a

t 
a
 l
a
te

r 
d
a
te

 t
o
 f
o
rm

 a
 c

a
fé

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
It
 i
s
 t
o
o
 a

lt
e
re

d
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
4
-1

9
, 
2
5
, 

2
7
-3

0

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A
E

a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 w

it
h
 s

h
o
p
s
 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
rs

; 
fl
a
ts

, 
s
to

ra
g
e
 a

n
d
 

o
ff
ic

e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 o
f 
v
a
ri

e
d
 q

u
a
li
ty

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 B

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 m

o
s
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
fi
rs

t 
fl
o
o
r 

a
n
d
 s

o
m

e
 a

t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
R

e
n
d
e
re

d
, 
m

o
s
tl
y
 w

it
h
 p

a
ra

p
e
ts

 

c
o
n
c
e
a
li
n
g
 r

o
o
f.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 a

n
d
 f
o
rm

in
g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f
e
a
tu

re
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
a
p
e
, 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 i
n
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
. 

T
h
e
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

a
re

a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

3
7

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

R
e
g
e
n
c
y
 

S
q
u
a
re

 C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
c
. 
m

id
 t
o
 l
a
te

 1
9

th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 

g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
C

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 t
o
 f
lo

o
rs

 a
b
o
v
e
. 
 S

im
p
le

 s
tr

in
g
 c

o
u
rs

e
 a

n
d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t 
d
e
ta

il
e
d
 

to
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

a
s
 b

ra
c
k
e
te

d
 e

a
v
e
s
. 
 D

e
ta

il
in

g
 m

a
tc

h
e
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 t
h
a
t 
to

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 

H
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
b
e
y
o
n
d
. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
a
r 

e
le

v
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 c

o
n
ta

in
 h

is
to

ri
c
 s

ta
in

e
d
 g

la
s
s
 w

in
d
o
w

s
, 

to
 t
w

o
 f
lo

o
rs

, 
s
e
t 
w

it
h
in

 m
o
d
e
rn

 f
ra

m
e
s
, 
b
u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 

n
o
t 
v
is

ib
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
li
tt
le

 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 a

n
d
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
. 
 I
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
ts

 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

7
8

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

O
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
fo

rm
in

g
 a

 s
h
o
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 h

ig
h
e
r 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 e

n
ti
re

ty
 o

f 
b
u
il
d
in

g
. 
 R

e
m

n
a
n
ts

 o
f 
a
 m

o
re

 h
is

to
ri

c
 f
a
s
c
ia

 a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 

s
u
rv

iv
e
. 
 

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘in
te

re
s
t’
. 
 

T
h
e
 d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 

m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 d
e
s
c
ri

b
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri

n
g
 7

5
-7

6
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 (

to
 t
h
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
 e

a
s
t)

. 
 T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 

is
 l
is

te
d
 g

ra
d
e
 I
I,
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 g
re

a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

8
6
-8

7
P

a
ti
s
s
e
ri

e
 

V
a
le

ri
e

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 

T
o
w

n
 C

A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 

o
f 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
1
7
-1

2
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

P
u
b
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
p
s

M
o
n
tp

e
li
e
r 

&
 

C
li
ft
o
n
 H

il
l 
C

A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
in

 u
s
e
 a

s
 e

s
ta

te
 a

g
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

 p
u
b
. 
 M

ix
tu

re
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 

a
n
d
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f 
b
o
w

, 
c
a
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
ri

p
a
rt

it
e
 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 s
y
m

m
e
tr

ic
a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
. 
 B

a
y
s
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
d
 b

y
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
. 
 R

o
o
f 
h
id

d
e
n
 

b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
S

ta
tu

te
 o

f 
a
 K

n
ig

h
t 
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

t 
th

ir
d
 s

to
re

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
, 
re

la
te

s
 

to
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
’s

 n
a
m

e
 ‘
T

h
e
 T

e
m

p
le

 B
a
r’
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 o

f 

s
o
m

e
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 i
ts

 a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

re
 i
s
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 a

re
a
 a

n
d
 i
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
. 
 I
ts

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
3
9

C
o
d
ri

n
g
to

n
 

M
a
n
s
io

n

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

N
o
 C

A
A

d
m

ir
a
l 
S

ir
 E

d
w

a
rd

 C
o
d
ri

n
g
to

n
 l
iv

e
d
 a

t 
1
4
0
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 f
ro

m
 1

8
2
8
 t
o
 1

8
3
2
. 
 H

e
 

c
o
m

m
a
n
d
e
d
 H

M
S

 O
ri

o
n
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 B

a
tt
le

 o
f 
T

ra
fa

lg
a
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

m
in

e
n
c
e
 

in
 1

8
2
7
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t
h
e
 G

re
e
k
 W

a
r 

o
f 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
. 
 A

 t
e
rr

a
c
e
 o

f 
n
in

e
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
in

 

th
e
 1

8
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 n

a
m

e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

h
im

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 1
 t
o
 7

 w
e
re

 s
it
u
a
te

d
 w

h
e
re

 W
a
it
ro

s
e
 n

o
w

 

s
ta

n
d
s
. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 8
 a

n
d
 9

 n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
 C

o
d
ri

n
g
to

n
 M

a
n
s
io

n
. 
O

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 w

it
h
 l
o
n
g
 f
ro

n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
, 
a
 n

e
w

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 l
in

e
 w

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t
o
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 A

s
 s

u
c
h
, 
th

e
 g

a
rd

e
n
s
 

w
e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 c

re
a
te

 o
n
e
-s

to
re

y
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

a
s
s
a
g
e
w

a
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

fl
a
ts

 b
e
h
in

d
 w

a
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
. 
 I
t 
c
o
m

p
ri

s
e
s
 a

 r
o
u
n
d
-a

rc
h
e
d
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 

fl
a
n
k
e
d
 b

y
 C

o
ri

n
th

ia
n
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
 b

e
n
e
a
th

 a
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 s

e
m

i-
c
ir

c
u
la

r 
p
e
d
im

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 

p
il
a
s
te

rs
 o

ri
g
in

a
ll
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 c

o
n
s
o
le

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

, 
b
u
t 
th

e
s
e
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

s
u
rv

iv
e
. 
 T

h
e
 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 m
u
c
h
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

re
 v

is
ib

le
 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
y
 f
o
rm

 a
 p

a
ir

e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
, 
w

it
h
 a

 h
ip

p
e
d
 r

o
o
f 
w

it
h
 

d
o
rm

e
rs

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 o

f 
th

re
e
 s

to
re

y
s
 w

it
h
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
fl
o
o
r 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 h

a
v
e
 

ra
is

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
e
d
im

e
n
ts

, 
w

h
il
s
t 
th

o
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

a
re

 p
la

in
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
C

o
ll
is

 2
0
1
0
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
9
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
9
_
0
1
6
.h

tm
l 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
9
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
9
_
0
1
8
.h

tm
l 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
tw

o
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

u
c
h
 a

lt
e
re

d
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 

(m
u
c
h
-a

lt
e
re

d
) 

o
n
e
 s

to
re

y
 s

h
o
p
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir

 f
ro

n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 t
o
 f
la

ts
. 
 T

h
e
 d

o
o
rw

a
y
 t
o
 

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 l
o
s
t 
s
o
m

e
 o

f 
it
s
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 l
o
s
t 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
it
s
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

163



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
7
5
-1

8
0

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
1
9
6
6
 b

y
 D

e
n
m

a
n
 &

 S
o
n
 (

a
n
d
 t
h
u
s
 l
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
 a

lo
n
g
 

th
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
).

  
U

p
p
e
r 

fl
o
o
rs

 t
il
e
d
 w

it
h
 r

e
li
e
f 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 s

m
a
ll
 s

q
u
a
re

 

w
in

d
o
w

s
 a

n
d
 s

li
ts

. 
 F

o
rm

e
rl

y
 t
h
e
 J

o
h
n
s
o
n
 B

ro
th

e
rs

 F
u
rn

it
u
re

 S
to

re
. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 

w
a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 

a
c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 

g
ra

in
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
li
m

it
e
d
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 o

r 
to

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t,
 d

e
s
p
it
e
 

it
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
 b

y
 a

 w
e
ll
-k

n
o
w

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 
 I
t 
th

e
re

fo
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
8
1
-1

8
5

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
F

o
rm

e
r 

W
o
o
lw

o
rt

h
s
 S

to
re

. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
s
ty

le
. 
 T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
; 
m

o
d
e
rn

 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
H

o
ri

z
o
n
ta

l 
e
m

p
h
a
s
is

 t
o
 f
e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
w

it
h
 f
lu

ti
n
g
 t
o
 

th
e
 p

a
n
e
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 R

e
n
d
e
re

d
; 
ro

o
f 
n
o
t 
v
is

ib
le

. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

w
e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 

a
c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 

g
ra

in
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri

c
 

in
te

re
s
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
 

re
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
s
h
o
p
p
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

rw
a
r 

p
e
ri

o
d
, 
th

e
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
in

 i
ts

e
lf
 t
o
 m

e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
8
6
 a

n
d
 1

8
7

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
b
o
th

 w
it
h
 m

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

o
o
fs

 n
o
t 
v
is

ib
le

. 
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

1
8
6
 i
s
 A

rt
 D

e
c
o
 i
n
 s

ty
le

, 
w

it
h
 l
a
rg

e
 g

la
z
e
d
 a

re
a
s
 t
o
 a

ll
 f
lo

o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 

m
e
ta

l 
p
a
n
e
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
rs

. 
 1

8
7
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 s

im
p
le

 n
e
o
-c

la
s
s
ic

a
l 

s
ty

le
; 
th

re
e
 b

a
y
s
 i
n
 w

id
th

, 
w

it
h
 c

a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o

u
te

r 
b
a
y
s
. 
 R

a
is

e
d
 q

u
o
in

s
. 
 

S
im

il
a
r 

d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t
o
 s

id
e
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 

c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 

in
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
in

e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 

a
n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 

1
9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 

m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

164



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
8
8
-1

9
1

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
1
9
2
8
 a

s
 W

.J
. 
W

a
d
e
’s

 D
ra

p
e
ry

 C
o
m

p
a
n
y
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

e
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
s
ty

le
. 
 T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
s
. 
 

M
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 
p
il
a
s
te

rs
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
te

d
 e

n
ta

b
la

tu
re

 

a
t 
p
a
ra

p
e
t 
le

v
e
l.
  
M

a
tc

h
in

g
 f
e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

o
th

 f
ir

s
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 w
it
h
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 

g
iv

e
n
 t
o
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 

F
ro

m
 1

9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 

3
6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 

‘O
x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 

e
m

e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
in

e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

e
a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 

a
p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 

th
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 

a
n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 

in
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 m

e
ri

t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 

d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
9
2

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

N
o
 C

A
T

h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 w

it
h
 r

e
n
d
e
re

d
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

o
o
f 
b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.
  
M

o
d
e
rn

 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  
V

e
rt

ic
a
l 
m

o
u
ld

e
d
 s

u
rr

o
u
n
d
s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 f
e
n
e
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 (

w
it
h
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

in
d
o
w

s
),

 w
it
h
 d

e
c
o
ra

ti
v
e
 p

a
n
e
ls

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 

in
it
ia

ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 

a
c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 

g
ra

in
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 

2
0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
o
r 

to
w

n
s
c
a
p
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
to

 

m
e
ri

t 
lo

c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
9
3
-4

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

N
o
 C

A
T

w
o
 s

to
re

y
, 
5
 b

a
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 f
a
c
e
d
 i
n
 s

to
n
e
. 
 P

o
o
r-

q
u
a
li
ty

 m
o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r.

  
A

b
o
v
e
, 
C

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
R

e
v
iv

a
l 
a
rc

a
d
e
 o

f 
v
o
u
s
s
o
ir

e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 s

e
t 
w

it
h
in

 a
rc

h
e
s
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
d
 b

y
 C

o
rn

it
h
ia

n
 p

il
a
s
te

rs
. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 

c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 w

e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

n
o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 P

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 

in
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 f
in

e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 

a
n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 

S
tr

e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 g

ra
in

 o
f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 

1
9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 

R
o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 S

o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
. 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 s

ty
le

 o
f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

is
 a

 m
o
d
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
a
 C

la
s
s
ic

a
l 
R

e
v
iv

a
l 
b
u
il
d
in

g
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
iv

e
 f
o
r 

it
s
 t
im

e
. 
 I
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

a
lt
e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 p

o
o
r-

q
u
a
li
ty

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 a
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l.
  
It
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

‘I
n
te

re
s
t’
 n

o
r 

‘S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
’.

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

165



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

W
e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d

1
9
5
-2

0
0

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p
, 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

S
to

re

N
o
 C

A
M

a
rk

s
 &

 S
p
e
n
c
e
r’
s
 s

to
re

, 
b
u
il
t 
1
9
6
0
s
-1

9
7
0
s
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
e
ir

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

to
re

. 
 T

h
e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 r

e
ta

in
s
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
rt

ic
a
li
ty

 a
n
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
s
to

re
 (

a
s
 

d
e
p
ic

te
d
 i
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
),

 b
u
t 
in

 a
 s

im
p
li
fi
e
d
, 
m

o
d
e
rn

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
in

g
 

m
o
d
e
rn

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 p

re
-c

a
s
t 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 p

a
n
e
ls

. 
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 i
n
it
ia

ll
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 (

fr
o
m

 c
.1

8
0
9
) 

fo
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
, 
b
u
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
h
e
 f
ro

n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

w
e
re

 b
u
il
t 
o
v
e
r 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

h
o
p
s
. 
 F

ro
m

 1
9
0
6
 t
h
e
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o
n
 b

e
g
a
n
 

a
c
q
u
ir

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 s

id
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 w

a
s
 w

id
e
n
e
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
m

p
to

n
 

P
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

9
2
6
 a

n
d
 3

6
. 
 T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 p

lo
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
s
. 
 T

h
is

 

s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
ro

a
d
 w

a
s
 d

e
s
c
ri

b
e
d
 i
n
 1

9
5
3
 a

s
 ‘
O

x
fo

rd
 S

tr
e
e
t-

b
y
-t

h
e
-S

e
a
’ 
b
y
 H

a
ro

ld
 C

lu
n
n
. 

T
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 e

m
e
rg

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 1
9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
e
s
t 
e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 d

a
te

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 2

0
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
. 
In

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 1

9
2
0
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
 a

p
p
e
a
ra

n
c
e
 i
n
 B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 f
e
w

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
n
 f
o
r 

re
ta

il
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
c
u
m

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 

c
o
n
s
o
li
d
a
te

d
 b

lo
c
k
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
ig

h
t 
k
n
it
 1

9
th

 c
e
n
tu

ry
 u

rb
a
n
 

g
ra

in
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 &

 H
o
v
e
. 
T

h
e
 1

9
2
0
s
 a

n
d
 1

9
3
0
s
 s

a
w

 a
 b

o
o
m

 o
f 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 

b
u
il
d
in

g
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 R

o
a
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 T

h
is

 b
u
il
d
in

g
 f
o
rm

s
 t
h
e
 

m
o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
in

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
-b

u
il
t 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
s
to

re
 o

n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 R

o
a
d
. 
 

S
o
u
rc

e
: 
A

n
tr

a
m

 &
 M

o
rr

ic
e
 2

0
0
8
, 
C

a
rd

e
r 

1
9
9
0
, 
h
tt
p
:/
/r

e
g
e
n
c
y
s
o
c
ie

ty
-

ja
m

e
s
g
ra

y
.c

o
m

/v
o
lu

m
e
1
9
/s

o
u
rc

e
/j
g
_
1
9
_
1
2
1
.h

tm
l 

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 

in
s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l,
 h

is
to

ri
c
 o

r 
to

w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 

in
te

re
s
t 
to

 m
e
ri

t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
h
ip

p
in

g
 P

o
s
t 

L
a
n
e

2
H

o
rs

e
s
h
o
e
 

C
o
tt
a
g
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 h

o
u
s
e
 p

lu
s
 a

tt
ic

. 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 a

b
u
ts

 H
a
u
s
 A

ll
is

to
n
e
, 
V

ic
a
ra

g
e
 L

a
n
e
, 
to

 t
h
e
 

re
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

f 
s
im

il
a
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
. 
 F

li
n
t 
w

it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
s
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
d
o
o
r 

w
it
h
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
. 
 T

w
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

h
u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 G

a
b
le

 

e
n
d
 r

is
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 r

ig
h
t 
h
a
n
d
 b

a
y
, 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

m
a
tc

h
in

g
 w

in
d
o
w

.

D
o
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 o

n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
is

 n
o
t 
a
ty

p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
 i
n
te

re
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 i
s
 

m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

R
o
tt
in

g
d
e
a
n
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

A
rt

ic
le

 4
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 g

iv
e
s
 i
t 
a
 g

re
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d

W
ic

k
la

n
d
s
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

5
6

S
a
lt
d
e
a
n

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 

lo
c
a
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 C

it
y
 o

f 
B

ri
g
h
to

n
 

a
n
d
 H

o
v
e
. 
L
e
w

e
s
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 
b
e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 o

f 

th
e
 n

o
m

in
a
ti
o
n
.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

W
il
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d

4
4

H
o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
, 
n
o
w

 

fl
a
ts

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t 
a
s
 i
t 
is

 

a
lr

e
a
d
y
 s

ta
tu

to
ri

ly
 l
is

te
d
 a

t 
g
ra

d
e
 I
I.
  
T

h
is

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
t 

w
it
h
 g

re
a
te

r 
p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
ti
n
g
 w

o
u
ld

.

N
o
t 
e
li
g
ib

le

W
il
b
u
ry

 R
o
a
d

4
8
 a

n
d
 5

0
H

o
v
e

H
is

to
ri

c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

H
o
u
s
e
s

W
il
le

tt
 E

s
ta

te
 

C
A

T
w

o
 s

to
re

y
 d

e
ta

c
h
e
d
 h

o
u
s
e
s
, 
w

it
h
 d

o
rm

e
r 

a
tt
ic

, 
p
ro

b
a
b
ly

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll
y
 o

f 
m

a
tc

h
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 
 

B
u
il
t 
1
8
7
6
-7

7
. 
 G

a
u
lt
 b

ri
c
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
d
 b

ri
c
k
 b

a
n
d
in

g
. 
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
rt

ic
o
. 
 

C
a
n
te

d
 b

a
y
s
 t
o
 e

it
h
e
r 

s
id

e
 (

a
t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l)

. 
 P

o
rc

h
 a

n
d
 b

a
y
s
 f
in

is
h
e
d
 i
n
 r

e
n
d
e
r.

  

5
 s

e
g
m

e
n
ta

l-
h
e
a
d
e
d
 w

in
d
o
w

s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

e
t 
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 b

e
h
in

d
 l
o
w

 r
e
n
d
e
re

d
 

w
a
ll
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
d
g
e
s
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 g

o
o
d
 

q
u
a
li
ty

 e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
V

ic
to

ri
a
n
 v

il
la

s
, 
b
u
t 
a
re

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
. 
 T

h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e

4
 a

n
d
 5

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

T
h
re

e
 s

to
re

y
 t
e
rr

a
c
e
d
 b

u
il
d
in

g
, 
e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
to

 g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r.

  

M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
a
l 
ti
le

s
 a

b
o
v
e
 w

it
h
 p

a
in

te
d
 b

ri
c
k
 q

u
o
in

s
. 
 B

o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

s
 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 f
lo

o
r.

  

D
e
n
ti
l 
e
a
v
e
s
 c

o
rn

ic
e
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
  
T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 i
s
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
is

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
o
f 

th
e
 V

a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 A

re
a
. 
 A

 m
o
d
e
rn

 

s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
e
rt

e
d
 a

t 
g
ro

u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r 

le
v
e
l,
 h

a
rm

in
g
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
. 
 I
ts

 

in
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

166



��
��
��
��
�	
��

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

Y
o
rk

 P
la

c
e

8
-1

0
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e

B
ri

g
h
to

n
H

is
to

ri
c
 

B
u
il
d
in

g

S
h
o
p

V
a
ll
e
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 

C
A

T
h
re

e
 a

n
d
 f
o
u
r 

s
to

re
y
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
, 
e
a
rl

y
 1

9
th
 c

e
n
tu

ry
. 
 M

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

 t
o
 g

ro
u
n
d
 f
lo

o
r,

 

re
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 f
li
n
t 
c
o
b
b
le

 w
it
h
 b

ri
c
k
 d

re
s
s
in

g
 e

le
v
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
v
e
. 
 S

in
g
le

 b
o
w

 w
in

d
o
w

 t
o
 

e
a
c
h
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
, 
ri

s
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll
 f
lo

o
rs

, 
w

it
h
 s

m
a
ll
 p

a
n
e
d
 h

u
n
g
 s

a
s
h
 w

in
d
o
w

s
. 
 R

o
o
f 
s
e
t 

b
e
h
in

d
 p

a
ra

p
e
t.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 
li
s
t.
 T

h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 

a
rc

h
it
e
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
re

s
t,
 b

u
t 
th

e
ir

 i
n
te

g
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

h
a
rm

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
s
e
rt

io
n
 o

f 
m

o
d
e
rn

 s
h
o
p
fr

o
n
ts

. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
s
 a

re
 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 V

a
ll
e
y
 

G
a
rd

e
n
s
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
is

 m
o
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
is

 d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
.

R
e
m

o
v
e
d

167



168



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 1

����������	
���������������������������������������

�

����������

�

��������
Production of a local list of heritage assets is useful in considering planning 
proposals and for helping conserve the city’s historic environment. The 
current local list was produced as part of a review in 2013-2015. The heritage 
assets included on the local list are considered to have met the agreed 
selection criteria for architectural, historic and/or townscape interest, and for 
rarity, representativeness and/or intactness (see Appendix 2). 
 
A locally listed heritage asset is defined as a non-designated heritage asset 
under the terms of the National Planning Policy Framework.  Inclusion on the 
local list does not provide additional statutory protection against loss or 
alteration and does not change the requirements for planning permission, or 
permitted development rights.   
 
However, where proposed works require planning permission, the significance 
of the locally listed asset will be a ‘material consideration’ in determining the 
application.  This means that greater emphasis will be placed on ensuring the 
proposed development conserves and/or enhances the special interest of that 
asset, including its setting. 
 
The planning authority will seek to ensure the retention, good maintenance 
and continued use of locally listed heritage assets wherever possible.  
 
The local list of heritage assets can be viewed online: www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/local-list. 

169



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 2

���������

Summary ......................................................................................................... 1�
Introduction ...................................................................................................... 2�
Definition of Heritage Assets ............................................................................ 2�
Purpose of Local List ....................................................................................... 2�
Implications of Local Listing. ............................................................................ 3�
Production of Local List .................................................................................... 4�
Further Information .......................................................................................... 6�
Appendix 1 – Planning Policy Background ...................................................... 7�
Appendix 2 – Selection Criteria ...................................................................... 10�
Appendix 3 – Nomination Form...................................................................... 13�
Appendix 4 – Glossary ................................................................................... 15�
Appendix 6 – References and Copyright ....................................................... 19�
 

 ����	�������
 
Brighton & Hove is particularly famous for its Regency architecture, but it has 
a much wider history; from Norman Manors through to early 20th century 
suburbs and beyond.  Much of this history is still visible through the buildings, 
structures, parks and gardens that survive today. 
 
The surviving historic environment is a valuable resource.  Alongside 
economic and cultural value, it helps form local identities by providing local 
landmarks and a greater sense of place. 
 
In order to help conserve the historic environment, the council has produced a 
Local List of Heritage Assets.  This guidance document explains what a local 
list is, the national and local policy background, the need for a local list, how 
assets are selected and the impacts of inclusion on the list. 

!�����������������������������
 
National planning policy defines a heritage asset as ‘a building, monument, 
site, place, area or landscape identified as having a degree of significance 
meriting consideration in planning decisions because of its heritage interest.  
Heritage asset includes designated heritage assets and assets identified by 
the local planning authority (including local listing)’ (National Planning Policy 
Framework, Annex 2). 
 
As such, a locally listed asset is defined as a non-designated heritage asset. 

���"������������������
 
Many historic buildings, parks and gardens are valued for their contribution to 
the character and local distinctiveness of the area, or for local historical 
associations.  They may not, however, be of sufficient national importance to 
warrant inclusion on the Statutory List of Historic Buildings or Register of 

170



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 3

Historic Parks and Gardens.  Their special interest is instead recognised 
through inclusion on the Local List of Heritage Assets.  The local list is 
designated by the City Council in consultation with the local community. 
 
The local list is useful in considering planning proposals and for helping to 
conserve the city’s historic environment. 

 �"��������������������������#�
 
Locally listed heritage assets are recognised in national and local planning 
policy.  The relevant policies are set out in Appendix 1.   
 
Local listing is not the same as statutory listing.  The differences are set out 
below: 
 
Statutory listing is a national designation administered by Historic England 
(formerly English Heritage) on behalf of the Secretary of State.  A statutorily 
listed building requires listed building consent in order for alterations, 
additions or demolitions to be carried out which affect its historic and 
architectural significance.  This provides specific protection to both the 
exterior and interior of the building. 
 
In contrast, including an asset on the local list does not provide any additional 
statutory protection against loss or alteration.  It does not result in any 
additional legal requirements for owners.  As such, repairs, some external 
alterations and internal alterations can be undertaken without planning 
permission. In some cases demolition may also be undertaken without 
permission. The same rules apply as to when planning permission is required, 
whether the asset is locally listed or not. 
 
Where proposed works require planning permission, the significance of the 
locally listed asset will be a ‘material consideration’ in determining the 
application.  This means that greater emphasis will be placed on ensuring the 
proposed development conserves and/or enhances the special interest of that 
asset, including its setting. 
 
The planning authority will seek to ensure the retention, good maintenance 
and continued use of locally listed heritage assets wherever possible.  
 
Where a locally listed heritage asset is within a conservation area or subject 
to an Article 4 Direction, there are additional controls in place.  For those 
assets within a conservation area, other heritage-related planning policies are 
also relevant. 
 
To find out whether planning permission is required, please contact the 
planning team on 01273 292222 (option 4). 
 
Where proposals require planning permission, early pre-application 
engagement with the planning service is encouraged. 

171



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 4

���	���������������������
 

$����%��������������������
 
The Local List for Brighton & Hove includes historic buildings and historic 
parks and gardens.  These are the predominant types of heritage asset in the 
city that are administered by the City Council.   
 
Like listed buildings, the types of ‘historic building’ that can be included on the 
list also includes other types of structure such as street furniture, boundary 
walls and railings.  Similarly, the type of park and garden which can be 
included on the list is based upon those that are eligible for inclusion on the 
Register of Parks and Gardens.  These are ‘designed’ landscapes, rather than 
those of planting, botanical, ‘natural’ or recreational importance.   
 
Archaeological assets in the city are administered by East Sussex County 
Council through separate schemes, and locally designated sites are therefore 
not included on the Brighton & Hove Local List.  All assets within the National 
Park are similarly not included, as these are administered by the South 
Downs National Park Authority.   
 
Heritage assets that are already designated nationally as listed buildings or 
registered parks and gardens already enjoy a higher level of protection than 
local listing, and are therefore also not included on the local list.   
 
An asset is included in its entirety on the local list, unless areas are 
specifically identified within the assessment as not being of interest.  As such, 
all addresses which form part of the building, or all areas which form part of a 
park or garden are considered part of the locally listed asset, even if they are 
under different ownership/use. 
 

����������������
 
Robust and objective selection criteria ensure that the list provides a good 
basis for planning decisions and is defensible at planning appeal where 
necessary.  These are set out in Appendix 2. 
 
The criteria are based on Historic England’s Conservation Principles, Policies 
and Guidance (2008), and the National Planning Policy Framework (2012).  
They also provide additional focus on local distinctiveness and community 
value.  This is in line with Historic England’s guidance on Local Listing (2012).  
Each asset included on the local list has been considered to meet the 
selection criteria. 
 

�"�����������	���������
 
���"���������	�������%�&��� These types of street furniture are particularly 
numerous and usually conform to one of a few ‘types’.  As such, specific 
thematic criteria have been produced for these asset types.  Specific 
examples which meet the thematic criteria will be added to the local list upon 

172



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 5

identification.  The Thematic Criteria can be found within the relevant thematic 
assessments, available online: www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/local-list  
 
'�	����(���	������Care has to be taken in nominating assets dating to the 
last 30 years.  This is because there has been little time for an objective and 
consensus view to be formed on their special interest.  To be included on the 
list, an asset constructed in the last 30 years would therefore need to be of 
exceptional architectural, historic and/or townscape interest.  Its special 
interest would also need to survive wholly intact.  In line with Historic 
England’s criteria for listed buildings, assets need to be over 10 years old to 
be eligible for inclusion. 
 
�������)��*���������
������������ The interest of buildings within 
conservation areas is usually already recognised through the conservation 
area designation.  Assets within a conservation area are ‘designated heritage 
assets’ and benefit from additional planning controls over and above those 
afforded by local listing.  Buildings which are typical of their conservation area 
will not, therefore, be included on the local list.  Buildings which are atypical of 
their conservation area, but are of special architectural/design, historic and/or 
townscape interest, will be considered for inclusion. 

�

�""�����
 
Any appeal to remove an asset from the local list needs to be based on 
evidence that it fails to meet the requirements of the selection criteria.  
Similarly, if an asset has been nominated, but considered on assessment to 
not meet the criteria, any appeal for re-assessment needs to be based on new 
evidence to show how it meets the selection criteria. 

�

+������,�
��)�
 
A thorough review of the Local List was undertaken between 2013-15.  This 
included a full review of the previous local lists for Brighton and for Hove, as 
well as an extensive call for nominations from the public. 
 
New nominations for the list will be collated and assessed on a 5 year cycle.  
Additions or deletions can be proposed by anyone and should be submitted to 
the Council’s Major Projects, Heritage and Design Team.  Nominations will be 
assessed against the selection criteria.  The results of the assessments will 
be subject to a six week consultation process.  This will include notification to 
the owner/occupier of the nominated assets wherever possible, the 
Conservation Advisory Group and relevant stakeholders/local societies.  The 
assessments will be made available on the council’s website and at the 
Customer Service Centres. Following consideration of any comments 
received, recommended amendments to the list will be reported to the 
appropriate committee for approval.   
 
The first review is scheduled for 2020.  In exceptional cases, a nomination 
may be considered ahead of the 5 year cycle if there is a clearly demonstrable 
and immediate threat to that asset. 

173



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 6

 
Nominations should include sufficient information to ensure the asset can be 
adequately assessed.  This should include a clearly identified location (i.e. full 
address or map indicating location), history and explanation of how the asset 
meets the criteria.  Nominations should be submitted on the Nomination Form 
included in Appendix 3.  It will not be possible to assess the nomination if 
insufficient information is provided. 

+���*��� �����������
 
A summary list and full assessment for each inclusion on the Local List of 
Heritage Assets is available on the heritage pages of the council’s website: 
www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/local-list 
 
Those assets designated nationally (on the statutory list of historic buildings or 
register of parks and gardens) can be searched on the National Heritage List 
for England, administered by Historic England: 
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/listing/the-list  
 
Further information on planning and local listing is available on the council’s 
website:  http://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/content/planning   
 
To find out whether planning permission is required for any works you wish to 
carry out, please contact the Planning Team on 01273 292222 (option 4). 
 
For advice on appropriate repair or the acceptability of proposals for an 
existing locally listed asset, please contact the Heritage Team on 
conservation@brighton-hove.gov.uk or 01273 292222 (option 3).  The 
telephone line is available 10am -12noon, Monday to Thursday. 
 
To nominate an asset for inclusion on the council’s local list of heritage assets 
(first review scheduled for 2020 and every 5 years thereafter), please 
complete the nomination form in Appendix 3 with as much information as 
possible, and submit to the Major Projects, Heritage and Design Team on 
conservation@brighton-hove.gov.uk  or 
 
Heritage Team 
Kings House 
Grand Avenue 
Hove 
BN3 2LS 
 

174



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 7

�""��	�&���-�����������������(��.�����	�
 

������������������������+����)��.�/����0�
 
Protecting and enhancing the historic environment is an important component 
of the National Planning Policy Framework.  It forms a key part of the 
‘environmental dimension’ of sustainable development (NPPF Para 6).  The 
‘Core Planning Principles’ that underpin the planning system state that 
heritage assets should be conserved  “in a manner appropriate to their 
significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of 
life of this and future generations” (NPPF Para 17, bullet 10). 
 
This is expanded upon principally in Paragraphs 126-141.  Paragraph 135 
relates to non-designated heritage assets, including those incorporated in a 
local list.  It states: “The effect of an application on the significance of a 
non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in 
determining an application. In weighing applications that affect directly 
or indirectly non- designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will 
be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the 
significance of the heritage asset” (NPPF Para 135). 
 
Paragraphs 135, 128 and 129 of the NPPF advocate a significance-based 
approach.  Both the significance of the heritage asset and its setting should 
be considered in any application.  Conversely, proposals in the vicinity of a 
locally listed heritage asset should consider whether they impact on the 
setting of this asset.  The “desirability to sustain and enhance the 
significance of heritage assets” is taken into account when determining 
applications (NPPF para 131). 
 
The National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) is an online resource which 
provides guidance to support the NPPF.  It includes a section on non-
designated heritage assets as well as information on identification of 
significance. 
 

(���*����1���
�������������/����0�
 
At the time of writing, the Brighton & Hove Local Plan (2005) is the adopted 
local development plan for the city.  The NPPF explains that full weight could 
be given to relevant policies, including ‘saved’ policies adopted since 2004, for 
12 months from the date of the NPPF’s publication (2012).  After this period, 
due weight can be given to Local Plan policies which have a degree of 
consistency with policies in the NPPF.  It is considered that the policies 
relevant to the Local List are fully consistent with the NPPF so should be 
afforded ‘significant weight’. 
 
The relevant policies are Policy HE10 and QD20. 
 
Policy HE10 relates to Buildings of Local Interest.  It states that: 
 

175



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 8

“The planning authority will seek to ensure the retention, good 
maintenance and continued use of buildings of local interest. Whilst not 
enjoying the full protection of statutory listing, the design and the 
materials used in proposals affecting these buildings should be of a 
high standard compatible with the character of the building.” 
 
Protection for parks and gardens on a local list is provided by Policy QD20, 
‘urban open space’.  This is indicated in the supporting text to policy HE11, 
‘historic parks and gardens’.  This policy helps to safeguard areas of open 
space that are important to the local and/or wider community and help to 
provide an attractive, sustainable and stimulating environment.  It states: 
 
“Planning permission will not be granted for proposals that would result 
in the loss of areas of public or private open space that are important to 
people because of their recreational, community, historical, 
conservation, economic, wildlife, social or amenity value. 
Enhancements to these areas of open space will be sought and the 
preservation of character, appearance, layout and features of 
importance. 
 
The loss of an area of open space important to people will only be 
considered in exceptional circumstances. For example, where it can be 
demonstrated that the proposal is of national importance or essential to 
meet social, environmental and/or economic needs, which cannot be 
located elsewhere. Where such exceptional circumstances apply, the 
planning authority will require alternative appropriate open space 
provision of a suitable size, type, layout character, appearance and 
location.” 
 
Any locally listed park or garden is considered to have historical or 
conservation value.  The preservation and/or enhancement of the area will be 
sought.  Loss of a locally listed park or garden will only be considered in 
exceptional circumstances.  In the case of locally listed spaces, it is not 
possible to replace the interest and value of the space through providing 
alternative open space elsewhere. 
 

����������/������0�
 
At the time this Planning Advice Note was agreed, the City Plan (Part One) 
had been submitted to the Secretary of State in June 2013 and is within its 
Examination stage.  It is a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications. The NPPF (paragraph 216) gives more weight to 
emerging policies that are at a late stage of preparation subject to compliance 
with the NPPF and the amount of unresolved objections. Therefore weighting 
is considered on a policy by policy basis. 
 
Following the forthcoming adoption of the City Plan Part One, policy QD20 of 
the Brighton & Hove Local Plan (2005) will be replaced by policy CP16, ‘Open 
Space’.  Local Plan Policy HE10 will be retained as part of the Development 
Plan for Brighton & Hove until replaced by the City Plan (Part Two). 
 

176



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 9

Policy CP15, ‘Heritage’ (which is considered to have significant weight) 
provides an over-arching policy advocating the promotion of the city’s heritage 
and ensuring the historic environment plays an integral part in the wider 
social, cultural, economic and environmental future of the city.  In line with 
national policy, it supports a significance-led approach.  
 
Policy CP16, ‘Open Space’ (which is considered to have more weight than the 
Local Plan policy) seeks to safeguard, improve, expand and promote access 
to Brighton & Hove’s open spaces and the diverse range of experiences 
offered by these spaces.  Paragraph 4.179 of the supporting text states that 
the existing historical, visual and cultural value will be taken into account.  
 

���������$�����	�2��	�����
 
Historic England provides a range of relevant guidance documents through its 
website.  The most relevant document is the ‘Good Practice Guide for Local 
Heritage Listing’ (2012).  This provides an introduction to the role of local 
listing, the policy background and the creation and management of local lists. 
 
Historic England’s Selection Guides: 
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/listing/selection-criteria/ outline the national 
designation criteria for different types of historic building and historic park and 
garden.  These are useful in providing a history to each asset type and setting 
local assets within the national context.   
 

177



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 10 

�""��	�&���-��������������������
�

���������	
��������������	������������������������������������
���������

�

�

�

�

����������	����������������	� � � � 
���������	�������������������	�

�

���� ������������ � � � � �����

�

�

�

�

�

�������������
	���� �

�

�

�

�

�

�

• ��������
��	����������������������

!���������

• �������������"#�������	�!��������

• ����������!��������

�

• $����������

$�����������#������

• !����������

�

• %���
��	�&�	
��

178



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 11 

���������
�

�
�

A - Architectural, Design and Artistic Interest 
 
This interest derives from the design and general aesthetics of an asset, and how 
people draw sensory and intellectual stimulation from it. The difference between 
architectural/design interest and artistic interest can be clear (for example statues 
(artistic interest) in a formal garden (design), but is often less so (for example 
ornament on a building).  To meet the criteria of Architectural, Design and Artistic 
Interest, an asset should demonstrate at least one of the following: 

(i) A good example of a regional approach to its design, construction, planning, 
craftsmanship, decoration and/or materials 

(ii) A good quality and/or rare example of a particular type of building, style or 
period of design 

(iii) An asset demonstrating innovation in its design, construction or decoration, 
that may have led to the development of new styles or trends 

(iv) A good example of work by a national or local notable architect, engineer, 
artist or company 

(v) An asset with aesthetic interest derived either from conscious design, or 
through how it has evolved over time. 

 
B - Historic and Evidential Interest 
 
Historic interest derives from how a particular aspect of past life is illustrated or 
associated with notable persons, groups or historic events.  Evidential interest 
provides evidence about past human activity.  This can be from documentary sources 
or through analysis of the surviving historic fabric.  To meet the criteria of Historic and 
Evidential Interest, an asset should demonstrate at least one of the following: 

(i) Close association with a notable individual, group or historic event of 
regional and/or national importance, which is uncompromised by its current 
appearance 

(ii) An asset which influenced, and/or whose former use illustrates the physical, 
social and economic development of Brighton and Hove, where this is 
uncompromised by its current appearance 

(iii) Significance enhanced through the survival of associated contemporary or 
historic records   

(iv) The surviving fabric reveals important evidence about human activity 
(v) An asset whose present form is the outcome of a series of phases of 

development or a continuous sequence of change, where the apparent 
phases reveal evidence about changing human activity 

 
C - Townscape Interest 
 
Townscape interest derives from the contribution an asset makes to the townscape.  It 
may also include group value.  To meet the criteria of Townscape Interest, an asset 
should demonstrate at least one of the following: 

(i) Within a Conservation Area, making a positive contribution to the character 
and appearance, but atypical in style, design and/or materials 

(ii) Outside a Conservation Area, but makes a positive contribution to the street 
scene 

(iii) Forms a visual focal point and/or landmark 
(iv) Has considerable group value through its close association to designated 

asset(s).   

�

179



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 12 

�

�
�

�

�

������������
�

�
�

�

 
 

D - Communal Value (non-compulsory) 
 
Communal Value derives from the meanings that a heritage asset has for the 
people who relate to it, or for whom it figures in their collective experience or 
memory.  It may be more directly associated with activities rather than physical 
fabric.  To meet the criteria of Communal Value, an asset should demonstrate at 
least one of the following: 

(i) Forms a source of local identity and/or distinctiveness for the 
community.  

(ii) Retains commemorative, symbolic and/or spiritual value 
 

Although communal value is important to the significance of an asset, it is very 
difficult to quantify.  The value also changes between individuals/groups and over 
time.  As such, this is not a compulsory criteria.  Any demonstrable communal 
value will nevertheless be taken into account in the assessment, and may be 
particularly influential in borderline cases. 

E – Rarity and Representativeness 
 

(i) A good example of a design, form or other feature that is uncommon in 
the locality or city.  This may be linked to age (as the older the asset is, 
the less likely it is to survive in anything like its original form), however 
age does not necessarily equate to rarity.  For example, a Regency 
townhouse is of considerable age, but is not particularly rare in Brighton 
and Hove.   

(ii) One of few surviving examples of an asset type which is representative 
of a particular style or trend, or representative of the legacy of a 
particular individual, group, architect or company. 

 
F – Intactness 
 

(i) Retains a sense of completeness, in itself and/or as part of a larger 
group.  Retains the majority of its design features, such as the original 
windows to a building or original landscape/architectural elements within 
a historic park.��This may represent a single phase of development, or 
a number of historic phases of development. 

(ii) Retains its original use or function, where this is particularly relevant to 
its interest. 

�

180



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 13 

�""��	�&�3�-�����������+����
 
�

�������	�
	���������
�������
�

����	
���	��������
�

�

����������	
������������������������	
�������������������	������
�����������

��������

�����������������������������
��	
�������

������������������������������������

����������
�������������������������������	������������ �

�������	�����
����������������

�����������	�����
���������	���������������������
	�
�������������

��
�������������

�����
�����
������	��������	�����������
�������
�������� �������	!��� �� �"#���
�!

������

�

�����������	�
��

$�������
��!� �

$��������� �

� �

� �

$�%����
"��������#$����#����%�

�

&
��������	��������	��� �

'�	����
"����� %�

�

$(�����&���������	�����������
"������������
������
����������������������%��

�

�

�

�

�

�����������������������������	�����������������
�
�����	����������&	
����������� ������������������������������"���������������������������������

�������%���'����������(���������������������������������������������������������������������

��������������������������������������������������������������

�����������������
�"�
������&	�����&����������	����������������%�

)�*������������
�+�&����	�
	�����������,	��������

�

)�*����������
	��-���	��
��,	��������

�

).*����	��
���,	��������

�

181



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 14 

)&*�.����	
��/
����"�)���	�
����%�

�

 
���������������������
�

)-*�0
���%�
	��0������	�
���	����

�

)�*�,	�
��	�����

�

 

��������	����������
��

�
��%�������������
	%��������
���������%����	���	
���	1��� *������������� �������������

&��%�����	��	���������.��	�������������	���������������
�����	�

�������
�������
	��
�����
�����
����
�1�
*������������� �������������

���������������
�����
"�	�������������������
���

�
	�1�
���
������������������������������� +����������

�

�	����� �!������	��������"���������	����������#��� ����� ������� �����$�

 �!����������"��������������%�	�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�  	�����������	�
��
������� ��
��
�������������������������	���������������
���
�
��������� ��	
�����	�������������������
��

��
� ���

�
����� �

�
�����������#������%��

)���
�����
���*�
�

��������� �

� �

� �

2��	������� �

-�
������ �

2�����������
	�������	�
�����

2��	����������������������������������������

��

-�
������������������������������������������

��

������������������������������������������������

 
�
�����������������������!�$��������'�����,����$������-�����������$�������.�/01����

����������2�������)�������������

182



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 15 

�""��	�&�4�-�2��������
 
The following definitions are taken from the NPPF (marked NPPF), Planning 
Portal Website (marked PP) or Historic England Website (marked HE) 
 
��������4�!���������/��0� Direction removing some or all permitted 
development rights, for example within a conservation area or curtilage of a 
listed building. Article 4 directions are issued by local planning authorities. 
 
������
������/����*��������"�����0�/��+0��The process of maintaining and 
managing change to a heritage asset in a way that sustains and, where 
appropriate, enhances its significance. 
 
������
�����������/��0� Local authorities have the power to designate as 
conservation areas, any area of special architectural or historic interest. This 
means the planning authority has extra powers to control works and 
demolition of buildings to protect or improve the character or appearance of 
the area. Conservation Area Consent has been replaced by planning 
permission for relevant demolition in a conservation area. 
 
����������/�$0� An area of land around a listed building within which other 
buildings pre-dating July 1948 may be considered listed. Some buildings have 
no curtilage. For some the extent will be clear (such as the garden boundary) 
but for others assessing the curtilage may be difficult. 
 
!��������	�*��������������/��+0� A World Heritage Site, Scheduled 
Monument, Listed Building, Protected Wreck Site, Registered Park and 
Garden, Registered Battlefield or Conservation Area designated under the 
relevant legislation. 
 
���������������/��+0� A building, monument, site, place, area or landscape 
identified as having a degree of significance meriting consideration in planning 
decisions, because of its heritage interest. Heritage asset includes designated 
heritage assets and assets identified by the local planning authority (including 
local listing). 
 
�����������
���������/��+0� All aspects of the environment resulting from 
the interaction between people and places through time, including all surviving 
physical remains of past human activity, whether visible, buried or 
submerged, and landscaped and planted or managed flora. 
 
�����������
��������������	�/��+0��Information services that seek to 
provide access to comprehensive and dynamic resources relating to the 
historic environment of a defined geographic area for public benefit and use. 
 
�����	�(���	����/��0� A building of special architectural or historic interest. 
Listed buildings are graded I, II* or II with grade I being the highest. Listing 
includes the interior as well as the exterior of the building, and any buildings 
or permanent structures (e.g. wells) within its curtilage. Historic England is 
responsible for designating buildings for listing in England. 

183



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 16 

 
�������������*��������������/��+0� The surroundings in which a heritage 
asset is experienced. Its extent is not fixed and may change as the asset and 
its surroundings evolve. Elements of a setting may make a positive or 
negative contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to 
appreciate that significance or may be neutral. 
 
�������������/����*��������"�����0�/��+0��The value of a heritage asset to 
this and future generations because of its heritage interest. That interest may 
be archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic. Significance derives not 
only from a heritage asset’s physical presence, but also from its setting. 
 
 
 
The full Glossaries of relevant planning terms are available here: 
 
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/general/glossaryandlinks/glossary  

https://www.historicengland.org.uk/advice/hpg/hpr-definitions/ 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/blog/policy/achieving-
sustainable-development/annex-2-glossary/  

184



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 17 

�""��	�&���-�,���������

 

A list of useful resources is set out below.  �

 

(��.���
 
Antram, N. and Morrice, R. (2008) Brighton and Hove: Pevsner Architectural 

City Guide. New Haven and London: Yale University Press 
Antram, N. and Pevsner, N. (2013) Sussex East with Brighton and Hove: The 

Buildings of England.  New Haven and London: Yale University Press 
Carder, T. (1990) The Encyclopaedia of Brighton. East Sussex: East Sussex 

County Libraries 
Collis, R. (2010) The New Encyclopaedia of Brighton.  Brighton: Brighton & 

Hove Libraries 
Middleton, J. (2002) The Encyclopaedia of Hove and Portslade  
 
Many other books are available which are area-specific or relate to a certain 
asset type.  Some of these are referenced in the bibliography in Appendix 6.  
Copies are often available at city libraries or The Keep (see below). 
 

5�����������������
 
Historic England’s Selection Guides: 
https://www.historicengland.org.uk/listing/selection-criteria/ outline the national 
designation criteria for different types of historic building and historic park and 
garden.  These are useful in providing a history to each asset type and setting 
local assets within the national context.   
 
Historic England designation reports for non-listed (those buildings nominated 
for statutory listing but considered not to meet the criteria) or de-listed (those 
buildings formerly on the statutory list but removed following reassessment) 
can be searched via the Heritage Gateway: 
http://www.heritagegateway.org.uk/gateway/   
This only covers more recent assessments.  The Heritage Gateway also 
allows some of Historic England’s other online resources to be searched, 
such as Pastscape and ViewFinder. 
 
The council has produced Conservation Area Character Statements for many 
historic areas of the city: http://www.brighton-
hove.gov.uk/content/planning/heritage/conservation-areas. These identify the 
character and appearance of the conservation area.  Where an asset is 
located within a conservation area, it is required to be atypical of the character 
and appearance of the conservation area in order to meet selection criteria 
C(i).  
 
Tithe Maps and Apportionments can be searched here: 
http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/leisureandtourism/localandfamilyhistory/esro/tit
hemaps/search.aspx  Tithe maps and apportionments were prepared 
following the Tithe Commutation Act of 1836, and show the development of 

185



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 18 

the area in about 1840.  They were drawn up on a parish basis.  The 
apportionments provide a schedule of all owners and occupiers of land in the 
parish. 
 
Street Directories are available online here: 
http://mhms.org.uk/content/resources   
 
Historic photographs are available online through websites such as 
http://www.regencysociety-jamesgray.com/   
 
Brighton & Hove Museums’ local history collections: http://www.brighton-hove-
rpml.org.uk/HistoryAndCollections/aboutcollections/localhistory/Pages/home.a
spx   
 
Local History: http://www.mybrightonandhove.org.uk/   

�

6*��7��"�
 
The Keep is a world-class centre for archives situated in Falmer.  It contains 
records for East Sussex, including Brighton & Hove and provides access to 
the collections of the East Sussex Records Office, Royal Pavilion & Museums 
Local History Collections and the University of Sussex Special Collections. 
Many of the resources can be searched online on their website 
http://www.thekeep.info/, or in person.  It may be necessary to order archival 
material in advance of visiting. 
 

$���������&����������$�
���������,����	�/�$,0�
 
The East Sussex HER is a database of known archaeological and historic 
sites in the county. It is maintained by the East Sussex County Council 
Archaeology Team. This information is used to inform the planning process 
and help manage the county’s heritage.  It is also a valuable research tool; 
access is available to members of the public. 
http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/environment/archaeology/her.htm   
 
 
 

186



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 19 

�""��	�&�8�-�,������������	���"����*��
 

(�%������"*���

�

The following books are referenced within the assessments: 

 

Brighton Polytechnic School of Architecture and Interior Design, ND, A Guide 
to the Buildings of Brighton.  Macclesfield: McMillan Martin Ltd 

Antram, N. and Morrice, R. (2008) Brighton and Hove: Pevsner Architectural 
City Guide. New Haven and London: Yale University Press 

Antram, N. and Pevsner, N. (2013) Sussex East with Brighton and Hove: The 
Buildings of England.  New Haven and London: Yale University Press 

Berry, S. (2000) Pleasure Gardens in Georgian and Regency Seaside 
Resorts: Brighton. 1750-1840. In Garden History. Vol 28, No.2 pp222-
230  

Carder, T. (1990) The Encyclopaedia of Brighton. East Sussex: East Sussex 
County Libraries 

Collis, R. (2010) The New Encyclopaedia of Brighton.  Brighton: Brighton & 
Hove Libraries 

D’Enno, D. (2009) Rottingdean Through Time. Stroud: Amberley 

Dale, A. (1991) Brighton Cemeteries.  Brighton: Brighton Borough Council 

Elleray, D.R. (1989)  A Refuge from Reality: The Cinemas of Brighton & Hove. 
Hastings: Olio Books. 

Hatherley, O (2012) A New Kind of Bleak: Journeys Through Urban Britain. 
Brooklyn, London and Paris: Verson 

Middleton, J. (1979) A History of Hove.  London and Chichester: Phillimore 

Middleton, J. (2002) The Encyclopaedia of Hove and Portslade 

Miller, E.P. (2011) St James’s Street, Brighton, and its Environs: A Walk 
Through its History from 1800-1910.  Lewes: Pomegranate Press 

Myall, S. (2008) The Victorian Development of the Clifton, Montpelier and 
Powis Estates of Brighton.  Lewes: Pomegranate Press 

Nairn & Pevsner (1965) The Buildings of England: Sussex.  Harmondsworth: 
Penguin 

Wells-Thorpe, J. (2009) Behind the Façade: An Architect at Large. Brighton: 
Book Guild 

187



Appendix 4 – Recommended text for  
Local List of Heritage Assets, Planning Advice Note 

 20 

��"����*��
 
The assessments include a photograph, historic map and/or aerial view of the 
asset as applicable. 
 
�*������"*���

�

�������
��)��  The following copyright is applicable to aerial views included in 
the assessments: 
 
Cities Revealed (R) copyright by The GeoInformation(R) Group, 2014 and 
Crown Copyright © All rights reserved. 
 
���������'�"��The following copyright is applicable to historic maps included 
in the assessments: 
 
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material with the permission of 
Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Office © Crown 
copyright.  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead 
to prosecution or civil proceedings.  100019601. 2015 
 
 

188



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & 
CULTURE COMMITTEE 

Agenda Item 11 

 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

Subject: Brighton & Hove Triathlon 2016 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2015 

Report of: Assistant Chief Executive 

Contact Officer: 
Name: 

Ian Shurrock 
Ian Taylor 

Tel: 
29-2084 
29-2710 

 
Email: 

Ian.shurrock@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
Ian.taylor@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
 

Ward(s) affected: All  

 
 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE                                  
 
1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 
1.1 To seek approval from members for landlord’s consent to stage the Brighton and 

Hove Triathlon including a Sport & Fitness Show on Saturday 17th and Sunday 
18th September 2016. 

  
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
2.1 That the committee grants landlord’s consent to stage the Brighton and Hove                 

Triathlon in September 2016. 
 
2.2 That the committee authorise officers to enter into formal agreements with event 

organisers to determine conditions, fees and levels of support as appropriate. 
 
2.3 That the committee authorises the Assistant Chief Executive, after consultation 

with the Chair of the committee and opposition spokespersons, to make any 
alterations to the operational details of the event as necessary. 

 
 
3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY 

EVENTS: 
  
3.1 Triathlon is a sport which has grown in recent years and has benefitted from the 

success of British athletes on the international stage including the 2012 
Olympics.  Triathlons involve athletes competing in a swim followed by cycling 
and ending with a running section. The international event distance is a 1500m 
swim followed by a 40km cycle and ending with a 10km run. These distances are 
then adjusted in relation to the ability and age range of participants to enable a 
series of Triathlons to take place as part of this event. 

189



3.2 The Brighton and Hove Triathlon would be for up to 3000 participants although 
realistically for a first year there would probably be in the region of 1000 entrants. 
Alongside elite athletes there would be categories for experienced, intermediate 
and new participants. Age group events, designed for participants as young as 
10 years old, would also be included. On the Saturday a children’s “Scootathlon” 
will take place with participation from local schools, consisting of a scoot, bike 
and run. This mini fun triathlon will be a chance for children aged 4-8 years old to 
engage in exercise and raise awareness of the health benefits of participating in 
sport. 

 
3.3 Triathlon is a composite of three very popular sports and the organisers will seek 

to involve local triathlon, running, cycling and outdoor swimming clubs from the 
city to ensure a strong involvement from the local community. The wide age 
range and abilities that the event will attract will be a positive encouragement to 
increase participation in physical activity with subsequent health benefits. 

 
3.4 The event would provide a positive economic benefit to the city particularly as it 

is expected many event participants and spectators would stay in the city over 
the weekend. At this stage it is difficult to predict the scale of the overall impact, 
but we would request the organisers to undertake an economic impact study as 
part of a review of the success of the event.  

 
3.5 The event would be centred on Hove Lawns, with the race village, start and finish 

areas and a Sport and Fitness Exhibition set up on the lawns immediately to the 
west of the Peace Statue.  

 
3.6 The Triathlon would take place on Sunday 18th September with the sea swim 

taking place from Hove Promenade. This would be followed by the cycle section 
on fully closed roads on the A259 and the run section on Hove Promenade/ 
Lawns.   

 
3.7   The event will require a full traffic management plan with the roads being closed 

from 6am to 2pm on Sunday 18th September. The cycle route is to be confirmed 
but will involve the cyclists undertaking several laps of a circuit likely to extend 
from Hove Lawns west to Hove Lagoon. However, the traffic management plan 
would be developed to determine the extent of the road closure and ensure the 
impact on local residents is minimised as much as possible. 

 
3.8 The Sport and Fitness Show, encouraging participation in sport and featuring          

sports demonstrations, seminars and exhibition stands will run from 9am to 5pm 
on Saturday 17th September and Sunday 18th September. The show will be free 
to attend and again is part of the focus of the weekend to encourage people to 
take part in sport and physical activity to the benefit of their health and well-
being. 

 
3.9 The event is organised by The Sport and Fitness Show and The Human Race 

Ltd, a group of leisure professionals experienced in staging races, exhibitions 
and sporting events throughout the UK.  They include the Triathlon Competition 
Manager for the London 2012 Olympic Games who was responsible for the 
highly successful Triathlons in Hyde Park. 
 

190



3.10 The organisers have identified the South East of England as not having an 
international class triathlon and wish to bring the event to Brighton and Hove. 
This follows the great recent successes of sporting events such as the Brighton 
Marathon and the Tour of Britain cycle race. 

 
 
4. ANALYSIS AND CONSIDERATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 Alternative venues have been considered for the event such as Madiera Drive, 

but the location proposed is felt to be the least disruptive with regards to the 
proposed road closures. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Consultation will take place with Ward Councillors, Sussex Police, East Sussex 

Fire & Rescue Service, South East Coast Ambulance Service, NHS Trust, 
Environmental Health & Licensing, City Parks, Civil Contingencies and 
Highways. Detailed consultation will also follow as the event is developed 
between the respective event organiser and our partner agencies. 

 
 
6. CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 The proposal for the Brighton & Hove Triathlon and Health & Fitness Show would 

be a positive new addition to the annual events calendar. The potential is for the 
city’s reputation for hosting international events to be further enhanced together 
with additional economic benefits and encouragement for people to increase 
participation in sport and physical activity. 

  
 
7. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 

 
 
 Financial Implications: 
 
7.1 In accordance with the Outdoor Events Policy, fees are negotiated for  

commercial events and any costs incurred are the responsibility of the 
organiser.  

 
 Finance Officer Consulted: Name Michael Bentley Date: 27/05/15 
 
 Legal Implications: 
 
7.2 Traffic orders will be made as appropriate.  
 
 Lawyer Consulted: Bob Bruce Date: 20/05/15 
 
 Equalities Implications: 
 
7.3 The organisers are seeking to encourage participants from a wide age range and 

level of ability. 
 

191



 Sustainability Implications: 
 
7.4 Events are planned and staged in accordance with the statutory powers and                    

planning obligations as set out in the Outdoor Events Policy. The nature of 
outdoor events means that they often involve a range of potential sustainability 
impacts (both positive and negative) from travel, energy and water use, food, 
local economic and social impacts, use of outdoor spaces and production of 
waste. Through the Sustainable Events Programme, event organisers are 
supported to improve sustainability at their events, focusing on the areas with the 
highest potential impact. 

 
 Any Other Significant Recommendations 
 
7.5 No other significant recommendations. 
  
 
     

192



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. None  
  
 

Documents in Members’ Rooms 
 
1. None   
 
Background Documents 
 
1. None 
 
 

193



194



MAJOR PROJECTS & REGENERATION TEAM 

PROJECT UPDATE  
 

June 2015 
 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Photo Credit: Open Market-Lucy Williams 

195



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

2

CITY REGENERATION UNIT 

  

Team Objectives: 
 

The Major Projects & Regeneration Team manages, together with public and private sector partners, the 
implementation of key regeneration and infrastructure projects that support the city’s economic growth and 
contribute to the transformation of the city for all, including the development of key employment sites.  Successful 
delivery of these major projects provides new business space and employment opportunities, new homes, and 
community and leisure facilities.  Development can also act as a regenerative catalyst encouraging further 
investment in the city. 
Each of our projects contributes towards a vision of shaping the city by developing and sustaining the economy, 
preserving and promoting our heritage, growing our cultural offer and improving the quality of life for our residents, 
visitors and businesses.  All projects consider the importance of good urban design and public realm, and also 
ensure that new development has the minimum possible environmental impact.  Generally the projects do not 
receive direct capital investment from the city council and are dependent upon development partners providing 
external investment.  
The Team: 

Richard Davies  x6825 
Mark Jago   x1106 
Katharine Pearce  x2553 
Alan Buck   x3451 
Mark Ireland   x2705  

196



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

3

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

Black Rock  

 

Vacant seafront site adjacent 

to Brighton Marina. 

 

A temporary Sand Sculpture 

exhibition opened to the 

public on 8 April 2013 and 

has a temporary lease.  

 

 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Katharine  

Pearce 

(Long term 

proposals) 

 

Toni 

Manuel/ 

Ian 

Shurrock 

(Sand 

Sculptures) 

 

On December 16
th

 2014 Policy and 

Resources Committee agreed to a 

series of recommendations which will 

allow council officers to continue 

negotiation with Standard Life 

Investments with the aim of 

progressing plans to deliver a new 

multi-use 10,000 seat venue on the 

Black Rock site, which will unlock the 

opportunity for an extension to 

Churchill Square Shopping Centre ( a 

long-term aspiration within the City 

Plan to establish the City as a regional 

shopping destination) and improve 

the public realm for this important 

area. 

 
  

The Black Rock site and the proposal 

under discussion offers significant 

potential for creating jobs, providing 

new leisure facilities and contributing 

to the future vitality and sustainability 

of the seafront.  It also offers great 

potential for contributing to the 

longer term sustainability of the 

Marina and drawing visitors along the 

seafront.  

 

Constraints/opportunities include: 

- The need to establish appropriate 

transport links, as part of a wider 

seafront strategy, sufficient to 

support new development 

- The need to ensure access is 

protected and if possible enhanced 

for the Marina – particularly for 

pedestrians and cyclists 

- The opportunity to create a new 

destination and to regenerate this 

important section of seafront. 

 

A new Project Board 

reconvened in June 2014 to 

explore long term 

redevelopment options 

available to the city council and 

the first steps towards longer 

term redevelopment were 

taken at Policy and Resources 

on 16
th

 December 2014 with the 

recommendation to continue 

negotiations with Standard Life 

Investments and Venue 

Ventures to deliver a new multi-

use venue and enabling housing 

on the site. 

 

The council has appointed legal 

advisors Osborne Clarke and 

discussions are underway with 

the developers about a suite of 

legal documents which will form 

the next report to Policy and 

Resources Committee once they 

have been agreed. All will be 

subject to further discussions 

with the cross party Project 

Board which will continue to 

meet during this process 

Brighton Centre  

 

Options under discussion: 

A newly built Conference, 

Entertainment and 

Exhibition Centre to replace 

the current Brighton Centre 

Directors: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Katharine 

Pearce  

A mixed-use development with 

capacity to utilise land holdings from 

Standard Life Investments [SLI] 

(owners of Churchill Square Shopping 

Centre) to create 2,000 jobs in the City 

has now been confirmed by a Policy 

and resources Committee (16/12/14) 

Mixed-use development: £540m 

estimated. 

Total Net Additional Jobs: 2,000 

(estimated)  
 

In addition: significant amenity and 

environmental improvements to the 

See above.  

Feasibility discussions are 

continuing over the next few 

months with Standard Life 

Investments in relation to 

longer-term redevelopment 

options for a multi-use venue at 

197



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

4

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

at Black Rock, with an 

extension to Churchill Square 

shopping centre to form a 

new regional shopping 

destination and improved 

seafront offer.  

as the potential way forward.  Officers 

will be developing the proposals for a 

new Conferencing and Entertainment 

Venue at Black Rock and an extension 

to Churchill Square and will continue 

reporting to the cross party Project 

Board, coming back to Policy and 

Resources on progress in due course.   

Seafront, West Street and Russell 

Road/Cannon Place. 
 

 

Black Rock (to replace the 

Brighton Centre) and an 

extension to the existing 

Churchill Square shopping 

Centre. The feasibility work is 

currently being independently 

checked by CBRE on behalf of 

the council and they are 

expected to report back at the 

end of May or beginning of 

June. 

Circus Street 

 

The site comprises the 

former municipal fruit and 

vegetable market, university 

annex and Carlton Hill public 

car park. The proposal for 

the site, is for a high-quality 

sustainable mixed-use 

development providing a 

new university library and 

teaching space for the 

University of Brighton; 

employment space, including 

managed workspace for the 

creative industries; 

residential units, student 

accommodation, ancillary 

retail and a community and 

professional dance space run 

by South East Dance.   

 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Alan Buck 

The project is a partnership between 

the developer Cathedral (now part of 

Development Securities) with Brighton 

& Hove City Council and the University 

of Brighton. 

 

The planning application for the 

£100m regeneration proposal was 

granted by planning committee on 17 

September 2014.  The former 

municipal fruit and veg market would 

become a mixed-use scheme and 

‘innovation quarter’ which is expected 

to create 400 jobs and inject £200m 

into the city’s economy over the next 

10 years. 

 

Cathedral have opened a temporary 

cultural and community use in the 

building, and have appointed a site 

manager to run the space.   

 

In March 2015 Cathedral bought out 

the 50% stake in the development 

This scheme will deliver the following 

uses: 

• New Library and teaching space for 

the University of Brighton and 

Student Accommodation (486 beds) 

as part of an improved educational 

quarter 

• Dance Studio and Creative Space for 

the city  

• Office space, focused on addressing 

existing market failure for creative 

and digital sector 

• Ancillary retail, cafés and workshops 

to animate the public spaces 

• Residential: 142 units  
 

The headline economic benefits 

include 169 FTE (full-time equivalent) 

construction jobs and 262 FTE jobs 

generated by the completed 

development, and an economic 

impact in the city economy of 

£103.8m over ten years.   
 

• December 2012: Started 

detailed design. 

• June 2013: P&R Committee 

gave landowner consent for 

RIBA Stage D scheme. 

• October 2013: Planning 

application submitted.  

• September 2014: Planning 

permission minded to grant 

subject to S106. 

• March 2015: Section 106 

signed 

• Late July 2015: Start 

demolition on site. 

• November 2015: Start 

construction on site. 

• April 2017: Dance Space 

completed 

• August 2017: University 

building completed 

• April 2018: Overall 

completion 

 

198



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

5

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

held by its joint venture partner 

McLaren. 

 

The qualitative benefits include the 

fact that student housing will relieve 

pressure on the private rented sector; 

there will be more, affordable homes; 

the dance studio provides a focus for 

dance in the city; it will further 

integrate the university into the heart 

of the city bringing enterprise to 

creativity.  There are also physical and 

townscape improvements linked to 

the public event square and 

permeability of the site, replacing the 

existing derelict market building. 
 

The inclusion of the creative space and 

dance studio within the scheme will 

contribute to its long-term success in 

terms of the vibrancy of the area.   

It will diversify the usage of the site in 

terms of the range of users and the 

timings of usage.  This will help stop 

the site becoming an island site and 

connect it to the other cultural 

facilities in the city, close to the 

cultural quarter. 

i360  

 

A West Pier Trust project in 

partnership with the Council 

and Brighton i360 to build a 

175m observation tower 

providing 360 degree views 

for 25 miles.  Restaurant, 

retail and exhibition space 

will also be included and the 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Katharine 

Pearce 

A start on site was achieved for the 

project in June and an official launch 

undertaken jointly with the opening of 

the new western arches, opened by 

the Mayor, on 29
th

 July 2014. The final 

completion of the i360 project will be 

in June 2016 and will conclude the 

regeneration of this important part of 

the seafront.   

 

100,000 additional visitors to the City 

and 600-800,000 visitors a year to the 

attraction providing regeneration for 

the wider seafront and areas of 

Preston Street and Regency Square. 

 

Section 106 funding of £77k pre-

opening and 1% of ticket revenue to 

be provided in perpetuity to the 

Council for environmental and other 

Start on site: June 2014 

 

May 2015: The tower cans are 

almost complete and ready in 

early June to be sent by barge 

across the English Channel. 

Weather permitting the first 

beach landing will be on 11 June 

and the erection of the tower 

can begin shortly afterwards. 

199



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

6

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

existing West Pier Toll 

Booths (removed from site) 

will be re-instated.  A wider 

landscaping scheme and 

work to the eastern and 

western seafront arches 

(started in November 2012) 

will also form part of the 

final wider regeneration 

scheme. 
 

The benefits created by the project 

were presented to Cabinet and later 

to Policy & Resources Committee on  

6 March 2014 and agreement was 

reached that, in conjunction with the 

Business Case, a compelling argument 

could be made for the council to act, 

on commercial terms, as senior lender 

for the project. 
 

The council therefore worked with the 

various partners, including the Coast 

to Capital LEP (Local Enterprise 

Partnership), to achieve Financial 

Close which was achieved in June 

2014. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

improvements and community 

benefits.  

 

154-169 operational and construction 

jobs and an estimated 444 jobs 

overall. 

 

Annual additional spend of between 

£13.09 to £25.4m. 

 

An increase of between 2%-3.2% in 

tourism earnings overall for the City. 

 

27,000-49,000 estimated new 

overnight visitors creating a minimum 

of 49 FTE jobs. 

 

2/3 professional placements each year 

linked to a management training 

programme.  

 

Management trainees and managers 

will undertake training linked to 

achieving NVQ qualifications. 

Landscaping and Environmental 

improvements to east and west 

including rebuilding of original Toll 

Booths as new ticket kiosks as part of 

i360 project. 

Work on the observation pod 

and drive mechanism is also 

progressing well and on budget. 

Accountancy and legal services 

will be provided by local 

companies through sponsorship 

deals. A MasterChef “the 

Professionals” winner Steven 

Edwards based in Horsham will 

be the Chef and will work 

closely with catering company 

Centreplate.  

 

Brighton i360 information 

channel webpage up and 

running at: 

www.brightoni360.com  

 

Regular newsletter with 

updates available at the same 

site: 

http://www.brightoni360.co.uk

/mailing-list.html  

 

Completion: End of June 2016. 

200



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

7

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

King Alfred 

 

Redevelopment of the King 

Alfred Leisure Centre site to 

secure the long-term 

replacement of the outdated 

sports and leisure facilities, 

along with a major 

residential led enabling 

development. 

 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Mark Jago 

The King Alfred project is overseen by 

a cross-party Project Board that 

prepared the outline specification for 

the new sports centre, together with 

the type of enabling development 

needed to support it.  This was 

formally agreed by the council’s Policy 

& Resources Committee in July 2013. 

 

 

In September 2014 the Project Board 

agreed to the commencement of the 

procurement process and the council 

advertised the development 

opportunity on  

10 October 2014; the first stage of 

which required submission of ‘Pre-

Qualification Questionnaires’ (PQQs).   
 

Submitted PQQs were assessed by the 

Evaluation Team in November 2014, 

with Bouygues Development and 

Crest Nicholson Regeneration in 

partnership with local charity, the 

Starr Trust emerging as the shortlisted 

Bidders. The decision was ratified by 

the Project Board at its meeting on 12 

December 2014. 
 

Initial briefing sessions with the 

Bidders were held in January 2015, 

following which the formal ‘dialogue 

process’ commenced. Bidders 

submitted ‘Outline Solutions’ in 

February 2015 and the Project Board 

Provision of modern, high quality, 

public sports and leisure facilities in 

the west of the city, and 

redevelopment of this strategically 

significant site to enhance the 

seafront and surrounding area.  The 

enabling development will include a 

significant number of new homes. 

• Development opportunity 

marketed and Pre-

Qualification Questionnaire 

(PQQ) issued – 10 October 

2014. 

•  

• PQQs evaluated by Officer 

Evaluation Panel – November 

2014 

• Shortlisted bidders agreed by 

Project Board – 12 December 

2014 

• Outline Solutions Dialogue – 

January 2015 to February 

2015 

•  ‘Outline Solutions’ submitted 

– 27 February 2015.  

Indicative timetable for future 

stages: 

 

• Stage 2 dialogue – April 2015 

to June 2015 

• Final Tenders return deadline 

– end June 2015 

• Evaluation of Final Tenders – 

July to September 2015 

• Recommendations for 

Preferred Partner referred 

to Committee by end of  

2015. 

201



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

8

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

was updated on progress at its 

meeting in April 2015. The second 

stage of dialogue is now underway 

and a series of focussed dialogue 

meetings are scheduled during May 

and June leading to submission of 

Final Tenders at the end of June 2015.  

The council will then undertake a 

detailed evaluation of the proposals 

and it is anticipated that a 

recommendation to appoint a 

preferred development partner will be 

presented to Members towards the 

end of 2015.  

New England House  

 

The proposal is to establish a 

future vision for New 

England House as a large 

scale, high profile and visible 

managed business centre 

focused on the Creative 

industries and Digital 

businesses. The early 

proposal is for the city 

council to seek development 

partners with whom to 

develop a clear partnership 

vision, viable business case 

and funding package for the 

development of New 

England House as a digital 

media hub.   

 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Alan Buck 

The growth hub at New England 

House forms a key part of the City 

Deal with the government. Feasibility 

options and a business case have 

being explored as part of that work.  

Government have pledged £4.9m 

towards the project through the City 

Deal. 

 

The next step is to consider 

procurement options for taking the 

project forwards with partners.  We 

are also engaging with tenants already 

in the building and want to build on 

early engagement with them. 

 

Work has been undertaken to refresh 

and update previous survey work to 

get a better understanding of the 

condition of the building and the 

potential costs involved in renewal.  

The project will explore options to 

reconfigure and extend New England 

House at an estimated cost of 

£24.53m, with joint venture approach 

between the City Council and a private 

sector partner.  The expansion of the 

building would involve increasing the 

net lettable floor space by 7,089 sq.m 

to 18,459 sq.m. 

An updated business case was 

issued to DCLG with a view to 

accessing the City Deal funding 

at the earliest opportunity to 

help unlock the proposal.  This 

was scrutinised and approved 

by DCLG on 5 November 2014. 

 

Options are now being actively 

explored for procuring a private 

sector partner and a report on 

the recommended way forward 

will be presented to a future 

Policy & Resources Committee 

later this year. 

 

202



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

9

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

This information will help to inform 

subsequent stages.  Initial high level 

feasibility work has also been 

undertaken by Property & Design to 

inform the city council’s ask around 

New England House in the City Deal. 
 

The RECREATE project, which includes 

a 3,500sq.ft refit of space at New 

England House to transform it into a 

creative hub ‘Fusebox.’  This space is 

managed by Wired Sussex.   

 

Refer to the Ultrafast Broadband 

project for more detail on the 

Brighton Digital Exchange. 

Open Market  

 

To redevelop the Open 

Market to create an exciting 

mixed-use development 

combining a new modern 

market offering a diverse 

retail offer and promoting 

fresh, healthy food and local 

producers with affordable 

housing, arts based 

workshops and a venue for 

street art and 

entertainment.   

 

The new market will be 

operated on a not for profit 

basis for the benefit of the 

community and contribute 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Richard  

Davies 

• P&R approval in April 2006 to 

support the Open Market Traders 

Association (OMTA) to prepare a 

redevelopment proposal. 

• Landowner consent under delegated 

authority approved for RIBA Stage D 

scheme in February 2010. 

• Hyde submits planning application, 

permission granted March 2011. 

• Brighton Open Market CIC formed 

with members being the council, 

OMTA, Hyde Housing and Ethical 

Property Company to take 

ownership of the new market. 

• Temporary market operational from 

9 January 2012. 

• New market officially opened on 19 

July 2014. 

• CIC drew down mortgage from 

• New covered market with 45 

permanent market stalls 

surrounding a central market square 

for temporary stalls, visiting markets 

and a variety of activities 

• CIC to operate the market for local 

benefit 

• 12 A1/B1 workshops 

• 87 affordable housing units 

• £12.5m external capital investment 

in local infrastructure. 

• Approximately 80 FTE construction 

jobs. 

• 120 jobs in the new market, 

workshops and CIC. 

• New opportunities for small 

business start-ups. 

• Venue to promote local produce and 

• Continue council officer 

support for management and 

administration of CIC and 

running of the new market 

while the market strengthens 

viability and resilience. 

 

203



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

10 

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

to the wider regeneration of 

the London Road area. 

 

Triodos Bank and took long 

leasehold of market from Hyde in 

June 2014. 

• 87 affordable housing units 

completed by Hyde and fully 

occupied June 2014. 

• 12 workshops completed and leased 

by Hyde to Ethical Property 

Company, June 2014 

• CIC appointed Ethical Property 

Company as managing agents for 

the new market 
 

local producers. 

• Code level 4 for disabled residential 

units (8 out of a total of 87 units) 

• Very good thermal performance of 

building fabric. 

• Photovoltaics, green roofs and green 

walls included in scheme 

• Works started on site in October 

2011 and completed June 2014. 

 

Permanent Traveller Site 

 

Project undertaken to 

manage site selection, 

delivery of consents and 

build out of a new 

permanent traveller site 

providing 12 permanent 

pitches for traveller families 

with local links. 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Alan Buck 

Research has established that the city 

has a need to find space for up to 16 

permanent traveller pitches to meet 

the accommodation needs of traveller 

families who have well established 

local links.  A permanent site will offer 

those travellers resident in the area 

greater stability, as well as freeing up 

space at the transit site. 
 

It is proposed that the new site will be 

built wholly using grant funding 

administered by the Homes and 

Communities Agency (HCA).  Whilst it 

will meet the specific housing needs of 

a certain group, in all other respects, 

the proposed permanent traveller site 

is no different than other forms of 

affordable housing.  Residents will 

have to pay rent and council tax for 

their pitch, as well as cover their own 

utility bills.   

Provision of 12 new permanent 

pitches providing homes for families. 
 

Freeing up of transit provision in the 

city and so reducing unauthorised 

encampments. 
 

Visual screening to reduce the impact 

of the existing transit site on the 

National Park. 

September 2013 – Planning 

application submitted 

 

Feb 2013: SDNPA Planning 

Committee met and agreed 

they were minded to grant 

planning consent. 

 

June 2014: The Secretary of 

State agreed to the issuing of 

the planning consent. 

 

Sep 2014 – June 2015 project 

work to comply with planning 

conditions, undertake detailed 

design, and identify final costs. 

 

Start on site is expected in July 

2015. 

204



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

11 

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

Following an exhaustive site selection 

process, Horsdean was selected as the 

preferred location.  A planning 

application was submitted in 

September 2013.  The SDNPA Planning 

Committee met in Feb 2014 and 

agreed to grant consent.  The 

Secretary of State then spent a period 

of time considering whether to call 

the application in, but in late June 

confirmed that it would not be called 

in and planning permission was 

granted subject to a number of 

planning conditions. 

 

 Work on the pre-commencement 

planning conditions was undertaken in 

late 2014/early 2015.  On 11 May 

SDNPA confirmed that all pre-

commencement planning conditions 

have been signed off.   

 

Work is currently being undertaken to 

review costs and budget in the light of 

construction cost inflation. 

Preston Barracks  

 

Redevelopment of the 

council owned 2.2 hectare 

brownfield site and adjacent 

University land spanning the 

Lewes Road, to create a 

mixed-use development that 

will act as a regenerative 

catalyst for this part of the 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Mark Jago 

Since early 2013, the council has 

worked in partnership with the 

University of Brighton and Cathedral 

Group Ltd (the University’s preferred 

development partner) to unlock the 

redevelopment of the council-owned 

Preston Barracks site.  Progress was 

reported to the Policy & Resources 

Committee in July and December 

2013. 

High quality, sustainable, 

employment-led, mixed-use 

development that will act as a 

regenerative catalyst for this part of 

the city.  The planned scheme will, 

across the Preston Barracks site and 

University land, deliver 55,000 sq ft of 

new employment space in the form of 

the ‘Central Research Laboratory',  

a business incubation centre that will 

• Exchange of Contracts –         

15 July 2014. 

• Partners work to satisfy 

‘Preliminary Conditions’ – July 

2014 to July 2015 

• “Meanwhile uses” begin on 

site – mid-2015 

• Detailed design process 

commences – mid-2015. 

205



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

12 

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

city.   

 

The sites, on the main Lewes 

Road, are an 'urban gateway' 

to the city from the 

‘Academic Corridor’ (close to 

Brighton and Sussex 

Universities) and are 

therefore of strategic 

importance to Brighton & 

Hove. 
 

 

 

 

The partners exchanged contracts on 

15 July 2014.  Since  that time the 

partners have been undertaking 

preparatory work necessary to satisfy 

a number of ‘Preliminary Conditions’.  

Good progress has been made and it is 

anticipated that initial conditions will 

be satisfied by mid-2015, following 

which the design development 

process will commence in earnest.   

 

Cathedral and the University have also 

been assembling their full professional 

team in readiness. In addition to 

which, Cathedral is developing plans 

for a range of “meanwhile uses” for 

the Preston Barracks site; plans that 

will directly link to the future 

redevelopment and help promote the 

longer-term vision. To support this, 

the council is in the process of 

agreeing with Cathedral a lease 

relating to the central part of the site. 

support new hi-tech and design-led 

manufacturing start-up companies 

and entrepreneurs.  
 

350 new homes, new University of 

Brighton academic buildings, student 

accommodation with 1,300 bedrooms, 

and a modest amount of retail space. 
 

The scheme will greatly improve the 

built environment in this part of the 

city, a key approach to the city centre, 

and will better integrate with 

neighbouring residential and business 

land.  

• Planning application 

anticipated in late 2015      

with a view to development 

commencing end 2016. 

  

 

Falmer Released Land 

 

Redevelopment of the 

former Falmer School land 

that was not required for the 

Brighton Aldridge 

Community Academy 

(BACA). 

 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Richard  

Davies 

• Falmer High School land surplus to 

BACA requirements is available for 

alternative uses. 

• Cabinet February 2012 gave 

delegated authority to proceed with 

a licence for The Community 

Stadium Ltd (TCSL) to use the site 

for temporary stadium parking and 

provide a temporary home for the 

Bridge Community Education Centre 

• Brownfield land brought back into 

efficient use. 

• Short-term support of TCSL to 

provide temporary stadium parking 

and temporary accommodation for 

The Bridge. 

• Continue support for TCSL to 

provide match day and event 

parking with potential capital 

receipt or revenue stream in the 

• Council and TCSL to complete 

licence for temporary use of 

the site for stadium parking 

and accommodation for the 

Bridge. 

• The council and TCSL to agree 

Heads of Terms for the 

proposed hotel next to the 

Community Stadium and 

redevelopment of Falmer 

206



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

13 

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

(The Bridge), subject to a viable 

business case and the granting of 

planning permission. 

• An urgency decision was taken in 

accordance with the scheme of 

delegation to grant a licence to TCSL 

to commence works not requiring 

planning permission, effective 

6/03/12. Reported to Cabinet on 15 

March 2012.  

• Planning permission granted April 

2012 for the works. 

• The Bridge moved into its new 

temporary home in May 2012. 

• October 2013 P&R Committee 

authorised the Executive Director 

Environment Development & 

Housing, Executive Director Finance 

& Resources and Head of Legal 

Services to enter into negotiations 

with TCSL regarding the proposed 

hotel next to the Community 

Stadium, redevelopment of the 

Falmer Released Land and agreed 

that draft Heads of Terms be 

brought back to P&R for final 

approval. 

long term. 

• Potential for new student 

accommodation and educational 

facilities combined with stadium 

parking. 

• Potential to provide new permanent 

home for The Bridge. 

Released Land, and to be 

brought back to P&R 

Committee before 

proceeding. 

• Policy & Resources 

Committee on 16 December 

2014 agreed hotel Heads of 

Terms. Lease now to be 

completed. 

• Council awaiting development 

proposal from TCSL for Falmer 

Released Land that is required 

before agreeing draft Heads 

of Terms to be reported to 

Policy & Resources 

Committee. 

• Continue officer support for 

The Bridge to seek a 

permanent home on or off 

site and as part of any 

redevelopment proposal.  

Ultrafast Broadband 

 

The city council submitted a 

bid to DCMS under the 

second phase of the Super-

Connected Cities Programme 

to improve digital 

Director: 

Geoff Raw 

 

Project 

Mgr: 

Alan Buck 

‘Second tier’ cities were invited to bid 

following a process of lobbying by the 

city’s MPs and Members.  There is a 

£50m pot to be bid for by 27 cities.  

The voucher connection scheme 

opened in February 2014 and has 

been issuing vouchers to businesses 

Funding will deliver an estimated 

1,000 connection vouchers for SMEs 

to achieve a step change in connection 

speeds and wireless hotspots in public 

buildings. 

Extended Voucher Connection 

Scheme opened April 2015. 

 

Wifi in 40 public buildings went 

‘live’ April 2015. Wifi in Royal 

Pavilion, Brighton Museum and 

Old Court House to ‘go live’ by 

207



 

 

 

Project Update for Economic Development & Culture Committee – 18 June 2015 

 

14 

Project Name & Description Officer 

Lead 

Background and current project status  Impacts & Outputs Current project timetables and 

milestones 

connectivity in the city. The 

bid was successful. 

 

since then.  It is currently being 

geographically extended to the 

Greater Brighton Area.  The 

government has extended the scheme 

into 2015-16 and the local scheme has 

been extended beyond the city to 

encompass the Greater Brighton area. 

 

The Super Connected Cities 

Programme has also funded the 

installation of wireless hotspots in 

public buildings and reception areas, 

to facilitate public access to digital 

services.  The majority of buildings 

went ‘live’ on 31 March.  All scheduled 

buildings are now ‘live’ except for the 

Royal pavilion complex, due for 

completion by the end of June. 

 

SCCP funding is also being used to 

deliver a digital exchange in New 

England House – the Brighton Digital 

Exchange (BDX).  This also involves 

providing fibre cabling to all units in 

the building.  Any interested business 

in the building and the city centre has 

the potential to benefit from 

connecting to the digital exchange, 

which allows for advanced and rapid 

forms of file sharing and storage. 

end of June 2015. 
 

Completion of  Brighton Digital 

Exchange at New England 

House, end of June 2015. 

 

 

 

 

208


	Agenda
	2 Constitutional Matters - Economic Development & Culture Committee
	Enc. 2 for Constitutional Matters - Economic Development & Culture Committee

	3 Minutes
	6 Public Involvement
	Item 06(b) Public Questions

	7 Member Involvement
	8 Neighbourhood Planning - Delegation of Decisions
	9 Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	Appendix A (map) for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App B (Jan report) for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App B (app 1 to Jan rprt) for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App B (app 2 to Jan rprt) for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App B (app 3 to Jan rprt) for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App C Jan EDC mins & decision for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App D sumry of reps post defrl for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina
	App E BMRA contitution for Designation of Business/Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood Forum - Brighton Marina

	10 Local List of Heritage Assets - Adoption
	Appendix 1 - LLHA Consultation Responses
	Appendix 2 - Summary Local List of Heritage Assets
	Appendix 3 - Summary List Not Recommended for Inclusion
	Appendix 4 - Recommended text for LLHA PAN

	11 Brighton & Hove Triathlon 2016
	12 Major Projects Update

